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Character of Leo M. Frank good 
Misses Annie Osborne, Rebecca Carson, Maude Wright, Corinthia Hall, 
Annie Howell, Lillie M. Goodman, Velma Hayes, Jennie Mayfield, I~ 
Holmes, Willie Hatchett-, M-inilie Smith, Marjorie .McCord, Georgia 
Denham, Zilla Spivey, Minnie Foster, Mary Pirk, Julia Fuss, Mesdames . 
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............ 
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All employed at factory .. . ................................. 220, 221.__ 

D. I. l\Iaclntyre, B. W"ildauer, Mrs. D~n Klein, Alex. Dittler, Dr. J. E. 
Sommerfield, F. G. Schiff, Al Guthman, Joseph Gershon, P. D. McCarley, 
Mrs. M. \V. ·Meyer, l\~~David Marx, Mrs. A. b. Harris, M. S. Rice, 
L. H. Moss, l\lrs. L. H. l\Ioss, Mrs. Joseph Brown, E. E. Fitzpatrick, 
Emil Dittler, \\rm, Bauer, .Miss Helen Loeb, Al Fox, Mrs. Martin May, 
Julia V. Boehm, l\Irs. l\lollie Rosenbaum, l\L H. Silverman, Mrs. L. 
Sterne, Chas. · Adler, Mrs. R. A. Sonn, Miss Ray Klein, A. J! Jones, 
L. Einstein, C. J. Bernard, J. Fox, Marcus Loeb., Fred Heil bray, Milton 
Klein, Nathan Coplan, l\Irs. J. E. Sommerfield ...... ...... · ........... 220 

All residents of Atlanta ........................................ 220 
Have known Frank ever sin..ce he came to Atlanta. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 220 

- Alfred L. Lane, Brooklyn; Philip Nash, Ridgewood, N. J.; Richard A. 
\Vright, New York; Harry Lewis, Brooklyn; Herbert Lasher, New York; 
John W. Todd, Pitts~urg; Professors C. D. Albert and-J. E. Vanderhoef·, 
Cornell University ............. :-.............................. 167, 168 

All ln~ew Frank at Cornell University, or Pratt Institute, or both .167, 168 

V. H. Kri-egshaber, M. F. Goldstein, Dr. David Marx, R. A. Sonn, Arthur 
_ .-Heyma~, Mrs. H. Glogowski, Mrs. Adolph Montag, Mrs. J. 0. Par. 

• 

• 

melee . . . ................................................... .-.--.-16~ · -

Misses . Ida- Hays, Eula- May Flowers, Opie Dickerson, Sarah Barnes, 
Iren~ Jackson, Bessie Fleming, Irene Carson; Mesdames Emma Clark 
Freeman, Mattie Thompson, J. J. Wardlaw ........................ 170-174 

All employed at factory ......................................... 170-174 

A. D. Greenfield ~ John Finley, John A. Jonm1,.Isaac Haas ...... 1_42, 147, 164 

-----------::S::-:p,_e-c-=-ia-=l- ex-.,-am--:-in- a-:tion by New York Life Insutance Company in 1912, 

and results · ............... ~ ...... _ ........................... ~ ........ 164 
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.Oha.racter of . Leo· ~ Frank-Continued 
Witnesses . attacking Frank's character . . . . 

'"' ·Misses Myrtice Cato, Maggie G~ffin, ~arie Carst, Nellie Pettis, Mary - · - -
Davis, Estelle W·inkle, Carrie Smith; Mesdames C._;D. Donegan, H. ·R. - -
Johnson, . Mary E. Wallace ....... .- ............. -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 221 

All form.e~ employees at factory -. .. · ...... · .. -;-.. . .. ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . 221 

Clarke Woodenware Compa.ny · 
. On.first floor of factoryydoor to, not locked; nailed up, but found broken 

open just aft~r the tragedy ..... ;-·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .77., 79 
State Exhibit A (243) does not show . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 97 

Ooleman, J, W., conversation with McWorth ...... : ................. .. . 233 

_ Co~em.an., ~· J. W. . ....................................... ~ ....... . 1 
- ~_pril . 2-~h__ . 

11 :45 a .. m., last saw d~ceased in life ...................... .: .- .... 1 
. Had eaten cal>bage and bread at .11 :30 a. m. · 

Deceased carried silver mesh. bag ..................... . .... :-:: . . . . 1 

Conley, Jim ............................... . ......... _ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59 
Character oad--.. · ... : ..................... : .................. 120, 121~20 \/ 
Criminal .record of .. ........... ~ .................. ..... : ......... _._. 6_3~,_1_34 _____ _ 

State's Exhibit T t I I t I t I I t I t I I I f I I I I t I I t t I I I t t I t ~ I t I I t t t I t t I t t I I 251 

Coplan, Natha.n / 

- Thanksgiving, 1912 
8 :00 to 10 :.00 p. m., Frank at dance 137 

Dalton, Q •. B. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50 
Basement of factory 

Has been ·in, with women ....... . • ............. . · ........ ·. . . . . . . . 50 
Could not say that Frank knew this ..... : ............... ~ . . . . . . 50 

Conley, Jim, known to Dalton ..................... -............... ". 50 
Character of, bad 

Impeached by certain witnesses ............................... -~ . . 135 
· Sustained by others. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 221--
~~ank's Office · 

Women in ............... : . ·. · . . ................. -...... -.-. ~....... 50 · · -
- . . 

Hopkins, Mrs. Daisy 
Testimony as t9 ....... . .................... .... : .... · . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.0 · . 

DarleJ, N. V . . ............ ~ ..... . · . ..... -......... ~..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32 -
April 26th 

8 :20 a. m., at factory ..... ~. : .... ·: ........... · ... . · ..... : . . . . . . . . . 32 
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Frank ·excited April 21th . ~ ................ ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44 

Grimn, Miss-l,l&g'pe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 223 
Says she saw.Miss Rebec.ca Carson go into dressing room with Frank ... 223 

Other ladies on floor · at time .... ·, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 223 

• 

Their names not given . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . 223--- -· · 
----,- - - - - --- - -----

H 
~, ·Esa 0. L. . ......... . ..........•......•. ; .•. .'. . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . .. 242-

Kendley, George, bitter toward Frank .... : · .. · ........................ 242 _,, 
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Bau, Isaac 

.April 27th, did not hear ~!~phone ... . .... ._ ... .' ..................... 147 
IS Wife awakened him .. , . ~ , . . -.... , ..... , ......... , . , , ... , . , . , . 14 7 

- Frank's~har-aoter-g~ed---.- .-......... . . . ........................... :. -141 

Ball, Miss Corinthia ......... . .................................... ~ . 103 
~~-----,-----

~--~-;------April 26th 

l,__..:.....,,-_ _ _____ 1=1~:'35 a. m., she reached factory , . · ................. . . _, . . . . . . . . . . . . 103 
Frank dismissing two men as ~he came in ............... ! • • • • • • • 103 

. Freem-an,Mrir. E-mma withller ............................. ·. . . . 103 
11 :45 a. m., left factory .... · ...... ~ ............................... · 103 

In factory at time were .Arthur White, Mrs. May Barrett, her daugh-
ter; Harry Denh_am, Frank, .and stenographer .............. _!__• •• _ 10_3_ 

-- -. rank's offic_e -- - --- . 

-- - ~~---~--'Entered, with Mrs. Freeman .... : ....... · ................ . ..... .. 103 
Frank writing in inner office ........ . ...... . . _ ............ . · . . 103 
Stenogre.pher in outer office ............ ~ ~ .................. .. . -. 103 
Telephone useaoy Mrs. Freeman . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 103 

Holloway, E. F., witness met as she came to factory. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 103 
Quinn, Lemmie, witness met at Greek Cafe ...... .. . '. .... . --: . ... ; . . 103 

. _White, .Arthur, sent for by Frank in her presence. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 103 
Witness saw Mrs. 1\-Iay Barrett, White and Denham on 4th floor, 26th. 103 

Hall, Miss Hattie . . . : ..... . ... -...... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... .- . . . .. 100 
- ----=---~.A=.:~26th - . 

.. ._ ---

10 :00 a. m., saw Frank at Montag Bros ...... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100 
.Asked by Frank to come to factory 
to do some work ... . ......................................... . 

"PI " 
100 
100 ease come over ..... . ........................... _._. .... . . . -

~ "Well, come if' you possibly can, as-I have work for you to do" .. . 100 · 
10 :30 to 11 :00 ~ .. m., went to fact~ry .......... __._._....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101 

Frank not wor king on Financial sheet .............. ; ....... _. . . . 101 
10 :30 a. m. to -12 :02 p. m., ~rank di~ not work on Financial sheet'. . . . 101 

Financial sheet 

Frank did not work on, mornings of Saturdays ........ ;- . . . . . . . . . . . 102 
. . . . 

Had never seen, at time of inquest .... . .......... : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 103 
Testimony before Coroner was as to average sheet . .... ~ ..... . ....... · 102 

Confused the two sheets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 102 
-Witness had never seen a-"Financial sheet .at time of Cor.9~er's in~ · 

• • • : ~ · ,"!.. . ... ... •f •t; , . . . · __ _ 

~aslett, R. ·B. . .......... . ..... : . ............. " . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 -
April 28t~ 

Frank's linen and clothes examined Qy, at Selig home. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 . ·. . - . .· . . 
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Haya, Mill Ida 
Conley's character bad ... '! •••••••••••••••••••••••••••• : ••••••. •• ~ • • 17~ 

Has known him two years .............. ~ ..... _ .... ................ 170 
Frank's character good ............... ". .................. · ........ . 

Has ~nown him two years ..... - .................... _. .. ·· .. · . · . · · · 

110 -
170 

Hewell, Miss Dewey 
_ · __ _From Home of Good Shep~erd, Cincinnati._ ... . ............ ". . . . . . . . . . 222 

Saw Frank once speak to-deceased .... . ....................... · ... .'. ~ - 222--
All h .. 1 ~ . 222 ot er g1r s saw it ..... · ................ · ...................... . 
No · concealment ... . ......................... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 222 

Heyman, Arthur ............................... ; ............ _ . . . . . . . . 169 
Attorney at law, Atlanta ........... ;-;- .................... ~ ..... ~ . . 169 
Frank's character good . . ................................... -. . . . . . 169 

- --Has known niln-tliree -o:r-fouryears -: .. --: -.-. -.-. -.-. -. -.-.-.-.-.-.-. -;-.-:-.-.-.-.-.-.-;-.-.-.-.- 169 

Hicks, Mis.a Grace . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ...... · ..... . 15 

Body of deceased id.entified ..........•........... ·· .......... · .. ·· · · 
Had known each other about ~ar ................ · ............. . 

15 
15 

Employees paid off 6 :00 to 7 :00 p. m., 25th ....................... · ... . 
_-· Witness saw Helen Ferguson at time ............................. . 

Floor dirty and greasy in factory ......................... -... • ... . 

15 
16 
16 

Frank, Leo M. 
Accustomed to come to metal room on inspection .............. ~ ... . 16 
Never spoke to girls except on business ........... · ............... . 
Spoke to witness three times in five years ....... -. -................. . 

Hair combing at machines common ....................... ~ .. . 

16 
.11> 
16 

·Hair of Magnolia Kennedy very like that of de~ef!sed ...... . ........ . 16 
Office, can not see into from clocks ................................. . 
Paint on 11oor all ov:er metal room ..... ..... .- .... .. ............ . ........ . 

16 
16 

· Btnohey, H. J. . ....................... :·· ......... · ................. . 116 
Api;il 26th. 

2 :00 to 2 :15 p. m. saw Frank at Capitol-;-;-.............. , .......... 116 
Time fixed how . : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116 
Witness driving automobile .... .....•....... ~-............... 116, 117 
Came 'near · ·colliding with · car. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 117 
Frank in the street car .... . ...... ·~ ...................... : 117 · 

H~s known Frank for five -years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 117 
They have had business dealings .... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . 117 

. . 
Hixon, Ann.ie ( o) ... ~ ......... _.......... ............. ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122 

April 26th · . _ .. 
Frank ·called C. F:-trrsenbach ....... ~ .......... · ................... 122 

''Tell Mr. ·Charlie I can't go to the bal~ game". . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . 122 
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Hixon, Annie, (c)~Continued 
. -:April 27th . 

I 
---. 

---· -- - F..,..'r_a_n_k and wife came to Ursenb1rnhs'--to -dinner·.-·.- .. --. ............ . · .. 1°22 - ---------- -
As was their custom ........... : ................................ 122 
Laughed and talked ... . ..... · ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122 

Nothing unusual about Frank . ... . . ......... . ........... . ... 122 

-----· - NGt-n.er,.vous-0.r- excited- .-.-. .- ..... -.. -.. ~ · -· ..... ~· ~ ..... ~~- 122 --· ---·--- ·-----

Hoffman, Henry, : ....... : ................. . ..... ........ . ..... '.~ . . . . 230 

April 26th 
Matthews' car due 12 :07 p. m. at Broad and Marietta streets ..... . . . ·230 
Matthews works unde_:r__Hoffman. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 230 

.Has run ahead of time ...... ·- - · ~ .. . ............ ~ .............. 231 

r--------=B=o~l=lis, W. T. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84 

-· 

April 26th 
Conductor English Ave. car . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84 

--Deceased rode on ca:r__o_f, by herself. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84 
·No boy with her ................. ........ . .................. ;-; .- -84 
She was accustomed to ride on Hollis' car two or three times a 

'veek . . ...... . . · ....... : ........... . ... . ................... __ 8~ 
Left car at Hunter and Broad Streets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84 

Epps, George, witness knows . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84 
- . Not with deceased, on car, 26t~ ........... . . . .. .. .. _. ........... .. . . 84 

Oliver Street, Epps did not take car at. . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 85 

· Undertaker's 
Witness saw body of deceased at .............................. .... _ 85 

- Holloway, E. F..... .. ............................................... 29 

April 26th 
. • 6 :30 to 11 :45 a. ,m., at factory........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 

-----------+-!t, - Q a. m., Denham and vVhite came in . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 
- 7.:00 a. m., shortly after Alonzo Mann came. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 

-. -

8 :30 to 8 :45 a. m., Frank came ... . ........ ... ,. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 
9 :00 a. m., Darley came ...................... • .. . .... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . 31 
9 :10 a. m., Miss Hall came .... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 
9 :30 a. m., Frank and Darley go to Montag Bros .. . .. · ......... . .. .' . . 30 

·---10:30 a. m., llo lToway checked freight .......... . .............. .. . .. · 32 
Witness did not see Conley, 26th .... . . · ...... ·. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 78 

~pril 28th 
Great . excitement at factory ..................... . .. · .- .... · . . .. : .. . 80 

. . colnpened to shut. dqw'u ·a_t .1l.,.:3o a. m._ . ._, .. . : ... . . -. ~ -: ........ :··. -· so 
Clark W oodware ·Company ' 

Door to, not locked ............ . ........... ·. .. ... . . .... . . . . . . . .. . . . . 77 
Nailed up, but fou,nd open after trag~dy .. : . ..... -:· . .. .. .. .... . 77, 79 
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Holloway, E. F.-Continue"-'d-'-_ 
Conley, Jim · · 

. - . 

.• 

Familiar with wh.ole building .............................. ·. . .. . .. 77 
--::Not duty 70f Conley, but ·orHolfoway -to -watch door ... ~ -..... --:. :-. :-. ~ .- 78 

Washing his shirt, 28th ......... -.................. •J •• ~-· • , • ~ • • • • 79 
Trie~o hide it from Holloway ..................... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . 79 

Witness did not see Conley, 26th. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 78 
--&trds lying scattered- all ov'er factory .. -....................... ··--·; · 31 -

Dalton, C. B., never in or ·about factory. . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77 
Day watchman at factory .............................. ~----- .. '. . . . . . . 29 
Distances measured by Holloway ................. • ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79 
Fra~eoM. 

/Never familiar with Conley_c. ............ -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77 
//,.- Never spoke · to deceased ................... ·-· ................... . 30. 

/ . . - 78 - Worked Saturda s at factor;y ........... , ........•... •.....L!._!_! ~-'...L.L'- '--------,-

Gantt, J. M., talked many times with deceased..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 
Hopkins, Mrs. Daisy -

Never in factory after June, 1912 ................................ . 
Immorality, none practiced in factory ............................. . 
Lee, Newt, first negro night watchm~n ......................... ~ . ~ .. 
S~turdays at factory 

Frank worked en ................ · ............................. . 
His office door never locked ..................................... . 

27 
77 
77 
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78 

Holloway at ...... · ............................. -.-.... ~ .......... · 77 _ ____ _ 
Salesmen frequently the~e .................. · ..... -:- ............. . 

Frank always-saw them-:-. -.-.-;-.-.-.-... -.-.-. -.............. · ............ . 
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78 
78 
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BOpld.ns, Daisy, Mrs .................... ·· .. ......................... -... . 134 
· Atkinson, Miss Laura, did not know .................. , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13.5 

Basement of factory, never in ................. -. . . . . • . ... . . . . . . . . . . . 135 
·Character attacked by 

Floy4,. J .' R., Goddard, R. M. Goddard, A. L., Ballard, N. J., Car , 
. Henry, Rice, J. S., Smith, Lem, Merk, W. P ..........••.••• · . · •• 221, _224 

Would not believe her on oath ...... : · .. ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . 221 ·. 
Dalton, C. B. 

Acquainted with . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . 134 · 
Has seen him orice only, at his house ...... : ............ ~ . . . . . . . 134 . . . . ~ 

Never visited factory with him ... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . 134 
Never introducednrm to F'rank. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 134 

Frank, Leo M . 
. ~ She and Frank ..never spoke .. • ......................... ·, . . . . . . . . . . 134 

Neyer v.isited his ·o~ce; never in_ his offic~ .• ........ ; ... ~ ... -.. . . . . . . . . 134 · 
-- -worked in factory formerly, packing department ........•..... · ....... 134 

Never in ·factory since June, 1912 ........•.......... . --: . . . . • . . . . . . 134 
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Bunter, Joel 0. 
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Je•er-son, Mn.----George_.W .. . ........ -. ...................... -.-.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 
Cords in factory like cord about neck of deceased ...... : ." ...... ·. . . . . . 28 
Paints, di1f erent colored, in factory ........... ·, .. ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 

Jones, Ivy ( c) . . ................. ,. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 233 · 
April 26th 
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1 :00 to~ :00 p. m., Raw Conley at Hunter and Forsyth Streets. . . . . . . . 233 
Came in saloon· . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 233 

2 :00 p. m., shortly after, left Conley at Hunter and Davis Streets .... 233 

Jo~es, John .. Ashley ........ · ................. ~ . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 164 

April 8th, 1912, saw Frank 'and Mrs. Frank at factory ...... -. ......... 164 
Character of Leo M. Frank _______ ___ _ 
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Kauft'man, I. U.-. Continued 
Plats and Drawings 

Basement of factory, Defense Exhibit 61 ..... . ..... -;-, ..... . ....... 301 
First".floor of factory, Defense Exhi'bjt _61, ........ · ................ 301 
Ground floor of Selig residence, Defense Exhibit 52. · ..... . ......... ·. . 299 
Washington St. and Georgia Ave. corner, Defense Exhibit 53. . . . .. . . . 300. 
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. April 26th, deceased not on ·car of Matthews and Hollis .............. ~ . 231 
' K-eD'CileY:, George, . . . . . . . . . . . .· . . . . . . . . . . . .............. ~ -. . . . . . . .. '" . . 230 

April 26th_ _ 
Saw deceased in life ............ . .. , .......................... ~ . . . 230 

Bitter toward Leo M. Frank 
Asher, S. L. (242) ; Stahl, M. E. (241) ; Brent, T. Y. (241) ; Haas, 

.__ _ _ ______ . _- Miss C. L. ~242}-- -- - - - - --- --------- _____ _ __:__ 

Kendrick, L. T. . ................................... · ...... ·. . . . . . . . . . 234 
Night watch~an, former; nearly 2 yea1•s ..................... ~- . . . . . . . 234 

Clock needed setting then every twenty-four hours ..... _,_ .. ·" ....... ~34 
Would vary 3 to 5 minutes .. ............ • ........ '. . :. .. .. . .. .. . .. 234 

- - ==== 'a-tuMays=at faet&f!y 
Has seen-Conley on ... .!. •••••••••••••••••••••• · ••••• • ••••••••••••• 234 
Witness usually reached factory on, 1 :45 to~ :30 p. m ... -. . . .. . ....... 234 

Went th~n for his pay .. . ..... . · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . • 234 

• 
Ferguson, Helen, . there at same time ............ . ~ ... !. ... .. ...... . 

_ ___ She did not ask Schiff for deceased 's- pay ... -. -...... " ......... . 
She did not ask Frank for it ....... . .... . ..... -...... . ...... . 

Witness c·ame out wi.th Helen Ferguson_. .................. . . · ...... . 
They waited for Grace Hicks .................................. . 

Witness swears that Helen Ferguson said nothing about Frank-: ...... . . . ,) -

. I 
. April 26th 

12 :00 m., left wo·rk ·at Bennett Pig. C<>." .. .- •....................... -113 
. ~ . 8 

1 :05 p. m., Kress' Store on Whitehall Street ....... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113 
Went to Jacobs' corner, saw clock ...... ." .~ ..................... 113 

1 :10 p. m. saw Frank at corner ................. .- ...... .- .......... 113 
Did J!Ot speak to Frank .... ~ ....................... _. _. . .. . . . . . . 113 
No one. standing between them ... " ............... ._. . . . . . . . . . . . . 114 
Witness not mistaken ·about' time ............ .. .... ~ .... , .... · ~ • . . . 113 

1 :~m., had appointment · at ~corner. ............ ~ .... . -: ...... ; . . . . . . 113 
1 :20 p. m., inet frien'd at . corner; .,. ~ .. : .... ; .. .. ... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113 

- - - - -- - ·---·- - ---· · - ----------------- --- --- - "----'- - --. - - - - - - - - -··""' .. XX - - -
·- --- ------ -'---- ·-

- _ · -_::_. ___ _ 



· ~ · · 

Kitolfens, Miss Mamie 222 
. Dressing room incident .. I ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• • ••• • • • • • 222 

-.------ - - --Frank asked if girls-did not have--work-to-do .. -. . ....... ~ . · .. .... -.-.. -.. ·222 

. Kriegsh&ber, V. B. . ..... _ ........................................... ! 169 
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Frank's character good ... ......... . -. -. -.~ .... . ....... · ........ . ..... 169 . 
.'....----- --=--- - Ha.a. known Frank 3_years .................. ~--.... -. : .......... ". ... -169·- ----

Trustee Hebrew Orphans" Home .......................... . ......... 169 
Frank also Trustee ............ " .. . ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 169 
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Lane, Alf fed L. . .. ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .......... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ; . 167 
167 

--- - -
Brooklyn, lives ...... ~ ... · .. -. ~ :-~.~-.----:- . -............................ . 
Frank's character good ................................. ........... . 167 
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Lasher, Be_rbert .......................... _,, ........................ . 168 
Frank's character good ................ , :· ... -...... ......... ~ .... ". .. . 168 

Knew him 3 years at-Gor-nell · ...... / . ........ _._. _ .. --.. -............ . 168- 0 

Classmate and_ roommate 2 years ................ . .. . ........... . 168 
He associated with best men ............... -............•... ~ .. . 168 . . 

Lassiter, R. M. . 43 
43 
43 • Parasol found by, in elevator shaft ........ · ........................ . 

. Not crushed or broken . ......... · ........... ! •••••••••• · •••••••••• 

Leac'"b, J; R. . . .... ~ ........ ; ......... · ..... ·. , .. · ... ·- ................. . 153 
Street. car schedules ................ ". .............. ............... . 153 

Lee, Charli& ..... -.......... ~ ................. · .. .................... . 133 
Accidents in metal room 

D-1,1ffy; J. E., in October, 1912 ...................... · .......... ·. . . . . 133 
Blood spurted on floor ........................... ~--:-:- . . . . . . . . . 133 
Passed by dressing room toward office ....................... ...._. . 133 
Wound dressed in office- ..........•............. ·· ; , . . . . . . . . . . . . 133 

Gil be~, employee named, in 1912 ................. --: ............... _13~ ___ _ 
Hand cut in metal room ........................... ~ ·~ ~ ..... : 133 

f----------~~~ressed in office .................. · ........... -. . . . . . . . . . . . . 133 
. -· .. . -- . ·- · . . . 

Metal room 
Blood all over floor at times from cuts. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 133 
Floors not washed or cleaned ... · ....... · .. .- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 133 

Lee, Newt , . . . . · . . -. .. . . . . ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -. ..,. . . . . . . . . . . . . ·. . . . 2 
- · · ·April 2Qt~; paid off at 6 :00 p. _m ........................ · .... '. . . . . . . . . 2 

Instructed by Frank to return 26th, at.4 :00 p. m..................... 2 
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.. · Lee, Ne~ontinueq 
. April 26th 

4 :00 p. m., reached factory about ........ ...... _._ ................... . 
. Ex~used by Frank for 1112 hours ................................. . 

5 :57 pr-m.,-returned to factory ......... ; ..........•..............•• 
6 :00 p. m., Gantt, J. M., came from saloon ........................ . 

. . . - Went back to beer saloon in ab.out half bonr ... ; · ................ . 

2 
2 
2 
3 
5 

'l:UO p. m., Frank phoned factory ..................... ·~· ........ ~ 3 
· 7 :00 p. m., first trip to basement ................ ~~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • · 6 

Witness says atlrac ory doors unlocked evening of 26th ..... -..... -5 
April 27th .... 

3 :00 a. m., body discovered in basement... . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . • . 3 
Claimed he first saw it-from toilet............................. 3 
Notified police at once ................ · ............... .- . . . . . . . . . 4 

Clocks punched 26th and 27th .............. · ................ ~ ..... 3, 4 
---------Gantt,--J--;-M~ - --- - ·- - ·- - - --· ------

6 :00 p. m., 26th, came to factory from saloon ... ' .. . · . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . 3 
· - Wanted. to get a pair of shoes ................... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 

Went back to saloon in half an ,hour .................. ~ . . . . . . . . • -3 
Frank had discharged Gantt ......... '. ....... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . · 5 
Gantt a great big fellow,-seven feet A.......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 -~ 

~ . 

Instructions not varied on 26th ......... -. ~ .......... ~ .. :· .. ........ : . 5 
Keys returned to .Frank each morning. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 
Offiaers arrest him ................... !t ••••••••••••••••• ; ·. . • • • • • • • • • 14 
Particular instructions as to dust bin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 
Phagan,:::Mary 

Body discovered by Newt Lee. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . -g 
Described ................... ; ; ................ · ....... ·. . . . . . . . - 3 
Impossible to tell whether white or black .................... -. . . . 3 
Notified police about 3 :00 a. ~., 27th. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 

Rounds of factory by Newt Lee ... 
First visit to basement 7 .:00 p. m., 26th .................... · ....... . 
In basement each hour during the night .......................... . 

But not all the way back ....... -.............................. · .. · 
Visited metal room and ladies' dressing room on ro1mds ............ . 

6 
5 
5 
5 

Levy, Mrs. A. P ................ .. · .. ................................. : . 114 
April 26th 

1 :20 p. m., saw-Frank leave car.;. ,·,··, ............ · ..... : .......... : . 114 
Time, how flied ................ ~~~_!. ·~·. ,_._. . •...!_ ._~ . 114 

Lives across from Selig home .................... ~ ... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114 
Not related to Frank ...... · ................................ ·. . . . . . 114 

. . . 

,· . J;.ewis, Barry ~ ............ ·. ". .. . · ......... -. ·. ~ · ................... ·. . . . . . . 168 
Attorney-at-taw, Brooklyn .. . · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . ... . . . . . . . . . . . 168 

. Frank's character good .... . • ... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 168 
Has known .him _12· years .... : ........... -......... , .. , ....... , . . . 168 
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Loeb, CJohen ........ •-L'--'-• •••• ~ • ..!........!.._• ~ ._.'"•.J.__J_ •••••.•• ; ...... ...... . ..... ·· 116 
April 26th 

~-· 

2:00-p~aught car Washington St. and Georgia Ave ............. 116 
Frank boardeu--tilis car.at Glenn Street .......................... 116 
They sat together ...................................... ·. . . . . 116 

2 :10 p. m., Fra.nk left car at Capitol ..... ~ ............... ·'\ . . . . . . . 116 
Car blockaded_ . ......... ~ ~ .......... ! • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 116 

....__~------,.,_ra~~wiiln>~w.......+-""'n-Hunter Street ... i •• -~ ~ •••••••••••••• - •• -. - .--•• ..-- ±0-----------
liad oIL.b.l:ruLfilrl wore derby hat ............................... 116 

Automobile of H. J. Hinchey almost collided with ·car ....... r. . . . . . . 116 
Nothing ' unusual about Frank. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116 

No marka_on, no . nervousness ..................... ~ ... · ......... 116 

Loeb, Juli.an ........ ~ ................. · .................. ~ . ~ . . . . . . . . . . . 116 
April 26th 

~-------1-:50--to 2 :00_ p. _ __m., _ saw Frank _ _at__Wolfahe.il!ler~ residell_c_e_ .. • __!__.!._!._• ._ •• _l:._16 _ 
Talking to Mrs. Michael and. Jerome Michael. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116 

Cousin of Frank's wife ................... : .................. -:-. . . . . 116 - . 

-Mc 
-

McCoy, M. B . .... ; .................................. -............... . 
April 26~h 

229 

Acquainted with deceased ........... . ............... !_!_ . , ••••••••• 

---
229 

Saw h~r, 12 N. _Forsyth Street, about 12 o'clock ......... •........... 229 

• ~me, how ~ed -................................... ........... . 230 

MCCr&ry', Trum.an ( c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... 130 
April 26th 

12 :00 m., paid oft: in Frank's office ........ . .. ~ . : .. ; ............. . 
-
130 

Frank there at work . .................................... · .... . 130 
_ Did not tell Conley to relieve his bowels . . .................... -..... . 130 

_ __ __..D~id _not see Conley at factory-.:-: .. : ....... -.............. ,. ....... . 130 
Took hay to factory, on .. ~ ..... . ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 130 

Clarke W oodenware C<h 
Used door once to haul trash ..... . . ~ ............................ . _131 

-
J 

Conley, Jim 
·___lileyer watched or guarded door ....... ··~·········· ............. . 130 

Not at factory afternoon of 26th ....................... ·:· .. . .... . 130 
Frank's office .......... ..... .......................... . ..... ·~ ....... .. 130 

Any ~ne can see in ........... : ... -; ..... : .......................... 130 · 
Doors partly glass . . . . . . . . . .................. ... .. ·~ .......... ·., . . . . . 130 
Never knew · doors to be locked .... ----. .................... :-. ... ·-:-:-: . . 130 

Saturdays . 
3 :30. to 5 :00 p-. m., ofte~ at factory L ••••••••••••••••••• - •• ~ . • • • • • • • 130 . 
Never found .front door locked ...................... : . . . . . . . . . . . . 130 
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Mccrary, Truma.n (c)-Continued. --·-
Never saw- Conley-sw-eeping-on--;7; . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 131 
Schiff and Frank worked on~ ......... . . . ......................... 130 

-

: McKnight, Albert ( c) .......... . · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . 41 
April 26th 
· 1 :00 to 2 :00 p. m., claimed to be at Selig home. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41 

1 :30 p. m., Frank came home, witness did not see Frank eat. . . . . . . . 41 
Dining room at Selig home described ............. -.-:~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41 

-----------ftl'IF.e-H:en,.witn~s~-ai-ms--to-ha-ve-wat-e-hed-F-r-a-n-k~- . . . . . . . . . ·41 

McKnight, Minola (c) ............. . . . ...... . ..... . ................ 109 
April 26th 

Cooked breakfast at Selig home ..... · .. ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 109 
Frank ate sho11!-ly after 7 o'clock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 109 

0 

1 :00 to 2 :00 p. m., Albert McKnight not there .... . .. . ....... ........ 10·~----

l :20 p. m., Frank came to dinner .... --: . ............ ~ ... _. _ . . _.__ ._'....:..~~~109 _ 
_ ___ _ _____ _ :00 p.__m., _Frank finished eating_ and left. ....... ~- . . -. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . 109 

6 :30 p. m., Frank ate supper ...... . .............................. 109 _ __ _ 

·---,---...--- - - - -- -

8 :00 p. m. , cook -fof-t- fGr-the-night ........ ~ ............... :--:-. . . . . . 109 
Detectives arrest her after the 26th ...... . ........ .. ............... . 109 
---Carr..ied-.to--D.01·sey 's office .. -• ........ · .. ·: .. : . .- .................. : ._. 109 

Confronted by Dorsey, McKnight and an~ther .... -................ ·. · 1io 
They tried to shape her testimony . ... . . '. • . -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . liO 

They compelled her to sign false statement ....... . ....... ~ . . . . 110 
McKnight, Albert, not at Selig home, 26th ........ _ ......... ~ . . . . . . . . 109 
Wages not raised since tragedy ......... . .................... ~~ ... » 110 
Witness denies statements in affidavit which she swears she was forced -

to sign . . .... . .... .. . . .................................... . .... 110 
Graves and-Pick~tt compelled her to sign a false statemtfut. . . . . . . . . . 110 

They bulldozed and threatened her. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 110 

McWorth, W. D., . .. : .................. . . .. . . ....................... 141 
Club found . by, at factory .............. . ............... -............ 141 
Pay envelope found by, and \.Vhitfield ....... . ....... .. .... ....... 141, 142 

·Worked on case fifteen days ....... . .... . .............. .' . . ......... -141 
l\fay 15th, made search -0f factory .................. ·· .. ~ .. . ....... 141 

Looked for mesh bag . . ............ . ...... .. ........... .. . .. . 141 

-M--- · 
Mangum, C. W. 

Testimony o-f · . . .. ... ..... , ... . . . ............... ... .. . ... . .. -:--: . . . . . . 74 
. . 

-· Mann, Alonzo .. · . . ........ . . .. ... . ·, . .... : ..................... · .... _. . . . 122 
April 26th .. ~ - · - -·· . . -

11 :30 a. m., left factory . . ......... _. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122 
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·~nn, Alonz0-Continued . 
Frank had him telephone Schiff ......... , ._ ............... _ . . . . . . . . 122 
~lephoned Schi~ _twice ~ .... ; -;-; ... -... -.. --;-;- ... .-................ 122 . 

Left Miss Hall at factory with Frank ............... -........ ~ ..... 122 
Saw Holloway, Darley, Irby, McCarley there ........................ 122 

Office boy at factory . . ..... ·_:_:_:__:_ ..... : · ......................... -:-. . 122 
Saturdays 

Boy stayed until 3 :30 to, 4 :00 p. m ............................... ~- . 122 
Frank alw~ys at work at that time ............. ..... -. ; . . . . . . . . . . . 122 
Never saw any women in Frank's office ........ _. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122 
Never saw· Dalton there, on.- .......... · ........................... 122 

Marcus,~ Mrs. A. E ... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . 127 · 
April 26th, played cards, Selig home .................... ._ .. . . . . . . . . . . 127 

Frank sat. reading in hall ....................................... -. 127 
Nothing -finusual about Frank . .' ......... _ .... --. .................. - 127 

10.00 p. m., Fra11-k-r-etWe . . . . . .............. --.. -. -. . . 127 

Marcus, Mrs. M. . .......................................... ~ . . . . . . . . 127 
April 26th 

8 :30 to 8 :4op. m., played cards, Selig home _. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 127 
Frank opened front . door for her:-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 127 

10 :00 to 10.3up. m., Frank retired'. .............. .' .... -.... . ....... 127 
Mr. and Mrs. Marcus left Selig home ............... -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 127 

Marx, Dr. David _. ............................ : ............... : . . . . . . . 169 
Frank's character good ....... : ..... · ........ ·._ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 169 
Jewish Rabbi, Atlanta .......................................... 169 

-------
Matthews, J. C. . ................................ : ....... -. ~ . . . . . . . . 122 

Montag Brothers, works at ............................. -. ........ -. . . 122 
April 26th, Frank at Montag Bros ................................ 122 

Matthews, W. M.~ ...................... .- · ... .... .' . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 83 
.April 2"6th,· motorman English Ave. car 

11 :50 a. m., deceased boarded car at Linds~ Street .......... -..... -. . 83 
No little boy with her on car ............ -................ .- .. .. .. 83 
This car on schedule time ................................... ~ . . 83 

12 :10 p. m., left-car at Broad and Hiiiiter Streets. •__!_ • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • "83 
Epps, George, witne~s knows-. .......... : ........ ._ ....... ; ...... : . . . 83 

Not .with deceased on car, -26th. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . 83 -
Witness did not tell N. C. Dobbs to contrary~ ........ - 232~------

---Wiiness saw body at Undertaker's................................. 83 

-- Mayfteld,' Miss Emily, former employe ......... _. ... ·. : . ............. -. .... 219 . 
_Worked in factory · summer 1912. ~ :. -. ... ".: .· ....... ,, ................. ·219 

Never saw Frank in dressing room while girls undressed ......... ~ .. 219 
Works at Jacobs' Pharmacy. · ... : . .................................. 220 
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Maynard, a. 1. . . !..._!_!.. • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •· • • • • • • • • • 234 
- ·ualton, c.- B., at· factory with· woman in 1912 .... · ..............•.... 234 

W omq,n weighed about 125 pounds. ,· .....•.......... ~ . . . . . . . . . . 234 

Merk, W. -P. 
·Knows Mrs. Daisy Hopkins. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 224 

Charauter for truth and veracity, bad ...... !.___!_ ! _ . _. __ !.·.· ••••••••• • i~ 224 

Michael, Jerome . 
April 26th 

1:45 to 2:00 p. m., saw Frank at i'{o. 387 Washington Street ......... . 115 
. Time, how fixed ............................................. · 115 
. Took dinner at No. 387 Wa$hington Street ............. : ........ 115 

Frank spoke to him and his mother ... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 115 _ 
Nothing unusual.about Frank .................. ,--;- ,._._._ ........ _. ... 115 
--No -scratches, marks, no -nervousness -.... ~ · .............. :· ... ·, ... 115 
Witness is practic~r in Athens. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 115 

Michael, Mrs. M. G. . ........................... · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114 

--.._.i~~---.... A~ril 26th 
2 :00 p. m., was at No. ·as7 Washington Street. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .114 

Frank took car -at Wash.ington -& Glenn Streets ................... 115 
Saw Frank ·and greeted him ................................... 114 
Time fixed, how . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114. 
With her, Jerome.·Michael, Julia:r;i Loeb, and Mrs. Hennie Wolf-

sheimer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114 
N"othing unusual about Frank, ................................•. 114 
~o scratches or bruises, or nervousness " . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . lli 

Minar; .John J'.tf ., reporter - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 140 
EJ?ps, George 

-Visited-night of 27th .... ; .. / .-. ................... _. . .. . . . . . . .. . 140 
Went out with Epps' father ................. . .................. 140 

Epps did · not say anything ·about seeing deceased on Satur- __ 
day, April 26th ...... _._ • .- ..... ; ..... . ....... · ............ --:-. 140 

Model of F.actoey ......... · ......................... ~ ... ~ ............. 151 
Defense Exhibit -13 ....... :.t • •• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 267 
Made· by blue print, Defense Exhibjt 87 ..... '. ~ ... ~ .. ·: . ·: ........ ;, .. 303 

' ' . 
, Mopt;ag, lflita. A. . ............. f ...... . ................ ... . ·• • • • • • • • • • • • • 170 

Frank's character good ............................... .. ......... ~_._17_0 _ 
.. · Has known him 5 years ............................. · 

~ows-- his character, how .............. -. . ..................... ~ . 
d • • •• -

170--
170 

Montag, Sigm.und .............. ! ••• · • . • • " ••••••••••••• ._ ••• • •• , • • • • • ... • • • • 128 
Accidents- in factory, ~uts ;". ...........................•• ~ ...• 129, 130 
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Montar, .. stgmund-Continued 
April 26th ' 

10 :00 a. m., Frank came tOMoiffigBros ............. ~~ . _. . . . . . . .. . . 128 
Stayed about one hour . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 128 
Talked with Gottheimer and Miss Hall ....... , -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 129 

April 27th 
Frank came to home of, after__l>reakfast. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 129 -

·A raw, chilly morning-:-: .................... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . ...... -~129 

Nothing unusual about him ..................................... 129 
------- -No more nervous than Montag . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 129 

Went to fa·ctory and made examination ............. : .......... _. . 129 
Factory, saw nothing on floor of, 27th.-... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . 129 
Financial· Sheet . 

Of-April 24th, r-eceived a. m. of 28th ..................... ~ . . . . . . . . 129 
Frank came to Montag Bros. daily .......................... · .... 128, 129 
Insurance company ordered factory cleaned ......................... 130 
Metal room, accidents numerous in ........................... :-:: . . . 129 
Pinkerton Detective Agency 

Employed by National Pencil Company ...................... ~ .. 129,-130 
Reports of, furnished to police first ........................... ·. . . . 130 

Saturdays at factory 
At factory, Saturdays, up to July, 1912 . ! ••••••••••••••••••••••••• 129 

-Frank working on Financial sheet always, on. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 129 

Na•"' Phili -.... . p 

.N 
.......................................... •. ~ .......... . 167 

Frank's character good . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 167 
Has }mown Frank four years ....•.... : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 167 

Classmates at Pratt Institute ................................... - 167 
Liv.es RidgewOod, N. J .. ..................................... •....!._• •••• 167 

·connected with N. Y. Telephone Co .................. · ........... 167 
--

Nix, DJ ......................................................... ; .. _ 
Office boy at factory April, 1912, to October, 1912. . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . 131 
S~turdays -at factory 

Frank and Schiff. worked ....................................... . 
No women or wrong conduct .'.-.. _.--..!2,-.-. ·....L!:. · •••• -.-.-->'----. . - . . ..... . 

131 
131 

Nix, -. ·o . ........................... ....................... . · . . . . . . ... 12a 
April 26th 

----Frank at Montag Bros ................... ........ _-;-... : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 123 
-~s;ked to use ;Miss Hall at factory_ ................... _. . . .. . . . . . . . . 123 · 

Miss Hall was Nix 's stenographer .... · .. r. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 123 
She could not go until Mr~ Montag 's mail finished. . . . . .. . . . . . . . . 123 · 

: F~!l.Pk wanted her that ·afternoon, 26th ........... -. ~ .. ~ . . . . . . . . . . 123 
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7 :25 p. m., supper finished --:-..................... .". . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111 

Frank sat in hall and read. . . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111 
Party of friends came after supper to play cards. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111 

Frank and wife did not play. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111 
Reading baseball story, Frank laughed and came in and . told of a _ ...... 

baseball joke .. ~ ................. ; ............... ". . . . . . . . . . 111 
While game was in progress, Frank would answer the door · bell. . . . 111 -

10 :00 to 10 :25 p. m., Frank retired. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111 
Hrs wife followed soon after . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111 
They told Mr. Selig good night ........... : . -. . ..... . • . . . . . . . . . . . . 111 

---...11~:00 p. m., the party broke up. ~ .. : ........ -. ............. ~ . . . . . . . 111 
April 27th 

Murder not ·~iscussed by . Selig ............ ..... ! •••••••••••••••• · •• 111 
No scratches, marks or bruises on Frank .......................... 111 
Talked:"little with Frank, Sunday 27th ............ .-; . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111 

Dining room . 
. . -- Position of sid_eboard unchanged .... :·':" . ...... · ..... • . · ........... ~ . 110 

Has never seen servants move it ...... ~ ·.'"' ..... :· . ..... ·. . . . . .. . . . . 111 
Kitchen, next to dining room ............ : .. . · ..•......... ~ . . . . . . . . . . 110 

Small pass.age between ... .................... : . : ...... ............. · 110 
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~pril 26th __ _ . _ _ . _ . _ . 
_ 1 :10 p. m., had dinner - .......... · .......... ~ .... ~.· .............. . 
-1 :20 p. m., Frank caine jo dinner ...... : ........... ·. : ........ : ... . 

He sat down and ate ....... · ... --;--;-;- . . . . . . .................. ~ ... . .,, _ ' . 
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Found Frank there ahead of them .... ·. : ~ ... · .... ................ . 
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Reached home with wife. ~ ........... ~ .. : ...... · ..... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . 128 . ~ . . 

Frank spoke .of crime committed; .......... · .............. ·. . . . . . . . . 112 
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April 29th . 
11 :00 a. m., Fran~ . .arrested .. --:-:-:-: · ..... ......... : ... ; ...... : ..... · ... 112 

McKnight, _Albert 
N otat Selig home, 26th ............. .- . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . 128 

. Mcknight, Minola 
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Selig Residence-Continued 
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Pawned watch with M. E. )f cCoy ....... . ............... . .... · ....... · 242 

Small, Miss DoJ;il. . . . . . . .. . . ~ . . ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . • . . • . . . . 120 
April 29th, af factory 

8 :00 to 9 :00 a. m., Frank talked· to Miss Carson. on business. . . . . . . . . . 120 
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L . . Z. R~sser- · .......... · ... ............. · ................. · . . . . . . . . . 137 

Thanksgiving 1912 . . 
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$nowball, see Gordo~-Balley . - -----.---- .~, ·-· 
Bonn, R. A. . .. .- ... -.... ~ .- . . ..... ~ .................. · · .... l"' • •••••• ; . • : • .•. .. • • • 169 
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-- _ ,tahl, -•. z .................................................. : ........ · ~~1 . 
_ 'Kendley, Geo.rge, bit_ter toward F~~nk ......... -:-...... , .. · .... ~- ~ .. : ~ .. . 241 

. . 

St&n!.or.d, Mell ...... ...! . •••••••• _._ •••• · •••••••••••••••••• ~ _. : •••••• • •••••• 26 " , 

·spots seen by, in ·metal room . · .. · ...... -~ .... :..: .. .. ; ... . ............... . 27 -

.SWept metal room, 25th ........ ~ ............... ..... ~ ............ .. . 27 
.. . 

Starn.91,. J. N. . ......•............................................... 10 
April 27th, ~ :00 to 6 :00 a. m., went to-factory ............. _ ........ -. -.. - -tt-t-- ------ - -

. Basement · of factory examined .......•..................... _. ... -... . 10 
- - ---

.Blood, what looked like·· 

_April 28th, saw, near _dressing room ... ;0 •. • ; •••••••• · • •••••••••• ••••• 10 
Chipped up par-t-s ............. -............•................... ~ . 10 
Covered with white substance .. . ...... ···-- .. -.................... ·. 10 

Clocks, examined by, with Hendricks .......... ..................... . 10 
Cords, knots in,-described. · .. ~ ............... . .................... . 10 

·Many like cords. all over factory ...... , ...... . ... ·-· ........... ... , 11 

Called over phone by Starnes _ .................................. . 10 
Frank asked for night watchma~ ........... · ......... : ..... ~ .. ·. -~ . 10 

Se~t for by Starnes ............. ; · ..................... .......... . 10 
.Rogers, W "- W., sent to Selig .Home .... .- ........... · ... : .......... .. 10 

. / 

·stelker, Joe : 

·charge of varnishing department ...................... •· .......... . 138 
· Oonley, . Jim . 

Character for · veracity bad .................. ~· : ................... . 138 
In chaingang .................. . ..... ..--............ · ............. . 138 

·· Floors of factory always dirty and- greasy .... ............. ...... : .. ~ ... . 138 
-· Frank · viewed....Q.ody of deceased at undertaker's .... . · ...... ·: . ..... · ... · .. 139 

Nervousness , · "' ~ -
0 

"Everyone .-at factory nervous . ~ ·:· . ....... _ ....... :-:-............... . 138 
. .Witn~ss nausea~ed by. tragedy ..... " .................. _ ....... ~ . 138 

Spots seen..by ·Barrett -
_ ·.Seen by Stelker ....................................... .. . -: . . . . . . . 138 

/ 
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/ 
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/ 

--- . ·very mu~h like varnish stains or coloring, "could have been made by . -. - . .. . ----------=~ 
red varnish ....................................... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . 138 

. . :.:.... - ---,------=--.:..--~---.:....__:= 

Stover, Monteen ·· .·r . Ap-rn 26th ·· -- · ·. . 

12 :05 p. m., was at factory ................................... ·· .... . 
.12 :10 p. m., left· factory ..•...•.. ... .........•.. ~ . -................... . 
. . ' . . . ... . 
: . ·went there to get pay, ..... ·· . · ................. -.-.... -.......... . . . . 
Frank's -office . . . ·- . . . ....... .................. .. ...... ·-· . ·• ........... • .. _ .. · -~ ... 
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Stover~ Monteen-Continued -
Did not see Frank, iir: ·: .... _ .... -............................... · ...... . ·26 
Did not see · safe ................... -;-..•............. ... ~ ....... . 
Did not see wardrobe . ...... .. ........ . ................. I ....... . . . 

Metal room door ~losed .................. :· . ........ .............. . 
This door sometimes open and sometimes closed .............. ~ ... . 

Worked on fourth floor ......... . ...................... .. ... i ••• 

26 
26 
26 
26 
26 

Thomas, K. T., civil engineer .............................. :- .... . ....... 153 . 
Distances to factory, from 
· Broad and Hunter Sts., 333 feet, 11/2 minutes :walk. . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . 153 
· - Marietta and Forsyth Sts., 1016 fe.et, 41/2 minutes walk . . · . . . . . .. . . . . . . 153 

Whitehali" and Ala.bama Sts., 831° feet, 3% ininutes walk .. _. ......... 153 
Walked .. at" fair gait .. . ..................... · ..... · .. · ... . '. ...... . · . 153 · 

. . . 

- Thompson,~ Mrs. Ma.ttie. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 173 
Frank's character good ...... ..................... · .................. - 173 .- . ~ 

~-- ------'TiFillHder, 0 .. . • ... . .. . ........ ;--;-;--;-; ............................... . • .. 233. 
AJ>ril 26th . . . 

11 :40 a. m., at factory with E. K. Graham-and ~~w negro ........ : ... 233 -. 
Frank at work in inner office ... ~ ..... ·, .. , ..... .- .-. · .... ·. · ...... _ .... -. 233 
Stenographer in outer office .............. ............. ~· ......... _. 233 

Todd, John W .. -................ .- .................... . .............. 168 
· Assistant Pur. Agt., Crucible Steel Co., .Pittsbu"r.g. . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 168 

Frank's character good ........ :-............... · ..... : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 168 
Has known Frank many years .................... ; .......•. _._. . . . . 168 

Knew him at ·Cornell ...... : ... -......... · ........ · .. .-. ......... :·:·. 168 

· Turner, w. E. 
Say~ he saw Frank once talk with deceased ... -............... ~ . ; .... .. , 223 

223 .·. 
Other girls near at time-=-... . .. · .... ; ... · . --;- ..... · .. ·· ... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . 223 
Witness unable to ·name .any one ...... . · ................. ; . . . . . . . 224 -

Professed not to know any .................. · .............. ;-;-... 224 

u - ·-· - ---- · -

. Ursenbach, O. F. . . : .... . ......................................... . .. ·. . 125 
April 25th, phone~ Frank to go to ball. game next day .. . ......... -~-1.25 
April 26th_ ~- . 

. 1 :40 p .. m., reached him home ............. ; ..... '-!· ....... . ~ •• : . · ~ · ; ....... 125 
His cook gave him Frank's message ... .. . ........ ... . ........ ; .. : .... .. 125 

xxxviii -

'::-'----------- - --- . _: --~-.6-· -=--~ --'--- - · 

·. 

-.--. 
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'A ril 27th p 
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Frank at his house ··· . ··- - - ·-· - · · -·- ---- ·-
. No scratches or bruises on Frank ....... ; ....................... 125 
Saw Frank again Sunday afternoon and evening ..... .._ .. .!. •••• · ••• , · • .- • 125 

Frank told him.about tragedy .......................... ~ ....... 125 
4 :00 p. m., :Flank borrowed rain coat ............ ~ .... . .... .. t:. . . . . . 126 
6 :00 p. m., raincoat returned ..... : ..... . • .......................... 126 

Bridge played at Ursenbach home on Saturday nights ................ 126 
Frank and wife did not play :eoke.r _. .............. _. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 126 

Ursenbach_J_ Mrs. C. F .· . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 126 
April 26th 

1 :30 p. m., took phone message from cook . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 126 
Ap~il 27th · _ 

No bruises.-or marks on Frank .................. ; ................. 126 
-. - Raincoat borrowed from husband_ .................. -. ......... -. .... 126· 
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v 
Vanderhoef, J. E .............. -. ............ .-........ : ... -. . . . . . . . . . . . 168 

··-~· 
Foreman of foundry, Co~nell ........ ............ . -:-:-. ................ 168 
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Knew Frank two years ................... · ........... ~ . . . . . . . . . . . 168 

At Cornell .......... . . ........................................ 168 

w .. 
. Waggoner, R· ... L. . ............. . .. · .................... . . ·. . . . . . . . .. . . . . 42 · 

--~---~A=i.:.p=ri=l~2~9=th~ . 
10 :30 to 11 :30" a~ m., in front of facfory .................. -....... ~ . 42 . 

.1 Saw Frank walk to window ·and twist hands ..... -_ .................. - 42 

_· ·..4.6\ . . .r. _~ 

. :. '····-.. i . , . · 

Seemed that Frank was nervous ................ . · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 

Washington-Street and Georgia Ave., Corner . 
- --Plat showing, defense exhibit 53 ... _ .. . · ......................... : . . . . 300 

• • I 

Weinkauf, Godfrey .................... .' ..... -. ..... ". ... : . .... ·: ..... ".. 133. 
Saturdays at factory . -. . . ' 

. 3 :00 to 5 :00 p. m., v_isited factory .......... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 133 
. Would stay about two hours .................................. 133 

· Frank, Schiff, and Holloway there . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 133 
Sup~rintendent o~ lead plant '-.!...! .......... ..... ~-. ••• • ••••••••• ·~ . ·• • .. • 133 
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~te, Mrs. J. A. . ............ -.--.--.--.----. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1·21 
April .26th -

11 :30 a. m., saw her husband at factory ... : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ·21 
Frank, Miss Hall, Denham, White,_ and-tw-O-Other- men,-all-in-faotory--
. at that time ........................................... -. . . . . -21 

11 :45 she left ................. ' ......... : . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . 21 
12 :30 p. m. she returned ......... .- .......................... -.. .- . . . . .. 21 
1 :00 p. m. she left, she saw Frank in his office as she left, he was at 

work .......................... ·-......... : ............. ~ . . . . . . 21 
1 :00 p. m. she saw unknown_ negro at foot of stairs sitting on box as 
. she left factory . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 

White and Denh~m worked fourth floor . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 

Willett, T. B ...... · ......................................... ·. . . . . . . . . 151 
Pattern, or model, of factory ...... _._ ...... ............................. 151 

Defense Exhibit 13 .................... ..... -.--..-.-·-· ......... ...........• ·267 
Made by blue . print, Def. Ex. 87 ................. ; .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 303 

Witnesses 

. ' TESTIMONY FOR STAB-. - .--
D ::--~~~~=---~~...,.-~~~;~~~~~~~~~~~~~--1~~~-11--~~~\1'.\--~~~B~~~~~~­

And erson, W. F. 39 40 

B&rrett, R. P. . ................ ~ .......... . 26 . 27 
Beavers; J. L. . ...... · ....... ~- ............ . ·43 43 
Black, John R. . .......................... . 17 18 

. -
Coleman, Mrs. _J. · W ............... : ...... .- .. 1 1 
Coleman, :Mrs. J. W. (Recalled) .......... -... . 20 

· Conley, James ......................... ~ . ;;- ·' 52 59 . 

Dalton, C. B. . · .... .. !. :· • ••••••••.•.•••••.•••••• 50 50 
. . .• .• ::i . . 
Darley·, N. V. . .. - ~ ........................ . 32 33 
Darley, N. V. (Recalled by Deft.) ...... ·, .. : .. · 74 
DObos, L·. s ................................ . 7 8 
Dobbs, L. S., (Recalled for State) ....... . · r ••• 10 
Epps, George .......................... "-..... · 1 2 

· Epps, George ·(Recalled by Deft.) .......... : . -; 80-
February, G. C. . .................... · ...... . ·41 41 
Ferguson, Miss Helen ........ ~ . . . . . . . . .... . 42 42 ·. ~ 

Gantt, J. M. · -.-.............................. . 20 - 21 
··.... Gheesling, W. H. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44 45 

qrice, ~· · 0 . ................. ·. . . . . . . ....... ~ 43 44 

H~r~is, ·nr. H. F ... ~ . : ...... ; ........... ~ .. · .. 48 49 
Haslett, B. B .................... ~·· ... · ..... . 29 29 
Hicks, Mis~ Grace-..... ~ ......... ~ ... ~ · ..... . 15 16 
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Holloway, E . . F .................. ~ .... · .... . 
Holloway, E. F .. (Recalled by Deft ... L~!__L!_!_ ~_!_ '. 
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In the Supreme Court of Georgia 
. .. - -

_ OCTOBER TERM, 1913 . 
. · .- - --- - - ----- -_ .:_:_-=:__::__:_:.__ .,..-_..::.:--::..::· ·-::_.::-:_:.- .:_• ~-____;:__...:-~~ 

. ' 

LEO M. FRANK,_, 
------P--laiatit: in Error 

.,. 

vs. From Fulton Superior Court. 
STATE OF GEORGIA, 

Dt;fendc\n t in Error 

BRIEF -OF THE EVIDENCE.· 

MRS. J. ,,., COLE.MAX;. sworn for !lie_ State. 
-
l am Mary Phagau 's mother. I last. saw her alive on the 26th day of 

:April, 1913, about a quarter to twelve~ at home, rit 146 Lindse~r Street. She _ 
was getting ready to go to the pencil factory to· get her pay envelope. 'About 
ll:30 she ate some cabbage and bread _-- She left home. at a quarter to twelve. 
She would have. been fourteen years old the first day of-June, 'Y~S ~.fair ~on\:' . 
. plected, heavy set, very pretty-;- and was extra large for her age. She ha<l 
on a lavender dress, trimmed in lace. and a blue hat. She had l r 
cheeks. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

_ -t'h~_!!!ue_hat that is s_ee~1 -here is th~_ h_atJhe.littfo __ girLhac.l 01L1haLday. __ 
It had some pale bhie ribbon and some flowers when she left home. It was a 
small bunch of little pink flowers right iu the center: "'\Ye lhie two blocks 
from -the street car line. There is a st<?re there, at · the place she u~ually gets 
on the car, ept by l\frs. Smith. Epps is a neighbor of ours. He was a .friend 
of Mary's. · Ile wasn't. no special friend of hers. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION,_ 
. . . 

. . . 'rhese are the doth~s that-slre-\vore on the day (State.'s Exhibit ".Jl ".) 

- : GEORGE EPPS, s.worn for .the State. · .-. 
-

· ... I am fourteen years old; . I . live right around the corner from :Mary Pha-
.· gan's heme. · I have -known her about a year·. The last _tih1e I saw · her was 
-Saturday morning coming to town on the Euglish Avenue car. It was about 
-ten minutes to twelve ·when I first. saw her. I left her about s.even minutes 
· after twelve at the corner of Forsyth and :\Iarietta Street. She had on that 

-- hat, ·parasot-and-thi-ngs when I leftller. She was going to the pencil · factory 
;;.:;:.C---- to draw her money. - She said she. wa.s going to see the parade a.t Elkin-":a.t-

. son's at two o'clock. She never showed up . .. I st~yed a.round there until four 
-. · .... ( ··. . o'clock. and then I went .to the ball game. 'Vhen I left her-att he. corner of 

-~}:~}\ . · . ~Rors.yt~ an~ l\I~rietta~ I.went under .the bridge to get papers .and slie w~nt ov_er 
• ·• 

1
T_· _ -_Jhe. bridge to. the pencil ~ factory,. about .- two blocks-d~wn _Forsyth .street. ·-. I 

1·", · .. .'_ ·· . ·sat ·with·Mary on ~he c~r .. · · · · · · . -. ·. . . . . .. . -

-
~----"::-=-'-~-------- -

. . .. 
. -· ~ ~~L . =- , ~ ....,...· ·· ·-.,..--.,,.---~~-

.. :· . . ... . . . 
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CROSS EXAMINATION. 

------ -·-· ~-I know-wlmt-tinre 1t was w en rmeCMi(ry becaus; I 1-ooked at Bry~nt a·nrl 
Keheley 's clock .at the corner of Oliver and Bellwood, where I caught the 

:car. She caught the car at Oliver and Lindsey and I caught the ear at Oliver 
and Bell Street :- She got on befo1;e I <l~d, just one block before. I didn't say 
anything_ before the Coroner's jury about seeing a clock there, but I did see 
oue. I know it was about seven minutes after twelve when I got off at Mari­
etta Street because I can tell by the sun. I lived in tlie country and when I 
got off I looked at the sun. Mary got off the street car with me. No, she 
didn't ride on to ··Hunter Street. I am sure of that. She walked on down to 
the. pencil factory on the right-hand side of Forsyth Street. 

· NE\V'l' LEE (colored) , swm·n for the State. 

On the 26th day of April, 1913, I was niglit watchman at the National 
.Pencil Factory. I had been night watchman there for about three weeks. __ _ _ 
\Vhen I began working there, Mr. Frank-carrie me a roun - and showed me 
everything that I would have to do. I wo~ld have to get there at six o'clock 

_ __...,.--'-------- - on-week-day , · ur ay evenmgs ave· to come at five o'clock. On .--
F.ciday, the 25th of April, be told me ''To-morrow is a holiday and I want you , 
to come back at four o'clock:-'' ''I want to get off a little earlier than I have 
b~~~__ge_tj:ing D_ff.2.~ Lgot ...to-the factory o·n -Saturday about three -or--fom~ min­
utes before four. The front door was not locked. I pushed it open, went_ on 

- - ---- -iinn-fattnttdl-flgttott-tto-the double door there. I was paid off Fri<lay night at six o'clock. 

4 . e · __ _ 
~ 

It was put out tl~at . everJbody would be_paid off---thim Every--8atu008* wlrn~-----­

I get off-he gives me the keys at twelve o'clock, so that if he happened to be 
gone when I get back there at five or six o'clock I could get in, and every Mon-
day morning . I return the keys to him . .. The front door has always been un-

· 1ocked on previous Saturday afternoons. After you go insige and come up­
about middle ways of the steps, thei·e are-some double doors there.. It was 

·locked on Saturday when I · got there. Have never found it that way before. 
I took my keys and unlocked it. W:hcn I went upstairs I had a sac-k of 

_bananas and _I stood to the left of that desk like I do every Saturday. I says 
like I always do, "Alright, Mr. Frank," _and-he-<iome-lmstling out of his office. 
He had never done that before. He always called me when he wanted to tell 
me anything and said ''Step here a minute, Newt.'' This time he came 
up rubbing his hands ai.1d says, "New~ I am sorry I had you-.. come so 
soon, you could h~ve been at home sleeping, I tell you what you do, you go out 
in town and have a good time." He had never let me o.ff before that: · I could 
have laid down there in the shipping room and gone to sleep, and I told .him 
that. He says, '~Y<;>u need·s to ha~e a good time .. . Y<>u·go down town, stay an 
hour and -a h·alf and co.me back your usual time at si~ o 'clOck. Be sure and · 
be. back at six o·'clock. H f-then went ~t the door and stayed until-about four 
mi~utes to six. When I came ·back the doors were unlocked just as I left ~them . 

-.. . ,..:._ -
--~=-~-~=-=-::._:_-=~:-::===-==~===-=~~~~~~-~-

~~~--~----:--~--~~~~ 

·. 
__ ._. ;_ ·- -· --~--- .. .... 

.•· .. 

( .• 
I. 



--· 3 
,·- -

~---· and I went a~d says, "Alright, l\Jr. Frank," and he s~ys, ""\\That time is it 1 " 
- - - and- fsays, ''It lacks t~o l~inutes .. or ·-~ix., _ , - H~ s~ys; n·non >t puuch ye""T·t-, ....... t..-h_e_re _ _____ __;: _ _ 

· is a few worked to-day and I want to change the slip.'' It took hii11 twice as 

long this time than it did the other t_imes I saw him -fix it. He fumbled putting 
it in, while- I heid the lever for him and I think he ma.de some remark about 
he was not used to putting i_!; in. \\~hen l\1r. F1·ank put the tape in I punched 
and I went on down-stairs. \Vhile I was down there- :Mr.-Bantt <!ame from 
across the street fr9m the beer saloon ancl says "Newt. I got a pair of old shoes 
that I want to get upstairs to have fixed." I says, 't I aiut allowed to let an~'-
body in here after six o'clock." Ahout that time Mr. li,rank come bustii1g 
out of- the door and run into Gantt une:X:peeted au<l he jumped b_ack frightened. 
Gantt says, "t got a- pair. ~f old shoes· upstairs.· ha Ye you any objection to my 
getting-them?'' Frank says. ''I don't think they are up there~ 1 thiuk I saw 
the boy sweep some up in the trash the other day.'' .Jlr. Gantt.a slced him 
what sort they were and Mr. Frank.said "tans .. ,·, Gantt says, "\Veil,· I had a 
pair of black ones, too." Frank say- , " Vell. 1 don't know.'.' and he droppe-d 
his head down just so. 'fhen he i·aisecl his head · and says, "Newt, go with him 
and stay with him and help him find them, '' and I went up there with :Mr. 

an oun em m e s ippmg room, wo pair, le ans an . le cc 
ones. Mr. Frank phoned me that night -about an hour after he left. it wa:s 
sometime after seven o'dock. He says "How is everything?" and I. says, ... 

!..:.:..._ _ _ _L,,Everythingis-all rigi1i-so far-asl-lmow1.1L-and- he says, '£.Good-bye.'-' · No, h€ -- --­
.did not ask anything about Gantt. Yes. that is the first time he ever phoned 
to me on a Saturday night or at all. · · 

. 'fhere is a light on the street fioor just after :.·ou get in . the (•11trauce to the 
bu_ilding. 'fhe light is right up here where that partition comes across. ::\Ir. 
Frank told me when I first 'vent there, ''Keep that light burning bright 'so the 
offi.ce1~s can see in when they pass by._" It wasn·'t burning that day · at all. 
I lit it at six o'clock myself. On Saturd·ays I always lit it. but wcekda~·s it 
would. always be lit when I got ·there. On Sa.turdays I always got there at 
five o'clock. This Saturd&.y he got me there an hour earlier and let me off 
.later. There is a light in the basement down there at the foot of the ladder. 
H~ told me to kee-p--t-hat burning · all the time. ·It . has two little- chains to -it · 
to. turn on and turn off the gas. When I got there on making m~ ro(rnds at 
7 p. m. 011 the 26th of prtl;-it wa,s burning just as low as you could turn it. 

r--=-------__,...1.,...:....e_a~1g_,._,~n_.1!..._'ng bug. I left it Saturday morning burning bright. I- made my 
- rou_ndsregularly every half hour Saturday night. I punched on the hour and 

punched .on the1ralf and I made all my punches. The elevator doors 011 the 
street .floor and office floor were closed when I got there 011 Saturday. _ 1.,he~' 
were fastened clown just' like . we fasten them down every othe'r night. \\Then 
three o'dock ca:me 1 weHt dowi1 the basement and· when· I went down an~l go( 
ready to come back.I. discovered the body there. I went. down to 'the toilet 
and when I got thi·ough I looked at tlie dust bin hack to the door_tn_.scc ho"-...._ _ 

_,_ ______ ·_f,. -he-d 09 r was -a-nd- }t....:.be-mg- <litr-.k= l=-pi-G-ked- np=-nl-y- ianter-11.:...and....weu t- tlwr1-> and I 

. ..i .. 
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saw something laying there which I thought some of the boys bad put--therA--- --- ­

·-~---- - ---to scare me, then• I walKea a· little piece -towards it and-1-seen-what-it-wa 
· - -- --- , and I got out of there. I got up the ladder and called up police station. It 

was after three o'clock._ I ca1·ried the· officers down where] found the body. 
I tried to get l\f r. Frank on the telephone and was still trying wilen the officers 
came. I grress I was trying about eight minutes. I saw Mr. Frank Sunday 
morning at about seven or eight o'clock. He was coming in the- office. He 

------
looked down on the floor and never spoke to me. · He dropped his head· right 
down this way. Mr. Frank was there and di.dn 't say nothing while l\ilr. Darley 
was speaking to me. Boots Rogers, Chief Lanford, Darley, Mr. Frank and I . 
were there when they opened th~ clock. :Mr. Frank opened the clock and said 
the punch~s were all right, ·that I hadn't missed any puncnes. l punched every 
half hour from six o 'clOck until three o'clock, which was th~ last punch I 
made. I don't know whether they took out that slip or not. On Tuesday 
night, April 29th a.t about ten o'clock I had a conversation at the station house 
with Mr. Frank. They handcuffed me to a chair. They went and got Mr. 

__:_-- ------ -Fr-auk and brought him in and he sat down next to the door. He dropped his 
head and looked down. 'Ve were all alone. -I-sai~rank · it's mi ht 
ar or me to · e andcuffed here for -something I don't know anything 

·about." -He said. "Wha.t!s-th~ difference; they have got me locked up and a 
. man guarding me." I said, ":Mr. Frank, do you believe I committed that 

---··-·-- -- -- - crime;'' a.nd he said, ''No, Ne_wt, I know you didn't, but I believe ou know 
something about it.'' I said, ''Mr. Frank, I don't know a thing about it, no 
more than finding the body.'' He said, "We a-re not talking about that now ~ 
we will let that go. . If you keep that up we . will both go to hell,'' then the 
officers both ~ame in. 'Vhen Mr. Frank came out of his office that Saturday 
he was looking down and rubbing his hands. I have never seen him rubbing 
his hands that way before. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I don't know how many times I told this story before. Ev~Qo_dy was 
after me all the time down there at the station house. y ~,-1 testified at the 
coroner's inquest and I told them there that Mr. Frank jumpe.d back like he 
was frighten~d when he saw M~ Gantt. I am sure I told them, and I told 
them that l\ilr. _Frank jumped back and held his head down. I didri 't say before 

--

the coroner that he said he had given one of the pair of shoes of Mr. Gantt ' ""' 
to one of the boys; . they got that wrong. On 'Saturdays I had to wake up 
usually and get to the factory at twelve o'clock. This time Mr. Frank told 
me to get back-at four. I did say before the coroner that he was looking down 
when he came . .out of his office. I told them .also that th.ere was a place in 
that building where I could go ~o sleep, but- they didn't ~sk me where. 

When you conie in the front door of the _factory, you can go. right on by -~ 
the elevatof and.right down into the bas.eme_nt,_anybody could do it._ The fact 

--~ha.Ube donb]e doors...on-the-&teps-wer..e-locked-Wouldn~-prevent~nybody-from--· 
I 

~- -
r 
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_going in the basement. That would only prevent anybody from up stairs from 
going .Jnto the basement unles ·they went by- the elevator or by unlocking-
those double doors. A1 oft liecloors-t the factory ·were unlocked- whe-n got ·--­
back there Saturday afternoon about six o'clock, the first floor, the second 
floor, the third floor and the fourth floor. Anybody could come right in from 
the street and go all over the factory without Mr. Frank hf his office knowing 
anything about it. The doors are never closed at all. That is a great big, 
old, rambling place up there. The shutters, the blinds to· the factory were all 
closed that day because it was a hohday, excepting two or three ·On the first 
floor which I closed up that night. It's a very dark place when the shutters 
are closed. That is why -we have to burn a light. There is a light on--:· t:--;-h_e_fi;o-1-·s-:-t-.- -----
floor near the clock, it burns all the time because that is a dark spot. There 
are two clocks, one punclies 0 anundred, the other punches to two hundred, 
because there are more than a hundred employees. I punch both of them. 
About l\Ir. Frank and Mr. Gantt,· they had had a difficult~ and I knew that 

. Mr. Frank didn't want hini in there. Mr. Frank had told me ''Lee, I have 
discharged Mr. Gantt, I don't want him in here, keep him out of here," and 

·he d said, "'Vhen you-See him hanging around here, watch him." That .... 
Mr. 

_ '. · ._ '-- . ' 

Gantt is a great big fellow, nearly seven feet. When he went out · I watched 
. him as he went to the beer saloon and I went on upstairs. He left the· factory 

about half past six. I went through the machine room every time I made 
JL unch that nighl . . I went to· the ladies dressing room every half hour that 
night" until three o.'clock . . I went all over the building every-· half hour, ex­
cepting the----hasement. I went down to the basement every hour that night, 
but not all the way back. · 1\lr. Frank had · instructed me to go over the build­
ing every half hour and he said go down in the basement .once· in awhile. He 
said go back far enough to see the door was closed. He told me to look out 
for the dust bin because -that _is where w_ __ e might have a fire and to see that 
the back door is .shut and· to go _QVer all the building every half hour. ·.No, he 
didn't give me any different instructions on that Saturday, he didn't tell me-­
·n_pt to go in the basement or in the metal department. He allowed me to carry 
out the instructions just like I had been doing before. Yes, if I had gone back 
to find out whether that door was closed or not, I w.~mld-ha.v-e fotmd the body, 
but I co"Qld see if the door was open, because there was ~ light back..there. No, 
it wasn't open that night. It was shut when I found the body . . It was about 

· ten minutes after · I telephoned' the police that they arrived. When I was 
down there I was close enough to the door to see it was shut, there was a 

- light in front oflt. Ther.e was no light between the body and the ;r;or:vo"'r'. -..------------......, ____,:....._ _ ___ ..!:::'...__ 

. was dark backthere . . The body was_ about sixty feet from that d<?or." If the 
back door had been open I could have seen that big light back there in the · 

. alley. The oack door was closed when I found the body .. The first time I 
went down th;basement that night was ·seven· o'clOck. · I went . just a. little 
piece beyond the dark, so I could· see whether there was any fire down there: 
That's what I was looking for. · Yes, I coqld t~ll whether the door was .open 

. .. .. . 
-· ---- - .- ----.- - ---- - - . --- -
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from there. · . )Jo. I didn't go back a,.; far as they found the body, I didn't go. 
--·-~- __ hack. that far a.t all duri-ng-t-he -night~ !.rhe-reason-1 went that fa-r-back ·when-I -

sa\v the body was because I went to the closet. There -are two closets on the 
seeond tloor~ one on the thir<l floor and one on the fourth floor. I didn't see 
the. lady's hat or shoe when I went down to that little place with my. lantern, 
uor the p'arasol. ::\'Iy lantern 'vas dirty. I was sitting do'wn there, after I had 
punched, on the seat. set my lantern on the ·outside. When I got through I 
picked up my lantern. rwa!ked a few stepsaown that -way, I seed something 
o\'er there, about tha.t much of ·the lady's leg and dress. I guess I walked 
about three or four feet, or five or six. I guess the body was about ten feet 
.from the closet. As to what made me look in that direction from the clo~et, · 
heeause I wanteq to look that way. I picked up the lante.rn-to--g-0-down-there 
to see the dust bin. to see whether there was any fire there. The dust bin was . . ' 
t.o the right of me. \Vhen I was sitting _down there the dust bin ·was not en-
tirf'ly hid lwhind 1he partition. I could' see where the dust came down. The 

. '·balance of the night in order to see whether there was any fire in the dust bin 
or not I went twenty or twenty-five feet -from the scuttle hole, and when I 

o see w e er or no ere 
was. any .fire in the dust bin . I would haY.C gone further if I hadn't discov­
ered the .body. vVhen I saw the body, t.h·e closest I ever got to it was about 

: .· six feet. I was holding my lantern in my hand. I Just saw the feet . . When 
J first sa~w it I was about ten feet from it. As to how far the body was from 
where I was sitting in the closet, it was not less than · ten feet and not more 
than thirtv. I stootl-and looked at it to see whether or not it was a natural . . 

_bo<.ly. 'Vhen I firs~ got there I didn't think it was a white woman because her 
face was so dirty and her hair was so crinkled and there were white spots on 
her face: "'lien the police came back upstairs they said it was ·a white girl. . 

- _I think I reported to the police that it was a white woman. She was lying on 
her back with her face turned kinder to one side. I could see her forehead. 
I saw a little .hlood on the side of her head that was turned next to me. The 
blood was on the right side of her hea~. I am sure_ she was lying on her back. 
l\lr. Frank had told me if anything ·serious happened to call up the poiice and 

. " . . - . . 
-~_if anything like fire to call up -fire department. ralready knew the number 

of the statio~ house-. I did ~ay at the coroner's inquest that it took Ml'"; Frank 
longer to put the- tape on this- time . than- it-did _before. I did not say it. took 
twice as long at the coroner's inquest., beca.\1se they didn't ask me. I didn't 

_::_--~prn·a~.vr---many att'ention to him the first time he put the tape on. The reason the 
·last time· I k•1ow, it took him longer because I held the lever and had to move 
. it -backwards and forwar.ds. 'Vhen I was in the basement one of the polic~­
. men read the note that they found. They· read these words, '-'-The tall,. black, 

slim negro did this, he will try to lay it on the night'' and .when tl~ey got to the 
·word "night" I said "They must be trying to put it off on me." I didn't say, 

·. - ''Boss, ·that's me.~f · - -.. . -:--- · . - .- -----~.--

·".-- · 
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Bll-DIUOT l:XAMIBATION. _ . J 

The first time I saw Mr. Frank put any tape on, he didn't say anythinf 
about-it-being any trouble. The last time he put it on, he said somethi~g 
about that he -wasn't used to putting it on. I was holding the lever t~ere and 
he got it on twice and he had put it on wrong and he would have to slip it · 
out and put it back. When Mr. Frank came ·out rubbing-his hand~ he came 
out of his inner office into the outer office and from there in front of the clock. 

•-

- · 
I did not go down in the basement as far as the boiler during the night.i except 
when I discovered the body. 

The officers talked to me the whole time. _I didn.'t get to sleep hardly, 
· day or night. Just the time I would get ready to go· to_· sleep here they was 

_ after me. Then I would go ·b(l.ck to my cell, stay a · while and then another 
would · come and get me. They carried me where I could sleep, ·but they 
wouldn 't!et me stay ther.JLlong .enough to sleep. I didn't get no sleep until 
l went · over toJhe_jail, and I didn't get no sleep at jail for about two weeks. 
That was before the coroner's inquest, when I was first arrested. When I went 

Frank or Black, l\fr. Black did. · Mr. Arnold talked to me longer tha-h l\fr. 
Frank did on April 29th. In the southwest corner is . some toilets for men 
and women 

L. S. DOBBS, sworn for the .State. 

I am a sergeant Qf- police. ·on the morning of April 27th, at about 5 :25 
a call came from the pencil factory ~hat there was a murder up there. \Ve 
went down in Boots Rogers' automobile . . When . ....lve got there the ~oor waFi 
locked. 'Ve knocked on the door and in about two minutes the negro came 
down the steps and opened up the _door and said there was 8. woman murdered 

- .. in the basement. "'\Ve went through a scuttle - hole, a small trapdoor. The 
. negro- lead the way back ·in the basement, to· a partition on 'the lefti leading 
.from the elevator. The basement iFi about twenty feet wide. The negro lea<l 

--~~ _ _ th~_ way back about one hundred fifty feet and we found the bod~,. ·The girl -
was lying on her face, not directly lying . on her stoma_ch, with the left side 

- - on the ground, the right side up just a little. · We couldn't tell by looking at 
her whether · she was white .or black, only by her goiden colored hair". They 
turned her over and her face was full of dirt ~nd dust. They took a pieee of 
paper and rubbed the dirt off of her face, and we could tell then that . it was 
a white girl. I pulled up _ _!ier clothes and we "eould tell by the skin_of l!er 
knee that .she. was a white girl.. Her face was punctured, ·full of holes and 
was swollen and black. She had a cut ·on the left side of her head afJ if she 
had been. struck and there was a little blood there. _Th~ cord was ar~und her 
neck, sunk into the flesh. She also had · a piece of her under.-0-lothing-aTI>und · 
her neck. The cord was still tight ·around . her neck. The tongue-wf!LDl'O.:. . 

.. 
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trudiug just the least bit. I began to looic around an&-found a couple of notes. 
The cord was pulled tight and had cut into the flesh and tied ju.st as tight as 
it could be . . 'fhe underclothing around the neck was not tight. There wasn't 
much-blood_ on her head. It was d:ry on _tl).e outside. I stuck my finger under 
the hair and it was a little frioist. This scratch pad (State's · Exhibit "H") 

- was also lying on the ground, close to the body. Theoody was lying with 
the hea<l towar<ls ~.,orsyth St..reet. the head being near the partition. 1 found 
the i:iotes under tlw sawdust. lying near the head. - The body was that of l\'1ary 
Pha·gan. The scratch pad was lying near the notes. They were all right close 
toget·her. 

0 

_ (\Yitiwss indicates on diagram of the State whe.r.e hody was found -and 
identifies different parts of the huil<ling 011° the diagram. 'Vitness states that 
diagram is a (St.ate 's Exhibit A). fair representation of the parts identified by 
him. i. r., main floor and stairs. basement. boiler, partition in basement, spot 
where nnt~s n~Hl hotly were fonn<l., and of the ·entire huil<ling. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

\Ye arrfrc->d at tlle factory. about 3 :30. Lee- totchls it was a white woman. 
Jt took us some time to det~~r

0

mine whether-it. -was-a-white-woman or not. We 
didn't know uritil the dust was remove<l from her face and we pulled up the 
dothes and looked at the skin. \Ye did not-l{now it prior to that time. We 
had a lantnn with u.s. One of the officers had a flashlight. Both of the notes 

- were near her head. I don't think they were over six or eight inches apart. 
~o. the one writ.ten on the scratch pad was not attached to the pad when I 

. I . 
. fou~1d_it. It was laying about ten or twelve inches· from it,:..right close together, 

and about eight or ten in<'hes from her head· was the furthest note. I found 
the white one first, oi1 the white pad. I discovered the notes on the white 
pape1• and the scratch pad about the same time. It was possibly five or ten 
minutes before I found- the other. There was a pile of trash near the boiler 
wh~re this hat was foui~1d paper and pencils were down ··. · · . 
hat W{ls on the trash -pile~ so was the shoe. .They were right eJose together on 

---~-----t1Rf1rash pile.-- Everything was gone off· of it, ri6Dons and all. 1t looked like 
. she had bee.n dragged by her feet on her face. I thought I found indications 
that she had been dragged in the basement, but I couldn't be positive. As to 

_ ____ ------.-,=~n"'e"'tl=iih=e=r Newt ·Lee--ruuld mve seentlie ody from where he was standing 
I would think that he could have seen-the body fro<m where he was standing; 
I would think that he could_ have seen the f~·i and the bulk of the body, he 
couldn't hardly)l.~ve seen thenead. I don't think he could have seen enough 
of it to have seen what it was without coming up to it. I made ail experi­
ment in th~ day time to see whether he could see the body or not, and I found 
he cotrld see the feet, you could see the bulk. Unless he was looking directly 
for someone. I don't t~i~k he could see it. The place where I thought I saw 
~someon~ dragged was right .jn front of the elevator, directly back. It began 
. immediately-in front- of-the -elevatur-;:-rig'lft -at-the oottorii -of the ~-shaft. ·- The -. . 

·. 

• 

• 
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hat was possibly nearer the elevator than the ·shoe. · That was a dirt floor and 
cinders on it scattered over the dirt. I thought the places on her ·face had- · ., 
been made from dragging. 1-tnmKI saw a little blood on · thellllderclothing. 
I did_ iiot testjfy before the coroner that .the blood ran a little when we moved 
the body, I didn't say it was . liquid. Theblood was dry. The little trail 
where I thought showed the body was dragged went straight on down ·where 
the girl was · found. It was a continuous trail. The finger joints on h-er hand 
worked a little. Back door ~as shut, staple had been pulled. The lock was 

__ l~ockecLstill , but -the staple had be~n drawn ~mt. _ It was a sliding door with a 
bar across tlie door, but the bar liad been taken dowi1. It looked like ffie _ 
staple had been recently drawn. I was reading one of the notes to Lee, with_ 

. the following words: "A tall blaillc negro did this, he will try . to lay it on the 
night" and whe.n (got to the word "night," Lee says, "That means the night 
watchman." I had just said th~ "night" and he said "That .means the night 
watchman ." I think the underclothes were torn, n.Q.t cut~ but I am not 
positive. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATIO~. 

It was about-·one hundred. fifty feet from the ladder to where we found 
-· t_he body. The ribbon I found was not on the hat, it was on the ha'ir. V\Te 

made another. experiment at night to see whether Newt Lee could have see_n 
the body from where he stood. 'Ye placed a bulk about the size of an ordi­
nary body a bout the same position that this body was fou~d in and you could 
see the bulk of the body by looking carefully by standing at the spot Newt Lee 
said he_ had-seen i~ . A man couldn't get <lowi1· that ladder with another per­
son. It is a .difficult matter for one person to get through the sCl'\ttle hole. The 
signs of dragging. that I saw was right at the bottom of the ele.vator shaft, on 
the sou! h side of the . elevator. The signs of dragging came right around the 
elevator straight back east of the ladder; if started east o-f the ladder. A man 
going down the ladder to the rear of -the basement would not go in front of 
ele~afor where dragging was. The hasp appeared t~ have ·been pulled straight 
out of the_ door, on the inside, it was not bent. · The body was cold and stiff. 
Hands folded across the breast. I didn't find any blood· on the ground or 
on the sawdust around where "\\re found the -body. Yes, the hasp is bent the 

. least bit. '\Vhen we got- there Sunday morning,- I think the elevator was on 
the second floor. 'Ve ·tried to make Lee run the elevator, but he said he 
couldn't do it. 

FURTHER RE-DIRECT. 

-
----~-

I found the handkerchief about ten feet towards the rear beyond the -bod,,,..y-~~ 

o.n a sawdust pile. 

RE-CROSS ExAMINATIQIL_ 
. _ I found it possibly ten or fifteen- minutes after -we found. · the body The - · 
-. _- ___ ... _ __ __ __handker:ChieLwas--l?l.ood¥- JUst-lllw:-it-iB--PQ .. --- -
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RECALLED FOR THB STATE. 
. . 

The ti·ap door leading up from the basement was closed when w_e got there. 
There were cobwebs and dust back there. 

J . N. STARNES, sworn for the State-. 

I am .!!:__ city officer. Went to the pencil company's place of business be- . 
tween five and six o'clock, April 27th. The pencil company is located in Ful­
ton County, Georgia. That is where the bo<lL was found. The staple to the 
back door lookr.d as if it had been · prized out with a pipe pressed against the 
wood. There was ·a pipe ·there that fitted the indentation on the wood. I · · 
r.alled :Mr. Frank on the telephon_e, and told him I wanted him to ~ome to the 
pencil factory right away. He said he hadn't had any breakfast. He asked 
where the night watchman was. I told him it was very necessary for hiin to 
·com~--and if he would come I would send an automobile for him, and I asked , 
Boots Rogers to go for hlm. I didn't te]J him wltat--had·-happened, and he 

- didn't ask me. Mr. Frank appeared to be nervo.us; this was indicated by his 
----- - - - --U'"'"nner of speaking -0-M:r...-Da~ . ling eonditienn-.· ·-_+I-'lww-A1·~-:___ _ _ _ __ _ 

guarded with him in my conversation over the phone. About a week after­
wards I went to the factory and had the night watchman there, Mr. Hendricks, 
to show me about the clock. He took a riew slip and put it in the clock and 
punched the slip all the way .around in less than five minutes (State's Exhibit 
P) . I got some cord on the second floor of the pencil factory, the knots in 
those cords are similar to the knots in this cord (State's Exhibit C) ~ On the · 
floor right at !he opposi~e corner, what might be called the northwest corner . 
of the dressing ·i:_oom, on :Monday morning, April 28th, I saw splotches that · 
looked like blood a1!9ut a foot and a half or two feet from the. ·end Qf the 
dressin<g' room, some of which I chippe.d up. It looked like splotches of blood 
and something had been thrown there and in throwing it had spread out and 
.splattered. There was no_great amount of it. I .shoul~ judge that the area 
around these spots was a foot and a half. Th-e. splotch looked as _if something 
had been swept over it. some white substance. There is a lot of that white 
stuff in the metal department. It looked like blood. I found a nail fifty ·· 
feet this side of the metal room toward the elevator on the second floor that 
looked like it had blood on the top of it. It was bet\veen the office and . the 
double doors. I chipped two places ·o~ on the back door which looked like 
they had bloody finger prints. I don't know when Frank was arreste_d. I 
don't ·think he was arrested on Monday. He was asked to come to the station 
house on _Mo~day. It takes not over thr_ee · min~tes to walk from Marietta 
Street at the corner of ·Forsyth across. the viaduct _a_nd through Forsyth Street 
down to. the pencil factory. Lee was composed at the factory; he never ·tried 
to get away. The do·or tQ the stairs from the office . floo.r to the thh:_d floo.r was 
barred when I-first went up there . . 

- - - ---- ------- - ---- .; · . ·' .. 
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ROSS-EXAMINATION. -
. . 

I am guessing about the time. It wouldn't take over five minutes to get 
off tlie car, walk to the pencil facbory, walk .in, walk up the stairs and back 
into l\fr. Frank's office. The hasp is bent a little. I heard Boots Rogers tes-· 
-tif'y at the coron~r 's inquest a.nd I testified twice. I did not correct any state- · 
ment at the coroner's inquest that Boots Rogers niade. - I am tne prosecutor 
in this case. I can not give ·the words of the conversation of the telephone 
message between myself and l\fr. Frank. ·I could be mistaken as· to the very 
wqr_ds he used. It was just a casual telephone conversation. I don't know 
that the splotches that .l saw there were blood. _rrhe floor at the ladies dressing 
room is a very dark color~ I saw cord like that in the basement, but it was 

. cut up in pieces. I saw a good many. c..ords like that _all over the factory. I 
never found the purse, or the flowers . or the ribbon on the littTe girl's hat. 
This diagram (State's Exhibit A) is a correct diagram of second floor and 
basefuent of pencil <,!ompany and other places. No. 11 on diagram (State's.· 
Exhibit A) is the-toilets.~ 

I was guarded in· what I said over the phone to l\fr. Frank though it was 
just a conversation between two gentlemen. 'fhese p°ieces of wood look like 
what I chipped off the floor. I turned- them over to Chief Lanfot:<l. · (Re­
ferring to State's Exhibit E.) 

. ~- . 

· REOAL .. ED FOR TH~ STATE. 
-.---~~-~-~~-

saw -l\i Ir. Rosser at the coroner.'s inquest... I never heard him say any­
thing throughout the heating. 

""\Y. ""\Y. ROGERS, sworn for · the State. 

, . - . . 

I a.!_n now connected with Judge Girardeau 's ·court. I was at t.he station­
house-Satur.day night, April 26th, and went to the National Pencil Company's 
place o:Nmsiness. It was between five and five thirty tnat I heard Mr. Starnes 
have a conversation over the phone. I heard him say, ''If you will come I 
will send ·an automobile after you." _, It took us five or six minutes to get out 
to Mr. Frank's reside~ce at 86 E. Georgia 'A venue . . Mr .. ~l~ck was with me. 
:Mrs. Frank opened the door. She wore a he_avy bath robe. -,~lif_r_. y:;B;,la-c'k-a-sk.--e..,--------._,.....__, 
if Mr. Fr.ank was in. Mr. Frank stepped into the · hall through .the curtain. 
He was dressed for the street with the exception of his collar, tie, coat and hat. 

· He had on no vest. Mr. Frank askeq Mr. Black if anything had happened 
at the factory. Mr. Black didn't answer. He as~ed me had anything hap­
pen.ed· .at the factory. - r ·didn 't answer. Mr. Frank said, "Did the night 
watchman call up and report .anything to you? ,-, Mr. Black said, " .Mr. Frank, 
you ha-a ·better get your clothes _on and let us go to tlie factory . and see what 

---hfi;-happen.ed. ,-,--1\fr. -Frank ·said ·tna"flle -thought he dreamt in -the _morning 
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about ·3 a. m. · a_bout !~earing the telephone ring. .Mr. Black said . something 
. about· whiskey to Mrs. Frank in Mr. Frank's presence. · Mrs. Frank said Mr. 

Frank ha~t had _any breakfast and would. we allow him to get breakfast. 
I told Mr. Black that I was hungry myself. Mr. Fr.ank said let me have a 
cup of coffee. Mr. Black in a kind of sideways, said, "I think a drink of 
whiskey would do him good,'' and Mrs. Frank made the remark that she 
didn't think there was. any whiskey- in- t-he-house. -_-- ·Mr. Frank see.med to be 
extremely nervou~. His questions were jumpy. I never heard him speak in 
my life until . that morning. His voice was a refined .voice, it was not coarse. 
He was rubbing h4s hands when he came through the curtains. He moved 
about briskly. He seemed to be · excited·. He asked questions in rapid suc­
cession, but gave plenty of tim.e betwe·en questions· to have received an answer. 
Mr. Frank and Mr. Black got on the rear seat and I took the front .seat and 
as I wa.s fixing to turn around, one of us asked · Mr·. Frank if he knew a little 
girl by the name of l\ilary Phagan. Mr. Fra-nk says : ''Does she wo~k at the 
fact~ry? '' and I said, · ''I think slie does.'' Mr. · Frai:ik said,_'' I cannot tell 
whether or not she works there until I look on my pay roll book, I know very 

p y . , u very se om go ac 
in the ·factor and I know very 'few of them, b~t I can look on my WJY roll 
book arid tell you if ~ 1t'rl by the name of :Mary Phagan works there." One 
of us suggested that we take Mr. Frank by the undertaking establishment -and 
let hiin see if he knew this .young lady. Mr. Frank readily consented, so . we 
stopped at the telephone exchange, Mr. F_rank, Mr. Black and myself got out 
and :went in ffie undertaking establishmen_t. I saw the corpse. The corpse 
was lying in -a little kind of side out room. to . the right of a large room. ~he · . 
light was not lit in this little room where the body was laying, and Mr. Ghees­
ling stepped in ahead of me an·d went around behind ~he corpse and lit t.he 
light above her head and her head was lying then towards the wall. I stepped 
up .on the opposite side of the corpse -with a door to my left: · ·Mr . . Gheesling 
caught the face of the dead girl and turned it over towards me. I looked 
then to see if anybody followed m·e and I saw Mr. Frank step from outside of 
the door into what I thought was ~ closet, but I have afterwards found -it was 
where Mr .. Gheesling slept, ·or_ where soinebody slept. There was a little single 
bed in there. I immediately· turned aronnd and c.ame~bMk out, in front---of -:- -
the offic~. I didn't see Frank look at the .eorpse.. I don't remember that Mr. 
Frank ever followed me in this ro.om. He may have.·stopped on the outside - · 
of the door l but my back was toward him and I don't know where he s.topped. 
l\{r. Gheesling turned the :head of the deal girl over towards me and I looke-d­
around to see who was-behind.me and I saw Mr. Frank as he mad·e· that move­
ment behind me. He didn't go into the closet as far as I could see, but he got 
out of my view. He could have lo.oked at the corpse from the time_that Mr. 

-Gheesljng WltS-. going _around behind, but he could not have seen her face be­
. cause· it was · 1ying over towards the wall. The fac.e was away from hie and 
I presum·e that was the cause ~f Mr. Gheesling turning it over~ 1here. was 
s·om~ -question ·asked Mr. Frank if-h-e-Imew-the~rl,-and-I~nk. he . replied .. .. 

' ·-. 
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tbat he didn't know ~he! her he did or not but that ·he could tell whether she 
worked at the factory by looking -at_:_i1is- pay- roH-book--As---we--were-lea-vlng 
Mr. Frank's house, Mr. Frank asked Mrs. Frank to telephone .Mr. Darley to 
come to the factory. _ Mr.-Frank was apparently still nervous at the under­
taking establishment, he-stepped livel)' . . It was just his general manner that · 
indicated to me that be was nervous. I never saw Mr. Frank in my life until 
that morning. After we got. out of Mr. Frank's house and was 1n-my car,-was --. -- ~­
the first time Mr. Frank had be~n told that the .young lady was named Mary 
Phagan and that there had been any murder committed at the factory. From 
the _undertaker's we went to the pencil factory in my car. We went · into Mr. 
Frank's office, he went up t9. the safe, turned the combination, opened the safe, 
fook out his -time book, laid the book down on the · table, x~u:i . h~.f)nger down 
until he came to the name Mary Phagan, and said, ''Yes, Mary Phagan worked 
here, .. she was here yesterday to get her pay." He said, "I will tell you about 
the exact time she left there. My stenographer left about twelve .o'clock, and 
a few minutes_ after she left the office boy left and Mary came in and got her 
money and left.'' He said she. got $1.20 and he asked whether anybody had 

e e a . le money was m. ran s 1 seeme o e nervous 
like the first time I seen him. ~twas just his quick mam:~er of stepping around 
and his -manner of speech like he had done at the house that indicated to me 
that h~ was nervous. He then wanted~to see where· the- girl ·was found. Mr. 
Frank \yent around by the ele't_ator. where there was a switch box on .the 
wall and Mr. ·Frank put the switch iu. The box was not locked. Somebody 
asked hiin if he was used to keeping the switch box locked. He said they had 
kept it locked up to a certain til!le until the insurance company told him that 
he would have to leave it unlocked, that it was a violation of the law to keep 
an electric switch box locked. We then stepped on the elevator. He still 
stepped about lively and spoke up lively, answering _questions, just like he had 
a~ways done. After we got on the elevator, he jerked at the rope and it hung 
and he called Mr. Darley to start · it and we all stepped out of the elevator. 
Mr. Darley came and pulled at the rope t\VO_Qr three· times and the elevator 
started. As to whether anybody made any- statement down in the basement 
as to who was responsible for the murder, I think Mr. Frank made the remark 

- that Mr. Darley-had worked Newt Lee for sometime out at the Oakland plant 

,. .. 

. and that if Lee knew anything about the murder that Darley would stand a 
better chance of getting it out of him than anybody else. Afte1~ we came back 
from the basement it was suggested that we go to tl10 station house and as 
we started out Mr. Frank says, "I had better put in a -new slip_, hadn't I, Dar­
ley f '' Darley told him yes to put in a slip. Frank took his keys out, un­
locked the door of the right-hand clock and lifted out the · s_lip, looke_d at it 
and made the remark . that_ the slip ~as punched correctly. Mr. Darley and 
Newi Lee ·was standing there at the time Mr. Frank said th~ punches had been 
made correctly. Mr. Frank then put in a new slip, closed the · door,- ~ocked it 
and took his pencil and wrote_ on the slip th~t h.~ had already taken out of. the 
machine,_'' Ap.riL2i 1913. '' · .I looked at the slip_t.haLMr. Frank_to..o_k_ out·· 
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(Defendant's E~hi~it 'I), the first punch was 6 :01, the second one \va.s 6 :32 or 
6 :33 ~ He took th~ slip back in his office. I glanced an · the way down and -. 

. . there was a punch for every number. 'Vhile we '\rere walking through the 
fact'ory l\Ir. Frank.asked t,:i.~o or three. times to. ge.t a cup of coffee. · As to what 
l\Jr. }?rank saicl about the murdn, J don't ·know that I heard him express him­
self except do\vn i11 the basement. The ·offi<:ers showed him where "the body 
was found ~nd he m-ade the remark that it was too bad or something· to that 
effed-; 'Yhen we left the factory to go to polic·e headquarters, ~ ewt Lee was 
t inder arrest. J llt>Ye r co11side°r<.1 d l\Jr. Frank as h<'ing under arrest ·-at that 
time. '!1here had 1wv<'r bee·n said anything to him in my presence about put­
ting him under arrest. l\lr. Frank's appeara.nC'e at the station house was ex­
actly like it was wheu [ first saw -him. He stepped quickly, when the ·door 
of the automobile was open ~ he jumped lightly off l\Ir. Darley 's lap,,\'eiit -lfp - .- · 
the steps pretty- rapid. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I ue\·er saw Jll'. Prank until that morni'ng. I dou 't know whether his 
natural moveuwnts or manner of s ee('h were uick or not. "Te clidn 't know 
whether the girl 'vns a whi~e · girl or not -gntil we rubbed the dirt from the 
child's fa('e and pulled down he~· stocking a little piece. The tongue was 110t 

sticking out, it was- wedged between the -teeth. She had dirt in he1-; eye and 
- month. -· 'l'he rord a1•ound lwr- neck -was drawn so' tight- it was stink 11i" -hei· - -­

flesh and the piece of underskirt was loose over her hair. I don't know 
whether ·Mr. Frank went upstairs_ or not after we rea.rhed his house. I think 
he l'alled to his wife to get him his ce11ar and tie.· He got his coat and vest 
some plac~, but I don't know where. · At the time :Mrs. Frank w~s ealling Mr . 

. Darley. l\Ir. Fi·ank was putting on his collar an<l tie down in the reception 
hal1. "Te were at the house 15 or 20 minutes. After Mrs. Frank h~~ said 
something about Mr. Frank .getting his breakfast before he went, l\.lr. Bla-ck 
said something about a drink would . do good. - ~1Irs. Frank then called her -
mother. who said that there wasn 't 'any liquor· i~ the-house, that_ l\lr. Selig had 
an acute attack of indigestion the night before and used it all up. l\fr. Frank 
readily consented to go to the undertaker's with us. When we got in the- citr 
we told him it 'was :Mary Phagan. and he said he could tell whether she was an 
employee or not by looking at his book, that he knew very ~ew of the girls. 
Yes, anybo4y facing · the d.o~r of the little chapel at the undertal~er 's could 
have seen the corpse. As to whether I know that :Mr. Frank didn't see the 
corpse. he could have got a glance at the whole corpse, but when Mr. Ghees­
ling turned the face over no one could have got a good look at the face unless 
they stepped in the room. Mr. Gheesling turned the young lady's face di-

·rectly toward me, Mr. Frank was standing somewhere behind me, outside of 
the room. I turned around to see if Mr. Frank was looking. I don't know 
that he didn't get a glance at t'he corpse. but no one but Mr·. Gheesling and 
I at this moment stepped up aud looked at the little girl's --fac~. What Mr. 
F-rank arid Mr. B,lac~ saw behind my ·back, J can't say. I d~u 't say that- Mr. 

- - -- · ···-··,--- . . ., 
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ank stepp~d into that drl'ssing __ room, but he passed out of my view. So 
did Mr. Black. Mr. Gheeslin.g 11ad a better view of Mr. Black and Mr. Frank 
than I did, because my back was to· them and · :Mr. Gheesling was looking 
straight across the body at . them. Mr. Frank l1Jtd no difficulty in unlocking· 
the safe when we -went back to the factory. The elevator we went down 011 

is a freight elevatoi·, makes considerable noise. H stops itself when it gets 
1 to the bottom. I don't think it hits.the ground. She was ly~iJJ~g~o~n~h~·e.!....r~f~a~c~e _______ _ 

~-------witl1lH~~;- 1andSfotaed up. Her ·face was turn~d somewhat to)wa.rd the left 
wall. A b~uise on the left sid~ of her head, some dry blood in her hair. One 
of he.l· eJ;es were blackened. There were several little . scratches on her faee. 
Somebody worked her arms to see if th_ey were stiff. The arms worked a 
little bit. The joints iri her arms worked just a little bit. Wlwn ,11,re first went. 
down the ba1:1ement we stayed down there about 20 or 25 minutes. During 
that time neither the shoe, the hat, nor the .. umbrella had been found. In the 
_elevator shaft · there was some excreinent.. 'Vhen we went down on · the ele- · 
vator, the elevator mashed it. You could smell it all a.round. It looked like 
the ordinary healthy man's excrement. It looked like somebody had "dumped 

"---------JH'l:t.fll-rftt+V~-ftftt;-, 

------

-·· 

down afterwards it smashed it and .thei1 we smelled it. As to the hair of the 
girl any one could tell at first glanc.e tha~ it was that "of .a white girl. 

·-·- - - --------- -
RE-DIRECT ·EX4MINATION. 

- The body wasn't _lying at the undertake_1~s where it could have been seen 
from the door. 

RE-CROSS -EXAMINATION. 

At the moment the face was turned towards niei I didn't see i\fr. F,~·ank 
but I _know a person couldn't have looked into the face unless he was some­

, where close to me. I was inside and :Mr. Frank never came into· that little 
room. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

When t_he fac_e was · turned towards me, Mr. Frank stepped out of my 
vision in the direction of Mr. Gheesling's sleeping room. 

~IISS GRACE HICKS, sworn for the -State. 

I knew Mary Pliagan nearly a year at the pencil factor~~~ She worked 011 

· the second floor. I identified her body -a:ctlre undertaker's Sunday morning, . 
April 27th. I knew her by her hair. c She was. fair skinned, had light hair, 
bJue eyes and was heavy built, well developed for her age. I worked in the 
metal room, the same room she worked in. Mary's machine was right next 
to the dressing room, the first machine there. They had a separate closet for 
men and a separate one for ladie_s -on that floor. There was just a partition _ 

-~~w~en th~m. · In going to _the-- o~ce from_ j:h_e closets the~ .w0uld pass the 
===--===~:.----~ 
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~ressing roo~ _"11~ Mary's mac?ine within two ~r three .feet. Mr. Frank, d
0

ur­
mg the pas t\velve months,-would -pass through the metal department_ lookmg 
around every day~ Sometimes I would see him talking to some ·of the men 
in the office a the clocks. He came back to the metal room to see how the 
.work was getti g on. The metal is kept in a little closet back undei· the stair 
steps. I asked Mr.' Quinn, not :Mr. Frank, if the metal had eome. Saturday 
at twelve o'clock is the regular pay-day, hut the week of April 26th most of 
the employes g 1t. paid off on Ji..,riday l_light between six and seven o'clock. I 
hadn't worked t ere since Vl ednesday. '•l\Ir. Qujnn called me up and told me 
that pay-day w uld b~ Friday. The metal had not come from :\Io~1da.y .to 
Saturday.. l\·hw) · didn't work after Monday of that week. · 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

Standing at · he time clock you can't see. into :\Ir. Frank's priYa.te office. 
A person wouldn ';t see from )lr. Frank's offiee any one coming in or out of the 
building. l worlf "thtt 0 1e . fact~ry five years. In that time Mr. i~,rank -spoke 
to me three times1. :Mary Phagan worked nt the faetory with me for about · a 

- year in the same ~epartment and I never saw l\lr. Frank spea to ary a-
. gan or ·:Mary Phrtgan speak" to :Mr. Frank. 'Vhen Mr. Frank came through ·· 

•• 

, _ _ ____ .: __ --- - . ~the metal depar.t~ent h~ J.tever_spoJrn _tQ any of _t!1e g~!s ~ just we.nt through 
and looked aroun~ .. . The three times .Mr. Frank spoke to me were as follows ~ --- - -- - · ~­
He was showing : a man around and I was laying on my arm mighty near 

I 

asleep and he says "You can run this machine asleep can't you," and I said, 
"Yes, sir." Then ai10ther time I asked . him for · a quarter and. he.Joaned 
me a quarter. . The next time I met him on the street. he tipped his hat to: me. 
lVIr. Frank knew- my face or he wouldn't have spoken to me on the street. 
The floor in the· metal_department is awful dfrty. The white stuff- that they 
use back there : gets all over the floors. l\Ir. Darley is general manager-and 

·foreman who emvloyes the help. :Mary. Phagan 's hair was darker than mine: . 
She weighed about 115 pounds. Sometimes we sit over at the m·achine and 
comb our hair and sometimes when I want to· curl my f1air with a poker o'r 
anything~ l go over there to the table right by the window and ·light the 
gas and curl my hair. l\fagno1ia Kennedy's hair is nearly the color of Mary 

- · - fhagan 's. · l'he pay is g.iven employefil fro~ a ~indow in the packing depart­
ment. There is paint in the polishing room, just across from the dressin·g 
room. The door ·of"the p~~ishing room is · a few -feet across from the dressing 
ro01n. No painl is kept · 1~ the metal room. I have see1~ drops of paint on 
the floor. I have seen it leading from the-do.or straight across from the d_re~sing 

room out to the cooler wh&e the women come out to get water. .The floor all 
o,ver the factory is dirty and gr.easy. Xfid after two or three days y<;>u can't 
hardly tell what is on the floor after it gets mixed with the dirt · and dust. 

f--,-----------1-saw Helen-Ferguson Friday, April ~5th, · .w_hen we were paid off. 
,_ t__~ -.--· -· -- ·- --- -- - - -·- - ·-

.· 
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_ __..,JQHN R_!_ BL.A.CK, sworn for the State. 

I am a city policeman. I don't know tbe details of the conversation be­
tween Mr. Starnes anu Mr. Ji.,rank over the 'phone. I didn't pay very much 
attention to it. l went over to l\fr. Frank's house with Boots Ro~ers. ::\frs. · 
Frank came to the door. ::\frs. Frank had on a bath robe. I sta ed that I 
would like to see l\tlr. ~,rank and about that time ~Ir. ~.,rank steppe out from 
behind a curtain. His voice was hoarse and trembling and uervo s and ex­
t·ited. He looked to me like he was pale. I had met ::\fr. Frank 11 two dif­
ferent occasions before. On this ·occasion he · seemed to · be nerv U8 in han­
dling his collar. He :could uot get his tie tied, and talked very rap·~ in asking 
questions in ,regard to . what had happened. He wanted . t-o know if he would 
have tim_e to get something to eat, to get some breakfast. He -wa ted to know 
if something had happened at the pencil factory and if the night atchman had 
reported it, and he asked th1s last question before I had time o answer the ­
first. · He )rnpt insisting for a cup of coffee. \Vheu we got 'nto the auto­
mobile as Mr. Rogers was turning around l\Jr. Frank wanted to know what 
had happened at the factory, and I asked him if he knew M ·y Phagan and 

'.i"-----,..---w~-ffim--tllia-t-she had been found dea ment ·of th encil factory. 
~Ir. Frank said ·he didn't know .any gfrl by the name of M ry Phagan, that · 
he knew very few of the employes. I suggested to Mr. Rog rs that- we drive 

:---.-:;;o.~--'-'---by the-undert-alret~he-Y.nde.r.taking_ establishment 1 r._ Fral}.]r _ looked 
- at her. He gave a casual glance at her and stepped as if e. I rouldn 't s-a~-,---· 
whether he saw the face of the girl or not- --There wa~ a curtain hanging 
near the room and l\Ir. Frank stepped behind the curtaJn. He could get no_ 
view f.roni behind the curtain. He walked behind the ofartain and came right 
out. Mr. ·Frank ·stated as ·We left the nnde.rtaking / establishment that he 
didn't know the girl but he believed he had paid, r off on Saturday. He 
thought he recognized her being at the factory on S turday by the dress that 
she wore but he could tell by goin~ ovei· to the f cfory and looking at . his 
cash ·book . .:_ .At the pe·ncil factory Mr. ~.,rank took the slip out~ looked over it 
and said it had been punched correctly. On l\I9t1(lay and Tuesday following 
l\fr. Frank stated that the clock had heen mis-pJ'mched three times. rrhis slip 

_ was turned over to Chief Lanford on Monday/ I saw :Mr. Frank take it out 
of the clock . and wentJ;utck with it tow-ardA1is offic~. I dqn 't know of my 
own personal knowledge that it ~vas turneft over to Chief Lanford :Monday. 
When Mr. Frank was down:a t- police--statiim on 1\iimd:ay mornmg Mr:-Rossel.-- - -­
and :Mr. Haas were there. About 8 oi?-8-:-30--e!.e-leek Monda-y morning 1\fr. 
Rossel~ came in police headquarterR. . _,1,hat 's the first time he had. eounsel 
with him. That morning :Mr. Haslett and inyself \vent- f:.e-Mr. F~ank 's house 

- and asked him to come down to police headquarters. About 1.1 :80 l\ionday 
t .. 

:Mr. Haas demanded of -·CA.lief J4anford that officers accompany l\fr. Frank 
out to his residence and search-' his ·residence. 1\1 r. Haas stated in Frank's 
presence that he was Mi•. Frank is attorney and demanded to show that there 

_ was nothing left .undone, that· we go out to Mr. Frank's house and search for . . 

. ; 

' ·~ 
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anything that we might find "in connection with the case. On Tuesday night 
· Mr. Scott and myself suggested to l\'lr .. Frank t'o talk to Newt Lee.- Mr'. F~ank 
spoke well of the negro,-·said Ire had always found him trusty ·and honest: 
They went in a room ·and stayed from about 5 to 10 minutes alone: I couldn't- ­
hear enough to swear that i: understood what was said . . Mr. Frank stated that 
Newt still stuck to the story that he knew n~thing about it. Mr. ~rank 
stated that .. ~Ir. Gantt was there on Saturday evening and that he told Newt 
Lee to let him go and get the · sho.es but to watch him, as he knew· the · su1...: 
roundings of the offi.ce. After this conversation Gantt was arrested. Frank . - . . 

·made no .objections _to talking to N ~wt Lee. l\fr. 'Frank-Was nervous on ·Mon-
day.- After his release -M~nday ·lie seemed very jovial. ·On Tuesday night 

. Frank said at station house that there WllS nobody -at fa.ctory at 6 o'clock, 
but. Newt Lee a.nd that Newt ought to know more about it: as it was his duty 
to look over factory every thirty minutes. Also that Gantt was there Satur­
day evening -and he left him . there at 6 o.'clock and- that-he· and Gantt had · 
some troU:ble previous to discharge of Gantt and that he at first re~used to 
allow Garitt to go in facto.ry, but Gantt told him he left a pair of shoes there. 

· When I said that :Mr. Frank was· released· I spoke before I thought. I 
retracted it on cross~examination. I don't know that Mr. Rosser was at th~ 
po ice station between 8 -and 8 :30 Monday_ morning, I s·aid that to the best 
of · my recolle~ction. I wouldn't swear Mr .. --Rosser was there. I heard Mr. 
Rosser say t.0 Mr. ·Frank to give them a statement without a conference at a.11 
between I\,i~. Frank a·nd. :Mr. Rosser. I said . that we wanted fo have a private 

· talk with Mr. Frank without l\Ir. ·Rosser being _ _p__msent. I wanted to talk 
to M:t;/ Frank without·Mr. Rosser .being pJ"es~nt. While I was at. the coroner's 

• •• 

·---

.· inquest Mr. Frank answered every question readily. I wouldn't swear posi-·--- ­
t.ively, but ~o the best of my recollection I had a conversation with Mr . 

. :'Frank on two previous occasions. Whe11~ met Mr. Frank on previous occa-
.· sions I don't remember anything th~t ca.used me to believe he w.as nervous, 

L:...._:_ _______ __,,mt'hirmt-TITllTRiUal abourtf1m. I heard the conversation Mr. Starne.i had over 
the teiephone with :Mr. Frank ea.rly th.at morning. It was about a quarter 
to six, or a quarte!' past six. I think we got ~to the undertaker's about 6 :20. 

---A-A-s to the reason why I didn't tell Mr. Frank about the murder when I was 

, 6 

----- - -

'inside the house, · hut-di_d-t~ll him as soon as he got in the automobile, I had 
a conversation with Newt Lee and I wanted to watch Mr\ Frank and see how 
he ~elt about the murder. ·Mt". Frank didn't _go upstairs and ·pm his collar 
and cravat on. Mrs. Frank brought him his collar and tie, I don't know 
where she . got them. He told her to bring his collar and tie and he got his 

·coat and hat. I . don't know whether he went back to his home or not He -----,­
put his collar and tie on right . there . . I don't kQOW where. he. got ·hi~ ~oat . 
and vest .at. I don't know what sort of tie or collar . he · had. He put his 
collar and tie on like anybody else would;- tied -it h~mself, I don.'t know 

• 
. " .. 

. : .· .. - . . 
.. ·/ - . '· . -~ . 

. -.- .• ... . .. :• . ...... .. . 
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-:--------__.vltether--i~ finisl1ed. dressing upstairs or not. · I couldn't see ·him 

- ··when he went behind -those curtains~ - we stayed at the Frank h~me - about 
ten minutes . . At the undertaking establishment I was right behind Mr. 
Frank. · He· was between me and the body. I saw the face when the ui1der-. . . 

taker turned her over. Yes, l\fr._Frailk being Jn front of me had an opp'V'o1,,__·---
tunity to see it also. No, Mr, Frank didn't go into that sleeping room. Mr. 
~.,rank went out .just ahead of me. 'Vhen we went back to t-he pencil fal'­
tory Mr. Frank went to the safe and unlocked it readily at the first effort. 

--He- got the book, put it on the table, opened it at . the right place, ran his 
finger down until he came to the name of Mary ·Phagan and says ~ ''Yes, this 
little girl worked here and I . ~aid her $i.20 yesterday.'' \¥ e went ali over 
the factory that day. Nobody saw that ·blood spot that morning. I guess · 
there must have been thirty people there during that_ day. Nobody saw it. 
I was there twice that day. l\Jr. ·sta.rnes was there with me. He didn't eall 
attention to any blood spots. Chief Lanford was there, and he didn't dis- . 
c-ove~ -any blood -spot . Mf. Frank was a~the p@ce statjon on M_onday fr~-
8 :30 until about 11 :30. Mr. Frank told t,ne he had discharged Mr. Gantt 

n · f shorta e and had iven order. not to let him in the factory. 
As regards Mr. Frank's linen, Mr. aaa_s said ,~he was Mr. Frank's attorney . _ 
and ·requested that we go to Mr. Frank's house nd look over the clothes he 
had worn the week before and the -laundry too. - - . s, -w.e.....w.eut. ont . th&e_and -=- ___ _ 
examined it. Mr. Frank had . had no opp?rtunity to telephone his house from 

·the. time· we mentioned it_ un.til we got out there. He '\\ent with us and showed 
t1s the dirty linen. ·I examined Newt Lee's house. I fo.und a bloody shirt in 

- · the ·bottom of a clothes barrel there on· Tuesday m·ornin~ about 9 o'clock. 

! RE-DIREllT EXAMINATION. \ . 

. Mr. Frank had : told ·me that he didn't ·think Newt Lee ·~ad told a)l he 
.knew about the mu~der. He ·also ·said· after looking over the t\me sheet and 
seeing that it hadn't been punched correctly that that would ha\re given Lee 
an hour to have gQne out .to his house and back. · I don't ku~y when he 
made this last ~tatement. ·- ·I don't remember whether that was ·before or 
after I went out io J:Jee 's house and fom~d the shirt. "\\Te went into ~s house 
with d skeleton key. It was after Frank told me about the skips in the 
punches. The shirt is just like it -was the day· I found it. The bloo..d\ looks 
like it is ,on both sides of the · shirt. · ~ \ 

\ 

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I don't know whether I went ont to Le<' 's homw IH>fore or after :Mr. 

--

--=----L------~ 
Frank suggested the skips in the time slips. l don't like- to ad.nii.t it. but I 
am ·so crossed up and _worried that I ~ion 't know where I ·lim at; but I think 
to · -t~e best of my kn~wledge 1t was MQnday t.bat Frank sa.id that the slips . 
had been cha.ng~d. · 

---... --- -~~ ------ --· - -

' . . . · 

-
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·1\ilRS. J. Vt. COLEMAN, re-called for the State. 

~---- - - . -.--~fary· carri~d- a little silver-mesh-bag the-day-she- l-eft-her-home,-matle-of - -· -
German silver. · This looks like the handkerchief that she carried. (State's 
Exhibit "l\f. ") 

J. :M. GAN'l''l\,sworn for the state. . . · 

From June last until the first of January I was shipping clerk -at- the 
National Pencil Company. I was dis.charged April 7th by Mr. Frank for 
alleged shortage iii the pay rolL I have known Mary Phagan when she was 
a little girl. Mr. Frank knew her, too. ·one Saturday afternoon she came 
in the office to have her t,ime corrected1 and after I had gotten through Mr . 

. . Ji,rank came in · and said, "You seem to know l\1Iary pretty well.':' No, I had 
not told him her name. I used to know Mary when she ·was a -little girl, 
but I have not seen her up to the time I went to work for the factory. My 
work was in the office and she worked in the rear of the build~ng on the same 
floor in the tip department.. After I was discharged, I went back to the fac-
tor on two occasion 1\ aw..._me.._b.oth- tinies. He made no obj 
tion to my going there. One girl used to ·get pay envelope~ for another girl 
with Mr. Frank's kriowledg~." There was a1r1llleged shortage in the pay roll 
of $2.00. Mr. Frank came to see me about it and I told him I didn't know 

--- ---- . -anythfog about it. and_h _e -said he---\vasn ,-t- going to--make -it-g~od, a~d -I -;aid 

- - ---

I wasn.'t1 and he then discharged me. Prior. to m being discharged lVIr. 
Frank told me he had th.e best office for.ce he ever had. I was the time 
keeper . . Mr .. Frank could sit at his desk _ ang see the empJoyees register at 
the time clock if the safe door wa& closed. Mr. Frank did not fix the clock 
frequently, possibly two or three times. On April 26, about six o'clock I 
saw Newt Lee sitting out in front of· the factory and I remembered that I 
left a pair ·of shoes up there and I asked Newt Lee what about ~Y. getting 
them, and he said he couldn't let me up. I said Mr. Frank is up there, isn't 
he? because I had seen hi~m in· the window from across the street: and while 
we were standing there talking, in two or three minutes, Mr. Frank was com­
ing down the stairway a:.nd got within fifteen feet of the door when he saw 
me and when he saw Il!_e he kind of stepped back like he was going to go 

·. - back, but when he looked up and saw that I was looking at him he came .on 
out, and I said "Howdy, Mr. Frank," and he kind of jumped again. I told : 
him I had a pair of shoes QP there I would l~ke to get and he said, ''Do you 
want to ·go with :me, or will Newt Lee be all right?" and he kind of studied a 
little bit, and said, ''What kind of shoes were they 1 '' and I said, ''They ~ere 

". tan_.shoes," and he said, "I think l ·saw a negro sweeping them up the other 
day." And I said, "Well, I have a pair of black ones there, too," and he 

. . kind of studied a ·little bit, and said .".Newt, go ahead with him and stay with· 
him until he gets his shoes,'' and I went up there ·and·. fo'tlnd· both pair right 
where l had left them ~ . Mr. ' Frank looked pale, hung. his head, and nervous 

.. . 

---· 

·• 
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"'-----=--·--~nd. kind_ of hesitated and -stuttered -like lie d4dn 't -like me in there somehow-- .-_ 
or other. 

CROSS EllMINA11'ION. 

I testified at the coroner's inquest. I admit I did not testify about 
Frank's knowing Mary very well there, that has been recalled to · my--mffittd- ­
since I was arrested on ·Monday, April 28th, at 11 o'clock and held. until - ·--. 
Thursday nig'1_!; __ a~out six . 

. 
0 MRS. J .. A. WHITE, sworn for the State. 

I saw my husb~nd at the pencil factory at 11 :30. I stayed there until 
about 10 minutes to 12. I left him there and ·came back about lS .30 aH<l 
left again about l o'clock. vVhen I got there at 11 :30 I . saw Miss Hall, the 
stenographer, Mr. Frank and two men. I aske.d Mr. Frank if I could see m~r 
husband Mr. White. l\fr. Frank was in the outside office then. He said I 

en word b Mrs. Emma Freeman for him to come down-
_stairs. My husband came to the foot of the stairs on the secon"<l floor! I 

talked to him about 15 minutes and went on out. . I returned about 12 :30. 
91----1'b-.-Fr-a11-k wa.S in the_outside.ofilc_e_ st_3_ndjn_g in front_O-f tl!_e~~fe. } _~s~~~ Jiim 

. if Mr. "\Vhite had gone back to work. · . He jumped like I Sl,lrprised him and 
turned an<l_ said, ''Yes.'' It wasn't much of a jump. I went upstairs then 
to see Mr. White. Harry Denham was with him working on the-fourth floor. 
T}J.ey were hammering. It was not a continuous noise they were making. 

j . 

. I heard the hammer not more 1an once or wice-: Mr. Frank came upstairs 
while I was up there, somewhere <l bo.ui 1 o'clock. . I know it was before one 
bec.ause at one I was at McDonald's furniture store, four or five· blocks from 
the factory. I got there a· few ·minutes afte r one. Mr. Fran.k told Mr.-

--White if I wanted to get out before 3 o'clock, to come on down because he 
was going to leave and lock the door, that I had better be ready· to go as 

-soon as he got his coat and hat. I went on out and as I passed he was -sitting 
-----

in the outside office writing at a table ... As I was going on down · the . steps 
· -I s~gro sitting on a box close to the ··stairway on the first floor. Mr. 

. Frank did ·not have his ·coat or .hat .on when I ·passed out. 

CROSS EXAMINATION." . I 

I left the 'factory .about t o'clock. I wouldn't say that· it was positively 
ten minutes . to one. While I wa.s talking to -my husband at the - factory, 
Miss Corinthia Ha.11;· :May 13-arrett and her daughter were there. Mrs. Barrett 
had been upstairs ·and her daughter came down afterwards. Miss Hall and 

. - -.,---M- rs. Freeman left first, M~s. Barrett and her daughter left next and then I 
· · · · went. That ~as ab_o_!It ten ·minutes to twelve. I saw the ·negro sitting be-

. tween the .stairway and the door about five or six feet . from . the foot of the 
·-· st-a~ay.- I wouldn't-be-_able to · dentify~him.-: _- _-_: -_· . . · 

. . . . ---- ---- ·---

.. 
- - - ··--·. c . 
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HARRY SCOTrr, sworn for the state. - --- - - - -

I am Superint~ndent of the local branch of the Pinkerton Detective 
·Agency. I have worked on this case with John Black, city detective. I was 
em.ployed by Mr. Frank · i·epresenting t11e National ~encil Company. I saw 
Mr. Frank l\1onday afternoon, April 28, at the pencil factory. We went into 
Mr. ·Frank's private office. Mr. Darley and a third party - were - wit_h_ u_s_. _____ _ 
.Mr. Frank said, "I guess you read in the newspapers about the horrible crime 
t.hat was committed in this factory, and ·the directors of this company and 

_ ___,1~n..,_yself have had a conference and thought that the public should demand 
that we have an investigation made, and endea~or to determine who is J+e. 

-------'~ponsible for this murder." And Mr. Frank th~~ said he had just-come rom 
police barracks and that Detective .Black seemed to suspect him of the crime, 
and he then relate~ me his movements on Saturday, April 26th, in detail. 

_,_ ·- --He-stated that he arrived at the factory at 8 a. m., that he left the factor)r 
~--

between 9 :30 and 10 with Mr. Darley for MQntag Bros. for the mail, that he 
remained at ,Montag Bros. for about an hour; that he returned to the factory 

e ore we ve o c oc ite, t _!L_Wif e of 

- -

Arth~r )Vhite, who was working on the top floor ·of the building that day 
. ~ith Harry Denham, came in and asked ·permission to .go. upstairs and see 

~ -=-- -· __ - -her husband. Mr. Frank -granted--her permissitifito-a~ --so. --ne-tlien s tated . 

. . .. . 

- that --1\{ary Phagan came in to the factory· at 12 :10 p. m. to dra:w her picy ; 
that she had · been laid off the l\~onday previous and she was paid $1 :20; that 
he paid her off in his inside office where he was at his. desk-,-and=when she 
left his office and went in the outer office, she had reached the outer office 
door, leading into the hall and turned around to Mr. Frank and asked if 
the metal had come yet; Mr. Frank replied that he didn't know and that Mary 
Phagan then he thought reached the stairway, and he heard voices, but he 
could . not .distingu}sh whether they were men or girls talking, t}\at ah.out 
l 2 :50 he wen~ up to the fourth floor and asked White · and -Denham when they 
would finish up their work and they replied they · wouldn't finish up for .=a:__----= 
couple of hours ; that -Mrs..- White was· up there at the ti.me and Frank in-

. forn1ed -~rs. White that he. was going to lock-4ip_ the factory, that she · had 
better leave; Mrs. White preceded Mr. Frank down the stairway and went on 
out of the f~~i.&ry as far as he k_new; hut on the wa:y out, Mrs. w ·hite . m~de 
the statement that she had seen a ~egro on the street floor of the .buiiding · 
behind so.me boxes, and Mr. Frank stated that at 1 :-10..p.· m .. · he left -the . -f~c-
tory for home to-g.o-to luncheon; he arrived at the· factory again at 3 p ... m.-, . 
went to work on some financial work and at ab~ut fou~ o 'clock the night 

· watchman reported for work, as pe1· ·Mr. Frank's i~structions tqe previous.· 
.day; that he allowe4. Newt Lee _to go out .and have . a good time for a couple 
of hours and report again · at six o 'cloc1=c, which· Newt did and at' six o'clock · 
when )~e~ returne·d to the factory, he asked Mr . . F~ank, as he usually did, if 
everything was all right, ,and Mr. Frank replied "Yes" and Lee went on 

•• 
______ ~---a~o~_!_ h.i~ -~'1-_siness. Mr. · ~~a~~ left the factory at. · 6 :04. p . . m. and ~Nhen:::h.e:-~ 

J 

· ... . 
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reached the street door entrance he found Lee talking to Gantt, an ex-book-­
keeper ~ho Frank had discharged for thieving. Mr. Frank stated that he 
had arrived home at about 6 :25 p. m. and knowing that he had discharged 
Gantt, he tried to get Lee on the telephone at .. about 6 :30; knowing that Lee 

. would be in the vicinity of the time clock-.·at that time and could hear the tele- -.• 
phone ring; that he did not succeed in getting him-at 6 :30, but that he got him 

~==------~01N~,--+l-+--ln~drt>d Lee the question if Gantt had left_ the factory and if 
_ everything was all right, to which Lee replied "Yes," anq he hung .up the 

receiver. Mr. Frank s_tated he went to bed somewhere around 9 :30. 

After that Mr. Frank · and Mr. Darley accompanied me around the fac­
tory and showe·d ·me_ what the police had found. M·r. Darley being the 
spokesman. We went first to the metal room on the second floor, where I 
was shown some spots supposed to be blood spots, they were already chipped 

'---- ---- __ up, and I was taken t'o a mac me w ere _some s ran s o air were Uvv'vo,.;u. 

to have oeen founG. From there we went down and examined the time clock 
- - --

and went through the scuttle hole and down the ladder into the basement, 
where I was shown w ere every mg . ·a een oun . s o ~rank 's---------'---- -.-1 
manner and _ deportm~nt at the time we were in_ his office, he seemed to . be 
perfectly _natural. I saw no signs of nervousness. Occasionally between 
words he seemed to take a deep breath, and deep sighs about four or five times. 
His eyes were very large and piercing. They looked about the same they do 
now. He was a little pale . . He gave his narrative rather rapidly. As to 
whethei· he .stated any fixed· definite time as to hours or minutes, he didii 't 
state any definite time as to when Mary Phagan came in , he -said she came 

_ ..,.,..in---at-ab-out 12 :10. We furnished attorneys for Frank with ·reports. After 
_refreshing my memory I now .state that Mr. Frank informed me at the time 
I had that conversation with liim that he heard these voices before 12 o 'clock, 
before Mary Phaga~ came. · He also stated during our conversation that ----,- --- ---
Gantt ktiew Mary Phagan veryw ell, that he · was familiar and intimate 'vith 
her.--He,eemed to lay special stress on it at the : ti_me. He said that Gantt 
paid a good deal of attention to her. As · t~ whether anything was said by 
any attorney ·of Frank's as to our-suppressing any evidence as to this mur­
der, it was the first week in May when Mr. Pierce and ·1 went to Mr. Herbert 
J. Haas' office in the 4th National Bank Bailding and had a c~onference with 
him· as to the Pinkerton Agency's position in the matter. Mr. Haas stated 
that he would -rather we would_ submit our rep01•ts to hhn first before we 

. turned it over to the public and let them know what evidence we had gath­
ered. We told him we would withdraw before we would adopt any practice 
of- that sort, that it was our intet:ltion to work in· hearty co-op&ation with t'1e 
police. 

. - -
I saw the place . near the girls' dressing room -Oil- the . office floor, fresh· · 

chips had already been cut out of the floor and I saw white smeared where 
the chips had been cut out and ~here .were also some dark spots near tNe 
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----cl1ipped- out-pla-ce . - I-t-was-jnst-as-tirougb-somebody had taken .a cloth an·d 
rubbed some white substance around in a circle, about eight inches in 
diameter. This white stuff covered all of the dark spots. I didn't note any 
unusual signs of nervousness about Frank in his office: There wasn't any 
trembling or anything of that sort at that time. · He was not composed. On 
Tuesday night, April 29, Black, Mr. Frank and myself were together and 
l\fr. Black tol<l Mr. Frank that ·he believed Newt Lee was not telling all that 
he knew. I also said to Mr. Frank that Newt knew more than he was telling, 
and that as ·he was his employer, I thought he could .get _more out of the 
nigger th~n we could, and I asked him if he would consent to go into a 

room· as employer and employee and try to get it out of him. Mr. Frank 
reaaily - consented and we put them in a private room, they were together. 
there for about ten minutes alone. \Vhen about ten minutes was up, Mr. 

e room an ee a n ms e IS conversation with 
Frank and w~s saying, "l\fr. Frank it is awful hard for me to remain hand­
cuffled to this chair~" and Frank hung his head the entire -time-the-tu~g-ro=-

-king to him, and finally in about thirty sec6nds, he said, H-~ e , ey 
have got me .too.',· After that we asked Mr. Frank if he had-gotten anything 
out of the negro and he said, "No, Le~ still sticks to his original story." Mr. 
Frank was extremely nervous at -that 'time. - He was v--er.y .squirmy in his 
chair, crossing one leg after the other and didn't know where to put his 
hands; he ~s moving them up and down his face, and he hung his head a 
great deal of the time while the negro _was talking to him. He breathed 
very heavily a.nd took deep swallows, and sighe~ and hesitated somewhat. 
His eyes were about the same ~s they ·are now. That interview · between · Lee 
and Frank took place shortly ·after midnight, ·'Vednesday, April 30 . . On 
:Monday afternoon~ Frank said to . me that the first punch on .Newt Lee's slip 

· was 6 :3::3 p. Jl1. f and his last puneh was 3 a. m. Sun.day. He didn 1t say any­
thing at that time about there being any e}'ror in Lee's punches. Mr. Black 

---~--~d I took l\Ir. Frank into custody about 11 :!30 a: m. Tuesday, April 29th. His 
hands were quive.ring very IJ].Uch~ he was very pale. On Saturday, May 3, I 
went to Frank's cell at the-;i-ail- with Black and I asked_ Mr. Frank if fro.~1 
the time he a1~rived at the-Hictory from Montag Bros. up until 12 :50 p. m.', 
the time he went upstairs.ffo the fourth floor, was .he inside of his office the 

--

__ eptire time_,_ an~_Ee s~at~d ~ 'Yes.'' rrhen I asked him if he was inside his 
office every minute from 12 o'clock until 12 :30 and he said "Yes." I made a ---------

.. very thorough search of the area around the ~levator and radiator and back 
in .there. --! .made a surface search. I ·found nothing at all. I found no rib-

·bon 'C>r purse, ·or pay envelope, or bludgeon or. stick. l spent a .gi·eat deal of 
time around the· trap door and (remember run:ning the light_ around the door 
way right ~lose to the elevator, looking for splot_ches of blood, but I found 
nothing. 

• 

. --
- - ---
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CROSS EXAMINA-TION. 

Yes·,· I sent you this r'eport as to what happened between Mr. Herbert J. 
Haas and myself: ''This afterno.on Supt. H. B; Pierce and myseJ.f held a con-. 
feren~e with Mr. H~rhert Haas, at _which the agency's position in the matter 
was discussed,· and Mr. Haas stated they wanted to learn who the murderer 
was, regardless of wh·o it invoh·'ed.. ,., __ L :Mr. 1Iaas told me that after I had told 
him we would withdraw from the case before we would not co-operate with 
the· police. No, ·I did not report that to you. l ·.reported the motive of our 
conference. No, I did- not say anything about Mr. Haas wanting us to do 
anything except locate the murderer. Yes, I -talked to you afterwards and 
you also told me to find the murderer, even if it was Frank. Mr. Haas had 
said to Mr. Pierce an me at he would rather that we · submit our reports 

________ ......,o~f~e...__v ..... i ..... d ....... en.........,ce....__.t ..... o~ before we turned it over ·to the _ ~!ice. __ No 
no mg sa1 a out not giving this to the police. I testified at the coroner's 

·inquest as to what conversation I had with Mr. Frank. I did not give you 
in my report the detail~ of :Mr. Frank's morning movements, when he left 

C----,-------i1Wfftt-..,-ilr.lmd-a-t-t-h-e--f-a~d-wen-H-~:Hmtag-Bt·6~etttrne~r-n--Hho.-----~-­

factory. As t~ my not saying o.ne word about G;ntt being familiar with ·this 
little girl, that was just an oversight, that is all. No, I did not test.ify to 
that either at the coroner's inquest. I didn 't_put it in_ the report tu you, 

- - - - - ---- ·----- -

- ----- --- -

because Gantt was released the next day and . I didn't consider him a suEi- · 
pect. · Ther_e was no reason for my not giving it- to you. It ~as an oversight. 

- 1 

i I am representing the National Pencil Company, who employed m,e, and. not 
Mr. Frank individually. · It is true in m~· report to you with reference to 
the interview between iue and Mr. Frank that I stated "I had no way of j 
knowing what they said because they were both togethe.r privately in a room 
there and we had no way of knowing except what Lee told us afterwa_rds. '' ---
I now state that I did hear the last "rords of L~. I didn't put in my notes. 
that Gantt was familiar with Mary Phagan, I don't put . everything in my 
notes and the coroner didn't . examine me about it either. No, I didn't tell 

· the coroner ariy_thing about Frank crossing his legs and putting his hands up 
to his fa~e. I never -went into detail down there. No, I . didn't mention his 
hanging his head. '\Te always wor-k -w.ith the police on criminal-cases . . No, 
I did not testify "before the coroner about 'any white .stuff h~ving been smeared 
over these supposed blood .spots. I am not sure ·whether I got the statement 
.about Mary Phagan being familiarwitli Gantt' from Mr.. -Dar ey or r. Frank .. _ 
l\fr. Frank was present at the -t-~rank told me when the little 
girl asked-if _the metal had come back ~hat he· said "I d~n 't know." It may 
be true that I swore before the coroner that in answer to that question from 
Mary Phagan -a.s...J;o whet]ler the · metal had come·· yet that Frank said, "No," 
and it is possible that I so reported to you. If I said "No," r meant "I don't 
know." - I say now that Mr. Frank told me he left the factory at 1 :10 p. m. 
lf I reported to you that he told me he left at one o'clock, I m.ad.e a very 

... 
. . - --- ~-- .. 
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serious m·istake. That i8 an oversight. Yes, I reported to .the ·police before 
I reported to Mr. Haas or Mr. Montag:---- · . 

RE-DIRECT EXAMI~ATION. 

Yes, our agency reported to the police about finding the · club. I find it 
is in . our report of May 15th. I don't know when it was reported; I was 
out of town. I worked all through this case with Detective Black and every 
move he made was known to both of us. As to the stairway from the base­

------~-~·~m~e~n~t_t~o~th_e'- upper floor, there was a great deal of dust on the stairs and the 
· dust .didn't seem to be distgrbe~.; This stairway is -not in the picture but is 
·near the back door. It was nailed. and clos~d. 

MISS MONTEEN STOVER, sworn for the State. 

I worked at the National Pencil Company_. prior to April 25th, 1913. I 
was at the factory at five minutes after twelve on that day. I stayed there 
five minutes and left at ten minutes after twelve. I went there to get my 
money. I went in :Mr. Frank's office. He was not there . . I didn't see or hear 
anybody in the building. The door to the metal room was closed.. I had on 
tennis shoes, a yellow hat and a brown rain coat. I looked at the clock on 
my way up, it was five minutes after twelve and it was ten minutes after 

- ------- _____,t-w-e"""l-ve- when I started out: -r 'had never been -in -his office before. The door 
to the metal room is sometimes open and sometimes closed: 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I didn't look at the clock to see what time it was when I left' home or . 
when I got back home. I didn't notice ~he safe in Mr. Frank's office. I 
·walked righ.t in and walked right ou.t. I went _right through into the office 

. and turned ar.ound and came out . . ·.I didn't notice how many desks wer~ in 
the outer office. I didn't notice any wardrobe to put clothes in. I don't 
know how many windows are in the front office. I went through_ the first · 
office into the second office. T-he factory was still and quiet wh_en I was there . . 

· I am fourteen years old and I worked on the fourth floor of the factory. I 
knew the payi}lg-off time was twelve o'clock on Saturday and _that is . why I 
went there. They don't pay off in the office, you have to go up to a -little 

- - ----window they open:-_____ . - --

. - -· RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION:. 

-Tlre-cturrr to the metal room is- sometimes closed and sometimes open. 
When the· factory isn't running the door· is cl~sed. 

• 

R. P. BARRETT,. sworn for the ·state. 
. "/ . ' • " .. . . - .. . . & 

I am a machinist for th~ National Pencil Company. I have been there . 
---_-__ -_ -_---~aliO.ut . ei~ht- we~ks. _on Monday morning,Ap.-il. 28th, I found an unu~ual spQt--- --. -.- -

.. 
---~ ·-- -· - - ~ - --- - · - . .. . . . 
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that I had neve1'. seen before a.t the west end of th'e dressing room on the sec­
~ond floor of the ·pencil fa~tory. That -spot was not there Friday. The spot 
was about 4 or 5 inches in diameter and little spots behind these from the 
rear-6 or 8 in numb-er-.--I discovered these between 6 :30 and 7 o_,clock Mon­
day. It was blood. It looked like souie Vi1hite substance had been wiped oyer 
.it. We kept potash and haskoline, both white substances, on . this floor. This 
white stuff was smeared over the spots. It looked like it had been smeared 
with a coarse broom. There ·was a broom on that floor, leaning up against the 
wall. No, the broom didn't show any evidence of having been used, except 
that it was dirty.~the metal department for cleaning up the 
grease. The floor was regularly swept with a broom of finer ·straw. I found 

. 0 . 

- --"su..ome-hair on the handl~ of a bench lathe. The handle was in the shape of a~n~--
' 'L. '' The hair was hanging· on the handle, swinging down. Men · Stanford 
saw this hair. The hair was iiot there on Friday. The gas jet that the girls 
sometimes-use- to cm1- uieir -lia1r on 1s a out ten r-eet from the ma.chine where 
the hair was found. l\Ia.chine Number is No. 10. It is my machine. I~k~n~o~w~---..,-----­
the hair wasn't there on Friday,ror- rliad used that machine up to quitting­
time, 5 :30. There was a pan ~f haskoline about 8 feet from where the blood 

'-'---------··~ound. Th.e-n~-St-potash-w-as--in-vai-s-in the plati~1g depa!'tment, 2·~0-r-----~---

25 feet away-:-~he latter part of the week 1 found a piece of a pay envelope 
·· : (State's Exhibit U) . under :Mary .Phagan 's machine. I have examined the 

,__ _ _ __ _ -. - aFea-around the elevat or 01 t-he ma-iirfroor and I -1ooked down the ladder and · -
I never saw any stick. I did not find any envelope or blood or anything else · 
there. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I uever searched for an§ blood spots before, until Miss Jefferson cam~ 
in and said she un'der~tood Mary bad been muraere<:TTri the metal department, . 
then I started to search right a way; tha-t- was the only spot I could find; I 
could tell it was blood by -looking a.t it. I can tell the difference between 
blood ·and other substances. I found the hair some few minutes afterward­
about 6 o~ 8 strands of hair and pretty long. When I left the machine on 
Friday .I left a piece of work in there. When l got back the piece of work 
was still there. It had not been disturbed. The · machine was in the same 
position in which I left it Friday night; there was no blood under this ma­

~--~-- - ·c hine . ....::--rrliei·e 1s .no number or.-amount on the enve~ope I found, and no name 

·'· 

- ·on· it, just a little loop, a Qart of a letter. Yes, I have been aiding Mr. Dorsey 
and the detectives search the building. Yes, l\f r. Dorsey subpoenaed me to 
come to his office; it was a State subpoena. I gave him an affidavit. 

MELL STANFORD,· sworn for" t~e _ St~te . 

I have been working at the National Pencil Company a little over two 
years. I swept the whole ·floor in the metal room of Friday, "4pril the 25th .. 

. . _On Monday the.re .after I forind a spot~~hat had so~e_:whit~ _b.l!li!~9line ove_ti . .,,__ -~-~--::-=::::::=::~ 
---- -.. --· - - . . - · - . ·. · --·~-'-------

- -~ ... 
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' on secon~ floor · near dressil!g roo~. That wasn't thereon Friday when _I _ _ 
swept between .9 and 12 o'clock. J use a small broom in sweeping. I -saw a 

· big cane ·broom standing by the waste metal room on . Monday about six feet 
from where the blood was found. · The spot looked to me like it was blood, 
with dark spots scattered around. It looked like ·the large broom had been 
used in putting the ha.skoline on the floor by the impressions or scratches of 

. the cane in the floor. ·---
•' 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I was a sweeper in the. metal room. Yes; they have regular negro sweep­
ers there for the buil~ing. I swept . it all up· because the negro wasn't there. 
It took me from 9 till_l_2_to sweep the whole floor. I moved everything and 
swept everything. I swept under Mary ·Phagan'& and Barrett's machine. 
Next to the ladies' cIOset they store a lot of different things, mineral paint~, 

- b1rrr-e-is, boxes, all sort of things. That's part of the metal room where they 
--are kept. I swept clear up to 'the doors of the toilets a~d clear up to the paint 

shop. ·It wasn't my duty ·to sweep where the machines are and where · l\far 
wor e ut 1 sweep there anyhow. I have done that several times be-

-fore~ - Tnere were paint spots. in several different places up tbere when I 
swept up Friday. These blood spots were _ right in fro.nt of the ladies' dress­

. ing room. They led right up to the doo_r. 

MRS. GEORGE \V. JEFFERSON, sworn for the .- State. 
( • 

.. I work at the National Pencil Company. 'Ve saw blood 011 the second 
floor in front of the girls' dressing room -0n Monday. It w_as ahout as .. big as 
a fan, and some~hing wh~te was over it. I didn't see that blood there Friday.-
Yes, there are cords in the polishin·g room, used t<:> tie pencils-.with . . They are 
hung up on a post in the polishing room. The spots were dark red in color. 
These cords are taken off the pencils and we throw them on a nail. We don't 
untie the knots. -This ~oop right here is in all of the cords. I work in the 

--
polishing room, polishing lead penci.ls. I have been working there five years. 
We use paint in there, maroon r~d, red line and b~ight red. Of course you 
can tell the bright red from mal!Oon. red and the red line from ma~o~n red. 

---T at- spot that I saw was not one of these three paints. · 

- - - - -- --- ·-

... 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

- Mr. Barrett and- I discovered. that spot there together." · Yes, that is a 
dirty, greasy floor. You can see grease, but you don't see anything red on 
the floor-not . in. the metal room._ You ·do in the _polishing_ ri>oin. The paints 
don't come from th~ metal room. They are kept back in the other room. We 
carry the paint ba~k -iln bottle·s. Of ·course ~f a b9_ttle would br.eak the paint 
would get ~11 over the floo.r. T.he white stuff there didn't hide the red at all . ... 

_ ________ Yo~ coul ·s..e..e.it..plainly:.__ - - · 

. ~ . 

•• 

• 

•• 
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RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

The pencils are painted-on the -tli1ro flOor. -- Tnere isn t any- pafot -useda_t _ -- ­
all in the factory only in the polishing room, except on the third floor. 

B. B. HASLETT, sworn for the State. 

I went to Mr. Frank's house :Monday }norning after the murder, about 7 
o'clock. I went out there and got him and took him ·to the station house. He 
was at the station house two or three hours. I told him Chief Lanford wanted 
to see him. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I ·saw 1\ilr. Rosser and l\fr. Haas at the station house about-s-:3o---or- 9 
o'clock. -Mr. Bfack and I both went out for 'Mr. ~,rank :Monday morning. 
We took him to the station house and turned him over to Chief Lanford. 
They had Mr. Frank in there and a .half dozen detectives, and Mr. Haas and 
you were there. 'Vhen we went out to Mr. Frank's house- he went with us. 

- ---- ---

As to whet4er he had to o or not. I su ose if h -h .d_re_sisted w.(LW.().ll}d_h~'~--------

. - ·-· -·-- - -

•.• ;. M . • t 

E . F. HOLLOWAY, sworn for the State. 

I am day watchman at the National Pencil factory-worked there two · 
years. I was there on April 26th, from 6 :30 a. m. till 11 :45. I look after the 
elevator and freight that. come in and out and people that come in a1!d out. 
As to what I did to the_ elevato.r on that Saturday, I didn't do anything except. 
that whe_n Mr. White a11d Mr._Denham were working on the top ·'floor, I started 
the elevat01-- up and ripped up a plank foi· them. 1,he el~vator was locked 
when I sawed· that plank for them, but ·when I left it was unlocked . I locked 
.it Fri3ay night ~hen I left there. B~t I went ·off from there Saturday and 
forgot to lock it. When I made that · affidavit for you on May 12th, 1913, I 
forgot to tell° you that I aid some sawing for Mr. White and l\fr. Denham. The . 
elevator was standiilg on the office floor when I left there Saturday. I left it · 
standing-rig~ I b~d- done-som~i:g_f-0r..-Mr . . White and: Mr. Den­
ham. just before I left and in talking to them I went off and forgot to lock it. 

- ln affidavit signed May 12th, 1913, in presence of Starnes, Campbell and others, 
in ·answer to question, ''Is the pow~r~ box l~ft locked or unlocked?'' I will .say 
I locked it Friday when I left ~here. 'I don't remember saying in this affidavit 
that if the "elevator box was kept unlocked ' on account of insurance. compan=i~es:.:c_ __ 
requiring it that I never heard of it, that they always told me to lock ~t. I 

· .. do-n.'t remember any questions being asked me about any keys. I read and· 
· ·,. _ . · . : signed my name to that paper before I signed it. · I don't remember _stating 

.\ 
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that I -locked it Saturday._ I did say in that affida,1it it is ·kept locked all the 
time. The reason· I said at th.e- co1•oner's inquest that the elevator--hox-was-- ­
always locked and that I left it locked on Saturday was because I forgot to tell 
about that sawing. I did that sawing just before I left th~re Saturday, Fri-
day evening I never heard Mr . . Frank say auything to Newt L.ee. When I left 
the factory .at 11 :45 01i Saturday l\fr. Frank said to me "You can go ·ahead if 
you want to· w-e_wilLall go at-noo1i:'·' At about 9:30 Mr.-Frunx and l\I-r:--­
Darley went over to l\Iontag Bros. I have seen Gantt talking to ~Iary Phagan 
frequently. The stairs leading from the first floor . i_n~o the basement are in · . 

• 

good condition. They haven't been used this year. They have been ·nailed !!P __ . ____ -· 
· all the year. 1,he area on first floor around trap-door down there was cleaned · 

. ' . 
up about two wee~{S after the insurance people- came over and ~1~nt through the 
building. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

)Ir. Denham and ~Ir. \Vhite- were working · there . Saturda·y. ~ . up c»n . the -
fourth fl.001'. 'rhey were np there ·when I left the bu_ilding. Anybody could 

--~-----~~"-'--":v. alked fro1n the-fourt.h_fi~~1d-fl.ool!.....4t-ll-d-a~-loog-t-th~·~t-------­
no ' obstruction. ·A man at the stairway on the third fl.001'-{,--an see the second 
floor "in· front of the clock. The front doors were unlocked all the morning and 

. . they were still unlocked when f left. 'Vhen Mr. Denham and l\Ir. White asked 
- :-... - --. - -:----me-to-sa-w some timber for .them that inor.ning, I went and got the 1rni and .. i1n- ---- ---- .... - -. -: •. 

--.- ·-- -~ locked the motor t iat runs tl!_e elevator. I left it unl_o(!ked after that. Any-
hody could have st."arted the elevator .. running then by throwing in the switch. 
l am familiar with the floor bac~ there in the ·metal department. It is a very 
dirty, greasy, stained up floor-there isn't a \\;orse one in town. Whenever you 
walk -along there you will fall down if you are not very particular. ·The fl<>6l'­
has ·never been washed the three years that I have been there. You see the 
analines ana white stuff scattered all over the floor every day and the sweepers 
just sweep it afong together. · You see spots on the floor quite f.r..eqnentl¥. We 
work about 100 girls m the .factory. Four or five of them work in the metal 
room. There is a lady's dressing room right there where they chipped up the 
-spots, and right across from there is the toilet, not over six .i. '"~ et from it. I 

' . 

have seen blood spots frequently ever ~ince I have been working there around . 
the ladies. toilets and the ladies dres_sing room~ ; _the foreladies would . al ways . 
tell me about it and I-have often noticed it when we were working or sweeping 
or anything -~f the kind, and I would know what it me~nt. I would go back-- ~ _ -~ 
and have it cleaned. These spots that Barrett claims to have found I don't 
recall ha,vjng notic~d before; they wou-ld--lH}t -':Jl-ave attracted my attentfori. 
They were right on the "'ley t<Y the ladies dressing room: Yes. this man Bar-

·----~ 

rett discovered mighty near. ev~rything that was discovered ·in the building-
-=--~-------.:. 

hair, blood, and. pay envelope . .. That ls what he says ... No~ I have never. seen 
Mr. Frank speak to Mary Phagan. I was at the factory at 6 :30 Saturday 
morning. I was the first man that got. there. Denham a~d White came in .. . . . - . -- - . -~ 

about 7 o'clock and went up on the fourth floor. They we1~e .~oi~g s6!ne work 

- .. i - . ........ . 
,.. : . 
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up the~e.- I had to saw ·that plank for them. They told me that it would_ take 
· _:_ . _them until about 3 o 'clo~k. The offiee boy, Alonzo Mann, 13· ·or -14 ·years oldi_ _____ _ 

came in next. Mr. Frank came in about 8 :30 or · 8 :45. He went right in his 
office, unlocke.d his safe and-got--Gut·his-books and went to work on them. l\·I~. 

Da~ey was the next one .that eame in and Miss l\fattie Smith t~e next. - She 
. stayed about 10 minutes and went out again. I met Miss Corinthia Hall and 
Miss Emma . Clark at the corner of Hunter and Broad coming toward the fac­
tory just as I was leaving. l\Iiss Clark asked-me if anyoody was there-said 
she wanted her wrap, it . was turning .cold, and I said, '~~es , Mr. Frank will let 
·you have · it." There_ were several-ufuers came in that morning, but they 
came in while I was up stairs with Mr. White and Mr. Denham. There wa~ 
no tock at all on the metal room door. Ne,vt Lee closed up the building Fri-

---~d~a-y-. - He looks after all the doors and· windows plumb back to the back door 
in the basement. There we1·e 7 01• 8 negroes about the building, elevat.or boys 
and sweepers. On Saturdat they paid off at 12 o'clock, right at the clock. 
l\ir. Frank would always be in his office attending tcrhirl~oks when . they paid­

L-----,------___:__ _ _ ....Y.AJ....__,.__.__._-'-'-t'"u~ay-ing--ih·at--th~-pttying-off ;; o old be done F1=r1!--3-=a=y:-:n:::-:1--::::gtr--------~ 
instead of Saturday, because Saturday was a holiday. We put four signs on 

t;:- -\ ·every floor. Elevator shaft is closed : by -sliding doors. -Anybody can·· rais_e ______ _ 
·._;·• tl1em, they are not locked. · It is very __ dar.k around the elevator..:-~hafe--0n - the ···-· ~--

I'----'· . .• . - - · - --- ~- - . - -- - . ..;.. . 

·, .--, - -----:·-. first floor, filled with boxes all around there. _\Ve have two clocks. One runs 
t0 100 and the other rtlns from 100 to 200. Each employe has a number. That · 
is the reason we have two clocks. When Miss Mattie Smith came in she dis- · ·~ 

--co~ed a mistake about J1er . time by the time she reached the clock. Mr. 
Frank and Mr. Darley corrected it in the office and then she left. Mr. Frank --------'~ 
got back · f1•om-Mon~out 11 o'clock. He had with him the folder in 

~ which he ca·rries his papers. Nobody was with him when he came back . . He 
went right up ·into his office. The stenographer was in ·the outer office when 
he got there. These cords here are found laying around everywhere in the · 
building. They come on every bundle of slats that com·e into· the building. 

·The pencils are tied up with those slats 'at the top floor, brought-Q.mvn by ele­
vato~,_ carried in t~e packing room · and those strings fil.e then put. on them. 
They get in the trash. every day and into the basement. It is impossible t<? keep 
them out. . I did not see Mary Phagan or Monteen Stover.. The negro Conley 
was famil.iar with the· whole building, every part of it. . . . . 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. ---'·· 
1.---~---·-----

--wIUte ~nd Denham 'Were working 011 the fourth floor about thirty feet 
from the elevator. On May 12, 1913, I told you that the-ele.vator :was locked · 

· because I forgot to ·teil you I done s6fue sawi'ng. I took .the. key ·out, left the 
. . elevfl,tor unlocked and .. took the key back and put it in the office. -Mr .. Darley -. 

= ·,~·· . . _got . to . th~ .facto}"'Y- .about 9 o'clock Saturday. Miss Mattie ~mith got tlfere .. · 
·---·::'.~ - '--'---. --.. -about 9 :10. ·. · · 

__ :: -- . 
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. RE-CROSS EXtMINA~_ION. 

·\Vhen I gave lVIr. Dorsey that affidavit about locking the elevator I was · 
telling more about my habit, the way I ·usually did' it. I forgot to tell him 
about sawing those planks that Saturday morning and the fact that I sawe~ 
those planks makes me know that I left the elevator u~locked. The elevator 

------:ltttnakes a good deal of noise when it starts and when it stops. 
-

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

I was ou the. second floor ,\•heh al~ of these people came iu the factory. 
:\Ir. Frank wor ecfOn his books until lie. got ready to go to lVIontags, I think 
it.- was about an hour. . I checked freight with a one-legged drayn~a.n about 
1_0 :30; his wagon was right in front of the door. 

N. V. DARLEY, sworn for the State. 
. ~ 

l\iy name is N. V. Darley. I atl} manager of the Georgia Cedar Company, 
a branch of the National Pencil Company. I have charge of the manufactur-

---------LLl~a..LU....__.-Q.V'~~-A---1-A-lh~e~F~o1r.:·s~y"Tt,h-St-1!6et-f}lant. l\ . · · · 
Mr. Frank and I are of equal dignity in_ the fact~ry. I was at the National 

_ Company's factory on Saturday, April 26th. I saw lVIr. Frank and left about 
9 :40 in the morning. I was th~re Sunday morning at about 8 :20. I saw Mr. 

----~-~----· ~r_a_n~t,-y-a....,.t_m_o_riiing-:--OEserved nothing unusual when ffirst saw him. When 
. we started to the ·basement I notic~is hands were trembling. I observed 

that ~ seemed still nervous when he went to nail up the . ha-ck- door. · When 
we started down to nail up the back door he made some remark about having 
on new ~lothes or some more clothes and he pulled his coat off to keep it from 
getting soiled. Vvhen we left the station house and started t~wards Bloom­
fields he. told me why he was nervous. He said that he had not had breakfast 

. and didn't get any coffee aud that they had rushed him by BlOomfields, ·carried 
him in a dark room ·and turned the light on and he Sl\W the girl ·instantly and 
that was why he was nervous. The elevator was unfocked. I don't know where 
the key was. Newt Lee seemed to be thoroughly composed. l\fr: Frank 
stated to me in the basement that he thought that the murder was committed 
iu the basement. Mr; Frank stated that it looked easy for the staple to be 
_pulled out and I agreed with him, because the staple looked .black audit looked 
to me as if it had been J~ulled out -before . . On l\londay Mr. Frank explained \ · 

- again about why he was nervous on Sunday morning. · I heard him speak of 
~--------the murder numerous times. · When we started down the elevator Mr. Frank 

was nervous, shaking all over. I can't say positively as to whether his whole 
body was shaking or not, but he was shaking. Newt Lee seemed to be com­
posed when I saw.-him at the factory. Mr. Frank could have driven the nails 
i~ the · back door, but · i .thought I could do· it with more ease. . Mr. Frank 

· looked pale Sunday morning. I think he seemed upset, but l!e ·did some. things 
. ___ . around the· factory there that a man who was compl~tely upset could ·11ot have . . - . 

. - __.,.:_ __ . 
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. done, I don't think. When riding down to the police station from the pencil 
- fao~ory Mr. Frank was on my knee, he was trembling. I saw-the financial 

sheet on Mr .. Frank's desk. Mr. Frank picked it up in his hand. . Gantt was 
at the factory three or four times after he was discharged. My recollection 
is that Frank said something about the financial sheet on Sunday. It was on 
May 3rd that l\'(r. Haas, the insurance inan , asked that the factory be cleaned 
upon the Malsby side~ on the other side. When my attention was called 
to it I noticed som.ething that looked ·like blood with something white · over 
it at the ladies dressjng ·room on Monday morning. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

Mr. Quinn called my attention to the blood spots, Barrett called Quinn '!) 
attention to it. Barrett showed me some hair ou a lever of the lathe. It was 20 
or -30 feet from Mary Phagan 's machine on the north side of the room. There 
were no blood spots on it. I don 't think anybody could answer how many . 
strands of hair Barrett found. They were wound around the leve~. I don't 

~----~~~~t~heerRe~w~e~re~ov~6o~8attheo~de. fiwaspre~e~~·.---------~ 

It is my understanding that Barrett has been doing most of the discovering done 
in the .building. He has lost qltjte some ·time since- the-murder, and buys quite --- · some extras and reads them. The white stuff practically hid the spots. It looked 

t----- ---..iKe t ere -liad been an attenipt -to -hide--tnem-; but you coula -see tie spo s·. t - - - -

• 

looked like the man who tried to hide them, if anybody did, made a smearing 
_motion and left the spots showing. I saw no blood spots on Mary Phagan 's ma­

chine. There are hundreds of pay envelopes distributed every ·week in the fac­
tory. The rule is that if a person goes outside of the factory and finds an envel­
ope short- we do n.ot correct it. As the pay envelopes are distributed they take 
them and tear them off, just like this one. The employees take the money out 
and scatter the envelopes all over the factory. On the second floor where the 
.metal room is is the main place where you find the pa-y envelopes. L was present 
on Sunday morning when the time slip was taken out. I was looking over l\fr. 
Frank's sho~lder. Mr. Frank run it down the number side. This time slip (De-., / 
fendant's Exhibit "I") looks like the one. · Mr. Frank looked down the-:-mtmber 
side and said it was all right and l. verified it. 1-.;.didn 't notice between 9 :32 and 
10 :29 if there was any punch, or between 11 :04 and 12, or between 2 :03 a-nd_ 
3 :01. I identify this (E~hibit "1" defendant) by the nu~bers 6 :01 and 6 :32. I 
look over the financial sheets every Saturday afternoon. The factory week- runs 
from Friday morning till . Thursday night. The financial ·sheet ·is usually 
completed about 5 :30 Saturday afternoon. The financial sheet shows the 
week's operation of the factory; the production of the factory-;-tlfe different 
kinds of. pencils that were produced. ' There are perhaps 75 or 8~ different 
kinds,. besides the special imprint pencils. Mp. Fran.k ha4 to get all the datn 
from the various departments of th~ facto1·y, particularly the packing room. 
The cost of production was ·estimated· most of the time as to the merchandise . 

---The other things were real figures. Merchandise is -bought by the month· and 

•. - -. · · 

..... · . . . . ., 
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" he had to figure it up ·at the end of the month to get the a ve1·age. To arriYe 
at the profit that was made during the week he .took . the actual value Qf the 
pencil and · the-mnou~t of expense$ that was paid out for material, labor, etc. 
He had to get all the data, all the reports and make all those calculations. It 
usually took him from about hatrpast tw<f or three o'clock on_Saturday until 
five-thirty, and some times later. 'rhis financial sheet (Defendant's- Exhibit 
"2 ") is in Frank's handwriting and-is-the one I saw on his desk Sunday 
morning. - I left the factory at 9, :40 an<l he ~adn 't started the financial sheet 
'then. He usually started the fii'lancial sheet from 2 :30 to 3 o'clock. I am 

~ . 
familiar with Frank's handwriting .. All of this financial sheet is in his hand-
writing. To get the figure 27651/2 , net 2719l/2 i under material cost, he had to 
look at how many labels had been .used, how many boxes, whether they were 
carton• or ·plain ones, partition, rubbers-;- amou11 of le-ad- used and amount of 
slate used. He got the reports that gave him that data from the different de­
partments of the factory. 'l'o arrive at that result is c uite a calculation·. It 
is my opinion that it took a skillful, clear-headed man to calculate. that. Yes, 
I am familiar with the elements that enter into that calculation. To .arrive 
at the net results of the figures just named, you have· to get the amount of 

-rubbers1 tips, lead, wrappers, label~, boxes, whether carton or plain boxes, 
- partition, whether it is cheap or good lead. The 27651;2 means 27651/2 gross. 

Furthei· on down you find the different items that make rip that figure under 
the-1lead _of ..w.rappers, leads, tips, etc. - T-he n.ext .figure -is -undeP.-rubber,---7-20·-

- --g=r=o=-=s=s--:at 61/2c. Those figures· come from the plugging department or he can 
get them from the goo.ds as they are delivered to the packing room, by knowing 
the styles and numbers, you Cl\n tell whether it is a tipped Or untipped pencil. 
You get that from the shipping room and the other from the metal room. 
He arrives · at the figures on the repoi'ts-turned in. It requires a good 
deal of calculation, mostly multiplying. The next figure is . under tips, 
1374 gross at ten cents. He gets that from the packing room. The ten 

-~ . 

. cents means what the tips cost to pro~ That's a stipulated price. The 
next heading is lea~, 747 gross at 15c. and 1955 gross at ten cents. He has 
to go throqgh these reports the same way except he doesn't hav~ to work the 
cost of that, it's taken care. of in the account. He has to ar1~ive · at the number 
of gross, but the cost is fixed. The ne~t item is supplied at -5c. per gross, boxes 
3771 at 2c., assortment ·boxes 279 at lOc., wrappers 2535 at _ le. He gets those 
reports from the boxes of the p·encils in the packing_ room. He gets the 

·reports as to the r l1bbers and. the labels fro.ill the packing _room. T4e cost per 
_ gross is fixed, hut he has to figure out the quantity. The next item is ssort­

ment boxes, wrappers, skeletons. The. next-i_tem, cartons. The next item-is 
pay roll, Bell Street. The next, slats .from the slat mills. · .As the slats are 
delivered from the slat mill, a report comes with it, and those reports are 
taken at the end of the week and added up. . There are about five of those 

. shipments during the week. He has to take ~-the data· that accompanys . each 
shipment and. adds all that up at · the .end of the week. · The next item-· is 
''pencils packed, ~ (top of . sh~et)_. _T_here 'arer24 itemized here; an_d .the word 

• 
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'"'jobs,-, implies I don't know how mauy different kind of jobs. - '!'here are- 24 
different kind of pencils. He pi1ts them there as having been produced that 
week. He g~t the reports. as to the quantity of each kind of pencil and had to 
taoulate _all those i~eports and arrive at the total of each ki_nd. No, I don't . think 

_ he had to figure out the cost of production Qf each kind, but he figures ·the 
quantity of each. kind. o.f pencil and shows its value on the sheet. Starnes 
and Black and Anderson and Dobbs were there on Sunday· morning. Vv e went 
all over the . factory. I don 't remem~er about .hearing of any blood being 
found on . Sundaya t all . . '!:here was a great deal .of excitement there that 

____ _ _,m= orning. We see spots all over the factor~' floor . \Ve have varnisl1 spots, 
and people get their fingers cut, we have ever¥- •olor spots you can-th.in.k.---------,.''-­
of,. I have been working in factories for 24 years. It is a frequent o.ccurrence 
in establishments where a large numbeJ' of ladies work that -you will see blood 
spots around dressing rooms. I have seen them a good many times. I have · 
seen it at _this fa_ctory. Mr. :B,rank had on a br.o..wn suit on Saturday and · · 
Monday. On Sunday he had a different sm on. I never noticed any scratches. 
marks or · bruises on :Mr. FJ.·ank on Sunday. There was a little girl in Mr. 
Frank's office on Saturday m'orning, by the name o · iss .i: · a ie m1 , an e . 
sister-in-law's time was wrong and Mr. Frank told ·her to wait a-few_ minutes· e . . and he would St1:'aighten it out_ for . her. She had, been paid $3.10 too muc~ , . : -. , . . . 

~---------and she gave me_-back t.he -money·when- she fou~d ·It was _wr?ng and 1 gave it---.-... l~?~--- -
- - to Mr. Frank and he said he was glad because it balanced Jns-cash. She . then-- ·v . 

• 

started out of the factory and got to the st-airway and· she came back · again 
and said that her time w~s \vi·ong the other way. and I said ''Little girl will it 
do all right_ to straighten it Monday," and she said . "Yes." I then asked her 
how _ was her father, and sl~e said, ''My father is dying, I think.'' Then she 
spoke to me a.bout getting some assistance from the office for buria_l ~xpenses, 
and she commenced to ery and I walked down the steps wit~ her to the front 
door. That was about 9 :20~1r. Frank stayed at the factory until 9 :40, when 
we left together. 'Ve went on up to the corner of Hunter and-Forsyth, took 
a drink of sodawater at Cruicksinmk 's at the corner of Forsyth and Hunter. 
He left me then and started towards l\Iontag 's. That's the last I saw of him 
until Sunday .morni_ng. The elevator box was unlocked Sunday morning, and · 

-.anybody e-ould have pulled it open and started . the elevator. The elevator 
makes some noise. It is driven by a motor. It makes uH:we noise when it stops 
at the bottom than when it starts. There is _nothing to stop it e~cept whe~it 
hits the-bott<:>nr.--I-have seen these cords diat we tie up -slats and pencils with 
in every part of the factory. J have raised s·and about finding them in the base­
ment; they · go down in the garbage. ·There are s·evera] truck loads of waste 
and . debris" every day. .. rhc g.~neral Cle·a.ning· up of the ' premises was had on 
Tuesday after tne murder. The factory ·is five stories high, -between 150 and 
200 feet in length and 75 or 80 feet wide. It is an exti;emely . dirty place. 
In some places th·e floor is gumme.d ·an inch thick, ·and ~n some parts of the 
~etal room it is one,-eigbtk of an jn·ch thick, . it -might ndt 'average"" that an 

. over. --n is -always dark-on the ·first floor, throug)l-·the hall tO-WlU!<l the elevator.- -

" - ··:r: . 
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1--~-------t- n-a -cioudyliay;t-is-V-ery-Uarir.-we keepalight burning tliere most -of the 
time. I couldn't say ·whether we had cleaned up all the trash and rubbien· 
around the factory, because there are corners and crevices which we don't 

_umally get to. Saturday, April 26, was a Clark, bad, misty day, until ,about 
9 :30. It was cloudy most of the day. It ·was dark there around the elevator 
on the first floor and we had big heavy boxes piled up th~re. One of them 

-must have been almost as large as a piano box. If a man got between .those 
boxes, ·we would have had to hunt to find him. It is very dark on the second 
floor between the clock and the metal room. It is dark behind the ladies 
·dressing room and on the side next to the ladies toilet. As you go to the stairs -
fr0m the metal room, . it is very dark. A person sitting at Mr. Frank's q~sk 

. in his office could not see anyone coming up those stairs. It would be impossible 
to see anyone coining up those steps from anywhere in Mr. Frank's inner 
office, you would have to go outside of it. ~here is no lock on the metalroo.m 
doors. In the metal ·room there are a great many vats and a: great many boxes 
and things containing st'ock and goods just south of the ladies dressing room. 
It is piled up very bad back there. Averaged anywhere from 2: to 6 or 8 feet 

e me a room con ams 
three · or four large vats that have got lids on them. They ·are shallow, but 
they- are large inside. They are about a foot and a half deep. Nobody is sup­

----~----posed -tu---b~ ·n any part -of' the building on Sunday, that 18 the ,only- time -we 

.. ... .,,.. .... . 

<lon 't have a watchman. The factory is supposed to be locked entirely. · The 
elevator steel .eables-liav-e-s_oma..slack in them. It isn't like a stiff iron in them. 
It would-shake when you catch hold of it. There are two cables, you pull the . 
right one to come down and the left. one to go up. You can catch-ii-and-shake 
it in your hand. Yes, l\fr. Frank is a small, thin man, about 125 or 130 pounds. 
Yes; Mr. Dorsey served a subpoena on me to come down to ·his '()fiice. I didn't 
know that he did not have any right to subpoena me. Yes, I thought I was 
being subpoen.aed to come _into court. They served two subpoenaes on me and 
sent for me one time. The first time I went there, Chief ~ord, Mr. Dorsey, 
Mr. Stephens. .and the stenographer was there. T~e_y all asked me questions. 
Qne would ask me·-a~u.-est-ion- and before I got that answered, anotheJ" would 
ask me a question. The next time I went there, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Starnes, Mr . 

. Campbell and the stenographe~ were there. Mr. Dorsey did all the questioning 
this time. When Mr. Frank was engaged on his ·work in the factory he was 

- very. intent on his work, very earnest and industrious. I don't think a ·day 
__ _ _ passed at the factory that 1vlr. Frank did not get nerv.ous. When anything went 

wrong he would wring his hands and I hav~ seen him push his hands through 
his hair. 'When·. things went wrong it would upset him. If . anything out of 
the ordinary happened. I have seen him a thousand times, I suppose, rub his 
·hands. ·At a factory like this things don't usually _go right all day, there 
is something wrong all the time. When anything went wrong it rattled him 
and he woul~ frequently call on me to straighten it out. He would- show 
the most ne~vousne~e when he would go over to Montag'll with tbe__mail and . . . - , 

-- ~e would-raise sand about something -and lie ~wou,d ·come ba~k very nervous. If 

. ... ...... . 

• 

.• ' 
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--- - -- - - ' . 
Mr. Frank saw anythmg going-wrong inside -the- factory, -he would refer the · ----- --
matter to me. I never saw Mr. Frank speak to Mary Phagan. I don't know 
whether l(e knew her or-not. I didn't know we had a girl by that name in the 
fa-ctory until I found it out afterwards. The two men working up in the fourth 
floor all day Saturday could have come to the second floorinto the metal room 
and down into the basement if they wanted to, they had the whole run of the 
fact_ory. Yes, I have seen all kinds of papers down in the baseme:nt. The paper 
that° note is written on is a _ blank order pad. It is either the carbon or white 

.,------~--------

sheet, one is white an one 18 -ye low. ~fiat:kind o f- paper 18 1aole to be ___ --- _ . _. --- ·-

• 

• 

found all over the building for this reason, they ·write an orde:·, and some times 
·fail to get the .. carbon under it, and other times they have to change the order 
and tear it out and throw it in the waste-basket in the office and from there 

I • • 

it gets into the trash. That kinsl of little pad is used all over the factory. 
The foreladies make their memorandum on that kind of tablet. You will find · 
them all arou.nd. It is one of the b~ggest wastes around the place. They are all 
over the building, and any man that worked around the factory or ran the 

---elevator or swept up the different floors would be more likely to come across 
them than any one else, because t ey are t irown· on e oor. ere was an 
Qrder to keep the clock door locked, but on · this occasion the key was lost and 
_th_e cloc~ _door was open. _ When · I _got there Sunday morning the clock 
door was unlocked. l\fr. Frank could not have unlocked it because the 
key was lost. With the clock door _unlqcked, any one who und_erstands the 
clock, could have punched for all night in_- five or ten minutes. I made the 
same mistake :Mr. ·Frank made in thinking that all the punches had been made 
all right. I looked ·over the factory at noon-to--day and compared it with some . 
points on this picture (Exhibit "A" for State). This big space in the cellar 
appears to be short. . Those steps in the cellar are much longer~ in reality. 
The pla~form itself is about 15 feet long, and -the-incline is 17 feet, making 
32 feet the length of it. The distance between the walls of ~Ir. Frank's · offic~ 

. and the elevator shaft is 5 feet to 51/2 inches. The elevator shaft is ten feet, . 
but on. the picture the space between the elevator shaft and Mr. Frank's office 
looks-almost ·as wide as the elevator. shaft itself. One is ten feet and fhe othe1· 
is 5~. As to what occasions J recall seeing l\Ir. Frank nervous, I recall once 
that he came in one afternoon on a street ear when it. ran over a little child. ,, -
He came in about 2 :30 and he couldu 't work any more on his books until -a-
quarter after four. He trembled-ru.~t as much _on that occasion as he did 
on the Sunday after l\Iary Phagan: was killed. Another time I relM...mber . _____ _ 
when I went over to the main factory n.nd he and Mr. l\iontag had a fuss on 
the fourth floor. ~fr. :Montag hollered at him _considerably and he was ver"Yy-~---­
nervous the rest of the evening~ he shook and trembled. -J:Ie says '':Mr. Darley 

. I just can't work,'' arid .. some of the .. ho_ys told me ·he took s_ome spfrits of . ., 

. ammon.ia for his nerves·. Everybody . was ~xcited in the factory that morning · · ·. · 
after Mary Phagan· was killed .- Starnes · and Black ·and Roge~s 'were there 
and· it seem11 like they · were all excited. Looked like everybody was worried . 

-· -.· As to another mist_ake in tfie· ·picture (State-'s Exhibif AL ·tile bottom-of the _-=_~ 

I . . ./ 
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ladder in the base'n1ent is much closer fo the· elevator than what is shown on 
·· ---the picture. It is -about 6 feet. . On the picture it looks to be about 10 feet and 

the toilet in the basement is ·closer to the wall than the picture shows, it is 
right up against the wall. The ~cture doesn't show · the Clarke Woodenware 
partition back of the elevator. The door to the Clarke Woodenware Company 
also is closer to the elevator than the picture shows. On the stairs from the 
first to the second floor there are doub1e doors instead of single doors as shown 
on the picture. The picture- shows up Frank's mner office a good deal larger 
than. the other office. As.a matteJ! of fact the . outer office is larger. The outer 
office 1s 12 feet 4 inches wide. The inner office ten ·fee-t~he picture shows 
a great big wide place fo1~ a door between the inside office and tli~ outside office, 
making it look like a double door. That is a· representation to. show a full view 
from Frank's desk into the hall, as a matter of fact ft is a single a·oor, standard 
size. It looks like it was drawn to open up .a space to give as much view . as 
possible out into the h~ll. · The safe is shown to-be-ahout half its real si.ze on 
this picture. On the pic~ure it is shown to be about one-third the width of the . 
door, as a matter of fact it is about the same size. 'Vhen the safe door is open, 

. .. . 

unless you stand up high enough to look over ·it. The picture· also shows 
the south wall of the outer office on a line 'vith the clo~k. The picture doesn't 
show up the wardrobe m the inner office, nor the two cabinets that are in 
there. I don't think it is a very accurate picture. . It opens up Frank's inner 
office .a whole lot better than it really opens up. Sitting at Frank's desk and _ 

- looking out through the door towards the clock, in reality you have a looking 
space of only 25 inches. You can just see about four numbers on· clock number 
·2. You could not see .anywhere near t~e stair case, or in the neighborhood of 
tt. --

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION . 

I -felt nervous from the time-they told r;ne the girl.was dead, until I left the 
building. I was not trembling, I. was simply excited and worried. Well, 
Starnes was nervous. H.e looked as if he were worried. · He seemed nervous 
both in talk and manner. I can say the same thing of the rest of the officers 
who were there. Mr. Frank was more nervous than the others. The men 
were all about as nervous on ·Monday and Tuesday. Everybody seemed 

' to be..'in a turmoil and shaking. Mr. Holloway and 1\-fr. Schiff were shaki_!!g,__. __ _ 
I noticed Mr. Schiff's hands shaking Monday morning. Mr. H9lloway was 
about.in the same shape. Mr. Frank was very nervous Tuesday afte_r-{~tra 

. · came out sayJng that they were going to arrest him. ·That was ab~ut 15 or 00 
minutes . before they arrestedhim. As to who gets up the data for l\lr. F~ank 

· · ·. for ·the financial sheets, .Mr. Loeb some times, and Mr. Gantt used to get up 
som~, and Mr. S~hiff gets °it' ·up som~ ti~es. Mr.~ Frank got it up himself, some 
times. No, I do. not know that Mr. Schiff furnished it to him all the tim~. 

• 

· I never . noticed whether Lee wa8' n~vous or n~t at any time, . but of course~ • 
· he looked bothered and worried. Mr. Jilrank told me that the slip he took out · 
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of the clock Sunday morning had beeu punched regularly. I made the same 
mistake sta-nding- right~-her~ by his side. I didn't see Mr. Frank date the 
slip. It ought to have been dated the 26th. The slip I saw didn't have any 
time on it except the watchman's time. I don't know whether I would . · ~ , 

know it or not, to identify. The sliP.s:.~~.{po_t made . in= -duplicate. As to 
whether there is any mark on the ·slip to enable . any one to -identify it, 
as the .one taken out that night, my memory is that it was started at 6 :01 o_r 

-·6 :32. Of ·course nohodµould-reU=who· punched the-clock, -~me -man's -puncn ls · -- -
just like another. That· diagram or picture (State's Exhibit A) is a fair repre-

sentation of the building as a · whole, it is· not a fair representation of the 
interior. I never knew· there were any .stairs· in the -basement until this matter 
came up. They are never used to my knowledge. There is a way of closing 
the door in rear ·of second floor from upstairs. The regular place of keeping 
these order blank books is in the outer office. There is no regular place in 
the basement to ke~p . paper, but it is tlirowu on in the-w-aste basket and gets 
down in the trash. There is no use for that paper anywhere b~1t in the office, 

u . a oesn preven i rom emg sea ere aroun . 
of that shape scattered around . even in the basement. That . scratch pad _ _ _ 
is used all over the factory, everywhere there is a foreman or a forela<ly., No, 
not in the area-around the elevator there. The trash is carried downstairs right 
in front of the boiler. Sometimes if they are in · a hurry they leave it around 
the elevator for a I.ittle while, and whe_n I go down I make the negro move it to 
the boiler. It is usually burned. Some of it may stay there for a week~ . some 
of it burned right away. 

RE-CROSS EXAMINATil>N BY-DEFENDANT. 

As to people being nervous, Montag -and Frank merely had some words -
when Frank became so nervous, Sc.hiff was trembling Monday, Holloway 
also, I ·noticed Miss Flowers- began-to -cry-and sere.am and I had to go in 
there and get h"old ·-of her myself. That ·was Tuesday morning. The .whole 

- --- -f-actory was wrought up. I couldn't hard~y keep anybody a~ w01•k. · I had · 

•·· 

. _to let them go on Monday, and . I wished I had let them go for the rest 
of the week, for I couldn't get any work out of them;- I wouldn't say 
that I couldn't get any .. w~r"k out of Christop.hfil· _Columbus ·Barrett_,_since? but 
he has lost a good deal of time. I would have to ·1ook to the pay r.oll -to ·•II. 

W. F. ANDE'RSON, sworn for the State. 

I was at police ·headquarters Saturday, April 26. I got a call f.rom the 
night watchman at th~ pencil factory. He said a woma:n was- dead at the 
factory. . I asked him if it was a white woman . or a negro .woinan. He said 
it was a white woman. We went there in an automobHe, shook the door and 
Newt Lee came down from the ·second floor and carried us bac.k to the ladder . 

. that goes down through -the 'scuttle hole. About ~ :30 I .called up Mr. Frank 
-- ·-- ·-on the telepho~e-and . got no answer·. ~1 -heard the -telephone r~ttling ~nd_ buzzing . 

- ---····---. ..• ·.·. 
• . ! 

.. . ,·· . 
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T continued to call for about five minut~s . . I told Central th~ t~~re ·had been 
a girl killed in the factory and I wanted to get Mr. Frank. I ~ed ~1·. Haas 
and Mr. Montag, too. I got a response from both, I thi:µk a laCly an·ewered 
the telephone. I got the~ in a few minut.e~. I tried to get :Mr. Frank again 
about four o'clock. Central said she rang and she <!ouldn 't get him. There 
was some blood on the girl's uriderelothe~. - - - -----

··:.r·. 
._, ..... , .. 

.... . 

ORO(S BXA~~ATION. 

-There was a wound on the_ left-hand side of the girl's head. The blood was 
dried up. It was wet righ~ next to the skin. Lee said over the telephone 
that it was a white girl. It took us about three minutes to get to the factory 
from the police station, just · as quick as the automobile could get us there. 
'Ve got there inside of . fi~e minutes after I received his telephone message. 
T ... ee had a smoky ·lantern . You eouldn 't see ver.y far with it. It was smoked 
up right smart. Lee said he had been to tlie closet and had his lantern sitting 
dol n h r nd he looked over and saw the lady. He said he saw her while 
he was standing up. I said he conldn 't see her. You could see the bulk of 
anything that far, ~ut you couldn't tell that far whether it was a person. He 
told me when I first ·got him that he had his lantern sittiilg -dow_n right in front 
of him. Th@ body was lying s<?rt of catecornered arid on the left side· of the body 
I saw a number of tracks which lead from the body to- the ~aving-room-:- There 

- ·is ~n opening from the place where the body lay into the shiving room. I found 
a pencil down ther~. There are plenty ~f pencils and trash in tlie b~~ement. 
·The trash was all up next to the. boiler. 

H. L. PARRY, i;worn in be_half of the State. 

I reported the statement of Leo M. Frank before the coroner's jury-:-1 
have been a stenographer for thi!tY Y:ears and considered an expert. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

e . 

•• 

I ' 

Newt Lee was asked tlie foll~wing-questrons and gave the following an· 
ewers at the coroner's jury : ' 'Q. Had you ever seen him change that before f 
A. Well, he put the tape in once before. Q. When was that f A. I don't 

- ~- -· -know, sir, when it was, it was . one night. Q. How long did it take him the 
· fi~st . time · you ever saw him put the ·tape on? A. I never paid- any-attenti"""o'--"'n'---- ­

to him. Q. Well,_ about .how long did it take him, five piinutesY A. No, sir, 
it didn't take him 'that long. ·Q.· Did it tak_e_him a minute f. A. I couldn't tell 
exactly how long. Q. How Ion~ did it take; tlie other night, oil Saturday night T 
A. Well, it. took him. a pretty good little bit,. becaus~ he spo~e about it. He 

· ... 1aid it's pre.tty hard, you know, to get on."- I don't kn~w whether. he. swore 
___ _ _____ aJ11thiog else on that particular ~ubject without . examining . th_e record . 

. . 
· .. 

. . · . . . ... .· .. 

• 
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G. C. FEB~UA&Y,..swo.rn.1.or_the-8.tate . 

I was present at Chief Lanfo1·d 's office when Leo M. Frank and L. Z. 
Rosser were there. ~ took down Mr. Frank's statement sienographically. I 
don't remember Frank's answers in detail, Mr. Rosser was looking out of the 
window ·most of the time. He didn't say anything while I was in there. This 
(Exhibit B, Sta-ttj-,rep-ort is correct· reportof what :Mr. Frank sa.id. It was 
made on Monday, April 2~th. 

OB.OBS EXAMINATION. 

I believe Mr. Rosser and Mr. Frank .we~ in the room when I ca.me in. 
-1t -was_ sometime in the forenoon. I have never been a court stenographer 
· except in Recorder's cpurt. I am Chief Lanford 's private secretary. Mr. Black 

was in there during the latter part; of Mr. Frank's statement. Chief Lanford 
as~ed Mr. Frank if he changed <.'lo th es. He ·showed part of his shirt and 
opened his trousers. He showed his clothing to Chief Lanford at the end of the 
statement. I wrote-the stat~ment. out in longha~d the same day. · I don't re-

ALBERT McKNIGHT, sworn for the -State. 

My wife is Minola M.cKnight. ~he cooks for Mrs. Selig. · · Bet~eil 1 ·an 
2 ·o'clock on Mem~rial Day I was at the home of Mr. Frank to see my wife. 
He came in close to 1 :30. He did riot eat any dinner. He came in, went to the 

' 

sideboard· of the dining room, 'stayed there a few minutes and ~t~h~en~· ......!h~e"--1!~""---------:-­
out and catches a car. Stayed there about 5 or ten minutes. 

· CROSS EXAMINATION. 

Mrs. -Selig and Mrs. Frank were present whe~ Mr. Frank came ill . . I was 
in the cook room. There is a swinging door between the dining room and the 
cook room. The dining room door was open. The door swings back and forth, 
b_uL.they don.'t keep it shut. You can see from the kitchen into the dining 
room. You can look in the mirror in the corner and see all over the dining 

_ room. I looked in-=--uie mirror in the corner and saw him Yon can look in :_ 
that mirror and see in the sitting room and in the dining room. I have no 
idea how big the kitchen or dining room is. · I was never in the dining room in 

- my life. I was sitting at the back d<for in the kitchen, at the right side of the 
back door, up agamst t e wall. Minola went into the dining room, and stayed 

-a minute or two, no more than two minutes. She came back into the _kitchen. 
I don't know whether the . other folks ·ate di:µner or :QQ.t, I did not see Mr .. 
Selig. I ea.Die to-the house from my house in the re~r of 3l8 Pulliam .Street:· 

. After coming_ to_ the -sideboard Mr. -Frank went into the sit!_ing l'Ot>m- where-· 
:Mr. Selig was~ I didn't see Mr. Selig, but heard him talking. I told abol:lt' Mr. ·_ --: el ~ _' . __ Fran~_ not ~ating aft~r I_~ame .b.~ck from Birmingham, I told it to Mr.-Craven 

___ - --· ··of --the -Beck & Gregg-Compap-y. --n wae ·before-Min-Ota-went down -ro -the jail. 
~~ - ~ . 
~ . ..... 
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Mr. Starnes, Mr. Campbell, Mr. Morse, Mr. Martifiand Mr. Dorsey all talked 
to me. I didri 't go down to see l\finola at the station house. I didn't see Mrs . 

. Frank or ~rs. Selig that Saturqay through the mirror. I didn't keep ml'.: eye 
. on the mirror all the time. I couldn't tell who was in. the· dining room without 
looking ·in the. mirror . . Mr. Frank got there not later than 1 :30. Mr: Frank 

-----~ame on back to Pulliam Street and caught the Georgia A venue car at the 
of Georgia Avenue, and Pulliam Street. I am certain that he· caught 

the Georgia Avenue car at Pulliam Street and Georgia . Avenue. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 
--

The Selig residence is orr East .Georgia Avenue between Pulliam and Wash-
----- - -· . ington -streets. I don't know exactly the nearest placeror~an - to have 

gotten ·on the car, Wash:ington Street or Pulliam Street. I suppose ·Pulliam 
__ Street i~ nearer to town than Washington: I certainly saw Mr. Frank that 

· · da.y, from the kitchen where I was sitting. 

ELEN FERGUSON. sworn for the State. 

My name is Helen Ferguson, I worked at the National :eencil Company on 

•• 

~---

Friday the 25th. I saw Mr. Frank Friday, April 25, about 7 o'clock in the • 
evening and asked for :Mary Phagan 's money. Mr. Frank -:said -"I can't let 
you have it," and before he said anything else I turned around and walked 
out. I had gotten Mary's money before, but .I didn't-get it from Mr. Frank. 

c~oss EXAMI~ATION. 

When I got Mary's money b~fore-1-went up there and called my number 
and called. her number, and I got mine and hers. I didn't ask the man that 
was paying off this time to -let- JD.e--ha..ve_jt~ -I don't remember whether Mr. 
Schiff was in the office or not when I asked Mr. Frank for Mary's money. Some 
of .the office forc.e were there, but ·.I can't recall their name. I worked in the 

. metal department about two years . . I neyer saw little Mary Phagan in Mr. 
Frank's office. I don't think Mr. Franh knew m;x name, · he· knew-my--face:­
It has been some time since I asked for Ma1•y's pay by nuJpber. I do not believe 
tnat I ever ·saw Mr. Frank speak io Mary Phagan. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

_ I don't know who paid off_ on 14,!'id~y, _April 25th, 

R. L. W AGO-ONER, sworn for the State. 

I am a city detective. · On Tuesday, April 29th, from ten. thirty utitil a 
·· · - ---little after 11 in the.morning I was in front of the P.encil facfury on the other 

side of the street. I would continually ~ee Mr. Frank wall{ to the window and 
_ _ __ -_-'==-- --. _ _look ~own and twist his hands when he wo~ld c~me _to the : wind·ow fo.oking · • 
- ----'-- --·----down-on-the-sidewalk. He did -this--about 12-time~-h~n=+:~as-therce in about-. . 

. ~ . 

. . · ··-:-- .. . . 
.... · ' .. ·, 

. ... . 
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· 30 minutes. I was in the automobile with Mr. Frank . and Mr . . Black and -his 
_ ____ ....... l'"'leg~w.._as shaking. He was under arrest at the time. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I don't know what he w8:s doing in the office. I saw some Q.ther people up 
there· that I' didn't recognize. I was sent to the pencil factory to notice Mr. 
~rank and the pencil factory. I thought Mr. Frank would-be-arrested'--. - -

1---......;_..,-~---" __ J. L-:BEAVERS, sworn for_the_&ate.~ _ · ___ -_ 

I am Chief of police of the City of Atlanta. I was at the pencil factory 
_____ o_n Tuesday, April 29th, and saw what I took .to be a splotch of blood on the 

floor right near this little dressing room on office fl_oor, seemed·-to be as_ big 
as a quarter in the center and scattered out i~ the dir~ction of this room near 
the door. There was one ·spot and some others scattered around that. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I m 
•- know whether- it was blood or not. It looked like blood. 

R. M. LASSITER, Sworn for the State. 

I am a city policeman. On Sunday morning, April 27th, I found a parasol. 
in the bottom of the elevator shaft. , It was lying about the center of the shaft. 
I also found ·a ball of rope twine, small wrapping twine, and ~lso some.thing . 
_that looked like a person's stool. -

· - CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I nQ..ticed evidence ~of d~agging from the elevator in. the basement. As I 
passed the rear door at 12 o'clock, the door wn:s clos_ed_. The umbrella was 
not crushed. I found it between 6 and 7 o'clock in the lnorning:-The elevator 
comes down there and hits. the grot1nd plump at .the bottom of the basemei:it. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 
J . . 

I don't know whether the elevator shaft has ·a cement bottom or not. 
' There_ is a whole lo.t_o.Ltrash at the '19ttom. 

L. o.· GRICE, Sworn for the 'State. · 

My. name is L. 0. Grice. I was -;.,t the National Pencil company's. place on ' 
Sunday morning, April 27th. A small sized man, defendant . here, attracted 
my atte-ntion, on account of his nervousness. . .. 

-·· 

.. .. . · 
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o:aoss BXAMI?fATIO?f. 

I was called as a witness in this case one week ·a.fter it-started. I told 
some -of my friends about Mr. Frank's nervousness and they -advised me to 
go to Dorsey. I never knew or saw Mr. Frank · before. When we were 
told of how the little child was murdered, it excited me some. 

Rll-DIBEOT EXAMINATION. 

I don't recall trembling any. I am pretty sure I didn't because my friend 
that -I went to Opelika witn lla morning suggested that I was.trembling w en 
I went through there, and I told · him I was not. . He was not there when I 
went through the factory and when I told · him about it he sa~d I bet you ~ere 
scared. ·He walked ·around this way a little bit. He was kind of shaking like 
.that (illustrating). His fingers__were trembling.~ 

MELL STANFORD, Sworn for the State (recalled). 

The door in the rear part .. Qf the factory on the second floor on-:-Fr~day · 1-
e.re 1s no way in e rear o e u1 1ng o come own 

to the second floor when · the . door is barred exce.pt tile fire escape, and you 
have to be on office floo_r__to ando the door. The area around the elevator 
shaft on the first floor near the hole and radiator was cle_aned up ·after the 
murder. It was the · early part of the )Veek after the murder . 

CROSS EXAMINATION. . ·--
_ I didn't clean jt myself. I saw -it cleaned. · I passed by, as it was being 

. .. -: . 

cleaned up. 
I/ . 

W. ll. GHEESLING, Sworn for. the State . . 

_ I am a funeral director and· embalmer: I mov.ed the body of Mary Phagan 
at lQ minutes to four o'clock April 27, in the morning. The cord (Exhibit CJ _~-- .. 
State) was around the -neck. 'The knot was on the right side of_ ·the neck and 
was lying kinaof looped around the head. It wasn't v.ery tight at the time I 

• 

• 

- · -inoved it. 'Ph~re- was an itn.press of an eighth of an inch on the neck. The 
rag (Exhibit D-_ State) was aiOun<I her hair and ov~-r her face. The tongue an 
inch and a quarter cmt of her mouth· sticking out. The body .was ric:gi=d=' -=-lo=o=k=i=no.g ___ _ _ 
like it had been dead for some tune. · My opinion is- that she had been dead-
ten or fifteen hours, or probably longer:--The-blood was very much congested. 
The blood had settled in her face becai1seshe was lying on her face. 'Blood 
begins to .settle at death or a _ very few minutes ·after cf~ath .' Afte_r · Dr. Hurt 
examined her nails, I did. I found some dirt . and dust under the nails. ·. I -.. 
disco11ered so*1e, -~ine on her underclothes and there were some · dry blood 
spiot~hes there. · ·The right leg of_. the drawers was · split with a knife or torn e 
right" up the seam .. ·. ·Her .right _eye was very · ~ark; looked like it was hit. · 

. . . 

- · .--·- · --. - --.--
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befo1·e death because it was very much swollen; if it had been hit after .death 
there wouldn't have been any swelling. I found ·a wound 214 in~hes on the 
back of the head. It was made before death because ii bled a great deal. The 
hair was matted with blood and very dry. If it had been made ~f~r. death: 

. there would have been no blood there. There is no circulation after death. 
The skull wasn't crushed; the scalp was broken. The indication was that it 
was· made before death. There was a scar ove1 each eye about the size of a 

·- dime. I didn't notice any s.cratches on her nose. I can't state whether the 
defendant ever looked at the body or not. There was some discharge on her 

~--~---_--=underclothes ,\1iicnwas v eryOry . and 1 1.~helmd-. been deadashort time, 1t -

• 

would have .been wet yet. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I judge the length of time · the corpse had been dead by the rigor mortis. 
This is very indefinite ·af times. It begins before death. If she died of strangu­
lation, I would expeet rigor mortis to be.gin within au hour. I have_never had 
any exp·erience about as a case. of strangulation so as to d·etermine when rigor 
mo~tis began and when it broke. There is no certainty about how Ion a cor se 

. is dead. AlLthe blood was dry when I examined the · body. Mr. · Rogers and . 
~Ir. Black came with l\f r . Frank and asked me to take him back to where the 
girl was. I took them back there, pulled a light, pulled the she~t back, and 
moved the revolving table and walked otit-betweeiM:hem. Mr. Frank was near 
the · right-hand going in. · l\lr. Black was at the left. I took a half gall~n of 
blood from the little-girl's body! enough t.o clear up the face and body. I 
injected one gallon of the formula into the corpse-. - Fm.!lllaldehyde is a cqnstitu-
ent part of the embalming fluid used. I' p·repared the little girl properly for 
burial. There was no mutilation at all on the body. · I judge she died of 
strangulation because the rope was tight enough to choke lier to death ana her 
tongueo efog an 1n~h and a quarter out of the mouth ~ showed she died fro!!!_____ · _ _ 

· strangulation. .. · 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

I don't think the little girl lost much blood.' 

.. . DR. T~LA-UDE Sl\HTii, Sworn for-the · State. 

I am physician and --City Bact~riulogist and Chemist: These chips (~x-
_ _ · _ liibit E-State) appear to be the -specim~~ w~ich the detectives brought 

to my office and which I· examined. They had considerable dirt on ~ and 
some coloring stain. On one of them I found some bloo~ corpuscles. I do not · -
·know whether it was human blood. This shirt (Exhibit E for State) appears 
to be the same shirt brought to my office by detectives which I examined. I 
examined spots and it · showed blood-stain. I got no odor from t~e arm pits 
that it had b~en ·worn~ The blood I yoticed was smeared a little on ~~e inside· i~ _ 
places'.. It didn't elCtend out on th~ outEJide .. The blood on shirt was somewhat 

- - - - --

-- --- ··· --- .. 
I 
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on the inside of the garment high up about the waist line ~hich to my mind 
could not have been produced by turning up the tail. 

_ CROSS· E~AMilii110N. -
l found grit an<l stain on all . ~f the ~hips.',J,~ouldn 't tell the one that I 

found blood on. I did the work iu the ordinary w~ The whole surf~~e of 
the chips was coated with dirt. I couldn't tell whether' the blood stain was 
fresh or old. I have kept blood corpuscles in the labor~tory r several y~ars. · 

;_: . .. 

ounC:lprObalily ree or our ornve blood corpuscles in a fie-td. -I don't know 
how much blood was there. A drop or half drop would have m~used · or even o 

less than that. _ _Rigor mortis begins very soon after d_eath. · Sometim-es tarts 
quicker, but usually starts very soon. I could not say when rigor mortis 
would end. " 

DR. J. Vl. HURT, Sworn for the State. 
' ... 

_ I am .County Physician. I saw the body of l\1ary Phag~n on .Sunday morn-
mg, t .e 27th of April. She had u. scalp· wound on the left · side of her head 
about 21h inches long, about 4 inches from the top to the left ear through the 
scalp to -the s!9J.11. She had a black contused eye. A number of small minor 

. scratches on the face. The tongue was· protruding about a half an inch through 
the 'teeth. There was a wound on the left knee, about 2 inches below the knee. 
There w-erce--8illlle superficial scratches . Qn the -left and right elbow. There was 
a cord around the neck and this cord was inbedded into the skin and in my 

....... ' . . ' 

opinfon she died from strangulation~.' This cord (Exhibi~ '' C '' for State) looks 
like the cord that ·was around her neck. There was swelling o~ the necli-. . - n-­

my opini<:>n the cord was put on before .death. -·The wound on the bac,"k.=ol the 
head seemed to have been made ·with a blunt-edged instr.riment and the blow 
_from down upward. The scalp wound was made before death. It. was ·cal ­
culated 'to produce unconsciousness. The black eye RP.peared to . have been 
-nm-de-by- some soft instrument-in that the skin was not broken. I think the 
scratches on the face were ·made after death. . I examined the hymen. lt was 
not 1ntact. There was blood on the drawers. I discovered no violence to the 
·parts. There .. was blood on fu. _parts. - 1- didn 't know whether · it · was 

-_fse~}l blo_od or menstrual blood. The vagina was a little 'targer than the normal 
_size of a girl of that age. It_ is my. opinion that this .. enlargement of the vagina 
could· have -bmni prodoo.ed .by_ penetration immediately preceding death. - She 
had a normal virgin uterus. She was not pregnant1• · I · made _ n_g_~xamination 
of the blood vessels of the. uterus or womb. 

·oROSa EXAMiN·A.TION. 

The body looke'! a~ · if it }}ad. been dra.gg~d .through . qirt and cinders" It 
· is my impression th.at she was .. dragged. faee forward. If she had fallen on' 

--t-he- gorner of the floor- that was sha-l'p .. e'dged or the ·~orrier of-·- --·--···--.. ~~~ 

-- · .. - · 
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· shaft with an ~dge, it migl1 t have produced the wound. I do not know of the 
Iiind of instrument that produced the woun~. There wa.s no contusion on the 
insi~e of the skull, but the skull wasn't fractured. Neither the brain nor the 
_meningis were affected. There was a iittle contusion on the inner lining of 
the -skull. There was no bleeding on the brain tissues. • i don't know whether 

·- it would produce unconseiousnesS-O.C-not. I was never asked before to examine 
the inside of anybody's skull to determine the fact. whet.her death or uncon-
sciousness resulted from the wound. It is- my impression that this lick did _______ ---· 

- produce unconsciousness, but I won't swear it, I don't know. The hemorrhage 
which we discovered in the skull caused no pressure· on the brain . . That was · 
no sign that unconsciousness · resulted. '\Vhere 8: person is strangled to death 
the lungs ought to show congestion. I never e_~amined this girl's lungs. '\\Then 
I saw the body on April 27th I gave it ~s my opinion that she had been dead •. 
from 16 to 20 hours at 9 o'clock Sunday morning. Rigor mortis was complete. It 
is a very variable thing. I couldn't tell whether the blood on her underclothes 
was menstrual blood or not. The hymen was not intact~ and 'I was not able to 

hymen. The appearance of the blood on the parts was characteristic of a men­
strual fiow. There was no laceration on . the vagina, and n--0-mutilation on 

· tffis girl's body except' those wounds on the face, head and legs. The size of 
the vagina is no- indication of anything except the anatomy and the natural 
build of the person. It is no ind.ication of rape. I found no outward signs . -----~r~~­

of rape. I have formed no opinion whether this little girl was P-aPed-or had . ~ . 
ever had . mtercours~ with anybody. There was no external marks of violence. 
I told Col. Rosser at the Coroner's inquest that this littl~ girl had her monthly 
.period on, ~ut I got. that .from somebody else. I did not conclude that from 
my.examination. · The m<;mthly .period causes some inflam1nat10n ·and congestion . 
~n the blood vessels of the ovaries and uterus. The vagina itself might have · 

s~, different appearance. I was present when Dr. Harris made the post 
morte~amination of this girl. C~bbage is digested better by some people 

~ than others. It depends on the individual very much . . It is considel!OO- hard 
to di~est. It d'ep~s la~·gely on ~astication. · You ~an. chew u~ so thoroughly 
that it would go· down mto the stomaeh-ahnost a hqmd,-b-ut- 1t would not be 
digested until the s~te&k-uf)--t1lat--ehewed mass. It would .take a much 
longer time to digest and a~Jl!ilate unmasticated cabbage than if it had been 
thoroughly chewed. It takes ab'Out ?1/2 ho~rs to digest cabbage properly masti-

. cated, and it would tak~ longer if th~capbage had been taken into the stomach 
actually or practically whole. Digestion._c.ontinues partially in unconscious-

. . ' . 
nes~. It is a ·guess ~o say whether the girl was conscious Qr not. I would not 
undertake to give an opinion how long she remaine~nconscious. I would not 

. . I . 

undertake to· give an opinion and don 'Lkno_w_of_any way .. of telling ten days 
after death how long a distended condition of the vagina e'Xiated before death . 

. . . .. 
·--...__ . . 

, .. 
-r·,· .· ... · . 

... 
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Q .. DIJtBOT BXAMINATIOH. 

I could not detect the hymen from a digital and occular examination. Or­
dinary normal menses would produce a dilation of the blood vessels in the 
womb. The blood, flowing- over the hymen I think would produce a little in­
flammation at the hymen, but if the hymen was broken down"}L don't know 
that menstruation w~uld have any ~ffect upon the hymen. If the menstruation 

....,...----- --- -..-.-....-..-about off, then I would say that any undue excitement might produce the 
flow again, or increase the flow that was already there. The contents of this 

--. ~ - --bottle -didu 't -(Exhibit ''ff' -State), stay in -the -stomacl~yY1011,.....g-. - --

/ 

RB-CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I wouldn't underta){e to say l_1ow long that cabbage (Exhibit "G"-State) 
had been in the child's stomach. blow on the back of the head might 

. -

blacken one or both eyes. 

RB-DIRECT B:X:AMINATION.· 

it would cause any· disco~ottation of the walls of the vagina except frollLthe 
blood." . ~ 

DR. H. F. HARRIS, Sworn for the State. 

I am a practicing physician." I ll)ade- an examination of the body of Mar~' 
- --- ---,.-, -. - - Phagan on May ·5th. On removing the skull I found there was no actual break 

- ~ 

-Of the skull, buta·-1ittle hemmorhage under the skull, corresponding to the 
point where the blow had been delivered, ·which shows that the blQ~ was hard 
enough to have made .the person unconscious. This wound on the head was 
not sufficient to have caused death. I think beyond any question she came to 

-her death .from strangulation from tbis cord being wound around her neck. The· 
bruise around the eye was caused by _a soft instrument, because it d~n 't show 
the d~gree of contusion that would have -_been produ~ed by a hard instru­
ment. The outside cuticle of the skin wasn't broken. The injury-to the eye 

' -. and scalp were caused before death. I examined the contents of the stomach, 
~nding 160 cubic centimeters of cabbage and b~scuit, or wheaten J>r·ead. It had 

.. ·progressed ve1·y- slightly towards digestion. - It is· impossible for one- to. say 
absolutely how long this cabbage had-been in the stomach, but I feel-Confident 

--~-~-----that she _was..e.ither killed or ·received the-blow on tbe·-back of the .head - w~th~­

a half hour-after she finished ·her meal. ~ have some cabbage here from two 
normal persons. Here was same meal taken ofc abbage and wheaten bread ·by 
two men ·of normal stomach, and c~mtents takeu out within an hour. We f<>und . 

. there was very little cabbage left. I made an· examination- of the privates 

. of Mary Phagan. I found no spermatQZOa. On "the walls of t.he vagina t"bere 
· .. -was evidencea of violence of·.some kind·. The epitheleum was pulled loose, comp 

· ., ..... pletely detache~ in _placeiJ, blood ve.seels were dilated_ inunediately beneath ·the -

/ ·. · .. \ 

·· ~· 

_· __ ._ 
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surface and a great deal of hemorrhage in the surrounding tissues. l'he dila­
- ·- tion of the blood vessels indicated to me that the injury had been made in the 

.. ,. 

· 1 vagina some little time before death. Perhaps ten to fifteen minutes. It had 
occurred before death by reason of the fact that · these blood vessels were 
dila_ted. In~am.mation had set in and it takes an appreciable length of time 
for the process of inflammatory change to begin. There was evidence of vio­
lence in the neighborhood of the hyme11. Rigo1· mortis varies-80 -mmtl1 _that 

--,,-~~---'-----~-:--

it is not accurate to state how long after death it sets in. It may hegin in a ew 
minutes and may be delayed for h~urs. · I could not state ft;om the examiuation __ ==~~_..:.....--=---=--=----= 

::...::......--- - howiong l\ifary-P-ha-gan was dying. It is my opinion that she lived fro>n ·a liaif 

e. 

to three-quarters of an hour after she ate her meaJ. 'rhe evidence of violenet• . 
in the vagina had evidently be~n done just before death. 1'he fact that the 
child was strangled to deat.h was indic~ted by the lividit~ , the blueness of the -
parts, the congestiou of the tongtw and mouth and the blueness of the ha.nds 
and fingernails. The lung·s had the peculiar appearance which is always pro­
duced after embalming when formaldehyde is used. l am of the. opinion that 
the wound on the bark of the lwad could not have been produccYbJ this stick 
(Exhibit 48 of Defendant). I made a mjcroscopic exa.minati_on of the vagina ~-

I gem en o e u erus, ut 
not of the vagina. Jn my opinion th_e menses could not have caused- a·ny dila­
tion of the blood vessels and discoloration of the walls. From my-<>wn experi­
ments I find that the behavior of the stomach after taking a small meal of cab­
bage and bread is practically the- same as taking some biscuit and wu ter alone. 
I examined ¥ary Phagan 's stomarh. It was normal in size, normal i~1 positiou. 
and normal in every particular. I made a microscopic examination of the 
contentS'"in Mary Phagan 's r.ase. It showed plainly that it had not begun to dis­
solve, or only to a very slight degree, and indicated that the process of digestion 
had n~t gone on to .any extent at the time that this girl was ren·dered uncon­
scious . . l found that the -starch she had eaten had undergone practically no 
~Iteration. The contents taken from th~ little girl's stomach· was examined 

· chemicaliy and flie result showed that there were only slight traees of the first 
· · action of the digestive juices-on the starch. It was plainly evident that none of 

the material had gone into t.he smal1 intestines. As soon as food is put in the 
stomach the beginning of the secretion- of the hydrochloric acid is found. It 

. -- --- -·- _is from the quantity of this a_cid that the stomach s0eretes that doctors judge . 
.. ---- - \!;--- the state and degree · of digestion. In this case tlie acid had not . been secreted- .. 

I ' 

I 
.. · ·!· ·· ···, . . 

in. such an excess that any of it had become what we call free. In this 
case the _amount of ~cid in this girl's ·stomach was combined. and was 32-

- degrees. · Ordinarily in a normal stomach at the end of an hour it runs from 
50 to 70 or 80. I fpund none of the pancreatic juices in the stomach which 
are .l.l~:t!aliy found, ~bout .an hour after digestion starts. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I . don'~ remember· when Mr. Dqrsey first talked to me about making thfs 
autopsy. As long as th~ . heart was beating you . could have put a pi.ece of rope 

, .. . 

-~ ._. _,___ 
• '•• • ' I • 

:> . 
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al'ound the neck of this little girl and· produced tbe same :results as- I fuuod-. · 1 · 
took about. five or six ounces altogether out ·.of the stomach. It was all used 
up 1n mafilngl ny experiments. I know of no ·experiments made as to the ~ffect 
of gastric juices .where the patient is dead. The juices of the body after death 
g1•adually evaporate. The chemical ana-lysis of each -cabbage varies, Iiot only 
in the plant but from the way it is cooked. It is a very vague matter as to 
what influences may retard digestion. Every individual is almost a law unto 
himself. To a certain extent chfferent vegetables affect different stomachs 
different ways, but the average normal stomach digests anything that is eaten 

--------==-=·-~----=--=-=-=~w~ithin ·reason. Some authorities claim that exercise -will retard digestion. I 

-, 

don't know that ·mental activity would have very much e.ffect in retarding 
· the digestion. It is the generally acc~pted opinion that food begins to-pass out 
of the stomach through the pyloris in about a half an hour. A great many 
things pass out of the stomach that are not digested. The juices of the stomach 

-------~make no change in them. The· stomach does not emulsify a solid. I never 
knew a normal man who coulcl digest a. solid. · The ·science of digestion fa 
rather a modern thing. I did not call in any chemist in making this examina­
tion. · I said it was impossible for any one to say absolutely how long. the cab-

age a en_m , 
within a minute or five minutes, but I say it was somewhere between one-half 
an hour and three-quarters. I am certain of that. · Of course, if digestfou 
had been delayed this time element would change. The violence to the private · 
parts might have been produced by the finger O!' by other means, but I found 
evidence of viol~nce. ·It takes a ra_ther considerable knock to tear epithelium 
off to the extent that bleeding would occur. I founa the epithelium com-
pletely detached in places and in other places it was not det~ched. A digital 
examination· means putting the finger in. The swelling and dilation. of the 
blood vess.els could be seen only with a microscope . . - It .is impossible· to -~ay l~ow 
much they were . swollen. A scalp wound is very prone to bleed. 

C. B. DALTON, Sworn for the State. 

I know Leo M. Frank, Daisy-- Hopkins, and Jiin Conley. I ~ave visited · 
the National Pencil 9ompany three, four or _five ti~nes. I have · been in the 
office· of Leo M. Frank two or three times. I have been down in the basement. 
I don't know whether Mr. Frank kn~w .1. was in ·the bas~~ent or not, but he 
knew I was there . . I saw Conley there and the night watchman, and he was 
not Conley. There. would be some ladies in Mr. Frank's- office. Sometim~s 
there would -be two, am! sometimes one. May be they didn't work in the 
mornings and they would be there in the evenings: 

CROSS EXAMINATIO!J. -

• 

.. \-r:-· · . I .don't rec.?_llec~ the .first time".! wa~. in :Mr. Frank's office. · It w~ last 
. \- fall. I have been down there o.ne time this year but Mr. Frank wasn't there. 

It was Saturda)' . ev.ening. I . wep.t_ irt there with Mi~s ·Daisy Hopkins. I saw • 
' · 

[\_ .. . 
. ,:_": ". . ... 
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some parties in the office but I don't know them. -They were ladies. Some-, . -

times there would be two and sometimes m_ore. I don't know whether it was 
the stenographer or not. I don't recollect the next time I saw . him in his 
office. I ·never saw any gentlemen but Mr. Frarik intlme. Every time 
I was in :Mr. Frank's office was before Christmas. . Miss Daisy Hopkins intro­
duced me to him. I saw Conley there one time this year and several times 
on Saturday evenings. l\1r. Frank wasn't there the last time. Conley- w-as 
sitting, there at the front <loor. _ 'Vhen I 'vent down the ladder :Miss Daisy 
went with me. We went _back by the trash pile in the basement. I sa1 · 
an ol<l cot and a stretcher. I have been in Atlanta for ten years. J have never 
been away over a week. I saw 1\fr. Frank about two o '_clo~k. in the afternoon. 

- --
There was no curtains drawn in the .office. It was very light in_ there. I went 
in the first office, near the stairway. The night watchman I spoke of · was~---­

- negro .. I saw him about the first of January. I saw .a~neg.1•g :uight watclunan 
there between September and Decemb'er. I lived in "\Vlllton County for. wen y 

. years. · I came right here from 'Valton ··c~mnty. I was absent from Walton 
County once for two or three years and ·lived. in Lawrenceville; I have walked 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

I gave Jim Conley a half dozen or more quarters. I saw Mr. Frank in hie 
office in the day time. Mr. Frank had Coca-Gola, lemon and lime and beer in 
the office . . I never saw the ladies in his office doing any writing. 

,...,· .RECALLED FOR CROSS EXAMINATION. 

Andrew Da-lton-- is my brother_-iii-law. John Dalton is a fir~t c~usin. I 
am the Daltmrthat went to the-chain gang for stealing in 'Valton County in 
1894. We all pleaded guilty. 'rhe otpers paid out. I don't know how long I 
served.. I stole a shop hamll).er. That was in ~ase No. L. There were three 
. cases and tbe sentences were concurrent. One of the other Daltons stole a 
plow and I don't know what the other one stole. I was witht hem-. - 111 1899 at 
the February term of 'Va:lton Superior Court I was indicted for helping: steal 
bale of co~ton. In Gwinnett Courity ~ was ·p):ose.<luted ·for · stealing corn, but I 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

It has been 18 i>i• 20 years since I have been in trouble. I was drunk with 
the two Dalton boys when we got into thaf hammer and· plow stock scrape. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. · · 

I_ don't know whether. I was indicted in 1906 in \Va~ton County for selling 
. liq~o~. J ~now Dan ~illnian and I ·know Bob Harris. I don't ki1ow whether 

. ... 

ei · I w~s indjcted -~or - ~~Hing liquor to . them or not. - - - ----
i=====---

) 

J 
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RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION._ _ 

l\fiss· Daisy_ liopkins kr1ows Mr. Frank. I have seen her talking to him 
and she told me about it. . ~ 

S. L. ROSSER, sworn for the State. 

I am a .city policeman. On .Monday, April 28th, ~ went out to see Mrs. · 
\Vhite. On May 6th or 7th was the first time I knew Mrs. 'Vhite claimed to 
have seen a negr9 at the fac~ory on April 26th. These are the same chips we 

-had at factory. The club was-no-t-o·H4lear-by elevator-th~d-ay-l-searched-t-he 
place . . 

1
1 had a ·flash . light and searched · for everythi_ng. I would have seen 

it had it been there. · 

CROSS EXAMINATION . .. 

I made no iµquiry of her about this before. She volunteered the inf or~ 
mation when I came out the second time. 

I had a little conversation ~vi th · :rvh'-.-Frank-()ll li,rid~y, the 25th of April. 
He wanted me to come to the pencil factory that Friday ·morning that he had 
some work on the third floor he wanted me to do. All right, I will talk louder. 
Friday evening about three o'clock Mr. Frank came to the fourth floor ·where 

::___ _______ _ I was working and said he wanted me to come to the pencil fa~tory on Sat-
day morning at 8 :30; -that he had some work for me to do on the second floor. 
I have been working . for the pencil company a little over two years. Yes, 

·I had gone back there that_ way for ·Mr. Frank before, when he asked me to 
come back. I got to the ·pencil factory about 8 :30 on April 26th. Mr. Frank 
and me. got to the door at the same time. l\Ir. Frank walked on the i~si~e 
and I walked beh~nd him and he says to me, "Good morning," and I says, 
''Good morning, Mr. Frank.'' ~e says, ''Yo.!!_ are ~ little early this . morn­

__ ing," .and Lsays, "No, sir, I am not early." He says, "Well, you are a little 
_early-to do w.hat I wanted you to do for.me, I want you to watch for me like 
you have b~~n doing the rest of the Saturdays.'' I always .stayed on th~ 
first flourlike I stayed the ·26th of April and watched for Mr. Frank, while 
he ~nd a young lady wo~ld be upon the second floor chatting, ] don ~t kiiow 

- what they were doing. He only tol~ .. me they wanted to chat. When young 
la~ies would come there, I would sit down. at the first floor and .. 

0
watch the door 

·for him. I couldn't exactly tell how many times I have watched the door for · 
him · previous to April 26th, it has been several times that· I~ watched for him. 
I don't know who would be there . when I watched for him, but there would 
be another young man'-. another young .lady during. the. tl~e- 1.-.was at the 
door. · A lady for him and one for Mr. Frank. Mr. Frank was alone there 
once,_ th·at w88 Thanksgiving day . . I watched ·for him~ . ·-Yest ~ wo~an_. · came 

. . .. . - - -: .~-~-

. 
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there'rhanksgiving day, she was a tall, heavy . built lady. I stayed down 
there ~nd watched the door just as he tol~ me the last time, April 26th: He 
told me when the lady came he would stomp and let me know that was the 
one and for me to lo~k the door. Well, after the ·lady came and he stomped 
for me, I went and locked the door as he said: He tOJ.d me when he got 
-thro~_gh with the lady he would whistle and for me then to go and unlock 
the ·door. That was last 1,hanksgiving day, 1912. On April 26th~ me and 
l\ir. Frank met at the door. He says, '' "\Vhat I want you to do is to watch 
for me to-day as you did other Saturdays,'' and I says, ''All right.'' I said, 

- ----,.-,,----- - ---

" l\Ir. Frank, I want to go to the Capital City Laundry to see my mother," 
and he said, ''By ·the tim~ you go tQ . the laundry and come back to Trinity 

· · Avenue, stop at the corner of Nelson and F?rsyth Streets until I _go to Mon­
tags. '' I don't know exactly what time I got to the corner of Nelson and 
Forsyth Streets, but I came there sometime between 10 and · 10 :30. I saw 
:Mr. Frank as he passed by me., I was standing on the corner, he was coming 
up Forsyth Street toward Nelson Street. He was going to l\Iontag 's factory. 
While I was there on the corner he said, ''Ha, ha, you are here, is yer. '' And . 
I sa s "Yes sir I am ri ht here Mr. · Frank." . He says, "Well, wa1t until 
I go to Mr. Sig's, I won't be very long, I '11 be right back.' ' I says, ''All 
·right, Mr. Frank, I '11 be right here.'' I don't know how long he stayed at 
·Montag 's. He didn't say anything when he came baclc from Montag 's, but 
told me to come on. Mr: Frank came· out Nelson Street and down Forsyth 
Street toward the pen~il fac!_ory and I followed right -behind. - As we passed 

- - up there the grocery storeL Albertson Brothers, a young man was up there 
with ·a· ·paper sack ·getting some stuff out of a box ·on the sidewalk, and 
he ha_d his little baby standing by .the side of him, and jus~ as Mr. Frank 
passed by him; I was a little behind Mr. Frank, and Mr. Frank said something 
to me, and _ by him looking .back at me ~nd saying something to me, he hit up 
against the man's 'ba-by-,----and the ma-li-turned around and look~d to se~ 'vho 
it was, and he looked directly in my face, but I never did catch tlm idea what 
:Mr. Frank said. Mr. Frank ·stopped at Curtis' Drug Store, corner l\Iitchell 

__ltnd Forsyth. Streets, went into the soda fountain. He came out _. and wen+---­
straight on to t.he. factory, me right behind him. _,Vhen we got. to· the factory 
_we _b?th went" on the inside. and l\lr:-Frank stopped me at ·_the door and 
when he stopped me at the door he put his hand on the door and turned the 
door and says: "You see, you turn the knob just like this and there can 't 
nobody come in from the outside,'~ and I says, ''AH right.'' and I walked 
back to a little box back ti1er-e by the trash barrel: He told me to push 
the box up againsrrtre- trasb--barre] and sit~ on it, and he says, "Now. there 
will be a you~g lady up her.e after awhile, and me and her are going to cha! 
a little, " and he says, "Now. when the lady comes. I will stomp like I !ii-9 

. before," and he says, "That will be the lady, and you go and shut the door, " 
·and I says, "All right,· sir." And . he says, "Now, -When I whistle I will be· 
through', ·so you can go and unlock the . door and you ·come up~tairs to my · 
office then like_· y"ou -were· going'"' Ur · borrow some-money for me and that will 

. ..-". 
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-~-:-give-t~~g-lady-time- to~t-oot. ' ' I sa_ys~ll--i-i-ght, I will do just as 
you -say; " and I did as he said. Mr. :£i1rank hit me a .little blow on ·my chest 
and says, "Now, whatever you do, don't let Mr. Darley see you." I says, 
''All right, I won't let him see me. ' ' TE.en ]\fr. Frank went upstairs ~nd he 
said, ·"Remember to keep your eyes open," and I says, "All right, I will, 
Mr. Frank." .And I sat there on the box and that was the last I seen of Mr. 
Frank until up in the day sometime. The first pe1•son I saw that morning 
after I got in there was :i\lr. Darley he went upstairs. The next person was 
Miss Mattie Smith, she · went' on upstairs, .then I saw her come down from 
upstairs. Miss l\iattie walked to the door a.nd stopped, and Mr. Darley comes 
on dowri to the ·C1oor where l\iiss l\Iattie was, and he says, "Don't you worry, 
1 will see that you get that next Saturday.' ' And--Miss -:-Muttie- came on rdut 
· and went up Alabama Street and ~Ir. Darley went back · upstairs. Seemed · 
like M.iss :Mattie was crying, she was wiping her eyes when she was stand-
ing down.,there. This was be-foi·e I went to Nelson anci Forsyth Streets. After _ _ _ ___,__ 
we got back from Montag Brothers, the first _person I saw come along was 
a lady . that worked on the fourth floor, I don ~w her name. She 

drayman, he went on upstairs. He was a peg-legged fellow, real dark. 
'J.'he next I saw this ·ne2ro and Mr. Holloway coming back . down the steps. 
·Mr. Holloway was putting on his ·glasses and had a bill in his bands, 
and he went out towards the wagon on the sidewalk, then l\ir. Holloway 
came back up the steps, then aft.er ·Mr. Darley· came ·down and left, l\'Ir. Hollo­
'vay came down and left. Then this lady that -w-0.rk.ed on the fourth floor 

____ came down and left. The next person I saw coming there was l\lr. Quinn. 
He went upstairs, stayed. a little while and then came down. The next 
person that I saw was Miss Mary Perkins, that's what I call her, this lady 
that is dead, I don't know_her name. After slie went upstairs I heard her 
footsteps going towards the office and after slie went in the office, I heard· two 
.people. walkjng out of the 9ffi.ce and· going like they were coming down the 
steps, but they didn't come down the steps, they went back towards 
.the metal department. .After they went back there., I heard the lady scream, 
then I didn't hear no more, and the next person I saw coming in there was 
l\Iiss Monteen Stover. She had on a pai~ of tennis .sh:oes and a rain coat. 
She stayed there a pretty good while, it wasn't so very long either. She 

·-came baek down the steps . and left. - After she came back down the steps and 

, 

left, I heard somebody from the metal department come running ""'"""'"""""--"-"'~""--------­
upst-a-irs,-on their tiptoes, then ·I heard ~somebody tiptoeing back. towards the 
metal department. After that I kin do f-dozecl-i>ffand went -to -sleep. Next 
thing I knew Mr, Frank was up over my heall stamping ·and then I went 
and locked the door, and sat on the box a ·little while,- and the next thing I 
heard was- :Mr. Frank whistling. I don't know how many minutes it · was 

. after that I heard hiin whistle. When I heard· him whistling I went .. and 
unlocked 'the door just like he said, a.nd went on up the :steps. Mr. ·Frarik 
i"vas. -stiilidfug up ·there'. at -the -top ·of ~e- st~ps 'and 'shivering -and trembli 

. ... .. 
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and i·ub.bing his hands like this. He had fl little rope in his_ hands-a long 
wide piece of cord. His eyes were large and they looked right .funny. He 

_looked funny out ·of his .eyes: His face was red. Yes, he had a co..rd in _his 
hands just like this here cord. After I got up to the top of the steps, he asked 
me, "Did you see that little girl who passed here just a while ago 1" and 
I told him I saw one come along there and she come back again, al_ld then 
I saw another one come. along there and she hasn't come back down, and he . 
says, ''Well, .that one you say didn't. come back down, she came into my 
office awhile ago and wanted to kn"ow something about her work in my office 
and I went back there to see if the little girl's work had come, and I wanted 
to be with the little girl, and she refused me, and I struck her and I guess I 
struck· her too hard and she rel1 and hit her head against something, and I 
don't· know how bad she got hurt. Of course you know I ain't built ...... I....,1k..-e ____ _ 
other m~J!. ~he reason he said that was, I had seen him in a position I 

- ---tJ'H!ta...._v,.....en 't seen any other man that has got chil~~en. I have seen him in the 
office two or three times before Thanksgiving and a lady was in his office, 

. .. 
. I 

. . , ... 

. - ·-~·-•: 
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an she was s1ttmg own in a c ia1r an s ie ia er c ot ies up to ere, an 
he was down on his k~e~s, and she ha '-her hands on l\fr. Frank. I have seen : 
·him another time there in the packing room with a young lady lying on · 
the table, she was on the edge of the table when I saw her). He asked ~e 
if I wouldn't go .back thers and bring her up so that he cou~d put he1~ some­

___ where, and he said to hurry, that there would be money in. it for me . . When 
I canie back there, I found the lady lying flat of her back with a rope around 
her neck. The cloth was ~lso tied a1·ound her neck and 'part of it was unde~ 
her head like to catch blood. I noticed the clock after I went back there 
and found the lady was dead and came back and told him1 The clock was 
four ·minutes to one. - She - was- d.ead when I 'vent back there and I came 
back and told Mr. Frank the girl was d-ead· and he said ''.Sh-Sh ! '' . He told . 
me to go back there QY the cotton box, get a piece of .cloth, pnt it around her­
and bring her up. I didn't hear what :Mr. Frank s·aid, and I came on up there 
.to hear what lte said. He was standing on the top of the steps, like- he was 
going dow.n the steps, and while I was back in the metal depart.men~ I _ didn ~t 
unaerstand what he said, and I came on back there to . understand wha.t he. 
did say, aµd he said to go and get a piece of cloth to put around her, . and I 

, -Went-and looked a:round the cotton box and got a piece of cloth- and went ·back 
there. The girl was -lying flat o;n her-back and her hands were out thjs .way . 
.J put ·both of her hands down easily, and rolled her up in the cloth and taken 

.. 

the cloth .andf tied her up, and s arted- to pick her up, and I looked bac~-------~-­
. a littl~ distan~~nd saw her hat and piece of ribbon laying down -and .. her 

·~lippers and I -t~ken them and put them all in the cloth and I ran my right 
· arm through the cloth and tried to bring it up on my shou.Ider. . The cloth 
. was tied just like a person that was going to give out clothes on l\~onday', 

. .they ·get the clothes and put them on t.he inside of a s4eet and take .eacl 
c_o~ner and -tie the four cprners tog.eth~r, arid ·I ·run· my _right ·arm through 

~-----;-- the _cloth after I tied. it that way an went to put1 t on my _shoulder, and I 
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found I couldn't ·get it· on my shoulder, it wa~ hea,vy and I carried it on my 
arm th~ best I could, and when I got away from the little dressing,.room that 
was in the· metal department, I let her· fall, and I was scared and I kind 

_of jumped, and I said, ''Mr. Frank, you will have to help me with this girl. 
- ----------'-she is eavy ~ an e come an<l caught her by the fee.t and I laid hold of her 

by the shoulders, and when we got her that way I was backing and Mr. Frank 
had her by the feet, and Mr. Frank kind of put her on me, he was nervous and 
trembling, and after we got up a piece from where we got her at, he let her 
feet drop and then he piclrnd her up and we went on to the ele..vator, and 
he_ pulled down on one of the cords and the elevator wouldn't go, an~ he 
said, ''Wait, let me go in the office and . get the key, ' ' and he went in the 
office and got the key and come pack and unlocked the switchboard and the 
elevator went down to the basement, and we carried her out...and I opened th·e 
doth and rolted her out there on the floor, and :Mr. Frank turned around and 
went on up t_he la<lder, and I noticed he~· hat and slipper and 

1
piece of ribbon 

and I said. '':Mr. Frank, what am I going to do with these things 1 ''and he said, 
,, 

·front of the .boiler, and after Mr. Frank had left I goes on over to the elevator 
and he said, ''Come on up and I will catch you on--Ure-first-floor,'' and I got 
on the elevator and started it ·to the first floorL and Mr. Frank was running ' .. 
up there. He didn't give me time to stop the elevator, he was so nervous 
and trembly, and before the e_levator got to the top of the first floor Mr. ·Frank 
made the first step onto the elevator and by the elevator being . a little down 
Jike 'that, he stepped down ~n it and hit_ me quite a blow rigl~t over about 
my chest and that jammed me up against the elevator and when- we got near 
t.he second floor he tried · to step off before it got to the . floor and his foot -
caught on the second floo~ as he was stepping off and . that made him stumble ·· 
and he fell back sort. of against me, and he goes on and takes the keys back 
to lifs office and leaves the box unlocked. I followed him into his private · 
office and I sat down anq he commenced to rubbing his . hands and began to . 
rub back his hair and after awhile he got up and said, "Jim," and I didn't 

- say nothing, and all at once he happened to look out of the do()r and there 
was somebody coming, and he said. ' .'...My God, here ·is Emma Clarke and Corin­
thia Hall,'' and he -sa1d ''Come _over here Jim, I have got to put you in this 
wardrobe, and he 'put me· in this . wardrQb_e. a:r;id I stayed there a ·good while and 
they come in there and I lreard them go oi(t. and M·r. Frank come there and 
said, ·"You are in a tight place," and I said "Yes," and_ he said "You done 

. very well.'' So after . they went out and he had stepped in the hall and had 
: ."" · ·· ~ome back he let me out of the wardrobe, and he said "Y~u sit down," and I 

went and sat down, a·nd Mr. Frank sat down. But the chair he had was too little 
for him .or too big fo~ him or · it w~sn 't far . enough back "Or something. He 
reached on the table to get a box of cigarettes and a box .of matches and he . . . . . . . . ' 

• 
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takes a cigarette and a match and bands me the box of cigarettes and I lit O.t?-e 
and went to smoking and I handed him back the box of cigarettes, and he put 
it back in his pocket and then he took them out again and said, "You can have 
these," and I put them in· my pocket, and then he said, "Can you write~" and 
I said, ''Yes, sir, a little bit,'' and he taken his ·pencil to fix up some notes. 

· l was willing to do anything to help .Mr. Frank because he was a white man 
and my superintendent, and he sat dowri and I sat down at the table and Mr. 
Frank dictated the notes to me. Whatever it was it did~ 't seem to suit him, and 
·he told me to turn over and write again, and I turned the paper and wrote 
again, and when I done that he told me to turn over again and I turned over 
again and I wrote ori the next page there, and he looked at that and kind of 
li-ked-i-t- a-nd he said that was all right. Then he reached over and got another 
piece of paper, a green piece, and told me what to write; He took it and laid. it 
on his desk and looked at· me smiling and rubbing his hands, and then he 
pulled out a nice little roll of greenbac~s, and he said, ''Here is $20~nd I 
taken the money and looked at it a little bit and I said, "Mr. Frank, don't 

watchman because I will pay him myself,'' 
- and he said, ''All right, I don't see what you want to buy a w~tch for either, 

that big fat wife of mine wanted me to buy an automobile an~ I wouldn't 
do it." And after awhile Mr. Frank looked at me and said, "You go down 
there in the basement _and you take a lot of trash and burn that package that's 

.· . 

in front of the furnace,' ' and I told him all right. But I was -afraid tQ g~-----------'-­
<lown there by· myself, and Mr. ·Fra.nk wouldn't go down there with me. · He 
said, " 'l'here 's no need of my going down there," and I said, "Mr. Frank, 
you are a white_ man ·and you done it, and I am not going down there and · 
burn that myself.-" He looked at me th.en kind of frightened and he said 
"Let me. see that money" and he took the money back and put it back in .his 
pocket, and I s~id, ''Is this the way you do things?'' and he said, ''You keep 
your mouth shut, that is all right. 1 ' Anol\ifr. Frank turned around in his 
chair and looked at the money and he looked back at me and folded his 
hands and looked up and said "Why should I hang? I have we_althy 
people in Brooklyn,'' and he looked down when he said that, and I looked ... . 
_up at him, and he was looking up. at the · ceiling, and I said, "Mr. Frank, what- · -· .__ 
· about · me?'' and ·he-said, ''That's all right, don't you worry about this thing, 
you just come ·back to work Monday like you don't know anything, and .keep 
your mouth shut, if you get caughH~vill gctyot1 out on- bC}nd-anuend...-¥.o.u 
a way,'' and he said, ''Can you come back this evening and do it?'' and I said 
"Yes, -that J....,. was com-ing- J;o get. my money. " He said, "Well, I am going 
home. to get dinner and you come back here fo about forty minutes ·and I will 

· fix the money,'' and .I said, ''How will I get in 1'' and he said, ''There will be 
a place for you to . get in all right-, but.J are not coming bBtck let me 
know, and I will ta-ke those things and put them ·down with the body," and · ~-.:--'---:,----­
said, . i 'Alf right, I will be back in about forty minutes.'' ·Then I went · down 
over tp the beer saioon acros~ the street and I took_the __ ciga~et.tes out _ of the 

·in there ·and I took that out and there was two 

.... 
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. paper dollar bills in there and two silver quarters and I took a drink, and 

. then I bought me a double header and drank it and I looked around at another 
colored fellow standing there and I asked him did he want a glass of~· 
and he said "No," and I l?oked at . the clock and it said t~enty minutes ;-o 
two and the man in ther~ asked me was I goiug h9me, and I said, ''Yes,'' and 
I walked south on Forsyth Street to l\litc~eij _and :Mitchell to Davis, and I said 
to the fellow that was 'vith me, ''I am going back to Peters Street,'' and a · 
Jew across the ·treet that I owed a dime to called me ~nd asked me about it 
and I paid him that dime; Then I went on over to Peters Street and stayed ---~-­
.there-a.while Then I went home and I taken fifteen cents out of my pocket 
and gav:e a little girl a .nickle to go .and get some ·sausage and then I gave her 

___ __ _...a .dime to go and get -som.e ·wood, and she- stayed se-loog that when she 
came back I said, "I will cook this sausage and eat it and .go back to Mr. · 

· Frank's,'' and I laid down across the bed and went to sleep, and I didn't get 
--- ~p--no more until half past six o'clock that ·night, that's the last I saw of Mr.-

Frank that · Saturday. I saw .him next t~me on 'l,uesday on the fourth _floor 
. when I was sweeping. He walked up and ·he said, ''Now .remember, keep 

c;, 

. " . '' " ' 
. ' ' ' . ' 

on Saturdayand done what I told you to do wit.h it down there, there worildn 't 
have been no trouble.'' This conversation took plac_e between ten and eleven 
o'clock Tuesday. Mr. Frank k!lew I. could write a little bit, because he 
always gave me tablets up there at the office so I could write down what kind 
of bo~es we had and I would give that to l\Ir. Frank down at his office and 
that's the way he knew ·r could ~vrite . .- I was arrested on Thursday, May 1st, 
Mr. Frank told me just what to write on· those notes .there. That is the same pad 

- - he told-me to---wi-ite on (State's Exh"ibit A). The girl's body was lying some~ 
· where along there about No. 9 on that· picture (State's Exhibit. A). I d1~opped 
.her somewhere along No. 7.. We ot on elevator on the second floor. The 
:box that l\ilr. Frank .unlocked was right around here on sidJ of elevator. - He· 
told me to come back' in about forty minutes .to_fto that burning. l\ir. Frank 
went . in the office. and got the key to unlock the elevator.. The notes were 
fixed up in ,Mr. Frank's private office. +-neve-r did lmew---whai-became. of the 
.notes. -I left home that morning. about 7 or 7 :30. I notided the clock -when I went 
.fr()Jll the factory to go tp Nelson and Forsyth .Streets, the clock was in a beer . 
saloon Qn the corner of Mitchell Street. It said 9 minutes after "10. l don't 

. --- --?< 

-:- .know-the name of the woman who was with Mr~ Frank oil Tha_!1ksgiving day. 
I know the .man's name was Mr. Dalton. When I saw Mr. Fral;lk coming 
towards-the-fa<Jtory Saturday morning he had on-his-raincoat and his usual · 
suit of clothes an~ an umbrella. Up to Christmas I used to run the elev~tor, · 
·.then they put me on the .fourth ~oor to clean up. I cleaned up twice a week 
on the ·first .floor under l\ilr.- Hollow~y's directions: The .lady . I saw_~i~ __ Mr. 

-. · Frank's office Thanksgiving day was a _tall built lady, heavy weigh_t, she was 
nice looking, and she had on a blue · looking .d1•ess witli white dots in it and 
a .grayisb-lookiqg coat with kind of tails to it . . The coa.t Wat!' .. open .like ·that ·. 

~-------.and . .she had Qn white slippers an.d stoCk-i On Than .. 

---- --· 
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F:rank told me· t.o c·ome to his office. l have neve1• seen any cot or ·bed down __ 
in the ·basement. I refused Jo write for the-police-tie first time. ~I tolcfthem 
I couldn't write. 

-- CROSS EXA·MINATION. 

I am 27 years old. The last Job I had was working for Dr. Palmer. I 
worked for him a year and a half. I work-ed---be-fore--ihat for Orr Stationery 
Company for --three or four __ J110nths Before that I lrorked-f~--- S. Gordon. 
Before that I worked for Adams \Vo.odward and Dr. llon.ey_well. Got my first 
job ·eleven years ago with l\lr. S. 1vI. Truitt. Next job w~s with W. S. Coates. 
I can't spell his name. I can't read and write good. I Can't read the news­
papers good. No, sir; I d~n 't read the newspaper. I never do, I have tried, 
I found I couldn't ----and I.quit. I can't read a pap~r right through. I can't 
go right straight down throu.gh t.he page, and thac·s the reason I don't read 
newspapers, I can't get any sense out of them. There is some ·little letters lik~ 
"dis" and "dat" that I can read. 'rhe other things I don't understand. No, 
I can't spell "Dis" :and "dat ". Yes,· I can spell "school,'' I can't spell "collar, " 
I canspeTI shirts.'' I can spell ''shoes,'' and ''hat.'' I spell ''cat'' with 
a. can spe og, · an most snilp e i t e · wor s 1 e that. I don't 
know about spelling ''mother.'' I can-spell ''pa.pa.'' I spell it p-a-p-a. I can't· 
spell "father" ·or "°jury" or "judge 1 ' or "stockings.'' I never did go to 

·school further than the first grade. I went to school about a year. I can spell 
"day," but not "daylight," I can spell "beer" but not "~hiskey." I couldn't 
read the name ''whiskey.'' No, l can't read any letter on that picture there 
(Exh.ibit A-State). I can't fignrf>. e~cept with my fingers. I know the figures 
a~ far as eight, as far as twelw· . [ knows more about counting than I do about 
figuring. I don't know what year it was I went to school. I worked for Truitt 
about two years, foi• Mr. Coates five years, for :Mr. Woodward and Mr. Honey-

-----.well ab~ut a year and a pressing club about t~o years, Orr Stationery Company 
·three or four months, Dr. Palmer abouf a year and a half, and then I went to 
work for the pencil. factory. l\lr. Herbert" ~chiff employed me at th~ pencil 
factory. Sometimes Mr. Schiff paid me oif, sometimes :Mr. Gantt, sometimes · .. 
l\1r. Frank. I don't remember when I saw Mr. Frank pay me off or how many 
times. I drawed my money very seldom. I would always have somebody 

· else draw it .for me. I told :Mr. Holloway to let Gordon Bailey draw my mo~ey 
:µiostly. He's the one they ca,ll "Snowball .. " ·'fhe reason why I didn't draw 
it myself I would be owing some of the boys around the factory and I didn't 
ha-ve-it to pay, and I would leave the factory about half past eleven so that I 
didn't have to pay it, and then I would have ~nowball draw my ~oney for me 
mostly. I woula see him afterwards and he would .. giv~· me the money. Some­
timP~ J wonlil go flown through the basement out ·the baek way to ·keep away 
;from them. The reason I let them draw. my money I owed some of them, and 
some of them o\\'ed me and · I wanted them. to pay . me first before I paid th·em. 
I di.dn 't want · to get my money on .. the insiqe becau~e I didil ~t w_ant . them to 
see such a little I was drawing to what they .\vere drawing. I wasn't drawing · 

·' 

--



-60 

but $6.05. Snowball was drawing $6,05. As to who it was I didn't wan,t to see 
what I was drawing, there ·was one named .Walter Pride; he's .been there five 
years. He said he drew $12.00 a week. 1,hen there was Joe Pride, he told me 
he drew $8.40 a week. They were down in the basement and · asked me how. 
much I ~as drawing. I told them it wa~n 't none of their business. Then there 
was a fellow named Fred. I don't know how .much he drew. The n.ext one 
was the fireman. I don't know how much he drew. There were two or three 
others, but I didn't have no talk with theni. I was just hiding what I drew 
from Walter Pride. As to whether I couldn't draw my money after. Walte_r 
drew his without his kn.owing 1t, well he would always be down there waiting 
for me. As to whether I couldn't get my money wi.tliout his being behind me 
and seeing what I got, he could see if I tore open the envelope. I had to open· 
it to pay them with. That ;s the reason I didn't go and draw my ·money. I 
know I could have put it in my pocket, but I couldn't tear it open unless I took 
it out. Yes, the reason I didn't draw my money was because I didl) 't want to 
pay them. That's the·reason _I let Snowball draw my .money. They could have 
slipped up behind me and looked. As to whether I couldn't wal.k off and keep 
them from seeing it, if I didn't tear it open, then tlfoy wquld kee :u with me 

1 i . e wou o ow me aroun . No-, I wasn't tryir~g to keep · out of 
paying them:--As to what I was trying to do, if they paid me then I would 
pay them. The way I liked to settle with them, . I liked to take them to the 
beer saloon and buy twice as much as they get. If I was there ~hen they coine 
in on me, I would say, ''I owe you. let's drink it up·.'' Yes, I would get out of 
it if I could, b.ut if they saw me walk up and pay them that way. I paid 
Waltel Pride sometimes that way .and sometimes the other way. I would say. 

~-------~-.~~. ''-'-'rl owe-you fifteen ents, I buy three eers. an you owe me fifteen cents, and 
that be three beers.'' · I say if I would be in the beer saloon when they come 
in there: I would do that, but if I could get out before they saw me, I ·would 
be gone. I never did know what time the watcl1m!l-.n come there ·on Saturday, 

. or any Saturday. I never have seen the night watchman in the -factory. I 
have seen young Mr. Kendrick come and get his money. He always comes 
somewhere about two o'clock - to get his money. I J1av~ seen lilm ruts of 
times Saturday and get his money. He always got it from Mr. Frank af 
two o'clock. No. I didn ~t know Newt Lee. I heard them say there was -a' -· 

. - I 

negro night watchman._ but I n_~yer did ~now that he was a · n.e.l'ro. -I 
knew-they paid employees off a.t twelve o'clock. I don't know what time the 
night watchman would co~e there to work. Mr. Holl~way stays until 2·:39. 
I couldrl't tell .the first time I ever watched for · Mr. Fr.~n-k. Sometimes durmg 
the last summer, somewhere ,just about in July. · As to what he said to get 
me to watch-for him tha.t was on a Saturday, I ·would be ... there sweeping_aa...nwdu....--­
Mr. Frank come out" and called_, me in his offiee . . I _ alw~ys worked until half 

- -past .four in the evening. I wofita leave about half past twelve. ring~ out and 

• come back about half past one or two. · ·Sometimes I would ring in when .I came 
ba·ck and .sometµlles I wouldn't. I ringed in every J.llOrning when I came.- I 
never did ring ib_ much. I w.ould do it after they got after me about it It-wa~" ----~-. . - . . . 
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my habit . :not to do it. As to how they would know how much to payliieif .J 
didn't ring in, I knew they paid me 1.10 a day, all the time. · No, they didn't 
pay me by th_e clock punches, they paid me by the day, they p_aid me llc. an 
hour. Sometimes I would punch the clock when I got there; that was my duty. 
Sometimes I was paid wl1en l Qidn't work, I don 1t know how that happened. 
but M~ Frank would come and tell me I didn't take out that money for the 
time you lost last week. I don't know on ~1hat date he ever did that on. Yes. 
r always got my mo_ney in envelopes. As ·to how they wott~•-· i~ .. ow how much 
.to put in the envelope; when I didn't punch, they would come and ask if I .. 
was here every time I didn't ring 'in, and they · would ask Mr. Holloway if ...._._- --,-­
was here. If the clock didn't show any punch, they would ask me if I was here 
at that hour. No they wouldn't ask how many hours I was here __they would 
just ask if -I was here H certain hour and then they would pay me for the full 
day, whether I punche<l the dock or not. just so I punched it in the morning. 
The lady that was with :Mr. Frank the time I watched for him some tim-e--l-a-s,r.t - ­
July was -Miss Daisy Hopkirn.;. It would always be some-wherA hetween._3 and 
3 :30. I w·as sweeping on the isecond ·floor. Mr. Frank called me in his office. 

_ _ ,T .ere wasa lady· in there with him. That was Miss Daisy Hopkins. She ':Vas · 
presen w en 
don't come up and y.ou will have a chance to make some-money. The other 
lady had gone out to g~t that young man. Mr. Dalton. I don't know how long 
she- 1.i.ad-been gon<h--She came bacj\ after a while \Vith Mr. Dalton. They 
came upstairs to l\tr. Frank's office._ stayed there ten or fifteen minutes. They 
came back downi they didu 't go out and she says. ''All right. James.'' About 
an hour after that Mr. Frank eame do-wn. 'rhis ladyanl:l1 nan after she said 
'' AlLright, am es ou h the trap door into the basement. 
There's a place on the first floor. that leads into ano 
a trap door in there and a stair-wa-y--t-h-a-t-1-eatls-down in the basement, and they 
pull out tha~ trap dQor and go down in .the basement. I opened -the trap door 

·for them. The reason I opened the t1:ap door because she said she was ready, 
I knew where she was going because Mr. Frank told 1ne to watch, he told me 
wherethey were g01ng. . I don't know ho.w long they stayed down ther~ : 

I don·'t' know when they ca.me back. -r watched the door all the time. 
Mr. Dalt'on gave me a quarter and went ot¥ _laughing a~Q. the lady went 
up the steps. Then the ladies came down ~nd left~ and then Mr. Frank 
came down after .t~ey left . . That. was about half past four. He gave me 
a quarter and I lef-t- and then he left. The next atur ay e was rig 

. , 1 •. 

near the same thing. · It was about the las·t of July or the first of August. The __ --==== =---=--­
next Satur_day I watched for him about twelve o'clock he said "Y.ou k°Ilow ' 
what you done for me last Saturday, I want to put you wise .~or this Saturday." 

__ ,:; _,., . -- · I said, ''All right, what time? '' He said~ ''Oh, ·about half past.'' After Mr . 
.. -? · .- .-.-_,_:____:_Holloway left, Miss Daisy Hopkins cam_e. ·on in-into the office·, Mr; Frank came 

· out of the offi.c.e, popped his fingers, bo~ved his head and went back into the 
_ ~..-._ __ : :."· · ·· -' office. I' was standing there by the clock. Yes, he popped- his fingers and 
~:-__. 0

_:_. - - • ~owed to me, and the~ent down and stood by the door. ·He sta ed there 
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thq.t time about half an hour and then the gi_rl went out. He gave me half a 
dollar this time. The .next time I watched for him and Mr. Dalton too, some­
where along in the winter time, before Thanksgiving Day, somewhere abo~t 
the last part of August. Yes, tha-t-1s-seme.where near th.e winter. This time he 
spoke to me on the fourth floor in the morning. Gordon. pailey was standing 
there when he spoke to me. He said, ''I want to .put you wise again for to-day.'' 

_ _ The lady that came iu that day was one who worked on the fourth floor; it was 
not 1\-liss Daisy Hopkins A ni ce_ looking lady~ kind_ of slim. She ·had hair like 
Mr. Hooper's. She had a green suit of clothes on. \Vhen Miss Daisy Hopkins 
came she had on a black skirt and white _w_aist the first time. · I don't know 
the name of that lady that works on the fourth floor. Yes, I have seen her 
lots of times at tJie factory, but I don't know her na.me. ~he went right to 

l--------"----==== _:::;l\;:;1==r =--. -:;:F;--r-ank 's office, then I went and watched. She stayed about half an hour 
and came out:. l\fr. i...,rank went out of the factory and then came back. I 
.stayed there and waited for him. He said, ''I did!) 't t ake out that money.'' 

- --- -
I said, " ·Yes, I- .seed .. you didn't." He said, "That's all right, . old boy; I don't 

- -- - - --
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want you to say anything to l\fr. Herbert -or l\-1r-.-t>arle-y -a-tJout wh~-0ini-==-· - ­
-on around here." Next time I. watclied for him was Thanksgiving Day. I ~et 
l\Ir. Frank 
in a little while, me and her are going- to chat, I don't want you to do no work, 
I just' want you to . watch.', . In about half an hour the lady caine. I didn't 
know that lady, she didn't work at the factory. I think I saw her in the fac­
tory two or three nights before Thanksgiving Day in Mr. Frank's office. She 
·was a nice looking la~y. I think she had on black clothes. She was ver 
heavy hniJt lady. After she came in t _ _ g ay morning, I closed 
the do · or me to close it. . She went upstairs towards l\fr. 
Frank's office. l\Ir. Frank came out there .and stamped, and I closed the do.or. 
Mr. Frank said, ''I'll stamp after this lady comes· and you go and close the door 
and turn the night latch. '' That's the first time he told me aoout the night 

· lock. And he says, ''If everything is all right you kick against the door,'' and 
I · kicked· against the door . . After an hour and-a-half~ame down and 
unlocked the doors and says, ''Everything is all right.'' He then went and 
looked up the street and told the lady to come on downstairs. · Af~er ~he came 

· dow~, she said to Mr; Frank, "I~ that the nigger?" ~~d Mr. Frank jlai~, "Yes," 
and she said, ''Well, does he talk much Y '' and he says, ''No, he is the best 
nigger I have even seen.'' l\Ir. Frank called me in the office a:nd gave tne $1.25. 
The lady had on a blue skirt' with w~ite ·dots in . it and white slippers and 
white stockings and had a gray tailor~made ·coat, with pieces -of-velvet on the 
edges of it. The velvet was black and the cloth of the coat was .gray

1 
She had 

.on a black hat with big black feathers. I left a li'ttle before l2 o'clock. I didn't . ._ 
see anybedy else _there that day at the office. The next time I watched .was way 
after Christmas2 on a Saturday about the middle of January-l:loro~where·about 
the first or mid.die. It was right aft~r New Year, oqe Qr two., or t~ree .or f~u~ 
days --after. It was on a Saturday. -He sai.d .. a 'o/oting man and two ladies 

. woul(l be comi-ng. Th~t was that Saturday morning af half pa~t"seven. I ~as 

.. '....,. 

e. 

... 
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standing by the side ·of Gordon Bailey when he come and told me, ~nd .. he said, 
I-could make a piece of money off that man. Yes, Snowball could hear what 
he said. · The man and ladies came about half past. two or three o'clock.- They -
stayed the1·e about two hours. I didn't know either one of the ladies. I can't 

----'~~~:-w..ua~ither one of them had on. The man was ht 11 Rlim hnilt . R. heavy 
man. _ I have seen him at the factory talking to Holloway, he didn't work there. 
I h~ve seen him often talking to Holloway, through the week. You asked me 
what I did the second Saturday after I watched for him, well, I don't re­
member. As to whar-1 ·did the Saturday I watched for him the second time, 
I disremember what I did. · 'fhe Saturday after that, I think about tbe first of 
August, I did some more watch.ing for him. I don't remember what I did the 
Saturday before Thanksgiving day. I .don't remember what I did the Satur­
day after Thanksgiving_day: I doU.:Lr.emember what I did the next Saturday. 
I don't know, sir, what I did the next Saturda;y:. The next Saturday I did 
some watching for hµn. 1 watched for him somewhere about the last of 
November after Thanksgiving Day .. No, I don't remember any of those dates. 
Couldn't tell you to save my life_ what tin~e I left home -the. first time I wat~hed 

wh t tim I · 
I.watc_hed f?! h!m, nor what time I le~t home. l_don 't know whether I drew iny 
money on_ the first Saturday . I watched for him. I disremember whether 
anybody else drew ~1y money for me the second Saturday I watche_d for him. 

· I don't know how much I drew. I couldn't tell you whether I drew my money 
thanksgiving Day or not. I don't know how much I drew. I don't remenibe=r,_------­
what .time I got down or what time I left. I don't know when I got to the fac- . 
tory the day before Thanksgiving, _or how long I worked there. - I don't re-
member how many hours· I worked the first Saturday I watched. for him or the 
second, or the third, or Thanksgiving Day. No, I don't know how much I drew 
on those days. The first time I was in prison was in September. The next time 
was sometime before Christmas, I can't remember the date. · I was there thirty 
days. It was somewhere along in October-. A year· before that I was in prison 
too, about thirty days. ·1 have ·been in prison three times since r'have been 
with the pencil company. I have been in prison about three times within the _ 

__ last three or four years. I have been in prison seven or eight times within the 
last four or five years. I ~an 't give you any of the date~ nor how long I 
stayed there any of the times that-I-was there. I don't know what month or 

____ _ _ · what day it wa~; 'nor how long I stayed there. I knew the factorY-wae- not 
going to be run on April 26th. ·Yes, Snowball and I drink beer together some~ 
times in the building. Yes, w·e used to go down in the basement and drink 
together,- but he aint the only man. I never was drunk at the factory. Sn,w-
ball wasn't there the fir~t Saturday I watched _for Mr. Frank. I think he laid 
off. l don't know whether he was there the second or third Sa.turd,ays, I didn't 
see him Thanksgiving morning, but I saw him the day before Thanksgiving. 

-. --That was the time that Mr; Frank told me .to watch for him. --ll&Aalked ·to me . .. . . -
before Snowball. I rlon 't know whether-cSnowball was there in January when· 

. I watched. Snowball wa~ there in January in the box room when Mr. Frank 
-----------~--~·· . . . ·. . ~ . . 
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told me tQ__ watch f.o_r_liim _J_ don't know whet.her .Mr. Frank knew lte was there 
or not. There were eight niggers 'n a-11-wor-k-ing in th~ factory. Snowball, 
the fireman a.nd nw rlii1 .inst plain manual labor, the rest of the negroes had 
better jobs. Snowball, the fireman and lwere the last negroes to get jobs there. 

e -·· 
\Ve ~ere the new darkies; the others had heen working h re before we went __ _ 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

there. Mr. Frank used to laugh and jolly with ·me. I couldn't tell you the 
first time he <lir1 •ti is. Mr. Darley has .seen him jollying me. They would jol!~' 
me together. 'Tl~ey would pl;.iv 1rn<l go on around t}H~"n ,_,•ith J_n~. It has been so 
loug Hgo I can't. tell y~u anx ' of the jokes. Mr. Schiff aud Mr. Holloway has 
seen hiin joking with mP. He would say, "Come on. [ &m going to make H 

graveyard rlown t.hel'l~ in the basement if you <lon't hurry and bring that 
ele\1ator back up ~here.' ' - l\lr. Hollowav heard him say that. Mr. -Schiff has 

. .,.. . -> - - . 
seen liim pJa:vin2' with me. He would goose me and punch me and tell me I 
was a good nParn. I <lon-'t remember anything else he said . Yes. Mr. Darley 
\VOUld goose me and kick me a little bit . just playin~ with me. Mr. Schiff 
·would era ck jokes with me. l don't remember the tune. 'l'fte 'time Mr .. ~.,rank 
came i11 the elevator amt told me about watching for him. he didn't know 
Sn.owball was in there . . Snowball was standing right there by me. Mr. li1rank 
c u . . . 

· saw Snowball stauding there. 1 have been at the factory over . two years. I 
don't remem er t ie ay or month I went there. It was some time in-1910. l . . ~ 

~on 't remember whether it was summer or winter. Miss Daisy Hopkins worked 
on the fourth floor in 1912. I don't know when she quit. I saw her working from 
June. 1912, up until about (;hristmas. Yes. I worked on the saµie floor with her. 
I don't know whet~ier she worked there in 1913. :Miss Daisy w~s a low la.,dy. 

_ kind-of-hea-vy-;-arrrl-sfo~-wm~-p-r-ett:v , low. chunky kind of heavy weight. I don't 
know what c:ol!Jr hair she had or eyes, or her comple.xion. She was light skinned. 
She looked -to be about twenty-three. I know she was there in June~ because 
sh.e gave me a note to take down to Mr. Schiff. I remember that beca~se tlrn 
note had June on it. Mr. Schiff said it had ''June" on it when he read it. 
I can't read but he read that note and he read "June something,. " jt was 
on the outside of the note. It was on. the back of the note. "June" was -
written. on the back' ·of that note. She wrote the note and folded it. up 
and he read "June" on the back of it and he la~ghed at it. The reason 
I know she teft· the factory during Christmas because Mr. Dalton told 
me she wasn't coming_ back. He told me that one ·Saturday coming down 
to the factory. I nevet have seen ·l\{r. Dalton except at the factory. No, he 
doesn't work there. I saw him somewhe_re along in-January. He came out that 
time by himself. He and a lady had been down in. the basement. The last 

.. --thpe I saw him the-d.e-te~ugh.Wtim down at the station house and asked 
. if I had ever seen him in there. I saw Mr. Holloway at the factory the first 

-. ·--.---Saturday I watched for Mr. Frank. The next Saturday I watched. he ·was 
sick and wasn't. there. · He was sick two Saturdays in June. I disremember 

· whether I saw Mr. Schiff and .Mr. Darley. l remember seeing Mr. Darley at 
· the factory on Thanksgiving Day.. I don't remember what time he left". -. I 

·. 

• 

•• 
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_ couldn't tell you anybody who came to the factory the first Saturday I watched. 
· • . The seco1;1d time_! think there were some young ladies working up on the 

fourth floQr. I don't know about the third time. I don't know-whether any-

- ·-·· 

• 

. . -··'· ·~. · ·~·.; . 

. body ~as working there Thanksgivh~g or not'. l didn't see Mr. Schiff at all. 
I will swear that he was not in the office with Mr. Frank. I don't know 
whether any ladies were working there the next time or not. I have been act 
in the metal department, but I nevr have been on the right hand side where 
the machines are. I have swept on the second floor, but uot in the metal 
department. I don't know where those vats are back there. I. don't know 
what you are talking about. I do11't know a1~thing . about the plating room. 
1 never have been in l\lr. (~uinn 's office. l have put disinfectants in the ladies 
and gentlemen's closets back there. I ·wouldn't go. inside. '_1 would oniy go to 
the door. I stood outside of the door and_ sprinkled it · in a little way. Out­
si~e of that, and going to l\:Ir. (~uinn ':s office I have uever been on the left hand 
side of the 'factory. I have been there where they wash the lead at, and I have 
stuck bills in l\lr. Quinn;s office. Ves, I have been back -in there where that 
dark place is. I don~t know how many times I have stacked some boxes back 

Christmais. Yes, sir~ you cau see from the · top of the stairway back in there. 
I have been back there three times altogether. Sometime before Christmas. 
Yes, sir; you can sec from the top of the stairway to l\Ir. Frank ':s inside office. 
A man sitting at l\'1r. Frank's desk can-see-1}eopl-e-coming up the stairway · if 

. he is watching for them. If the safe door is open I don't hardly think he 
can see them. If it is shut he can. I am, certain of that. I thought you were_ 
talking about t.he third floor. He couldn't s·ee people coming up from the first 
floor. He can see the1n after they get · along by the clock. ·I left the factory 
5 :30 Friday· afternoon,· bofore the factory. stopped. I think I punched when I 
went out. One of them was ten minutes fast. That was the one on tlrn-iigirr.--
1 left there ~rawing my money because"! knew I wasn't going to draw 
but $2.75 and I ·owed the watchman a dollar anl I kuowed I wouldn't have 
enough for me and to pay him and I told l\Ir. Holloway to let Snowball dra'v 
it_for me. Snowball drew it for me and met me at the shoe shop at the corner 
of Alabama and Forsyth Street. He gave me $3.70. ' I wasn't. suppos~d to 

· draw but $2.75, and Mr. Frank taken that dollar for the ·watchman and stuck -. 
an extra dollar in my · envelope -and that made $3.75~ 1;1-on ~t .rememb.er how . 
many beers I drank Frid.ay .. Yos, I .told :Mr. Scott I got up -~ 9 o'clock that _ 
morning. That wasn't true. I ate breakfast about-seven. · Y cs~ I told Mr. 
Black I ate at 9 :30. _· That wasn't true. - I left my h'0~1ise bete;_veeu 7and-f;-~o. . ., .. :- ":·. 
I.told l\{r. Scott I left somewhere between 10 and 10 :30. No, that wasu 't true·:· · ~ 
I got to Peters. Street about 25 minutes to 8. l don't know_ how long I stayed 

·there. S~me things in my · affidavit that I made that are .. true . . Yes, therc"arc ' · .. . 
some things in my last affidavit that _are true. I was arrested ·o~ the· first or- -- . 
':M:ay. · I' sent fO'r Mr. Black to c~me down wh.en I ~ade .my· first statement on 
May 18th. Yes, ·1 denied ·I ~ad been to the factory in that statement. _ I made . 

.. . ·. -:- . 

. .. 
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that statellIIDft m tlredetectives' office. Mr. Black and Mr. Scott wer~ present. 
They didn't question two or three hours. I did some writing be.fore then, 
before that statement was made. · Yes, I know I did some writing before May 
.18th. ·I did some writing in Chief's office that Sunday. I told Black I bought 
whiskey on Peter~ Street at about 10 :BO. I tolathem I paid forty cents for it 
I -don't.remember tellirig .th.eni that I bought .the whiske at 11 o'clock. Yes I 
told fhem 1 went · into the Butt-In Saloon after I went to Earley 's for the 
wlifskey. Some of it I told them . was the truth and some of it wasn't. 'fhey 
asked me if I was lying and I held my head down. I held back some of the 
truth, and when they asked me if that was the truth I hung my head down. I 
didn't want to give the man away, but I wrrntm:l-ro reU -some and let him see 
what I was goiilg to d~ and sec if he wasn't going to stick to 'his promise as 

.. 

• 

_ .he had said. I tolcLthem Lw.enLinto Butt-In_Saloon_and saw,-So1~gm~ua3..lt,_. -====--=--.-:::= 

t8.hles shooting die~ and I ~von ninety cents and bought a glass o.t IJeer. I 
told them th(l.t I went to ·three· bee1• saloons. I told them after I went home 
at 2 :30, I went to Joe Carr's saloon and got 15c. worth of beer. I don't re-

·-member telling them that I went---there behveen 3 :3Q ~nd four o'clock. The­
detectives talked to me nearly every day after I-made my first statement-:-soine---. 
times hours at a time~- No, they. didn't cuss me. Yes. I s~nt for Black on 

ay rnn e s a ement came out m t 1e papers that's .the time· I sent 
for him. As to how I knew it came out in the papers, I heard the boys across · 
the street hollering extra papers. Mr. Black came dowl_! _after I sent for him 

·and I told him it's awful hot in he1:e, a.~d I told him I was going to tell him 
something, but I wasn't ·going to tell him all of it now. I told him that I would 
tell him part al!_d hold part ba.ck. Scott and Blaclt .. were both there. Yes, I ·· 
told Mr. ·Bfaclr ~m May 24th, the time I made the second. statement, that I 
helped tote the little girl. I sure remember that. - 1 think · I told them about 
l\fr. Frank getting me to watch ·for him, that he told me he struck a -g1r and 
for me to .go back .and get her. I didn't give :Mr". Franlc~lear away that time. 
I kept some things back. I don't remember now whether I tolq .them. at that 
time or not. I don't know whethei· I told them abo.ut going dQwn the basement". 
or not. The first time I told them I wrote the notes on Friday. They d~dn ·'t tell 
·me my story wouldn't fit. I don't remember them telling me a~ything about 
changing my statement. I .told them that was all I had to say. They never 
told-me they wanted me to tell anyth1ng . else . . They didn't say anything- to-·-· 

' . ~: 

_me that it didn't sound right. Mr. Black talked to me rig.ht· smart and Mr. 
Lanford talked . to me a little. · No, they never· talked to me a whole day. As 

----,----- 7-0-w-h-y..:. 1- eha-nged-my statement from Frid.J.U to Saturday, I put it on . Satur­
day, because I wa$ at the factory on-Saturday:· : As· to why I didn't put myself 
there on Saturday, the blame would be put on me. ·1 didn't want them to know 
that I had written any notes for :Mr. Frank. Yes, in that statement I toid the 
officers J4vas-go-ing to tell the who.le truth. I tola them that I got up at nine 
·o 'elock, because~ there was. nothing doing at the factory that .·day at the 
tim~. . I said". I _. was there at ·9 o'clock, .because he had done told me where to 
meet him at. Yes. I told them that I was going to tell the whole truth. Yes the 

. . : . . .. . ' 
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reason I told them I left home at 9 or 9 :30, because there was not anything 
• doing at the factory at that time. · I told them it was about 9 o '~lock when I 

looked at the clock, because I don't know what time it was when I looked at 
the clock, and I told .them I had-some steay and some s~usage for breakfast ~µd 
a piece o liver and I drank some tea and bread. Well, there was so11ie sausage, 
but I don't know.-whah.fil'-I ate it or not. Yes, I had steak~ liver and ~ausage for 
breakfast. I know I ate the steak and a-pi-600-of liver. and drank a cup of tea 
and ate some bread. I got up that morning at six o ~clock. Yes. I told the officers 
I got up at 9 or 9 :30. I don't remember anything else I told them. Yes~ I 
told them that I ·went straight to Peters Street and went in the first beer saloon 
there, and drank two -· beers and gave a fellow a b~er, that had a whip around 

---"'t--"'-'-~..__-~ - · - -his neck. . I tOlq ~1re-rn-11T1 e saFooris and r ea led two ilanWS.- I d~n 't know--
- - - - --- whether I told them a ouftli1s w 11slfey or not. I told them I bought it between 

•·-

. -10 and 10 :30. No, that is not true. I told them that on account of my saying 
I didn.'.t leave home until about 9 or 9 :30. I bought it about a quarter to 
eight. The reason I told these lies about the time was because I didn't want 
to put myself at the factory twiCe, because there was~ 't anything doing at the 

when the-first time was I told them I got"there at 8 o'clock instead of .10 or half 
past, it was after I got · out of jail up there. I guess I made most of these 
changes after I got out of jail. l don't know who the detective was I .tqld 
about my not leaving home at 9 o 'cloC'k. Four of them were talking to me, all 
at the same time. I think it was Starnes a11~i. Campbell that I told-t-haLto.._ _ 
about changing the ·time. I «fon 't remember whether :__I---teld them then that 
I was going to tell the .whole truth. I told them that after I got out _ of jail, '-· 
after I got back to headquarters. If yotl. tell a story you know you '-ve got 
to change it. A lie woi:i 't work, and you know you've got to-tell the whole 
truth. Yes~ I knew it was bound to c<ttlle when I told it the first time. I 

· didn't tell the .whole .truth then. · becaus·e I didn't want to give the whole thing 
away. theu. In the statement where· I told nbout my moving the little girl for 
Mr: Fr-a-n-k,--t-he reason why I didn't correct it then about the tinie I bought the 
liquor, I don't know whether I did it- then or uot. bnt T rlid tell them:- -1- ool ..... -­
them I drank four or· five beers thaJ. morning . . I told them at the ,first saloon 

· I bought two beers. I didn't tell them ~ bought any wine at that ti~e. I told. 
thew I had S_Qllle wine put . in my _beet.._ What t my call wine._ It wasn't any 

·· _w~ne though. I don't know whether I tol_d them that in the statement ·1 made 
about moving. the little girl or not. 'flhe wine was put in my beer at l\Ir. Earl's 
beer saloon on Saturday· morning. I told that to Mr. Black and ·Mr. Scott, I 

. don't remember when. As to my uot testifying about that yesterday, you 
· . __ didn't ask me that. I remember telling yon that yesterday. I i:emember say­

ing· I diqn 't buy any wine. No, I didn't say anything about putting beer in 
wine yesterday, -but I remember I said something about putting wine in beer. 
I know I told you that yeste!:_day~ I don ?t r.emember ·telling them I ~tarted .. 
straight from ;peters Street to Capital City Laundry. I told them I started for 
·th~ Lau~dry after leaving Mr. Fi:~p~_k i:it the factory. ·If they have· got it down · 

· .. ·· 
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---there, I must-have said- so.- -ili-01r't rememl>er-saying 1t.- I -wratliem met-
Mr. Frank at the corner of Nelson and Forsyth Street before I went to -the · • 
factory. Yes, I told them I went from Peters Street and met him at the corner. 
of Nelson and Forsyth before I went to the factory. As to why I told them· that 
story, because I did meet him there. . No,l didn't go straight from Peters 
Street to meet him at the corner of Nelson. and-Forsyth as I told t~em. I went 
straight from Peters ·street to the pencil ~actory. I don't remember when the 
first time I told the truth about it. I- told it either to Mr. Starnes, Mr. Campbell, 
Mr. Black or -~fr. Scott. I told it after I got out of jail, I remember telling the 
officers when he said" Ali', ha," when I met him at the corner. I ·don't .remem-
ber tellh1g the officers that he asked me where I was going and I told him I was 
going to the Capital City Laundry to see my mother. I don't remember saying 

· ~ that to the officers. If 1 did sa that it w.a~ not th_e_trµt}l. As J o wh~ I lie 
-----.-b-o-~-:-t that, beeanse T did tell Mr. -Frank d~'vn there when- tieft t~ 

that I was go-in.g to see my mother. I told the officers he stayed at Montag's 
about twenty m~nutes. I did tell you yesterday. that I didn't have_any_idea 
how long he stayed there, because I haven't any idea now. As to why I 
didn't say yesterday that it was twenty minutes, because you didn't ask me. 
I didn't tell Mr. Dorsey how long_it was, because he qidn 't ask me what I told 

s i , o e e ec ives a . o em a s ory 
be~ause I didn't have any idea how long he stayed there. I don't know ·how - -----
long Mr. Frank stayed there. I told the officers twenty minutes as that" was the 
best I could do about it_, so 1 just .told him twenty minutes. I told the detec­
tives about wanting me to watch for him when I got back to the factory. I 
don't lcnow why I .didn.'t ten· them that at the time I told them about moving 
the body. _ I tlon 't remember who I told it to or whe.n, but I told them. I 
did tell them about Mr. Frank stamping his foot. I don't know whether I told 
them· at the time I told about helping move the body. I told it to· Mr. Scott, 
Mr: Black, :Mr. Campbell, Mr. Star:r:ies and Mr. Dorsey. l\.1r. Starnes and Mr. 
Campbell wasn't in there sometimes when I told it. No, I didn't tell it to M~. · · 
Scott and Mr .. Black. ·~ey dropped the case and Mr. Starnes and Mr. Campbell 
taken it up. They ca:rµe down and was talking to me for a nionth or more in 
my cell. Yes, I told Mr. Black about Frank stomping hfs foot and Mr. Scott. I 
told them all about it. Yes, I told the detectives that .the first party I saw 
going up the factory aft.er I gpt back from Montag 's was Miss Mattie Smith. 
That was a mista'ke. I didn't see Mr~ Darley go .-up -after I gut.: back ·from 
Montag's. No, I didn't say yesterday- that I saw-film -go 11p after I g.(}t back 

. f--rom _Montag's. I don't ktiow whether Mr. Darley saw me or not. I was sitting 
right there at the box. He could have seen me if he had louked, so could Miss . 
Mattie Smith. · The rest of them could have seen me if they had loo;lted. -· ~ Yes, · 
I told the officers the first time · :Ksaw them · go up· was' after I got back from 

. ·Montag 's. That was not so. I was just mistaken about it. Don't know· when 
. I corrected the mistake or to whom. Yes; I stated it to Mr. Dorsey. It was 

• 

•• 
after I came from jail. I have corrected it to Mr. Starnes a_nd Mr. Cam....,p~b ..... elw-1---~ 

- ~ 
too~ It was about 11 :30 wh_en .Mr. Darley_ left the _factory, right after we got 

- - ·~ _ .__:__. - -
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back from l\!Iontag's. It .m~y have· been about 11 o'clock. Miss Mattie Sm.ith 
left the factory somewhere about 9 :30. It was after we got back from Montag's 
that I saw Mr. Darley leave. Mr. Holloway and the peg-legg9d negro went 
upstairs ·and came down before Mr. Darley left the factory. Theyccnuld h~ve · 
seen me sitting on the box, as they came out the factory. Mr. Holloway left . 
about 10 or 15 minutes aft.er l\fr. Darley left. It may have been four or five 

· utes. After J\ilr. Holloway left, I told them l\Il~uinn eame in. I may have · 
told the~ that a l~dy dressed in gree~ was .the .~t one. \~at wasn't true. 
A lady m green did go up before"M-r:-Dfiliey came down ... She came down 
before Hollo-.way and Darley left. If I told the offic_ers that she went up after 

--------1t"'"hey-l&t, I- m.ade-a.-mi~ 1"1.r..-1-~uinn was the next man that went u:n~a~f~t~er _ _ --,--______ _ 
Mr;-Holloway' came down. Yes, I said that ~'esterday. Yes, I said ·yesterday 
Mr. Quinn was the last man I saw come down. No, I didn't say yesterday 
Miss Monteen Stover came down after · l\Ir. Quinn came down. I might . have 
tolR the officers that I saw Mr. Holloway return upstairs, turn_to the right - --­
toward Hmiter Street and go in the fa_ctory. If I did, i made. a mistake. · I 
don't remember all the mistak~s I made. -No, I have never told about a lady 
gomg up iere a er 
whether I have ever corrected that ipistakc or not. She went upstairs and 
Mr. Qhinn went up and came down before she did. Jf I told the officers she 

- . stayed there 7 or 8 minutes and eame right down, I made a mistake. I don't 
think I corrected that mistake at all. I don't know how long it was after she 
ca.me down before · any body else went up and -0.own. If I told the officers it 
was 10 or· 15 minutes that was a mistake. I don't think I corrected that mis­
take at all. ·. l 11aven 't-gnt -any idea--at-aH-how long before the lady in green 
came down that anybody else went up. Yes, I t~ld Mr. Scott and 1\1-F-.-lllack 
that the only people :who went up at all were Miss Mattie Smith, Darley, Hollo­
way and the woman in green, and nobody went up and down until Mr. Frank 
whistled. No, that wasn't -trt1e. The reason "\vhy I told thaL_slllry was be­
cause I didn't want them to know that these other people passed by me, for 
they might accuse -me. The __r_ea.soh why I didn't tell them was because I 
didn't want people to think that I was the one that done the murder. I told 
them that I saw those four men go up because I didn't think they saw me 
sitting there, and I didn't teli of ;&ing th~bther people ·or ear t ey · wou 
report on me. The reason why I told the police about those four going up 
there, ·because that is all I could remember that went up and down. I don't. 
know when my .memory got fresher ·about other people going up and down. 
I think it was after I got out of jail. I think I- corrected that with Mr. 
Starnes, Mr. Campbell and Mr. D_orsey, at police headquarters .. After I cor-

• rected with the detectives down at headquarters, they took me to Mr. Dorsey's 
office. I have been in Mr.- Do-rsey's office three .times. Mr. Dorsey .was down 
atneadquarters with me I think about four times. .As to whether it took Mr. 

____ · Dorsey. aoout seven times to get my testinioi:1y straight, it didn't take him that · 
· __ .... ~ - --~~ ~t~get .it straight, it took th~t long for me. As to why I didn't tell it all, 

~.-.. :.- -: .·.,. , . . · I didn""' want t.o ·tellinU.-f-was intending- to hold back-som.e.- I .didn!--t-want- -- · 
. "" " .. . ' 

~ . 
. ~ -
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to tell it all right at one time . . J just tol<l a little and · kept back a little. Yes, 
and Mr. Dorsey we~t down seven time_s while I was telling some and holding 
back some. 'rhey didn't ask me to take back any stories. No, it didn't take 
Mr. Dorsey sev~n· .times to tell the story. Yes, I said ladded to it every time 
he went down. But he wouldn't come back and try to do anything with it. 
I didn't tell the officers that I went to a moving picture show after I left the 
factory. I said I looked at the_ pictures from the outside. ·I told them I went 
on Peters Street and looked at the pictures from the outside. I stayed there 
.,11.:bout ten or fifteen minutes; I drank twef glasses of beer. I don't know 
whether it was in the· first. secoua· or third statement that I told about watch-
ing for l\Ir. Frank. . Two of the 'a~tectives ";ere there. .. Yes, I locked the front 

• 

r=-~-----:----=FMiMO=*I- mt=Satttrda-~·. I don 't-*no·w-wh-a-i-ti-m~ ........ ---tl-t-t-'"1-R:lil--ilff~.,.-------......'..... 

where after dinner. I can't give you any estimate. It ~as later than 12 o'clock. 
It wa.snt one o 'cloc~c~ because it was four minutes to -one ·after I went upstairs 
and came downstairs and unlocked the door. Ye&, l heard the stamping before 

-I locked the door~ and I heard the !'cream bef-e1ie I heard · the stamping. ~eF------­

he stamped for me I went a11d lock~d the doo1•. I couldn't tell to save my life 
how long the door stayed locked. J was upstairs between the time I locked 

. ie une wen own .an un oc e i . un oc e e oor 
befo1•e l went upstairs. I locked the door when he stamped and I unlocked it 
when he whistled. As soon as he whistled I unlocked tne door . and went 
upstair"s. :Mr. Frank ~~ent me back in ~he metal department. He wouldn't 
go back there with me. " Then he whistled that was the signal for .me to unlock 

-.--the door and the stamping was for ·me to unlock the door. He showed ·me how­
to lock the door that day. He showed me how to lock the door on Thanks­
givipg Day too. I don't know· how he ·came to show it to me again. I guess 

- he thought I forgot it. "\Vhen I went down to leave the doors were unlocked, 
both doors were unlocked. The only thing I remembe~· Mr.- Frank telling 
me was not to let Mr. Darley see me around the door, that a young lady. would 

.. ~ . . . "' . ' . 
be up there after awhile to chat, and he wanted me to watch .. :for-lum. No, he 
didn't tell me what he wanted me to meet him at N elso~ and Forsyth Street 
for. Ye~ottl~ have come back t_o the factory just as well as going to meet 

. him at....N elson and_EQrsyt.h Street if he had told me that. I don ~t know why 
h told me to meet him at Nelson and Fors th. I don't re 

·officers that I met him -accidentally at Nelson and Forsyth Street. Mr. Fr~nk 
stayed at Montag 's about an· hour. Mr. Frank went . to · Montag 's between 10 
and 10 :30 and stayed about an hour. I guess it was ·about a .. half .an hour. 
Mr:-Fra.nk didn't ~ay a thin·g abo.ut why he wanted me at the corner of Nelson 
and Forsyth Street. Before. we went to Montag 's he said ·he didn't want me 
to say anything to l\1r. Darley that there was going to be a young lady there 
alter a while, and he_ told me that again· after we came ~ack from Montag 's . . 
Mr. Frank gave me that signal about stamping ~nd whistling on Thanksgiving 
Day .and he repeated it-again ·tha't da:Y. I told yesterday ·how he done it like · . - . , . 
I am telling now~ I think I am telling the truth 11ow. ' 'We. had been back from . 

. Montag's about five minutes when the lady "in the. green .d.ress .went up. She 
- --------- - ... 

.. · .. 
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stayed up there a good little while, _ten or fifteen mjputes. · I didn't · tell the 
- - officers the peg-legged negro wen up ffi'Sf. I d1dn 't tell them in the first state­

ment. I may have told them in the next . sta~_ement. The peg-fegged negro didn't 
____ st_a_.._y_ u.._p stairs no t ime·. Came back down with :Mr. Holloway. Mr. Darley 

came down five or ten minute after Mr. Holloway came down. Yes, that was 
after he came back from Montag's. I have no idea what time it was. After 
Holloway came down,· the lady-with--tjrn green dress came down. She went 
on out and :rvrr. Quinn came in. He went up and came do~vn before Monteen 

• 

• 

·Stover came in and before Mary Phagan came in. Yes, 1 am certain of that. 
No one else came in after l\Ir. (~uin~1 except Mary Phagan. Mr. Quinn, 
Monteen Stover and Mar Pha an ·went in almost the sanie time. The went 
and ca.me out almost to ether. Quinn first, :Mary Phagan next and M-onteen 
Stover next. Mr. Quinn had ah'.eady come · out of tl\e factory when Mary 

. Phagan went up. I didn 't see l\Irs. Barrett, or Miss Corinthia Hall or Miss 
Hattie Hall or Alonzo :Mann , or Emma Clarke. I didn't see none of them·. ·. 
I never saw· Mrs. White go in there at all that day. I was sitting on the box 
all the time. I got up twice to riuike watP.r. T mll<lP w?.tc>r against the elevator 

r a one gone en, 
and- Mr. ·Quinn also. I went to sleep after ·Miss l\ionteen Stover came down. ·-·-··­
Don't know how long I was asleep, maybe ten of fifteen minut~s. I heard 
the scream before I went to sleep, before Monteen Stover ever went in there . 
Mr. Quinn· had already gol?-e. I told · the officers I didn't see Mary Phagan 

--go up at all. I didn't tell them I heard any scream. · I- tlon~rnow when 
I first told that story. I told 1\Ir. Star.nes and-Mr. Campbell. ·That was ~r 
I got out of jail. I said I heard the scream before I went to sleep, which J iliil . 
·Monteell.. Stover cama up and went down before I went to sleep. I tol(f Mr. 
Starnes and l\Ir. Campbell about somebody running back on tiptoes. I don't 
know when I told them. He woke me-up stamping, then I locked the door, 
an<f went to the box and kicked on the side of the elevator door. It was 
about ten or fifteen minutes after h.e stamped that I heard him w_histle. When 
he w11istled I ~nlocked the door. I don't know when I ~·.st told about Mr. 
Frank standing at the top -of the stairs, trembling and ·nervous. I told Mr. 
Dorsey, .l\fr. Starnes and Cam bell. I don't know why I didn't tell it the da 

- - told them I was -going -to tell the ·whole truth . . I didn't mean to keep back 
anything then . 'rhat day I told them everything I remembered.. .Vvhen I got 
to the top of the stairs, Mr. Frank had that cord in .his hands. I don't remem­
·ber when I first told about that. If I didn't tell ~t that day when I said 
I was telling t.he whole truth, lj?st didn )t -remeinber it . When I told Black 
and Scott that I was telling the whole truth. I didn't say anything about 
Mr. Frank having hit the little girl. I thought I had told them that. I have 
told that to some of the officers. I remember no\v that I told them that. He~ 

. told me t~. get her out of there 'some way o~ other. He didn't· say she was dead. 
I didn't know she was dead.-1----\¥-ent· back there and found the cord ·around het" 
neck. Wh:en I .looked at the clock "it was four minutes to one . . That was after I 

___ went and seen the_gir.l~.a.s_d_e_rui,_a]1dJ1e_:t.o.ld me~~ bring_ h~_r_up__th_e_re._I_wa~·-

. c 
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standing at the steps. I could see the clqck from ·-there. Then I went back • 
aiid got a piece of striped bed tick, something like your shirt there, had· whitish 
looking stripes on it. I taken the cloth and spread it down and rolled the 
little girl in Jhe cloth arrcHied it up. - 'Vhen I laid her 4own in the cloth; I 
he e c oth around her. I did my best. Her feet were hanging out of the 
cloth, also her head. If I didn't tell Black and Scott anything about the hat 
and the slippers and the ribbon, they must not have asked me. I know I took 
the things and pitched them in front of the boiler. .The elevator don't hit hard 
. when it hits the ground. The wheels at the top don't make any noise. The 
motor mak~s a little hoise,· something like ·a June bug. The elevator hitR the 
dirt at the bottom, but it don't make any noi!e. I left the factory . abouf-1 :ao: -

. n 't tell Scott and Black I wrote four ·notes instead of . - . 
two, they didn't. ask me how many I wrote. An<?ther reason why is, because 
l\fr. Frank taken that and foldffi:l it up like he wasn't going to use it.. I wrote 
three notes on white and one on green paper. The graen one is the one he· 
folded up like he .wasn't go.ing. to use it. I don't know how long it took me to 
write those notes. It took me somewhere about two. minutes_and a half, I 

because someone had done taken them ·off the case. .Mr. Scott told me. The 
first time I told that was to lVIr. ·Starnes and Mr. Campbell after I came back 
from jail. · I don '-t remember telling the officers that Mr. Frank told me he was 
going to send those notes to his folks up North. If they have got it down there 
I must have said it. He told me he was going to write to his mother and tell 
her that I was a go~d negro. The reason I didn't take the parasol down with 

- the shoes, it was too far back for me to see it. I got my -hair cut last week. · 
1\ily la'fyer sent the barber. They gave me a bath and bought me clean clothes . . 

-MY wife gave me my shirt. J didn't rea~ ~ny newspapers on Monday about 
th.is crime. It .don't do ~e.no good because I can't make any out. I didn't try 
to read any that day. I washed that shirt on Thursday, May 1st, in the metal 
room about half past one or t~~ As to how that dung-came to be in theele­
vator shaft, when Mr. Frank had explained to me where he wanted to ~ieet me 
and just as Lstru:red. out . of the place that negro drayman came in there with 
a sack of hay and I gave him ~ drink ·of wl!iskey that. I bought at Ea.rle 's sa-
oon on . e ers ree . a mornmg, ap. e suggested that I- g-0-d-own. in . the 

· basement and do ·it, there's a light down there~ and f.:-went down the i~dder 
and stopped right by the. side of the elevator, in front of the eleva or, some­
where about the edges of it. No, I didn't see the two white men o up and 

· tal~~Ir. Frank in his office ,that day. No~. didn't see a-m&i-by-the name of 
Mincey at the corner of Carter and Electric Avenue that day. I didn't ten: 
him that I killed a girl that day. ' . I didn't say I killed one tQ-day ,and I didn't­

. wap.t to kil~ another. · I ~idn't tell Harlee Branch that · Mary Phagan was 
murder.ed in the toilet room on the second floor, or that the b~dy was stiff 
wh.en I .got back tliere, or that it took at least thirty minutes to 

own s airs an wr1 e e -I)O es. · .n 't ·remember telling Miss Carson on, 
·.May 1st; ·that Mr. Frank was innoce,it .. i'did~ 't ·have ·any conversation . with 

• 
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Miss Mary Pirk on April 28th and she didn't say that I committeed the crime 
and I didn't shoot out of the room immediately after she said that I didn '1r---- - - ---­
tell Miss-Gai•son on Monday that I was drunk all day Saturday. I didn't see her 
a.tall on :Monday. I didn't tell Mr. Herbert Schiff on Monday that I was afraid 
to go on the street, that I would give· a million dollars if I was a white matt;- -'--­
I said if I was a white man I would go on out I didn't say nothing about no 
million dollars because I don 'Lknol\Lwhat it takes to make a million.- I didn't 
ask Miss Small onMonda whQ.t the extra had in it and I didn't say 'Mr. 
Frank is just as innocent as yori are. I didn't . ask Miss Fuss on Wednesday 

··for an ·e:x:t.ra, l didn't tell her that I thought Mr. Frank was ae. innocent as the 
angels in heaven. 

I never was in jail until April 26th. I l1ave been down at police head­
quarters seve.ral times. First time I . was arrested was for throwing rocks . 
I was a -Small ·boy then. I ·was arr~stecl-another time for fighting black boys, 
then I was arrested ·about drinking and disorderly, and the last time I was · 
arr~sted was about fighting again. I never have fought with.· a . white man 
or w 1te ·woman. o lee o cers too me own to Jal an to oor where Mr. 
Frank was.- I never did see l\ir. Frank in jail. The last time I saw Mr. Frank 
was in the station house before I had talked. He looked at me · and smiled 
·and bowed his head. While I was ·wri,ting the notes, Mr. Frank took the 
pencil out o_f my }~and and told 1ne to rub out that ''a'' I had down there on 
the word '' negro. '' I saw l\'Iary Phagan 's pocketbook, or mesh bag, in Mr. 
Frank's office after he got back from the basement. It was lying on his desk . 
. He taken it and put it in the safe. When I went back to see about the girl, 
it wouldn't have taken more than about a . minute to go down and lock and 
unlock the door. · He had time enough to do· it. l\ifr. Scott talked to me about 
three-hours-and ~ half one 'l'hursday. l\ir. Frank told . me he would send · 
me -away from he1'e ·H they caught me. ·He would get me out on pond an~ 
se»d me away. I never saw Mincey before seeing him at the station house in 
.l\Ir. Lanford 's office. I had orders from Mr. Frank to write down 

- - - -....h-o-w- many boxes we . needed and give it to · him. . I didn't tell Mr. 
·m 

' . 
I · disremember when I first told about it. I think it was after I was 
in . jail. I told )\ir. Do_rsey about i~ afte~ I ca_me out of jail. Mr. 
Frank knew for a whole year that I could write--- I used to write for hini the 
word ''Luxury,'' ''George Washington,'' ''Magnolia,'' · ''Uncle Remus,'' 
''Thomas Jefferson,,., that's-the name of pe~cils. . -I-spmr-' 'Uncle Remus'' 
'' 0-n-e Rines.'' I spell ''Luxury'' '' L-u-s-t-r-i-s. '' I spell ''Thomas J e:ffer­
son" "T-o-m J-e-f-f or J,.e-i-8-s." I spell "George· Washington" -" J-o-e 

.. :.. - W-i-s-h-t-o-n. " - .After _l\fr. F.rank found out what I meant. he understood it . 
. i spell ''ox'·, ' 'o-x. '' Yes I wrote him orgers to taice money out of my wages. . . . . .. . 

to i" You coul~- ~Me it _and-fold. it ·up and lmld it in· one. hand. When I 

- - · - --. ---~--- · -· -~ 
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wrote the wo1•d "Luxury'; and "Thomas Jefferson," I didn't have anything • 
at all to copy from. · I was writing it down for l\fr. Frank. 

MRS. J. A .. ..WHITE, recalled- fo1 t-11Hta-t~. ---- --------
- - - ----

I have seen this man before at police headquarters (indicating Conley) . 
about a month aft;r the murd·er. At that tiine I _did not" identify him as 
being the man I saw sitting on the box. The man sitting on the box wa-s 
about the same size as Jim Conley. I couldn't state it was ·Jim Conley.- ~ He- · 
was sitting in a dark · place, and he looked black to me. He had on dark 
ciotlies. I don't know whether he-was bareheaded or not. I told Bass Rosser 

-'---------'--tlf"DOut-tfti ~-old-of-it. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

. I told· the det~ctive about this as soon as I saw one. . I never kept it a 
secret-from anybody. I spoke to Mr. Wade Campbell about seeing the darkey. 

--- --.,Ir-didn't tell him that I saw t~e negro _as I went up into the factory about 12 
o'clock. I didn't . tell him that when l came down the. ste h 1 
didn't see _anybo41 '._ __ 

C. W. 1vIANGUM, sworn for the State. 

I had a conversation with Mr '. Frank at the jail-about seeing Conley and 
confronting him. ·Conley was on the fourth floor. Chief Beavers, Chief. Lan­
ford and Scott came down to see 1\ilr." Frank with Conley and asked me if they 

· could see him. I went to Frank an~en were"'i~ere with Conley 
and wanted to talk with him if he wanted to see them. He said, ''No, my 
attorney is not here and I have nobody to defeijd me." He said his lawyer · · 

- was not. there; that no one .was there to lisfen at wh&t might be said. 

N. V. D~LEY, recalled for cross-examination. 

On ·the ground floor the d9or to the Clark W oodenware Company was . 
nail im 
open a.fter · the murder and we nailed it up again. tr was two_or ·three days 

··after the murder; Sittiqg at_ Mr. Frank's desk, the most that one-- can see is 
about.-half of clock No. 2, which is on the left of clock No. 1. If th~ 
safe door was open in the outer office, you have--ne-view into l\fr·. Frank's 
office from the outside. You m,ight tiptpe and look over the door; A man 

. of my height could just tiptoe and see oyer it_- The. packing room ·next to Mr. 
. - Frank's .office wprks from .11 to -17 ~adies and· men. -Passing by elevator: shaft 

_as you go in building on ground floo~;· you com~ to a door, to Clark Wooden­
ware Company's· place, whfoh was nailed. up immediately after that company 

. . wa 
. day, it must have been. two . or three days after, and we nailed it up again . 

. ·-"' . 
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(Witness identifies various portions of factory from the factory model-De­
fendant 's Exhibit 4). There is .. no lounge, sofa, cot or bed in the whole fac-

_tory. I found two boxes down in the ha Woodenware side 
of old dirty, rotten stuff, too dirty and rotten for a human being to rest upon. 
It's boggy in there. They. had on ·top of them some dirty, filthy, nasty 
crocus sacks. There is no lounge, . bed, sofa or anything of the sort in the 

· metal room. I have never seen a chair in there. I have nev_er seen any 
blood under the machine that Barrett claims he found hair ·on. · 1 never saw . . . . . 

any blood on the place the negro claims. the little girl's body was lying. You 
can - et into the metal room either. from the front' or the ack if the back door - -- ~~~---~-----

is open. You can lock the back door .-from the "inside. There is· a cross bar 
across the door. The rule was to keep it locked, but a great many times I 
found it unlocked. It was very -dar-k around-the- elev..ato:r -0n-the.:_:fu!st--ftool!-G-1-1--- -----­
April 26th. It was_ a cloudy day and darker than- usual because the front 
doors were closed. It's too dark to stand on the outside and• see through 
the elevator. I.left the factory with l\Ir. Frank on his way to l\Iontag Broth-

or speak to him 'or come into contact witli him in any way that day. · I have 
never goosed or pinched Jim Conley or jollied with him. I kicked _him whe~ 

· I caught him loafing, and sometimes I would take a piece of board to him tind 
· he would laugh every time t did it. I have never seen Mr .. Frank goose or 
pinch him or pla~rith-him or jolly him. No, I never knew Daisy Hopkins . 

. -=--1 have never seen Dalton until this morning: Jh·onr June, 1912, until Janu- ii' 

ary, 1913, I left the factory at twelve o'clock on Safurdays, and usually came - --­
back between five and six. I did that most every Saturday during the two 

- years that I have been there. I may .have missed sometimes, but not many. 
Only on one occasion do I recall that l\:Ir. Frank said he would not be there 
on Saturday afternoon. I would visit the factory every Saturday afternoon 
between five ancf six . to .find out ·how the financial was for the week. 
I found Mr. Frank in his office on every occasion ex~ept the one I have men­
tioned above. 1"Ir.--sill1iff would help him on the financial. A few Saturdays 
I have gone there and l\fr. Schiff was not there. He may have been on his 

:-----~---v-a_c_a_t-c-io-n-.--=l~h-:-ire and discharge all the·- help~- come · in contact with the - - ----,---

help ninety per cent. more than l\fr. Frank. Mr. Frank has nothing to do with 
employing or discharging them. On Saturday, Holloway i~ supposed to leave 
the factory at four 0 'cJock- and the night- watchman comes ~m. we ha.d no 
negro .night watchman t.here last September as stated by M~t)alton. · ' Our 
night watchman 'Yas Mr. Kendricks, a white man. . The first time we ever 

. hired a negro night watchman was. three weeks befQre the murder. As to 
who else stayed at the factory on Saturday afternoons, usually th~ office boy, 
sometimes the stenographer, Waite~ Pride, wlio cleans up the third floor. 
I have never known any other time but . Saturday that the financial sheet_ .·_. · __ 

· was worked on, except possibly a holiday. I ·saw Conley on · Monday. · He · ·· --- ----
-____ looke<!__to be excited and wh~~ I spo~e to him l!e_failed _to loQ~ _up_ a&_:he;usually_ -------------- ··.----- _ 

does. I went · arou_nd the factory that · morning . and .looked at everybody · 

. , 
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to see ·if I could. pick out a man that ·looked suspicious, and Jim;Conley was 
the man l .thought looked most suspicious. Th~ latter part of last year I 
issued o.rders that the sweepers must stop . cleaning up by twelve o'clock and 

• 
1----- - ----· -· --

if the hadn't cleaned up by that · time the woul · oc~ff-and-------
- l eave the factory. If they stayed there after· twelve o ~clock I didn't know 

anything about it. Harry Denham usually stayed in th.e factory every other 
Saturday afternoon to clean the motor and oil the machinery and he selected 
someone to stay with him. He would do this about twice a · month. The 
girls in the packing department did quite some _overtime· \vork on Saturday 
afternoon. 

I have made no contribution ~owa.rd the fund to defend Frank. I don't 
_know anything about_ Daisy HoP.kins' general character. I don't know who : 
nailed up the door on-the Clark Woodenware side. Lots of people have been · 
there all over the_ factory. If a body had ·b!3en shot down the chute, behind: 
those boxes, it would-have be.en hidden ..more than where it was .found. T~' 

.ference in the · boxes Sunday from what I left them there Saturday. No, ~- · 
don't know anything about Conley being there Saturday afternoons and 
.watching. - He wasn't there by my instructions. '11here is. a_ go_od. deal of-
water on the floor of the metal room. On payday in order to keep the people - - - - . - ­
from coming down the back,. the instructions ·are always to close the back 
door to the metal ro.om. There is no special reason for the paint to go out 
of the poli~hing room·, but it is out in . other places. It is carelessly. done. 

_ ·You can see haskoline- scattered around. The floor in· metal room where body 
is supposed to h-ave been found has a rise of several inches in it, something 

. like an edge. As to whether a man standing up and looking_ over the safe 
door hasn't got a vision going beyond the Clock so_ that he could see everybody 
that regist_ered, he· couldn't see it. I tried it. I don't know whether either 
the clock or the desk has been moved before I went to see. My recollection 
is that the table is nailed to the wall and the clock screwed to ' the table. 
You can tear the whole thing up. ~nd moye it. The desk could not be moved 

'-'---------'------~ithoutmy-k-nowing -it. I d1dn ~t -ha.ve -t-h:~ dock fixeda fter April 25th. 

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION. 
1-_ 

On Friday last I made an . experiment by sitting at Frank's desk and 
· leaned over as far as I c·ould-see-through the outer door towards the clock. 

I could see half ·o!__!;he circle on clock No. 2. I could not ~ee any of the . other 
clock at _all. The clock and desk could not have been moved without my 

'instructions . . ·The paint is scattered all round. It ge~s all over the place and 
. . ·. we can't prevent it. We never have ~ashed the metal room floor since I have 
- . be_en t_here. we never found any water or blood_ wher_e _it w_as f!ltid the gii:l 's 

- body .was tound in the metal department. The view I got from front aoor 
OD April 26th into area around elevator shaft was blocked by boxes. 

- - . ----
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RE.;DIREOT ·EXAMINATION. 

I communicated immediately with the police when we found the blood 
back th.ere. I thi~k Harry Scott was the firs~ man I reported Conley's ner­
vousness to. · It was on l\ionday, April 28th. 

E. F. HOLLOWAY, recalled for cross examination. 

I am .the day watchman and time keeper. I look a-fter the ·regis~er tO se.e . 
that everybody registers. No, it was not a habit of Conley to register or not 
as he pleased and to get his pay anyh<>-w. If he didn't register I always got . 

-·- arter him. I applied the same rue- to um as ia -to anyboay else . . I never 
saw Mr. Frank goose, pinch or joke with Conley. I never saw him touch him 
in any way, unless it was wlien he would~o in the office to borrow· money, 
I would. see ·him hand him a quarter, or something. He surely was a good · 
hand at borr_owing, but l\ir. Frank would never let h~m hav·e a nickel but 
what he owed him. Up till twelve months ago the sweepers stayed at the 

swee in that 
wasn't done by noon on Saturday -\voui~ have to go over u,ntil Monday and 
since that time no negroes 'have been there since 12 o'clock. We never had 
any negro night watchmen in July, August, September; or any time last fall. 
We never had a negro night watchman until we hired Lee, which was about 
three weeks .before the murder. Since June of last year, on Saturday after- · 
noons, I always stayed around the factory and looked after-seeing that nobody 
came in .or out, unle~s they had business. I never have seen anybody goose 
Conley. Sometimes I would kick-him to make him go on to his .work. The 
·door that leads to the Clark W oodenware place never was locked. ·it was 

. nailed up when the Clar~: yv O?denware! moved out of 'her.e. I nailed it ~p 
myself. . It .was open on ·the Monday aft~r the murder. it led back to · a chute 
in the rear, and to two water.closets on 'Uie right. Nobody occupies that now. 
I was at the ·factory eyery Saturday. since last June"excepting legal holi.days . 
when the factory was shut 4own. I did not •niss a single ~rhTT'Th~...,,.,.--:+i~r 
August, · September, October, Novembej·, December, and January, exc ing 

---------.--e-g_a.,.__, ...... o-T+'i ~a-y-s-.-. . On Thanksgiving Clay , I stayed there until -12 or 1 o 'cl ck. .. 
I have never missed a Saturday since I have been working at the factory. I 

~ ' 

· · woul~ be ·relie.~d ori .s .aiurdays . at 4 :3o'· p. In. I would go--all-overthe--building -· ---· -· --
. . ! · tryi:r;ig to se~ that ·everything is all i·ight. That was my business. I haye ------- -

never known Mr-:Frank to have .any . woman on Satur ays- excepting_ his wife. . 
Sh~' came there on ·saturdays ·and went home with him, about once a montl_i. 
Mr. Schiff helped Mr. Frank on his book,s on Saturdays. Conley never did 
w.8.tch the· door down stairs. · If h .did, it ~t have been a-fter 4 :30 p. m. I 

' . . , I . 

~ever did .. see. h_im giving_· sig:nals o :Mr .. Fran~ and Frank giving him signals 
/from upstairs. I was obliged t have s~.en them 'if he· had watched the door:· 

-~ ·--/ I . sat .. mai~ly in the -fron · ofl:he - rtildi.ng to see t~at no body came in the build­
) ing. I do .:n~~c~~ any Sat rday afternoon· that -Frank- and Schiff missed · 

./ -~---
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except when Schiff, was off on hii; vacation.· I have never seen any of them 
bring any women in there or take any out. I have never been sick or missed 
a single Saturday since last year. I would leave · about 4 :30 Saturday after­
noon. I have never seen Dalton in the factory at all. I wouldn't have let a 
fellow like that in the building unless I knew what his business was. rrhere 
was nobody practicing any immoralities in the building. If they did I would 
know it. I would have put them out quickly. -Daisy Hopkins quit sometime 
in .May or June last spring. She has never been -there since sl1e quit. :'.\:Jr. 
Darley left the factory between 9 a_nd 10 ... o'clock on April 26th. Ile was not 
there after 11 o'clock at all. If ·he was, he was there after 11 :45, the time I 
left there. I h,ave never seen the front doors locked on Satur<;Iay. I was at 
the factory until noon ·on Thanksgh1ng day. I saw ·no -girls with white shoes 
'and-stoCkings there t iat ·day. _ I never-saw ,Jim Conley that d·ay: -I never saw 
any woman at the factory that day. I sure would have seen· Cenley had h 
been watching the door that day. ·1 have seen 1\b. F1•aalE at the factory every 
Saturday afternoon after he comes hack from lunch .. I would pass in and· out 

- of his office three or four times in the afternoon. I have never· seen a 
· glass of beer as long as ~ have_ been there. I hav~ never s~en any 

women u there. He \Vould be workin 
helping him. The stenographer and shippin'{ cler~ w9uld sometimes be up 
there. People would be liable to drop in there . on business and l would send 
them up to l\Ir. Frank's office. I always kept the door· on Saturdays. I never 
turned it over to Conley or anybody else. · -I have let )-!rs. Frank in and 
would tell her to go up in the office and have a seat. This man Wilson woi·ked 

__ on Saturday afternoon most all the time. Oiled up the motor and 'cleaned it 
while the factory \Vas closed~ Pride, Harry Denham, Charlie Lee, and Fast 
usually worked there on Saturday . oping the machinery after they shut down 
and · different things. They were not shut off by any doors from going any­
where they__w_anted.in the factory. rrhey were liable to come down and around 
any time. I have never seen the . doors either to the outer or inner office of 
·Mr. Frank locked. They have got glass fronts in them that you can se.e 
. irough, an it would not have done any good to have shut them. The win­
dows in Mr. Frank's office looked right out on Forsytii' street. 1'he shades 
to them are torn up so they don't amount to much. . In the morning they 

1---- .. --~- --- - will-pull them ,down to keep the- su out. -hen-tltey ~re up you can see --
. across the street. Salesmen frequently v~~ited Frank on Satu~day -afternoop_s __ 

when-th~y came in from their -r~ns -without any announ~en{ent, _ I have _never 
known Mr. Frank to r~~use to see any <>f them. It ·is very dark about the 
elevator shaft on the ground flaQ.r. The shaft is about ten or twelve feet from 

. . 
the steps. If a girl w.as coming-down .fhe steps and a ma.n was in that dark , 
place it would be a very easy job for him to- throw her down the shaft. He 
could grab her before she eversaw-nim because she ·would be looking toward 
the door. The members of the firm of Iviontag Brother frequently visited 
the factory ·on Saturday aftet•noon~. I remember seeing . Drayman l\:foCrar · 
on April 26th. He- came around_ -to- see if there was any hauling. I "don't · ----

.. 
· , 
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.. . .•. 

•• 



" 

·. 
remember the t~me. I never . saw Conley on Apdl 26th. If he was there he 
was skulking around and hiding. I never saw 1\foCrary talking to him that 
day. On Monday morning I saw Conley, instead of being upstairs where 
he ought to . be sweeping,. he was down in the shipping room watching the 
detectives, officers and reporters. I caught him washing. his shirt. Looked 
like he tried to hide it from me. I picked it up and looked . at it carefully 
and it looked like he did~ want me to look at it at all. The day before that 
he went out with a pair · of overalls corresponding to this blrnL &hirt _that_ hft __ ______ _ 
has, and he said he wanted to <!arry tliem to a .negro at Block's candy factory 
_and he had not had time to have gone to the candy factory before he came 
back and said that they were taking stock over there and would not let him in. 
T11e · overalls had been washed and dried and I could riot tell if there is _ any-----~~---

. thing on. them or not. I don't know whether he can write or not. At your 
request to :-day I walked from the middle of the car track at the corner of 
Broad and Hunter to the pencil factory and then ups_tairs in Mr. Frank's office. 
I waiked just in an ordinary way like I thought a lady would walk. It took 
me two and a half minutes. I walked from the corner of :.Marietta Street and 
Forsyth Street to the pencil factory. It took . me six minutes. 

RE-DIRECT EXAM! 

I didn't have any conversation with Kendrick, the night watchman, since 
this murder was committed .as to whether or not Frank ever .called him after 
he left the factory that night. No, I did. not try to get Kendrick to swear that. 
No, I didn't tell Whitfietd--the day before they turned up that big club "Be 
sure to come back to-morrow, you will be certain to find something.'' So 
far as I know the general character of Daisy Hopkins is goo.d. I don't remem­
ber telling you the contrary. I don't deny signing that affidavit. (Ex. "I" 
State.) I don 't remember telling .you in this paper (Ex. "I" State) "She 
is anything but a nice girl. You can't depend on what she says. ' ' . Yes, I said 

· it in: the affidavit_! gave it was 10 :45 when Mr. Frank and l\fr. Darley left. l\ib. 
_ Frank got back about 11 o'clock. That wa-s all guess work about the time they 

____ left. I never said anything ·about getting the reward for Jim Conley. I tol~ 
some of the detectives several days after-th-ey came down after the . negro ·if 
this negro is convicted he is my negro. I knew about the reward ·being offered. 

~- If I told you· ~hat I some-times left the factql'y at th1•ee o'clock I- meant four 
o'clock. Jim Conley worked .regu1arly at · the factory except when he was 
in the stockade thirty days. Conley registered every morning, but a lots ~f 
times 1i·e would not register at dinner and sometimes. at nigh~ I nailed· up 
the door that leads into the Clarke W oodenware plac·e on Monday .because ·we 
never-let-that door stand open. Mr. Darley_told me to do it. I know it was 
not ·open on Saturday. It waE! nailed up Saturday noon when I left there ; 
and it was open Monday when I got there. The ·chutes oack there· were nailed 
up. . The one next to the rear end of the building I know was ·nailed up to 
keep the Clarke W sodenware people from coming up through there. Boxes 
were piled up back in there. 'l'h~~l stairway back tl~ere has been nailed U:p for 
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.some time. Hasn't been used since Christmas. If the negro went out and 
-: bought-beer I--tiidn 't know it. I never saw him. I don't recollect whether 

the drayman w~_. .up there April 26th to get his pay or .not. . There was so 
much excitement in the factory on lVIonday that we shut down about 9 :3.uO-. -­

. 0 Nob()<l.Y stayed at their· work. "Jim Conley quit work like everybody else 
and went-out.- -:As o nc thing-that- eoni-ey did that the thers didn't .do 

. I haven't got any. The shirt he was washing was the same shirt he had been 
·wearing all day. I say that he was trying to hide the shirt because he . was· try­
ing to push it over behind the pipe where you couldn't see it. He had the 
shirt on when he was arrested. lie '''as not trying to hide it then. 

-
RE-CROSS EXAMINATION.-

. - . 
1-----------L.___H~ - - \giil~.r <mnrtsitbp~enas.~ · . ~-=-~-

... . . "I ""- . 

thought· I had to go there. 'rhere were three or four men when I got there. 

GEORGE EPP8, 're-called for c~oss examination. 

I was present on Sunday after the murder when a gentleman came out 
to the house and talked to me and my sister about when was the _last time 
we wasn .t,. 
there. I was in the house. · 

HARRY'_SCO'r'f, re-called for 8tate. 

- It took Jim Conley two or three minutes to write out the no.tes that I 
dictated to him. 

) 

- CROSS EXAMINATION. 

·· .I knew on l\londay that Mrs. White claimed she saw a darkey at. the 
pencil factory. I .gave that info'rmation to the police department. -1\iir. Frank 
gave ·me the information .when I first talked to !Iim. I _!!ever iuqu.~red of Fra~k 
or any of the pencil factory people if Conley could write. · Sunday, May 18th, 

· I was .present when Conley · made his statement.. May 18th. I wrote it out 
myself. (Defendant's Exhibit 36.) He niade no furtiier statement-on _. that 
day. He stated that he did not go to the pencil factory at all that day. 
· t that time I knew · 

. '----., 

statement. The information that Conley . could write came from the pencil 
factory on May 18th. ·- {)n Ma.~-1-Sth I dictated _to Conley these words: ''That 
long tall black negro ' did by hims~lf." I dictated .-each word singly and I 
should judge ·it ·took him more than six or sev.eli minutes to write it: He 
writes quite slowly: :Wh~n iie was brought before Mrs. White to se.e ·if ~~e 
could . identify him , he was chewing his lips and twirling -a cigarette in his 

1 
fingers. · Jle didn't seem t~ know'. how to hold on to it. He ·coulg not keep 

· feet ·still. · He positively denied on May 18th that he had anything to do ·with _ _ 
the murder o~ l\fary Ph~gan and thatne. was at. the factory at all. We talked 

- - - - - - - - - - --------. -- - -
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ver strongly- to him and tried to. make -him give a confession. We used a 
little rofanity and cussed him. He made that statement after he knew that I 
knew h co.uld write. We had him for about two or three hours that <:lay. He 

_..,ma e ano-liers tatemenf on · ay 2~Jl1 whiCh w-as put in writing. (Defend. 
ant's Exhilft 37.) He was carried to ~Ir. Dorsey's office that day and went '\ . . . 
~over the stat~1ent with l\Ir. Dorsey. He still denied that he had seen the 
little girl the d~ of. the murder. Ile swore to all that the statement contains . 

. That statement '~s a volunta~·y statement from him. He sent for Mr. Black . 
and we went there ~gether. y.,-: e questiont~<l him again very closely tor about 
three hours on May 2-th--1L.~pc.atclLthc sto1~y that he told-in his sta.te-nient.- -

----:- · -of · May 24th. · We s - l:tm=ag.ain-on May 27th in Chief Lanford 's offi'ce .-
Talked to him about five r six hours: y.,r e trie<l to impress him with the fact 
that Frank woul<l not have ,;ritten'· those notes on Friday. That that waS-J.10....,.~---­
a reasonable story. That sho red premeditation· at1d that woul~. not do. 'vVe 
pointed out to him why the fi t statement _would not fit. W~l<LhinL we 
wanted another statement. He c ·c1ined to n1ake another statement. ~ He said 
·1 

or six hours again; endeavoring to m ke clear several points which -were far­
fetched in hi~ statement. Vle pointed t to him that his statement would not 
do and would not fit. . He then niB;de us · nother long statement on l\Iay 28th 
(Defendant's Exhibit 38), having been told hat his previous statement showed 
deliberation; that that could not be accepted: He told us then all that appears 
in the statement of l\Iay 28th: _He never told us nytl~ing about l\[r. Frank mak­
ing an engage~nent for him to stamp for him and or hlm to lock the door. Ile 
told us nothing about seeing l\Ionteen Stover. -He did not tell us about seeing 

· :\Iary Phagan. He said he did 11ot see her. He · dn 't say 11e saw Lenunfe ·- --
_ _ _ Qui!!~ _·Conley was a rather dirty negro when I th t ·saw him. Ho looked 

pretty good when he testified here. Fra.pk was arre "ted · Tu~day morning 
at about 11 :30; on l\f°ay 29th we had another talk with lu n. Talked with ·him _ _ 
almost all day. Yes,. '\Ve pointed out things in his· story tll t were improbable 
and told him he must-do better than that Anything in his tory that looked 

. to _he_ out of place we told him wo.ul~n 't do. After he had ma e Jiis last state-
.e 1011 i n a 1me. · e 

-~ ·Uien-mad-e-his~statement on l\fay 29th (Defendant's Exhibit :W.) He told 
us all that appears in that state1iient.--We tried to get him to teh. about the 
1 . e mesnbag. ·we trieclpretty strong: He always denied ever hg-vi~g seen 

-it. . He never said th_at-.1.W-.saw it in Frank's office, or that Frank put "it in his 
safe . . We asked him about the parasol. He didn't tell us anything: about 
it. Ile didn't tell us anything about Frank stumbling as he got on the street 
floor at · the elevator and hit-:-him-. Since making this statement on May 29th 

.---1 ·have.not commui:ticat~d with Conley and have not seen him . . He never told 
us that he came from ·.his l)ome straight to the factory. .He denied knowing 

· · · e· ase en in e e eva or s a t ... ··-
He never said -he -'v~nL.down there hi~self between the time lie. lir"Ns+--t ..... e~a-Rm'We-t6-----­

-~=th.e-facto.r.y and....wenLto-1\!ontag~s..__He . ...neYer said he thought the-name of 
. :( 
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tl;e little girl was Mary· Perkins. He never said anything at all about :Mary 
Perkins. We pressed hiin that day as to whether he saw l\fary Phagan or ·not .. 
Ile finally told us that he saw her dead body. He never did tell us that he heard 
a lady scream, though we asked him about it. Ile .said he did not hear anybody 
screa~ while .he was sitting on the box. He said he didn't hear. anything at . 
all that day. He nevei'-Sftid- anything about :Mr. Frank having hit her, and 
having hit hertoo hard . . Ile never said anything-about somebody running on 
tiptoes from the metal department and back again. Ile said he did not he.ar 

· any stamping. He ~id not tell us anything a bout l\ir. Frank telling him ho~ 
to lock the door. He did not tell us anything about Frank having a cord in 
hi.s hand at the top of the steps or that-Frank looked funny about ·his eyes 
or that his face was red; He didn't tell us that he went back there and found 
the little girl with a rope a1;oun her neck and a piece of underclothing or that 
he went back to !Hr. Frank and told him the girl '"as 4ead, or that he wrapped 
her in a piece of cloth. · He sa'd it was a crocus sack. Ile did not say any­
thing about l\Ir. F,rank sayipg "Sh-sh." He didn't say that he put the 
sack. on his shoulder and that body dangled round about his le . . · · · 

e ever saw ie r1 on; didn't know where it. was. We· asked him whether 
there was any thought of ·burning the _Mdy and he said not. He didn't 
know ·anything about that. He never said anything about his promising to come 
back and. burn the body or that he said to Mr. Frank "You are a white man 

--

and done it, and I am ·not going down there and burn it myself"; or that ti . 
Mr. Frank had arranged to give his bond and send him away; or that Frank __ _ 

·----·- -

said he would hav·e a place to get in by when he came back to 1lurn the body, or 
said h~ owed a Jew ten cents and paid it. He did not tell us o.f any conver-

-- _____ sation he had with 1''1r. Frank on Tuesday after the murder in which l\ilr. Frank · 
said "If ·fou had come back on Saturday and done what t told you there 
wouldn't have been any trouble.'' As- to the scene between Conley and me 
when I undertook to convince him that I knew he could write on Sunday, 
May 18th, I called him ·UP · at Chief Landford 's office, ga'Ve him a paper ·and 
pencil and toldllilll--that we understood he said he couldn't wrfte and now we 

_knew he could write ·a.nd we wanted him to write what we told him. lie sat 
ther.e and-looked-- at - . · · .. - -: -- - ~ - -- ;;_.1 e· as · 

-- ~ - dictated and he picked up "the pencil and wrote -immediate};. we convinced 
him that we knew he could write and then he wrote. 

RE-DIREO.T EXAMINATION . .. ·- . 
I got information as to Conley WI'iting through my operations while . I wa~ 

t . • • • 

out of town. Mc Worth told me ·when I returned. · _l_got no information 
personally abtmt, Oonley beh1g able to write from _the -P.encil ·company p~ople. 
P-ersorially I · did not get information. as -to ·Conley's being able to write fr~m 
Pencil company. I got it from outside so~rces, wholly discon~ected with .the 

_ Pencil com any . .. As to w · · · ou · rs. 
White's statement about 1:1eeing a negro down there, . my impression is I told 
it in, ·my m~ny .eonversati<ins ,with Bla~k~ and _ Cl_!_i~f Lanford and Bass Rosser. 

·. . . 



-~---. 9> 

... 
\ 

83 

,J . 

- - - . -

Don't know t4e day. It was shortly after April 28th. After Conley made 
his last statement · Chief Beavers, Lanford and I went to the jail with Conley 
and saw the Sheriff and he went to Frank's cell. The last time I saw-. Frank . 
was Saturday, May 3rd. As to whether Mr. ·Frank refused to see me~ only 
through SherifflVIangum, as to the number of matters I told Conley didn't fit 
the .first time and those I told _hii:n didn.'t fit the last · time, I coutd 
not. name those, that would almost be impossible unless I had the statement 
clear in my head. I never suggested what to put in · or what 'to substitute or 
what to cl1ange. They came from Conlei· himse..Jf. 

THE STATE RESTS. 

EVIDENCE FOR THE DEFENDANT. 

\\!. \V. MAT1'HE\'\TS. sworn for the Pefendant. 

I work for the Georgia Railway & Electric Co. as a motorman. On the 
26th da · of A ril I was running on -English Avenue. Mary Phagan got on 
my car at Lindsey Street at 11 :50. ··Our route was--rom e woo o ng is 1 _ 
Aven-ue, down English A venue to Kennedy, down Kennedy to Gray, Gray to 
Jones Avenue, Jones Avenue to.. l\~arietta, Marietta to Broad, and out Broad 
Sh~eet. From Lindsey Street to Broad Sfreet is about a mile and a half or two 
miles. We make frequent stops. We were scheduled to _arrive at :Marietta 
and Broad-at 12 :07 1-2. We were on schedule. We stayed on · time alf day. 
Our car turned up Broad St. l\Iary Piiagan got off at Hunter and Broad. 

·It takes generally from two .and a half to · three minutes to go · from Broad 
and ·Marietta to Broad and Hunter. rrhat is a very congested street and you 
~ust. go slow. I was relieved at Broad and :Marietta ·by another motorman, 
but sat down in the same car :one seat behind Mary Phagan. Another little gh!.l 
was sitting in the ~eat with her. We got to Broad and Hunter about 12 :10. 
Mary and the other little girl both got off and walked to the sidewalk and 
they wlieeled like they were ·going to turn around .on Hunter Street, both of 
them together. The pencil factory is about ~ block and a half from where · 

· · l\' r t Lindsey 
Street. There wasn't any _ little boy with her. rrhe first time I noticed the 

~· little girl sitting with l\'lary was when we left Broad and Marietta Street and 
· I went back into the car and saw this i"ittle irl sittin with her. I know the 

. . . -----'""--~---""'--------------------
little Epp~ boy. I have seen ·him riding ou my car. He did not get on the 
car with her at Lindsey Street. I saw :Mary's body nt -.the undertake1•'s:· .It-..· 
w~.§}he same ·girl that got on my 1•ar. · · 

CROSS ·EXAMINATION. 
- . 

· .· I did not tell one of the detectives that we might have .beeQ: running three 
. ,- . -

. . . . .· . . :l\iary did not 
... ---

- ---------- -- . ~ --
<~· 
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- - ~ - ~et ott the -car at.Broad and Marietta becaus-e .ther~ ,vas a street car co~ductor 
sitting behind ·me, an ·ex-conductor and he had a badge on his coat and I 9 . 
loQJred at it and it" }:lad a little gh~l 's pictu~P- and-I- reached over to where Mary 
was and said, "Little girl, here is your picture," and she said, "No, it is not." 
I on t now wl10 the other little girl was siitingwith her. 1'heother littt~ 
girl was dr.essed something lil~e Mary. · I didn't pay much attention to their 
dresses, but they looked sort of alike. Mary's dress wasn't black. It was 
light colored. I know Epps since this case came up. I could identify him. 
I never paid much attention to her hat. It was Iight --colored I reckon but I 
.am not sure. It just seemed· that ':V.3.Y·: 

RE-DIRECT EXAMIN·ATION. 

I identified Mary's body Sunday afternoon after the murder at the under- - . 
_taker's. · There was no doubt about her being the ·same girl. I knew her 
well by sight. - She rode- on my car- lots:-- . - -

RE-CROSS EX~INATION. 

-_ -~ I ·can t te you whet ie1" 

- ,._ ... ~ 

W. T. -HOLLIS, sworn for the Defendant. 

I am a street car con uc or. - n t1w · 26th· of April I was on the English 
Avenue Line. · We ran on schedule that day. l\iary Phagan got on at Lind-
sey Street at about 11 :50. She is the same girl I identified at the undertaker's. 
She had been on my car frequently and I knew her well. No one else got on · · 
with ·her at, Lind~ey Street. Epps did not get on· with her. I took up h=e=-r _ _ 
fare on English Ave., several bloclrs from where she_ got on. And no one was 
sitting- with her then. ·I do not recollect Epps g~tting on the car at all that 

· morning. Don't know whether anybody else afterwards sat wit~1 ~~ry _ ~r 
not. We got to Broad and Marietta ~en and a half minutes after twelve, 
schedule time. I was relieved at Forsyth and Marietta Streets, where I got 
off. Mary was still on the car when I got off.' - It takes two and a half minutes 
to-run-fr.om Broad and Maiietta to Broad and Hunter. I ha~e timed the_car 
again and again since then. I identified the little girl ·at the undertaker-'s 
Sunday afternoon. · Didn't notice the color of her clothes. ____________ _ .. . 

I --CROSS· -E~AMINATION. 
-

. Mary . rod~ with us two or three times a week. So . did Epps. I don't 
know where he got off or where he got on. We are not supposed to come in 
ahead of time. We never come. in two or three minutes ahead of time. , We 

· · a~e a little late sometimes; I never no.ticed anybody sitting with l\'.lary. She 
was sitting bylrerself-when I got ·her fare. There wasn 'tbut two or three 

--------:---~p=a=ss=e~gers-on-themn·-ancl-I--know there . wasn1t- any-body - sitii~g with~e~lf---­

Epps was on th"e car I don't recolle~t it. · · I don't . recall the ·n~me of any ·oth~r . 
~~~~~~-~- -

-~----. - . 

e. 
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passengers except ?vlary Phagan. As to what attracted my _attention to l\{ary 
getting on the front end of the car, as a general rule w he:q she would catch 

_ our car· l\ir. l\iattlfews would say to her "You are late to-day," and sometim~s 
she would come in and .remark that she was mad ; that she was late to-day and 
when she came that . morning l\ir. l\fatthews said to her, ''Are you mad 
to-day Y '' and she said, ''Yes, I am late.'' And so:r:_t of laughed and came on 
in the car and sat down. She usually caught our car when she came in the 
morning, the one due in town at 7 :07. I didn't know Mary's name, I just 

' recognized Mary's face . as the little girl who traveled with us. . .. 
. · . 

' 
RE-DIREQT EXAMINATION. 

I heard of the murder the next day. Newspaper reporters asked us to 
· go· down and identify tlie girl. There was no doubt about her being the little· 

girl who was on our car. Oliver Street is the next ~treet to Lindsey. I did 
not see Epps get on at Oliver Street. i:t is against Tne· i·ule oftfi e company to,__ __ -_-_----· 

et to · the city ahead of time. 

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION. 

. It is not against the rules to gerlii behind time. Sometimes we might 
get there a few minutes ahead of time, but hardly ever. We always look at 
our watches at the main destination, just at Broad and Marietta. We aJ·~ sup-

·- P.O~e<!_jo do that. · 

HERBERT G. SCHIFF, sworn for th-c Defendant. 

I am assistant superintendent of the National Pencil Co.; U 1ave been 
with the company _about five years. Part of my duties was to get up data 
for the financial sheet. I occupied the same office as :Mr. Frank. I took a 
trip on the road on the first Saturday in January. All .of the company's 

__ _,.,money except the petty cash was kept over at ?vlontag Bros.' office at the gen­
-eral manager's office, l\ilr. Sig Montag. All mai1 of the company is received 

.f 

~-af Montag-Bros. ·The men in~M-r.-j\lfontag~s ffice made-the-deposit of "nti'11'1""t"1--------.• - ­

of the company. Mr. Frank and I only- handled the petty cash ranging ·from 
~ - $25.00 to $50.00. When we wanted money_ for the pay roll, we would get a 

check from l\·Ir. Sig l\!Iontag -who sign~d for the company. Mr. F! ank and I 
·had no_a.uthol'ity to sign checks. I would go· tQ the· ba_nk and get the money 
and we would go .to work at once filling the pay envelopes. We would always . 
draw the exact amount of the pay roll. Our petty 'cash amounted to from 
$25-t<>-$50. .We kept that on hand for items like .drayage, kerosene, soap, 
c~ndles. The . money for the cash 'would also come from iir. l\iontag 's office. 
The salary of :Mr. Frank and myself were paid by check, on . the last of the . 
. montll,-or-the'--:flrst- 6£ the _next-month. l\fr. Frank's sala~y was $150 a· month---~· . 

_ _ _ and niy own $80. Montag Bros. office is--about four blocks from the factory . 
. . The co·mpany's bills .were paid from Montag Bros.' office, where all the finances 

.. 
. . 
. · ' 
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of the company were t~ken care of. We simply looked after the manufactur­
ing· end. The financial sheet which l\Ir. Frank and I worked on on Saturdays 
showed how our week terminates, whether at a profit or loss. We had to show 
what w·e manufactured, what we packed, the materials that were made to- go 
on the pencils, covering lead, plugs, tips, boxes. We showed our shipments, 
what .our avera~'-job~---amuunted to, what we purchased . for and the 
price. -6trr factory week began on Friday night-and went through Thursday 
night. In makiIJ.g up · the financial sheet ,11,re would show . _t~ as ending on ---

-Thursday of every week. We couldn't make it up until Saturday afternoon 
because our reports very seldom· came in before Friday noon and sometimes 

-·-saturday morning and ··also -our--pajrTo~l which -showed on the financial sheet. 
--,rhese reports and the pay _roll were necessary to :make up the financial sheet: 

We paid off at Saturday noon. It has bee_n our fixed custom ever since we · 
have been Ill existence to make up the "financial sheet on Saturday. I help 
Frank make out the financial sheet by getting up part -of the data, getting 
up a sheet that we term the · factory record, the number of pencils packed for 
the week, getting up the tip records; I get the reports from the different fore-

. . 
slats delivered to-manufacture pencils with, and give bim the totals of the pay 
roll. With the except_ion of the last week in July and the · first week . in 
August I missed no time from the f~ctory after June~ 1st, excepting my trip 
on the _ road during January. With that exception I b~ve-no-t-missed-a-single 
Saturday after the first of June, 1912. ·1 usu~lly leave the factory at -12-:-30·- -­
and return at 2 to 2 :15. Frank would leave a little after one and-return about 
three. I do not recall a s_ingle Saturday that Frank returned earlier· than I 
did. As soon-as Frank would get back he would get to work on his part of 
the data and h~ would. continue to finish the she.et. ' We both~ worked to-
gether. The street doors were always open . . Office boy would be in the outer 

_ _ · office. Frequently we we~e interrupted by salesmen calling on us Saturday 
afternoon; The stenographers came back very seldom on Saturday afternoon. 
We. were liable-tQ be--inierrupted at any time on Saturday afternoon by people 
·on business. As to _ who else stayed at the factory on Saturday afternoon, 
Harry Denham Uf\mally, Walter Pri4e, Holloway, who would stay until 4 :30. 

~~-----L-~--

N ewt Lee was the first negro night watc11man -we everhad-:- Fran an usua y 

~ . .• 

-- .~ .' - · • I 

left the factory at half past five- or a qu~rte~ to _six on--88lurda~s we usually 
. · left !ogether. Very oft.en Mrs. Frank would_ come up to the office on Satur-
day. I never saw Conley around the office on Saturday afternoon ·after two 
o'clock. We never had any women up in the office. I never saw any there. 
There is not a bed, cot, lounge or sofa anywhere in the building. There is a 

--~ _ _ dirty box with dirty crocus sacks -on it in the basement on the Clarke Wooden 
W a1•e Company side. It is very filthy-and di~ty down there. I went on the 
road on th~. _first Saturday in _January, 1913. I gotoack · to the factory that 
day about 2 :15, in the afternoon. There were ten or twelye .fellows there. 
Conley . wa_s not th~re. They -were -a1Cthe1•e and told me - good-bye, with the 
exception of · two or three who .accompanied me to the . b.~.~i~,_:_i_!lc!u_ding .. Mr . . 

·' 

_ ___. .. . 

• 
---·---
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Frank. 'rhere were no women at the faGtory. I have never seen l\ir. Dalton 
in the factory in my life. Daisy Hopkins worked on the office floor. She 
left the factory June 6th, 1912, as · appears on the time book. Never saw her 
·in the factory after she quit work. On the first Saturday in January, Frank 

· remained in ·the office with me until 5 o'clock to catch my train. _l_ was · at the 
factory last Thanksgiving day. It was very cold and rainy. It was a holiday 
at the factory. The office boy and Conley were also there. I ordered Conley­

. to come back that day to clean up the box .room with Frank Payne, the office 
boy. Con.ley g9t thro-qgh about half past ten. I know he did not stay at the 
factory until noon. Frank and I were all of the time in the office doing 

·clerical work. Frank left that day. at 12 o'clock. We left -together. I saw 
Frank catch his car for home that day. ~,rank was carrying bundles, for the 
B 'nai B 'rith, which was going to have an affair that night. l\ir. Frank is 
president of it. It is a charitable organization. It takes care of. orphans and --_ _ 
things of that sort. I paid off the help on Friday, Api'il 25th, from the ·pay 

. window outside. of the office. I remember paying off Helen J.i,erguson that da~ 
,Nobody came up to ask ·forl\1ary Phagan 's pay. Before a.ny one could get 

reason for .azcy_one to go to Mr. Frank to get their pay Friday, April 25. · T 
was at the window payi~g off employees. W c had posters put up all over 

· the factory announcing that Saturday would be a legal holiday and that th.e 
factory would be closed. rri10se who would not call for their pay would fre­
quently come in on the next working day, which in this instance would .be 
l\1o·nday. No one could really know whether anyone was coffifng in for .their 
pay on' Saturday or not. Helen Ferguson did not ask for :Mary Phag_an 's pay 
Friday, April 25th. Mr. Frank and I left the factory between six an_d six 
thirty. that day. I was supl>osed to get up the pencil contracts for the week 

· on Friday. It was· necessary to get this up in order to · complete the financial 
sheets. · I did not. get them up on F.riday, .because I had· to pay ·off on Friday, 
and as the week ,·only closed on Thursday night, \Ve had all we could do to 
figure. out the pay roll and get. tl~e 1!1-?ner .. before th~ bank. closed at · 2 o 'cl?~k 
on Friday. That threw extra W'Urk on l\.f~rank 'm, getting up the financial 
on Saturday. I intended ·to come back . to the factory on Satur4!!Y morning, . L , 

;;::-:---:.:__:..._ _ ___,b:-u....,..'t,_..rlWel'--s ...... ce__:.p:_t....,..--mysel .. }\;'fr. i'.J!an ca ~ me ~- y=teieyli:One twice o a ur ay 

' . . ~ 

morning. My maid answer.00.-the telephone. 'l'hat picture .(State·'s E?C. "A") 
shows l\:[r. Frank's office, inner office, to_b_e_ bigger than the outer office. As a 

--- ·- matter 'of fact the ~uter office is twice as large as the inner office. The picture-­
shows a.n inaccuracy as to the relative position of the elevator shaft from the 
outer wall of l\Ir. FrankJs office. It _is directly opposhe the time-clock. · The 
picture shows it below the time cfock nearly to where the · staircase is. The 
door .entering into the Clarke Wooden· Ware place. was open two or three 
days after the murder. The door w.as preyiously locked . There is . a hole 
back there through which waste···is thrown down. It is an open hole. There 

- is ·nofiato-i-t.- If is big enough for the body of a girl of the size ·of Mary ·· . ··. 
Pha.gan to go throug~. If a body w~s thrown. down it, it would roll d.own and 

... 

; 
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stop on the platform. :Mr . . ~,rank did not kn~w that I had not completed the 
. data sheet (Defendant's Ex. "3 ") for him before Saturday morning. It us­

. ually took Mr. F-l!allk and me ~.bout three hours to finish the financia.l sheet. · 
This is the financial sheet that 1\ir. Frank made up on Saturday afternoon, 

!:! 

April ·26th (Defendant's Ex. '!%") .- It is in his handwriting. I didn't see it 
at the factory on Friday. First saw it the following week when I got it back 
from the general manager. It is accurate}~ prepared from the calculations 

- left by me on the data sheet . . I haven '.t found apy mistakes in it. The first 
items on it are standing items and do not require any calculation, if you 
know it. Those-a1;e the items headed, ''direct, indirect, rent, light, heat, 
water, power, insurance, sales departmen!, repair s un ries, l\1:achine ·shop." 

• 

Under the __heading '' MatetlaL£osts~h-e- -fiMt-fi-gupe-216a -1--2 represents-:-the-. ----- - ' 
- number of gross tliat we manufactured-fur-that -week. 'rhat is the data I fur­

nished him through Wednesday night. I left it there on his desk on Friday 
--------L.LL· ghL_ l\Ir. Frank's calculation corresponds with the data that I left there. 

· -He arrived at the same· figure, 2765 J -2, t'1a.t I did~ To get that figure he had­
to enter all his pa eking reports for Thursday- containing two or th·ree pages, 
each of them containing .12 to 15 or 18 items. He has to put that down under 
ilie umber 'o io__w..s D--thi~-e-ha-s-te-ealettl-at-e~-n~------~ 

have a separate report as _to each kind of pencil and then add t~em up. -We· 
manufacture over a hundred kinds of pencils< That week we dealt with about 
thirty-five different kinds.. To do t.Jiis you have to add, Inultiply, classify and 

-----xeparate each ·pencil into a different class. 1'he next item appearing on the 
financial sheet is ''slats,' ' 2719 1-2. 'in calculating that he . had to calculate 
the number of gross of slats used, of the product of the pencils, which should 
check up .-with the number o·f gross manufactured. He ·would have to go 
through the packing. report for that. -The next item is "rubber,'' 720 gross at 
6 1-2 cents, 667.1-2 at 9 cents, 706 1-2 gross at 14 cents: 

1 
That·means the rubber 

plug that goes into the pencil tips. The cheaper pencil takes a ch~ap plug 
and .the higher grade.pencil tak_e~ a _hiW-r grade plug. 1'hat shows how· many 
we use and the kind of plugs ; to arrive at that figure he had to go all through 
the grade of pencils for the e~tire week, and separate the differ.ent ones. That 
is quite a calculation. Next item is "-tips,_" the different kind of tips that 
are used on the. pencil to hold the plug. He would have to go through the 

. ,• 

, J s i e · ie i or tie ru ber. The --next item 
is "-lead," which he had to figllre out the same way~ Different class pencils 

· lake different class l_ead. The -nex-i--item- is -" supplies, ,-,- t iat i~ a fixed thing 
-and involves no cal~ula.tion. The next -thing is ''boxes.''~ - we have some 
pencils that are packed in boxes and some that are not -packed in boxes, 
and he . had ·to Jlscertain what pencils ·were packed in boxes; and in gross 
boxes, and in . half gross boxes, multi}>ly.· them, get them an ' down together 
under the head of "gross" 'to ·know .how many ·boxes we used. Next ite~· t-ttr-- -­

. ''assortment boxes.'' He has to sort out llis packing repor.ts to kno.w the num:-
ber ha<l for that week. · The next item ''wrappers'' . requires calcuhition be-

----~----eause-every ~ dozen-p-en-c-it wr~pper.. People .som~times . want tltem 

-- ·-·--.. ----· 

• 
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packed in ·tissue paper, and he has to know which pencils are .packed. He 
has got to go through all the pencils to determine which took wrappers and 
which did not. Our pencil production averaged . 2500 to 3000 gross per week 
A gross is 144. The next item is "skeletons." Skeleton is a card board 
with a little place in it where six pencils go on one side and six on the other 

• 

and the wrapper goes around it. The assortment boxes don't take skeletons, - -----­
the cheaper pencils do. He had to know the details of the productions of 
pencils to determine how many skeletons were used, just like he did the wrap­
pers. ·The next item that required figures is "lead deliveries." We had tw~ 

--o-ther places where we get materials from, slat mills at Oakland City and.-lead· 
mills at Bell and Decatur street. Mr. Frank kept the pay ·roll .for Bell 

---~-~--~ 

Street, and tne lead deliveries fo_r Bell -street. He had to get-up--for the next . 

~------= ---

·•· 

item the slats that were cheap and good. Then he had to calculate all -u1is 
stuff on down. Next on this big sheet we have the nu~ber of every pencil 
manufactured. We only use the numbers that are pac.ked that week. When 
he __ .g_ets th_rough he adds the total Qf the productions for that week of that 

-~., · department and he comes over here and puts it down and multiplies it by 
the_ price, the selling price, and besides these · items we have pencils that are 

·-bad. -For -instance·, ·we hav·e some of these jobs, if they have plugs in them 
that are bad, he has to -figure the number of plugs and the number of tips that 
were in l1is job and put in all his jobs and come over there and put down 
what his jobs amouni. to. That requires quite a good deal of calCulating. 
The handwriting on the financial of April 26th is in Mr. Frank's usual and 
average handwriting. I have been over carefully the calculations in it and 
it represents accurately the operations of the factory for that week. We . did 
not do any of the work on that sheet on Friday. I think it would take about 
·three hours to go-t-hrough the calculations and complete that 'l)heet. · That was 
our average_ . .time. There is no· difference in the handwriting · of :Mr. Frank 
in the fi.nancial sheet of April 26th, from that of the week previous. . It is 
just the 'same. The financial sheets are · al~ kept in this book here _ (I)efend- ~ 
ant's Ex. "9. ") The one ending :May 30tli, -19l2,is in Mr. Frank's handwrit­
ing. It was made on ~he Sa:turday following that date . . None of. these finan­
cial reports could be made in less time than two hours and .a half. All these 

h ets· be innin with 1\iay 30th, .1912, down to .date. are all in Mr. 
Frank's handwriting. They· were · all do:ne-cm--Satur ay-a ternoons. rom 
May 30th, 191.2? up to date, 1\fr .. Fr~nk_did not miss making a &Higle· financial 
sheet on Satqrday afternoon. These are the original financial sheets (De­
fendant's Ex. " .9. ") They· are kept in our safe at the f-actory.: This little 
cash book (Defendant's Ex. ~' 10 ") shows · the petty cash check~. ~e re.ceive· 
and what we_:.Sp.end it for, little items like kerosene, things like-that. The 
week of April 26th, we used $56.53: of the ·$96.48 we had, leaving $40.00 on 
hand. · The next week we had left on hand $34.54. That is what is marked to . . . .. . - -

· balance, but that does not l\lways mean that we ·have that much money on 
. means that we have accounted for· it. We may ·have lent. it oµt, it~ 

.. .. 

.. . . ,. 
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count it as actual cash .. On that Saturday, w~ couldn't have over $30 or $35 
in the drawer. Yes, I acquainted Joel Hunter, the accountant, with all the 

_data that goes in the financial sheet and explained it to him in detail, a~d also 
l\fr. Bidwell. I gave them all the data necessary to make up the sheet. The 
sheet here headed ''Comparison 19i2-1913'' (Defendant's Ex. '' l1 '') is made 

· up . by 1\Ir. Frapk to show the difference between one week of this year .and_ 
the same week of last year and in m~king that up he has to take the financial 
she.et that he made this year and turn to the-fi-nancial sheet that he made last 
year for the same week . and compare them. This is the comparison . sheet he 
made on Saturday. It is dated April 24th, 1913. (Defendant's Ex. "11. ") . 
The requisition and _house order book CI;>efendant 's Ex. '' 12' ') _also show 1\Ir. 

-- Frank's handwriting on A:m-il 26th. - -Also the last two lines of these pencil 
sheel:s (Defendant"'s. Ex: "7 ") are in l\Ir. Frank's handwriting. I made up the 
pencil sheets ;through Wednesday, but he had to make it up after Thursday. 
He had to put in all the items from the packing rooin for Thursday, enter them 
under the numbers on these other she'ets and then add every item for the whole 
week .. l\Ir. Frank ha.d to fill in April 24th on all three papers and then get 
in all those totals in on that. All 'of the last two lines are in his handwriting. 
He added up all this report for Thursday. He went through the report to 

• 

figure them up, that \Vas u~ually my w~rk. It would talrn him about fiftaen.,__ ____ _ 
twenty or twenty-five minutes. The house order- book shows what day an 
order is received, the firm it is received from, where their place of business 
-and what date it is shipped. As to what work is in this house order· book 
(Defendant's Ex. 12) that Mr. Frank did on Saturday, there is work in there-~-
in l\Ir. Frank's handwriting that wasn''t in there-when I left the night of April 

. . 

25th. Beginning . with item 7187 on page 56, ''Received from F. W. Wool-
. worth,-store 57, St. Joseph, Mo., came in on the 16th, 17th, to be· shipped at 
once .. " That is in Mr. Frank's hand\\rriting, he entered that order. He would 
have to have that order before him before he could enter in that ·book. ·The 
next item he entered was ''House order 7188, F _ "\V. Woolworth, Store 68, 
Terre Haute, Ind.'' That was· to be filled at once. . He · would send an ac­
knowledgment- card for every order_ we received. If the ·, order wasn't un­
derstoo4, he.-.would write. The next item he entered was ''House order 7189,· 
Woolworth Store 53, Lo ans ort Ind. ·to 
4-26-13. ~' He figured that o~·der out and entered it. The .next · order is 
''House order 71QO, store 585 DeKalb, Ill., received 4-26-13, ship at on~e. '' 

.. The next . o.rder is "lfouse order .. 7191,· store ·-~5, Wilkesbarre, Pa., reuerved­
. 4-26-13, ship at once.'' · ~ext · order '' Hotlse order, -. 7192, store 212, 

Saratoga Springs, N. Y~, received 4-26-13 to be shipped at once." . The· next · 
order is 7193, send by mail to United Ser~i~e , Sio_ux 5 and 10 ·cent store, Sioux, 
Mich., received 4-26-13, to ~e shipped August 1st." Next order is "H<;ius<> 
order 7194, Dubuque, _Iowa, . 4-26-13, at once." - Next is · "~ouse ·order 7195, 
Montag Brothers, Atlanta, Ga:, received 4-26-13, to be shippe(l. Jtt once." , Next · 

·is ·House order 7-196 .. -John "L ·· John MagP-us -Company, . Chicago,. Ill. , 
'4-26-13, at ·once." Next .is "House order 7197, R. E. Kendall ·CQ~pany, . Chi- · 

. . . \ . . 
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cinnati, Ohio, received 4-26-13, ship at once. '' All of these eleven orders arl! 
in Mi:. Frank's handwriting and he en.tered them thahlay.. ·That is the regu­
lar book that we 'keep those orders in (Defendant's Exhibit 12). I have 

. . 

. looked at the original orders and. compare_d th~m ·with ~Ir. Frank's entry in 
tne bouk and they are correct. I have here th~ original orders from which 
Mr. Frank made his entries, with t_he exception of one, which I can't find . 
They were in· Mr. D01•sey 's possession for some time. These are the elev('n 
original orders (Defendant's Exhibits 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24.'. 
After Frank entered .the orders_ in-=-thO.ouse order book, he transcribed them., 
to these requisition -sheets. In - -other words, ill each o~der that he receives, 
he enters the order in the book; then makes out one of .these requisition sheets 

. and then makes the "acknowledgment of the_. order to the· party ordering the 
goods. All of these eleven requisition shets (Defendant's Exhibits 25t 26, 27; · 
28, 29, 30, 31, 32, _33, 34, 35), are in Mr. Fra~k's handwriting and are 0. K.'d _ 
by me when I check it, which means that we-shlp--the-goods.-All of the goods · 
called for by these orders have been shipped out by me after being 0. K. '~ 
character for truth and v_eracity. It is- -bad. I would not believe- him on. 

- oath. _The paper that thos·e notes · found by the body were written o_n can be 
found all over the plant. They get swept to the basement in the tras~ . . I 
heard the teJephone conversation betw~en Mr. Frank and Mr. Ursenbach about 
the ball game. I heard l\'1r. Frank say, ''Yes, Charles, I will go if I .can.''_ 
.Sitting at .l\fr.- Frank's desk in . the inner office you can see about half of the 
dial of clock No. ·2. You can not see · the steps leading do wil to the first · floor . 
If the safe door is open in the center office you can't see anything at all. It· 
would have to be a pretty tall man to see over it. It would be impossible fol\ 
a girl of Monteen Stover's· height to ·see 'over it . . The safe door is always wide 

· op~n while we are in the factory. · I went t hrough the safe Monday, T~esday" 
and Wednesday. I didn't find any _mesh bag or pocketbook. . I was with :Mr .. 
Frank constantly wh-ile he w_as at the factory on the Tuesday morning after 
the murder. He did not speak-· to the negro Conley that day.· Monday we 
tried . to open. up · the factory, but everybody was so excited that we couldn't 
with tlie exception of the order of R. E. Kendall and Company, 7197, (Defend­
ant's Exhibit 24), which was cancelled by letter. None of these o~ders were 
at the pencil factory when I le t t_~_re __ r1 ~g t, an · iey wer~e"--"t~1,,..,er.....,e..__ ____ _ 
when I got back on Monday. · The ·work of looking over the.' or,_ders and enter-

. .. · ing them in the order hook and _ r~out tha..re.quisition has nothing to do 
with · making out the financial' sheet . . It is en~irely independent · of .it. 'rhe 

. ·financial sheet -shows the factory 'll..Q}leration from Friday inorning, through-_ 
Thursday night. These orders go into the ne?t-t week's business. · I saw Mr. · 

· Frank -on Sunday aftertbe murder. There was no scrat_ch, mark or bruise on 
him._ Mr. Frank is a man of extreme temperament. If _anything went wrong · __ --_____ -~ 
about th~ factory, ·he would go alno pieces and ·get nervous. It was not 
unusual for Mr.: Frank to g~t'°n.ert()u,s. When a young chil~ was. run ov~r. by 
a stre_et car,_ he came bac~ as pal_e as death, ~nd I .had to -giv0--~4llfa dose of 
ammonia. · He was no. good for the rest of- the day . . I know 3'iln Co~iley'~ 

.c,, : . 
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do any work. The girls were standing around, crying. ·We had. to suspend. 
·As I went ·out of the ·shipping i·oom that morning, I saw· Conley 'standing in 
the back of the room. I said, ''What are you doing here?'' He says : ''I 

· am .. scared to go out, I would give . a million dollars if I was a white man.'' It 
is very dark on the ground floor around the elevator. I have never known the . 
doors i.O_.Mr._Frank 's inner or· outer office to · be locked. Even if they were 
you can see right through the~, part of the door being glass. Anybody could 
look ("'through them and see what is going on in the office. The door to the 

\ . 

elev.ator can -be_ easily. lifted by anyone and anyone can be pushed down the 
. elevator shaft. The motor to tlie elevator is '?n the office floor, and the wheels 

----~--.Rre on_tb.e top_ floor. When you starLup,_Jh_er_e. is -a noise. You _can always 

' . 

.:•-' 

hear the-jerk wlmn-the rope is pulled, and when it stops-there is a noise an 
when it hits the basement floor, there is a thud. The motor also niakes a 
distinct humming noise. The motor box is not kept locked. I have gotten 

· ·: after Jim Conley many times about not registering. · We have docked 'him ·for 
not doing it. I have noticed blood spots on the floors of the factory. ·when- . 

·· ever one gets his finger hurt, he has to· come _to the offiec to_ get it tied up. 
People have gotten --hurt in the metal room, and in coming to the office would 
walk by the ladies~ closet, through those doors. The spots that Barrett pointed 

· out in the regular path whe;e a man · would come to the office if he. were in- · · 
· jured. . There were four or ·five sirands ,of hair . that Barrett diScove:red. I 

saw them. Could not possibly tell what ' color it was. The metaJ room floor 
has not ·been washed since I have heen there. . 

. . 
CROSS EXAMINATION. 

. . 
-knew=&n Monday-that Mrs. White claimed slie·saw a negro there. Frank 

telephone~ me three or-four times. on :Monday to ·g~t the. Pinkerton's. He 
was at home. I was at. the factory. When the detectives got to the factory 

-_ _Fra:Qk was at the station house. He was there ne~rly all morning. He 
-phoned me at fir~t about twelve o'clock, and then ·again about twelve-thirty. 
·_He wanted me to see if we could not in justice to all the employees try to sift 
this thing qow_n, and he suggested getting the Pinkertons. He phoned again ____ _ 
near one o 'clQck. Mr. Frank. spoke about his. nervousness. -He-didn't talk a 

_o o me .once or w1ce .a ou I . 

l think one time he explained t<> me how terrible .ihe girl looked and the 
.other time that they rushed him to _the undertaker's in

1 

a dark room and threw 
---.on the "light. He said he '''as awfully shaken up . . As to what l\fr. Frank said 

when they teleplioned him about the . murder, h~ asked what was tI{e matte_r_, __ -
had there been a fire at the factory. Another reason ~e was nervous he said, · 
he hadn't had _any breakfast, he wanted a cup of coffee. We had ·been with- __ 

. _ out a stenographer quite a while. Th~ work had accumulated to some e-xtent. ' 
· •. · _. · Ast<,>. what -work there was in the factory for Mr. Frank to do Saturday except 

··· __ the financial sheet, he=-entered --the orders, mad~ .~equisitions: I do not know . · · 
~--that Miss Rall entered · all those orders. I know . she toQk dictation. That is 
... all I know about it. The first tim~ t saw those _orders e~red OIJ. the ·order . 

I 

' . "J/ ­
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book was on Monday or 11uesday. It' takes about an hour or an hour and a 
quarter to enter those orders oµ the book. It is true that I testified before the · 
coroner that it wouldn't take over half an hour to enter the orders. It takes 
an hour and a half to do all of the work of transcribing them that · you 
pointed out to me. Askhowledgments are usually made' by the person who 
·transcribes the orders 'and enters them on the requisition. If Mr. Frank didnit.-----­
make acknowledgments, that would not make a difference of over five or 
ten minutes in time. I said it would take an hour and a half to do all of the 

,_____ _ _ ___ _ .-. --work lying -on l hetable, requisition and all, transcribe them and-ac knowledge -. --
them. As to · what that work was, beginning · wi~h ·order 7187 on . the 26th, 

- - -- there -are eleven orders, going- down through- 7197. None of · t11at was- done 
on Friday, becal1se the orders weren 't there when l l eft Fi•iday night. I left 
Friday night at half past six. I didn't go to the factory on Saturday morn­

-----~ing. I have never timed l\Ir. Frank entering those orders. I' said I guessed 
it \vould take him thirty minutes to actually enter them: After entering 
them he must transcribe and acknowledge them. The initials '' H. H." 
on these orders (Defendant's Exhibits 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, ·21, 22, 2_3, 24), 

. ---- ·- - .- . - means l\Iiss Hattie Hall, the stenographer. '' H. G. S. '' on these requisitions. 
· ' (Defendant's xhibits 25 to 35 inclusive), are my initials, mean that l ·ehecked · 

the order and 0. K. 'd it and- it's gone. Miss Hattie Hall wrote the lei.ter~ 
acknowledging the orders. I know tl\at because the latter has the letters . 
"H. H." dictated by " . We haven't any regular way of acknowledging. 
Some _ orders are acknowledged before they are ever touched. Therev is no 
certain first step.. It is not necessary that they should be entered in the book 
first. One step doesn't hinge on the other. If Hattie Hall had ··anytlung to 

_______ do with writing these things, it was· done Saturday morn~ng. Th~ orders must 
also be transcribed from the order to the requisition sheet. The average sheet 
was the only sheet thatn:ad not been worked · on · Friday that I found had 

· been worked on when .I got back there. It had not been touched on Friday, 
and I had not ghrnn_allµata for it when I left. The data I had to g~t up 
for it was the flat -' product.ion; the packing room production, the -tips,-1 get­
that ~rom this packing room report (Defendant's Exhibit 4-A). The hand­
writing is that. of l\fiss Eula l\iay Flowers, the forelady. When I received that · / 

· repor , ia o accumu a e ·a t ie ata, penc1 e 1 , an rans erre it to the 
_pencU sheets here (Defendant's Exhibit 7) .- T-hese three sheets are the only 

· thing connected with the packing room for the wee~ of April 24. I wrote the 
figures Wednesday night and l\:fr-. Fr-ank did it Thursday. l\ir. Frank had to 

.. add two 1ines to the sheet. He could get those from Miss :Flowers' report just 
~s well as I could. T~e figures on the .· bottom o - the page are his. All the 

, .. 

writing on this sheet is mine except the last two -line_s a-tdhe bot~om, which u.re. ·· 
----. his (Defendant's Exhibit-7) .- On that sheet', yes, -there are just eleven figures, - - _ ..:..... -

but you got three sheets to get it from, ·one line on all three she-ets and the 
total, making · six lines altogether; It is not easy to · say how long that would .. . • ' . 
take. . It' is merely looking at those things and putting them down, you have 

~~----.,.---___;~~ 

g.ot to go over it, and get. the differ.ent. elasses. of goods that we pack and ·take 

••• 
, .. 



• 
.. 

94 

it and put it under the head of specialty, that is the bead of the clasEJes of 
goods manufactured that week.· You must have the. slat record. I haven't 
got the slat record here. ·It certainly· is different "from this. It comes fr0111 

.· the cedar mill. The item on the financial sheet (Defendant's Exhibit 2) that 
' he got fi·om the slat record is the item under ''Material Cost''-" Slats 27191/2 

gross at 22c. ' ' · That is all he would have to g_et on the fin-ancial sheet with 
referen~~to slats. _ Th_at wouldn.!.t--talre-any more time than takin·g these daily 
reports and putting them on here. He also had t9 .get the lead deliveries from 
-the iead plant a nd the tip deliveries from ~he tip· plant. Our numbers run 
on the sheet like. this, lOX, 20X, etc. . Our two lOX pencils, for instance, man­
ufactured for the Cadilac- Motoi;. Company, if they want a pencil with their 
name on it and our's not on it, we call it the lOX special, of 5 lOX Cadilac 
special. We have to go gown through each number that has been sold and 

, get the make of each style of pencil and they have to go _i~ the right square, 
novering the right shape and the right number of gross. If he didn't he 
wouldn't balance with his packing reports · nd the whole sheet would be 
incorrect. These papers here anq the tip plant and the slat_ record and the 
lead record and the packing · are all the· papers I know were not worked on 
Friday night arid which I found at the factory_ when I go,t t\lei·e Monday. 
Frank needs those four reports to make . up hls financial. Doing that work 
and entering those eleven orders is all that I know Frank had to do on April 
26th. I didn't see them done. I say" I foun4 them done the next week. It 

·was certainly done between F:i;iday· night a·nd l\{onday morning. I. didn't see 
the financial shee~ on ·Monday. '!'he slat ~ord c9mes from slat mills and 
tip record from the tip ·plant. I compiled the data at our plant. If Frank 
had started to work at eight-thirty, I think be could have finished a greater 
part of this work by ten-thirty, i~. he had worked continuously. It is true 
that he could have .. done all of the work in two hours and a half. I didn't 

. hear hill\ say that he could have · done it in au hour . and a half. 'l'he work 
_that I ha~e just been over and the entrfos in the boo~ and the . letters that· ·he 
"dictated to the stenographer is the -sunrtotal of all the work that I have seen 

1----~--~---tffine-on-the-books in· the office on Ap~il----26t1 . ran t an . were no pa1 
off on the 25th, or 26th. · In additfon to the work I have gone over, }fr. Fra~k 

1-------- - had-to-b.ala-n·ce-t-b:e-cask==This:is-:his writin·g-fu md .:.-. 'Defenaant's · -
· . ... 

' . , 

Exhibit 40) and all those figures _were made -that day. ·It doesn't mean that · 
15c worth ·of kerosene was purchased that day, because the entry is not .dated 

- that day, it means that the- figures were put on there that day;-for the reason . 
that the wee~ is riot clo-sed until ·that is added to th~ cash. The date this 
kerose~e · was purchased, AprH ~1st, is fo~nd in the little receipt book (De-· 
fendant 's Exhibit 10_). It was purc~ased o~ the 21st, as sli.own in the receipt 
book, but was not entered in the cash book until the 26th: We don't put . 
our items in the cash book the· minute they are purchased. we put "the total · . 

. of each ~tern under· sub-heads. If .we pay dr~yage $2.QO on Tuesday, $2.60 on . 
~Thursday and $2.00 on Saturd-n.y, there .would not be three -e·ntries in the cash 

__ :_ ___ bQok, ·_ b.ut they __ w..o.ulcLbe... under one. head~-Dl'ayag~ $6j>O, ''· -and ever;ytl,ling 

. . .·, ., , . . 

.. - . 
·· - · .. ~ . . . . 
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- - else the same way. When we advance a ·~an money it is put down on a slip 
and entered in an envelope, called ''Loan.'·' We don't take a receipt for it. , · 
I can_ show th'at ·Frank gave $2.00 to Arthur -White an it was e uc e . 
made the entry in the time book the next week and deducted it the following 
'Saturday. vY e don't ~nter it on ·the cash book. This average !Jheet (Defend-
ant's_ Exhibit 5) is alfl n l\{~., Frank's handwriting. - It begins from January 
10, 19~1. As a rule Mr. Frank put on the financial sheet the average to show 
the General :Manager how the-average of our orders have run. I d.on 't see it 
on th~ financial for that . we'ek. It is no rule. I said he usually does it. It 
doesn't -ajf ect the financial-'-sheet however, if it is not on there. It.doesn't · keep 
the financial sheet from being completed. I say he did work on the average 
sheet on Saturday because. those orders came in that day.: I . know they could 
-riot have b-een -entered the 'rhursday before · and they were entered in fac.t-Sat.~· ------- ---

:_ urday ·because I had gone over the orders and ·find. that they average the same 
·thing that he has got on the average sheet. None of these orders came in 
the factory befor.e Saturday ·morning, because tlrny were not there Friday 
night when I 'left. I am sure of that. I have never known IVIr. Frank to leave 
there on a Saturday with the.financiaL~heet not ready. He would not g~ to 
a ball game unless ·he had his ·work up. I heard h~m say on Friday afternoon 
that be was_g.oing to try to-go lo ~he ball ·game. We left -there Friday-night - - -
together. He didn't go back that .night:. I said .at the coroner's inquest that if 

· the data had been gotte1Lll.Jl for him it would take him an hour and a half 
. to two hours. I don't remember saying that it would take only two hours 
and a half for both the ·data and the financial sheet. I meant two hours ·and 
a half without the data.. .I say it would have taken from twoand a haif hours 
to three hours to have gotten it aH up . . I am not an expert accountant, · and 

.. I base my opinion on the reason that. I _:have goµe back at the same time and 
ha:ve : sat down with him, while ·he was .working . and . seen· him when he was 
finished .. He couldi:l 't . hurry over the worlc, and get it correct. I think he 
could get it up quicke.r · tl~an I could. I am positi.¥e-that-I said at the Coron­
er's inquest that he could get it up a half an hour quicker than I. I may have 
said so, that was only an estimat.e. I have never made up a financial sheet . . 
My estimate of the time ref erred to Frank. doing it. I couldn't tell how long . . ~ . 

. ' . . - .. 
--:-.,-------·an . hour and an hour and a . half. It all de ends on whether you balance or 

. . 

e··-

. l • • 

. . . 

. not. We .. keep our]hile change in nickles, dimes, quarte'rSCtnd halves, _and . 
·you have .to · take the mo:q.ey out of the sack, sta~k it up and count it. As to 
.how I remember where I w.as last ·T1ianksgiv1.ng Day, because 1 was going to 
Athens to see the .Georgia foot-ball game. I remember it snowed and I didn't 
go. I told Conleyand the offi~e boy to come back and be at the factory. The . 

- - 'second reason I remember · is because of the B.'nai" B 'rith aff~ir which Mr. 
Frank went t~ and i helped him carry. his packages t~ the· car. 1\.s to my 
remembering every Saturday that I have.been there for six .month~ previous, 

-· ... l have .never lost a day from the faetory since I have been there with. :tire 
- . exception of my · vac~ti~·n. ·. l .\va~ ~vith . M"r: Frank until half : pasr'twelv·e · on . 

• • - •' I ' • 



... 
96 

-Thanksgiving Day, when 1 left him: at .the corner of Mitchell an~ Alabama, 
where he caught a Washington ,Street ·'car. °j. don't know what he did that - :'! 

afternoon. I do know that I irm~in,.ed at J1ie factory every Sa~urday ~fter-
noon since I hav.e, been there be·caus~ l have not lost a day:. I aid off Friday~_-­

---- April 25th. I remember -·Helen ~ergrison coming to the window and I paid 
her. I can tell you the names of many more that I _paid off that afternoon. 
(Witness gives names of eight or ten more he claims to have paid <?ff.) Mr. 

· F1•ank and !\fr .. 'Holloway were there at the time. It is very da~k underneath 
. the··chute irear the Clarke ·w oodenware Company place, _a_nd we kept s~ellac in 

front of the door there. It is tl~e door to the left. We did not have boxes 
.. piled arc,und ther~fter this murder occurred. If a body had been shot down 

there, it w.ouldJuur~ been Wor 25 .. feet from that door-. -We-· go· -dowii~tre·-r.;;;...e-'---'---­
-;;;ry day -o~ $0. to get shellac ·; you don't have to pass by the opening under 
this chute. I never mentioned any -indication that anybQdy .had walked 
around the chu~saw the place in the metal department on the second. 

---fl~or where they said tl~ere was blood~ It look.ed like a small spot cover~d · _ 
with white. It looked like blood from a _ finger: bein.g cut. It -looked like · 
haskoline had been splashed all ove~· the metal department. 'I' here .was noth­
"ing different about that particular spot from any -others, exceptthat it\v·as· red. 
It ~ooked like it had hee~ swept over. As to those steps by the chute L don't 
know that they-were nailed up immediately afte·r the murder .. . Thre.e days 
after I came up those steps. I don't remember wliether it was before or a"fter 
the .insurance people made us clean up.. I know I 'w~s at the factory on 

: Saturdays and holidays after twelve o'clock. I change the clock at ti~es- if- - ­
I find that it ~s not right. - We don't run it five ·minutes ahead of time. ·Every 

.:. time I. l.?ok ·at it it. 1s o~ tin~. 'Ve do not have to reg-~late it ofte~. _We ~eg-
ulate it b~ the wlnstle in back ·of us every day at twelve o'clock . .: We don't 
set it every time we hear the whistle though. _We have lUl.d-unreliable people 
at the factory. We give th~m a · trial. I knew that Conley ";as unreliabl~ 

· ·---a:-..good while ago. . Fo_und it out the first time I ever spoke to him.· 'When we 
foun& that we eottldn '_t tr~st him we. took him off of the elev~tor. l\lr. Darley 
and. I did it . . We dfdn 't take it 1~p with Frank. ~irls in tl~e factory have 

L---'"--___:.--_..:.~Mdl-nnr"Rlirou:tlliiurs:"s· 'worthlessness. · Miss . Carson and others have told me he 

. i 

.. __. 

- ·· tried to borrow money and slip off. Sl~e co.inplainea to me several tim .. uwLL.L---'-

it, hat-ne.-wastriftmg an didn't clean up ·her department, that ·he didn't 
m~ve the pencils, that he sprinkled on top of the pencils, that he t~ o 
bor.row money. The negro.es would come to ll,le: and told nie that lie -wouldn ·,t 
_pay his 9-ebts-an.d-alip off. .I don 't-k-ne-w whether I ever took these complaint_s _ _ _ 

: _·to ·Mr: Frank or mrt. I was not under -Mr. Frank:. I had authority to fire 
. ~i~, b~t - I _ ~li-~n't do it, because in a factory like that it~is hard 'to get-a negro 
: wpo knows something about _it . . He was -in the chain-gang two or three times, . 

once. h_e worked on ·Forsyth Street in front of the building, and then wom~n . 
would · come up to me and try to get money to get him out, two or thre~· times. 

·.TMt has happened sin:ce he has _been working at the fa~t9ry. i know that he 
has , been in the -c_hain-ga.ng once, · when I saw him working in front 0 the · ' 

•• 



·. 

97 

fact~ry. 'fhe times was when women came up there and tried to get money to . 
get him out ·· I · have seen these books scattered all over -the factory, ·whole 
books and parts of ·books. I have seen them since this murder. Both before 
and after. I have seen sheets sometimes. I knew that Jim could write. 1 
have given him and the other · negroes tablets like this (State's ·Exhibit H). 
They are kept every·where in the factory. They would go do,vn in th°e base- · 
ment a~d wrife. I did not talk to Frank on Monday or Tuesday about Jim ·-. - ---­
C_~mley 's 'peculiar eonduct a ft er the murder. I talked to Darley.. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

\Vheu l stated tha~ i~. to?.k two _and a half hours to three hours to ma
0

ke up 
the financiarslieet,l m·eant without ~ny _interruptions. We have quite a few 

--~ _ _ in_terruptions on Sat_urdays, salesmen drop in, draymen and people come in, 
for tl!eir envelopes after we have paid off. When I said to l\Ir. DoPsey that 
he might do the work from 8 :30 to 10 :~O, I ha-d reference purely to the finan- · 
cial~t; Making t e en ries in Jhe house order .b~ok, requisitions and .dic­
tating the correspondence, I did riot include. The correspondence and the 

~---.- .-entries· in-the requisi ion book is J!SUall _ ~one in the morning. We usually 
go to Montag· Brothers a?o.ut 8.:.30, get the m_ail, ~omerlght back, ackno,~l~dg~--~---­
the orders and answer the _cor1:espondence. I have never known !\Ir. Frank 

•• 

to take up the financial . sheet · before·_ the afternoon. After he finished his 
financial, Mr. Frank would · usually make two copies of the result of .jt, and 
send one of "them to his uncle, who is a stockholder and the other to Mr. Pap-
··penheimer, who _is the president·. l\fy estimate of the time was two and a half 
hours for the financial·sheet , and one -arid a half.hours for _the other work. ~Mr. 
Dorsey's picture (State's Exhibit A) shows nothing in the Clarke ·wooden- ·· , . . 
ware Comp.any except the front-Of_ it. It has left out every scuttle _hole, and · . 

· toilet and· everything there. - It fails to show the door that enters into the 
partition "_ to the ba~ement. _ Hasn't ·got either o~e of these two front d~ors . . 

·· Mr . . Frank's wife frequently did some shorthand v1rork for him on Saturday 
afternoons. I have ' se~n ·her' there often when ·we were behind in our work. . . . 
The haskoline : did not hide the red spots at all. You couldn't tell whether 

~ . . . 

. to be spilled all over . th~ .metal° room. I did not knoF- that Conley was deny-
. . . . ... 

ing that lie could . v~rrite in the sta~ion hous_e, for 9.uite a "while. The Pinkerton 
men. canie over to the factory -to. find~at -if he could. I looked all over and . . 
found a card '~h~re he had signed a sig.natl,.lre. for a. jeweler for a. watch. The 
det~_ctives · found the inf!_>_~mation by . coimng to the factory. · The .. negroes ··~-~-~- . 
always ate in the basement. · Co~ley was familiai;- witb .. tlie -.basement. l\Ir . 

. Dorsey subpoe~aed _me to his . offi..c~, he subp.oenaed some .of the . othe.rs. I think 
h~ phoned to ·me. · Empty "S~cks .: ar~ usually m~~ed a few liours aft.~r they are ~ --- ·-. . . . ~ 

taken ofl; the cotton. . · 
.. . ~ 

. , ........ 
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BB-OBOSB BXAMINATION. 

I had no. objection to coming to your (Mr. Dorsey's) oftic~ered-to 
assist you i~ any ·way I.could. No, it, w.as not 1'1:r. F!ank's custom to make 
an engagement_Friday fo:r. Saturday evening and then go off and leave the 
financial sh

1
eet untouched. ·-The pencil factory is three-m---four blocks from 

Mon: tag's. i Some of them are short blocks. Guess it takes three tq__ five min-
_ __ · ...... u-.tes-to go over there. I hav:e-neveP-timed myself. The first time on .Monday 

, · 

.. 
/ · 

·, 

----

,, 

I observed the pec~liar behavior .of Conley was between half past seven_ or . 
I : • • • • • 

eight o'clock, he was sitting in dressing room on a box.· It was after tha~ -· -·-
. I . . . . 

I went with Detective Starnes to try to locate Gantt and arrest him. Frank .. · 
never wfit t~ .baseball games or matinees on~ Satu~day.- The only pictu~es · 
that ar.e ihang1ng on the walls o~ Mr. Frank's office is a calendar that T·ru1t~ 
and Son:s give away. No, I don'~ know whether the dete~tives· found out else­
where that Conley could write. I g.ave them the information when they came 
to the factory. It was on Monday morning that I saw the haskoline and the 
red spots. If the blinds had been closed it would have been some darker, not · 

· a big · difference. 

RE-DmECT EXAMINATION. 

I have nev~r seen l\fr. Frank talk to :Mary Phagan. 

JOEL C. HUNTER, Sworn. fo1• the Defen~· 
('.. 

I am a public accotJntant, engaged .in the profes~ion ·ten or fifteen years. 
I have examined the financial sheet said to be made by Leo M. Frank. I ex­
amined a copy and then checked it against . the ~riginal. · In order to fin~ out · 
how long it would take a person to make ·o"'ut these r~ports, I went through 
the calculations. I did not make out · the sheets. I · verified the extensions 

· and . calculations on the financial sheet {Defendant's Exhibit 2). I found 
- . : I 

them correct within a decimal. There is one item a decimal i"s incorrect. That . . . . . . . 
was· imm~t~!'i_al, merely an error in the calculation. In order to find out how 
long it. would take that report to be made up, I m~de an examination, line by 
line, itein "for item. ~ figured an approximate time it would take to make the 

ar1ous .en r1es 1 f the data immediately available, and how.iong 
jfit was not immediately available. I put these down in two separate columns 
and then struck an average. In my opinion the ·quickest possible time to make 
out thi.s report, balance the cash, make out the comparative statements and 
the copie.~ of-which they furnished me, I figured.150 minutes. I don't think 

. that could have been done in that time except by someone havmg experience 
in it -and knowing how to set up these facts and figures. This would not allow 
for .checking the figures. ·In my opinion, it would take from three to three 

~ and a h~lf hours to make out. this report, balance the cash;· make out the two 
·copies and the co~parison Df 1912. and 1913. (Witness then details- tbne it 
would take in . his opinion for each particu.lar item that has been ·calculated · 

• • ,. • • r • • • • - - •-•- • • • • .J. 

--. 

•• 
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e .. · ·· and entered and how he figure~ it.) In my opinion it would take a pr~tty 
swift man three and a half hours. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

A maµ 's familiarity with a special class of' work will aid materially in 
n1aking it up. If h.e _h!id had -to get up the information which was fu.rnished 
me it would take him a good deal longer than it did me, fo1~ the information 
was ah~eadY- urnished me. I have allowed for his experience and familiarity 

-- ---- - with the. business, in the way of saving time~ in making my estimate. I have 
tried to make my figures sufficiently conser.vative· to make allowance fo_!' a man 

.. ·in charge of th~ work. I have tried to show it done in· the quickest P.?ssible ~ 
time. I think it ·will be wonderful to make it in less than that. I think. a 
man who could make it . out and verify it as he went along, it would take 

, whole afternoon. 

C. E. POLLARD, Sworn for the Defendant. 

. I am. an expert accountant. ·I was called into this matter for the purpose 
of .seeing the length of time it would take to gather these figur~s and get the ~ 

· result .on the financial she.et anq nther papers that were furnished me. I 
. . · - ·- . . 

studied each sheet_and_ when l w..as sure .of wh.at-th.e result would be I would 
lay that sheet down and make a copy of it. I would take time myself for 
e~ch operation. There was a discrepancy of one and·one-half gross on the fac­
tory records in the· figures, out of 2765l/2 gross, (Def's. ex. 2). It was an 
·immaterial error. The 1'ninimmn time that I cou_ld -do that work- in I found 
to be three hours and 11 minutes, th~t was .-ns quick as I could do it. If "l had 
been interrupted in my work of---00.\ll·se it. wot!ld have taken me longer. I have 
been an expert accountanJ for 15 or 16 years. The mistake that I found . 
occurred on t~Saturday of the week before. Ii was not Frank's mistak~, but 

_ somebody else compiled the . figures .for that week. There is another trifling 
. . mistake under the head of ''value of products, pencils packed'' that did not 

sam as mme. ose are the only two mistakes I found on the whole · 
finanejal sheet,-a mistak~ of 50c. and .a gross tmd a half of pencils. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 
- -~ ~--:.:-- -- --.::-~ ----=----~~--==-. 

- ln:Jn-aking ~y-~xperiment"of ho~Tong1t - w·ould -take, -I was fur1{ish~d --= .. 

with all my data. I didn't have to. get up any of_ the data. I am ·considered .: 
. rapid in my work. The mistake of one and a half gross occurred on April 
- .18th .and 19th. · I don't know whose mistake it .was~ .A.nybody cAn. work-on 

..... · --·his books :with -a- .gr~at ·deal more ease than an outsider can. The mistake I 
- - mentioned did not make the· 0th.er calculations .. wrong, the other calculations" 
·' - were ali"right. The.J:iii~take grew out of_ju~t ·one m~ltiplication. · In .ri.ultiply- . 

ing 791 gro.ss-at 50.1 cents, Frapk made the total $396.75, .instead of $3~6.29 . . 

.. . .. ,. . 
,,. , .. . -

. .'-> . . 

- ---_-_-_ 

.·J . . 

--.. 

_._· .. 
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RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

In making out ~his sheet Mr. ~,rank had to make about 40 multiplications, 
160 additions. The mistake is not a serious one. 

- - -
HERBERT G. SCHI~.,J.i.., ~ Recalled for cross examination. 

___ _ The books show that $4 was loa.ned to Arthur White. I made the entry 
in the boo1f. The $2!00 a r. ran oane um t mt ay and $2;00 
loaned him the middle of next -week. As to where the entr-y is that Mr. Frank 
lent Arthur White $2.00 these slips are not kept after we take it off. After the 
payroll is made -we destroy those. 'fhe books show that this $2 was adde~ to 
the other $2. There was approximately -$1100.00 paid ·off on Friday on the 
pay roll. There was about 5 or 6 envelopes, left over not _called for. The 

' numbers go on different ~laces on the enveiopes. The clocks we have now are _ _ 
the same we· had when Gantt "was there. Whenever there was any trouble we 
phoned for a man to _look after the clock. 

RE-DIRECT .EXAMINATION. 
-,----

_Whenever a_ccidents would happen in the factory we would have · the 
person c?.me. t'I 'the offic~, to the ?uter office~ :Where we _would bandage their 

. hands with th~- few med1c~l supphes we keep there. Then we make a report 
-to the insurance company as to the cause of the acci'dent and any witnesses. 
we always found the . clocks kept good time. . 

MISS HAT'rIE HALL, Sworn for the Defendant. 

I _am a stenographer for the _National Pencil Company. I do :most of the 
--· work in the office o_f ·:Montag Bros. Whenever it is necessary I go down to the 

·" National Pencil factory and do work there. · I saw Mr. Frank about ten 
· '. -· ·o 'clQck of the morning of April 26th, at :Montag Bros.,-wlien became over -

.. · .- ~. : ·. · there tha·t morning. He came in Mr. Sig l\iontag's office, where I was taking 
· ··:dictation and I told him Urat I didn't know whether I would be able to go 

•• 

- ---- -

-• 

over there that morning or not, as Mr. Monta was i · g me letteu-and--MIL•.------­
ran ~aid: ''Well, come if you -possibly . can.'' He had previously asked me 

'\ . , : . 

over the telephone to come over to the factOry. . 
. Thaf'was about half an hour before he came -over -to Montag ·Bros. L 

1-~-....-----~-·_ha_d ___ ~all~~ h!m ~.Q ~o ~t ~ -du~licate bill of _ lad~~ _ and--in~he-c_olll's~of the_ 
onversat_10n, -I-asked Mm- if he would -need me over there that morning, on 

account _ of his having an inexperienced stenographer over the~e, I had been · 
_going over there all during the .month of · April on that account. He said 
"Please come over, I have some work for y~m to do." It was 20 or 30 minutes 
after t'hat that he came over to ;Montag 's. When he came in1Told ·him that I . . . ' 

was afraTd-I .couldn't go over on a9count. of . the work . I had to do at Montags, 
·but Mr'. Mo~~ag finish~d his dictation in a few___minutes, and I tJien told -Mr. 

•• 
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Frank that I would have time to come over there and that I would be over 
there later.. I started ovei~ to the factory between 10 :30 and 11. I went . alo.ne. 
It takes. about five minutes to get ovei· there and I reached there before 

- t 
_· - --

eleven o'clock. I don't know whether Mr. Frank was there when I got there. 
I waited in the outer office a ·few minutes before I started to work. I went 
in the inner office to get the orders to acknowledge for Mr. Frank . . I acknowl­
edged thwi4or--lW.-Frank. I acknowledged them in the outer office. I do the 
typewritingintheouteroffice~~ili~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

to 24, inclusive)' that lVir. Frank handed me and I ackno\yledged. y OU notice 
my initials on them '' ~· H. '' I put on ·there ''Acknowledged, April 26, by 
"H. H." lVfr. Frank got the orders when he went over to Montag Bros. and 
·brought them back with him. The_acknowledgments are the ·first step, in that · • 
case. Several people came in while we were .working, two .men, one whose 
son worked there came in and spoke to Mr. Frank a bout . the boy's being in 
some trouble in .the_ police court. They went into .the inner office to talk to him 
·and he came out to the ·outer office with them. · Miss Corinthia ·-Hall and ~ 

Mrs. White also came in there in Mr. Frank's office and I talked with him. 
' .. 

. During this time Mr. Frank was not doing · any work on the financial sheet . 
.. - .- - -- - 1 find in this book (Defendant's exhibit 12) all of the eleven orders which I 

acknowledged that morning, one order seems to be missing, I just find a requi­
sition sheet for that. . I did not enter those orders on the .book. It looks like 
Mr. Frank's handwriting. _ I did not write any of these req~isition sh~. The 

. • entering of the requisition was done after I acknowledged the orders, because 
when they enter them the house order number is put on -them-when they ·are 
put in the book and there was no house orders on them ·when I_ acknowledged 
them. 'l'herefore~ it had to be done afterwards. The requisition sheets' are 
not made out until they are entered on the house order· book and then 
acknowledged and then the .requisition sheets are nuide. These eight letters 
(Defendant's Exhibit 8) were dictated to me Saturday morning by Mr. Frank 
and I typewrote them there in the outer ·office. . After · finishing them I took 
them in the inner office _to ldm. I did not file these carbon copies, but lfilt 
them with Mr. Frank. · Throug_~cn\f' tJ1e time that I was. there that morning 

" ~ith Mr. Frank h~ did ~o~~:;. th: fiilanci~l .sheet. ~~ ·1 was. ready t~ 
. . 

.. . 

I went downstairs, and remembered that I haq. left my t~mbrella, ,went back, 
got my umbrella and started out. ·When I pushed the clock it was 2 lJlinutes 
past 12. I did not see any.little girl come along"-about-th:artime.- .--·- ·· ·· ·· ---

---~-~ . -· -- -,-.--- . 

· . - . - -CROSS EXAMIN-ATION-. -' ~ - . C - • -

The stenographer. the pencil company had was inexperienced and did 
only about one-third of the work an·d that's the reason I had to do the other . 

. I was getting $12.50 a week on April 26. I am n<?w getting_$l5. When I was 
first employed they said they would give me a raise on August 1st I insisted 

·that ·I be ·raised ~n July ist,4lut t_~ey .wouldn't. give it until A.ugust 1st. It 

.. t . • . .. 

. . . -

. . . ~ _.. 
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was I that called Mr. Frank over the telephone. I did not insist on going . 
over there. He insisted on my comini. The acknowledgments consisted ·of 
st~mping the .orders with a number, putting t~e dates down there · and 
acknowledging them by post ca.rd.s sent to the people. Mr. Frank did not 
leave Montag 's with me. He left before I did. He didn't know how long it was 
going to take me to write those letters. Mr. Montag hadn't fi~ished dictating 
to me when I talked to him. so he di<l not wait. While I was there in the office, 
two men and three women .came in. Tlre ladies came after the office boy had 
left and he said he left about 11 :30. The men ·were in the inner office with 

' him about five or ten minutes. I ·was m the· outer offiGe. I started -t-:<> work 
typewriting about two minutes after he finished dict~ting the letters. I don.'t 
know ho~v long it. took me Jg ~rite them, I am not a very rapid typist. Dur­
ing thP time .I was writing, Mr. Frank was in the . inside office, except when he­
<·ame out to talk to Mrs. " ' hite and came to the door with those men. After 
typing them·, I took them into him to sign. He folded t,he letters and put 
them in the envelopes himself. He did' not ask me to. stay until _he looked 
over the letters. As to what else '. there was to be done that day, from the looks 
of the papers on his _desk he had a good many to disp~se of. He went through 
them as-be was dictating to me, and there wer~ . a good many that . he had to 

· g~·rid of. I was over · at the factory the previous Saturday morning. He 
was not working ..on- t.he 1fhiancial sheet. 1 got up for him the number of gross 

---- - -

• 

deliveries and the price and n1ade an- av~rage charge of how µiuch ·each gro_ss ____ _ 
would cost. '11ha.t was a part of. the "data necessary for the financial sheet .. ~ . -
\iVhen I testified before the Coroner~ I thought that was the financial sheet 
itself, · because I had never seen a financial sheet before. I ltnow now that it 
was the average ·sheet. I transferred SQiile of those things1 to the average 
sheet. I i)ever did see the .financial sheet. l\Ir. Montag gets it. I did not llelp 
Mr.- Frank on ihe financial sheet _ the previous Saturday .. It was the average 
sheet I helped.Jiim· on. I discovered my er.ror as to this being the average 
sheet and not the financial sheet soon .after the coroner's inquest. I -know 
that Mr. Frank was not working on the financial sheet on the Saturday morn-

- ing previous to the 26th. He was busy with something else altogether. He 
-- simply gave me that data to work on. I did not identify the financial sheet 

at the Coroner's inquest~ I didn't even know it. I was not in Mr; F n ' 
inner office on April 26, excepting-when I ·got _t_he orders from him. When I 
told the Coroner's jury, ·if I did tell them that, I didn't remember being .i11 
his · inner ?ffice at all, I have never been in a court room b~fore. I .was so 
rattled that I wasn't exactly myself. Mr.- Frank told me that morning he 

~-· · -=-· _- _ _ _ ·· _ _ wished _Mr. Schiff :would_crune. Qver-i\nQ..finish_the data,-th&t:-he couldnl.t -fix=the . ....,·-
financial sheet unti_l Mr. Schiff got up the data, and he had Alonzo Mann tele­

__ phone_ him to come over there to do it, but l\fr. S~hiff didn't come while I was 
~here. I said at the coroner's inquest that I didn't see Mr. Frank working 
on any of these books that day, that I was in the out-er office and he was -in 
the inner office. ·There wasn't any such looking sheet as the financial · on his . 

. . ' · 

\ 

• 
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_ . _d~sk. · WheJ I _was in there he was at work_ -on a pile of letters and thi~gs -····. 

like that. : " . 
RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

When I was first employed _at the factory Mr. Nix said to me, "I will 
-- ·· --give $12.50 a week, w:Ium-the-busy s~ason · opens ·up, about the first of August, 

I will raise it to $15. About the middle Qf June, I asked him to raise it on 
the first of July, but he said, "We will wait until August 1st." At the time~ 
I testified at the coroner's · inquest, I 4ad _!lever seen any of the financial sheets. 
I did not write a"figure on that financial sheet. At the inquest I thought the . 

- --- average she~t was the financial sheet. I told Mr. Frank that I couldn-!t-stay _ __ · _ 
longer than 12 0 'clock, and he asked me to stay all the afternooi:i and help . 
him, that he was busy. I als.o Jieard him ask__Harry _Gottheimer to come over ·. 
in the afternoon. 

·· MISS CORINTHIA HALL, Swornr~orw-ftkheo-fD'\..e"'f2nen,,...:dn.a ...... nc+-t.------­

I work in the finishing up department of the pencil factory~ 1 am a fore~ - --- -
_lady. I was at tile factoryon-Aprir2~ I got there about 25 minutes to twelve. 
I had to coine to-town on the East Lake car and got to town about;..11 -:30-and 
it took me ·about five minutes to reach the . factory. Mrs. Emma Clarke Free­

__ __.~an was with me. She had Jpent the night with me. Vl e went th~re a_fterher 
• coat and to telephone, to cal~ up Mrs/ Freeman's husband. We· went up to 

the fourth floor to get the coat. and then came down and went in Mr. Frank's 
office. It was about 15 minute~ to 12 -wh.e.D. we left the· factory. Mr. Frank 
was writing when we .came in his office. · His stenographer was i_n . the outer · 
office. . Mrs. · F_reeman said she would like to use the telephone. She used the 

" telephone and then we went out. During the ten minutes we were there he 
was talking-i-otwonre11 between the <?uter office and the clock. He was dis­
missing those two men when we eame. Mrs. White· and tJie stenographer were 
in the office then a~so. As · we were going up the steps, Mr. Frank caUOO-t.v-o~===­

Mrs. Freeman to tell Arthur White to come down tJ;lat his wife wanted to· 
. see him. . On the fourth floor we saw May Barrett, Arthur White and Harry 
Denham. When we left--theJa_..c.tory, the following people were . still there: 

· Arthur White, rs. 1 e, ay_ a ht-er,--Harey-Denham, thH;;e--- -~-----
stenograph.e.r and Mr . . Frank. _ _ _ ~ _________ _ 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

We met Mr. Holloway between Broad ~nd Forsyth ·streets as he aame 
·. out of the factory" and .as we went in. We met Lemmie Quinn afterwards at 

the Greek Cafe. Don't know what_ time it_ was· when we came · out, we went to 
corner of _Alabama and Forsyth to . use -a telephone." It took us about five 

. minutes to go there and ~om\.back to Greek Cafe. We got a cup of coffee . and 
sandwich and were. getting . the change when QuiJ\p . came in. · -
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MRS. EMM-4 CLAR.KE F'REE1\1AN, Sworn for the Defendant. 

I married on April 25th. · I worked at the pencil ·fa.ctory before that, 
at t_he time I was ma~ried. I was paid off on April · 25 by-M-r. -Schiff. On the 
26th I reached ·the. factory with Miss Hall about 25 minutes to 12. I saw Mr. 
Frank ·at his office. He was talking to two men when we went in. Mrs. 
White and Mr. Frank's stenographer were also in the office.- Mr. · Frank gave 
us p,ermissioI?- .t~-he fourth floor to get my ·coat. While we were 

· going up ·the steps Mr. Frank ·called to-me-to-tell Mr, White that Mrs. White 
wanted him. We went on up, I got my coat and came down, and asked per-. 
mission · of Mr .. Frank to use· the telephone in his office. I used the telephone. 
I ~ spoke to 'Mrs. White a few µiinutes and then we left, wJiich was about a 
quarter to twelve.- ! r·e_me1nber looking at the .Clock. .· ·when we. left, there 
was in the building, May Barrett, the stenographer, _May Barrett's daughter, 
Arthur "\\TJ1ite, his wife, Harry Denham and Mr. _Frank. We met Lemmie . 
Quinn afterwards in a cafe. He said lie had just .been up to see Mr. Frank. 
(Cross examination waived.) 

MISS EULA MAY FLOWE.R.S, Sworn for the Defendant. 

I did . not work at th~ factory on Saturday, April 26th. I .worked there 
·Friday, ·the 25th, in the packing· department. Mr. Schiff got from me the data 
for tbs fin.ancial sheet on Friday night at ien minutes to six. . It was the pr()_ 
duction for the entire · week_ from my department. It covers al~ the <;lifferent 
classes of work where the goods were finished. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I always turn those ·reports in Friday night or early Saturda 
They don't touch Friday's work. 

·~ . . 
. . . 

MISS MAGNOLIA KENNEDY,. ·Sworn for·the Defendant. 

morning. 
. . . 

I have beefl-W-Orki~g ·for the pencil factory· for about four· years, in tli 
·· · metal department. I drew my pay.on Friday, April 25, from Mr; · s~fi at the 
· pay window. Helen Ferguson was there when I went up there. I was · behind 

· , · -

• / 

her and had my . hand on her shoulder. Mr. · Frank was not there, Mr. 
Schiff gav·e Helen Ferguson her · pay envelope. Helen Ferguson . d_id not ask 
Mr. Schiff for Ma~ Phagan 's money: _ · ·~ ca~e o~_t_ ri_ght .behind Hele~ Fei-guso~ . . · ·· \ 
We waited for Grac·e Hicks and the~ . .went down stairs. =IULin didn't say any- -·--:~ -~-\-

. thing ~bout Mr. Frank at ·an . . We we~t downstairs about five minutef:l .to six. 
We s·aw ·Helen Ferguson start up Forsyth Street. 

CROSS·-EX:AMINATION. 
\ . . . . 
On Monday, .April 28, Mr. Barrett called my attention to the hair .which 

. h·e found on the machine. lt looke.dli~e Mary's hiir~ ·~y ~achine was right . 

\ 
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. 
riext to Mary's. .There Is a good deal of water ·over there by Mr. Quinn's rooni . 
Mary's hair was a light brown, kind of sandy color. You could plainly see the 
dark spots and white spot over it ten or twelve feet away., Helen and Mary 
were the best of friends and were neighbors. Jielen made mention that Mary 
was not there when we. were paid off. I have never noticed any spots around 

- , . 

the metal room. That's the_fi~st time I had ever seen anything like that. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION . . 

. I haye never looked for spots before. It's a dirty floor, full of oil dirt. · I 
_don't know whose hair that was. Helell' did . not ask Mr . . Schiff for Mary's 

. . --
money. She did not have any business going to Mi'. Frank when Mr. Schiff 
was there paying off. _She did not go in and ask Mr. Frank for Mary's money. 
I left with her. I went. one way and she went another. 

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION. 
~ 1 . 

Mr. Frank pa.id off · sometimes. -lf there is any trouble about the amount 
~-_-'-Of our mone.Y., _we would go to anybody4hat-w-as-in the offioo:--:1\fr~-Frank :va:s-.---

not paying off that day. 0 

·w ADE CAMPBELL, Sworn for t.he Defendan~ . 
. . 

.I have been working· for the pencil factory for about a year and a half. · 
Thad a conversation with my sister, Mrs. Arthur '\Y'hite, on Monday, A__,._r_i_l _ _ 
28th. She told ·me that ·she had seen a negro-sitting--at-t-h-e-elevator shaft when 
she went in the factory at twelve o'clock on Saturday and that she came out 
at 12 :30, she heard low voices, but couldn't see anybody. · On. April 26, I got 
to the factory about .9.:30. Mr. Frank wa~ in his outer office. He wa~ laugh-
ing antl joking with peopl~ there, and joked with me. He thought I wanted 
to borrow spme money. I stayed about five or ten niinutes and left the factory. 
That was about 9 :40~ l have never seen Mr. Frank talk to Mary Phagan. On 
Tuesday after the i::nurder I went up on the .fourth floor with Mr-. Frank: I 

- CROSS EXAMINATION . . . 

_ :My sister said · she saw .the negro when she-went- in the-factory~"Wlien----1 

, ___ she . heard the voi~es coming out, she was coming down the steps from the 
second floor. I saw th~ spots whe1·e they claim-was· blood, ~lose to the ·girl~' .. . ·. · 
d!'essing room on second floor. I couldn·'t say whether it"·was blood or ·not. I 
deny that I ever said that my sister said .she saw the negro on .the box_when 
she c~m~- out of the · facfory. He was sitting on a bpx Qetween the elevator 

.shaft and the ~taircase'. That looks1ik_e my signature. I don't know·whether 
it is or not. · Yes, I corrected .. certain statements in that paper. 

.,. . ~ . . 
~ 

-I 
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BE-DIRECT .EXAMI:t(ATION. 

I went to Mr. Dorsey's ·oftice because he subpoenaed me. I thought I had 
t.o obey it. Mr. Star~es and Mr. Campbell and the sten~graphe~ .:were there. 
All of them asked nie questions. I s igned a statement about twerit~one pages 
long. I have seen Jim Conley reading newspapers up on the fourth floor, twice 
since ·the murder. It is not unusual to see spots all over the metal r_oom floor. 

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION. 

Conley was sitting by the-elevator-when he was reading thos~ papers, 
during working hours. The other time he was reading down · at the rear end 

· of the ··btiilding. It' w·iis an ·e-xtr~, b11t- I don't know what paper It was. · I knew,_ __ _ 
that he could write because I -had seen 4im do-it several-times, with J?en and 
ink. I don't know whether he was makin~ up his report of boxes, but I have 
seen him writing. ·Yes, I ha~een-spnts along tbe route from the ladies closet 
to the elevator ever since ··.! have been there. They have red· varnish and red 

· paint and such things like that ·that look like blood. I am sure there ar·e 
spots all around in the metal room; but I won't say they look like the spots near 
the ladies' dressing room. 

LEMMIE QUINN, Sworn !_or the Defendant. 

I am foreman of the metal department. Barrett pointed out to me where 
he claimed to have found blood spots on the metal room floor. He asked me~­
whether I thought . that be. (Barrett) would get the reward if Frank were 
convicted. . He told me that- sever.al people told him that he had a good chance 

· to get the reward. He said a fellow .told him that he .would get $2, 700 one time 
ana-ir4,500 the other time. He mentioned that reward ~several occa­
sions. The floor of the metal roo~ 'is very dirty. You could not tell at ·the 
alleged blood spots whether they -were varnish or o-il. We have ·blood spots 
quite_ frequently when people get their hands cut. I remember a man by the 
name of Gilbert was hurt in that rootn. He was carried towards the main 
office by the ladies' qressing room and sent .to the hospita~. _ He bled_freely . . 

pretty badly and ·w~s carried by the_ ladies' ~ . g room to tlie main otlice, 
6ght over tneplace where ·Barrett. fo~the blood spots. His .hand was 

. ble_eding. · ·4bout ·a hundred ·w~n---Wclrk in the factory. Haskoline is scatte.r- · 
ed all over the floor of t~tal room. That· .fioor has never been scrubbed . · . ~ . 
since I have been·to..-the factory. I could no.t tell what color hair it was Barrett 

. found. ~er-e-were only a half dozen strands in it. Chief Lanford took it. __ 

e-

e · 

· Th~s a place In t he room -where the girls dress their hair....b-y.. a little gas jet · -
. · .~whichthey use for heating-:-a ·curling iron. It was about ten feet from ·the · . • · . 
-~ lathe where Barrett claims to have found the hair. If a breeze was blowing 

·from this window from the west it would.plow· to . whe_re. t~-e-g-i-rl~e fixing 
. their .hair. The last time I saw M~ry. Phagan before the murder was Monday . 

.. ·: · · .· . .· · -



... , 

• - J 

107 
. - -

Sh·e left about two o'clock. She left about two o'clock because we were out · 
of material -and she was la.id off :for the rest of the week. I have never seen 
Mr. Frank speak fo .. her. I went to -the factory on April 26th., to see .Mr-. -

. ·· -Schifr. He was not there. · ·I often go to the faetory on Saturdays and holidays. 
The· street doors were open when I got there: I did not see Mary Phagan, · nor 
Jim Conley, nor Monteen Stover. The doors to Mr. Frank's inner and. outer 
office· were open. The time I reached Mr. Frank's office · was about 12 :20. i:---· 
saw !\fr. Frank on Sunday . at Bloomfield's undertaking establishment in the · 
afternoon. He had on a black suit. On Saturday he had on a brown suit . 

. -=----- - There was no blood spots under the machine where Barrett claims to have 
· · found the hair. On Monda· · ~f-r. Frank had on a brown suit. There was no --------'-' -- - - . - - . -

.· 

blood at the spot where Conley claims the body of the girl was found. It 
\ . . 

was perfectly. dry there, t.here was no water on the floor. · · 
> 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I _noticed the blood spots at the ladies dressing room o_n Mo·nday. I did not . 
· telll\ir:-Payne and Mi'. ·starnes-lliat I was not 1n -tne ·factory -on Aprir2-6tli.-- ~ -

I told nohq~dy that. :Mr. F.rank is not the first person to \Vhom I tol!l it . . He did 
not tell me to keep quiet about it until he saw liis lawyer . . I did not tell the 
officers about ·h. l\Irs. Frank said he remern~ed my ·being at the. factory; 
but ~id _not remember the time. At the coroner,~ · inquest I- said it was pretty 

=close to 1_2 ·o'clock when I got to vVolfsheimer 's. I don't think it could have 
been. as early .as quart~r after twelve when I got to the factory. As to why 

· I did not .-t~ll the officers, they could iiave gotten it if ihey had asked me. I 
never mentioned it to Barrett either. I told Chief Lanford· on the following 
:Monday tbat I ~as at the factory. I told. it to Frank on ' 'ruesday. He said 
he would m~ntion it to ·his lawyers. I told Frank I didn't like to~ be ~.rought 
fnto it but if it would help him in any. way I would-do it. . As · to whether I 
would have-iuentioned it or not, Wjl-S up to l\I~ .. Frank. He afterwards told 
me that his lawyers advised him tf!.mention it at 'the-coroner's inquest. That 

· was Tuesday afternoon_. I told you in the statement I gave you that I could 
n sw a si i 
· room between_ 12 :20 and 12 :30. I had been up in the factory before I met .. __ _ 
Mrs. Freeman -&nd Miss Hall at the Busy Bee. I . was in the office and saw . . . , 
Mr. Frank between 12 :20 and 12 :25.- · At the time I made the statement to you 

· . ~at I was there betweern:oo and 12 :25 I had reckoned the time down as I 
~-------have now. The back ·door at t_he stairway going -up ~from t eoffice floor to 

·~ 

, •• • 1 • · ... , 

-the top floor· is. fastened with a bar. It is not closed except on pay day. It is · 
. true that a man at the office door--could~asily lift the bar and walk up, but 
a man could not come dow·n to the office floor from above at alr. Anybody 

. could fix that bar in its place . in half a .minute .. ·I told you in the detective's 
office -that I recko~ed the _time of my being in the factory . from the_ti~e I 

· left home and the destination I went to, and I ·said I could not , remelllber the 
stop at Wolfsheimer's which took ten or ··fifteen min.utes, and that is. why I . 

. / . 

'· 

.· . 
·- ---. 



. -

·~ 

108 

reckoned it so positively. I left home I know at about a quarter .-to twelve. 
I look~d at my watch. It ta~es twelve or fifteen minutes to walk to the fac. 
tory. I got to Wolfsheimer's pretty .clos~ to 12 o'clock. I was there ten or 

.. . fifteen minutes. 
RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. . 

~-- :.A.t the time the detectives and Mr. Dorsey talked to me about the murder, 
I overlooked the factL-'thatT had been to W olfsheimer 's. My wife called my 
attention to it when I got home. I mentione<fthis matter to mY' father and my 
wife before I ever mentioned it to Mr. Frank. Mr. Frank did not tell me not 
to mention it to anybody. · If a detective had asked ine I would have told him 
what I knew about it. At the. Coroner's inquest I said it could have been . 
as early as twenty minutes after -12 that' I got to the factory, because I had 
reckoned my time down from leaving home and the num'Qer of steps, and I 

.. :said it must have been between 12 :20 and 12 :25. 

-HARRy_DEN:ILUI, sworlllor the . Defendai;it. 

I .work on the fourth floor of the pe~cil factory. I was paid off Friday, 
·April 25. I came back Satu1'1ay to do s~me· work. l\ir. Darley as~ed rµe to 
come back. I had to work on the machinery when it was not running. That 

· was the_ only time I could do it. I got there about 7 :3.0. Mr. Holloway was 
there when I got there. Between 12 and 1 o 'cloc~ I was working on the 
varnish machine. We were hammering. We worked until ten minute.s after 

· 3. We began ·to take an old partition out and put in a new one. -about 12 
o'clock. It took a good deal of hammering; we were making a racket. up 

· there. ·May Barrett was the first person to come upstairs that day. She came 
.about quarter past eleven. Stayed about three-quarters of an hour. It was · 
after twelve when she left. :Mrs. Freeman and Miss Hall were the-next to .. 
come upstairs and stayed about fifteen minute s-. - They got a coat :a'hd went 
down. Mrs. White came upstairs about 12 :30 to see her -husband. She had 

. a good long talk with him. She was still upstairs--when-1\ttr. Frank_ came up. 
He told Mr. and Mrs. White that he was , oin to O·---- - --'I 

~lose the doors. He stayed up there just long. enough to tell us that and the~ 
went downstairs. Mrs . . White went right down behind Mr. Frank:· I never 
heard the elevator run that day. I .was up on the fourth floor all day. I 

. can see the wheels turning on that floor. There were .no noises. in_the-fa~tory _. 
- ---,=that day, excepting streeCnoises. _When the elevator stops-it makes no'. noise ; 

- : .-· -- . . .-.. 

.. . 
~~· . . ; ~ 

~ · . : . - , .. 

. it shakes the ·floor a little _ wherrit stops. You can't hear ·anything except 
· ·· sl;laking the building Wlien it s'tarts. You can hear the elevator . bette:r when 

the machinery .. is not run~ing. If the wheels ·had been running t4at day I 
could . have seen them from wh~re T was. When I left at .ten minutes· after · - ---' 

· \ 

three,' I ·saw Mr .. Frank. · Mr. White and I came down together . .. Before we , . 
went out, Mr. Frank came upstairs about three o'clock and asked· was we 
getting -out, _.and we -:told hi~ we ·were getting ready to go . ;right now. W·e 

-,,., ..... 
·'. 

. . 

. ~-

:;_ . 

· ~ 

. . . 
·' 

----
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· :were washing right then.- When we came out we saw :Mr. Frank a~ his desk 
in his office writing. l\iir. White borrowed $2 from him. He did not look 

• n loo}{ down from the landing on ·the third floor 
and see whether anything is being .put in or taken out of the e eva or on e 

- office floor. White and I on the fourth floor could have gone anywhere In the 
building that day. It was open to us. =- · 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

We were working about 40 feet from the · elevato~.· '!'here were crocus 
sacks upon the floor where we were .. wor~ing. 1'he first time Mr. Frank came 
upstairs was about ten minutes to one. At the coroner's in9~est I said I 
wasn't certain of , the time. The second time he came up was about three 

__ _ o 'clock. W-e had finished our work. and were washing up and getting ready 
to g~. I am not certain of the time he came up-th.a.fu.st time. I think it was 
10 minutes to one. That's abqut the time l\Irs. White -left. He didn't say he 
was going right~the·n . He said he _wanted to go out. 1'he wind was blowing . ' . 
strong thata ay- an<:l slapping the blinds backward and forward. There were 
D? other noises inside the building. Vv e stayed u~ on the fourth floor all .day 
.except one time when we went «lown about a quarter past eleven to .have 
l\Ir. Holl?'\;ay put some pieces on the band saw. It was a mistake when I told 
at the coroner's inquest that I had not left the fourth floor at all that day. 
A ·person could have gone in · the building and gone out and we not have 
known it. We were knocking and hammering .all the time ·about midway of 
the building. It might have been a good deal of noise on the office floor 
and we would not have know_n it. I said at the coroner's inquest that Mr. 
Frank 11ad a habit of ·rubbing his hands together. We left ~Ir. '. Frank. in tlie 
factory when. we Jef-t-#le¥e-. I sa~ soin~ spots ~{onday they said was blood. 

,. . 

. i\HNOLA McKNIGHT. (c) , sworn for theftefendant. 

I worklo1•_:_Mrs. Selig. I cook for her. :Mr. and Mrs. Frank · live ·with 
-:----:------~l\:;::1r~.~a~nd Mrs. Selig. His wife is l\iirs. Selig's ·daughter. ! ·cooked. breakfast 

f6r the family on· April t 1. - ~Fran :-finished · reak-f-ast-a- little-after-·-~ _ _ _ 

·Cl 

seven o'clock. l\•Ir. Frank came to dinner about - ~W minutes after one that 
_,. day. That was not the dinner -hour, but l\{rs. Frank and Mrs. Selig .were 

; -goiag off oil the two o'clock car. They were already eating when Mr. Frank 
· .came in. My hus~and, Albert l\icKnight, wasn't in the kitchen that day be-

- tween one ~nd two ·o'clock at all. Stap.ding in the kitchen d oor _ you can 
- not see the mirror in· the dining 1·oom. If you move up to the . north end 
.ot ~he· kitchen where ·you can see · the mlrrdr; you can.'t see the dining room . 
table . . My husband· wasn't there· all that day. Mr. Frarik left_ that d&¥-- · 
sometime after two o ~clock. I next saw·1hhn at. half past si~ at supper. I' left . 
about eight o'clo~k. .Mr .. ·Frank was _still at home when I left . . He took 
supper with ~he rest of the family. . After this happened the detectives . ·cam~ · 

· out and arrested. me and too~ me to Mr ... Dorsey's office, 'Yhere Mr. Do~sey, my · ....., 
j 

.. 
. . ' · 

· - I ; .J : -· · , 
' . . ,· ·. ·. -. . . ~ ... .· .. . 

' .. I.: •, • ' ' • 

-- - ... -- · -
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husband and another man -were ther~. I was working at the Selig's when 
they come and got me. They tried to get me to say that Mr. F.rank" would 
not allow his wife tg sleep that night and that he told her to get up and get 

s n n ·m ·1 · ·m · 

had my husband there to bulldoze me, claiming that I had told hun that . 
. I had never told him anything of the kind. I told them right there in l\Ir. -
Dorsey's-office that it was a lie . . Then they carried me down to the station · 
house in the patrol wag<m-:--'rhey came to me for another statement about 
half past . eleven or twelve o.'clock that night ·and made me sign something 
before they turned me loose, but it wasn't true. I signed it to get out of 
jaiJ, -··beci'u~rey -sahl they 1vouk( not ~let me out. It was ·'~1 written out 
for m~ before they made me sign it. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I signed that Bta.tement (State's Exhibit "J"), but I didn't tell you some 
of the thing~ _you got in there . . I didn't say he left J10.1ne_ about _three o'clock. 
I said somewhere about two. I did not say he was not there· at one o 'cJock. 
~fr. Graves a-nd Mr. Pickett, of Beck & (h·egg Hardware ·Co., came down . to 

.see me. A detective tool{ m.e to your (l\fr. Dorsey's) office. l\iy husband was .. 
there and told me that I had told him c~rtain things. ·Yes, I denied it. · Yes, 
I wept and cried aqd stuck to it. When "they first brought me out of jail, 

-they-santthey_ did-not wain anytlung else outthe truth, then they said I had 
to tell a lot 0£ lies _and I told them I would not do it. 'rhat man sitting right 
there -(pointillg to lVIr. Campbell) and a whole lot of men wanted ine to tell 
lies. They wa.nted me to. witness to what my husband was saying. l\fy hus­
band tried to get me to. tell lies. They made me sign that statement, but it 
was a lie. ·-If Mr. Frank didn't eat-any dinner that day I ~in 't sitting· in this-

.. chair. - l\irs. Selig neve·r gave iue no money. ,The statement that I signed is · 
not the trutli.. TI1ey told_Jne· if I didn't sign it they ~rere ·going to '"1ieep me 
locked up. That-man there [indicating) and that nian made me sig~ it. 1\1 ...... r~­

. Graves and .l\fr. Pickett made me sign it. They did not give me any more 
.... mone_r after· this thb1g_J1appened. One week I was pai~ two weeks' wa es. . 

----

RE.;DmEoT EXAMIN4TION. 

None of the things in,i:hat statement is true. It's all a lie. ·:My wages 
--.. _-~------never-!!ave ·been raised s.ince--this-rlrtng Jiappened. -T ey illan ot -fell -me to --­

keep qui~t. They always told me to tell the truth and it couldn't hurt. 

, . ~ . .. .. 
. ---~ -· ·-· -

. ~.:. """ · .. 

- . ~ ·- -. . 
EMIL SELIG, sworn for the Defendant. 

I am Mr. ~,rank's father-in-law. l\Iy wife and I ·live ·with l\ilr. Frank 
and ;ltis :wife. ·The kitchen. in ·our hous~ i.s next to the dining ·room. ·· There 

. is a .. small passage· way· between them; The sideboard in the dining room is 
_ ·in tho same .. position now, as it has al~ays bee~.. . l\iir . . Frank took ·breakfast 

--. ------~ 

•• 
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before I. did ·on April 26th and left the house before I breakfasted. I gof 
·back home to-dinner about· 1 :15. My wife and Mrs. Frank were eating then. 
They told me in the morning to come home a little sooner,. that they wanted 

~---------1--n--oo-n-+t'l--i-~1"1'1"1"'t--t--trn:non---t-trnrt---n1't7.rfll'rnn'l'llcn'fi"t-'lln:n:nr-?tm' ner a--J.ittteearlier t1t11 

usual, and I--eame home a little earlier. l\'Ir. Frank cam~ in after I did, about 
1 :20. T4e~~1mmmal ·about him. No .. scratches or . bruises about 
him. He ~at down to his meal. The ladies left us while .he was .still eating. 
i don't -know what :Mr. Frank did ·after dinner, I went out .·to the chicken 

_yard. 1\Ir. Frank was still in the hal~ when I got back. I laid down and 
went to sleep. · I did not see him when he. left. I sa v him about 6 :30 that 
.evening.- l\·f~'S:--:-F-rank al).d l\frs. Selig had not yet gotten back. They· came 
in a short while. We ate supper about seven o'clock. I noticed nothing un­
ysual )b?ut him at supper. . We finished supper a bout 7 :25. :Mr. Frank 
sat in the· .hall and read. A pa:rty of our friends came . to the house and 
played cards after supper. Frank and · his wife dip not play. They do not · 
play poker . . They play bridge. He was reading in ·the haU while we were 
playing. He came in one time while we were . playing and said he .read a 

) story .about a. baseball umpire's decision · and he was laughing. Frank an-
swered the d~orbell .several times that evening w~1en the guests came. He 
and his wife went to bed before . tlie co~npany left, about 10 01 .. 10 :30. He 

_ .. --- c~me to the door and told-·us -good-night--an1r·went ups-tairs. His wife went 
- .• .,,.---.- up shortly afterwards. Our party broke up about half_ past 11. I did not 

hear the telephoning early· Sunday morning. I sa,,r ·no scratches on Frank 
Sunday morning. 

' CROSS .EXAMINATION. 

. I have never seen the servants· move-that sideboard. I say it was about 
1 :20 when .Mr. Frank came ;home t? lunch, because I left town about 1 :10. 
The . car reaches our corner between 1 :10. and 1 :20. · I got home a little after 
one. About-·1 :10. :Mr. Frank may have laid down and taken a nap after 

. dinner. I don~t know. I laid down and ·took a nap. 1.VIr. Frank was gone 
.- -. ·-:- . . --when- 1 . woke up. .=haYe !ieara 1\-Ir. ~rank frequently - call ,up -the r actory . -

· · from· his.· home ·at ·night. I talked very little with Mr. Fran·k on_ Sunday 
·: when he got .·back home. . I ci"on 't recall . any conversation I had with him 

· - . -----; 

. relative to the murder. · I did not. pay· any -a-tte-nti~-e---said---------~ 
about the murder at dinner time. . I have ~o recollection of telling coro- -~ 
ner 's jury' that he did not leave before I got up.. I don't know what I told 

· coroner ~bout talking to Frank that · day. · I knew that my son-in-law .was . 
, superintendent ·of factory and that a girl was found · ki.lled there and I did 
. not refer to the subject that day. i don't· remember saying that Frank 

• 1 didn 1t say anything about it when he came· h.ome. I ate dinner w~th him. I 

• • .I, . ;- ; . ; . 

... . 

.remember stating at coroner's jury that Frank came home and didn't say 
a word about it all day-to me. 

• < 

- ---- -..,..-~ --~--: --- ---· - .. 
• ' . • ,0 ' 

• I 
. , 

.. .... . . . . . : . ~ .. ' ' . . .,. 
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MRS .. EMIL SELIG, sworn for the Defendant. 

I am ~frs. Frank's mother. Mr. and l\lrs. ~..,rank have been living with 
ns two years. 'fhe sideboard is in the· same position -h always has been ex-.. 
cept 'vhen we· sweep under it. We had lunch on April 26th after 1 o'clock, 

______ __ -_.,..:.about ten minutes past one .- · Mr. Frank came about tweirty minutes past 
_ one while we Were eating. He sat down with us and ate. Mrs. Franl~ and 

I left before he did. V\r e left about half past OI~e. He was stifl eating ~t the 
table. After the opera, while we \Vere on thestreet car, passing Jacoh!.s drug 
store we saw iyir. Frank at about 6 :10. I happened to look up at the 
dock and saw it was 6 :10. We stopped at 'my sister~s, Mrs. -Loeb before 
going home. 'Mr .. Frank was there when we got there'. · We saw :µ.othing un-

-----------~-1--....... ~!&tches, bruises, wounds or marks. ·We got home 
·a bout half past six. We .sat down to supper abo11t a quarter to se_ven. Mr. 
Frank ate with us. We finished , at a· quarter past seven. W.e 'played cards 
that 'night in the dining room wi.th a party of friends . .. :\Ir. · Frank and his 
wife did not play. They do not play poker. They play bridge. Ile was . . 

sitting in the.· hall reading. ~ir. Frank answered the doorbell and let in 
some of the guests. Ile came in once while we were playing cards to tell 
us about a. joke that he had re~d aboµf an umpire and he laughed out very 
heartily. · He went t6 bed .between ten and ten thirty. He told us all good­
night before going. Mr.s. Frank followed a few minutes arterwards. We 
played .cards until about twelve: / l did not hear the telephone ring next 
morning. It did not ·wake me up. I saw Mr. Frank . next· day about 11 
o'clock. I saw uo blood spots or . marks or bruises or cuts ·about him. I 
t.hink .he was arrested on Tuesday. 

ORO.SS EXAMINATION-.---· 

I am not mistaken about seeing ·Mr. F,rank about 1 :20 ·On l\'Iemorial Day. · 
We were eating dinner when lie came in. l\ir. Frank g?t home about . 11 _ 
o'clock Sunday. He told us he had been sent for · to come to · town: : He '_ · 

------- ·- - poke of a rime having-been committed. _ Lasked him what had ha eried. · · 

. ---

-•. 

I don't remem her that he told ine . about the crime. - ue :did not s~em· ui:lcQn- .. ~ . -. - - -­
cerned about it . I said at ooroner 's that I thought. he seemed- unconcerned 

:------~~--~a~b~o~u~t...:.__. ~it'.!.... ~l~don 't remember his remarking . about the youtl1 of 'the girl. or .. -. -.. - -

. . the .brutality of the crime. He didn't describe a~y wounds. He didn 't give . . 
any theor..r)as to how it happened. He ·Was· anxious as . to how it happened. 
I have forgotten what suits l\.Ir. Frank ·wore Saturday, Sunday and ~I~'o~n~d~a...,y_.._. _--'-~--­
I think I i;iaid before the coroner that h~ wore the same suit Saturday, ·sunday . 
and M~nda~ut I was mistaken. I don't- remember. saying before coroner -

. whether Frank evidenced. any curiosity or· advanced ·any theor~ · .about it or 
no~. I ~ne"r ):ie ·wore one suit during the week and- a ·difl:-erent . one o~ Sun­
day, .and.· my · impre.ssion was tl~at on that 'Sunday he wore -the same one. I 

.. do~ 't · thinit ·Mr. Frank mentioned. the name o.f the girl that was killed ~o~n~_ 

• 

. : : : . ' .. ~ . : . . ·.' .· 
:. ' · . . . ' ' • .. .. ; .. .. .. . . ·~ . 
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Sunday. 'l'he first that I kne-w o.f it was when I saw her name in the .paper . 
the next morning. The subject was mentio.ned at the dinner table on Sun­
day: 

RE-DIRECT- EXAMINATION. 

::\:ly health is bad all(] I did not ea.re to hear much of the f~cts of the crime 
at the time. I was operated on the_n_ext day. l\fr. Frank spa:red my feelings. 
These are the. elothes ::\-Ir. Frank .w01:e 011 April 26th (Defendant'~ Exhih,it 49). 

MISS HELEN KER.NS, Sworn for the Defendant. 
. -

I work for the Dodson :Medieiue Company as .stenographer . .. ::\ly father 
works for "!\Iontag. I took shorthand under Professor Briscoe last winter. · 
I have seen Mr. Frank in his factory. I went ther~ with Professor Bris~eottte~te~-­

-ge.t_· a job. I didn't get .the._J2__osition. l was working on the 26th day of April 
·for Bennett Printmg Company. That <lay I .gQ~ off about 12 o'clock. I then 

. wen around in town to the different ~tores arid diasome \.trading. I had an 
· ~ ~- ~ ' : --. appointment to meet · a gir~ . a.t 1 :15 at the corner .of ~Vhit~hall and Alabama. 

Streets, at ·J~cobs ' .Drug Store. About 5 minutes after one I came out of Kres~_' 

Store on vV~itehall"Street. I ·looked at the ~loc~t in front of Freeman's Jewelry 
Store. I immediately went to Jacobs' corner:. I had been ·standing there about 
five minutes and I turned around and saw 1\h\ Frank standing there ·right 
up against the building a_! the corner of Alabama and Whitehall street. I do 

·' . not know how long he ·had been there. That was about ten minutes after 
one. Afte1: I saw him I waited.: about ten minutes until my friend came. She­
was a litttelJehind tim~ . . She came about t\~enty minutes after. one. I read 

. about this tragedy about the middle of the week. I then recalled seeing him 
about tl~at place and told my father. · 

CROSS EXAMINATION. • 
Yes, the1·e was a large crowd on the street that day. I had been standing 

there about five minutes when I · turned around and saw. ~.,rank. It was not 
';-:------'------1.Jacked and · mmed · t that ti!lw not up ~g~i11~t .the building. The procession 

did not come alOng uritil almost three o'clock. There was p en y oT"tr'iio~o;nm~ITI'i---------­

;• . .. · .. 

.that co"rner. · I stood thei·e ·from five -1ii.inutes after one until .twenty_ minutes 
after one. . After I met my fri.entl we ,\rent back to Kress'. I did not speak to . . ~ . 
Mr. Frank. He was standing up_ against the builtlin-g up Alabama Street. It 
was hot real cr~wded up Alabama St~~eet: You could not stand in the ~iddle 

·. of the f)'i.dewalk. I got a clear v"iew of' Mr: Frank. I don't · think he saw· me~·-· 
. ( do.n't think he .would have recognized. me because he _see_s_SQ_Jnany faces 
every day he would. not kno:w mine. ~ had only met him once. I rec_ognized 

• · hiin . . I can't .. be mistaken about . the time I- saw him because I looked . at the 
,. _,..._:_ _. ' .. clock just befor.e_ I grit _th~re. vVhen. ,my friend ·' ni"et me we weJit around the 

~---:---~--···c..!.Cil.lo~rner. 'fhe · cioek .stood twenty m_inutes after ··one. Kress' store ·aid not ·close 
at 12, beca:u~-~ .I° was iri there after l2~ I am . sure of that.. I was ":ate.bing the 
. --:--

. : . . . : • ·: : 
' I • ··~ • ~ • •' I• ' .. . . . ~ .. 

• : ·. ·.''! • • . • • . • . • 
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clock -because I had an appointment at a quarter ·after one. I left Kress' at 
·five .minutes after one and went down. Whitehall stre-et ·to Jacob's corner. 
'Vhitehall street was badly crowde<l . . It <lidn 't take me more than a m.inute or 

----,--JLminute and a half to walk down to the corner. It was only. a few steps. 
·Th.ere was no one standing bet.we.en Mr. Frank and myself on Alabama 
Street. · 

. .M.RS. A. P. LEVY~ Sworn for the Defendant. 

· · · ·1 live right across the-street from where l\lr. i~,rauk lives. I am riot a . 
· relation of his eithe~· by blood or ll'.lari.·.iage. · I saw- ~im get off a car on Mem-

- orial Day between one and__iwo o'clock. I was d1;essing to go to the matinee 
. and· was watching the cars as they-passed to look out for my son who was late 
to dinner and saw l\Ir. Frank get off the car and cross the street to his home. 
I had a clock op my dresser and· also one in ·the dining room, and I was hur-

. rying_ to meet a friend a.t ·2 o'clock, ·and) wa~ted to see a sick friend before . 
go~ng to matinee. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I noticed that Mr. 1""rank .got off at 1 :20; because I was-=looking a_t the 
clcick:· · I was ·watching the car·· for my son:· I bad already". had lunch·. I could 
not· wait for him. He tried io ~· the ·phone ·but could not reach me. 
The reason I knew it was that time I was looking at 1llY. clock and noticing th~ 
cars ~s they passed and· my son had not come ~ret. That was the only reason 
l w0uld have noticed it,. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 
. . 

My children oi:i Memorial Day ·instead of comfog home at 12 :20 . ~r 12 :3o-;-­
. came home at 1.:30. · 

MRS. M. G. MICHAEL, Sworn for· the Defendant.. 

I live in Athens. On-April"26, I was at 387 'Vashington Street at 2 o'clock. 
· -at the residence of my sist~r :Mrs. W olfsheimer. · Mrs. Frank is my niece by 

marriage. I am -no kin to l\f r. ·Frank. J saw Mr. Frank about 2 O·'clock on 
A ril 26th. He was . oin()' u :W shin ton Street towards ·town when I first 

. / saw him. remember it was about 2 o'clo~k, because my ~on David was go!.ng 
to the matinee and he had to leave home before 2, and he had just left a few 
minutes when I saw :Mr. Frank. · I was o~-the front porch when .I saw him. 
He came up just to the front porch. He .greeted me and asked me about my 
people at home. We carried on a casual conversation. I noticed nothing un­
usual about hiin.· I noticed no scratches or ·marks or any n~rvousness about 

. him. -.H.e walked · up Washington Street to the corner of Glenn and caught the 
· Washington Street going to · town at Glenn Street. My.. son JerQme, -.my: 
n~phew. Julian. Lo.eh ·a.nd· ,.my sister Mr.s._ Wolfsheimer were also t·h~re and 

_fil\_W him. . ' 

·• ·--

.. .. . 
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CROSS EXAMINATION . 

He had not seen me for several weeks. He didn't know I was in the city, 
and when he saw me_ there on the porch he came over to . speak to me. 387 
W: ashington St_1~et is three doors above Georgia A.v.enue. J...saw .)tin take the· 
car at the corner of Glenn and Vv ashington Street. 

JEROME l\lICHAEL. Sworn for the .J)efen<lauL 

I live in Athens . . I was in Atlanta 01.-April ;.,26th. I took <limier at Mr~i. 
-Wolfsheimer's -reside1iee at 387 \Yasl~ington Street. J saw Mr. Fran'KUpou_· - · 
t.l1at. day ·between five minutes to 2 and 2 o 'cloek. I know it ·was that time 
pecause I had an engagement with a young lady and I had a watcf1-ii:i-my hand 
most of the time. My brother Dave had just left for the opera when Mr. 
Frank came up. · vVhe·n I first · saw him he was· going toward the rigliLhand 
corner of Washington Sti·eet and Georgia A venue, going .up - Geo~·gia A venue. 

• l 

.. -

I ·saw him and c·alled him and when he...saw my m~r standing on the porch 
_______ __...,.,_...am_e_ over an~spolw-tQ-!~w()d on_ the steps-of- th-e-porch, he -s-teett-----~­

there ju·st a few- minutes.-until tlie next car ~ame : -I-noticed absolutely nothing 
nnusual ·about him. No. scratches, .bruisGs, marks and no nervousness. He 

\ . . 

ran up to the ·corner of Glenn and Washington Streets and caught the Wash-
ington Street car-th-ere-going to town. 

\ . 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 
. . 

I had my watch in 1i1y hand about the time I. saw Mr. Frank. r practice 
' ........ 

law. . .. . 
.. 

MRS. RENNIE vVOLFSHEIMER, Sworn for the Defendant. 

I am the aunt of :Mrs. Frank. I li\re at 387 \\Tashington Street, th~ third 
house from the corner of Georgia Avenue. On April 26th, I saw l\fr. Frank 
in front of my house. -It was about 2 o'clock We bad finished dinner which 

) · 

'----- ----_..............,_ ate at · half past -one. I was not on the po1"ch wh~;m - he came up -bu_t_I _ _______ _ 

·walked out on ihe porch after he came. I did not se~ · !J.im catch the car, as I 
. was ·called in the house before he left. I saw nothing unlisual about 'him. .No ... . . . . ~ - . 

--,-------~.,.-----~ 3ervousness ·or brui~~r ·scratches. I saw no ·stains on his cloth~s, no marks 

·. 

:. •~ 

.or t~ars of a~y kind. · - - - - - __ _,__ - -- ---- -

QROSS EXAMINATION. 

-· 'fhe time Is fixed in my min,d ·because we ate dinner at half past one and 
w~ had just finished. I was· not looking ·for ·~ny scratch.es or hruises, but l 

.,. ~ertaiilly. _ would have see~ them if ·they ·h~d been -. there . . I was· close e_nough 
.to .him to httve. seen ~im. 

-----,----- ~ - - - - . - - --
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JULIAN LOEB, Sworn £01~ the Defendant. 

I l~ve at 380 "\\Tashington Street, across the street from the Wolfsheimer 
residence . . I am a cousin pf :Mrs. Frank'. I saw Mr. Frank .on April 26th in 

..__ . - . . 
f1~ont of the Vv olfsheimer residence. -I was there wheD-he came by. It was 

' . -

-between 1 :50 and 2 o'clock. He was talking to :M~·s. Michael and l\fr. Jerome 
Michael and was inviting them to attend a meeting of the B 'nai B 'rith lodge 
on the next day which was Sunday. He ~vas president of that lodge. He left 
and walked towards towll np \VashingtoU--Street tovrnrds Glenn. I didn't 
see him catch the-car. 

COHEN LOEB. Sworn for the Defendant. ----
I was on the ear with ::\Ir. Franl~ going ba.ck to to\.vn on April 26th after 

· .. · lunch. I caught the. car at Ge·orgia 11\venue and Washington Street. He caught , 
the ear at Glenn and 'Vashington Street whic.h is one block nearer town. That 

0 

.. was a bout :2 -o 'clocfl-:---- i"Cwas-a 'Vashmgt on ffireet=M-!Yv-hic11 g~es straight-up- - - -· 
Washington Street t.<;> the Capitol and turns down Hunter. Vve sat together 
on-thesame seat in t 1e cai;~.~·~an!t got off the . car- about- two or three 
min~tes before I did. He got off in frm;it of. the· Capitol at about 2 :10. The 
car was blockaded by the crowcl which was· ·watching the parade. ·l\fr: Franfr 
went down Hunter .Street . . There was nothing unus.ual about him. 'No marks, . 
or scratches or spots on him. He had on a brown suit and a <lerby. 

. . . . . 

/'--.. 
CROSS EXAMINAff_ON: · 

. . . 

l\lr. Fra1~k was sitting next to the window. I kno-w :Mr. Hinchey. I did 
not recognize him as he passed. our_-car in the machine but I recognized his 
machine. It was going down the street. I recognized it by the dark color. 

·It passe9.,. r ight in fro?t of t~1e car ~o close as ~o hit t.he car aiiiltli~t 's what 
called. tf to my attent10n . . The top of the machme. was up and the sides were 
open. The car was a dark maroon-color and seats from_fomi- to-seven pas­
sengers. I don't know the number of it. I just saw a dark maroon car. I 

. found out afterwards that it was :Mr. Hinchey. _I only n<?ticed .that par­
ticular automobile because -it ran up 1n ron of tlie car. an.d the ·car hit it 
and nearly turned it over. The accident accurred right at us. There ·was no 

__ jo_lt to th.e street car . . It was going too slow; -They. jus~ -~~aroe tog.ether a.~<l: 
scraped. · 

--- - . 

H . . J. HINCHEY, Sworn for -the Defendant . 

I have known M~. Frank between iout and five years. I ~m mechanical 
engineer for the South Atlantic Blow Pipe Co. l saw Mr. Frank on April 26th 
opposite the main e~trance to the Capitol on Washington .Street. I was driv­
ing an automobile. . He was on the street car coming down 'Washington Street 

. going to_town. I ~aw hfm but ·did not speak- to him, It -.w.as between 2 and 

'· . 

. ·-· 

. . : - ~ . \ 
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2 :15. As tQ how I knew that was the tillfeafter this.matter came up I experi-
mented to see just what time it was I saw him on the car, and I . have gon'e 
over my movements just as I did them on that day, and the first time I experi­
mented I go.t. to ~he Capitol five minutes past two, and the second time I got 
there at eight minutes past two, and the third time exactlyartwo o·'clock; · I 
came very near colliding with the car in front of the capitol, as I drove. around 
in front of .the Capitol. This car Mr. Frank was on rolled up in front of me. 
As I looked "Up ·at the car I saw J\fr. Frank sitting .in the front end. of the '~ar. . ... 

CROSB_E_XAMINA·TION . . --- --~.· . 

I saw him only for a moment. I was too much occupied in trying to· get 
o~t of the way of cars·~and yehicles. The crowd was very thick. I have been 

-:--------.tom l\lr.~.ank . !>11~e: .. i11jH:jh .I .mentioned to him .that ·1 saw him that day. 
Mr. Frank and (were only bus in~~~· . f~~i~~ds. We have had pleasant business 
transactions and a-ls0-<iontr-O.¥ersies_____l_did not gQ_to · a_il_iq_ tal~ it _9Ver ~it~_ 
him. I went there becau~e I had been knowing him for five or six years and .-.---------
was interested in him, beca'\.tse he was implicated in the case. V·l e were n~ 
perso·nal .friends, but have had a . great many business dealings with each 

.. .., o.ther and I naturally felt a~ interestrin.JJ~Js ma.tter . 

. ,-·MISS REBECCA QARSON! Sworn for .the Defendan't. 

·- I work. at the National Pencil Co. I have been there over three years. 
~--"I"--'-'w....:...o!Jr on the fourth floo·r. I am forelady of tl~e sorting epa ment~ have 

from thirteen to fifteen girls under ~ne. At times I have heard the elevator 
. running when the machinery in the factory ·was not running. It- makes a 

noticeable . n~se . . You can notice the vibration of the building and y.ou can 
- notice the ropes of the elevator running, and you can hear the cables of the 
· elevator knocking. On Friday, April 25, I ·g_Qt m~ay about 5 :30 from the 
office. On April 26tli-I saw :Mr. Frank looking at the pa1·ade in.!ront of Rich's 
between 2 :20 and 2 :25. He spoke to me. I saw hiin agaill at ten minutes1-111:t-------­

___ three going into Ja~obs' Pharmacy at the c01;ner-nf-Whitehall and Alabama _ 
Street. I looked at the clock at that time: On l\.fonday_ morning- I .said to Jim 
Conley, "Where were you on Saturday? Were you in the factory~ _" He said, 

- --,.' i was -so -drunk I . don't know ·where I was or what I did.''' 1A~n~tTl'S~n~o~w~~arr. ---------
who was standing there, said, ''I can prove where I was. I also-:- overheard 
a .. couversatiun that he had· with my mother whe~ h:e_ said Mr: Frank was JUSt 

__ _ . as innocent as an angel; aIJ,d when my mother said. "T-Jle .murderer will be the 
negro M.rs. White saw·sitting.: on a box at the ~oot ·of the .. stairs." Jim dropped 
his broom · quick and didn't. finish sweeping. 

:. ... CROSS EXAMINATION~ 

: ,'' 

' . 
I -. • • ' I . . . 

-

H-e made -that remark to me about 8 o ~clock Monday morning and I went 
right back .and told my mother of-i't. The· eievator makes enough noise·.to know _ _ 

_ it ·i.s running.. You don't notice it , .when the machinery · is ·running. Y QU 

•• _ ; • • ' -·, I . '; - . . .. ,,.. . 
'. .. ' , ... _- . . 
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- r 
wo:µldn 't know wheth~r it .was running or not unless your attention is directed 
to it. I had looked at the clock five minutes before I saw l\'Ir. Frank in front 
of Rich's. I had just looked at the clock also -b-efore Lsaw him going into ~ 
Jacobs'. I am. certah~ of the times I saw _him. That was the exact time by 
the clock. I get $10.00 a week. Last time my salary was raised it was raised · 
in January. Th.ere has been _no raise since. the~. I ha~lj'eard that some of the 
sweepers sometimes_ stay on Saturday aftei:noons to s\reep. I didn't know 

· -i-t. .I just .asked him if he was there at the factory Saturday afternoon. Htt-e-­
never before admitted being drunk to nie before. Nobody .suspected Jim of the 
murder at that time. I told my mother of-it-bec1tttB"e-l tell her-.everything . . I ---·_ .. 

-:-:told l\1r. Darley about it. I don't remember when I told him. It was before . 
Conley was arrested on rrhursday~ . I .. told l\Jr. Rosser . when he was at the 
factory. ·That was after _Jim was arrested. I did not see the red spot in the 
metal room on Monda~. ~ didn't go in the metal roo_m until Tuesday. · I didn't 
see .i~ then. becat1se I ~rasn 't looking at the floor. 

MRS. E. :M. CARSON. Sworn for the Defendant. 

I worked at the Pencil F.actOry three years. Rebecc:a Carson is my daugh­
ter. I am a widow. · I have ·seen blood spots around the ladiei::; dressing room 

·' three or four times. I was at the factory Friday morning. · Heft-aboot 12:45. 
I saw !im ·Conley on Tuesday after the murder. He was sweeping around 
my table, I ~aid, "Weil, Jim. they haven't go~ you yet," and he says, "NO." On e_ 
Wednesday I said the same thing and he answered. th~ same thing. On Thurs-
day when I said that to him again he said, "No; I ain't done nothing." I 
-sai.d, "Jim, you k~ow l\1r. Frank never did that," and he says, "No, l\fr. Fran~ 
is as innocent as YOll is, and I know you is.~ · I said, ''Jim, whenever they find 
the murderer of 1\1ary Phagan ·it's· going to ·be that nigger that was sitting 

.nea1· the elevator when Mrs~ White went upstairs." He -lai~ - his broom down 
. then an<l went out. I cou]d not believe Conley on oath .. 

. OROSS ExAMINATION. 

My daughter and I ·work on the fourth floor. Mr. Frank was up on the 
--fou1·th floor Tuesday betwee~1 nine and.televen o'clock. . Everybody in the · de­
partment was around there at that time. I don't know· whether any of them 

. heard·the. conversation between me and Mr. Frank then. I saw. both Mr. 
. ------:- Frank and Jim Conley on the fourth floor . on . Tuesday . . I did not see Mr. 
,_ . . , _-· -.-_ .-~Frank whisper t~ Conley. l\1r. Frank never:-.:Mid a word to any of .us about 

: · _ . sticking to him. He said it was a depl.orabl<f t~in.g little Mary being killed. 
· ·: I have- seen blood in. the dressing room around the . lockers and some around 

~ / 

"tho mi·rror. ·I have seen -girls _up there mash the.ir-.fingers_on the machines. I 
·have seen blood in ·the. sink in the toilet room and on the machines where they 
cut their fingers. _I saw a spot aR 'big ~ my hand ~ometime : last year on the 
fourth floor near a, _garb_age cah . ... It looked like blood to me. I have se~n 

· -spots -about as big. as my finger, different spots up on. the fourth tloor. · I have . . - . . . . ... · 

···- --·--··_ 
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seen girls once or twice come in_with-: their fiugers mashed come into tile toilet 
room and go to the sink ttfter they bad mashed their_Jingers. I qon.'t k~w 
when I heard that l\1rs. White said that she had seen a negro .sitting on the 
box. I think I read it in the paper sometime that week. The big spot of 
blood I was talking about \Vas occasioned by the girls whose sickness was on 
them. I have never seen l\1r. Frank or ·anybody else have anybody down at 
the office at. any time drinking. beer or doing anything-of the sort, . I did not go 
down and see blood on second. floor ne.ar dressing r-0em.~.--

I -

MISS ·MARY PIRK-;-Swm·n for the Defendant. 

I am one of ·the foreladies working at the . Nationa~ Pencil Co. I am at the 
head of the polishing dep.artmeru I have been the_re about five years. I 
-talked with Jim Conley :Monday morning after the murder. "' I accused him of . 

. the .murder. H~ toQk his bi·oom and walked right out of the office ~nd I -nave 

--- - - ---·--------

r 

never seen · · ~i~since: -~~~~·~~~~~~--~~---~~ 
· · would not believe him -on · oath . 

. CROSS EXAMINATION. ~ 

I suspected Jim .O:s early as :Monday Aptil 28th. I 4id not report it to :Mr . . . . . 
Frank then. I don't know why I didn't. I knew that" Gantt and Newt L~e 
and Mr. Frank had ·been arrested. Y.es, I have never said anythi~g about . it 
to anybody. .I suspected Jim because he looked and acted so different. I told 
M:r. Arnold and ~r. Rosse.r about it-when . they asked me about it . . That was 
after Jim was-arrtsted. Jim acted very peculiar but I thought. best not to say 
anyth1ng about it. L knew · the compa;ny was anxious to get th~ ~urderer 
but 1· just didn't mention it. I don't know why. I mentioned it~several 

of . the girls · standing around, Miss Denham, :Miss :McCord, :Mrs. Johns .· and­
_several others:-+ accused Jim before I saw the blood at the ladies' dressing 
room. It was all smeared -over with some kind -of white stuff. It covered 

-·. -
about two feet in area. I ·mentioned it- to the girls before Jim -was ai·rested. 
I am not $U:t'e -whether -it was before or after. It was after the coroner's in­
quest. I hav·e seen se~eral spots i·n the factory that looked like that spot many 
times. ·All kinds of spots. I have .s_een spots before that looked like that. 
I don't ex~ctly kn-ow when. :My ·opinion is that--:Mr. Fran~ is a perfect gen­
tleman. I always found him to be one in my dealings with hi_m. I have never 

- ---- -- ·- "'·;;--:---heard any of the girls say _anything _about him. I have never heard of a si~gle 

. . . . 

' .. 

thing immoral that he did d~ in those five years. I hav~- neve~ heard of his 
·-going i;n the girls' dressing room. I h~ ve never heard of his slapping thell! as , 

he would g~ by. I have n~ver heard ~r. Frank talk to Mary. I have never "''- · · 
· hea-rcl ol:.the:_yme.-Mr. Frank had her off. -in the corner the~e, when she was - -. 

. ~ ~rying to· go back to work, · _'"_" ___ --- ----

·-

, . . 
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:MISS DORA SMALL~ Sworn for the Defeiidant~--------

1 worked on tlie fom!.f°Jt-&<W--Of t f1e pencil ractory for five years. I saw 
·..::.,..,f · Jim Conl~y on Tuesday. He _was worrying me to get money from me to buy 

a newspaper and then , he would come and ask me for copies of the paper 
.---before I .would get tluough reading them. They were extras: He would even 

· get two of tlw same edition. He woul<l take it and run over. there and sit on 
a box--by-thc elevator arnJ rea<l it. He can read all right. ·He had on an old 

· Norfolk coat 'Yith a belt around it and it buttoned just as ·tight around his __ _ 
·neck as it could be. Before that he had gone around there all open and loose 
and as slipshod as he eoald be. I coukLno I whether he was wearing a 
'shirt or not because his coat fast_ened up so tight. . He told me Mr. Frank is 
jrrst as innocent as I am and he says. ''God knows I was noways around this · 
factory on Saturday." I didn't see l\f r, Frank talking to Jim anywhere in the 

· factory on Tuesday. I have n_ever seeri him talk to that :nigger in my life. I 
have nevei· been down in l\:fr. Frank's office after hours~ drinking or · doing 
anything wrong at any time. I have known CQnley for two years. His .general-_ - · · 
reputation for tfuth and v·eracity is had: I d~ . . n earth 

· tharI would believe on oath. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

~ would not believe Snowball on oath. I would not believe an nigger. I 
got a fifty cent raise · in salary abqut four ·months ago. I have got no ise 
since Mi--; · F-rank has been locke-d- up. J t w·as before this _nmrder took P. ace. I 

. . - - . · -~-----
did not see Mrs. Carson talk to Jim on ri:uesday or Wednesday. She worked 

· in one end of the building and I worked in the other. J saw Mr. Frank and 
:Miss Carson talking on business between eight and nine o'clock on Tuesday. · 
Tb:ey stopped right in front of m;y· machine. :Mr. Frank went down stafrs and 
Miss Carson went on back to her work. He used to come up ther~ frequently. 
Conley was standing at the elevator. He was standing with his hand on a 
truck. He was not sleeping. He ·must· have seen' me and Mr. Frank. Mr. 

-·-Frank did not ·see Conley. '\7hen Mr. ~,rank went down the steps Conley . was 
still standing at the elevator. Conley was asking -me for newspapers all dur-
ing the morning every time they would holler ''extra.'' .He would come t_o me . 

. ThatWlrs--after ·Mr: FFank had gone . . 'rhat continued all day Tuesday and Wed­

. nesday. I 1 didn't buy any ext_ras on :Monday. I bought . f~ur before noon on 
. TuesdJ!Y. _The elevator makes ·a right smart noise. Shakes the whole building. 

.. 

Any body ·in the world can tell jt is running if the machinery is not running; 
· but you can't notice it much u~~ you are right close to t.he elevator. Some 

-- _· --of us went back in the metal room one day to see if we could see any-bloo<l . . ~ . 

. ,· ·. '\ 

·spots. Mr~. · Carson and Mrs; Thompson I think were with us. . Curiosity led 
_us down th_ere. We saw where the floor ...had .been_chipped up. . Saw something 
that looked_ like white ·face powder around· the chipped.--. up . place. Looked 

· like some of the girls· had powder~4 their .fa~~s· and spilt the powder. · There 
wer 7 .. : . . ·- o a -nickle and some· the size of a 
_quarter. The flool!~as-¥erY- dirty a~l ·ove~'. - .- __ _ 

, , (II ,. 

. . . 
~ · ~ ; ' · • .. • I • 

( 
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MISS JULIA FUSS, Sworn -for the -Defendai;it.--~------ -- - -~----1 

I work on the fourth floor of the pencil fa.ctory. I have never known any-
thing wrong or immoral to be g·oing - ~u in Mr. Frank's · office. I talked with 

·Jim Conley V{ ednesday morning after the murder. He was sweeping around 
· there and asked ·me to see the newspaper. As he read it ·he kinder grinned. He - - \) 

told me he believed l\fr. Frank was just as innocent as the apgels irum Heaven. 
I know his general character. He was never known to t 1Lthe. truth. I would 

- --- -
not believe him on oath. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I saw the dark red spots by tl e w-ater cooler in the metal room where 
they had chipped up._. sQJnething. Something wh.ite was dropped all over it. 
The spo~s did not look like they; had been smea_red over. Looked .like a plain 
drop of blood. I think it was paint because there was paint used there all_ the 
time. They asked me soon after the murder about. the. general character of 

- ' 

..... 

' -
- 1 . 

- --r.,= ey asked me if I knew anything a ainst his character and I tolq __ -,.,-_____ __, 

_, 

. ~· ·•~: 
.":,; •. ··,' . , . 

. . 

. : / . > . 

them .no. They generally spoke well of him. They always spoke good of him. 
I haYe_aJways heard him spoken of in the highest terms. I have never heard 

- . ·. . 

. · him accused -0f any act ·of immorality or familiarity with the gi~ls in the fac-
- --t-ory. ·Jim Con'Iey got two papers ·from me on Tuesd·ay and "resdnesday. I 

bought · them. Jim always see~ned to be kind of nervous cw half drunk or 
something: He did not arouse my suspicions until after he began t~ead the 
papers and grin about them and comment on them. I didn't see lVIr. Frank 

· sp~ak to Conley on Tuesday._ Conley was not there: I am sure of that. Mr. 
Frank came up there twfoe, o nce at 9_ and again in 15 or 20 minutes. He c~me 
around to see if everything was. in good working _order. He spoke to M-iss--­
Carson an4 Mr. Darley · a.ild , to _a little boy. And then went on dowz:i .stair~. 
He came b~ck iii about fiH~en or twenty minutes to see if everything was going 
on alright. He spoke to :Miss Carson again abc_mt the work. He always came 
upsfiurs to see if everything ·· w~s going 01r .. all right. -

- · - ................ 

:~ · . · EMMA BE·ARD ( <'-) , Swofr1 for the :O~fendant. ·--.- . { 

I am M;r. Schiff!s sei;vant. o ·n. April · ~6th somebody called Mr. Schiff on 
the.-.-telephone. I answered the. telephone. It was abo_~j; . half° past ten. It 
sounded like a boy's voice. It saio,-1'~Tell Mr. Schiff Mr. Frank_ wanted hiIJ.l at 
th~ office.'' Mr. Schiff was asleep -a-t-th-e time. I waked him up and he said, 

:·· <9 .-:t 
' - •1 .. . . · . . . 

--~_. "tell Mr..: Frankl will be .there as soon as I can .get dressed." And I repeated 
the message to the boy and told him what Mr. Sehiff sttid. Then Mr. Schiff went 
b11tck to :sleep again. The same vofoe cal1ed up Mr.- Schiff again about eleven 

· · o ,clock. Saiq_ he wanted ·Mr. Schiff to come down to the offiee. Mr. Schiff told 
me to tell him . he would . be there as soon as ·he could ·get dressed ·and t told 
him what Mr. Schiff said. --~- --

. /="\ 
. ; •. 

.· 

. .... _ 

I -. ,.. . 
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. OROIJS-BXAMINATION. · 

I have been in Mr. Schiff's house about seven years. On Saturdays and 
·holidays Mr. Schiff · generally sleeps. Sometimes he-goes -to. the factory . when. 
I wake "hini up. He never gets up unless I wake hiin. Mr. Schiff told me · 
sometime afterwards he was glad ·1 did not wake him up that day. I know it 
was eleven o'clock whe~ he called · up th~ second time, because the cfock ~as 
striking. They didn't say what. Mr. Frank wa?ted him for .. 

ANNIE illXON (c),-Sworn ... for th~ ~efendant. -~ 

- ------- -- --I- am -M-rs.--lJ-Psenb~- · sewa-nt. ~fr~rank-call00--u-p--on-4h-e- teleph.-0-ne- - - ·-· ·_ ----­

-

about half past-0ne 9n April 26th. I told him Mr. Ursenbach was not in an_d 
-he said. '' Tell-~-Charlie I can't -go.t o the baif game this afternoon.'' I told 
Mrs. Ursenbach about it. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

_ _,___ _ ___ !_· ____ I have been workin for Mrs Ursenbach two yea~s. Mr. Frank and his 

, ,. 

wife came over to "I\irs .. Urse~bach 's on Sunday after _we had-breakfast about 
· nine o'clock. They come over there 'ev~ry Sund·ay. I didn't pay any attention 
to what the_y talked about that morning. They were just laughing and· talking A 
like they always do. Yes, he laughed. They were all laughing together . . He • 

..... wasn't nervous or excited so far as ·i ·could see. Nothing unusual about him. 
Don't know what they were laughing about. 

· J. C. MATTHEWS, Sworn for tbe Defendant. 

I was at Montag Brothers on April 26th 
of Montag Bros., in .. the morning of that day. 
t~e. · I work at" Montag Bros. 

---; 
I saw Mr. Frank in the .office 
I coul~h 't . give you .the exact 

ALONZO MANN, . Sworn for the Defendant. 

I am office boy· at the _ National Pencil Company. I began working there 
·April 1st, 1913 . . I sit s~metimes. in the outer office ap.d stand around In the 
o-qter hall. I left the factory at half past eleven op April -26th:-:- When I left 
there Miss Hall, ·-the stenographer fro1n_ :Montag 's, was in the office with Mr. -
Frank. Mr. Frank told-me-to-phone to Mr. S.chiff and tell him- t-o-eeme-down. 
I telephoned him, but the girl answered the phon~ and said he hadn't got u·p 
yet. · I telephoned once. I worked there two Saturday afternoons of the weeks · 

___ ____ previous to the murder and stayed there until h~lf past three or four . . Frank 
. was always working during that time. I never saw him bring any women into 
. the ·factory and. drink with them. I have never seen Dalton the11e; On April 

~-...... 26tn,1 saw Hollo~ay, Irby, M;cCrary and Darley at ·the f~tory. I didn't se-e 
Quinn. · I don't -remember. seeing Corinthia Hall, Mrs. Freeiµa-:D., -Mrs,: White, 

· Graham, Tillapder; or -Wad-e--Gampbell. I left there 11.30 . 

....... 

.. 
r-~ · . . : 

I . , . ·-. . ·· . 

. . 
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/ 
/ 

/ - . 

,,.· . 
, • 

When Mr. Frank came that morning, he went right on into the office, and 
was at w_ork there and stayed .there. He went out once. Do.Jl 't know how long 
he stayed out. 

_,· 

· M. 0. NIX, Sworn for the Defendant. 

I am credit. ~an for Montag· B~os. and bo·okkeeper. I have charge of the 
bookkeeping and documents -and papers of th·e National Pencil Company. I 
am familiar with Mr. Frank's handw~iting. . These financial sheets beginning 

. • v 

-.,.-------===~,i~th_ 1Vi~22nd.,49-12,-and-ending -May-24-,-1-913 (Defendant's Exbi-bi't1t)-;a-rl · 
Mr. Frank's handwriting. 'l'he etev~n items beginning with order No. 7187 · 

1.·unning· through No. 7197, appearing on pages 56 and 57. of the house ord-er _ _ _ 
b.ook (Defendant's Exhibit 12) are in Mr . . ~r~nk's handwriting.' These e·~- -

_ .. _ "tries below that are in :Miss Hattie Hall's handwriting . . ·I employ.ed Miss 
_,,.. ' Hattie Hall as my stenographer. Mr. Montag and Mr. Frank had nothing 

· to do with. it. I raised her wages on first of August becaus~ I rom~eq her_ 
.· . that when she .first came here.. rrhese .eleve~ requisition sheets (Defendant"'s 

. Exhibit, 25 to 35. in_Glusive) are ii~ Mr .. ~..,rank's handwriting~- l saw Mr. Frank 
on the morning of April 26, at .Montag 's. He asked me to allow Miss Hattie 
Hall, my stenograph~r, to go over to the factory to assist him as his sten~. 

rapher was away and he was piled up with work. And I told him I didn't 
think she should go until she finished :Mr. Montag 's mail. He said something 
then about her coming over in the afternoon , and I said I didn't think she -ought 
to work over. there as It wasn't her· work, and_ r -told her not to do it, but I 
told her if she got through with :Mr . . Montag 's mail she could go overe there 
that morning and help him, if she could assist him in anyway .. 

. ' CROSS. EXAMINATION. _ 
- -

I . ave . never seen Frank write any of the documents whieh I say are in 
his handwriting. ' I have seen him write. .Ldon 't know their -sysfein of doing 
work down at the factory. This order could not have been rec~ived on April 
22nd (Defendant's Exhibit 27). The signature of H. G. Schiff on the requisi-

. tion sheets (Defendant's Exhibits 25 to 35 inc.) means that he checked it _ 
_ when ihe_-v_t.det was _ filed. I .have been with :Montag Bros. seven· or eight 

_ years. I don't know whose handwriting that is (State's Exhibit K). It .looks 
like lVIr. Frank's,- but 1ris not clear to.-n10. It is entirely different from his 
usual handwriting. It is differe.nt from thos~ I have identified positively .as 
Mr. Frank's, bnt it is figures on those, and here ~t is in the form of a letter; 
There is no comparison-. With a few-capital-letters you can't get . a_n idea of a 

• . ... ·~-~. - ·-man's han.dwriting. I am not positive that that i.s Mr. Frank's handwriting. 
• ~ It .might be. Yo.~ take this sheet here (requisition sheet) and you can't get an 

idea of a man's handwriting from this, because everything is figures in here-. ---­
.His writing _ ~ight .be entirely different if he. sat down to write a letter. 
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-· _-. _. -" · RB-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 
. . . .. 

· I have .never seen a letter _written by Mr. Frank. The only writing of his 
· that I am familiar with are figures and things ·like tha:t, pay-rolls! writings ·in 

requisitions and words that .consists larg.ely of ab])reviati~ns; 

HARRY GQTTHEIMER, Sworn for the. pefendant. 
-

I am a traveling salesman. I make two trips a year for the National Pen-
cil-Company, from the first of February to the first of April,. and fr-0m the first 
of September to the ·fifteenth of October. I was at . Montag Bros. around te_n . · 

. o'clock on April 26th. · I had come in from my trip on the road ana=was wri ' . 
up my orders. I had been away ten days. Mr . . Frank came in ·after I got there. · 
I asked him about two important . orders as to their shipments · and he .. re:-

. plied that h~ couldn't tell whether they. had been shipped · or ~ot, but that if I 
would return to the factory with him he would give me the duplicate invoices 

. \ . 
and 1et me see for myself. I replied that I would not have· time to go back, . . . . 

---. ·a.s-l ~ad-lots of orders. ·Ile-says :- '' If -you e~n !t eon_ie now, come this aft-er~oon. '-~· 
And . then ·he walked in to Mr. Montag 's office,_ and a·s. he went into the office 
he sai~ "Come up now! or come. up after dinner." 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I saw Frank in his--:uffice one Saturday afternoon ·in the early part of 
April' about three o'clock. His wife was there doing some stenographic work 
for him. · Mr. Frank said £aturo.ay morning, AJ?ril 26th, that if I couldn't 
come to the f.actory in the morning that I should come in the afternoon. , I am 
sure of that · con·versation. Miss Hall heard part of it. I had been iii his 
office on previous Saturday aft_ernoons.. I never found any of the doors locked. 
~e was always ·working. · 

~IRS. RAE FRANK, Sworn for the Delendant. 

. I am the .mother of lJeo Frank. I live in· Brooklyn. I lived in Texa!; 
~· -· three years, where · Leo was- born. Mr. Moses F.rank of. Atlanta is my hus-.· 

·_band's brother. I saw him .at Hotel :McAlpin in New -York City on April ·27·arid 
April 28. The letter that you· hand me (Defendant's Exhibit 42) l · saw on 
Monday, AprU 28th: It js my son's handwriting. This sheet (Defendant.'s Ex­

---=--------h~ibffiv-t-"!4~3,_,)___.is a sort of financial sheet. · I had lunch with Mr. Moses Fr~nk a.t 

.. . 

--

Hq_t_el McAlpin o~ Monday! Apr.ii 28th. His wife .read this letter to him in my 
___ pre~ence and it was _handed. to ~me ...afterwards.- I - also --saw that, -sheet (De 

· . fendant's Exhibit 43) but I did not understand it . . The handwriting on that · -· 
envelope. (Exhibit for Defendant, 44) is that of my son~ .The .word ".Yon~iff" 

--------.~in~t~ letter is Hebrew, meaning·'' Holiday.'' . 
. ·: 

: 
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- .,.-- - . - - ... 

.The letter was folded ~xactly ·as it is now to · th~ best o.~ecollection, 
just in that s·hape. Mr. Frank has no rich relatives in Brooklyn: That "is l!lY 
son's handwriting (State's Exhibit_l{). It h; a photographic copy. There was 
another paper included in the envelope which that letter came in, some price 
list, but I didn't look at it. -n ·had numbers of pencils and prices 011 it. That _ _ ___ _ 
letter was read iu Hotel lHcAlpin. in l\Ir, ~loses.. Fr~nk 's room. As to what rela· 

6 -

tives.l\I_r.__ Frank has in Brooklyn ~ my brother-in-law, :\Ir. Bennett. is a clerk at 
$18 a week. l\'Iy son-in~la.w Mr .. Stearns is in the retail cigar" b.us1ness . . As to what 
my means o.f support are, we have about $20,000 out at interest, my husband 
and I, ·.at. six per cent. ·we own the house we live in. We have a $6,000 mort­
gage OD it. '_fhe house IS wort 1 a OUt~tcmOO. l\fy husband is-doing-no-thl·n1!"-:------~--­
He .is not in· good health. Up to a year ago he was a traveling salesman. These ( 
ar:e the only relatives my son has in Brooklyn. Mr. Moses Frank, my brother­
in-law, generally :spends H Sunday with us in Brooklyn. before he sails for _ 

· Europe. He spends Sunday with us in Brooklyn and ·has dinner with us. He 
·_ ~-- __ _rw~s no_.t_ jn_· _~I1loklyn Qn_A.pril _26th. _ H~ i.s supposed to -b~_ ve~y--~~~lthy._ I 

' . don't ' know how · much· caf!?h my husband has fo bank. A few hQ_ndred doilars 
--:-Possibly. My husband is. 67 years old. He is brqken down from . hard work 

-- · 
~ · 

and in very poor health. He was too_ unwell to come down here . 

_.-
"' 

OSCAR P APPENHEil\lER. Sworn for the .Def~ndant. 

I am in the furniture business. 1 am also i stockholder of the National 
Pencil 9.?mpany. I have · been getting compar~ttve sheets as to the weekly 
business of· the Company _ frum ~rank since March, .1910.' Up to the ti~e the 
Post Oflfoe distributed mail on Sunday, I used to always go to the Post Office to 

· . ~ - - -
get my mail ..an.d always found this report on Sunday morning. When I quit 
going tO the Post Office "on Sunday~ I ·received· the reports in the first mail - ­
on Monday mornings. · I have here the report foi:_ th~ week ending April 24·, 
1913 (Defendai:lt 's Exhibit 45). I got that on Monda¥- morning, April 28th! 
I also have here all th~ . comparative sheets receiv~d- by me every week begin- . 

· ning January 18, i912, up -to April 24, .1913 - (Defendant's ,Exhibit'46). 

-.. C. F. URSENBACH; sworn for .the ~Defendant. 

I married a sister of l\'Irs. Leo Frank. I phoned him on Friday and 
as15,ed him i~ he ~ou~d . go to the baseball game". f?aturd·ay. He-said he didn't 

· know, .he-might go ,and wouj~ phone me · later and let me know. On Satur­
day when -I got home about twenty minutes to two- my ~ook told me that 

- ... M~. Frank had phoned and told me that he wmm 't ..going to the game. I saw . 
.,, him .onSunday, after the murder, at my" h~use. I saw _no scratches, marks 

_or. bruises on him .. ~.He seemed t<? .. be a .little d.isturbed in mind. i saw .him 
. again th~t afternoon . . He told us about the trage.dy.- That evening we met 

, . 

• Y 

. ! 
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him and his wife coming down W-a-s-h}ngton ' street opposite the Hebrew Or-
phans Home. He .gave me· my . rain coat right the.re, · which ~e bad . bor.ro·wed 

.Previously. -· · ·. 
CROSS EXAMINATION. 

He and his· wife · aud my wife and mysel~ gen~rally play cards Saturday 
evening. We wei.•e Very lllLWh interested in bridge and played together often. : 
l\-Ir. and l\Irs. Selig's family usually played poker Saturday night. ·Mr. Frank _ 
and his. wife never played poker. I am ·positive I rang l\Ir. Frank up and 
asked him to go to the ba11 game. :\fr. Frank called it off about one thirty 
on SaturdB.¥- ;--when .I- .got ho1tML..and gQL_the message from my cook it was 
twenty to h\~o . l\fr. Frank horrov .. ed niy rain coat at 4 :30 on Sunday when 

.. it was raining, and I met him about' 6 o .'clock on Washington Street, and 
he returned it. · He never had that rain coat until Sun~ay afternoon . . ram 
positive that he did not have it on Saturday . 

• t •:... ,, . 

·· :\'IRS. l'. ~..,. URSENBACH, sworn for the_.Defendant.· _ 
---

I am l.\.Irs. Leo 11,rank 's sister. .I re!!eived a_ telefil10ne_ messag_e for~ . :\'lr . . 
- ---- --Urs~-nbach- fro~1- l\fr. jirank through my c~ok on Saturday at half past one. 

I saw. no scratches, bruises, or marks on Mr. Frank on Sunday. He was 
nervous as one ·would have been u·nder the cireumstances. He borrowed a 
rain co.at from my .husband that afternoon. The rain coat was at our house 
on Saturday. It was there when ·my husband asked him if he would wear . 
it on Sunday. ·l\fr. Frank did not have it. on Saturday. 

- GR-OSS -J;:XAMINATION. 

On Sund~y Mr. Frank when he was at Hie_-hGuse told us he had -- been 
called down · town and that this little girl w~s murdered, and he told what 
a horrible cri~e it was. He ·did not say who com~iited it. He said notn­
ing al>out employing a-lawyer. He sakLnothing about how he slept the night 
before. I think he told about ·being at the undertaker's in the afternoon. -1-I­
did not. hear him say a1iything about his visit to the undertaker's·• in the 
morning. ·He said he had- been taken down to the· factory in the, morning-. 
by the detectives. He said l1e ·had thought he · heard th_e· telephone ringing . · 

· in his· sleep, the night before. He said when he saw the corpse it was a grew­
some sight. He said nothing about why he . did not stay in the room and. 
look ·at the ·corpse_ longer or more ·carefully. I:Ie said nothing ~~bout. sus­
pectiA,_g_Newt _Lee as being the guilty party. He saia.tie_ ~as sorry _he let 
Gantt "in the factory Saturday. afternoon, because he mistrusted him, because __ _ 
he had not been honest. · He did not say . he thought Newt Lee ·or Gantt · 
_had committed .the ··crime. He said nothing about the clock having been· 
improperly punched. I was not in the r9om the entire time. I had · guests 
and I was out .a good deal .of the time. I don't . know if· he knew the name 

' . of Mary Ph.agan ·.then· or not. I think he· said she was choked. He didn't 

-·-e 

. . 
·-- - - - -

• 
\ 
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. say · anything about a cord around her neck but said she had a frill o.f her 
. petticoat around her neck. . He mentioned he had Raid her off the Saturday 
_ before. I don't know t-hat lie mentioned the name of the girl at all at that 

time. He said he had discharged Gantt because he was not honest. I think 
he ·s~id Newt .Lee 1';as a good fellow as _!!1.Uch as he knew about him. On 
Monday· night over at Selig's Mr. Frank was there and we had a conversa­
tion on the subject . . He spoke of having a detective at the . house in the morn- . 

-in-g,---that- the detectives thought that he had done it and how strange it was 
that they should say · so. He didn 'f say that he suspected anybody. He 
seemed to be calm ·as .usual that . night. He never mentioned suspecting any--:­
body. ·of the crime. On l\fonday night he said he had beeri- sus~ected in the -
morning by tl~e detectives.. That night he sat on the couch and patted his 

. . 
, . 

fuot. That ·was__the only ·ind.ication of uervousnes&-Lsaw__J~.n- -K--.Q. J.G--------=------" 
----========::::=:====-~'-"'-~-===--~ 

. . · 

• 

\ • 

not have l\fr. · Ursanbach 's rain coat on Saturday. It ·was· in our house all . 
day Saturday and until my husband · asked him Sunday if he would wear it. 

MRS. A. E. :MARCUS, sworh for the Defendant. 

I am_ a sister of Mrs. Leo Frank. · I played cards Saturday night at l\Irs. 
·Selig's. · · Mr. Frank was there sitting .out -in the hall reading, and 1\frs. Frank 

- ---
·was going in and out of the room. l\Ir. Frank went to bed after ten o'clock. 

· I noticed nothing unusual about him, no bruises, marks or signs . 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

He can-re- in one time and told me sometbing funny about a baseball joke. 
· We ·were stili playing whe_n he . went to bed. 

'.MRS. l\1. :MARC.US, swprn. for the Defendant. 

I am no rela ion of ·:Mr: or· l\Irs. Frank. I · saw ~Ir. Frank at half past 
eight or a quarter to nine in the evening on April 26th, at Mrs-. Selig's resi-. . 
dence. We played cards· there. l\tlr. ·Frank opened the door for us. He 
stayed in the hall reading. We played cards in the dining room. · He went 
to .. bed between ten and half after ten . .-. He appeared as .natural as usual. I 
left the house about twelve o'clock . 

. · . . . . ..;. · -· -·· -- · cRoss ~·~XAMINATION. 

-::-- --~ W·e, had a game of cards every Saturday afternoon at somebody else's 
house. ·: · 

., 
' · M. J. GOLDSTEIN, sworn for the Defendant. 

. . 

· · · · I played cards Saturday night, April 26th, at Mrs. Selig's · house; I 
· got there about 8 :15. We. played i~ the dining .room. Mr. Frank was sitting 

·_._ . 9---.~ .. ~:i=n......,the . hall. There was nothing unusual about him, no nervousness or ~nxiety. · 

.. ·· ... . · ' . 

. . 
. . .:. . ~. 

-~ ·-
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There was nothing . that . attracted our ·attention . . I have never know_n l\{r. · 
· or Mrs. Frank .t_o_,play p~ker. 1" should s·ay he. \V~t . to_ b.eq ~bout 10 ~30. · His _ 
---- -- -_ ~vife -followed ·about fifteen minutes afterwards. I never noticed any_ marks 

· · oi~ . bruises .·about his person. ... .. . -- . . 
I 

. CROSS EXAMINATION. ·. 

Ile came in while we were playing · to tell us of some - j~ke he had read, 
and we asked him to c1esist as i_t · was... distracting us from the game. ·Frank 1-· 

w~ reading a magazine which caused him consid~rable merriment and 
laughter. 

I. STRAUSS. sworn for the Defendant. 

-. was --a. 1e iome of l\Irs. Selig, Satu1:day _night, playing cards. ·-1 got 
___ t_h_e-re about 10 :30. l\Ir. Frank let me ·in. While we played he was sitting 

in the hall reading. I could see him through the door. There was nothing 
unusual about him. Ile went to bed immediately after I. got there.. ---His 'vife 
went to bed -soon afterwards ~ -

• I 

(Witness denies c~tegoric~lly_that any of the~ contents of Minola · :Me- • 
. Knight's affidavit (State's exhibit J) are true.) . I have· never raised Minola 's 
wages one penny since sl1e has been- with . me... -

. / ~ 

-
CROSS .. EXAMJNATION . .... ~ 

I didn 't see Al~ert McKnight -at my house ·on 8aturday. He has been to 
theritouse two or three times. "I was in bed when l\Ir. and Mrs. Frank went 

· down stairs Sunday morning . in re~ponse to the ringing of t.he telephone. 
~Ir: ~,rank got home . about eleven o'clock Sunday morning and then ate 

. _ his breakfast. He and his :wifewent 0¢ together. l\linola was paid $3.50 
a w~ I advanced her a week's wages. I · don't know what week that 
was. I didn't · pay her anything the next week. The first weelr I gave her 
$5.00 and told her ·to give m~ the change. She brought $1.00 the next morn-=-­
ing, and told me she kept 50 cents which I deducted the next week. · !.'think 
l\Irs. Fr~~k ;gave he~ a hat. I don't know. when that was. ~Irs. Frank has 

- neve~· given her any money to-:my knowledge; · 
,· . -- ·- - - . ·~ 

___ ___ .. - -- - -
?}- . 

:SIG~ITIND: MON'rAG, s:w:.o.nl-fo.r.. -the Defendant. -- ·-- - --. - . ".~·~ 

. -1 am engaged in manufacturing stationery. I am treasurer of the Na­
"----~------- t:-oional Pencil Conipany-. ., The. c~mpany receives its mail at my ofn~.e, which . 

is two blocks from the pencil factory. Frank. comes io my office ev~ry day Q ~ . 
-0f ·t~e ~r .. to -get -the -mail and instructions with regard _ t(). orders and the • . -_ 
business of .the. factory. He came to my office O!l ?April ·26., about ten o'clock 

.. . 

... 

.­' .· . 

; , . 

· - :-- -. ··- ----: -
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and stayed about an hour. He ~alked to me, ·my · stenog~~apher, Miss Hattie _ __ _ 
Hall, aild Mr. Gottheimer, one of the salesmen. ·. up to about a year ago I - . · 
went to the ·factory almost every Saturday· afternoon. :Mr. Frank would 

. always b~ working at his desk on the financial sheet. 'rhe telephone in my 
house is about 20 feet from-my bed. I did not hear it ring Sunday morn­
ing. ·. My wife was ar.oused by its ringing and she \vaked "me . . · '~he man at 
the other end asked me if I could .identify a girl that was killed in the base- · 
ment of the ·pencil factory. I . refer~·ed him to :\'Ir. Darley ·who was most 
familiar with f.he help in the factory. Aff.er breakfast Mr. Frank came to my 
house: It was a raw, chilly- morning . . _ He 'v-as no more nervous th_an we 
were about the murder when we saw him that mormng.. I was very. much · 

· ted and t-rem-bled:--i\tl-y--wtte0 --w-as- veey-n·e.P.V·eus-and ™~n~d ..... ~t ..... o._· _....c~· ,_._--"-----.........:.... __ ............:.. 
I-saw no marks, scratche or discolorations of any sort. on his ·face, and there 

. were no spots on his clothing. I went _t9 the factory that morning and made 
a general examination, including the m_etal room. We saw· nothing·. on the 
floor. Frank was very much nervous and agitated when he told us about 
the occurrence. We have a , great many accidents in the ll)etal room. They 
would be bi·ought to the front ·. of ~the building into the office. I heard th~ 

---~~---u~out-nine-{)1clock- ~ :fo-~df:ly m-0-rning l\!-r-.-:--F-i"ank- h-ad-been- take:n· · t~-police . 

• 

" . 

• 

headquarters.. I knew that he had a very limited acquaintance there· and_ I -­
therefore telephoned for 1\lr. Herbert Haas, my personal counsel and counseJ 
for the pencil company to go down t'liere. ~fr. Haasanswered that he didn't. 
Hke to leave fiome that mo~·ning, that his wife was expecting a new arrival, ~ 
so I sent my automobile after hill). :Mr. Haas came back and said. he '"as 
refused admittan~~ to l\Ir. Frank at the station house, and said he was going -­
to teleph'one Mr. Ro.sser. He then telephoned ·-for-J..'11'. -Rosser. I That was be­

. - tween half past ten and eleven. :\Ir. Rosser came down to the station house 
thirty of .forty · minutes later. I saw ·Mr. Rosser go upstah~s. About forty" 
minutes _ later _:Mr. Black ·and Mr. Haas left policp headquarters with l\Ir. 
Frank I always received the finan~ial sheet on :Monday morning. l\·Ir: · -
Frank would bring them over in envelopes. I saw the financial sheet of 
April 24 ( defen~ant 's exhibit 2) on l\ilonday: afternoon abo~t three .o'clock . 

. 'rhat was after ·Mr. Schiff called me · over the telephone and asked me if I 
would -sanction the employm~nt ·o_f the Pinkertons to ferret ·<flit this crime, 
and I told-i\1r. Schiff to go ·ahead-. I .told him and l\~1•. Darley . to help the 
authorities all in th.eir~e~· to find out the murderer, whoever. he might be. · 

CROSS EXAMINATION.~ 

. Mr. · Fr~~k was well acquainted. with· our attorney, Mr. Haas. · ~le ,~~a-s­
president of -the B 'nai B 1rith. The B 'nai B 'rith has b~tween four or five 
hundred_ mempers; I should say. "\Vhen I say that Mr. Frank had a limited 
acquaintance, . I meant that the- people around police headquarters did not 
know lvir. ·Frank; Mr. Frank did not ask for an attorney. Mr. ·Schiff told 
me that Mr. Frank had spok~n to him about" employing the _ Pinkertons . 
Mr:. Frank was very ~ervpus w_h~n "lie was at niy house Sunday ·morning. He · 

I 

\ 

·. t,;[}._ 
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had already been .to th~ - undertaker's. He t~ld me they had taken bbn into 
- a dark room and flashed on a light,. and he said he saw the little girl there. 

He described how she looked. He said her face was scratched_ an~ her eye 
_~as discolored, and she seemed to have a gash in her head. Her mouth was 

full of sawdust and he described her .in a · general way. He did not . c_all . my. 
attention to his being nervous. He did not say anything to me about an 
attorney or about having been to pol~ce headquarters.· I don't know whether 

. he had been to polic.e_bea.dquarters or not. I authorized the employment of 
the Pinkertons on Monday. I hadnot then employed counsel. ~fy sending 
Mr. Herbert Haas to see Mr. Frank was not employing counsel. I made no 
tra~e with Mr. Haas. Don't know who is paying his fee. I ha~ .not con-

1----~__;::----1.r1~ibu."lu.1t"". e~dL.A.anu.yt1-W1biJig_ towards it, nor has the Pencil -Company. · The Pencil Com-

• 

....,.....,,...----
pany is employing the Pinkertons. As to whether th_ey' · have been paid yet 

. or not, t ey -haven't requested their pay. They have .sent bills two or thre.e 
---- times. I received the reports. from the Pinkertons. ._They came sometimes 

every day and then sometimes they didn't for a few ~ays. I got the report 
about finding the big stick .an~ . the ·pay envelope. I did not request the 

~- ~- __ Pi!lkerton_~ tg kefil> th~ finding of_t)le stick and the . en.veIOpe from __ the_ p_olice 
and authorities. We have little accidents ahn,ost ·every two_ weeks in the· 
factory. There was one big accident about a year ago, a machini~t, Gilbert, 
had his head bursted open in the· metal department. That was_ about a year 
ago. The insurance company ordered us to clean up .the factory about a 

- -- - week after Mary Phagan 's death. 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

Superintendent Pierce, of the Pinkertons, .told me that his reports_ ,\rould 
be furnished to the police l:>efore they came to me.· ~ . . . . . 

' 
TRUMAN McCRARY, (c.), sworn ·for the_ Defendant. · 

. I am a drayman on the streets of Atlanta. I work for the National Pen­
cil Company. I have hauled for them . . I have drayed for. them ~ost ev~ry · 
Saturday. for tlie past three years. · I woul<;l- work on . S.aturday afte~noons 
until lialf past threeand sometimes as · late as ·five: I would be ·sometimes 
ther~so late t_!ie s}lipping clerk would be gone. I have never found the front 
door locked on a Saturday afternoon. · I hav~ never seen Jim Conler watch­
ing there Saturday afternoon. !nave never seen him guarding the door. I 
have· never seen him ·around the factory at all Saturday afternoon:. I have ·_ 
ne"ter·found the doors to Mr . . Frank's in;ner or outer· office locked. Both doors 
hf_ve glass wbidows in them: Anybody_ could see through them. I have· some-. 
times found Mr. Schiff working there with Mr_. Frank on Saturday afternoon. 
_I did not see. Jim Conley at the ·factor:( April 26th. .I did not tell him to 
go down in the ele~ator shaft _and .ease his bowels. · I went into Mr. ·Frank's 
oftlce a~out tw_my~ · o'c_lock on April 26th.· Mr. Frank w,as there. . . 

. • 

:, . ' 

·-
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OR.OBS EXAMINATION. 

I did not haul .·any for-the pencil · factory on--April 26th. I took a sack 
~ - ot~ hay there. That was about · 7 :30. . I _didn't see- l\Ir. Frank · upstairs that 

time. I did ·not see Jim Conley at all that day. It_ may have been as late as 
8 :30 that I reached the factory that day. Mr. Frank was not there. I was 
paid sometime before 12 0 'clock that day. 1'he boxes are piled around in 
there pretty · high around the -elevator going_ down the~e. . There are some 
pretty large ones, four or five feet high. 'rhey are piled around the stair-· 
;,,·ay. I have never seen them use that 0001· to the Clarke Woodenwar~ space. 

- ---1-I have used it once to haul out a lot of tra~h. No I have ·n.ever seen Jim 
Conley sweeping up there Saturday· afternoon. There ·was one Saturday 
afternoon that I didn't go U}J there . . rl'hat" was since Christmas. I think it 
'was in .. April. I went up there every afternoon in January. 

D. J . NIX, sworn for the Defendant. 

I was office boy at the pencil factory from April, 1912, to October, 1912. 
I worked there every other Saturday until the first ·of September, and then 

I • 

- ·. · -eYery Saturday thereafte1~: I am 19 years old. Before ·September 1, I 
1-------,~orked on -Sat~;_ days until between -four -and- si~ -o'clock~ - On Saturdays afte~.---

·- · September 1, I worked until between 5 :30 and . 6. I have. never missed any 
days while I have been at the factory. On Saturday afternoons, l\'Ir. Frank 
and l\{r. Schiff would be· there working. I would stay- in .the· outer office. -- I 
never left the factory on Saturday. afternoon. I have· never known Mr. 
Frank to have any women in his office drinking or doing anything else. 

° CROSS EXAMINATION. 

< I never stayed there every Saturday afternoon in the summer months ." 
·""-"" Every other Saturday afternoon then I got off at one o'GlOck . . No, I don't 

•• 

· know anything aborif l\Ir. Schiff and. l\Ir. Frank and others taking women 
· ... do~'ii the alley o~ Forsyth St. and around---the h_a~k door . . ·He did not have 
.ai:iy women in the factory when I \Vas the1·e, and I worked · every Saturday 
after_ the first of -September until. the first of October. In the summer I 
worked every other Satu~day afternoon. 

FRANK PAYNE~ sworn for the · Defendant. . 

. . I · wa·s office boy last Thanksgiving clay _at the pencii factory. It was · 
. _ ·_snowing that .day. I am 16 years old. lHr. SG-hlff and l\Ir. Frank were work­

-. ing there ~n the office that day . . l\Ir. Schiff sent nie up on the . fourth floor 
·- - .... 

·. to straighten- the .boxes _ . .up. Jim Conley was there sweeping. He · left ·the 
factory about 10 :20. I left about 11. He had finished his work. I went 

. .by the Qffice .to get my coat: · Mr; Schiff a:nd l\iir. Fr1,1.nk were still working . 

. ·When I left I did not see Conley _anywhere about the door. Fo"F"two months -

\ . .-
. ____ . .. ____ ..... - ---

. ~· . 

·. •, . 
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I worked at the fac~ory on Saturday afternoons until 3 :30 or four. , Mr. 
Schiff and Mr. Frank would always be · working in the office. I have never 
known him to have any women in there, or see any drinking going on. · I 
would go to dinner·-about" 1 or 2 o'clock. Mr. Frank would go about 12 :30 
to one and get back a ou - three. I would stay in the. inner office all the 

--"'""'·ti~' me. Mr .. Schiff sat right across . from me .in the inner office. I would go 
to Montag 's and .stay about ten or fifteen minutes. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I quit work 1;1.t the factory seven or eight months ago to get a better 
job. Mr. Schiff was with M~. Frank every Saturday af_t~!noon I was tl~ere. 

_______ - _.c.. _ __,l"-'n~!'.J,tAr__!.L"""n.,,,_.,_..........,ck_at_nights. I hava.nrur-seell-any_,beer-hottles-ar.ound--th~rce~·'---------
1 don't know whether Jim Conley -came back aft.er he left there at 10 ':30 on 
Thanksgiving Day. I saw him go d_own the stairs. I d)d not look for him 

. . 
-- 'I - - • 

as I went down. I did not notice him. · " 

. . , 
___ __EHILLIP __ CHAM.BERS, sw_orn .for th~ pefendant. 

. . . 

I am 15 years old. I starte_d working for them De~ember 12, 1912, as 
office boy,. at the pencil factory. I left there March 29, 19_13 . . I stayed in 
the outer office. - On Saturdays I stayed until 4 :SO and· sometimes until 5 

· o'clock. I never left before 4 :30 on Saturd~ys. I would go to dinner ·about 
1 :30 and get back at 2. Someti!_lles on Saturdays I would be sent to Montag's -
for 15 minutes, to get the mail. I would aometimes go out to the Bell Street 
plant to get the payroll there. I would ·get back at 12 o'cloclt~-I have 
there . . I have never seen Dalton come in there. I have seen Jim Conley 

• 

Mr. Frank never . did 'have any w~men there. I · never saw any drinki1,1g 
there. I have never seen Dalt.on come in there. I have seen Jim · Conley 
sweeping there Saturday .afternoon. Snow~all would ·be in there· once in a _ . ~-

. while. . I have ·never . known t·i,.e front door io be iocked on Saturday-a-ft_e_r_~ ___;;;.~-
noon. After a certain. time_8.1l the swe_epers, including Conley and· Snowball, 
had to leave the factory at ·noon: Mr. Darley gave them orders they· could 
not sweep in the afternourr.-:- After th~t I never saw any of them around · 
the~e _:· atur ay a ternoon. ave never s.een ~ny ·q<;ly watching the . door 

·on any ·Saturday that I was ther:e, or any-ether day: ·I .have seen Mr. Frank's 
wife come to his office once. ·. M:r. Schiff would be. helping him on s9me of 
the ·saturdays .that I would -.be there . . I have never seen Mr . . Frank ..f~miliar 
with a~y of the women "in. the factory. I have never· seen him . talk to ·"Mary 

. Phagan at all. · . , ~.. · · · ·. · 
·CRO"S EX-AMINATION. 

Mr. ·Frank and I were. good friends; · just· like a· boss ought to: be to me. · 
· I do~'t know anything about ~r. Frank's telling Conley to come arourid and 
· not _ lei ·Mr·. Darley tJ.~e' him. · ·· 

- .. 

~ . 

. . . . ·--
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GODFREY WEINKAUF, sworn for the ·Defendant. 
i ' ----

I am s\}perintendent of the Pencil Company's lead plant. Beginning with 
July, 1912, llp-UlltiLthe first week in January, 1913, I visited the office of the 
pencil factory every other Saturday, bet.Ween three and fiv~ o"clock. I would 
stay there about two hq_urs-:--r would· find Mr. Holloway, Mr. Frank and Mr. 
Schiff there. · I never saw any women in the-uffice--there.-

OB.OBS EXAMINATION. 

r saw Jim Conle . there at the factory on Saturday afternoon. I 
am sure I. saw Holloway ther_e on Saturday afternoon. ·· 

. CHARLIE. LEE, sworn for the Defendant. 

I am a machinist at the pencil factory. I remember an .. a.ccident to Duffy -
in the metal room. His finger was hurt on the eyelet machine, about October 
4~ 1912: . It bled. freely and the blood. spouted out: There w,~i a lot of the · 

~-b=l=-ood on the floor. He went down t~e hall to the office, by the 'ladies' dr~ss~ , ·. 
ing room. There was blood at that point. Gilbert also got hurt in the metal 
room last year. He was ba!i4_aged in the office .also. In going from the metal 
room to the office, you go right by the steps. . . 

- :CROSS EXAMINATION. 

... 

- - -------

~ 
I. have been· wit.~ the company two years and four months. Two weeJiB----------

·-·...... .. 

ago my wages were. raised .. 2 1-2 cents an hour~ Mr. Darley raised ·theni. I 
have not talked to anyb~dy . about what I was gotng to swear in this case. 
I did not see Gilbert g'et hurt up 'the1;e. I s~w him -after he was .dressed. · 
Duffy was hurt · in the metal room on · the. ~~chine opposite Mary Phagan.'8 
machine. The pencil company took. a written statement from me, signed by 
me, to keep the fellow from suing · the company. I ·saw .:my signature this 
morning. I have never told you I signed that statement.· - ·Tne blood was 
streaming from his fipger and-1ir.9pped all over the fl.oor. The . whole floor 
was bloody. He came out down the hall to the -office. He stopped ·abo.ut ·in 
fl!ont o~ the dressing rooi:n, ab~ee steps from the wat.er cooler and .asked _ -
me which offi~e to go in. T~~·w~s s}re~mi:pg from 'llis finger while he · . 
was .s.tanding t'1ere, about ei34t or ten seconds. ·· . It -dropped just in one place, 
holding his hand like this. It wasn't cleaned up, they only sweep the flour 

-- once a week, that's ·an the ·cleaning it gets. I ~ever noticed it aftet'"that time. 
. . . ' ,,, ' 

· I . have never taken a11:y notice whether you can see tha.t blood there now. 
· .. Duffy was cut _right ·near where those chips were taken: up on the . floor. It 

might have been the · same.,_ plac~ . . It ·wa&--?ight near there. I ·woul4µ't say 
it .was the same spot .or not' . . 

. . .. -. . ·. .. . 

"-;-. 
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. ARTHUR PRIDE (c), sworn for the Defendant.-. 
J worked on the second floor of the factory. On Saturdays I work all 

over the factory, doing anything that is neces.sary. Beginning with Jnly of 
. .last year I have not missed a single Sftturday afternoon at the factory. I 

won woirr un 1 a out ia past our. iave never seen any women come 
up there and see l\fr." Frank, or any drinking . going on there, or seen . Jim 
Conley sitting. and watching the d<?or. · 'rhe .employees used the hack stairs _ 
·leading from the metal room · to the third· floor. You can hear the elevator 
running if the machinery is not running. It makes a roari;ng n~i~e af:l~ you 
can hear it on any floor. · 'l'he motor makes a noise, and you can see the wheels 
·moving on the fourth.floor. I know Jim Conley's general charact~r ~or tr.l!tl~ 

f-- - - - ---- --=-a=n-::i-=ve=1=·ao-=cc!'.1=y::-;----!"l1 i:-!1's;;;---t,-=aa.----t would not believe lrlm-on- oath. I-wouldn-4----be,~--_,__ _ _ _ 

... 

lieve him on oath, l;>ecau~e him and his whole. farni-ly--lied-t~ ·me. 
-· . 
QROSS EXAMINATION. -

I never associated ~~ith Jim. No, I aint a high-class nigger, but I am a 
different grade from him-. He had t~ree or four watches and I bought one 
and I inade_ him show me a receipt marked paid~ in full, and he-sold me .the 
watch and after that they come and got hiin to put him in jail about it, ·and 
then h.is whole family · came~ an~d· if I · would give the watch' ·back, that 
they would pay the debt, and I gave the watch-back _and after they had re­
l@ased him, the family just said they done that to get the watch and they 
were done with it1 and there wasn't any_ way fo_r me to get ·it,. but he swore 
t.o me it was paid in full. I haven't heard anything else said against him. 
I never paid any special ·aHention to the elevator during business hours, but" 
you could hear it . all the time when the factory wasn't running. It didn't 
shake the building. You cou.ld hear· the elevator when the -wind blows . . You 
c<lll.ld hear the elevator ff the -~·achinery wasn.'t running even if they· .ar.e. 

I . 

hammering. 

RE-DIRECT ·EXAMINATION.· 

I haven't mis~ed a single day in five years, that I have been working 
with the factory. Yes,_! .say · that Jim Conley forged a rec·eipf on me for 

. a watch. _I let l1im have $4.50 on it, and I never got my · ~oney back:. ~ I 

- --~ 

DAISY HOPKINS, sworn for the Defendant. 

I am a married woman. I worked in the factory from . October, 191~, . 
to June · 1, 1912. · I worked in tlie packing department on the second floor. 
l\Ir. ~rank nevei:. spoke to me when lie would pass. I never did speak t'o 
him: .. I 'ye never been i~ his office. drinking beer, · c.oca~Gola, or ~nything else . . 
I . .kno'~ Dalton· when I .see him. I neve1~ visited the .factory with him. I 
nev~r have be·en· with. piJD until ~- went to his house .to· ·see-MrS.Taylor, who . 
lived with him then. That was the only :place I have ~ver seen hini. · I · 
n·ever h~ve .. been .. to the factory ori ·s .atl:1r_day. ·or a~y other d~y .. I ·~;~er ·· in-· 

... . . ,. 
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troduced him to Mr. Frank. There isn't a word of truth in t'1at. I have . _ 
never gone d·own in the basement "tvith this fell ow. Dalton. I don't even know 
where the basement .is at all. ·I have never been anywhere in the factory; · ... 

~-------"xe.ept at mx_,J:Vork-. ' 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

1 · hav_e nexer be~n in jail. M-Po--W. l\{. Smith got me out of jail. .Some­
body told a tale on me, that's why I was put in jail. I . don't know what 

, they charged me with; they accused me of fornieation. 
~ · - . . . . 

-~---

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

. I never was ·tried. I never ha-d to,_pay anything except my la~yer's fee, 
wh.ich I paid to Mr. Wm:-Smith. I ~ever was, taken t~ court. ~---

MISS LA URA ATKiNSON, sworn for the Defendant.: 

I have been in Mr. Dal.ton's company three time·s. I never met him at the 
.____ __ ___ ._Busy Be~ Caf~. I have never walked with him to -or from the pencil com-

-~pany. I have never walked -home--with him. 

,. CROSS EX.AMINATl(>N. • I worked at the National Pencil Factory two days last month. I have 
known M:r. Dalton six months. I have .. been in his company three times. I · 

. ~ · "· - did not. know Daisy Hopkin$. 
'-'.------ . '\ 

. ' 

_. 

. . . ' .. 

... 

. ·. 

'-. 

\. 

... 
MRS. J\HNNIE SMI1'H, sworn for the Defendant. _ 

I work ~t the pencil factor..y.- I do not know C. B. Dalton. I live at 148 · 
S, Forsyth St. I have never met Dalton or walked OOm-e with him. I ~on 't 
know the man. I know Mr.' Frank I have $po ken . to him six times in the 

. ./ 
.four years and a half that I worked there. 

CROSS EXAMINATION WAIVED. · 
. , 

V. S .. Cooper, W. T. Mitchell, O._ ·A. Nix, S~muel Craig; B.-L. Patterson, · 
. Robert Craig, Ed Craig, T. L.- Ambr_ose, J.- P. Bird, J. !J. ·Patrick and I. M. . 
Hamilton. All sworn for the defend3nt . T.estified th.at they lived in (}win- . 
_nett or Walton county; that they use.d to know C. B. ·Wal ton · before he left 

· .. Monroe .in Wal~pn county; that his general· character for tr~_th and veracity 
is bad, and that they would not believe him on oath . . 

~ - . 

. R. · L. BAUER,. sworn for the Defe.n<:lant . /1 . 0 • 

· · _ Durin~-summer . of 1909 and 1910, ·I worked at· the · National Pencil 
C,ompany on Saturdfys. Since ·that time I have worked · <!fl and on at the 
factory on Saturdays do~ng e~tra ·work. I . have also been .up . to _the oftlee·: · · · 

----. -
, 

. . . 
... ·.:···- 'r. 

0 

.. 

. - ·--.--~ 
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Saturday afternoons, frequent1yITTi1;ing the p~st twelve m~n~hs. Ms tI:iere 
· while l\l~r. Schiff was off· on his trip. I was up at the office on the Saturday 
~afternoon · before Mr. Schiff ·went away. · Mr. Hollo~ay, Mr. Schiff, Mr. Fra:nk 
and the office boy were there. I have never seen a.ny women ·in Mr. Frank's -
office on the Saturdays I have been there. 

CROSS EXAMINATION . . 

I · have always foimd }fr. Schiff-there on Saturday. afternoons with the , 
. exception of the time when .he was off on his trip during· January and .Feb­

ruary. The only specific · Saturday a~rnoons that I rem~mber being at tl~e 
facto_ry, ,;i,,as the Saturdays during the month of Januai·y, 1913, when lVIr. 
Schiff was .off on the road. Got to the factory at three Q'~lock on the first 
Saturday -in January. _!_ went ~h_rough the front door of the factory. · __ It _ ____ ~-
was unlocked and the door was op~n . :Jir . . ~Iolloway was on the second floor 

. -i:a:--his · usual pl~ce . · l\Ir. Frank was in his office sitting at his desk. I didn't 
~----~e~ any stenogr.apher . I stayed there until nearly four o'clock". I have been 

'----- -- to tli"e f.actory on an aYeragr of two Saturdays every month. On the second 

- · . 

.. ~. -

.. Saturday in__Jantrn~y, l go_t_i o_th e_ factoi:y a_t_ t.111~e Q'clo_cJr. · _:Mr._ F_i~a_nk, :Mr. 
Holloway and t lie office boy · "'ere. there-. The .front door was. open. The in­
side-door . was open. Mr: Frank '"as at his desk, in the inside ·office. I sta.yed 

, . . there ·abo_ut a halG r three quarters of an 110ur, about half past th!'_ee or. a 
quarter to four. T talke(l to :Vfr. Frank about t en n~inutes, and -the rest of 

/ . 
· the time I just noticed t.hings around the office. I saw l\ir. Frank at th~ __ 
· fact9ry the- third Saturday in J a.nuacy I was there. I don 't kno'Y wJ:io else 
was . there. . I went · to inquire about ~Ir . Schiff who-was in the Ohio flood-. . 
. 1\Ir. Erank ·was in his office. I remember seeing l\fr. ·Frank in his office on 
the fourth .Saturday i_n January I called .. there. He was working i_n his office. 
r-~t rememb~.i~· ·_s_e _ei.ng a·nybody else the_re. 

' . 

GORDON BAILEY, sworn for the _pef~ndant . 

I wo ·k at the factory. I am sometimes-calieu '.'Snowball. '' I never saw · 
" . .. Jim Conley talk to l\ir. Frank the Friday before the murder. I ha:ve never, . 

.. . ·--at- any time, heard lVIr. Fra,nk ask Conley to eome back on a_!!Y- Satu.rday; I 
have never seen Mr. Frank bring in any 'women into the factory. I have never. 
seen Jim CoJ?.ley guarding or watching the door. I have seen ·Jim-take--news­
papers -and look a,t it, but I don't _know if he read them or · not. · I have ·see11 
h~~ have pal!_~ at the station house like he ~~as readir.~g them. ;--- .1 0 

• 

. CROSS EXAMINATION. 

• 

... 

I was · arrested ·Monday, Aprit--28th, about half past nine. I saw Mr. ft 
-Fl."anlt .before I was. arrested; · ·He was on the second floor. .. 

---.... 
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. HENRY SMITH, sworn. for the D~~da1:1t. . 

I work at the pencil factory in the metal department. I work with Bar­
rett. He has talk~d to me about the reward offered in this case. - He said it 
was $4,300, and he thought ~f . anybody was to get it, he was to get it, be-

; cause he found the blood and hair, and he said he . ought to get the first hook 
at. it. He_said it six or seven different times. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

He wonld come out of the · ~·oo~ counting it off on hi~ ha~ds. He did 
that t.\vo or "three times and sort of laughed, counting that i~aginary money. 

~I:UTON=-K-L---EIN--,--sworn for the Def en t. 

I 'f;aw Mr. Frank last Thanksgiving ·evening at a danc,e given by the · 
B 'na.i B 'rith at the Hebrew Orphan's Home. I also saw him ttiat same -after- . 
noon between half pa.st four and six o'clock.. The dance lasted from eight 
to half p~elev.en. Mr . ... Fran.k helped Mr . . Copelan anq myself give the 

. .> 

dance-. --We· 1vere . t-he-'" -com·mittee --in--cbarge. - - - . ~--- -~ ____ , _ ___ _ 

••• 

~ - · --

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I- was · down at the jail to see Mr. Frank when the detectives brought 
Conley dow.n- there. ~ sent word down tha.t Mp Frank didn't care to see 
Conley, that he · didn't care to see anyone at that time. He knew-that Con­
ley was there-.· ·.j was ·the spokesman for Mr. Frank. He wouldn't see any 

. of the detectives either. l\.fr. Frank said that he would see Conley. only 
with the consent of his attorn~r, 1\ilr. Rosser. He said for th,em to send and 
get. Mr. Rosser. · Frank's manllif was perfectly natural. He considered Con­
ley in the same- ligh that he considered any of the city detectives. He sa.i< 1 

I . 

·he would not see any of the city detectives,-or Mr. Scott without the consent 
. of ~fr. ·Rosser. He. c9nsidered Scott as working for the·· city. He included 

Scott with the rest o.f the detecth:es. l\ir. Frank looked very much disap­
po~nted becau.se ·-uie ·grand jury had just indicted. him when he ha~ expected 
to be cleared . . .l\fr ~ ·Frank · has a great. ··many }riends who constantly ·visited 
hi,m in jail. 

NATHAN COP:(JAN, sworn for th~ Defendant . 

. I reinemher las.t Thanksgiving-Day ~as a very disagreeable day. I" don't 
remember whether it sn?wed. The B 1naLBjith is a charitable organizati.on 
here compos·eq or young men;-!rhey gave a dance out at the Jewish Orphans 

. • "t 

· Home Thanksgiving eVeni~g. Mr . . Frank had charge of it . . Mr. Frank and 
his wifr. were •there. i got the~e about eight ~'clock. '.rhey -~~ie th~re at 

. . .. .··that time. '!:1,hey stayed· th~r~ ~ntil about ten .o'clock. . · 
... . -

It 
~----

. .... /' 
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JOE S~ELKER,_ sworn for the Defendant. 
. . _,.,..-~ -

I -have-got charge of the varnishing department at ~pencil factory; 
about sixty people work tmder me. I saw the spot t tt('Mr. Barret\._ claimed 
he· had found in front of the young ladies -dressi room. It looked lih some 
one had some coloring in a bottle and splashei it on the floor. Chi~eavers --­
asked me to find out whether it ~.varnish o~ not. I ~aw the .white stu;ff on 
it. It looked like a composition they use on the eyelet machine. or face pow-· -_ der. They carry that stuff around in buckets in the metal room. It gets 

. spilled on the floor and looks something like face powder. .The spots look 
- like. some varnish. The floor in the metal room is swept once a week. It is 

never washed. The. spots look as· if -it had been made three days before.- I 
.~--------~-

l:------,....--~-n'-'J.Ul d-n~ &ti ced-it--h ad not-mratt-entionbeen called to it. The oor 

\ 
\ 

\ 

•· 

,' 

is. a greasy one. T11e white stuff looked like it-e(}me from the eyelet machine. 
The alleged blood spots .could have been made. with a transparent red varnish. 
If it is that kind of varnish .it will soak in and look something like blood. If 
it i$-pigment it will show up right red. They use this kind of varnish in 
bottles in the metal room. . I tried a stain-on the floor there and it looked just -
like that spot that Barrett found. Ev.erybody· was. nervous and shaky on 

- - Monday.--T..h~..arnish .. L e~peci.me1:1ted~ witb< -14Paked- in thErlloor ._and- looked ,_" 
the same as the blood spot. I have . seen paint all over the floor, it splashes 
out of the bucket and they just sweep it up. - I was· at the undertaker's Sun­
day afternoon at two o'clock when Frank was there. M~ .Quinn, Mr. Ziganke, 

-

l\'1r. Darley and l\'.lr. Schiff were there. I looked at the body with. l\{r. 
Ziganlte. No one else was present. · I have known Jim Conle_y. about two 
years. His general characterror truth- and- veracity is very bad, ·therefore. -
I .would not believ.e him on oath-. -- - - .- - ·-...... 

-
CROSS EXAMINATION. 

Frank came from Brooklyn. I am no kin to Mr. Frank or· any of his 
people. I do not belo!lg to his society. i have never hen.rd anything said 
against Conley, except since Frank was indicted. .I also h·eard he was in_t_h_e __ 

· c~aingan·g. I saw him in the cha~gan_g__ op. Forsyth Street. I saw him with 
shackles on. I don't know what he was sen~ · up-4or. I sent him . out for 25 

· . cents worth of ·beer and he filled -it half full of water and he de.nied doing 
it. I could tell it was filletJ up by the taste of it. . I know he did .it be~ause 
he had a suspicious look .about him. -T-ha-t- w~s last summer:- .Ziganke h~lped · 

- me drink beer'. Th(tfs about all the drinking t have ever seen .there. At . 
. the undertaker's Mr. Frank h~tl:.on a dark suit of clothes . . Jle had no raincoat 
with him. - We went to the undertaker's for the purpese of .seeing the body. 
l\{r. Frank did not ·as~. me to meet him there. I went in to view the body 
and then ·came out. Mr. Frank came there ten minutes after-we got · there. 
While we Wel'C in there-Mr.--Fl'ank had come and was speakin,g to ·Mr. Dar­
ley: _ I don't ~now h9w long I was sitting .there. . I was too nervous to ·know. 
I felt .nauseated and ·netvous before I went i~ to see the body .. · When I w~nt 

-------. ~--- - --

•.; · -
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• 

• 
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· in to view the body--M-P.-Frank was standing· outside talking_ with Mr. Schiff, ·.-_.,.. 
and Mr. Darley. Mr. Frank went in to view the body later on, ten . or twenty/' . / 

or thirty minutes later: . I was sitting dow.n_waiting for the rest of the.-nien · _ __ ·_ 
. / . 
while· he went there. Ziganke was sitting with me. I don't know-·whether 

· Mr. Frank \yent in the room to see the body or not. M-r. Frank-;~~s nervous 
. when _he got there, and when he came out just the "same. Ju'Si: the same ex-, ~ 

pression he-has-got qn his face now. The roo·m was fuU·'of people when Mr. 
Frank went in there. I went down to the undertaker's · to see who was mur­
dered. ~id n~t know tha.t she had alr~ady b~n 'identified as Mary Phagan. 
I only beard when I got to the undertaker'~. · -'I didn't see the impress of t~- · .... 
cord on the neck. I just took one loo~"imd then came right out again. I 
saw the dis.coloration of t e -eye ·a 
I · walk.ea right_ out. · .--. 

RE.DIRECT EXAMINATION. 
• 

,... 

I am a German and I am accustomed to drinking my beer; t have never 
. trusted Jim Co~ley after he put water in my beer. -

·' .. . 
..------~ --·-~-. - ___: __ _ '""-... - ,.... - - - · ---~ . . . 

H.ARL~E BRANCIJ, sworiiror flie De.fendant~---·- -

-,A . -.--

... -··'· 

, .. 
\ ~ 

- . . "'· \ 

· .:--- · ) . 

· . 

- . \ \ . . 

. . .· .· I work ·for the Atlanta Journal. I had an interview with Jim Conley 
./·on two occasions. On May -.31, he told me he didn't s.ee the purse of this 
· little girl: He said that it took-about thirty-five minutes after going upsta.irs 

lintil he got out of the fact~ry. He said he finished about 1 :30 and then went 
out. · He said that Lemmie Quinn g~t_Jnto the factory .ab.out ..12_o_'clock ·and 
remained a b()Ut 8 or 9 minutes.· 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I am-sure about his saying he s'aw Lemmie Quinn at the faetory at that 
iµterview. He was in jail when I had that interview. It was a few days 
after he went through the factory. As to Conley's movements at the factory, 
I was th.ere a: few minutes after twelve. Conley arrived there 'bout 12 :10 . 
or 12 :15. The deteetives told him what he -was there for. After a feWlllinu-
tes' brief conversation, Conley started telling his - story. When be ·reached 
the point at the rear left. side of tl~e factory, he described the position of t4~ 
body, and described-what . be .. did with the body, and how Mr. Frank helpe~ 
him. He enacted the whole story ·and talking all the time. After he had 
r~ache.d the point. of ·dispusing of . the body, and writing the notes, I found 

~ . . 
-<... . -

· it was time for me to .go back to the office ~ii:d l left~onley began the enact­
\ . ment of the story a few minutes aft.er he got there, which' was a ·quarter past 

· twelv~, and he ·went through very rapidly. \ We had . to sort of trot to keep 
· . behind him.· I left the · factory at 1 ·:10-. In e~timating the time Conley de­

-devoted-to· acting ai;id ho~ much to telling the story would -be a: guess .. There . 
.- ·.is. no way of disassociating the tiIµe. between the two. J didµ 't atienipt to · do· . _ ·. · · . 
-' that. ·It wO-uld be. a pur.e guess kecause I ·see no way of dividing the_lime . .. . · I _~:· : . .. · -. . · . : · ~ ... · . 

. -,------::-_ .-- ~---;---------·~· ·- -~- -- - . . .. -.. -.. -.~ .. . ... - ...----- - . ~· " . -,.,------'-----'-. ' .. •.· . .. -~ . ... . . . ,, 
- ).- ·. 

. . ·- . .. . --· 
~ - . ···- : . . . . . 

·: · . . 
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should say that perhaps · he was tall{ing and not acting for about 6fteen min­
utes. Of course he was talking all the time that h.e_was_ acting. I did not 

-say that I thought he was talking half of th~ time. -· · · 

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

·in going through his perf~ance ·he walked very r~pidly. We were al­
most on a trot behind him,/ '1 was at the factory fifty· minutes while he en:. 
acted his s~ory. I le~t-11fm after he had written one note i~ Mr. Frank's 
Qffice. He wrote t,,he/note very rapidly. It took him about two minutes. He 
didn't stay in/ the w:f!rdro be over a minute. He just got_ in, closed the door 

f==~=-L=-=------~d-g()~g / _. _ · . in _ the time of his erformance I gave a 
minute---to his staying in the wardrobe and two minutes to writing the one 

. . ./ 

nQte·. If you add six minutes to writing the other notes and eight minutes 

. · -

-

, . . / to the time he s aye m he wardrobe, that-would ~e fourteen-minutes- - ---
added to the fifty minutes, which '~v~o~u~ld~b~e~s~i~x~t~-~f~1~r~m~· ~~~~~~~~~-~~---~ 

. the perfor~ance. If you deduct the fifteen minutes which I say he was 

---- talking, would leave forty niinutes net ~hich he took to enact the story. 

~oss EXAMINATION. 
' - . - - - ----- -· - T·ha t is just -ari ~estimate. The -only -t_ime -i-bad-was tlie time ·I left my . 

. , 

office and the time I got back. Conley got to ·the factory 12 :15 atra _ !_left 
there between 1 :05 and 1 :10. I saw Conley pick up a paper in the newspaper 
/ . 

·room and he looked like he was rea4ing it. It had pictures on the front 
page- am.I- I judge he looked aJ..J_hem first, lfocause afterwards he fol9ed -1t-.--­
He had several minutes ,~vhife I was telephoning. 

JOHN M. MINAR, sworn for ·the Defendant. 

I am a newspaper reporter for the ''Atlanta Georgian:'' . I ·visited George 
Epps Sunday night", Apri~ 27th . . I went there to ask Jiim_ and his sister when 
was -the last time either of them had seen . Mary Phagan, George Epps and 
sister were both present. I a.sked them who had seen Mary Phagan last, 
and the little gir_l Epps said she- had _seen her on the pr.evious Thursday. 
George · Epps was standing right there and he said n<?th.ing l\bout having seen · 
her Thursday. He said he k1:1ew the girl, that he-had ridden to· town with her 
in the. mornings occasionaHy when-=she went to . work. He .said nothing as to 

. naving seen the girl on ~ Satur-day a_nd CO!Iling in on the car with her.. I di­
rected ~Y questions to both the children . 

.. 
a~oss- E~AM~ATION . 

. I was not seeking evidence for the defendai;it. There was no defendant 
at that time. This was on Sunday,. the day the body was found. I. have been 

· working under the direction of Mr: Clofein, city editor. Clofein visited.Frank 
in jail. · At that time MF. Frank .. had. not been mentioned in · conne-ction with 

·• --- . . 
·.-.:.., 

--- ....l- .---- - ; ~ - -:-:-- . - - -----·-----

--- .. 
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the . case at all. At the time of the interview .with the little girl and the 
little boy .. they we~e both in t he room with their father. · Their father took 

me out there. 
~ ~ 

· W. n: Mc WORTH, sworn for the Defendant. 

I am-a-Pinkerton detective·. I work~d for fifteen days on the Frank 
case.- ·For three days I took statements from the factory employees and o·n 
May 15th, I made a thorough search of the ground floor. .I .found near. the · 
front ,door on. the ground .floor, stains that might or might. not have been 
blood. All the radiators in the fact.ory had trash, dirt -and rubbish behind 
them. Behind one of the· radiators near the Clark W oodenware place, where 

I I . 

/ 

the partition is, I found much trash, behind the trap door, up agains0'1::-::-e _ _ _____ _ 
partition, and o:ri top of . the radiator were pipes and about eight ·or .nine . 

- --------!,engtbs of that rope that they tie pencils wi~h. One length-the only one that 
---------(O'itfl't-P--tAAs~as pulffid straight away from the radiator antl-~;a..\o\~~~V.Jo---------

• 

-~-- -----. .. 

it having ~n cut recently. with ~ ... sharp knife. Among the trash I found 
papers there dated February, 1911. That. rubbish ·had b~en there some _time, --
because the rest of the floor around there -was clean-. ·About six '01' eight 

. inches from ·the left ·side of the radiator, there. '~'as a small pile of dirt and 
-sweepings.· When hook ~fr. Whitfield, another Pinkerton detective, back 
there to show ·him the spots I nad found; we looked behind the radiator and 
as I was sticking my hand around the dust anil dirt, I discovere~ a pay 
envelope. (Defendant~ exhibit 47). It was covered with granulated dust. 
I op~med it and looked at it and saw the numbk· 186 there. And the first 
initials of the name an"'.' M" and· a "P." I handed it .to Whitfield and said: 

- - ' 
_ _ ''Take it to the door aIJ.d see what it is.'' it was pretty dark in there. Ri_g)lt 

in the same corner, I als~ found a club (d~fendant's exhibit 48). It was 
standing up on the doorway with some iron pipes. The club is used by tlie 
drayman as a roller to roll box~s. and ~arrels on. The iron pipes· there were 
used for the same purpose. · The-stains on t.h.e club were either paint or bl<?od, 
I don't know which. I found this little stick back of the front ·door. (State's 
exhibit L). · 

-- .. . ____..,... CROSS EXAMINATION. 
~ . 

I saW-the-spots in front of the ladies dressing room. It just looked as 
if the . floor had been stained. T!iere are half a dozen places. There was .no . 
difference in appearance between the dark spots by the-water cooler and the 
other spot in the' metal room . . I . did not make any special search .on the 
office floor for a pay _envelope. I was looking- for the · mesh hag under tlie 
·instructions -of Mr. Scott._ Mr. Whitfield joined me in the · search. In my 
report to the Pinkertons I reported that I found'- what I took to be OIOod 
stains around . the trap door. They· were dark discolorations. There were 

-seven-of-them, a v.eraging a bout seven inches in diameter. The gas was ' t~r1ied 
on and I U$ed _matches hi examining them. I had found the ·stains first and 
~ . . . . 

- ,---

.. 



... ~· . . ' 

- · - - · __ _L__ 

142 

'. ''rhile l\ir. ,Whitfield and I were back there looking behind- the radiator, -we 
found the . cord and twine about the . radiator. Whitfield was examining t~e:-­
stains when I picked up the. envelope which was all rolled . up. I found the 
envelope about~ -three o'clock on May 15, within eight ·or ten inches of the 
trap d~or. The name was written in. lead pencil. So far as I know the 
envelope has not been changed any E!ince I saw it last. I did not see any '' 5'' 
on the envelope. We went out to setl · Mr. f.md Mrs. Coleman on May 17th, 
and showed them the envelope. There was no '' 5'' on it at . thartime. There . 

~as no conve1~sation about any five. t had talked to Mr. Schiff before I saw 
l\1r. Coleman. In my report I stated that the stains might have been bloo..cLas .~----=----
well as stains. I reported the · cu to the police 17 hours after 

'ng i . · nd within four hours thereafter, I had. a conference with them 
about it. ~ I n~ver sho':Vea that wh.ip. to . ~nybody (State's exhibit L) I didn't 

- - -----
l-- - -----__s:iSiyl J,.!J:lv~· IL-".Y..-~~-ac.k sh~\'-ed-hlm tlte cl~b and the envelope. I turned 

. _ Jhem over to :Mr. Pierce, the superintendent of our agency. I don't know 
where he is, nor Whitfield eit.h~r. """' · 

JOHN FINLEY. sworn for the Defendant . 

. I · was -formerly master machi.nist . and assistant- supe1·intendent ·of the 
pencil factory. I have known Mr.' Frank about five · years. His characte1:,- ; 
was good . .' 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I am now~ superintend~t for Dittler Bros. They are not related ·to the · 
Fra.nks. I Ieft the pencil c01npan!· about three years ago. .I he.ve never !1eard 
anytlring. about women going up in the factory, after work hours. ·l\Ir. Frank 
and I usually left· together about six o'clock. l\tfr .. Frank went to lunch us­
ually ·about one o'clock~ I would sometimes woi'lc at the factory all Saturday 
afternoon. I did that most of the time that I was there. The elevator box 
was kept closed when I was there. I generally kept one key and we kept· 
one key in the office. The rule was ·to .Jock it' and keep one keY. in the ~ftke·~. --~,-=--­
It has been left unlocked. The elevator· doesn't make much noise that I know 
of-. · .It d"oesn~ shake the building; not when I was there. The wheels on 
the top ffoor are closed in on the fourth floor. You might be able to see 
theni on the fourth floor if you stand on the. west side of the · el.evator. · They. 

: didn.'t ma.~e ~:qy noise. The power . b~x· don't maRe any no~s~. , -y_-~ __ · · · .. 
RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

-- The motor .Il!akes. a l:rem~ndous noise. 
anywl~ere in th~ building.-. -·.· .. .... -

YOU can hear it . and the shafting'------­
./ . 

·A. D. GREENFIE.LD, sworn for. the Defendant. 

I arn' on~ of the owne~s of th~ building occupied by ihe Pencil dompa1,1y · · 9 . 
on ·Forsyt~ St . . I haye o.wned it ..... sh1.c.e_l900. When we ··bought the building . . . . 

. • 

. . _.:.,. ____ ·-- . --.---. ---.-
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__ it was occupied by_ Montag Brps. They used it as a m~nufacturing plant. 
The Clarke Woodenware Company subleased part of the fir.st floor from Mon­
tag· Bros. They used the- front door on Montag Bros. in going ·in there. We 
have not put in any .!lew floor · on the second story of the building . . I have 
known Mr. Frank ·four or five years. · His charaeter . is ·good. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

· I have come in contact with Mr. Frank in business a11d I have .heard my 
-~"-----,---a.-ss_o_c-=-ia-t-es talk about him. I have· seen him twenty or thirty times dur1.-n_g ___ _ 

, _:i- i. , 

.the past five yea-rs. · I have not contribl.lted anything to any fund for his - ­
defense . . I have-not heard of any such fupd . 

• 
~R. WM. OWENS, sworn for the Defendant. 

-
I am a physician. I am also engaged in the real estate business. ·At the 

reqdest of the defense I went through certain experiments in the pencil fac­
tory to as~ertain how long it would take to go through Jim Co~ley 's move­
ments relative to moving the . body of :Mary Phagan. I kept the time while 
the other men were going through "·with the performance. I follo~m 
and kept · the· time. l\'Ir. Wilson of the Atlanta Baggage ·co. also kept time 
with me. ?Ylr .. Brent and Mr. Fleming enacted the performance. The p·er­
formance enacted was as follows: '' 12.56 o 'clo~k, Conley goes to cotton box 
from elevator stairs, gets piece of cloth, takes cloth back to where body lay 
and ·ties it ju.st like a person that was going to give out clothes on :Monday, 
ties each corner, draws it- in and ties it, ties the four · corners together, and 
runs right arm through cloth, wen o pu it up on his ~boulder and found he 
couldn't get it up on shoulder, it was too heavy, and he carrfod ·it that way 
on his arm, when close to little dressing room in the metal department, · h~e-­
let the body fall ; he jumped, and he . was scared and said : ''!vi~ Frank, you 

--=~---~~-:-irnHmv'e-to--ft€f1:1t=m;g=-wr1Gtr-ttirs-1!l·rl;-she-is heavy-.;'' Frailk-e'60HIDH'e~s-aana--:FWEl8--------­

...,_._ 

down fro1:11 the top of the steps, and after he comes down· there ·be caug-ht-h~ 
by the ~eet, and Conley laid hold of lrer· by the sh<;mlders, and when they .got 
her up tha~ way, they backed, and Frank kind of~t.er on Conley, Frank 
was nervous and trembling, too, and after walking-;,a few steps, Frank let ~er 
feet drop; then they picked h_er up and went tq the elevator ·and sat her on 

-~=the efovato~,· and Frank pulled down the cords, and the elevator wouldn't go, 
and ·Frank said: " ·Wait, let me go in the office and get tlie key;" and Frank.: 

_ . _ _··goes in th~L office and gets a - key and c9me!!_back arid ·unlocks tile storage 
___ box, ·and after that he started the ele_vator down .; the ele~ator went .down to 

. the basement, · and Frank sai<J, ''Come on,'' and he opened the door th~_t led 
direct to the ba.sement in front of the elevator, and carried it o~t and laid 
her down, and Conley opened .the cJoth and rolled her out on the floor, -and 

. ~rank turned ·around .and went on up the ladder, and .Conley carries the body 
back to where the body was .. .found; ·Conley goes around in front of the boiler, . . \ . . . 

. . · and _notice~ ·her -~at and ~lipp'r and a ;piec~ of .ribbon; and Conley said: .'' ~r. 

. . 
-· 

I 
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-Frank, /what am 1 going to do with these things?" and Mr. Frank said: 
-'' Leav~ them right there;'' -and Conley threw them in front of the boiler; 

l -
Conley goes to the elevator, and Frank come on up and stepped off at the first 

_floor, and Frank hjts Conley a blow on the chest which run him against the 
elevator; Frank stumbles out of elevator as it nears second floor, Frank goes 
and washes his hands, and comes into the p·rivate . office, ·and they sit-down 
in·-the private office, Frank rubbing his hands on- the back of his hair; Frank 

,-----~-------JHqq>(~ee.ad--1ttcowlol_CO)JjkLQO!lU1_t J;O~f. !·he door and said: ''My God, there is Emma Clarke 

~-' 

and _ Corinthia Hall;'' Frank runs back; Frank says : ''Come- over here, im. 
i :·_ have ·got to put you in this wardrobe;" Frank ·puts Conley in wardrobe; 
, Conley stayed there quite a while ; Frank : ''You got in a -tight place ; '' Con­

. ''You did very well;'' Frank goes in the hall and 
- ---- comes . back and lets Conley out of the wardrobe-; r-an r ma him-sit-d6Wll-,,~-------

---------FO!t'lot-Jln~leF"'yi.l'-T~sli:it~s down; Frank reaches on table and gets a box of cigarettes and 

- / 

matches, takes out cigarette -an_d match, and hands Conley box of cigarettes; 
Conley lights cigarette, and-commenced smoking, and hands Frank back box 
'of cigarettes, Frank-- -pu-ts--(,.t.i-ga.rettes back i-n--h-is- pocket and takes it out; ­
Frank: ''You _ can have these;''. Conley i•eaches over and takes box of _cigar­
ettes and sticks them in his pocket-; Frank : ''Can you-write ? '' Conley : ''Yes, 
sir, a little bit;'' Frank takes-"6-ttt his -pencil and sits down; Conley sits down 
at table; Frank dictates notes, Conley taking paper that Frank. gave hi~; 
Conley writes one note; ~rank says, '' rrurn over and write 0:gain ; '' Conley--­

-turns . over paper and wri~~s _again ; F1·ank : ''Turn over again ; '' Conley turned 
OYer· again and ' writes on next page; Frank: "That· is all right/' Frank -reac-hes - -
over and ~et~ _g1:~~n p_~ece of paper and--teH.s- Conley what to write; Conley 
wdtes, Frank then lays it on his desk, looks at Conley smiling and rubbing -. . 

. .--- his hands, runs his hands in his pocket and pulls out a roll of bills ; Frank 
says: ''There is $200.0D. '' Conley- takes the money and looks- at it a little 
bit· Conley: "l\fr. Frank, don't you pay another dollar when that watchman 
·comes, I'll pay him ·myself. '' Frank : ''All rig t,. on t -see w ia you 
a watch for, either; tha.Lhig " fat wife of mine, she wanted me to - buy . her 
an autom-0bile, and I woµldn 't do it; (p-ause) )."~ill tell you t1ie best way. You 

---~go down in the baji;ement; you saw that pack:age that is on the floor in front 
of the elevator ; take a lot of -that trash __ and make -up.· a- fire -and burn it.'' _ 
Conley: ''-All right, ~rfr. Frank, _ y~u come down with _m-e .and· I wgl go . .,, 
Frank: ''-There i's no -need of my going down there, and I- haven't got any 
business down -there." Conley: "Mt·: Frarik, you -are a .white·-man and you 
done it, and I am not going down there and burn it myself.,_, (Pause). Frank: 

--"Let me see tJiat mori~y." , Frank takes .money ,.,-and puts it in!us~ocket~ 
_ · conley : ''Is this the way you do thjngs?" (Pause) Frari-k turned aroung. 

in his chair, looks ·at money, Etnd looks back at Contey, and throws his. -hands 
and looks up. Frank-: "Why should I hang, I have wealthy people in Brook­
lyn." Conley: "Mr. Frank, what about meY" -Fran.k: "It is . alright about-• 
you, .don't you worry about this thing; you . must go back to your-· work on ·­
Monday, like_ you have never known anythin-g, and keep your mouth shut, 

~~--- -- - - --- - - -'-
- -- --~------- - --~-~____:_ ___ -

------:---------;---~---~ 
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if you get caught, I will get you out on bond and send. you away.,-,- Co~ley: 
·--· "That is all right, i\ir .. Frank." -(Pause) Frank: "1 am going ._out ·home; 

can you come back this e.vei:i.ing and do it Y '' Conley: ''Yes,. sir, · i am cQJnini 
to get my money.'' ~ank : ''Well, I am going home . to get my dinner now ; 
you come ·-back here in about forty minutes from now; it is near iny_ dinner 

-1iour and I am going home to get my dinner;'' picks up money. Conley: 

____.,..-
-- ~ 

. ------
·~ ------------

''How will I get in: y'' Frank : '' rhere will be a place for OU . get in all-- - - - - ----
right, but listen, if you ar , et me now, and I will tak_e 

ese notes and put the~ down with the body.'' Conley: ''All right, I 
will be back in forty minutes.' ' COiiley looks at Frank, Frank looks up. 
Then Conley ·gets up_ and stands by chair and l<?oks d~wn at Frank.; Frank 
grabs scratch pad from typewriter table and starts to make memorandum 
upon paper, · ·but his hand tre~bles so he couldn't; Frank gets up to go. 

:-----------1~1ail'ln~k:e-.>--: · ~~U--kee$ _your mouth shut,. <!o. ou hear?~ Conley: 

... 

''AU right, I wilJ keep niy mouth sllut, and I will be back her~ jn forty min­
utes." Conley ·goes out. It took us ;ighteen and a half minutes : by t~h:-e----,-------
watch to go threugh the movements and conversation (as above set forth), 
which . Conley .. says took place between hi~ and Frank · on Saturday, April 
26th. The· experiment was made as r8:pidl.y as th~ dialogue could -be read. 

- -·The eighteen and a half minutes did not include the eight minutes that Con­
ley said he was in the ward.robe and also the time it took him to \Vrite the 
notes . . Including th~ eight minutes he remained· in the wardrobe and the 
ten minutes estimated for writing the notes, the whole performanc_e wuntd 
have taken 36 1·2 minutes. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

We started the experiment at the entrance of Mr. ~...,rank's offfc;at the 
top of the stairs. We . had the copy of Conley's mov_ements _ang the con:V~r=-° _ __ _,__ __ , __ _ 

_ ____ ""sa~tion in our hands all _!l_!_e tim~ . l\Ir. llaas _and l\if~ilson read the direc­
-------:----:~-tlrrnJ:r---"M1r•. -"H~rePinrlltrit~o~ok the part _. of · Conley. As they would r~ad out . the 

things that Conley did, lVIr. Brent would ·do them. I went with ,.bim all the 
time. . I don't think the giving of the direction~ lengthened the time ve~y 
much, · because the directions were being given while the enactment of each 
scene was goin~_ - ~n .. It wasn't d.one-· slOwly and· deliberately . . When they 
dropped the body, those \knots did not _ come untied. '.£b..e sack that they cal·­
ried, to represent the body, contained wet sawdust and cinders, and was 
supposed to weigh 107 pounds-. It was tied up tight. 'fhere was oniy ·one 
point in t~e enactment where there might have been a loss of time_, and- that . . . 
was where l\fr. Frank was supposed to have paused in the office, and l.-suppose 
five or ten seconds were lost there . . l\'(r. Fleming ·toolt· the part of ::M:r. Frank. 

·. 

·-when they took the body down -on the elevatQ·r, 'Mr. Brent, representing Con~ 
ley,· opened the cloth · and rolled the corpse out on the floor, on the cloth, 
\hen dra~ge? ~er b~ck to where the _. body waitlound. lVIr. B:rent dragged it 
back. He simply picked .up the sack by th~d an4 pulled it along. He 

. dragged the sack with the enclosed sawdust we'ighing about 107- pounds~ altk. - . -. 
·. . . -- . . .. . ·: ·. . . . . . ·. -~ - - - . 

· -:. ' 

• :-! 
; . . ' ~-~-- -·- . . 
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· Mr. Brent enacted everything that . was supposed to have been ·done by Con­
ley·. Mr. Fleming played ·the part of Mr. Frank. Neither one of these gen­
tlemen are connected with" the pencil factory. In putt_ing the cJoth around 
the .corpse I think they . actually gained time. They did it really faster than 
it could have been done. ·Mr.· Herbert Haas did. most -9f the reading of the 

/ 

irections. There .. were no feet hanging out of the sack Tikethe b~od.Y-_wn....uocuu..uld.L.-------......._,;==;­
As to whether it isn't much easier to handle the sa'ck as it wag than it would . 
be to handle a human body.-in a s~ck, with "the head and shoulders and ar~~ 
exposed at one end and the feet and the legs up to the knees exRosed at the' 
other,. I believe you could pick~ a body jy.st as quic1dy a~ you could a 
sack. Corpses are pretty hard to "handle. , Fleming acted nervous and agi- . J 

tated like Frank w·as supposed · to have ~e. He didn't tremble. I think he 
gained time there~ In picking her up and ~ting her on the ele.yator I.. think . 

-----'---=-~--_ -_ -----------Lhe~did that £ullµs qui ckly_as-a-p8-!!son.-oould-ha¥e--tak-en-a-body,-prooab~------

fasi,er. I don) think. Mr.'_Fl~ming really un~oc~~he elev~tor box like Mr . . 
Frank was suppo:seil -to do 1t. He went through t'ile- .mobon .. It probably 
takes longe~ to ·ac~ually unlock it than it would to go thr~h the motion o.f 
doing it. He probably gained time there. In going· down "tl!.e elevator, I 

, think Mr. ~c~iff .. ran th~ elevator. He was in the building when w~ot the~e . 
·and let us 1I1. He ran 1t because none of the rest of us knew how t~ 1t. · 
He brougJti us ' back-up.-again. in the el~~tor. · That's the only part he took . 
in the performance. l\ir. Br~i:it, impersonating Conley, carried the body .,o~. 
of the elevator. He is a large man and had nu-trouble carrying · 107 pounds. ~'. 

. . . ... '-, 

·Whatever the instructions c~lled .for we followed to_ {he 1etter. Mr. WJlson ·- -~ 

and I had the paper in our hands and checked l\fr. Haas as he read the direc- . ~· 

~----------ions · ~hese directiops rnished us were su osed to b~ ~S-testiinony'--------.,.­

. . 

.. . , 

: . 

· ~~ .. _ 

·on ·the stand. It was furnished to us as .. a copy of the· evidence as given by 
. . 

Conley. When we g~t to the basement I am not sure whether Mr. Brent 
impersonating Conley,__canie.d the hody or dragged it. It could be dragged. 
as quickly as it could be. carried. I had my eyes on the paper all the time . 

·--M~. B.rent didn't get in the wardrobe, he was· too big. He went to wardrobe 
and we el:imin~!ed the time he was supposed to be there: -A-small man could . 

· have. got in it. . They did not write -out the notes. We eliminat~d that also . 
· -· · ·· ---"'- St~yj'ng Ln the wardroh~ a~d writing the notes was not inclUaed iri "th"e- e,.ig...,h .. _- --- - -­

. :. teen and a half 'minutes it' took... It was said that Conley's testimony was to 
.~ .. . ·: . the . effect that _he was .. m.· _the wardrobe eigh_t__niinutes. Tlie notes were sup­

posed to have ta~en_irom 12 to 16 minutes to write,- but _we didn't add that 
. . " . - -

--in-o~ 'estimate. Mr. Wilson and I setour watches together when the per-

. · ~--
~ · . · formance .. started:·· The only thing that we omitted . from the entire perform-. - . . ' 

ance w1;1s writing. the notes and concealing Conley in 1t}le wardrobe. Yes, I , - - . . .. . 

_. - . wrote that letter. I wrote it partially at the"-instance of myself, and partially 
=-------~-at:....thains~.e-oLMr....Leonar.ciHaas~-my_ pe:csonaLatto~ey:~· ~· _ _____ _ 

~ -· - . . . ·- .. .. . · ~ ... 

. (. - . 
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RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 
~ . 

I wrote that letter as a matter of conscience .. . It 'is as" follow 
Grand Jury of ·Fulton Cormt , ea ie, oreman. entle1nen: Among 

'. a numbe_r of people ·with whonf I have discussed the ·unfortunate Phagan af- ·. 
.. fair, I have fouJ!q .very few who now believe in t.he guilt of Leo lVI. Frank, and 

I :11ave felt a deep convi~tion growing in my heart that a terrible injustice 
might be inflicted upon an im:~oce.nt man. While we are all still mystified­
by .the published evidenc~ now at command, I am impelled hy a sense of duty 
to ask that you carefully weigh the testimony of al_l pe1·sons connec(ed with 
the crime, and the accum-ulating ·evidence, and · if further indictments are war-· 
ranted, that the Honorable Body, of which you ·are the foreman, will not 

..::__----,----ttettt
0

t-tt.te-t6 find them. If I am exeeeding--the--pri e e '' . ic er iaps m1g l 

be accorded citfzens in thus addressing your Honorable Body, it is your 
privilege to igno1~e -_what I haYe said. Whatever may be your conclusion in 
_the matter, I wish to assure you in thus addressing you, that I am discharging 
a duty which has weighed heavily on my conscience, the performance of which 
I could not forego. · t do not even "kDOw 1\Ir. Franlf)ttlld have no ·personal 

~-------- _int~rest in the case \vhatever. Very truly, your fello,1.r-citizen, -William 
. . :Owens." The pantomin·e t.liat \ve enacted- at the .factory· was the story- as 

told . by Jim Conley on the stand. · - · · - ----
r 

· ISAAC HAAS~ sworn for the Defendant . 

I know· Leo . l\I. Frank for over ft VJ~ yea1!8 B..is~ er is very good. 
----- - ---:1:- d-id-nur near my telephone ring on Sunday_ morning,_ A pr!l 27th. l\Jy wife 

heard it ., The telephone is twet?-ty-two feet from my bed. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

l\'Iy wife waked me up when she answered the teleph~ne. 

A. N. ANDERSON, sworn for the Defendant. 

I worK at the Atlanta Nation.al Bank. 'rhat is the origin.al pass-book of 
----'>.....--~~-----'-"· . .....,Lea--M-.-Frank (Defendant's. exhibit ·.50). --·-·-

•~ ·"' 

CROSS E;KAMINATION. -:-

. ~ -don't know that that's· the only ba~k . account . that Ii~ had. He in.fi.Y - -· 
have had .others, . Yes, the pencil company does business v\rith the _Atlanta. 
Natforlal ·Bank; I don't l~now ~ything about _how much money they 11ad~ .- ­

·on· April .26. · Mr. Frank's ".bank book was baianced August ll. These · are 
all' the ch·ecks th~t he drew (defendant's exhibit . 51) during April. 

· ... · .;, . ' . 

.. RE-DIRECT. EXJ\MINATION. ,, 
---+-' : -. ~ . • - - ---

The_se cancelled checks are the on.e~ that ·hav~ ·been paid. smce -Apr ir l, 
. · 1913; .. Mr. ·F~ank had drawn . no others since· then. . · . ·.-_ .. . 

---··----
,.,. . 

;;,. ·, 
. ... . 

.. . . . ---..;.· 

( . 
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RE-CROSS EXAMINATION. 

On the first of_AJwil he had $111.13, on the 18th of April he deposited 
-----------......~. o:- That-i; all h~ deposited that month, and these checks were drawn 

i . 

agl!_inst -that $111.13 and $15.00'. 
,,, 

R. P. BpTLER, sworn.for the Defendant. 

I am t~~ shipping clerk of Ure pencil company. · I am familiar with the 
doors leadiiig.-into the metal room. They are · wooden doors, with glass win­
dows. There is 1no trouble looking through those windows into the met~l 

• 

, room, eve·n w~en t¥.e doors are · ciosed. The glass in the door is about firte~ri . . 
_ ___,.., - - -'_-----1··nches-by-eighteen inclres;-Any-one--of ordinaryileight--can-se·e-·-through:them------:--- -

' '"' ·' 

\ 

. , . 
. easily. 

CR0.88' EXAMINATION. 

The doors are . six feet . wide together. The passageway from the ele­
vator back to the metal room is ten feet wide with the exception of tha~ part 
where we have some boxes piled up; w!iere it is about six feet wide. The 

· boxes go ·to the ceiling ~!1 t~ o.ne-sid~t-'is not particularly dark there. I .. · 
: _ _ measured the width of the m~tal room doors. --Ifbey were_·six fe'et wide ex­

actly from jamb to jamb .. The do()rs are usually o~en. If any one came up the 
stair case and turned to the office, they could see through the metal room 

\ 

• doors. The floors of the metal room are very dirty. I · don-1i--k-now-if-t~,.--------___, 
windo.ws are_clean,-but-you can ,See through them. 

--- ------------ . . · 

-- ' 

I. U. KAUFFMAN , sworn for the Defendant. 

I made _a drawing of the Selig residence on Georgi& Avenue, in this city, 
- --- showing the kitchen, dining room, the reception -room, parlor and passageway 

betwe~n .the kitchen and dining room. The mirror .in the dini:µg room is in 
the sideboard as shown · on the plat (defendant's exhibit 52). It is fourteen 
feet from the kitchen door to . the passageway in the dining room and the 
passageway is a little over two J~et. Standing 'in the back door of the · · .. 
kitchen room -against the· north side of the door, I could not .see that mirror, 

- - - - b·--e ...... c-a-u~se...--....of-the ·partition bet)Veeir-the pas·sageway--and- tli0-'""dllilng-room-:- ·-ori--~.-

the soutl! .sid~ ~f the kitchen do<:>r yon-would-h~ve less view than on the north· 
side and could n6t see the sideboard wherein• the mirror is located at all. - it . . . . 

is 175 feet from the Selig home .to th.e corner of W ~shington and Georgia 
.Avenue and 271--f eet from t~e Seli~ h&me to corner of' Pulliam St. and· Geor­
gia Avenue, .as shown on the plat (Defendant's exhibit 53). I made- a plat 

. -0£· the National Pencil company . plant on Forsyth St. (Defendant's exh1b1t .. 
, , . ' . . . . 

. 61) ~ The page one of this · plat 'is the basement. . Page two is the first floor; 
the dimension~ of the elevator shaft are si~ .. by eight and back of 'the trap · 

1-~~------'---doOI;--as..shown-on-the plat,. is a ladder going to the base:riient. · The size of the. • · · , 
trap -door is ~ feet . by 2feet. and ·3 inches_. 1t is 13.6' feet from the ·elevator 

---

' . . - .. 
· .. i : 
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- s ~to the-place -where the body of the young lady· .i~ said to have been 
found, and 80 feet from the front of the elevator shaft to the trash}>ile ·and-----:-----­

: \ 

·, ..... _ 

·90 feet from the elevator shf\ft to the b~iler, and 116 . feet from the elevator 
- shaft to the colored people's toilet. It is 135 feet from the elevator t~ -t~ . 

_L__ _ _ _ • 

back stairway. Th·e chute as s~own on the p~ge 2 of the plat is fi-;;v~e~e~e.-;;w~1~e--------~ 
and 15 or 20 feet long_. It empties upon a platform in the basement about :: 
eight or ten feet from the back steps and about 32 _feet from where th.e body 
is said to have been found. . The back door is. 165 feet from the elevator and 
the -total length is 200 feet. I saw no furniture, except~ bunk with old dirty 
~acks, which w ere very filthy . . The floor of the basement is dirt and ashes. 

- -

he trash pi!e is 57 -f-eet from-where-the.:_lJody-Was found_allJ_~i=t_,i=s'-=2=1.c....::f~e:..::e..:..t _ _ ___ ___ ..:___ 
from where the body was found to the colored toilet, and 42 feet from w;tiere 
the body was found to the back door. The angle from the colored toilet to 
where the body was found is 43 degrees and t he partition in the basement 
cuts off the vision. -- I should say that-it-would cut off about hal~ of the body . 
It is. very dark in the basement~ These diagrams are accurate, made a ccora--- - --­

. ing to accurate instruments. On the first floqr there is an open areaway, ex­
tending to the west end of th-e building. It ha·s a - door about five. feet wide . 

. There are two toilets in this open areaway,· about 90 feet from the front. T·his 
part of the first floor is directly above where the young lady's .. body was 

r-----------:f~o~und. Tl.!_e size o~ the packing room is shown on page 2 of . the plat, is • 

". 

_;about 33 by so.· The mner Office of Mr. F'raifl0rl-2-l-2~ - . When the 
safe is open, you can ~ee nothing from the inner office to t~h:e~o~u~t~e;r~o~ffi~ce;,~o~r~~-=-----!:..--~ 
the outer office into the inner office,-u.!lless you stand up, and the safe is about 
4 1-2 feet high. A p~rson five feet and 2 inches tall could not see over the 
safe. There ·are no shades in the windo·ws and a person on the opposite side --- · 
of the street could look into the office. It is · 150 .feet from Mr. Frank's 

desk to the dressing r-0om. There is no view from Mr. Frank's desk "to the 
stairway to the first floo_r. Looking from 1'fr. Frank's desk towards _the_ 

clocks · you can see about one fourth of the east clock. You can not see 
th~ bottom of the. stairway which' leads from the sec..ond to. th~ third floor._ _ 
The doorways in the metal roo_ms_. are about ·s~x ·feet wide. They have glass 
m t em. is en ee rom e oor to this -dressiIJ.-g-ro-om. -It-is- 26--fem- --- -----

-.. =-from the 'dressing ·roQm--to.. the place marked '"lathe," and 37 feet from the 
lathe to the point 'Y.here Conley said he found the body. It is_ 19 feet from-
the place where · Conley found the body to. the ladi~s' toilet. . _ _ _ 

I • ·~ 
There are ashes an~ cinders along the walk in the base_ment. ~Sc~iff 

showed me the p_oint where the body was foUn.d. I made eiVery calcufat~ . 
- - from the point that Mr. · Schiff showed me. I mad~,~ diagrams_ within the> 

. -last montli. About two feet of the w~ll prevents seeing from the d~§k - iii . 
_ · Mr. F~ank's ~ce to the stairway. _You can only see a part of the ea_st _clock · 
• ~nd doesn't take in the west clock at all. .. , · · · · 

_ .. ....... 
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T RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION . 
. , 

'rhere will ·be no difficulty apout one person going down the scuttle hole 
back of the ·elevator. · 

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION. 

If the Washington St. car l_lad passed the .:nearest corner,' it would be at 
Pulliam and Georgia A venue. 

FVaTHER EXAMI~ATION. ,. 

Sitting ne~r the-b-ac-k-doo~, he could not see the mirror. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION. 

I ·do not know what' the a.rr.angement ·was in the Selig ho.yte_on '.AprH 26. 
. . ---- - ------'-----~--

J. Q. ADAMS, sworn for the Defendant. 
) 

· I am a photographer. I took photographs of the Selig__ home at 68 E. 
Geor~a A venue from the inside and the outsicleoI-ttfe back door, looking 

==-~=-==~=--~~to_JY!ra the passageway ·that leads in the dining room. The door into the 
dining room wa'sopen,--fo-r- me.--.:.Xhis..._yie_w_ (Exhibit 62) is · view · made from 
the outside of the i•ear-door.· I was about three feet outsiae of--the d~or--.----·--. :. . . 

'fhe picture does not extend to the mirror; or the sideboard. You could 11ot 
see them fr.Qm tl!e __21itside. This (Exhibit 63 for defend.ant) is a photograph 
taken standing directly in the door. You· ~ould not see the mirror. with the 
naked eye or in the picture. The · following are views ta~~n .~.!._ the pencil 

~~----==:::.:::L_ _ _ _f_ a · Defendant's exhibit 64) is a picture of the safe, sho'WUii a view of 
the safe, standing just rns1 :e of t-he-tio<H'-Of the office, lo.oking toward the 

-• 

inner office. Defen.dant-1s exhibit 65 is another-view of the safe· and office ·mlide- - -- -,--__ _ 
standing in door. · You could not see any part of Mr. Frank's desk in inner 
offic~, or a nian sitting at desk, ·or a ~elephone or -a window. Defendant's . 
exhibit 66 .. is a ;photograph take;n. on the outside of the outer office, loo~ing 
toward tile inner office, with t:ije safe door open. You . could not . se:einto the 
inner office., to ·Mr. Frank's desk, or a man . sitting there~ _ · Exhibit ·67 for 
defendant shows .the pay window. Defendant's _exhibit 6e · shows foot of 

----~~~~~-----.T-e-e.--e_v_a __ o_r -snaft, s·howmg the rubbish_ and barrels in and adjacent · to the 

,, .. · j 

elevator shaft. · D~fendant 's exhibit 69 -show~ the basement -looking · to the 
baek doo1~ to the elevator shafe. Defendant's exhibit 70 represents the cor­

-ner of the place where the body was 'found, the body being found just about --
the left corner, behind the. partition. Defendant's exhibit 71 shows the exit . '. 
to the bfiek door· of basement. Defendant's exhibit 72 showSthe entra~ce 
cm the- · street floor. The elevator ~s behind th.e · partition on ~he ·right 

.. of this photograph~ Defendant's exhi~it 73· shows 'the elevator ~nd tr_ap door 
·and stairway ·on the first or street-floor: Defendant's exhibit 74 shows- the 
·place. w~ere . Conley . says ·lie .. found _ the body. The defendant's exhibi.t 75 

r 
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sh~:-~;;l~c~ where. the cotton sacks were kept. Defendant's exhibit 76 
' -is, .a view ~f. t~e plating room. Defendant '.s exhibit 77 is a _view of the metp.l"' 

· rooftt\showing where the floor was chipped by the detectives in front ·of the 
·~ dressing room. On the left is the ladies dressing room_. D9~endani1s- exhibit 

78 shows the lathe. Defebdant 's- ex_hibit 79· shows a view from the third 
floor looking to the second floor.... You can see a ·man walking from the metal 
room towards the elevator, just as is shown i-~ this picture. Defendant's'. ex­
hibit 80 shows the elevator box on the second floor. Defendant's exhibit 81 
shows the wheels at the top of the fourth floor. Defendant's exhibits 82 and 
83 show views of the ·metal room.- Defendant's exhibit 84 shows the doors 
of the metal room. These door~ have glass 1 in them. They do not lock. You 
can push them together, but the locks do not match. Defendant's exhibits 
85 and 86--show the metal closet with the door open and closed. All these 
photographs are fair representations and are . as· accur~te as a photograph 

· can be. I have had 20 years' experience. A sllght change in the mirror 
would have made the corner of it :"isible and would · hav_e thrown part of the 
room in view. 

CROSS EXAMINATION.· 
. 

The mirror cwld be turned so as to see a reflection in--.the- hall. These 
photographs were made about a _month ·a go: Sitting in the back door. rou 
could not see Vfil!..Y. near the mirror at the Selig_ residence. 

T. H. WILLET, sworn-for the Defendant. 

. I am a pattern , maker. I made the pattern of Pencil Factory . f~om 
____ blue print. This is the model (Exhibit 13 for defe~dant). 

a{ 

"' 

- . -

ROSS-EXAMINATION. ------- ---___:__· ~~--------,--

. . ·: . . 

. ·., -:· "' ·· 

. ·.: . . ... 
:.. .·.· 

~ .. . . 

~ . 

The height of the floors is not made aqcording to scale. The floor plan . 
is a . correct representation~ according to the blue print. The windows in 

. Mr. Frank's office · ' vere not p-ut in· by me. 

, ... I was given no instructions except to follow the ground floor plan as 
_ s~own on the . blue print. This is the blue pr~nt_ ( de£~ndant 's exhi~it. 87), 
.from . w~icli- I made _the -_model . ~ 

C .. W. BERNHARDT, sworn for the Defendant. 

I am a co~tracto.r and builder. This (def~ndant 's exhibit 52) fairly rep­
~~ts the back porch ·of the ."S.elig home, _ as w~ll as the first floor _ of the . 

-~e., Standing,. in the kitehen door. you c~n't .!ook thrQu-gh the ·passage 
. way and see into the mirro-r. - If you ·move up a little distan~e y_ou can see 

· · mirror. You could see nobody sitting on the south 

. '· 
.. :- .·:=. ':· . . 

_. '7, ~: :" · . . ~· .. 

.- :;.,..- . 
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·- - ·. ~ -side of the table in ~he . dining room, or on the nQrth side of the table, in fa~t 
you, can not see the table ·at all, or the door leading from the dinin-g ro.om· to · 

... the sitting room. -sitting. in a chafr against the jamb of the kit.cMn door, -you . . . 
could- not see a man in that mirror. You would have to -be a foot .. or :more 
inside of the door before you get any :view of the mirror at all. 

L. 

CROSS EXAMINATION . . .. 

Tak.ing a p~int between the door a~d. the back porch and a--p~int about . 
. the pantry you could see about · half of the mirror. The floor. in the dining · · 
_,room showed that this furniture had been standing · in the ·same pQsitio~ . for · 

some time. -y OU could see the top of a man's· head . if he W~re ~itth1g at the · 
table. If the mirror we.r~ turned you migh.t . get ·a, view. · It depenas~n the . 
angle .of reflection. It -.is easy to move .. the furniture. · The mirror is rigi~ in · 
the furniture .. 

· H. M. WOOD, sworn~ for -the - D.e~endant. .. - - --

I am the Clerk of the Commissioners of Roa.ds and Revenues of Fulton . 
-~ ~ . . . 

County. Standing in the back kitchen door of. the 'Selig residence that en-
ters . on the back porch and undertaking to look into the dining room, I 
could ilot ee .the mirror in the corner ·of · the dining rQom at all. Moving up 
into the kitchen, near the passageway, I could see nothing but the top of one 
chair by looking in the. mirrol'-;-- · 

, CROSS EXAMINATION. 

The view ·that .I could get of the mirror would depend upon where. I stood 

• 

,- , 

. e 
4 >' 

dtchen I can only speak from the conditions that exi.~~-fl-R--1-~w----------" 
1 

· them liS t~ the arrangement of furi;iiture. · 

. ;..· .. 

·~ 

- - .-

JULIUS A. FISCHER, sworn for.: t,be_ Defendant. 

· ·· r. I looked at th~ house of·'th.e .Seli 's at 
.... 68 E. Georgia Avenue. ·standing in the kitchen door, I had very little view 

of the "sideboard. You could see possibly an inch in the · morr9r~You can 
-'-- get no view from the mirror. The te_st was made' sitting down and standing 
· up. The mirror is four. foot. hi-gh from the floor. . You could get no ·view of 

· ~he dining room table, nor see· a m.an sitting at the table! , The mirror is fixed· 
straight up anft down. The view you get depends on the angle ~f the mirror. · ' . . . . . 

If properly adjust~d. you might see a man standing up: .. , ·- ' " 

CROSS EXAMINATION . 
. - · --

~ . . ..)- -
J ·Jiad the mirror turned around, .but I couldn't see anything. T·he mirrc)r 

._, was too high . f.rom the floor. · I don't know what the . conditions -were on 

;=~=~==~===-==~~~ ... ~ .. ~~6~· ~·~~· =-=-=-=-=-=-=--=--=--=-~-=--=--=:.~-=--=--=--~~~-=-~-=~-=-=-=~~~-=-=-=~-=-==~--.--- ~ .. ,__~-.:i 
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J. R. LEACH, sworn for the Defendant. 

I am division supe~intendent of the Ga. Ry. & Power Co. I know the 
schedule of the Georgia Avenue line and the Washington St. line. ':11he Geor-
. gia Avenue line leaves Bi:_oad and Marietta on the hou;r ~_nd_ every . ten min­
utes. · It takes two minutes to go _from Bro~d and :Marietta -to the cor~er of-·_ c 

Whitehall and Alabama. It takes 12 or 13 minutes to run from Broad and 

1 "' · -Marietta to'. the· corner of Georgia Avenue and Washington St., about ten 
minutes from Whitehall and Alabama ~to Geor~ Avenue and Washington St . 

. . The Washington St. car leaves Broad and.Marietta two minutes after the hour - . . 
and every ten minutes . . -It-ge~to the corner of Whitehall · and Alabama St. · 
in h~o minutes and it takes ·ten minutes from Whitehall and· Alabama to . 

. . -
. Washingtun and Georgia Avenue- and ten minutes from Glenn and Washing 

t.on Sts. into center of the city. 
·--·~·· - _-_-__ _ 

- --·-· -·- _ ·- - --- ·---~ _ OROSS _EXAMi?{4_Tl()_~ 

.. 
""" 

r,,.,. • • 

·. 

. . " . 

Th.e men-come . in ahead ~f the schedule time. I su.spended a man last 
week for coming in ~head of .time. It happens that cars COl}le in ahead of 

. time. You so~etimes catch the men in ahead of time- when they .are going 
to be relieved . . It isn't a matter of impossib~lity to keep ~he men from com­
ing· in ahead of time, but we do have it. The English Avenue line is a hard 
schedule. It frequently_ happens that the English Avenue car cuts off the 

. ! . 

River car, and ·the Marietta car. l have seen th~ English Avenue car cut off 
- the Fair St. car, which_ is due _at five af~ the hour. 

·-K. ·T. THOMAS, · swor~_ for. 'the- Defendant. · ' 
. · ~ 

I am a civil · engineer. . 1 measured the distance from the intersection of 
--Marietta -and Forsyth St. to the- ·pe~l factory on Forsyth St. It is 1,016 · 
feet. I walked the distance, it took me four and a half minutes. ··I measured 
theal_i8tance1rom the pencil factory to the inte~secti~n- of Whitehall and Ala: 
bama; it is 831 feet. I walked ·the distance and it took ihe 3 1-2 mi!iutes. I 

::> . · measured the distance from the pen~il factory to the ~orner 'Of Br~ad and 
. Hunter;· it is 333 fe~t .. ·· i walked it in · a .. minute and three quarters. l 0 walked 
at a-fair ·ra e. ·· · - . -

OROSS EX.AMIN-AT-ION. 

-I could have walked it more rapidly and made- it in three minutes. - A 
man would have to walk slower than I walked to ' take him 6 minutes to go 
from Ma~ietta arid Forsyth to the factory. -: .. ,. 

..:- :~· ... L .. M. CASTRO, sworn for the Defendant .. 
. . 

. Fors th St. to the u stairs of 
t .enc1l Factory on :S:-Foi'Byth ·st~ata -moaera e gai .· It took me 

, 

""· 

. . . 
·.··•·· ··. .. ·· .. 
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4 -1-2· ~iiiut~s. . . I walked from the same place in the pencil factory to . the cor­
_ner of Whitehail and Alabama Sts., and it took me three .minutes_and··twenty 

seconds. I walked from the corner of Hunter and Bro.ad Stree~ to the same 
place in the pencil factor~ a~d it took me .one m.inute and a half. 

PROF. ·'~EO.-BACHl\f:AN, s';?rn for th~ lDefe~dant . 
.. Prof. of· Physiology and Physiological Chemist.ry Atl.-Cfil.:. .Phys. & Sur~ 

geons. Bomar says it takes 4 hours and . a half to digest cabbage. That's 
for the cabbage to pass from the· stomach intQ the intestines. The gastric 
digestion. takes. 4 hours and a half. . That is the time it is supposed to be in 
the stomach. More digestion ·occurs in ~he small_ intestine. The pancreatic 
juice helps digestion mostly . in the small intestine. It consists of water in 
organic salts of w'hich sodium carbonate is the most important, and a number 
of ferments . . 'fhe ordinary time that it takes wheat bread to pass out of the · 

--------~ - ' .. __ st_omach is not less than three hours. rrh~ime for ·a -.meal consisting of cab­
bage cooked for about an h~ur and _wheat biscuit to pass out of the stomach 
depends a great de.al upon the mastication of the. food. The times given above 
have reference to the most favorable conditions. If the cab.bage is not well 

,. " · ·chewed i~ would take -considerably lo.nger. It is impossible to tell . exactly 
_ .llow-1ong._ There. is no regular rules about how long such substances as cab­

bage am:I-wheat bread will be found in a person's stomach. It depends upon 
·_t.oo ~any different factors. Even in a healthy n01;ma'l stomach the digestion 

might be arrested or retarded at an sta s ear. 
an anger or violent ·physical exercise, or ill the state of mastication. The 
pyloris prevents passage of.food to · tl:~e intestm~s except when it is liquid and 
when there is free hydrochloric acid in the stomach. If solid food touches 
the pyloris it closes ·immediately and nothing passes for I!_. time. If there 
were particles of cabbage in .t)ie stomach unmasticated in which you can see 
part of th_e leaf, they are liable to -keep the contents of the stomach in it seven 

· or eight hours or longer by coming into contact with the pyloris. The liquid . 
contents would pass into the intestines. The solid p'art would be retained for 
a very l~ng_1ime. The pyloris works mechanically, and uniess a chemist ~ 
knows to what extent those unchewed portions have affected the ·pyloris he 
can give no -reliabie estimate as to how long such food has been in the stom-

· ac~ .. · It's a guess. The acid in the stomach. is _hydrochloric, consisting of o~e 
atom of hydrogen and one of chlorine. It combines with protein; only one 

~·' • ·# p~r cent. of cabbage is-protein, and only about one per cent. of the cabbage is . 

.. · ~ ., 

·-

• 

·acted upon in the stomach ; the balance is acted upon in the ·~mall ·intestines, 
and in the · ·mouth, where digestiOn. b.egins fo a certain ext~nt. · The salts in 
the .saliva act on the· stare~ in the -cabbage. This cabbage (Stat~'s · E~hibit 
G) I d_on 't think has been masticate~ at a:ll so far as these pieces are con-
cerned. There can be no · doubt that these ieces would r . · gestion,.--~---·· 

-- -- -. ~ ----. - . ·. 
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·and the passage from the stomach int-o the small in~~stines. ·The presence of 
such cabbage would make it very uncertain as to how long before the food _ 
would ·pass out of the stomach: I couldn't say, and I don't think anybody 
could say, ~ow long cabbage and wheat bread in such ~ondition would stay 
in the stomach. As f'ar as wheat bread . and water-ar.e-concerneti~ acidity 

'. of the stomach. with reference to hydrochloric acid may go between 40 and. ~ .. ·· . ... 
. 60 degrees, which is the average height .of the amdity. With wheat bread in > . • ... 

the same shape of biscuit--ii--would-take the .. acidity about an hour to reach · 
tlrat heigbt. With cabbage we don't know how long it woula ta e it to ·reach 
that height. The acidity may rise very quickly and decline slowly. ·It would 
not necessarily take it one-half of . .the-c. 4 1-2 hours . necessary for digestion. 
When the acidity reaches a certain height it begins 'to descend . . The longer 
it stays in. the stomach it decreases_. If you find 32 degrees in the . body of a 
corpse ·yo~ cannot tell ·,vhether it is on ·the ascending· -or deer.easing scale. 
There is no data on · how iong it would take the acidity to reach its ff eight 
in case of cabbage. If a gallon of \he· juices of a corpse are t_akeri. from _ the 
body an-d a gallon of ~.m.balming fiuid1 which is 8 per cent. formalin, is put 
in, it would destroy the ferments in the pancreatic juices~ There would be 
no wa.y to tell by testing such a body whether any"-of that pancreatic juice had 
l>een in the low~r intestiue or not, for the only way to ·tell th~t is · to find the 

_:__action of the ferment, and if th.e formalin has destroyed it you can't tell any-
thing about that' at all. After · formaiin. has been in · the body it is difficult to · 
tell how long food has been in the stomach. Formalin destroys the pepsin 

~---~-~1-n~t' .--e- s-;-t-omac . . never eara---itl- hydrochloric aci oemg measured-O:y~---·---

\ 
\ 
\ . 

drops befor.e, because it ~is v~p.or. If I investi~ated a stomach and found 
. -wheat bread and cabbage, some of which was in that conditfon (State's ' 

_ Exhibit G) and approximately a ·aiop ana a half or two drops of com-
. bined hydrochloric acid, t4e stomach being taken out during a post .mortem 

on a subject that has been interred nine of ten days, a gallon of the 
. ~ 

liquids of the body having been taken out a~d a gallon of embalming fluid 
put in it, and .if I-further· found the acidity of the stomach to be 32 degrees and 
. practically no pepsin, and practfoally nothing in the lower intestine, the body ,,... 

-=------- - -having .been embalmed with formaldehyde, it ' would be impossible for me or 
. any other chemist or physician-to tell-any~hing about . the time it had been in 
the stomach. The acidity. of . the. stomach does not suffice to show it, because . 
it may ii~ve been nigher than that. There ·may have been considerable free 
hydrochloric acid, and that may have__Qisappeared after the body had oeen 
empalmed, or even .before that ~me of ff will combine with the walls of the 
body and some passes out. Not finding anything ll.i the lower intestine would 
be of no value .at all, because· the ferments would be destroyed entirely. 

· CROSS E.XAMINATION. 

4t . If i took the contents of an ~bsolutely normal stomach and made a posi,. · 

' 

;:::::========:===::!!:~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~:un~~·-ndicate-~that-a~~n~=========:=:'.====== 
· thing was stoj>ped wp, and the intestin~si~ ~eet b~lo~ ·were absolutely ~lear1 

,..: _. 

-· -. . . 
/ J · ... ~ · 
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. . and nothing has moved out of the stomach, that . would show me nothing as 
1 to how far digestion had progressed, for starch.is found in the stomach from the 

beginning of digestion until tl~e _ last particle of bread has passed out of !~e 
stomach and that may be ·three or four hours: Medical men are able to com­
pile tabl~s showing how l<?ng it takes to dige·st ·cabba~and othe.r things by 
testing for protein, but not for starch, because pr~teins are .the only subfil;ances 
which. combine with the hydrochloric acid and which are digested· in the stom­
achLand that can be done only within certain limits and not with mathematical 
certainty._ If th~ star~h digestion is not in_ter~upted, maltose would be found 
in the stomach, but if I made a test and· found starch, but no maltose, I could 
express-no opinion ·unless the · food had be.en ·well masticated, and unless ~ knew 
how soon after the food entered the stomach that free hydrochloric acid ap­
peared; because free hydrochloric acid stops· the starch digestion. Finding 
starch · and no· maltose would not necessarily mean. that digestion had not pro- · 
.gressed very far, because free hydrochloric acid may have appeared soon after 

· the food entered the stomach and stopped siarc.h digestion. In the average 
case I would say the starch · had not -been in the-stomach- very 1011g. -In an . '/ 

ordinary normal. stomach · you might find maltose be~ore the food reaches the 
stomach, ~ e'ven in the mouth. It depends on . .- mastication. If I did not find 
it in the mouth or stomach I could noLsay ~ow long digestion had progressed. · 
If I was told that these samples (State!s Exllibit G) were taken from a normal .. 
stomach within from 40 to 60 minutes afte'r they were taken in it, I would an- · .. 

' 't: swer that they might have been in the st~mach 7 or 8 hours. When it is said_ 

- ~ : ; . 

• 

·-
i in the books that it takes four hours to,..di est cabba e it means cabbage which 

----"--~h-a-s-=b-e_e_n-wel,l chewed,· not cabbage ofthat kind. (State's Exhibit G.) -- -

"t( - . 

' . . 
RE-DIRECT -EXAMINA~ION. 

Cabbage, like this (State's E~hibit G) c.ould pass from the· body whole. 
Before it could be told with any degree of certainty how long after eating. 
a meal of bread-and cabba·ge 32 degrees of hydro.chloric acid would be found, · 
numerous observations would have to be made. 

DR .. THOMAS 'HANCOCK, sworn for .'.the Defendant. . .. 

_ _ ·_A do~tor. for 22 years. Engaged in hospital .work 6 or 7 years. Have 
., treated about. 14,009 cases of surgery. Have ~mined tli~ private parts of_ 
~ Leo M. Frank and found, nothing abnormal. As far as my ·exami~ation dis­

closed he is a normal man sexually·. If a body is embalmed about 8 or 10 or 
_ ~- 12 hours·. after death, a gallon of th,e' liquids of the body removed, a1_ gallon 

·. · . . of embalming fluid, containing 8 per cent. formaldehyde is injected, the body 
. buried an.d a. post mortem examination made at the end of 9 ~r 10 days, and 
the doctor finds back of the ear a-cut which is opeb.ed. and which extends to 
the 'skull about an inch and a half long and finds on · the inside of ·the skull 
no actual ~reak .of the sk~ll, but a slight hem~rrhage und~r the skull corres-

I . j 

--
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ference with the brain. or any pressure on the brain, no doctor could tell · that 
.. lObg after death whether or not the wound would have produced unconscious­
ness, because the skull may be broken and considerable hemorrhage and de­
pression occurwithout any los~ of m.emory even. There is no outside physical 
jndication of any sort that a man could find that can tell whether it produced 
unconsciousness or not. If .-the body was found. 8 or 10 or 12 hours after 

_death with that wound and some blood appears to have flowed out ·of the . . ~ .. . 

· wound, that wound could have been inflicted before or after death, the blood 
might flow . fr9m ~ wound rnflicted"after del!,th from one to six or eight or ten 
hours by gravity. If the wound . was made during life by a sharp in"strument I . . 
would expect it to bl~ed. A Jive body bleeds niore than a cq.rpse. If under 
the above conditions only a ·visual examination of .the lungs was made ... arid ~o __ _ _ 

. _congestion was- found, it c<1llld not be stated with certainty whether or not 
the person died from strangulation. If in .such a subject I removed the stom-
ach and found in: it wheat bread and cabbage partly digested like that . (S.tate 's 
Exhibit G), and 32 d-egrees of acidity in the stomach and very little liquids 

. _ or _a!!yt_hing in t~e- smaller intestine-and feces some 5 or 6 feet furthei· down, 
and if .the stomach was taken roni the oody 9 days after-death, after it had 
been-embalmed with a preparatio-ri containing 8 per cent. formaldehyde, 
neither I nor anybody else could give an intelligent · opinion of how long. that 
cabbage and wheat bread had been in the stomach before death. · .'rhe diges- · 

_!ion of ca-rho-hydrates begins in the mouth ~ . ·The more cabbage abd wheat 
. bread are masticated the more easily it is digested. Cabbage chewed like that 
(State's Exhibit G) would take longer to digest. It is liable to stay in the 

;;:----::-----~s~t~o~m~a.ch 3, 4 or 5 hours,.-and longer if it is stopped uil~y the pylori.s, and when 
food is not chewe orouglily, itc auses irritation and constrfotion, and so 

I ... . ; 
' .. 

.. . 

.. 

the stomach would retain the. food longer. Sometimes cabbage passes out of 
the body ·whole. No dependable opinion could be given as to the time that 

. cabbage had been in the stomach from the condi~ions of. acidity or .lack of 
acidity, st~rch or the lack of°starch, maltQse or the lack of :maltose. The con.:. 
ditions are too variable. A · great many things retard digestion, such as ex­
citement, anger and grief.. Form~ldehyde stops afl fermented .·processes of 

. the pancreatic ·juices, and after a body was embalmed with:it I would not ex-
pect to find the p~ncreatic ·juices. I~ also destroys the pepsin, so that 10 days. 
after death in the case of a body embalmed 'Yith formaldehyqe- no -accurate 
opinion could be given as · to how long the ·cabbage .(State's Eihi~it G). had 

__ been in the stomach. Each stoma.ch is a law unto itself. Cooked cabbage is 
more difficult to dig~st than raw cabbage. I · recently- made tests with one 
man aiiaiuur-wbmen with normal stomachs, giving them cabbage and wheat 
bread, and removing it from the stomach a little later to determine how the 
qontents of the stomach looked~ , The.. first woman, age 22 (Defendant's E~-

. hibit 88A) ·ate loaf bread .and · cabbage, che~ed it well and vomited: it 60 
mi~utes-iater. She ate it at 12 o 'clOck approximately~ It took her 9. minutes 
to chew it. None of them were supposed to have 'eaten anything since 6 :30 

ut she had drunk some chocQlate milk at 9 :30 · ~d · ... 
... 

.. · 
\ •_ 
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that· gives this specimen the chocolate brown coior. · ·The next one (Defend­
ant's .Exhibit 88B) has i~ it the hot water and the entire vomit and embalm­

··. ing fluid added to it, ihllt is formald~hyde. This cabbage was not \v.ell chewed, 
and looks like it did before it was eaten. She ate it at. 5 minutes after 12~ . 

.. 

·_--and it.stayed in her stomach 45 'mii:mtes.- '.che next one (Defendant's Ex- ·· ~ 
hibit SSD) was a man 25 years old. He· did not chew his w~ll. He ate it in 

•• 
3 m-inutes. I topk it from his stom-ach 1 hour and · l5 'minutes later. It was 
not digested. This next one (Defendant's Exhibit ~BC) was a woµi~n,. aged 

.. ;... . 21. She chewed . it well, and~d it from 30 to 45 minutes. 'rhere seem_s to · 
be something like tomatoes in it which she ate at 6 :30 that morning. This 
last one (Defendant's Exhibit' SSE) \Va~ ·a · wo·man, ~.ed· 25. ShP. ate cabba'ge 
and bread. Slie did not chew it·well, and kept·it 2-h~d-28 minutes. You 

-:can se~abbage in there. · No dep~ndable opini~~ resulting ftom the . condi- . 
tion of the· contents_ of-the -stomach irrespe~tive of acidity _or the;other chem­
i~al qu~J~~as"t<! l~ow long cabbage and, wlieai bread were in the s~oma~h 

,,,. ·-~an-be given where particles like that' (State ?s Exhibit G) are found. Where 
------- . . -__________ _ - a young lady 13 or 14 years old died, h~r body is embalmed as abo,~e describe~, 

· --.::::._ - - - and a pos~ mortem performed 9 or 10 days after death, and the physician finds 

' . 

" . . . 
epithelium detached from the walls of the vagina in' several .places, nothing 

. . 
b·eing visible to the' naked '_ eye and he takes several parts of-the _wall of the · . ·- . .... . 

vagina · away and examines them with. a micr_oscope and discov~rs that the 
. blood vessels are congested, ti1at is, th~re has been a hemorrhage in a . nu~ber " 
of instances, the blood fr~m those microscopic vessels . getting into tissues, the ,_ 
removal of ·the ·epithelium could be accounted for by the fact .tI_iat there has · 
been a digital .. exa_n1ination the_da~after del,ltlLbµnsertin.g the fingers, but 

. - - -- . 
· in that length of time I would expect the epithelium to shed off. Finding the 

epithelium mi~sing in sev.er_~l places or separated from the wall of the vagina . 
woult't not indicate any violence done to the subjects in life. The condition 
uf~be bl~~-· vessels above described I would. exp_ect to result from othe1:"c~uses _ -. 
than -vioMiree. 'The embalming mig~t force the blood through the smali_ capil-

. ll!-ries. If the subj_ect _had just haq her menstruat-period and that had come 
back on her at about the time of death or beforeJ _!hat would _account for those 
·distended blood. vessels and hemorrhage; but even if · violence caused them, 

" - you --0ould ng_t tell how loiig befo_re death· that violence . .had be~n- inflicted: ort 
that it liad · ~een inflicted within from ·5 to 15 minutes · befo~eath: Death 
by strangulation . might have an effect .on those blood vessels:- .If there .was 

~ - . 
no mor-e damage than what I . have described I would say certainly there was 
no violence on the young _woman. A bruise, or discoloration could be produced 
ori th·e eye or face -~ny otim~· before the blood coagulated utterly, which ·Di.ay 
_be as· !Ong as 8 or 10 or 12 hours · aftN 9-eath. A blow on t.he back of the dead 
can dfscolor th·e eye. Death can _be· ·pr-Oduced by a blow on ·the outside ·of the ' 
hea.d by concussion without any appreciable lesion on the· outside of the head. 

• •• " · . • • • . • . . 1· - ........ • • I' • • • • • 
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- .- ·~LIS F. WEST . .AND·, sworn- for the- ·Defendant.-

---- DIBEOT EXAMiNATION. -·-

. . --:---------;-;acticing- physician f~r twenty ei~ht year~, gener.al p~actice. and sur-
·~ · gery. A professor of surgery for twenty years., and formerly -president of tlie 

State· Board of Health. If the body of a girl between thirteeµ and fourteen 
years old was. · embalmed about . ten hours after death, after taking . out a gal­

. Jon of fluid · and putting in ·a:::gallon of embalrµing fluid,of which 8 per cent. 

•• 

.... 

. . . 

. . -

. is formalde.hyde 'and the body was 'buried and nine or ten days after upoµ a 
·. post morfem examination. a cut an inch and a half long cutting through 'to the . 
· skuli··-4.n Ejome pl~ces was found . by the ·e-ar, and t~e . skull was opened and on 

the ~ide of the skull no.actual break of the skull was found, but a little hem- . 
orrhage underthe skull corresponding t'<> this point where~ the blow had been 
delivered and no pressure on the ora1n was caused, and no injury to the brain 
occurre'd. it would be impossible to tell whether or· not that· would have pro­
duced unconsciousness before death. $kull may ·be fractured without produc­
ing unconsci9us:ness. Peath may be produced by a blow on the head that 
leaves ·very- little .out~ard signs. From looking at such -a wound without -~ 
any. knowledge of the amount of blood lost, one could not tell whether it was 
inflicted before or after death. One could .not fell from looking at a wound 
of- that -sort from which dire.ction it was inflicted. [In answer to question as . . 
to ~~ether ~e had any personal feeling against Dr·. Harris, witness answered . 

-.ti No," out that' he had pref~rred--cliarges -with State .Board-of-i{e-alth -charg- . 
ing Dr. Harris .with professional dishonesty.] A blunt surface can produce 
·a wound that would' look like a cut. If in the case of the sam.e patient the 
stomach was .- taken out an(in it was found wheat bread anq cahbage, some 
of the ca·bbage. looking like that, (State's ~xhibit G), a!ld thirty-two degree~ 
of combined hydrochloric. acid and substantially nothin-g in the · small intes­
tine, and feces some five feet away, it would be impossible- t-o-form a reliable 

.-·opinion' tliat cabbage and· bread had been in that stomach befoJ;"e death, on 
that data or any other ·d.ata, that could be found by looking' at the stomach _ 
nine or ten days after death. _·Many things retard dig~stion. Much dep_ends 
upon the particular stomach, ~nd its affinity for particular foods. There is 
a cycle ()f acidity and in the progress of digestiOn that increases.t and tlien 

. later it goes down: Food- that is not thoroughly emulsified . .will remain in 
.the stomach_ indefinitely. · ~ Cabbage like that (State's Exhibit G). a~d wheat 
bread might remain in the s~~mach un.til the process of digestion is compl~te , : 

--- -- which ordin-a·rily ·w<;>uld be rom t_~ree and. a half to £our hours. '. · They iuight 
pass through the _body undigested. A formaldehyde embalming preparation 

~ would destroy the pancreatic juices,· and also· the pepsin in the stomach. The 
probability-is that som~ of the hydroc or1c am a . . 

'an examination oft the stomach in such a case would in no way · determine 
how long foocl_!iaa been in the stomac~: If upon the p~st-mort~in . above de­
scribed, · it w.as folllld .that .the epithelium had bee.~ . so effected that it ·had . 
been removed front the wall of -.the vagina in· several places, and upon a micro-. 

~ -·: 
. . . ... . .. . . 

' .. ?-
~ . . . . . 

· t.. 

, _ .. . ,-~ 



. r 
/ 

_., 

.. 

.<> 

.t 
-- - - - ----- - - - - -- - - --- --~ 

. · ~ 

160 . - ., 

• ¥. sc~pic test of the wall of the- vagina it _was found that so~e of the small blood 
-~ssels .~ad congested blood in them, these facts would not necessarily indi­

cate violence o~ any kind during life, it befug also known that' there had been 
a- digital examination by the physician just after . death and before · embalm-
ing,'· and that ·the physician perf~rming the post_:;mortem had removed ~he • . 

. wall of the vagina with his . hand· andsci~sors. · .Aiiy epitheiium can t:-Zbe vecy · 
easily stripped after death. . ~he digital examination could have stripped it. 
So could the removal fcl'r purposes of PU~rtem ex~minati9n. If the sub- _ __ , _ 
ject had had a menstrU:-arperiod a d~ ofJ9t·before death and she was found 
in' the act._of menstruating at the time 'of death, this would "account for the 
cong_ested blood vessels, and it w~uld also m~k~ the epithelium much~ easier-
to strip. Even if an ·opinion could . be expressed as to ~iolence before death, 
it would be impossible to say that . it occurred from· five to fifteen minutes 
before death. From a.n examination of the private parts of Leo M. Frank he 
appears to be a perfectly normal man. A black eye could be inflicted after 
death.. _As long as the blood is not coagu_lated. A lick on the _back of the 

· head ,c6uld produce a black eye. 

dRoss- EXAMINA""TION.- -

The:re....are sexual .inverts who are absolutely normal in physical am>ear­
ance. If l had a subject where there was a blow on the head, going practi­
cally to the Sk~ll, with no - injury to the br~in, and the face was livi~ the·· 
tongue hanging out, with deep indentation in the neck, the flesh pushed out 
of pla~e, with blue ·nails and lips1 I ~ould ifuy that death was produced by 
strangulation, in the absence of other facts. -_ A blow on the· eye eould produce 

· a swollen condition after death. Even · assuming that the ·doctor who · went 
'-into- the uterus and vagina with his. fingers was very careful and did not rup­
. ture or injure the parts or cause dilation, ·and . if the micr~scopical examina-

tion showed a dilation of the blood vessels of the vagina, -dis.coloration of the- - -.-,. 
w~lls, aiid swelling of_ the parts, the . menses could have brought about" this 
condition, and · it would not necessarily be due _to violen~e. Menstruation 
would not produce discoloration except there would be an i'ncreased redden-
ing on account of tlie increased amount of blood. This change of c~lor. will 

. · be ·found wherever epithelium was, in the uterus and -lnJh.e_vagina . . It 
. would, produce_ swelling wherever the mucous . membrane was. - A doctor . 
. could not look at cabbage in various stages of digestion and venture an opinion 
.. as to _4ow long i~ had· been in a woman's stomach. Doetors do not "icnow, 

even apprximat~ly, how soon after a stomach receives &--00-l!ta-in . substance . 
, before hydrochloric acid is found in a free state. It may be delayed for 

hours, it may be found earlier. Digestion ha8 no fixed rule at all. Th · . 
ru e l _S e Y roe loric _acid is found Within a range of _about half ·an hour. 
TJie. tiine when it begins to descend depends upon the character of· the-fo~d in 
the s~mach and as to, how the gia.nds ar_e acting. , 
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RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION. 
" 

Tb.e huinan tongue co~ld not produce any sign~ of violence In the vagina. _ 
W}wre j;here is a skull wound an inch arid a half ·long -cutting through the 
little arteries like the wound>described above, it 'vould bleed and if the body 
lay "in one place_ 30 or 40 ~inutes there would be bleeding and · if the body is 
picked up and carried about 40 feet and dropped at another place I would 
exp.eGt to find blood ther·e. Skull wounds bleed ._very freely, and there · would 
be blood where:ver the body was. · 

(' DR. J. C. OLMS1,EAD sworn for the Defendant. 

Practicing phys~cian for 36 . years,. Given the ~acts that a young lad~ 
13 or 14 years old died and_ 8 or 10 hours after death the body was embalmed 
with a preparation containing -8 per cent. formaldehyde, . and the body ·is ex­

. · .l~umed at the end of 9 or 10 days, and a p~st-mortem examination shows a 
wound on the left side of the back of tlie head about an inch and a half long, . . 

' 

__ · ___ . __ :_with. cuts through to the skull, but no actual fra_cture of the_ skull, but .a-hem- - - -- -

.. 

,/ . . 

... .. 

. orrhage under. the skull corresponding to the point where the blow was deliv­
ered, with no injury to the brQ:in, it would not be possible for a physician 
to determine whether or not that wound roquced unconsciousness befor~ 

__ de.ath. ~ Such _ a woun_d could ha·ve been made- within ll- short while after death. 
It is impossible ·to tell· from the mere fact of discoloration whether an eye 
was blackened before or ~fte1; d~ath . . If the .post-mortem made on the . same 
-subject 9 or 10 days l!_fter death showed upon an examination of the conte!J,tS 

-· ~ . .-.. - -of .the st9mach a ml.xture of wheat b.read and cab.bage like this (State's Ex-
hibit-G), it being · possible ~ distinguish a · cahbage _leaf, and 32 degrees of 
acidity, it would not be possible. to determine from these facts or any other 
chemical facts that. might ·be-found there- how long that had ·· been in the -
stomach with any degree .of accuracy. It is impossible .. t~ tell 'vhen hydro­
chloric acid begins to be seci;e:ted in a given _case. The hydrochloric ama 
follows a curve; as a rule it ordinarily }?egins slowly until it reaches a certain 
point -4._nd the~ gradually goes, off a~cording to· the character of the food and · 

, the am·ount in the: stomach. . After death fr.ee-hydrochforic acid and · pepsin 
do pot remain in such a state in' the stomacll .that you could tell 9 days after­

_ war~ t?¢ ex_~ct time of <;Ie~th~ 1he hydro~4.lo~ic ·acid .. disappears aft~r death, 
~nd neither it nor the pepsin Wbuld be. present in any degree-9-e-r 10 days after 

·. -. death. Embalming_ flµid destroys .t}le . pancreatic J~-1~~~ _!O that it would be 
impossible, to find· tliem. _. ·cabbage like that (State's Exhibit G) is liable to 
obstruct the · opening ''pf th~ pyloris, ap.d to delay digestion. Food. of that 

/ 

/ 
/ _.. .... 

:/ 

' · . character might remain in the sto~ach undigested for 10 or '12 hourtf ir~s-f)eP....---------,___ 
tive of "the' aeid found there. lLS.hru±ly after death a doctor ·makes a digital ~ 
·and . visual _examinatio;n of the vagina,· opening the w~lls of _the vagina with 
his ·.h"and·, a\l,d ··firids no" §igns _of violence and then 9 or 10 days ·aftel' death 
a post' m<;>rtem em.amnation show~ the epithelium .detached from the walls of 

. a uuU}ber . of pl".Lc0s, ~:nd a mie-Pe~eope s~·4'-.i·~rf!-..,H.-..-~---------
. ._, 
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vagina removed fro.m the body that the p!ood vessels· are congested,_ this-may 
be due to menstruation or the -natural gravitation of blood to those ·-parts 
hand is not necessrily indicative of violence . . Manipulation of the ·membrane·· 
would account for the displarjng of the epithelium. The .use · of embalming 
fluid would make a d.iagnosis of violence utterly unreliable. Strangulation 

· might result in a distension of the blood- ve"s-sels. The entire pelvic vessels 
· ~ are always m-<:>r-e-er less congested during menstruation. No one. could make 

a digital ·examination of the- -v-ag!na of a corpse without disturbing the 
epithelium. It would be impossibl~ for a doctor "fiuding those co~ditions 

in the vagina by means ·of a ·microscope 9 or 10 days after death to tell tha~ 
,.... violence had been inflicted from 5 to 15 minutes before death; 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

There _are medical tables showing that wheat breacl digests in abou·t 2 1-2 
hours an4 cabbage in about 4 1-2 hours. If cabbage cooked in the same way 
and bolted-down in the same way is taken· from the stomach of a living per_son 
within 30 or 50 minutes after having been eaten and is found in a similar 
condition to that of ca·bbage taken from the dead p·erson 's stomach 10 .days 
after death, that would not necessarily mean that the latter cabbage had been 
.in the.· stomach an_ equal length of. ti~e. . 

DR. W. S . . KENDRICK, sworn for the Defendant. 

I have been a practicing physician for thirty-five-years. I was Dean of 
. the. Atlanta 1Medical College. . I gave Dr-;-Harris his first position there. If 
a young lady between thirteen and fourteen years of ag~ died an_d a 'post-. 
mortem examination was made within eight or ten days after death; by a · 

· physician who makes a digital and visual examination· to determille ·whether 
there is any violence to. the vagina or not, and inserts his fingers for the p~r­
pose of deciding, and the body is embalme.d, and after nine days it is disin­
terred and another po~t-mortem performed and t~e .Physician performing the 
post-mortem· takes a half dozen strips and sees nothing with his naked . ·eye 
by way of congestion, .but by the use of a microscope-finds t~at some. of the 
epithelium is · stripped from the wall of the vagina, I don'~ think that the 
finding of the epithelium stripped from the wall would indicate anything unus­
~al. _r don't think that would .. _. indicate any act of violence. A .. female's 

. r.'~ ~ . • • 

:rnnstrual periods brings about .,.congestion and- hemorrhages of the blood 
vessels every time. -The congestion. gradually &ubsides within two or thre.e 
days. That would not be any indication of violence, nor could yO.u tell how. 

. , . 

. lon.g b~fore death the _violence had been .inflict~d. If a young lady had ·a 
_ ·· wound on the .·Jmck of the head about an inch and a half° long cuttjng'.-tP.-the · ~ _; . 

skull and the skull was open and a small hemorrhage was · found, that ·di'-d. not . 
involve pressure on the brain and the brain itself was not injured, I am posi­
ti-ve that no man examilling., the body nin·e or ten days after death .could 
h~ye any .way"of telling whetfrer. that wound ~ould produce unconsciousness 
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or not. It would be a pure conjecture-if he said anything on._-that -subjec_t_ __ 
Skulls are sometimes fractured without unconsciousness. Each. ~tomaeh is a-

. . 
law to itself. It is a known fact that some stomachs will dig.est. different 

~ . 

· Sl.1;bstailces ·quicker than others~ · I don't think that there is an expert in the 
world who c_ould form any definite idea by either chemical. analysis. ·of the 
liquids of the stomach or by the condition of tne cabbage odged · he 
stm;nach as to how long it had been in the stOmach. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. .· 

· I am no~ specialist or' the stomach, -but Ia'm and have been teaching 
di~eases of the stomach and all these cases come under my jurisdiction. Dr. 
Westmoreland is· a .. surgeon, ·not a stomach .specialist. Dr. Hancock is not a 
stomach specialist. If yon find starch granules in the stomach undigested 
and cabbage ·undigested and thirty-two degrees of hydrochloric acid iu-· the 
stOmach and no dextrose and no maltose, ' the small intestines for six feet 
absolutely empty, th/ sides a!ld glands of the stomach all normal·, I would 
not have an opinion as to how long that cabbage was in the stomach for the 

__ __ .i:eason that eacli case will . order· itself. Yes, there are certain general princi­
ples · dealing with these--matters. Hydrochloric acid appears early - during 
digestion ·and in small quantity, and goes up. The main things in the stom-

-ach are pepsin and ·hydrochloric . ~cid. As soon as . a piece of cabbage or 
bread gets into the stomach the hydrochloric acid begins to attack it ana 
works until it has a clear field and leaves nothing 1n the stomach, and there­
after , the hydrochloric acid descends. I ha~e made no effort .whatever to 
find out. how rapidly· hydrochloric acid descends · and ascends. I should 
think th~ugh that' .whenever you find no hydrochloric acid the process of 

· digestion _is ended ·and that if you find undigested things in the stomach and 
hydrochloric acid in a· small degree, that the process of digestion had not -

. . ---- . 
been finished. That's the general rule. That does not apply in all cases. 
For instance; I can't digest cab~age at all. It will put me · -1.n bed. Each 
stomach is a law unto itself, so far as digestion goes, any statement to the 
CQP.t.rary.is incorrect. 'rhere are certain basic laws that apply to most people . 
. L-ba\ren 't read a work on digestion in ten ·years. If there be four different 
sta~es of digestion, I think it would be impossible for an expert to tell by an 
examination what s!a_ge ·of digestion cer.t.ain. things were ~IJ· There are. so 
many· exceptions to the rule. As to whet~er:.. the cabbage had .. bee.n digested 
or not, if whole pieces of cabbage were there I could tell, but if you could not 

. . I 

find the cabb~ge either with the· naked eye or the microscope, I would say 
that it had been digested. I don't know~.how long it takes an ordi:qary stom­
ach to digest turnips~ ~f a 13-y·ear-old .child a_!_e cabbage and bread o:ri. .·sat­
urday and her body is fomid-,that lriight about three o'clock, with the tongue 
out, deep i~dentations i"Q the nee~, a small flow of blood from a wound · in 
the back of the head, a discolor ofb lood oyer ~er· pantlets~· on'e ·of the drawers 

. . le~s t'orn·, . the stocking : supporter tor~ loose, 'rig?r mortis had set in since 
· 16 to 20 hours, · all blood 4ad settled ·down in· that part wh.~e gravity" had 

·-
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. taken it according to the -w·ay-:the body was lying and the small int-<istine was 
clear six · feet below the stomach, -"the stom~ch ·was normal,' and there was 
·no mucous and every irnH~ation was th.at the digestion. was progressing f_avor-

·-.._ -

., 

ably and this cabbage was found with . the naked eye in the.stomac]l and. un-
mistakabie evidenc-es or undigested starch. granules and t4irty-two--·uegrees ·-- . - · 
of hydrochloric acid, I say ~mphatically that po man living in my judgment --~~ 
could say how long that cab~age had been in the stomach> If Mary Phagan 
was alarmed concerning her surroundings, or knew that certain facts were 
upon her, digesti~n then .and there would have · almost been completely ar-
rested. If s.he lived six or eight hours after. this alarm, I · ;ay that no diges-

.. - tion could _have continued up to the time of lier death. Any kind· of mental 
or physical e itement would · largely_ a~rest dige~tfon, probably . completely. 
I could tell by look1Il' · . . the stomach that _day, but if I examined that ten 
days afterwards; and found .the e in that state and I had said thg:atJ;.-----
death or exc'itement had arrested its digesb oul<j c9~sider that I had --
stated one of the greatest absurdities of the day. I don .e it -is--Po.ssible 
to tell a thing. in the '\\rorld of the contents of the stomach of a person d 
.been dead six or eight or ten days. Yes, that looks like c-abbage (State's Ex-
hibit G). , 

RE.:DIRECT -EXAMINATION". 

That cabbage doe~n't look (State's Exhibit G) as if ~t had been chewed 
-at -a~l - Caooage -ch.e\vetlt bat way would be hard to digest. 

·JOHN ASHLEY JONES_, sworn ·for the Defendank 

I have known Mr. Frank about a year or eighteen months. His general . - -· 
character is .good. · 

CROSS EXAMINATI()N . . 

I am resident agent for the New York Life Insurance Company:__!_don't _. 
know any of the girls at t~e pencil faetory,. I have never. heard any ~·of 
Mr .. Frank's practices ~nd relations · with the girls down there. Mr. Frank 

·. has a policy of insurance ~ith US; It is our custom to see.k a very thorough 
repQrt on the moral hazard on all risks. The report on him showed up µrst , 
·class, physically as w·ell as morally. I went to him in January, 1912, and · · .. , 
tried to wr_ite· him additional insurance, and on April 8th l went to the factory _. 
!tO take his application, Wh_fil'e I met hinland .his wife. A~ter a thorough ex- . 
amination of him by our physician... and a very satisfactory report, ·covering 
his moral-reputa~ion, we issued hirii a standa·r(I policy. I .have never heard 
of Mr. Frank going out to Druid Hills and being caught there, bJ't it was-the 

---- - - - - -business .of our inspector to find out that and .he certainly_ would not -haye-
issued such a-j>olicy i1 he had f ou.nd it out, -. Tw,,o or three of us . in tire office 

. signed a. long letter to the _Grand Jury in the interest of justice. · ·Mr. ·Robert 

• 

•• · · . L. Cooney1 ·Mr. Hollingswo:rth, Mr. Clark and myself signed· it.- We decided 
. . this was a matter of persecution: I thin~r. Cooney start~_d it. No, I hav~. ·. _ 

.• 

. - · -- - - -.,......- -
. ,,.. .. 

,_ . 

-. ~ . 
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never heard of Mr. Frank's kissing girls and playing with t1~1eir ·nippl~s on 
their braests. I.have never known Mr: BlackstQck. r never heard that l\ir. 
Frank would walk jnto the dressing room when-·the girTs were dressing, nor 
that he tded ·to put his arms around Miss Myrtis Cato -and tried to s~ut the ·• · 
dQoi;- on her, or -going i~ the dressing room ·with Lula McDonald and Rachael 
Prater, nor that. Mrs. Pearl Darlso.n about five years ago ·threw a monkey 
wrench at him when he put liiSllan on her and held money_.,. in one hand. 
I have never seen any nude pictures· hanging in his office,. although I have .been 
~-.number of ~~mes. · I have ne~er heard _that he smil~d . aml . winked at 

youlfg_ gms~. _, · . . . 
. . · . -~~REOT EXAMINATION . . · · 

~This is the letter! wrote .~a-nd_Jury: Mr. W. D. Beatty, Atlanta,­
Ga. 'My Dea;r Sir: Without havingthe sligh est--~n of interfering in ... 
any · w.ay in matters . which -do not concern · me, · I believe-t-hat-._!he interest 

o · 

which any good citizen has in impartial justic~ warrants my saying~~t • 
'the business men to whom l have talked, commend very strongly the-at.fftude------ . . . 

~--,.-~--_Qf the-Grand Jury-ID its -disposition ·to ai east investigate the merits .of the ·. ___ .::--:::.._--.:""'---L 

.• 

situation as :regards the negro -Conley· in the present matter which has inter- -- · 

. · 

•• 

· ested the city of Atlanta so much that it is not necessary to describe it, and I 
sincerely hope that the Grand Jury will go into tl~~ matter .exhaustively, know., 
in m the character of several of its members with whom I am acquainted 

{ 

· that, to the their ability, t~ right thing will be _done.'' 

DR. -LEROY CHJLDS, 

I am-·a· surgeon. If a person dies and the bo d three 
the morning: rigor ~Ortis not quite complete, embalmed the n a about 
ten o'clock, the hody disinterred nine days later and a .post-mortem made, ... ~·--­
a wound is ·found on: the back of the head behind the ear, almost two ·and 
a quarter iriches long going through the skull, there .was perhaps a drop of 

~: . .. .blood under the wound, no pressure--en the brain, no fracture of the skull, . 
it would be impossible to deterJl!ine absolutely at that time whethe"r or .. not 
that wound produced unconscio_usness. You might hazard ·a guess. The 
presence of the blood on the skull .would ·have no effect. It is the -fQrce that 

. { ---
produced the drop of blood that is material. It w~uld be purely a. guess to 
say whether that produced unconsciousness or not. The WO_!lnd wouid bleed 
'if_inflicted within an hour ·after death and would have the same appearance 
as if "inflicted just· before death. . With such a wound it would be a guess for . . ':. 

a doctor to say w~ether it was inflicted just immediately before death, or 
- --w:-:ithin an hour or two after death. Such a wound could be inflicted and a 

~---.,.---- 'pe~son . remain perfectly UJlCOnscious. Fractured skull :does not necessarily 
produce unconsciousness. Cabbage is a carbohydrate. It is considered the eJ . .. .. ··hardest food to 'digest among· carbohydrates, · because it has JJO much cellulose 
which is a ·woody 1i?re._ The older th~. cabbage is the more c.ellulOse .it has. 

, .. 

\ 
- · - ~ 

-=-=--~-~·~. _ ..._.1abbage-gets-its-di-gestien--m-th~~ag~tate-1s Exhibit .-6,\----- -
--:-----. • 

-. ---'---- - -- - -- - ---
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has .not been masticated thoroug.hly. · 'fhey have b~en sw~llowed ·almost 
whol~. Raw cabbage is,, easier digested than cooked cabbage. Cooked . cab­

....... 
. .· .. 

~::. 

. bage ·is the most indigestible form of it. It is the ptyaline in the saliva that 
acts on the cabbage in the njoutb. It acts on the carbohydrate part of the · 
cabbage. The carbohydrate digestion ceases after it leaves the mouth until 
it reaches the small intestines. The only thing that the stomach does is -t-he 
churning · moveme·n·t by muscular action. As soon as gastric juice of the 
stomaci1 strike·;.·the cab~age it neutralizes the ptyalin and .renders it inactive. 

·9 ., 

· It stops any furthe~ digestion of th~ ."carbohydrate. The balance of the· di-
.. ~estion of the cabbage ·takes place in the small intestines by the pancreatic 

juices. The shortest time for boiled cabbage to pass into the small intestines 
~--_.._c.__.-------is-four -and-a half ·hours after it. is ea.ten. The stomach does not digest the 

cabbage. A person may swallo~' cabbage and it .. will come out of him w~ole 
completely undigested·, and it will appear less changed than· that -appears 
(State's E::ihibit G). Psychic ipfluences .will retard digestion as excitement, 
fear, anger, ·also physical or mental exercise. Substances may be in the stom­
ach qllite a while and spow very little evidences of digestion. . Each· stomach 
has its own peculiarities. If a · human body is disinterred at the end of nine 
days anq the stomach is taken out and aiµoi:ig the contents you · find cabbage 
like that (State's Exhibit G) and fragments of wheat bread sli~htly . digested, . 
you could not by looking at the cabbage hazard an -opinion · as · to how long 
before death that had been ·taken in~o the stomach. I ·don't think. it is possible 
to state within a period of hours how long that cabbage had been in the . 
stomach. I have seen cabbage less changed than that cabbage you exhibited 
to me (State's Exhibit G) that has remained in the stomach 12 hOl;lfS. Bread 
and cab~age will not begin to pass out of the stomach until 2 1-2 to three 
hours. A blow on · the back of the head could blacken the eye. It would be 
perfe~tly . po.ssible for the epithelium of .the vagina -to be ruptured by the fin­
gers in making a digital examination it would be more liable to rupture it 

· ten hours -after ~his than immepiately before this. . Decomposition destroys 
the epitheliull!. It is a very delicate membrane. Decompositon ~ev~lops vel!R~11--r -
rapidly on such epithelium. In ~ases of death by strangulation all .the mucous 
membranes throughout the body are congested by blood. It is not unusual to 

_ find those blood vess.els-coogested where death is by strangulation. In such 
. ~·.. a ca~e . I would expect to find congestion in the vagina, especially If a . person 

had ·just had her monthly periods. Menses may be ·brougnt ·baclioy e~~ite­
ment. Violence would not be necessary· to produce the conditons of conges­
tion of the blood ves'sels that you have stated. The digital examination 
would .be sufficient violence tQ ·produce the changes iri the epithelium that you 
have stated. The congestion of the blood vessels cou~d be entirely . accounted 
for by natural causes, or ·from death by strangufation. If the .epithelium 
stdpped in some places ·a.nd Qie blood vessels are found congested . under the 
microscope, . there is no polij'lible way . to determine if violence had caused it 
instead .of ~atliral causes, unless there is a, sign of bacterial inflammation. It 
would-he imposs~bl~ . to tell how -long . vioh~nCe was inflicted hefol!e-d~ath,4vhePe--· -

. . . "'·-· · .:: . - ----- - ---·-- - - . -- -- --·- --· ----
.· 

\ . 
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' . · the body is disinterred nine days aft~r death-._ I could not hazard a guess 
with1n. two days of the time. I think I might in two weeks. i-

. CROSS EXAMINATION. 
\ . - . 

. . . :he amount of dig~stion in._the mouth de~ends_),>~ th~ am1unt of mastic~· . 
tion in the mouth. If the food is bolted there is no digestion. I am not famil­
iar with Dr. Critte,ndon 's table. If he states that boile~ cabbage is as easy to 
digest as raw cabbage_he is at issue with the generally accepted 1,1.uthorities. 
Normal stomachs ·have cert~in idiosyncracies. · Digestion in normal -stomachs is 
supposed to go along certain stipulated rules:--You--:find free hydrochloric acid 
in any stomach_that has food at any stage of digestion. As t-0 whether you 
~d ever find . free hydrochlo~ic acid in the stomach immediately after . 

. I 

. ~·aking · Ewald 's test breakfast, would : depend entirely· on the state . of the 
glands, and how long previous digestion had been in the stomach. As · to the 
total acidity in a stomach after such a test, that is ,fot· a laboratory man. If . 
you take cabbage out of a stomach like that (State's Exhibit G), the size or . 

. the stomach .is normal, no obstruction to the flow of the stomach,-and-iQu ?rff-na....----­
hydrochl.oric acid combined to about .32 degrees, no free hydro~hloric· acid, 
that the starch of the wheat bread is slightly digested, and the state of the 
starch corresponds exactly to the ·state of the cabbage, I don't think you 
could tell inside of two hours or an hour and a half as to how -long these things 
have been· in a normal stomach. I have · taken cabbage from a stomach by 
forced emesis twelve hours afterward and it did not show as much digestion ~ 
as this cabbage (State's Exhibit G). The patient had a _normal sto_mach, bu11 
the eabbage produced indigestion. That is the only: experiment I haV'e ever 
made with cabbage. If the little girl was found 16 to 20 hours after she was 
murdered, and there is a wound on the back of tlle head, with a samll blood 
clot nine days after the thing happened, ·and 16 to 20 hours ai-ter her death 
the blood underneath the hair is still moist and there is · a deep indenta~~on in 

· the ne'ck, · showing where a cord had been put around the throat · and the 
tongue ·is out and the face livid and the nails .b1ue and· -tne lips blue and an . - . 

injury to the wind pi~e, l would say that the blow on the head did no.t ·cause 
death. 

ALFRED LORING L~NE, swor~ for the Defendant '. 
. ,,,~. . " . 

. ..... I am a resident of Brooklyn, N. Y. I have known Leo Frank about 
15- years. I knew him four ~e~rs• at Pratt Institute, ·which we both ~end_ed . 
l also knew him atfer lle returned f~om Cornell University-;- His general char-
acter is· -~ood. · _ ·' ... 
~. PHILIP NASH, sworn for the Defendant. 

/ . 

I live in Ridgewood, N. J. I am connected with the New York Telephone 
.. : .. Compa~y, in New .. York .City. I knew· Le9 Frank four years at Pratt Institute .. 

·· - : I was in his ~lass. · His g<meral character is· good. .-

· - . . ,. , _____ ·.....:. ___ . . __ t,_ ___ · ---

. , · .. 

. .. 
; : . 

.. 

, : 



.. 

· · --

0 

.. 

•. 

. " 
;..:;:..· - · 

168 ' 'l}" 

~!CHARD A. WRIGHT, sworn for the D~fendant. 
. . . . 

I live in B:rQeklyn; N. ~· · .I am a consulting engineer, with offices in ~ew 
York Citr .- I knew Leo Frank four years at Pratt" 1nstitute. · I also knew 
him three years at Qornell . . His general character is good. 

HARRY ·LEWIS, sworn for the defendant . ........__ 

I live in Brooklyn, N. Y. I am a lawyer, ·r was formerly Assistant Dis-. 
trict Attorney of Brooklyn. I have k_nown Leo ~ank about" twelve years. I + • · 

have been a neighbor of his until he came Sou17h. Hil:l general character 
is good. 

I 

HERBERT LASHER, sworn for th.e Defe~<J~nt. 

I live in New York State. I manage my father's estates. I kne-w. Leo 
F:rank a.t Cornell University, !1uring ·the-years 1903-4-5-6. i w·as in his class, . 
and we roomed .together 1or two years. His general character was very ~ood. 

CROSS EXAMINilION~-=--------------:--
, J 

He · associated with the finest class of students at the University:- I kept 
-up a correspondence .with ·him a couple of years after h.e left Cornell. 

JOHN W. TODD, sworn for the Defendant. 
-

- I. reside in Pittsburg. I am assistant purchasing agent .fo.r the Crucible 
.Steel Co. I attended Cornell University with . Leo Frank. I knew him for 
years during the time I was in College. I am ~he life treasurer of -our class. · · 

-~.,.-

His general character was good. 

\....__ 

PROF. C. D. ALBERT, sworn for the Defendant. 

I am professor of machine designs in Corne!l Univ~rsity.-l have held that 
~hair for five years. , I knew Leo M. Frank for two years while he attended 
the University. At- that time I wa$ instructor in mechanical laboratory, and 
as s1ich I -came in contact with him. His character was very go<;>'d . . 

PROF. J.· E. VANDERI:IOEF, sworn. for the Defendant~ 

I ·am foreman of the foundry at C9rnell University. · I knew Leo Frank 
for two years when he attended _the University. · Hi's character was good.-. ...,. 

_CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I have ·been at'- Cornell 25 y~ars. As to what caused me to ·t~ke any spe­
cial notice o( Leo"Frank I _come in contact with hi~ every a.Itern.ate day while 

- ' . 

• 

• 



. ~ . 
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. i ----- · . . ... 

__ h.e was "tl;tere. i ,know tlie characteristics of the boys very-w-ell. -No, I can 
...... · -~----- - .. · .-:- . ----no~ tell what Frank did whep. he was in the cla~s room. _ 

• t:... • 

. "--

V: H. KRIEGSHABER, sworn for the Defendant. 

I liv~ in· Atlanta. I have known Leo Frank for about three .. years. His -
general character is good . 

· . . . . 

CROSS EXAMINATION . . 
. ------

. . 
l did not come in contact · with him frequently. I am a T.rustee of the · · 

· Hebr~w Orphans Home and Mr. Frank ·is also. I met him once _a ~onth there. 

. "" 

. . . . . . . \ 

- · > I-don't know ~ow long lie ~as been on ·the Board. ·1 have met him there prob- · T . - -

· .. 

;. • 

~bly twice. · He also came quite frequently to · the Orphans Home with his 
uncle, beful!e--he was elected to the ~oar.d. I did J!Ot come in c·ontact with him 

--....-so""c~ta..,lly.- ... - . --- · 

·----... 

--~ · 

M. F. GOLDSTEIN·, ·sworn for l lie -Defendant. · -

I practice law jn Atlanta. I have ~nown L~o Frank about t~re.e and a · 
ha!f years. His character is y_ery· good. · · · 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

We used to live on the same street together . . I would see him - ~early 
every .day. I would see him .at the Progress Club a few times every month. 
During theJ~st- two years, _he was the ~ext ranking officer to me in the Lodge~ . 

. . 

. . . 

DR. DAVID MARX, Jewish Rabbi, and .R. A. SONN, Superintendent-of 
the He.brew Orp~ans Hom~, .being sw.orn for the Defendant, testified that they 

. had known Leo Frank very .well ever since .he · camuo live in .Atlanta and 
/ ""that his cnaracter was good . . :-

. ·I/." • . , ... 
· ~ --: .. -. ARTHUR HEYMAN, ~worn · f.or th·e- Defendant. 

I practiced law abo"Q.t nineteen years J.~ Atlanta. I have -known "'Leo 
Frank f-m- three .or .four 'years. His general character is ~ood. 

CROSS EXAMINATION.-

. I. have been with him seven· or ·eight times in three years. I~J~ave been 
· .with liim alone, I suppose, five .or six times, p~obably for fifteen or twei;;iy 

· · minutes at a time~ : I . have never heard any reference made to his relation 
with. the girls in the factory .. 

.--.+- __,.:... _ _____ _____ -- --· - ---- --. - ------ - --- - ,. _ - - - · 
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MRS. H. GLOGOWSKI, sworn for the Defendant. 

•·. 

. I keep a.··boarding ho~se in this city. I -have known Mr. Frank mor_e than 
three years. He and · his wife boarded ·'Yith , me for. seven µionths. His. cha.r­
acte~-~s good. 

MRS. ADOLPH MONTAG, ·sworn for the Defendant. 

· · 1· am-a sister of Mr. Sig Montag. I have known · Mr. · Frank five years . . 
His character is very good.- · ~-- · --- / 

. . ------. CROSS EXAMINATION, 

l Ii.ave heard ~f his· character 1brnug:i the ladies he has · 1ived with. ~_,__ ~ 

-

Mey~rs has told. ~e how nice he~wa_ys ~a' -to. her. · MY hu~band has a.lways --~--::----.__ 
spoken. well of him. -Lha.Ye_heard a greatfaany people speak _well of. him I r 

_ heardrhis uncle speak ~ell of him. , My" hhsb?~d has told me· what a fine,' in-
telligent gen~man he wa~.--- - . . . .. . . . . . 

. - -
....... 

---·--- - ·- ••• - ---- w - -

~ 

' ,; 

... 

MRS. J. o·. PARMELEE, sworn · for · the ~e~endant. 

My husband 18 a stockholder in ther~tional Pencil Company\· . ltlr. 
Frank.'.s general character is very good. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I have seen :Mr. Frank at t:b.e jail twice. I have only come· in contact 
with him once at the factory. I a~ a member of the Board of Sheltering 

. Arms, ·and I have heard-a gre~t deal of Mr. Frank-in matters of charity and 
. . ·-· ,, 

9 · 

in a social way. -I have. heard different people s~eak of him, a great m_an~y~----
people. I have· heard the I.Jiebermans, the . Montags, the Haases, Mrs. Bauer, 
Mr. Parmalee and the employees at the factory speak of him. 

MISS IDA HAYS, sworn f~ the Defendant. 
. . 

I work at the pencil factory on .the 'fourth floor. I have kn~wn ~r. Frank 
. for two years. His general character ·is · g(!9.d. I have known · Conley for 
-_ . two years. . Hi~. general-character for ~ruth and veracity is bad. I would not 

believe him on-oath. · 

CROSS EXAMINATION. ·". 
·- . . 

.· Conley borrowed moi;iey_. and promised . to pay it back, _but- he didn't do 
~t. · We would get 'it after awhile.' He tried to borr()w money from me, but 

I refused to le~ · him· have it. · · · · . . . - . .:- · ·-·--

. ·. ------ - ··-- - -:---. -- . . 

· ~ . .... . .. . . 
~ . . ~ ·. .. . 
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MISS EULA MAY 'FLOWERS, sworn for ~Ile D~nt. - . .· 

· · !' .work on the se·cond floor of the pencil fact~ry. :(hav.e-kfioWfiM[ F;;ii_lc""-~ 
for three ·years. ·His gen~ral chad.cter is · good, I have know~ Co 
two years. ·His .gen~·ral ·character for truth and veracity is bad":· l . 

. CROSS EXAM~ATIO;t{.· . 

His borrowing money arid not paying it back ia one thing. He has prom­
ised and he has never paid back anything he has· ever borrowed from me~ I 

. ·had "'M:r. Gantt take it out of his envelope. I have never .met 'M:r. Frank ,any-
where for any imll!oral purpos.e. - -- -

--
MISS OPIE. ;DICKERSON, sworn for the Defenda.nt. . 

I have worked at the pencil fac.tory for 17 months. · Mr. F~nk 's-genfil'al 
character is good. I have never met Mr. Frank for any-immoral purpo~~· I 
·have known Jim Conley ever~ since I have been at the fact.ory. His :general 
character for truth and ver11icity is bad. I would not believe him on oat~. 

. ' --

CROSS--EXillINATION. 

. I kno~ Mr. Darley and Mr. Wade Campbell. I don't remember .if I w_a~s _ _ 
with4hem on the night of April 26. . I do.n 't remember where I was . . . . 

MRS. EMMA CL_ARK FREEMAN, sworn for -the Defendant. 

'I have worked at the pencil factory over four . years . ..- Mr. Frank's gen-.. 
eral character is good. I am a married woman. I .have known Conley ever 
Bince he has been at the factory. His general character f~r truth -and veracity 
is bad. I would not believe him on oath. · 

CROSS EXAMU{ATION. 

I have never heard any suggestion of any wrongdoing on ·the part of i\fr. 
Frank, either ,in o~ ·out of the factory. I was .forelady at -the factory for 
about three ye~rs. . _ . 

. MISS SARAH BARNES, sworn for the Defendant. 

· · I worked-at-the. pencil factory over four yearsJHis character is- good. 
I have never h~ard anything bad. He has been the-'best ·of-men. . 

CROSS EXAMINATION . 

N9 one ha.s· talked to me a_bout what I was going to swear. I have told . 
Mr. Arnold what I have told_ her.e .. · I neyer went with. Mr. Frank ·for any itll~ -. · 
moral . purpose anywhere .. 

l ~ . 

' . 

. . . ~ . - . .. . . 

.. ,... . .. 
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.. MISS .IRENE JACKSON, sworn for the Defendant. 

,. 
I 

• j 

. .. 

, I ~orked at the pencil factory for three years. S<>:--far- as I -know M'r. 
Frank's Qharacter was very well. I "don't know anything .about him. He 

· never said anything to me.. I have. never met Mr. -FraliK at any time for 
any immoral purpo~ 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I am the · daughter of . County Policema~ Jackson. I never heard the 
girls say anythin~ about him, except · that they se~med to be afraid of him. 
They never w.ould_notice him at all. · They ·would go to work when they saw 

I 

hiµ1 coming. Miss Emily Mayfield and I were undressing-in 'the dressing room 
once when Mr. Frank came to the· door. · He loQked, __ turned ar.ounq and 

- walked out. ·He just came to the door arid .pushed it- open. . He_ smiled or 
made some kind of face. l\1iss . l\'Iayfi_eld had heP top dress off" and had her 
old dress in -her.. hand to put it on. l told Mr. Da:rley I would not quit unless 
my father made me, . and he said if the .. girls woufd stick to Frank th~y 
won't los~ ·anything. · I heard -some remarks two or three times about Mr. 
·Frank going to. the dressing room on diff ~rent occasions, but I don't remember 
· anything about it. The second· time I heard of his ·goin~ to the dressing room 

; was when my sister was laying down there. She had lier feet on a stool. She 
was dressed. - I was in there at the time. He. 'j~t walked in·, and turned and. 

· ··~alked ·out. Mr. Frank walked in the dressing room on Miss Mamie Kitch-
. ens, when ~ ~as in there. He neve:r said anything the three tiin·es he -walked in 

when I was there; The dr.essing room has a mirror and a few· lockers for the 
fcu-eladies. That's the only thing that Lhave eve:r seen Mr. Frank do, go in 

--- ,, 

the .dressing i:oom· and stare at the . girls. I have heard them · speak of other - -· 
times when I was not there. . .. . 

RE-DIRECT-EX.AMIN ATION. 

- . My fathe~ made m~ .. quit, af!9r the muraer. Tl:l:ere are two windows in 
the dressing room· opening on Forsyth Street. I think there-had been some 
complaints of the girls flirting through the windows. I have-heard of some of 
the girls flirting through the windows. The orders were against the girls 
flirting through the · windows. Mr. F:rank_.never came int.~ the room at all, 
he pushed the door . open an9 just looked. My sister and I w.er~ both dressed 
when Mr. Frank looked in the · door. The other time he came in I was fixing 
to put. on my street:-~.eSs. · I was not undresse~. -

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION. 

I don't know if Mr. Frank )new the girls were in there· before he opened 
the door· or not. It · was the usual }iour for them to be in· there. He. could · 
have ~een. the girls regisier ·from tlieouter office, but not from the inner office. 
I have never ·heard any .talk about Mr. Frank going around and putting his 
~ands on the .girls:- I have· never heard of his going out with any of the girls. . . · . - . . .. - __ 
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My sister quit at the . factory before _Christm~ ~ have never flirted ·jvith 
anybody out of· the window. I have heard them say that they <lidn 't want 

--t ..... lie girls ~o- flirt_ around th~ factory.· I haye heard Mr. Frank say that to , 
___.,.. 

:~ 

Miss McClellan, aftfil!.--she told him that she knew .. of. som~ of th" girls flirting. - · 

. ... 

-MISS BESSIE FLEMING, _sworn for the Defendant. 
<-. . 

I worke~stenographer at :Mr. Frank's office frQm April, 1911, to De­
cember,. 1911. Mr. Frank1's chara:cter . :wa.s. unusually good. 

·. CROSS-EXAMIN~TION. 

I ·am just talking-a-bout ·my personal relations . with him. I have .. never 
seen him du anything wrong there in the factory. He never made any ad­
vances to me or anyone else. - "t-worked right in the same office with him. The 
forel.adies came to the office, the other girls did riot very much. I never did .:. 

· see any flirting. I never heard about any. l\ir. Frank worked on his-finan- . 
cial sheet in the afternoons, he didn't have time Saturday morning. ·1 didn't 
stay there very often ·on ·Saturday afternoons, but I knew that. he didn;t have­

. time to do it Saturday morning. I saw .him on Saturd~ys during the morn­
ings making out the financiaJ sheet. The girls work by the hour and pieee 

_ work. She has a right to go in . there when she wants to dress to go . .QUt . 

MRS. MATTIE THOMPSON, sworn for the Defendant. ) . -

I work on the fourth floor of the pencil factory. I have been there 
-three years. Mr. Frank's general character is good. I have neve~ heard 
anything against -him,. · I h~vi·nev~r m_et Mr. Frank anywhe~e or at · any yme - '. 
for ~ny.immoral pu~pose. I have made·-complaint about girls flirting out of tbe _ 
windows witl,l men on the outside. After seven o '~ck, th~ girls are not sup- . 
pos~d to be in the- dressing room. ·_ There is no toilet or· b_~tb_tub in the dressing 

'\ . . -. 
'room. T.here is no -lock ,on the door. · -...________ 

--------
CROSS EXAMINATION. --- ----

They were a~l · complaining up there on the fourth floor about the girls 
flirting .oufOf. pie window, and som.e o.f us elderly ladies put a stop to it by 
_reporting it to Mr. Darley. The girls were not· fast, but they would- flirt. 
Mrs. Carson; i and some of the other htdies reported it to Mr. Darley last­
spring, _about a Y..ear ago. The girls simply said they wer.e standing at the _ 
windows, flfrting out of the wi~dows with men in the street:-Giris did not . 

. . go into .the dr~ss.ing room to ~est, they w.ould go. to ch~nge_ ·t_h~ir clothes_ befQ,_re 
work time, and .after fiiilshmg_ work. ·1 hav~ nev~~ heard any talk atbe>bt 
Fra.nk taking a··-girl off 1n a .dark place · and putting . his arms around .her . 

... ~ - . 
• • ' ~ '!"' -

. ·, -• ' 

_, 
' 

·- . ·-· ~· - " - ~ .. . . -· .· .. 

• "!. 

. '"'-.....:.. ----· 

-
\. -·--. -.. - -

·- ' . -



. • 

' . . 
v, • 

.. -:-.-· -

.,,. 

y • 

.· --- ,-- -
·ff. 

~ ..... . .:., 
·.---

" 174 
fr' . 

MISS -~ENE ·CARSON. sworn for the. ·Defendant. 

I work~d for fifteen mdnths on the fo~rth floor ~f the pencil factory .. I 
~ . - ' -

have ·known ·Mr: Frank during that :time. J!is character is g~od. I am a sis-
ter of Miss Rebecca Carson, and a daughter of Mrs. E. ·H. Carson;:· I was with 
mY- sister on Whitehall Street on April 26th and ·recollect seeing Mr.-Frank 
there. I have never· met · Mr. Frank at any time or ·place for any immoral 

. / 
·· purpose~ 

MRS .. J. J. WARDLAW, sworn for the D~fendant.-

I worked· at the pencil factory four years. I worked on the fourth floor. 
Mr. Frank's ~har11:.cter is ~ood. I have never met Mr. Frank at any time or 
place for ~ny immoral purpose. 

/ . 

--.. 
. CROSS EXAMINATION. 

- ---,.- . . . ' . . 
I have never heard of any improper relation of Mr. Frank with any of -.the 

girls at the. factory. I have never heard of his putting his ariµ around any 
girl .on .the..street c.a~, or ·going)o the woods. with th~m. . . · 

LEO M. FRANK, -the defendant, made· the .following .statement : 

'Gentlemen: of the Jury: In the ~r 1884, on t;tie-.l7th \lay of April, I was 
· bo.rn in Quero, Texas. At the a,ge ·of three months, my parents toOKnie to w . 

Brooklyli, New York, and J remained in. my home_ until I came·· South, to At­
Janta, . to make ~y home heri. I attended the public schools of Brooklyn, and 
prep~red. for college, in Pratt Institute, Brooklyn, New York. In the fall of 
1902. I entered Cornell University, where I took the course in mechanical engi­
neering, · a'nd graduated ~fter four years, in ju11:~, 1906. I then 'ac~epted a 
position as draftsman with the B. ·F. Sturtevant Company, of ·Hyde Park, 
Massachusetts. After . remaining with this firm· jor about six_ months, I ·re­
turned once more to my ·home in Brooklyn, where I accepted . a position . 

.,. as testing engineer and draftsman with the National Meter Company of Brook- _· _ _ 
lyn, New York. } . remained in this position until . about the middle of . Oc- · . 
tober, 1907·, when, at the in.vitation of some citizens of Atlanta, I came South 
to confer with them in referenc-e to the starting and operation of a_pencil fac-. 
tory, to be located in Atlanta. After remaining here for about two weeks; I 

. returned one~ more . to. New York; where- I . epgaged passage-and went ·to 
L..~urope. i" remained in. Eu~ope nine months. ·During my sojourn afrroad, ·I 

studied the pencil business;-and looked after the erection and testing ·of the '­
.. machi.n.e.ri, '!hieh had ·b.eep. previou~ly contracted for. ,The first part of ~ug~st, . · 

--- .. · · · · 1908. . I returned-once ·more to America, .. and immediately came South to At- . 
--·· ;. -<~- .. lant~, which has . ~emained my ·home ever since. I married in ..(\tfanta·, an At-

. _ lanta girl, Miss I~ucile Selig·. The major portion of my marcied life has .l~een · - . - spent)it the home of my parents in law, Mr~ and. Mrs .. Selig-, at 68 East Georgia 
.Avenue. · My -· marned life -has-be.en exceptionally happy,-in<Ieed, it __ has been 
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. : the happiest days of my life. ·My ·duties as superintendent 'of the National' 
- . ··- . Pencil-Company were, ·in-general, as-follows: I-had-charge of the technical and 

m~chanical end of the factory, looking after the .op.erations and seeing· that 
-- - the product was turned o_ut ·in qua!ity · equal to· the standard whic!Fis set .by 

our competitors. I looked aft~r the installation of new machinery and the 
purchase of new machinery·. . In addition to t hat, I had charge of the office 

· · work at the Forsyth Street plant; and general · ~lipervision of the .lead plant, 
which is ·situated on B_ell' St.reet. I looked after the purchase of the raw ma­
,terials which are used in the manufacture of pencils, keJ.'t l;IP ~ith the market . 
·of those materials, where the ·prices fluctuated, so that the purchases could be 

., made · to-th~ ·best possible advantage. On .Friday, April 15th,. I al"rived at the : 
pencil factory on ·Forsyth --Street, at about seven o'clock,-my usual iime . .. 
I immediate_!~ started in on my regular routine_w_ork, looking over papers 

·that I had laid out the. evening before, and attending to any other work that 
, . needed my special _ attention -that morning At n:bout 9 :30 I ~t over to the 

office of· the Geµeral Manager . and Treasurer, ·Mr. Sigmond Montag, whose · 
office is at Montag Brothers, on ·Nelson Street. I stayed ·over there a sh~rt 
time, got what papers and mail. had -arrived over there-all the mail for the 
_pencil company_~q_nies over there to their office-I · g~t that mail and brought 
it back to Forsyth Street._ ! then separated the mail and continued along 
my usual routine duties in- the office on Forsyth Street. At ·about · eleven 
o'clock, Mr. Schiff handed ·m~ the pay-roll_ books covering the plants ai For­
sy-th- Street and at Bell Street, for me· to ~h.eck over to see that the amounts 
and the extensions were correct. Of course, this work has to be very carefully 
done, so that the proper amount· of money is drawn from the bank. This checlr­
ing- took me until about 12 :30, P . M.!.L when I ma<le out the amount on a slip ·_ 
of paper that I wished to have drawn from the 'bank! went over to Montag 
Brothers; had the checks · drawn and signed by Mr. Si~mond Montag, after 
which I returned to Forsyth Street and gQt the leather bag in which I usually 
carry the money and. coin fro~ the bank, ·and g9t the slip on which-I-had 

""written the -various denominations in which I desired to .have the · pay-r~lf-, 
. made out, accompanied by Mr. l;Ierbert Schiff, my assistant-; went · to the At­
- lant~ N a.tional Bank, where' I had the checks cashed. Returning to the fac­

tory h1'~ompany with Mr. _Schiff, I placed this. bag containing the money fOl!--the · 
pay-roll in the safe and lock~d it. At this time, Jl?.Y wife called f~r me and in 
_her company and that of Mr: ·Schitf, I we1:1t over to the car and took my wife 
hf>me to-Itinch. After lunch, I returned to the £actory-a:p.<J- took a tour for ·- ·- -
about an hour through the factory, after which. I then assisted Mr~ Schiff _in 
checking over ·the ainounts on the pay envelopes,-.. checking tbe ·money ag~inst 
the duplicate $lip~ that we h.ad gotten from :the J>ank,. to see that the correct 

·l'mount had been given us, and I help~d Mr. Schiff checking over the .money · 
and in filling the envelopes. This took us approximately until a quarter to 
six, to fill the envelopes;·· seal_ them ~nd ·place them in the box: that we have 
over there, with two. hundred .. pigeon holes, and which we call ·our pay-off box . 

. While· ~· was so cccupied with Mr. Schif! in filling _these envelopes~ a young man 

~- .. 
. . -· · . . . 

·' 

.J' . 

!., . .....- • . 

. , ·· 



,&:' 

.. 
.• . 

.:. 

I -

.·~·- . . /·-.. :--
\,;;.._,~;;..· . - - . . .. . . . . .. · 

v • • - . . 
/ "I . ,. 

L · .. - -- -·--- - -,.,.,. . --
/ ·,.,.· 

,,...,.-/· 175-

, . . ' 
by the name _of,.Wright, who had . helped-us out as a clerk in the office during 
'the. pas~, came ,in and I paid him· in cash, a~ Mr. Schiff, · I found, ne~lected 
to puf his name on .. the pay-roll; I just made out a ticket for the amount of 

, , I . 

/-· ·money he drew .and· put it in the· cash box and ..charged it _to the cash box and 
_,,..-<'·· · . not to the pay-roll. At a quarter to six, payment of the help took place, Mr. 

Schiff taking · all the envelopes that were due th~ 'help' who had worked from·· 
April 18th to 24t~, ·inclusive, out to the pay.:i-oll window,' which is entirely out-
side of either my.inner office or the . out~r o~ce -and-Out in the haU beyond,-a 
little window that we. have built.. I sat in my office checking over the amount of 
money wliich had been left over: ~his amount was equal,-or should have 
been equal, to the amount that had · been loaned out in advance to help a~d 
had been deducted when we were filling the envelopes. In checking' tliis 
amount over,-as . ne~r ·as I c~n recollect it, there was aboo.t '$15.00,-· I noticed 
a shortage of about ~1~20,-something ovey a dollar, at aQy rate, and I kept • 
checking to see if I couldn't find th~ shortage going over the v~rious deduc-· 
tions that had been made, but I could'n 't.:locate it th~t evening. After the help 
had been paid off, during which time as I sat in my office, no one came into . .. -- . . 
my. office who 'asked me for a pay · envelope or for the pay e:nvelope of another. 
After the paying off of the help had taken place, Mr. Schiff :returned and hand­
ed .me, the · envelopes which were left over, bound with an· el8:_stic b·ancI:, and I 
put them in the cash coinpartment,-· which is different from the· cash bo;x,­
a certain Cl\Sh compartment in the safe, the key to which is )tept in my cash 
box. I placed .th.em in the safe, and 'Mr. Schiff busied himself clearing up· the 

- books and thefifes and placing them in the safe.- · While ·ne was doing that, I . 
. placed in the time clo~k~, the slips to oe used next d'ay; "1 took out the two 

time slips . whlch were dated April 25, which had beeii ~sed by the help. on 
~ ' 

_ _ ..... F~riday; April 25th, and took two slips out to the clock, the ends of which I 

• 

.· 

. ,. 

creasea-·down .so-ihat they would-fit into t-he eylindel!--inside-of~e-clo'clrs; ·.,. __ _____ ·'- '---· . 
and I .noticed that I had neglected to stamp the date on them, so I just wrote ,· · . 
on them ''April. 26, 1913, ''-in o·ther words, . I put the da:te of the day ·fol-
lowing, which is the way we usually do with: the time clock. After pla~ing 

· ,these slips in the clock and bringing-those back in the office, Mr. Schiff and 
myself left for ho~e, it being about 6 :30. I neglected to state that while I was 

· sitting. in the offlce; Mr. Schiff was paying off Newt Lee-· ·these ·are the two 
' . 

time slips . I took out-. . . ·- .-

. ·Gentlemen, as ~ was saying, these tw-0 slips that had April 26th, 1913, writ­
ten at the bottom are the two slips I put in· the clock on the evenmg·· of Friday 
April 25th, to be .used on. the day . following, which, of course,' was April 26th. 
I neglected . to mention also, in going-over my duties. at the · factory, that- M.i:. 

- N. V. Darley was super~~endent of"labor and .of.!manufacture, it feil to his · 
ducy to. engage the help and · tO<fistribute the help throughout the plant, and 

· to discharge · the help in .case it was necessary; ~t was also .due ·to him whether 
. their · wages w'e~.e raised or not. · In other words, he was tlie· .. ma:ri that came . 

directly· in co~tact ~with the help. M?reover, he sa'Y· that the · ~oods ~rogressed 
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through the factory without stopping, easily, quickly and economicaHy ·manu- . 
·· ractured . . On ·Friday evening, I got home at ·about 6 :30, had .~y supper, 

washed up, then wept with my wife-: tcr-the.,.esfdence of her uncle, Mr. Gari 
W olfsheimer, .on _Washington . Sti~eet , where my wife and Mr. W olfsheimer and 
his wife and .mnelf -playeci a game of auction .bridge for the balance of the 

. evening. _ -M:y wife and I .returned home and-r-etWed- at .ab<mt ele¥en-O 'clock; 
On Saturday April 26th, I rose between seven and seven thirty and leisurely 
washed and .dressed, had my breakfast, caught a Washington-Street or Georgia 
Avenue car,-I don't recall which, at the-corner of Wqs__hington and Georgia 
Avenue, and arrived at, the factory on Forsyth ~treet, t}).e Forsyth Street 

~ ~lant, at about 8 :30, is my recollection. . 
~. 

y arrival at lie ac ory, oun r. olloway, the day watchman, 

.' 

at his usual place, and I greeted him in my usual way-; t ~ou;qd Alonzo Mann, 
the o·ffice boy, in the outer· office, I took off.my coat and hat and opened my· 
desk and opened the safe, and assorted the various- books an~files and wire 
trays containing the various papers that were placed- there the evening before, 
and distrioll edtn~m ·m tlie1r proper paces about the .office. · _J then wen_,...t-·3y_ t.;___ ______ _ _ _, 

-"' .• -.. 

to the shipping ·r·oom and conversed a few minutes wi~h . Mr. Irby, who at that · 
time was shipping clerk,. concerning the work which he was going to do that 
morning; though, 'to the best of my recollection, w:e ·did no shipping that day, 
due to the fact that the fr·eight offices were not receiving any shipments; due 
to its being a holiday. . ~ returned to· my office, and-loo_ked through the papers, 
and assorted out those _which I was gojng to take over on my u~mal trip to 
the General l\ilanager 's office that morning; I then turned to the invoices (De­
fendant's Exhibit 25 to 34) covering shipments which were made by the Pencil 
Factory on Thursday, April 24th, and which~ were typwritten· and figured out . , . 

on Fri.day, Apr_il 25!P-t by Miss Eubankr::;, the st~nograpner who stays in my 
office; she had hurried through with her wQ.rk-th-at 'qay, previous to going home, 
so me cou~d spend the holiday in the -~g~ntry wher.e she lived ; I didn't get to 
checking over those invoices covering these shipments on Friday, due to the . 

. .fact that Mr. Schiff and myself were completely occupied the entire day until 
.we left the factory, with the pay-r-011, so naturally, as these invoices covering 
shipments which were made on April 25th, ought to have been sent to the cus­
tom~rs, I got right to work . in checking them. Now', I have_ those invoices 
here (Defendant's Exhibit 25-34) ; these papers have not been exhibited before; 
but I ·will explain them. . You_ have seen some similar to ~hese. Of all the 
mathematical ·work in the pffice of the ·Pencil Factory, this very operation,· this 
very pie~e of work that I have now before me, is the most important, i.t is 
the ·-invoice covering shipmentS\ that ar~· sent to customers, and it is very im­
portant that the prices be correct, that 'the amount of goods shipped agrees 
with .the amount whfoh "is on. the ·invoice, "and,_. that the terms ~re correct, and 
that ·the address is cor·rect, and also in some -mrses, ·-I don_'t know whethe:r; there · 
is one like that here, there are · freight deductions·, all of which have to be very 

.. ·caref~lly checked.· o.ver and fooked into, becau~e I know of noth.in~_else t_hat 
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exasp·erates a. customer more~ than to receive invoices that are incorre·ct; more-
.over1 on . this morning, this. ope:i-ation of this work took me longe~ than it 
usually takes an ordinary person· to complete fhe checking of the invoices, be­
cause usually one calls out and the other checks,. :l;lui I did this work . all ·by 
myself that mo-rning, and as I went o~e invoiees,J: noticed that.Miss 
Eubanks, the day _b~fore, had evidently sacPficed accuracy to speed, and 
every one of them was ·wrong, so I had to go alone over the whole invoice, and 
I had to make the corrections as I went aJ.ong, figure them out, extend· them, 
make deducfums for freight, ff~ere were any to be made, and-then get . the 
to.ta! shipments, because, wh~ these shipments were made on April 24th, which 

' , was Thyrsday, this was the last day of our fiscal week, it was on this that I made 
tha~ fina·ncial sheet wl!Jch I ma.Ke out every Saturday afternoon, _!l.S ~as be~n 
my ·custom, it is on this 'figure of total shipments I make- that-out, so necessarily 
it would be the total shipments for the week-thaf- haq to be· figured oµt, and 
I had to figure every invoice and arr-ange it in its entirety BO I could get a 

----=-- . "' . -
~e that I would be · able to use. -The first order here is from Hilton, Hart 

· ~ & Kern Company, Detroit, Mich., here is tne original order wnich 1s in tne ­
file of our office, here is· the ti:anscription ·which was made on March 28th, it 

_hadn't been shipped until April 24th, this customer o~dered 100 gross .of No. 2 
~ . - . 

-_. of a certain pencil stamped ''The Pa~k~~d Motor Car Company,'.' 125 gross 
-6f N~~ 3 and 50· gross of No. -4; those figures represent the g~ade or hardness 

of the lead in the pencils; we shipped 100 gross of No., 2, 11114 gr.oss of No. 
·· -a and ~9 gross of N?· 4, the amount of the shipment of No. 3. is short of the 
__amo~nt . the customer ordered, . therefore, there . is a suspe.µse shipment c~rd 
attached · to it, as-you will notice, the first shipment on this order took place 
on ·.A.pril 24ih, it -was ·a special order and a special imprint on it, and the~e­
fore, the l~ngth of time, order received at the factory on March 18th.·-In-in­
voicing ·shipment~_made by the. Pencil C9mpan;t, our ~ethod is as follows: We 
make out in tripli(!ate, ·the first or original is a white sheet, and J;hat goes to 
the customers; the second . is . a"' pink sheet and that goes over to the General 

J . Manager's ,-offtce and is filed serjaliy, that .is, chronologically; one date on the 
top, and from that the charges are made on t~e ledger; and the last sheet or _ 
third sheet .is a yellow sheet, which is her.e,· those are placed in a file in my office, 
and are filed alphabetically. These yellow sheet~ I have here are not the yellow 
sheets I _had that day, because they have since been corrected, I am just takirig 
the corrected sheets. I made the corrections, Miss· Eubaµks returned on Monday 
and saw the corrections I had ·_made in pencil ofi. the . white she·ets, and made 

- another set". of triplicates afterwards, and I presume made them c_orrect, I was 
·. not there, and .I don't · know. TheS°e · orders are rspectively Hilton, Hart & 

. · _Kern Company, L. W. Williams & Company of Fort Worth, Tex., th.e Fort 
Smith Paper Company of _ Fort Sll1ith, Ark., · s-.· ·o. Bar;num & .Sons, Buffalo, 
N. Y., S . . T .. Warren & Company, South Clar)re St., Chicago, Ill., S. H. Kress 

- Com_p~arehous·e at 91--:¥ranklin St., New York, ~. Y.; there .is an order 
that we have to be particularly careful with, because all these five and ten 
cent eynd~cates have a great deal of red tape. These. invoices, though they 
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were tn>ed on April 25th, Friday, wer~ shippe~ on April ~4t.h, and bear date 
at the top on which the shipment was -made, lrre~pective of the date on wl;tich 

.. these are typewritten; in other .words; the shipments took place "April 24th, 
and that date· is at the- top. typewritten, and· a ,stamp by the office boy at the 
bottom, April 24th: ·. Among other ~things that the-S. · H: Kress Company de: 

·· - --m·ands is-that on- their orders, you m..l:lst state whether or not ii is complete, th~ 
.. . number of the store, and by which ·~ailroad the shipment goes. Here is one 

from F . W. · 'Y oolwort~ & Company, F,l"ankfori, .Ind-. , . take the following "illus­
trations: Less 9~ ·'lbs. , at 86 cents per hµndred lbs., ·freight credit; in ot4er 
words, we had to find out what the ·weight of_ that shipment was, and figure 
out the anioll!lt of credit that they 'Yere entitled to on the basis of 86 cents . 

. for every ·1po lbs. shippe.~. Then here. comes one to Gottlieb.·& S_ons one of 
our large distributors in New York, N. Y.; they have a freight allowance sf 

- . \ 
86 per hundred lbs. also, and. their s4ipmerit amounted to· 618 _lbs~ on Thurs~, 
,day,_ ApriJ 24th. Tliat was a shipment of throwouts, or -jobs. 

I started on this work, as I said, and had gone into it iii so~e detail, to . 
show y..o.u the c.ar.i ful ess with which the work mu.st be carried out, I was at 

------ - ...... rk on· this one at about 9 o 'clo·ck, as near as I remember, Mr. Darley. and 

• 

. -

-.•. 

Mr. Wade Campbell, the i~spector of ·.ihe factory, ·came into the outer office, 
and I stopped what work I was doing'that· day on this work, and went to the ~ . .. ,,..,.... 

outer office and chatted with Mr. Darley and-:- Mr . . Campbell fox ten or fifteen . 
minutes, and ~on versed with' them, ~nd · jfil{ed with them, ·and while_.i" was 
talking to them, I should figure about 9 :15 o'clock,· a quar-ter ~fter nin_e, Miss 
Mattie Smit~ came in and asked me for her pay envelope, and f-0r that of her 
sister-in-law~ ~nd I went to the safe and unlocked it arn;l got out the pack~ge 'of 
envelopes that Mr. Schiff had given me the evening before, antl. gave her th~ 
required two· envelopes, and ·placed the remaining envelopes that I got out, that 

: were left over from the day previous, . in my cash box, where I would -h~ve 
·them handy in case others might come in, and I wanted to have them near at · 
hand without having to ·..jump up. and go to the safe every · time in ·order-to 

·· get them; I keep my _cash b_ox in the lower drawer on the left-h'a~d side of ·my 
desk. _i\!te11 Miss Smith had · gone away with the envelopes., a few minute . 
Mr. Darley caine back with __ the env~lopes, and pointe_d out-·to me _an error in one 
of them, either -the sister=in-law of Miss Mattie Smith, she had gotten too much· 
money, and when I had deducted th~ amount .that was too much, ~tnaf amount 
balanced the pay-roll, the error in the pay-~oll that I had noti.ced the night .. · . 

. befor!L_ and left about five or ten cents over .; those things usually right them-
. selves anyhow. ·I continued to ·work o~ those invoices,· 'when I was inter­

rupted by · Mr. Lyo.q.s, Supeript..endent of l\Iontag Brothe1;s. coming in, he 
brought me a pencil display box that .we call the Panama assortment box, and 
he left it with me, he seemed .to be in a hurry~ and I told him if he would wait 
for a minute I would go over to Montag Brot.hers with him,--as ~ . was go_ing 
over there ; and he stepped out-to the outer office: and as' soon as I · com_e ·tp a 

.convenient stopping place in·the work, I put ~he papers.I had ~ade out to ta e · 
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with- me in _a !older, a d put on niy hat and coat and went. to th~ o~ter o~ce, ----~~---,,; 
whe~ . I found that Mr: ns_ had already left. Mr. Darley left with me, 
about 9 :35 or 9 :40, a~d we pass. ou,t 'of the factory ;-and·stopped at the corner 
of Hunter and Forsyth" Streets, whe we each had. a drink at Cruickshank 's 

---.,L... • .... ' 

···- soda water fount,where I bought a packa of· F~orite cigarettes, and after· 
we had our drin4, we conversed together there som~ time, and I lighteda.-. 

. c!garette and told him · good-bye, :as he went in one · ection, and I went on 
my way then. to Montag Brothers, where I arrived, as near as may be, at _10 
o'clock ,· or a .little after; · on entering· '.Montag Br.others, I _ spo to .Mr. Sig 
Montag, the GeneraL Manager of. _the business, and then the. p~pers . ich I 
collected, which lay on his desk, I took_ th·e papers out and transierrruLth.e_~ 1 to 
th~ folder, and took the other papers out, which I had in myi folder, and dis-

. tribu~ed them at th_e proper places at Montag Brothers,- I don't know just· 
· what papers lney were, but I know there wer e several of them, and I went on 
chatting with Mr. Montag, and I spoke to Mr.- Matthews, and ·Mr. Cross, of____.__ 
,the Montag Brothers, ap.d after that I spoke to Miss Hatt~e Hall, the -Pencil · 
eompany's stenograpJier, who ~t~~t :Montag Broth~rs, and asked her to 

(, ... 

--------'-----.-c..,.,o<T>'iO.m~ver aricHrnlp me tlnrtIITT>nrhrg ;· as I have alremiy told you~c't~1c-a..,,_y--------= 

~-.• - - r 

every one of these inVoices was wrong, and I wanted her to help me on that 
· work, and -in dictating the .mail; m fact, I told her I had enough w·ork to keep 

her busy· that whole afternoorCif she would agree to stay, but- she said ·she 
did~"t°want to do that, she wanted to have at least half a holiday on Me~orial 
Day. I then spoke to several of the ·Montag Brothers' force on business mat-
ters and other matters, and after that '1 saw Harry Gottheimer; the sales man-· 
ager Qf the National Pencil Com·pa.ny, and I spoke at some length with him 
in reference to s everal of his orders that · were in work at the factory, there 
were two of his orders especially that he laid special stress on, as ~e -~~id h_e 
desirea ··to ship them right away, ·and I t.old him I didn't know-how far along 
in ·process of manufactui·e the orde_ts· had proceeded, .but if he would go back 
with me then I would be very glad to look: for it, and then tell ~him when we 
could ship them, amt-he said- he couldn't go right-away, he was busy, but he 
would come a little later, and I told" him I would be glad for him to come 
~ver l~t~r ... that- .morning or i~ the afte.rnoon, as I w~u!P be there until' about 

. 1 o'clock in the morning, .~nd after three. I then took my fo\der ·and returned . 
to. Forsyth Street alone. On attival at .. Fo.rsyth Street, I went io the ·second 
or office _floor, . and I noticed the clo.ck, and J..t indicated five minutes after 11 · 

~ · .0.'clOck. I' saw Mr. Holloway tliere, and I told him he could " go a~ soon as he 
. got re~dy, .and he· told me ·h_e rui.d'·-so.me work to do-:for-:-Harry .Denham and 

· Arthur White, who ~ere doing some repair work up on the top floor, and he 
would do....the work first. I j:hen went into the office;_ I went in the outer office, 

. and fou,nd ··Miss Hattie Hall, who had preced-ed me over from Montag's, an~ 
.another ·ladjr who -introduced herself to- -me- as Mrs. Arthur Whitei and the 

·, office boy; Mrs. Arthur White ·wanted to see her husband, and I went into ·the 
·. · _ ffice,., and took off my. coat-a . , .papers w ic 

. . ~: .. had b~ought back from Montag Brothers in the .folder, · and put the folder away. 
. .. . . - _,,,- .. . 
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It was· about tl!is time that I heard the elev~tor motor start up and the circ\tl­
lar saw -in· the carpenter shop, which is right next to it, run.ning. I neard it saw· 
through some boards, which I ·supposed was the work that Mr: Ifolloway had 
referred to. I separated the orders from the letters which required answers, 
and· took the other material, the other .printed matter t.ha.t didn't need. immed.i­

-at-e-attention, I put that in various trays, and I think it w{ls .about this time that 
- ----'··-.-

! concl:tided I would looR an se-enow far along th-e reports· w_ere:;:.which I use 
in. getting . up my :financial report- every Saturday aft,ernoon, and to .mY. sur­
prise ~ foµnd .. that the sheet which contains the record of pencils packed for 

,,; . the w:eek didn't include the report for· Thursday, the-day the fisc~l week ends-;- · 
_ __ M_ ~·_ ·Schiff evidently, in the stress of. getting up, figuring out and :fining the 

envelopes for the pay-roll on Friday, instead of, as usual, on Friday· and' half 
the day Saturday; had evidently not had enough time. I told Alonzo Mann, 
the office boy, to call up Mr. ·s.chiff, and find out when. he was coming dewn~ 

. . ' 

b------=--- -an · . acl~. -v-\~-w.~-tXJ-Cf-'.u.u._ .ue-W..~-.J.XJu.:.....Qlau..u......,:----------...:. 
uuld-be-flgh-t.:_aown_,-so- I- d-idn 't :RaY- any more attention to t~at part of the 

'. work, because I expected Mr. Schiff to come d6wn any minute. It was about -­
this time thaLMrs . . Emma Clarke Freeman and. Miss Cvriuthia Hal1, two of 
the · girls wh.o worked on the fourth fl.001~, came in, arid asked pe:rmi~sion. to go 

. upstairs and get Mrs.~ Freeman's coat, which I readily gave, and I told them at · 
the same tim·e to tell Arthur . White ·.that his wife was downstairs. A sho~ · . . 
.tiine after -tliey · 1eft my office, two gentlemen came in, one of them a Mr. 
Graham, and the other the father of a boy by the name of Earle Burdette; 
.t}J.ese two boys had gotten into some sort of trouble during the noon ·recess the 

n.a·rnY•O . nd were t~ken down to 'police headquarters, an9. of_ course .4~~id=!J.~'t----~----,=== 
get their_ envelopes the night before, an:d I gave · th.e required pay envelopes 

~------..-0-t ~ · WO .fathers, nd-chatted with them at some-length 4t. reference to the . 
troubfu their boys had· gotten: into the day previous. And just before they . 
left the office, Mrs. Emma Clark Fr~eman and Miss Corinthia ·Hall came 
int~ !!!.!_office _and asked permission to use the telephone, and they started to 
the telephone_, during which time these two gentlemen. left my office. . But 
previous to that, when these two gentlemen came in, I had gotten M.iss Hattie 

- Hall in and dictated what mail I had to give her, and she wtmt out a_Ild was 
· typewriting th:e ma:il ;_ bef~~~ these girls-finished their telephonin~, !'liss Hattie 
_Hall had finished the· typewriting of those letters !!_nd brought them · to my 
desk to read over and" sign,. which work I started. ~iss ~fark and lVIiss llall 
left ·the offi~e, as near as -may be, at a quar:ter to twelve, and went out, and I 

. started to work reading over the letters and s.ign.i_ng the mail:- · T have the · 
. ll\, carbon copies (Defendant's Exhibit 8) of these letters w)lich Miss Hall type­

mote for- me that morning here, ll,tt~.hed to the letters from .the custom.ers, 'or 
· · t er I was answering; they have been introduced, and have 

: been identified. -l see th~m . here-.· S.out4erri Bargain House~ ere was a e ·er 
· ·· ·· · from Shode-Lombard, .dye. makers, 18 ~ranklin Street, the American Die Lock 

Company, ·Newark, N~ J., another 'letter . .to · Shode-Lombardt Company· being 
· ·· :in· Ne~ York, one to -Henry Disston .& Sons, .in referenc~ to a knife which. they 

... ·. . 
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-·--- - --- -s~nt · us to be tried out, a circular knife, one_!Q J. B . . McCrory, Five & Ten Cent 
Syndicate, one to the Pullmap Coinp~ny, of 'Chicago, Ill., ,in reference to their 
special imprint pencils~ which they were asking us to ship as s(jon as possible, 
_one to ·~· J. Sass~ner~ l).nother die maker; these letters are copies . Qf the ones ·_ 
I dictated.-that morning; ~- signed these letters, and while I was signing; a!l_. 

\ 

Min._Hall' brought these letters in to be sig~ed, I gave her the orders (De-
fendant's Exhibit 14 to 24) which · had been received-b~r--me--thaL mor~ing. at 
Jiontag's . office, over at the General M~nag.er's office, · I gave her tilese orders 

·· to be acknowledged. I will explain our method of acknowledgment of orders 
.--i-n- a ~ew minutes. I continued signing the letters and separating the carbon 

» copie~. fron,i the .letters, aiid putting them in yariotis places, I folded the letters 
; and sealed the letters, and of courseltold Miss Hall I would post them myself. 

Miss Hall finished the_ work and started to leave when the 12 o'clock *Whistle 
hlew, she left the offic.e and returned, it looked to me, almost immediately~ 

--. ealling 'into my offic.e that she had ·foi:gotten something, and then she left for 
I started in· we transcribed, first we enter all or~ into the 

· ...... 

· 9 ~ 

____ ..:.__ _ ____ house · order ·book (Defendant's Exhibit 12) , all these orders which Miss ~i--===-----_::; 

r 

had ackno~ledged, I entered. mlliat oook, a nd1 wrll =explian-that matt-er-~ in -­
detail. There has been some .question raised about this, h1~t I believe I can · 
.make ·it very clear: . . Here is an order from Beutell Brothers Company (De­
fendant's Exhibit 32) ; the very fi.rst operation on an order that is received by 
the Pencil Factory at Forsyth · Street in my office is the. acknowled.gment; tpat 
is the first operation, becau~e the acknowledgment is the specific second part 

_of the. contract, the first part is when . they send us the order; that is the party 
of the first part, and the party of the second part is when we ·write them an 

.:.~_==aclmO-wledgment eard and-a-g-ree-ta--fill tl~e order, . and ~nter the order which 

'" 

·they send us, and so necessarily, to satisfy our customers, it must be the very 
first thing that is_@ne, and is the. first thing. The acknowledgment stamp, 
which .you have._ already· seen here below,_shows first two things; first, ·who 
acknowledges the order, and second, the ·date it was received in the office 'on 
For~yth Street. Here is one from .Butell-&others (Defendant.'s Exhibit 32); 
that bea:rs the date Ap_!il 23ro, up at thEL.top; that was the date when Beutell 
Brothers in' Dubuque, la., had that letter typewritten, we didn't know when 
they mailed it, but ·that is tne day it was written, it was received ·at the .Gen­

·- . ··.~. __ .· - - · . ~ral M_anager's office, might have been received _Friday, on Friday April 25th, 
after I had .gotten the mail that. day there, and-remained there until April 
26th, when I -went over an~ got the maifagain. Here is one from John Laurie 
& Sons,- and here is one I think MI!.-l)orsey . did some . q:uestionh1g. 11bou.t, be­
cause of .the fact that up here at the · top was 4-22, this order was written in 
pencil, of course 1t is written in pencil; th~s is an._order from F. W. Woolworth. 
& Company (Defendant's Exhibit· 28), that is a Five.& T.en ·cent syndicate, as 
you know, probably the iargest in the world, that has over 700 stores, and these 
s ores n tor s are di· 

. viaed- into ·different groups or· provinces, and in charge of each group there is 
a certain office; for instance, there is ~me at Toronto,. for-the Canadian stores; 
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one illBU1falo, one i11 Boston, _one in N ewYork, the~e is one at Wilkes barre, 
on~ at St. Louis, one at Chicago, ~ 8:n~ one at San Francisco. Now, ·this orde.r, 
by looking at-it, I can tell, because I have had reason to logk jnto and know 
the'Systeµi 0£ orders used by this syndicate,'8:nd I most assuredly. have .to know 

_ __.___..i_t you notice Chicago, Ill., 4-22, down h,eJ.!e, and· also store No. 585 (Defendanes 

., . 

Exhibit 28), the Woolworth Company 847 E. Main St., he.re J!g~in is DeKalb, 
Ill. In other words, DeK~lb, Ill., is in the jurisdiction of the Chicago office: 
Theseblanks .are distributed among these vadous five and ten cent . stores, and 
~he· manager of Qne store,. when he wants to order · goods, 4e · fi~ds his stock is - ~--- .- - · 
getting a little low, he makes that out and . sends his order in to the -Chicago 
office; at the Ch_icago office: the buyer looks-'over it, and sees that the m'anager 

:.__-has-carefully and ·economically ordered the gooCls,. and _.then you · will notice 
that little stamp punched through; you see up there,. that says: "Va:lid,A-23,;" 
in other ·words, of course, we couldn't have put that on there at our office, but 

--------

1-------""th~eL..!_V_g._al!!i~d~ation stamp, with 4-23, the date of it, ·shows it -to.ok a day to travel - ·· ·· . ..... __ 
c-----~--- _from n ·eKalb, Ill., to Chicago, Ill., .and that stamp shows-the-val-idati~n ef-t-h-ei- --­

order on that date by the head office, and. that-order- is . then forw_arded_ by 
the head office to 1:1S. N ow-;tliis order is usually made out by the:. Manager or 
by the clerk of the Manager or some one in that F. W: Woolworth store. Here 

---·-- --- -

___ _,. -:-. 

is one from Wilkesbarre- (Defendant's EXfi1oit29), itself,__ that fa from the head 
office itself. Here is -one from St. Joseph, M·o., (Defendant's Ex_hibit 25), via 
St. Louis, that bears the -valid_atiQn stamp. of the -St. Louis ~ead office. You 
gentlemen understand these people are great big peopl_e, a ·great big syndicate, 
and they have to do their clerical work according to a. system that is correct. 
Now, then,· that was the ·first · operation on these orders after we separated 
them from the other mail, and we hand that on .to our Superintendent. I am 
showing you about the acknowledgment stamp, because it is important first 
because it shows the. ack~owledgment of the order, and who acknowledged 
it, and secondly, shows the· dl;tte on which the -:-orders, were received a;t my · 
office. To the best of my recollection, these acknowledgment cards were given 

- to the o~ce boy to post_ after :Miss Hall had made the~ out. 

Now, in reference to the work that I did on these or~ers, starting . here 
with order 7187 (Defendant's Exhibit 25. fo 35), -and continuing through 7197, 

. that is not such an easy job as you would have been led to believe; in the first 

. pl~~e, next to th·~ serial number, ~there is a _series of initials, and those initials 
stqnd for the salesman who is credited with the order; in oth:er words, ti; a~ 
man at the ~n-d of the year w~nts to get certain commissions on. orders that 
come · i~, we -have to · very carefully look over tb..o.~e or~ers to see -to whoin -­
or to . which salesm.an or to which commission.. house · or which distributing 
agent that order is credited, so, t~erefore, it takes a good _deal of judgment 

r----snm--lni-Mu-1-flfi.a'P.--11;A--lcno..W-just to which salesman to credit,· and sometimes, I ... 
1----~ can say tn~tit:was-incorrec-t--th.at- mor.ning, but it might have een,. soi:netimes 

I have to go through a world of papers to find just to whom a certain order 
.. is to be credited. Then ~1 enter in (D~fendant 's ~xhibit 12) the various orders 

'. 

, - . 
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)l~re, . too, the- ~~xt colu~n show; 
1

to ~m tlie goods are to be shipped; of 
course tliat is not veey difficult to do, that is just "ii mere copy. Tpe store 

. / . "''"' ~ -
numbers are put down in case the ·stores have numbers, and then one must 

-look over the order; I notice that one of the orders is one to K E, Kendall 
(Defendant's· Exhibit 34), at Plum St., Cineinnati, 0., calling f.()l!.. ·a special, 
and that has to be noted in this column here, you will notice regular or spe- -
·cial, notice here th~ word. special out here opp~site R. E. Kendall, that thing 

. has to be· very carefully .noted also. . ~ow, in this column (Defendant's Ex­
--hibit 12) is the order number, a11d -that order number i_s the customer's order 

number, to which ·we have t9 refer always when we ship that order. Now, 
i:p. t.4~.se . cases like :·on these · Woolworth orders, when there is no order.:...num.,..__ 

---- - - - beP;--We--put down -t-her-date with the rhonth,- so in that way thn-g-ives it, 4-22, 
that was th.e date the order was made qut, so w·e can abs9lutely refer to it; , 
'in this collJmn (Defendant's ·ExhiDit ·12),. is -the · shipping ])Oin~nd the date 

'• 

,--I ' , 

we are going · to ship it, and in this column represents the date on which the 
-------,.----~-~eeeived,--afltl-tb~-mo~April--2~th,-aceor~~-----~ 

----~-----c owle.dg~ent, oor.r.esponding...:.to-tlrn-ae-know-l~dg-men-t-stamp.--New,afte 
that ~ork, after the order was· acknowledged and entered in -here (Defend- - -- -

·. t 

. · ' 

_ant's ~xhibit 12), the next step is the filUng in on the · proper place on this 
· sheet -(Defendant's Exhibit .. 2), which· has already been tendered arid identi­

·fied·:· Now, the work-Gene by me . on that day right here, that was- S~turday, 
.&.1;urday is the second · day of the fiscal week, Frid~1. Saturday, Sunday, 
Monday, Tuesday, W ediiesday· and Thursday,-Saturday .Js __ the second day, 
and ~ou will noti~~' gentlemen, there are only two entries ~re (Defendant's 

__..;. Exhibit 7), t:~1e- work not having been done since I lfilt .the factory, there· are - -----
only two entries there, and the last entry is April 26th, whfoh ·was Saturday. 
Now then, th_e information on this sheeti~ as follows- ~ I go through the ·orders 
amrfind out the number• of gross of pencils which our Cl,IStoin.ers or.der which 
fall in certain price group~, that is, to find the number of gross of pencils for 
'which the Pencil Factory gets 60 ·cents a gross, and ·1 put them down under 
the first column, · the second under the col~mn ·RI, which means .rubb~r in- ' 

.. serted, and f~r which we get an average· price of 80 cents, I go through the 
· aine-th-ing-a-nd-put-the-~a-ll-ou-t, .i-n-this ca~~, it-w-as--10-2 ;-then- we-ha-ve--· · ____ _ 
- . a pr_ice group on ·which we get an average of $1.25, and it covers ' a range 

in price from $1,.._QQ_per gross to $1.40; there were · 116 ·gross of .such pencils. 
ordered with these orders which were received that morning_. .The riext.· 

- price group are those on which we figure on an ayerage price· of° $1.75 a gross, 
and . falling _within ~hose ·limits. of · $1.50 to $1.95 inclusive;- in this case, there ·, 
\yere 34Y2 gross;_ then ther-e-' is ·a group between $2.00 and $2~95, av~raging · 
$2.50, and there was 1oqv2 gross'· that day, then $3.00 and over, which we -
always figure at ,just $3.00, ;we have gooas that we get $3.25 for, : and some 

. ' . 
____ _:____--;--"'~-T,flm:rwe get $3.59-for,_ but we figure them all at $-S.OA-,_..,.....--i-1· i-n.· ,.,.-,....,..~seITTir"v ... a~1~v"'e.........,..es,.....--~_, 

-. -

••.• ti. . • . 

'-timate. The reason this is done is this ; in th~ .pencil busiriess,JUst like in all 
_ manufacturi_:r;ig ~usinesses; that is manufacturing an u,rticle that has · tp bi0 . 

·· · · · turned out in large quantities, it behooves the sales department. to. sell as muclt_-L:-
. . .. . . . .. . . . ,. . . 
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of your high pric~d ~goods as possible,' and .as few of your cheap goods, and · 
- therefore, if you know how many of the cheap goods and how •mariy of the ' 
.. better · grade. of r~ods you are. selling, it serves as a barometer on the class . . -. 
·· of goods that is being · sold. You can see that this j_ob takes quite a little fig-

uring and quite a little judgme~t. 
-. 

. ~er finishing that work, I went on to the transcription of these orders.-­
to these. il"equisitions (Defendant's . Exhibit 25 to 35), . and notwithstanding an . 
answer that has been made, I wrote these .requisitions mys.elf. That is my -

?---·---==------ handwriting and you · can · read every Qne ~f them through. - Here .is one F. W. 
Woolworth- (Defendant's Exhibit 25t;l=-wrote-that-on~nd-anothe.r-0ne F . W. 
Woolworth -(Defenda:µt 's Exhibit 26), I wrote that one~ and another one F. 
W. Woolworth (I>efendant's Exhibit 29): Here is one 5 and '10 Cent Store - . .-.. - ' 
S}l.-ult Ste ""Marie (Defendant's. Exhibit 31), .I wrote that one, and here is 'F: 

r--"_,,,__-=~--- w~ Woolworth, "l>~aib;-IH-~ofs ~cn-efendant1s-Exhibit-28), and Log~nsp.ort, 

.. 

/ 

Indiana (Defendanf'sEmibir-2'1). - T-h3t-:-is aH-m.y-hand.writing_;_e.xee_p_ti_ng the 
==-='----~--~....!__~ 

amounts that are placed down · h~re under the· dates when the shipment . of · 
. these orders were made, whichj~ in the handwritin_g of my assistant, Mr. 

Sch11f. This part, the amount, date, numbers, address~ salesman, ·da~~ . April ~ · 
26th, and the order,number, · takin~ the date in lieu o~ tlte order number, 'Rs-I 
explained previously, that is all my hand-writing,-everything . except that 

-- amount .there- and th~ subsequent date, thi!l is in my hand-writing. and the 
work on all of those-was done on ~he morning of April 26th. . . . . · ~ 

Miss Hall left_in_y office. on her_way·home at tniB~ time, and to th~ besf·of 
my i_nformati_on there were.. in the building Arthur White and Ha;rry Denham 
and Arthur White's wife- on the top floor.. To the b'est of my knowledge; it 

- must have be-;Jifrom ten t~ · fifteen minutes after Miss 'Hall left my~ office, when . 
this_ little girl, whom I afterwards found to be Mary Phagan, entered my office 

·, and asked for her· pay envelope. I asked for her number and she told me;· 
--- . _- rwellt to----tl.!_e -cash-bo~and-took- her envelo_Jbe 9ut_ ~..!1~ handed it to her, 

identifying --theenvelope by the number. She left my office and apparently 
hacI-gotten-as----fa-J.L&S--the-:- ·from m office leading to the outer . office; when 

-she-evidently stopp~d asked 1:ne if the metal · a arrive , ;01ttt--ru:~--:-------__:_ 

.. 9 · 

no. She. continue on her. way out, and I heard the sound of her footsteps 
as she went away. It was-a-few m~ments after she ask~d me this question 
that I had-an i~p~ession· of a female voice saying something; I don't-know 
which way it came fro~; just passed away and I had- that impression: ·This 
· .. le irl ·had . evidently. worked · in the ·metal dep!lrtment by ·her . :<}Uestion -
and had-been lai~ oft: owing· to the·faet that some me a 
had not arr.i-\ted ·~t the factory; :.hence, her question. I only recognized this 
little. girl from havin·g se·en her around the plan~ and ~id :not know Iler name, 
simply identifying her .. envelope '~r9m her having called. her"number . to me. · 

• ! :, . . • . . ~ 
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. She had , lefi the plant ·hardly five. ~mutes . whe~ ·Lemmie ·Quinn, the 
. · · foreman of the p~an~, came in ·,and :told me-that I ·could not keep him away 

• 

· ~ from t~e factory, even though it was . a ·holiday; at which I smi~d · J!!!d kept 
·· . ~n working. ·He first asked me if Mr. ·Schiff had conie down and I told him 

. . • I . ~ I • 

. he had not and he turned around and le.ft. I continued work· until r finished · 
this work. and .these·. requisitions and I IOok~d at my watch and noticed · that 

. it was a ··quarter to one. I called my hom~'-up Ol!_th!3. telep]lone, for ·1 kBew ·. · 
that my wife and my mother-in-law were goirig to the matinee and I wanted . 

· tQ know when they would have lunch.-· I got·iny house and·Minola answered .: 
the phone and she an~wered me .b~ck that they would have lunch. immedia~ely--. 
a~d for me to come right on ·home. _'I ·then gathered my pap_ers toget~er and 

. · : ' w~ni _up stairs to see the boys on th~ _top · floor. This must hay!L_·beeil; .since · .. ·: . 

.e 

- · · I had· just looked at ·my watch, _IO minutes to one. I noticed in the· evidence -___ -_---'----'----
of one of the witnesses, Mrs. Arthur· ·white, she stales it was 12 :95 that she 
passed ·by ·and sa'Y me. That is possil?ly true ;-I have no recollection about it; 

~----~---&'--erhaps her recollection i tter lian mine; 1 have no remembrance of it; 
however~ I expect that is so. Wheii"I arrived up stairs I saw Arthur White 

---~-----an-d_H_a~r=.r_y_D-en_h_a_m who had been ~Worki:q.g up-t-hoere and Mr. Wbit-e-'s--wife. -1 
. -~----· -asked th~m if they were ready to go and they said they had enough work . to 

keep them ·several hours. I noti~ed that they hacl laid out some -work and 
. ... I 1i8U to see what work they had done and wer~- .g<?i.n~"t? do. I .asked Mr. 

. White's wife if she was going .or would stay' ther-e- as l .w.ould -be -obliged to ~--,- · .. 
lock up the factory, and Mrs. White said, no,-Me would. go then. ~ .went down 
an4 gathered ~P my papers and locked my desk and went around and washed 
my han~s and put on my ·hat and coat and locked th~ inneJ," door to .my office · 

.~ 

"' •; 

. - and locked the doors to the stre_et . at~d started to . go. home. · 

. . . 
Now, gentlemen, to the best of-my recollection from the time the whistle 

. blew for twelve 0 'clock until after a quarter to one when·T-went up stairs . . 
and spoke to Arthur .White and Harry Denham, to the best of my rec;ollection, ' 
I did not stir out of the inner office; but it is p6ssible that in. order ·to answer 

: a call of nature· or to Uf1lfate I may have gone/o the toilet. Those are thin·gs · 
· that a man does unconsciously and can not tel how many times nor when he 

· does it_ Now, sitting in my ··office at my de..slt._it-is-i.mpossible .for_.Lme to see · 
out into the outer hall when the safe·· doo~ .is open, a.s it was that- morning, 

------and-not-only is-it-impossi~-for-me-to-see-ou.~ bu.t-it-is-impossibl.e-f-0r-.peop.l~.e~=--

' . . 
• \ ·'' " 

to see in and see nie there.- ..... . 

l continued on up Forsyth to Alaba~a and down Alabama · to Whitehall 
where I waited a few minutes- for a car, and after a few minutes a ·Georgia 

-avenue car came along; I took it and arriv.ed home at about 1 :20. When I 
-.arrived at home, I found that my wife and my mother-in-law were eating 

. their dinner~ · and my father.in-law h~d" just. ·sat down and started his dinner . 
. .. 1 eat down to my dinner and before ·I had taken anything, I turned in my 

' . . chair fo th~ telephone, which is rig}J.t .behind me and calle.d up my brother-:itb 

~ · 

Ill . 

·'- . 
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_ law to telT him that on aecount of some work: r ~had to do at the factory, I 
would be unable 'to go-with him, he ._having invit.ed me t~ -~th him out to· · 
the an · game. I succeeded in getting his residence an~ his cook"a~swered 
the phone · and told me that Mr. Ursenbach had not come back lio~. I 
tol4 her to giv~ him a messag~ for ·me, that I wo~ld . be unable to go W,J' 
him. I turned around and · contin'\ied eating my · lu:t;ich, and after a few min ... : . __ 
utes my wife and mother~in-law finished their dinner and left and told me 
go.od _bye. My father.Jn-law ·and myself coiftfnui<leating our dinner, Minola 
Mc~ight serving ~s-. After . finishing dinner, my fatJ;ier-in-I'aw said he would . 
gQ out in the ·back. y...ar.<Lto look after his chickens and J lighted a cigafette and- . 
laid down. After a ~ew minutes I got up and ·walked up Geor.gia avenue to get 

· .a car-. I missed the ten minutes to two car and I looked ·up and saw .in front 
or Mr. Wolfsheimer 's· residen~e, Mrs. Michael, an ·aunt of my wi.fe wh~ lives 

i .., __ - - ·- . 

J 

j n Athens, and there ·were· several ladie~ tpere _anct.I went up' ' there ·to -See· " · . 
them · and· after a few minute~ Mrs. Wolfsheimer came out of the house and I ,-~ -. ---- - --~ 

---.- --waited t here untn "J:..saw -the Washington street car coming and ·I ran ~up and . ... .. 
saw that I could catch t~ car. _L got on the car and talked to Mr. ;Loeb 

• 

· on the way to town. · The car got to a: point about the intersection of Wash­
ington street an.d Hunter street and the ·fire engine house and there was- a -
couple oi cars stallea up ahead of us, the · cars were waiting there . to see· the 
memorial parade; they were .all t>anked u_p. After it stood there a few min­
utes as I did :n_ot want to wait, 1--tol.d Mr. LoEtl> that I was going_ to-get out 
and go· on as I had work to do. So I went on down Hunter .:Street, going in the 
direction of Whitehall and when I got down to the corner of Whitehall and 
Hunter, the parade had started to come around and I could not get _around at 
all and I had to stay th.ere fifteen or twenty -minutes and· see the parade. 
Then I ,walked on. ·do:wn Whitehall on the side of M. Rich & . Bros.' store 
·towards Brown and Allen ; when I got in front ·of M. Rich & Bros.' store, I 
stoodJ·here between half-past 2 and few minutes -to-3 o'clock until the -parade --
passe entiNly; then L _crossed th~ street and went on down to Jacobs and 
went in and purchased twenty.,five cents worth of cigars. I then left the store 
and-went o n down Alabama spreet to Forsyth street and down Forsyt~ street 
to,.. the factory, .1 unlocked the street door ~nd theJLllillocked ·the inner door 

;'----o---- --__g,ndJ.eft it open and went on u stairs to tell the boys that I had come back 
and .~anted to know· ifiney were ready to go, and at t hat -time .-they were ----~ 

~ · 

prep~~ing to-- leave. - I went immediately down to my office and opened the ---
.safe and my de!!k and hung up my .coat. and hat and. started to work o.n -the 
financial report, which I will explain. · Mr. Schiff · had . not ·come down and 
there was additional. wo;rk for iiie to do. 

-:----:---------.:m--u-----hl~""ft'titnti~.s-after I ·starte .. . ancu' w.-1».u~-\-J~"---------

9 · fe~~ant 's Exhibit 2), "which I am going to . take up in a few minutes. I heard 

.. ·.: 

the bell ring on the time clock outsjde and Arthur White and Harry Denham 
came into -.the office and .Arthur White borrowed ·$2.00 from me in advance 
on· his wage!f. I had gotten to work on the financial sheet, figuring it out, · 

. ~· .. 
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when I happ~ned-to go out to the ·.lavatory ·and o.ii returning to the office, the--·~· " 
-door pointed out directly in front, -I noticed' Newt Lee, the watchman, .'c.oming 
from towards the ~e·~d _ l>f the stairs, coming t~wards me: _I .looked at the 
clock and told him the night befor.e .to come back at 4 o'clock for-I expected to 

--- . · ~ go to the base· b·an gatne. At that t_ime Newt .Lee came along and greeted me · · "' · · . 
and oifere~ me a banana -out of a yellow bag which he. carried, which I pre­

~----... . ·--:-:- ·-· suliie containe<l bananas; I_ declined the::banana and told him that I l!ad no : 

---".: .....,. 

/' -

· .. way of letting him know· sooner that I was t9 be there at work · and tl~at I 
· had changed my mind about going to · the ball game. · I toid him that he could · 
~ go if h~ wanted to or he could amuse .himself. in ·any way he saw /fit . for an 

. hour and a halj, but ·to be sure and be back by h~lf past· six· o'clock . . He went 
. off down the· stair ·case leading out and I returned to my · office. Now, jn 

. ~ . ~ 

reference tCf' Newt Lee, the watchman, the first mghf:-he came tlie·re to watch, 
i ·personally took him arom1d the plant, first, second and . third floors and into 
the basement, and toid him _that he would be . required, that it' was his duty · 

. to go over . that entire · buildi~g every half }_lour; not only to completely tour 
- · ·~-~-- .... __ :_ ·-~ .. -~-~-the ·upper : four 'flQorrlmi to go · down -to the basement, an:d I specially 

·-

stressed the point that that dust bin along 'here was one of the niost dangerous 
.places for a fire and I wanted him to be sure and--gG-back there -every h:alf 

I "'--' 

hour and. be careful how he held his lantern. I .told him it was a part of his 
duty to look after and lock that back door ana ·he . fully understood· it, and I 
showed him the cut-off for the electric current and told him in case of fire that - .: 
ought to -b~ulled so no fireman coming in would be electrocuted-:- I ex-

. -plained ~verything to : him in detail and told. _him h~ was to make that tour 
every half hour and stamp it on the time card and that that included the 
basement of the · building. · 

Now, this sheet here is the factory record (Defendan~s. _.Exhib_it 7), con­
~~g e y 
number; .the amount o~ each and every one of our pencils which we manufac­
ture at th.e end of any giveµ week. There ar~ names there. We make the 
entries on ·this sheet by trade notes. ·Her~ is a sample case containing the -, 
pencils which are· manufactured at the Forsyth Stre.et plant. That is just as 
a~ . explanati~n of w:hat these figures-are. . 

'· 
/ 

_ _____ _ ___ -·_. _-w~~-=cl=lJ-. .. +....:.I --e"--x-A...,;e_;_-ct-y<>u-have-- otten enou h ·01 -a glance -at -tnem :for - OU know 
that there are a great many pencils and a great many colors, all sorts and 
styles; all sorts of tips, all sorts of rubbers, all sorts- of stamps-J expect 

· there "al"e--140 pencils in that roll. Th.at shows the variety of goods ·we manu­
facture. We not only have certain set numbers that we manufacture, but 
we will manufacture any pencil to orde~ ~or a:ny ·customer ·who desires a 
sufficient number of ·a special pencil, into a . grade· similar to our own pencil. 

' . e e en an s x 1 1 w e.n 00 ed at 'it ·about 
half past eleven qr_ thereabouts on 'Saturday morning, was incomplete. It had 
the entry forThursday, :April 24th, omitted. Mr. Schiff i!ad entered the pro-

.. 
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.. 
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.. · _du-Otion _for 4.prii lSth, 19th, 22nd and. 23rd, but he · had o~itted the entry -· - - · · 
for the ~24th, and· the .24th ·~ot being there, of course it was--not totaled. or ~- -
headed, . so .it became 'necessary to look ·in this bunch of d-8.ily reports "(De-

·fendant 's Exhi.bit 4a; 4b,..4c, 4d) which was .handed in ·every day by the pack­
ing forelady, -sort out the various pencils noted on. there, amr ylace them in\ 
theil' proper places. · Before proceeding fu~ther on that, I want to calf your . 
attention to the fa.ct that we .us-e this sheet ·cn.efendan.t's Exhibit 7)' for · two .·· 

· .· weeks. You notice two weeks ending down there April 217th, April 17th, and 
one.-ending- t.lyi week later, ·April 24th, Mr. Schiff, I notice, put April 17th 
at the top anq the date corresponds to the .entries ~ere · 01i'Jhe side; these are 

_ the date.s alongside of each entry;· N~w, ·where we have any special pencil; 
as a · generat' rule-:... for instance, take two 10-X special up there; w~ mam;1fac-: 
ture two 10-X ·sp~cial for the Cadillac Motor Company,_ No_w, ~ therels a -
660-X penc.il (Defendant's Exhibit ·7); th.at ,:6.60-X pencil we call Panama, but 
in. this entry. it .is·· called Cracker-Jack. Now, here is. another· 660:.X ·special 
(Defendant's Exhibit 7), ours being ·Panama an'd-..this tfie Universal 660-X spe-

,. ., 

.. 

.,----,-----'---=---£>ial. In 6ti1a.--.woros, gentJemen,we-put-the..name of the customer 'f he wan=ts,.__ __ ---:---~___.:. 
busin~ss in a suffici-ent quantity. Well, I had to go through . this report for 
Thursday (Defendant's Exhibit 4a), handed·. in 'by Miss Flowers, the for~-
lady_ of the packing department, as she said, on Friday; I had ··to go through · · . 
it .and make the · entries. Now, ·after I made ·the entries, .I . had to ·total each 
number for itself; that is~the number of 10-~, ~O~X, 30-~, · etc. · Now, I n~tice 

- - -that both of the expert ~c~ountants· who got on the stand, poin~ed out two 
errors. While those· errors are trivial, yet there is enough ·r,r human pride 
in ·me to explain that those errors· were not mine. Th6!ile _errors, ~e of one 

- and -a ,half gross and one of on~ gross, in totalling up, these totals here o·n the 
18th ; and 19th-those entries were . mad'e by Mr. Schiff. ,I don't expect he 
meant to ' make ah error, but -they· happen to be in his handwriting. Tho_se 
--- - were already down there for the various days w hen I got the sheet 

'and I always take them as correct without any c ec mg of his figure .· 
bnly figur~t_hat I check are my own figures. - I-add my-<w¥r-00t.Jigures to bi!__ 
figures .and of course, not having checked the figures, I had to assumle he 

.entered it correctly, so I would not have known it. As I s.ay, my usual methOd 
is to· ta~e his figures as correct per se. Now, afi"er ·I entered- them in the 

. . total, the next thing I did ~as to make out the job sheet; the job ·Or throw­
- ----~-~u,ts. -Now--in--regard to- th~se j.ob11,-1LL".recrul it_Qorr~ct~,_ w~~ j;he onl . 
-~----.. -. _· errorthat-the expert-aecmmtant found in my wq_:rk ~n 'the financial sheet-fer 

that day~ but it really ·was not an error, as I win shoJV ·you. He didn~now -------- '--­

0 •.· 

:.--.- -

my method of doing that, and therefore, he could not know the error. When-
1 e;xplain to you .fully the method in wli_1ch I arrived at these flgures you dso . 
wilisee they ·are not' in error. · Now among ··"the packing reports that are 
handed into . the office just like Miss Eula May handeathis (Defendant's Ex-
hibit . 4a) in frOnrilte-paeki~g roem proper, there is anothe . n- · 
cils are packed; viz.! the department · under the foreladyship of Miss Fannie 

.. Atherton, head of the job department. 'l'he .. jobs are our sec~mds or throw-outs 
. .. - ·. - --

/ 
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- ·- for which_ we ,-get. less money,.:-of co~rse .. than- fo~ tbe:... fi.rat=;= .Y-ou-:see .that 
Fannie · A (D.efenda~t is Exhibit 4B), that-is -Fannie-Atherton. That is tbe 

. __ 
0 

· .. -job · dep~r~in~nt. - Now, I. ·tOok each -of-t~ose job -sheets' · ·(Defendant ~s _Exhibit . 
, 413) and _separated them from the rest .. of those sheets, finding out ho~_ many 

. J- · • 

· ' -

· .. ; 'jobs of the various kinds were packed that week. Now, this sheet (Defend. · . . · 
. ant)s ~~bit 3) shows th~t ther~ were 12 ~ifferent k~nds of _jo_!>.s packed th~ : • 

. d~Y: °' of them., you will no~1ce; · has a different price. · Th_at is t1!_e n~m~er 
- of jobs 0-95, or the=.numb!3r of' job 114 (Defendant's Exhibit 3); that 'is the 

n;nmb_er of the job, not the amoµnt, but the number by. which it is ..sDld. Out_ -.. · ·· .. · .. 
here . (Defend~nt 's Exhibit 3) you. see the amount of that. jobi which was . ·. " · 
packed ; iBO gros.~; one gross, six gross, 24 gross, ~tc. '.vhen you will find th~ : . 
actual price. we rec-eived ·for each, · Then I make the extensions $nd find the 

-· ··· number of gross 9£ pencils, 180 'gross at 40 cents, ot ~ourse, is $72.00 (De­
~endant 's Exhibit 3). In other· words, ~here is the a~tual number of· jobs ... 
· paeked 'th~t day, the price ~e actually got for them, and t~e ·extensions. are .· 
accurate amtthe totals are ·correct j the totar amount of gross is totaled_c_or_- - - -__ . "" . 

,· 

. _ rectly, the total gross packed and the . total amount of the value of those gross 

.· l' 

___ _: __ : · ___ aiLlhe-tw-0-D.gur-es-that-are P'1t on--t-bat financial repo~ (Defendant+..--v....-_-. ------
" .· . _ . hibit 2)~ 792 gross -jobs.,-$396.75 (Defend:ant's Exhibit 3}, iieing absolutely-c.or--- ·-

rect, but in getting the .average. :price, you notice 50.1 cents down b~lO.w h~re 
. (Defendant's Exhibi{ 3), I ju~Lworked it approximately, beca:use nobody 

. . __ cares if it .cost so s.niall a fraction-the av~rage price ·of those jobs, 50.1 cents, 
· · ·and el~ hundredths-that six hundredths was so s~all _I couldn't .handle it, so ·· -· 

I st~pped at the .first decimal.: Now,_ in arriving at the. total numbe~ of-gross 
and the t~tal value ·of . pencils, Which are -the tw0-· fi~res really important, I · 

.. . divided· one by: the other. . I also used, in g~tt~ng up the ~a~a for the 
financial sheet, by the way, one' of the most impoi;tant sheets is this V'ery 
little sheet here (Defen<IBint 's Exhibit 3) . It 1oo·ks. ve-ry-small, but the work 
. connected with .it is .very-large. Now, some of the items that appear on here 
. are gotten froin the r_eports which are handed in by the various forewome~ .. 

.....,_;.....-----=-----'~~. JW:'*"~-tiaw-Gn the stand thitHBorning ·Mr. Godfrey-Wine.kauf;-tl.,..,.-~s~ep=r=!1!=n-- ----''--------­
.. ·t~ndent of the iead plant; there is a repo1;t (Pefendant 's Exhibit 40) of the 

amount of lea:d delivered . th,at week, two pages of it; the different kinds of 
· 'lead, No. 10 lead, No. 940, No." 2 and No. 930~ and so on. Now, here is a: . 
pencil with a ·little rubber stuck ori· the end; we ·:onfy put six inches of. lead · 
in that, and stick rubber in th~ rest. ; Now here \Defendant's Exhibit--4D} 
is the· re· ort of~· 4_'._Q!li!!n foreman 'of the tipping plant. He reports on this . 
the amount of work. of the va:rious n;il!chin.e• th~t _is_, the larg~-e..~le.Gnachine, "" 

- -----the small eyelet machine and the otl!-er machines. Then he notates the -
amount of the various tips used· th~t· ·he· had' made that week. Now, we 
have, I expect, 22 <;lifferent kinqs of tips·; and one of them is a re-tip, and we 

. "' · · .... · never count a retip as a production. · · Now, this was made out (Defendant's 
Exhibit 1) ·-for -t~ week ending April 24~h . 'by --Mr:·-1rby, the ·shipping clerk, 

----~---:-~:u.-.1Lllrwu:;.-a.mount-of-.g-l!()s~~pencils-tha_t he ships day by· ~·ay. There. were . 
shipped 266 gross the_ 1'rst 'day, whicli.>wa_s ·Friday in this case,_ Friday the 
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· :18th of-· April, 5"62 · ~~ross th~ ' 21ld- day,.- ~h~h w~ s;~urday, a half -day, the ~---=--: - . --~. 
. 19th. of April i 784· gross OD Monday,, w~ich ·was April 21st; 1232 .gl'OSB (that . 
· ·was- an e~c~ptional day) 'were shipped on Tuesday April 22nd i 67~ grou 
-sh1pped- on -Wednesday, April '23rd, . and 957 · grou, also a _very lJ:rge .day, 
: ~hipp_g_d . OD April 24th~ a ·total of . 4314 rross, Now: . there is .. another liti)e .-===-~'-=-=-=;::-.::....:-=-~;.. 
_sijp of paper (Defendant's Exhibit 4.AA) here that re·quires one ·of the most 

· . ·complicated calcul~tiona· of th•s entire .finan~jal, :and I . will · expiain it. It 
. shows the np'a-ck, and-J--notice an el'.rOr on·· it .here, it says ber'e '. 4-17, when it 
_:, ought to. be ._18 ; in other words, 'it go·es from 4-17 through 4-24. - Tha_t re-

- "" . _ pa~k 1B gotten up ~Y MisS _Eula May-; you· wiµ notfo_e i_t is O.){. 'd by h_er~ · MisS . _ 
··' ·· · Eula May· Flowers, the forelady, packed that; that iS- the amolint of pencilff .. 

· . ·. _;__ -· used in our asso~men_t boxes or 'display box°es .. · That i8 one of the ii.icks of 
.the..trade, when we han-8Qme slow •inov~;_soin"e pencil .that doesn't move very . 

. fast we take something that i8 fancy and put some ·new bright looking pen-· 

' . . . . ·- ,, . 

- cils wit~ · tllem, with these slqw movers.- a is a r1c ufSctU1'4mt----,------,---
- :-. : . ~e, .an(l_ in ·paclting these aaortmen-t-4>™8;-Which are- packed under -the -di· · · 

· :: · ·. : ._ "!--~'-- : r~t_ion -of Mi8e Flowers;'w~ send int<)° the shipping room -and get some_ pen- · 
··. ~ . . ._. .. -~ c ils whic~ have already been packed, pencils .that·have been on the f.lh~lf a year 

- ·for all. we know, and brlDg them in and unpack'---tbem -ancl--te-p&ck-t-heu.i- iii 
the display box: Therefore, it is . very n(lcessaey in figuring out ~lie ·financial 
sheet to not.ice 'iri 4etail the amolµlt of goods_ packed ·and just how~any of .. 

- . ·thos·e peneils bad already been. figured on ·some past financial report. 'We 

. - . 

don.'t w:ant to r-ecord it twice; or else our tOtals wiJl be inc~_ecf Therefor...,e--, ---'­
this. little iiliP _showing. tht3 amo\iilt of goods which were repacked · is very 

- ·jieceilsary . . That was figuer y me, an was gur a-by-m·e--on-that-Saturda 
,_ .. -- . ·afternooii, April· 22nd. .T;bere were.J.8 . g,ross of 35-X pencils · seilµig for ·$1.25 ; 

18 gross for $22.50; -Itshows ·right. here, I ·figured that out. -~That iS my _writ­
mg right down there: ·Eighteen gross 35-X, $1.25, $22.50; · 10 gross of 930-X 

.. ·,figqring .at $2.?.00; that added up, IUJ yo_!l will see,· to _$70.00. Iri-other-word&, 
. there were 46 . gross of . pencils, 36 -gross of. whic'1 sell in our medium price 

. · ·. ·goods; · 86_ gross _35.x; 10 grosf! 930-X,·_ $2.50, that is a . high rice oods. · 
- ~ ·.:_ .~-· . ~ · : Therefore, · the repack for that . week. was 36- grc:fBS 11\.edium priced- goodS and 
· ~-- : .' · . · :,:-. -.. 10: gross of' high· price goodS:-- I . wiµ show you now: where the $70.0~Hs - and 

· · · · · where the 36 gross is, and ·:W,here th_e 10 gross -figured in the -&ancial sheet. 
.. There ·is ·a little she.et · CPe.~endant's Exhibit 7A) . stuck up here in the corner 

.. . . at_tached -to the, record-the factory l'eCord of pencils ~anufact~~d durintJ "- . . . 
: . . · : ~hat · w.eek. That . shows the produc:tiO~,_, _&hided il)to ~ t~e following · classe~ .. 

-, 
. ; _t 

'. : : 
.·. i . 

. \1.-~ 
i . 

·-.-- \ . 

• , 

/ 

~ . (Defendant!s ·Exhibit 7A); cheap· goods, ~h~ ver-, cheapest w.e Dia:ke, outside -. . · . 
_ .' · . - ~ -. .. . _.'_ .of7jobit, t'1ose w~ . fi:~lll'e 'a(60 'cents ·a gro~s. T~en there is_ the ru~b~r insert,_. .. ... .. . :. _ _-

tbooe . we ft re 86 .cents a grooa, end then the JOb and· the.n r medium; the :., . . . · 
-~-'--'----~.~.medium ·'being all goorul-up .t9 a·-c.~.am-gr-a e at eontams ielilieap; l~(d, .· · · .. ·. :-.. : 

.. , . . . ·. '. and-the ir,ood bein_g all t~9se· that con~ai~ a_· better clas_s of lea '. . :In thi~ ~ase~~ . ~-- - --..-·. -. - . '. 
. · .. •• • · : '.- ·. Mr~ Schiff ha4· ente>;ed -i~ . up ~~ and_ thr~ugh : W:ed11~sday '. .a~ . ha4 failed to. · , . -~~. : . · · . 

_ ·· __ · .. enter Thursday; and ·1 had to enter Thun,d_ay-, and to figure it'. This sheet ·· ----:. · 
. ;- '. . \ : .·.: -:_·. _·_-,~Defend~nt"~.:ll~xhib~t ~A:> -shows .t~e --~~tal.(>~ the, ~~~ee c~ae~ o~ goo_d~· _P,l\~~-~~ · .. . _ _. -: _ ·. _. ._ . . : 't . 

~ • a ·•• .. . • • • • • • ... • • • • • ~ ....... :, ··: .'· - ... • r. . . . 

.-· 
: . 

. • , . , ... . '· . : 
. . . ·. ·.- - ·;..,.....,.:- . -:• ---

.. . 

- : .·· _· ---.-·' :...__ ... ---:.7. ·-:-:-· '.__ 
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.. 18th of. April, . 562 gross the ~~d day,· which- wa'IJ Saturday, a ~lf _ .. day, the 
19th of. April; 784 gross on Monday, which was April 2.lst;_ 1232 gro8s '(tha~ 
was an exceptional day} were shipped on T~esday ·April 22nd; "572 gross 

- shipped n . Wednesday, Aprjl 23rd, a~d 957 gro~, also a very l.~rge day; 
· shipped on April 24th, · a totaJ"ofA37 4 gross. · Now, there . is ano.ther · little :---
slip of paper~'(Defendant 's Exhibit 4AA) here that requires one of .the most · 

· -_ complicated . _calculations .of this entire .1i'nancial, · and I . will explalli ; it: It . _ _ . .. . . .. 
.. shows the repack, and i notice an error .on it here, it says here 4-17, .. when it 

·: ·~ . - . '7 · : ought · to be 4-18; ·i!l _other words, it goes from 4-17 through .. 4-24. That re- ' · 
. . pac~ .is goth~Jl up by MiS~ Eula ~ay; you will notice it is 0. K. 'd· by her. Miss 

Eula May FI.owers,· ·the forelaN, packe~ _that; that is the amount of. penc.ils 
µ&C?d in_ our assort,ment boxes or display_ boxes. That is one of the tri.c~s .of 

'the_t:rD;de, when we have some slow mover, some pencil that doesn't move very 
.fast, we take something· that iS 'fancy a ncfput some. new bright looking pen-

,......-::'-~-=--.,-=- -- -..-.ns-witlrthem, with=these-slo.w-mOUl'S~ · . ick that all manufacturers 
. .- u8e~ and - fu pac~g these usortment . box~, which are packed under-the-di. 
. ·re·ction ·_of Miss Flowers, we send into tbe shipping .room and get some pen-

- · . · ells which have alreaar been packed, pencils that have been on 'the shelf a year . 
-. . --:~ . ~- :-~or all. we know,:-aiid bring .them . ul and Unpack theJQ.. and re-pack . them "in 

· _ _ the display box. The~fore.; -it _is very ~ecessary in figuring. out the financial 
. sheet · to notice· in detail .the· amolint ot. good.a ·packed ·and . just: how many. of 

.. . ".: . .those pencils-: had alre11dy beexrligurea on s.ome past financial' report. ._ We 

.· --=- . . : ·don't .w_ant to record. it twice, or -else our totals will · be incorrect·. ·Therefore, 
. · .· ~-· · · · this little slip showing the amount of goods which were repacked. -iS:.-Vel'y . · 

.;. ._· . · · ·· · · necessary. That was figuerd by me, .and wa.S figured by me on_ that 'Saturday · 
·· · · ·afternoon, April ·22nd; .. There were ls gr_oss · of 35-X pencils· selling fol' $1.25.; · · 

·1s 8J:oss for $22.50. It shows right here, I figured that out. · That is my Wl'it­
- - .-·ing--right ~own -there:--Eighteeirgross-35:;-X, $l.257 $22'.50,-10-grou-of-930..:.X · · 

. . 11.guririg ~t $25.00; that added up, as: you' will seef 'to $7.0.00. In otbe~ words, . 
there were 46 . gross of .pencils,. 36 gross of which sell in our medium price . · 

. . - . goods; 86 :- gr.OBS 35-X; 10. srDa_ 9.30,,X, .. $2.50, thaf'.-i&; a high ·-price go_9ds. . 
.Therefote, . the repack for that week' was 36 .. gross medi~· pl'_ice~ g_oods and 
'10 gross of high price ·gooda. I ·will show ·you.now wher.e the $70.00 is ai;id 

• • 

- . --

. . . '. . · -where. the 36 gr<>B!il. is~ . and where the· 10· gross figured in the. financial-· she.et" 
. ~ __ -: · ~ ·, .· .. - -~ There . is .. a little sheet .(Defendant '.s Exhibit 7 A) stuck- up here in-the. corner · · -. _. _ . 

. . .. . attached-- to the. record-the factory record of pencils ·manufaetured..:::Uuring .. 
· : · · · hat week. •:That shows the P~Q!;luction;\ ci(v~4ed• i.l).to t'be ft?llowing: classe~ . · . 

..-,_..~......,__--'-· .. ....;.,..· - (Defendant's ·Exhibit_ 7A); cJ:i.~ap ·g~Qds, -~he tery· ~he!,\pest we make, ·outside · · · 
_ ~ · '. of jobs,· those we ·figure at 6<J cents a gro~s. . T~en '.tpere· is the-_ 111~ber insert,_ · . 

' .. :. . _.· . . . .. those we figure 85 cen.ts a gross, and· the~ ibe job and . th.en the medium;. the -. . .. .. 
. . . · .. • . . ·:· medium being .all goo up 0 a -cer ~ graae:-that-:contmnirthe~heap-lead, ... ... ·- ~.-

·· .. 

.---'-:-'-.. .·~-"-'-and the·goo(l be~g' all tlios~ t~at contain_ a 'better claes. of lead. 1n this case, :: . 
· ' " . , :~Mr .. • E:Jc:tiit? had ' entere~ ~t . u~ to and· thrpugli We~esday,:and. J!a~ f~iled . to-:-. -.-.-.-. ~. -. --;-. --=~""'·· -.. ___,_...:...--1.\ 

. :. . -.. . . _:~..enter ·Thl11'$day, ~~U had to ~ilter T~ursdar, _.,.n<lt~· ~gure. it. . TJus sheet · . " . "v : 

.. · ... ; .· , '. .'_ : (~efe~.d~nt!~ ~~ib~t 7~) .. s~.~~s ~h~ ~otal: · ~! :~h~ _thr~e· c~asee~ ... of g~~d.~ P,apke~~-~-. :. ~ - . ·: . ~ . . 
' • l • .. • •• " • ' ." . . ' • • · , - t • • ' •• • • ; ' ·• · , • :t I . . \ "• - . 

- .. : 
... . -· . 

· .. : 
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\ 

... 3 ·- . 
\ • .. ~ . . ·... . . .. ·. - . .. .. . ·,~ 

. : · •• ·· ·.t -



. .. ...:. .. · 

· ·: . . 
. ' .. . 

... . . · 
~ --... : . . .. 

' . .. ·· . .... :;;. . .. . 

... .. :-.. ... .. .. : • • • • < . .... r , :. : . . . . 

. . 192 ·.· _·: . ' ... . 
• .. .. . . . 

.......... . . 

~=======~~om;;;::;ii- ay to·- ay;- ow, .. . ave. a ~ery .- ~\\.. cle~ks-at ·:Foi'.Syth $tJ,'eet, . or any- --.--. -:-.-. 
, where else, for. that mat~er; who· could·m~ke .. oui- this sheet (Defendant's· Ex· . 
hibit 2) suc.cessfuliy and accuraiely. ·-It ·inv<slves a great ·deal .of work. ·and · . • · · ... 

~__..!.-~----one-has-~-o-exerc~e · .exceptiQ.nal care "and · .. aCC\}racy -. i~ ·m~king •it . out. You 
,.-----'-----~--uoti~hat--th~ress:-1>roducf;ion-here-(D&fe11dilnt.'e. ~-hibit-2)-is-2ff~1h-;:--That- -­

. .. : . . 

- -· ~· ~ 

. · _. gives the net production:. The : ~oss production ·is=notliing · more thatt the 
- - . ·aadition, the totaVaddi~ion, the proven' adciitio~ o.f .:those abe.ets containing 

· the pencils packed;. This oth~r -little sheet . (Defendant's EXhibit 7A) behind 
he~e represents the l>encils packed: the ;week of Apcil .. l 7th-th.at week's · pro7 · 

ductio'n. Now, thjs ·little s~eet I .had to work. on, · s)io~ing the · pencils that · ·· 
were rep~cked, going intoh .the di!Jplay boxes, ~nd the. numbers, ·and sub­
tracte(l that Jrom the .total ··amourit -·46 ·ft:o~ 2765·1h, which leaves 27_i91h j in 
_otli~r :words, I just deducted the amolint that had been..taken ·out ·of the stock 

. . . : . .. room and repacked from the tot.al amoUnt that was stated to. b~J>acked, . 
. . · ' ·showing the· amount of. repacked goods ... Now all I had to .do ·was to .copy that 

---'~~-· ------ff;-it-had-been-:-figured-on~e;:--The-valu~of-the1'epack-wa's $70.00; tha~ · 1Y:afL __ _ 
.mere copying .. Now, the· rubber insert entries, l got those. that morning, t1Ie · 
nu~be!._ of pencils packe_d ·during the . week ending·· ,i\p~il 24th;. that.is Thurs­

. . day,-April 24th; that insert rubber is 8 · rubber stuck .directly into wood wi~h . 
a metal tip or ferret 'to bold it in. t h~ve to go· through all of this data, that · 
·being an a~~~Y tedious jfili, not ·a hard ·job, but very tedious; it eats up 
time. l had .. to .go through each one of. these, lijid· not onlr have .to see ~he 

_
1number, but I have io know. whether it is rubber .i~sert or ·What it i~ and 

. · .· . then .I pµt tbat. d~wn ~n a. piece. of _scratch paper, .and place it dow.n, here, 
· in this case it was :720 gross. 'l'µen the .rubber tipping, that means . tippe_!l 
with rubber j that . iS the .rubber thl,Lt .is · Uliled on the medium priced pencils 
that have the medium prices, we ·ship with tlle ~cheap shippfug. I ha<l to go 

·-_·. ___ ·. through-this operation-again, a·tediousjob, ·and if eats .up time·; it is not hard, 
but it ·is ted1ous.--I-had to go through that a gain, -to find out .the amount of ··~ 

. f 

.·. tip .rubber that was used on this amount of pencils. Then I' hi d to go through · 
"-. · ·. ·the good ·pencils. Now, it- has · been insinuated. that some of.: these iienis, · . 

. es~e.cially ·tliis item, if T remember ~eorrectly~tha~_:-~hen I h~ve~ gotten_t_~o 
of the .items, I ·can~ add it ~11 ·up and subtract . fro~ ·the to.tat to get the~ 
by deduction, but that i~ not so. Of the pencils that still remain- unacco:un==-.t~e-...-~-· -

--~· to·r, ihere .are mariy · pencils that don.'t . take rubber .at ·an. Th!'re . are . jobs · . 
·. ·_ that, don't ·take_ruJ:>ber ~n the~,-'. plain ·«common-:pencils~-· :going pen.oils that · 

.· .don't have rub~er on them at all, and .I ·have to' go througli_~all of that opera- · ~·. 
.. ion,:that-tediouscoperation again that eats up so. much ·-time. ·-Then ·there is .. .- ·· 

. . . . the -lead. of the . various "kinds .t~at we use ; the~e is : good ~ad an~ c~.eap lead, :-. -

\ . 

' -· -·-·-: .. -~ ~ _:. .' .the .large'lead ~nd 'the thick or carbon. lead, a~d the. copying.lead. That same·-.-. 
·_·_· · _ .--·-.~ on _-baS_to be · gone...tiirougb.4v.itb-..&gairi~-0-w-this-sheet:-;(-l)efendant.1s~· - · 

' . ' . · ., .. . , .. Exhibit 3) (:exhibiting-) is where the exp·er( accountaut 'said I made a mistake: : · · 
'• · ... _ . :~; I ' · . .-

1~·-1 had t~ · go · throtigh :~itlt ea!'h1>t t~ose "i>.enci.ls to see' if .ther. w~re cheap rub- • <·. • ... 
. .. ·· · · ·· : · .. •·her or if they were· good lead or copyi~g lead. So I had to go through this ·· 

· . · .· . '.._ · .. . .· · ·. ' · !iame operation and re.add ... them to see ·t~t ·the additioii' i~ · qorrect :b"efore I . 
:• • 1' ~ ~ .• ,. ·1·: · ~ ••• '. ': •I'\·~'• : " •,, . , · ·" · .; . • · . ·.I. '. .'•' ' 10 
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· ·can ·arrive at the proper figure. The same way to ·find- the good lead and the 

. . cheap)ead, the large' le.ad and.;th~ 'copying lead; that operation ·bad to be. gone 
.. ·through in . detail with· each and every one of those, and . the sa.tne. with · each--; - - -- . 

~---,,.----:-:=oUhe_boxes, ~nd _th.atis · a-1ough=-job. Some oLthe_pencils_are pa.!lk~...d in on~· __ ·_ . . :.. :_· ·_ 
. c_grQss oxes an some in half ~gr.oss boxe,S, -and,- as I . say;-'We use. a display box, . . . · ----: . · . 
. ~ and there are· pencils that.' are put"in individual b~xes, ·a~d . 've haye_ to go · ---- . 

·. - through carefully· t~ "see the pencils ihat have been packed for the whole 
)Veek.' ·an~ it is a _very tfillj_ous j.ob. Now in these ·boxes there is a.notherl c~l-
. nlat1on mvqlved, and then· I have to find t~e ·a~sortment .. baxes, but that .1s 

·easily gott~n.'" .Then I have to find out whether they are half-gross boxes 
or one~gross box~s, and then·· reduce them to the ·basis" cif boxes that .. c9st . us " ... 
two ·cents apiece j reduce-iltem to. the ba~is of' the ordinary box that we ·paid. 
tw9 ~ents a box:· ~After ·fin(ling oQ.t all :th·e G<;>xes,· then i have to reduce that 

.. ' 

. · t~ some .comm.on factor, so I can n~ake_ t~ie 'inultiplication in ~guring out th~ 
- --: oost-at--two-cents~T-hat-involves-!qnite-a-'m~h~m-ati-cal nianipulation. Tl,..,....,,-----'--:----:-::-::---:~ 

r-.-c.,.,...:...-=c=---c--=.- · I · co~e to the ske~eton. Skeletons .a,re· no:_ more 'than just a -~rade name. 
. . They are just -little ·c~rdboard tiers to keep one-pencil away from ,the·:·other, 

that -is all' a skeleton"i~:· .· I have to go through and find out which 'pencils are 
. s~_el!ltons._ If it is a cheap pencil they are jt1st tied ·up with a cord, and there 

. -are pencils . in a ':t>unch, . arid . there are pencils that we don;.t' use the skeleton 
' ... 

-..-. . : with . .. That .ni\1st ·a1Loe gone throtigh ·and gotten correctly,.: or it will be of 
-·· _ · - ~ _ . ~o ·w.~rt : . e_~ "'com~ ihe - t~p, ·delfrery, ~hich. is' ~ott.en .. from t~1is report 

- - · from. Mr. Lemmie Qumn ~hat I showe<J yon before. Then there J!J another 
· ~entry on this sheet of th'e tips used. and "~ can .give you a clear- explanation · 

~ . ~f th~ manner that i: arrive at that. ..You ca~ 't use 'tips when you don't have 
·. - · :" .. soJI;le rubber. stuck ·in it, so I · just ha'f,l to ._~o thro~gh. the rubber used-to find­

. · .• :.- · :· · -- · that. . Then we have what . we call -~nds; there are a few gross of them there. 
Then _tJie. -w-rappers. Pen.c~ls ·that are packed. in the individual one dozen 

. _ . - .- ca~toon!J don!t take wrappers·; they are in a box. ·:Pencils that are packed 
·. _._ _ _. _. . in ·the display '!>oxes don't take a wrapper;· they just stick_fil) in. a hole by 

.. . . . . :_ · ,-themselves .. The cheap pencils are tied with a cord -and they don '.Lt_a.Ire_any 
- .-~--wrapper, , so t~e ~-~m~. operation, the sa1µe .. _ tedi~urf operatfon,. bad ~o~,be · go~e 

,,- --

~ · _ .. ·: .. · : t~~ough wi~h .that to .get at .the ·numbe~f-wrappe~s, -and then . the different 
· "" . _. _ . . nuinber of gross _ and the-number . of c11rtoon ·boxes used in the same -way. . On 
_ __ ·:· · the. right hand ·side of ·this sheet you notice the deliv~ries. There is the lead --: --

- ~elivery from the Bell S~reet plant ·aµd the Forsyth Street ·"pla~t.. This · · .. 
.. ~~ ; _: :....doesn't mean the· amount of l~ad u-;ed iri the. penci~s packed for this. weeir -· - •··--::- -· 

_---:_ . . only, · but it · EJl\ows the amount · of Qur lead· plant delivery, for . information. _ .. 
\ !.· · .' Then · th~ sliit. d~livery, that .is not ~otked out -that wee_k; ~hJit is ·not 1\'0rked - ---··· 

._ 

;=._~.:..==:c...:::=:;;;;;;;o!!lul!lit · sitnfilLh~cause that is Mr._~chiff!s -duty· to .. w_o'!-'k_that out ·ll'nd that :..is a . -"-- .. ··-.., _ .. ~ 
· yery . . tedic;ms and_ lo~g job · Din~ when · i ·started in to do that I co~ldn 't find _, · 

J -... -.~-. -.~~h~ ~he~t sJ:io.wjng the different: delive~ies :Of. slats from the mill, so · I l~t that 
" .. :. . go, .. in~en4ing to pu.t. tp11t,in !?~ :·.~ion~ar-1 ,~1.~.t ~n; .M~~4~y· f~llo~~·ing J...w:as .at .t.~e: .. ' ' \ ' 
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i- t(rok out ··from this -job "iheet :CD~fendant's -E~~t . 8),-th~ · correct ~ 
amoµnt of gr9ss . pa9ked-791 . as figured there-correct value $396.75, as 

· · .shown on , this sheet; and the average is that o~e, that I didn't carry out ··to 
\ - \, . 

_two ~~chn{l.lplaces; . I didn't cai;ry it to but Qµe; Then fi:om the pay~roll book._·_.-~-'---";" 
. ~-i=vot=ttre pay- ol - or:-:- my r.ee an . e s reet_, an th~n as a separa~e 

. item took out from . the pay-r.o.11 book total, separate the machine shop; whic}l 
_ that ·w~ek was $70.00 . . The 's~ipments (Defend~nt's Exhibit 6}, we:r~ · figUr.ed 

for the week ending ~pril 24th on tbis sheei,: as far ~as ·I-oh, you notice the. '·, 
entry of the 24th;.. t~ose are. those ·invoices; ·the tirsi piece _~f ·wor~ that l ·eX· 

· plained to you, sittmg up there ; .~I explained that from the cbir, ·and couldn't 
:: come ~Q"'.ri )1ere i· that's -the piee'e of work that I . expl!lined to you· how we d~d 

--. . -, - · it--h(l~pllcate. .That.'s the work ·t:hat I . did that m'ori;ijng, ·and c-ompletcd, a§ 

I . told you, tliat each of. the ih~~ices ·was ·wrong, .and I had ·to correct them -
as-r went along, simply. because tneedei:l_it on ~ thilfnancial, and there'.s where 
·1 entered it ·on t e"s eet · as shfements·; (DefendOJlt'e EX:hibiLG);--I--need~i:1--.----........,,. 
that so as to make the total; and that's where-I ent ered it-(Defen,dant's.Ex~ 
hibit. 

0

6)-shipments;·· the 24th, on iqi~ 'sheet ~ (Defendant's Exhibit '6)',· during" .. 
· · the afternoon $1,245.57, add totalling . ft . up, the-pencil factory ·shipped· that 

.week $5,438.78: Tbose.,..a.mounts.'you -- see .a.re ·entered -right. in there, ·and the 
amount of: shipniei{ts is gotten ~om .this . report . $4,~7.4.00 haµdM : in by" Mr. 
Irby, and the' 'Val~e ofthe .shipments i re· gotten from this -sheet, the last entry _ _ 
on which. I had· to ~ake. ·.. . . . : · . · . · -· · -~ . : . . 
··- ----

Then _the .9i:ders ~eceivcd. '··.!J.ihe ~ntry of the .. orders received that day in­
. volved .absQlutely no m.or~ work _on- my pari · t!tan th'e· mere· transfer -of the 
entries. Ori this big "Sheet '{Defendant's .Exhibit 2), I hi!.v~ · h~re the orders 

· .reeeived are m ernfs -of .,' totai gross~nd- ''total-value, ;'·· and we need that . 
: --:-:- . to · compar~ the amount. of ·shipments .with the amo'1nVof orders . w~ are re- · 

ceiving. t~ .see .whether ·we are shipp~g more than w~ .. are_ receiving, or receiv. 
· ·, ing mQre than we are shippiniV ... That amount is given here. Down there Jt 

_ __ .. _ ._ t_ells you .. tlie. total amounC of. dollars and. cents of all the orders reeeived, 
~"total gross, and the average. · Th.e average is important, though it is usually: __ ._ ·- . 

-···- .- taken Qver on a Qeparate pap~r -on Fxidayniorning-to Mr,-Sig'.Mon(ag-so=tlm;t - . - _~--=- ~ • 
. -.he bows 'ho_w sales "for the w;eek have !?ome out ion'g "before-he "receives the . 

. · .. ·_ financial. He didn't reC'eive the fiµ,ancial usµa.lly: untjl Mon<lay· morning, wlien . 
·-- ·~_..(fO ()V~~_ there. · .. ".. · . . . , •. ,: · · · · ·'-~ - · _,, · 

.. ·._._ · -~ : . ·:· .. ··. ·_ ·~ · =J. Now· ~~~e o~ __ !!te- mo~t _intr~e&.te f.Perations -:-in; the ma.kin~ ~P of t~e finl\n- . 
· · .,. .... . · c1al report ·1s the workmg out of(the figures on that pencil shee.t, as shown · 

.. --. - -. - - . : . : 1-:- by . that ·torn Utile olq J!heet here, -{Defendant's Exhibit 3)' th"t "data sheet: - . . - - - . 
· ·' · · .. ' ·. · NO.l'V'---w-itJ;i_.:A_hiiJ-in:.)t,arid,-a.J!d with. tha~eneil.:..Sh.e~e~.ru>.rd--ol-p'eneils:.-pa*e-~-.-. _-· ~~....___, 

z.,.....,....,,---"C.+~-+o:-. _ . (Defendant's Exhibjt_ 7)_, the fiuaµ.cial l!ep~l't-:is.;made. ··out. Thie: sheet (De- . . · · 
· "' ' : . fenda!lt 's Exhibit_..2.).; .the ·financial,. J. m'y say is the e.htld· of. mJ ·own. ~ain, · .. 

· . · ~ .. ~-~ _... ..~ · · because, I got it up. . The. 'first on~ that ever. was m,a~e 'l°"nfade out, and! the la-ct .. · . 
• ''. · • • •H • .' • • • ," ·th~t· there ·is .a cert11ip blue line .tiere, and a certain red line - th~re, and··it.. i>iack. 
'~•' .-._ • ,' • • ·.>' .·'I·· ... •' . ·~-·~# .. ,.._ ,:.,:· ·,,, , :'.:·, , I• 
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· ~;· . . ' 
,/ .· ., 

-· 
· line · there, and c.ertain printing on it, is due to me, -becaus~ I got ·this sheet ·. 

up m)rself. On one sid_e you notice "E~pense/'. or tw9 l;Dllil\ headings "Ex· - · 

.· . 

- ~ -.. : 

. : pense~ ,-..,-, 'Materials." Together they. comprise the expense for the week. . ._-: _ · .. _ 
. --··-'_.--'-: - ·on "the .other side,.like the de.bit and credit side·s of a ledger, is the "Value," 

.. · .. "Gross - Value'~ o~ the __ goods, which ·have ·been pt\Q~~d up d~ri~ -a · giv~n · · 
· week. · · Down here below you will notice 14 Less .Repacked.'' · You remember -. 
t.h~ repacked, t)at I tola you.~bout, the pencils taken oqt '0f stock and re-
. packed to -make them move. · bett~r. Tha~ val,'!~ is deducted, .so. th.at it ·. 

~--;-;----'.,,..-·--YI."'. ~11.o.iv. ~rror : tq enter iu..to...:..thisJ gnr..c. . . Then we take off· 12 ·per· . .· 
· .· cent. down. at the \})ot~om. Th.a..Ll2 percent. · ~ilows for freight allowances, . --: --.. ---­

cash diseou~ts, and possibly other allowancea., and giyes us ·the net . value or . . 
· ~e net amount of 1!1oney for those pencil~, _ ~hieh t}).<J,. treasury of. the .Pencil -

_.......,,,~--. -'Com.p~c~i-¥e8-i.n-tlte-last...an~J...ysis · - - - -
- L ~ . 

. On the other side is t~e in~te~in.ls, the ··cost of materials, ·that w~ni into _: _ 
- . t e _.ma.king of t4ose pe.nci)s, based on-the amounts an.d kinds o~ p~nci.Is, which :. · 

"·. ·. _~f c9~_rse, .as .in this i~sfunce, ·c~mes: fr.om _.the data sheet. • · -
. . 

. --- The ·first item under "Expense" -items "is "Labor;" and the l~bor is 
.. · · · ... dirided, as·yoµ all know, into .the two ·classes, direct and .indirect. · The ·direct 

__ .-, "~~ labor is .th~t whic~ g?es direct~y into. t~e ma~i!!_~ .of the p~nci~s· themselves;: 
· · · and t~e :indirect constitutes the 13uperv1snig, shippmg, . office, clerical -help, .and 

· . _ " so -forth. These· jigu'res are- b~ought directly from the pay-roll. Th~ . "in~i-
- .. ~eet Iab.c;ir, however-as in this case .$155.00:..._is an empirfoal f.igure, a ft~re, ,· 
" .. which we have found OUt:""by experi~.nt to ·be the correct .figure, and_ we arbi- ~ · -~-

~ . ti:_arily decide on ii, and keep~it .until such tiine as .we think .. we ought to Change-· -=--· -~ . 
· . · . ·· ·-. ·. · _ it. and thel;l change. The burden that a business has to carry is the fixed . · - ~-
. · :.charges, the expens.e that -it .carries, 'irrespective. of -wli.ether i~ win produ~e. · · 

·
4 - · ~ "tw...!> gross .. Qr 200,0.00 gr9ss, . like ·rent, insurance,. light, heat, .power, and the ~ - ~ · . 

:~·-

·.·sales -department. The sales departni.eD:t ~ expense :usually goes· on whether · . · 
---""-..:?:=:=--=.;..:=-:---n:-e..s::::;:: alesriia.n-Sells little or big bills ·; his salary goes.on imd-his expense goeson . ..:."" . .:._._-· ~- ·~--·-· ·-. 

'. · : ·. Rent, h~at, lig,ht,. pow~>\ s:ales dep!}rtmep.t ni~~' an,.d all that·,. is ·figur~d· oui, 
_ · -as you could fin4 ·by looking back; continu,ously from w:eek to· week, and _there . . • 
·. '.. · is no_ wo~other,'.;th-aJIP-'jotting-it -dow.n...:to-figure -inthis tot81. ~ .-;;_--.-. · - -_. ·'_. .-_, · 
. -. :· . . . . . . . . . . ; . · . .. . 

_ _.:__ _. _ _ · · The repair sundries is also arbitrary a~ $150.09. . 'l'he machine . shop, how- . • . 
..:e,ver, is avail~ble: . ·rt appeaPS al9ngside of "Investment." "lnve.stment" is · -· -.~ -. · . 

. cros9ed .out, ~lid "Machine Shopn written •in. :.There is .a ·reason ··for· that, , . · · 
--.,-!~-Tu~t1n:ie-w t-tl_i~cep-tion o ou-F-b-usmess . · :eB-ev~ae m · '!H . 
· . ·. · ,, · -:--us~w.as- so much-· .itional-added-tO..,th~v.alue-Of..:our plant. - In -other- woi:ds,---. ·----,---

- . . 1 was 1 e l:OV.estmg ino..11e money "in it, in . ~he p ~~t, :ut t e !)1me ca~.e, "w en . . : .. .... 
we qu'it m'Bllrlng. m~ehines, and then :we simply ·kept them .. in r.&paJ~, and we, ·· ; .. · .. : · . . . . , . 

. -ehargetf tliat to -expense, · cro.Ssing .out . '·'fovestrµent'! · an~ pu.t.P.ing. doW<n " .?4.a- · :-:- .. ' '•' .. : ." ' " 
· ohtne Shop" aa an expense item.. · -.·. ... .· · · . ·. "· ·- · ·· · . ·. · · ' : ., '. · .. · - .. · ·· . ·' · 
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-----· _,_. -.---~The· m°at~ri~l is ~rrived at on . the .basis, gross, ~et . . -The ·g;~ss basis ·i~ t~e---." ~~-__,. 
- . total · amount · of pencils· ·packed, as per . the packb1g · reports handed · in by • ·· . ··. -}.fi~s Eula May Flowers; an~~t.he n~t basis .i~:the t9tal amount, . total gross, 

. packe.d_by.Je.p~f Miss ·Eula May F~c;>wers less the a.mount of repacked, of --~· __ 
· which I have spok~1s · case t e gross amount was 2,8 1 gross, net 

2,830 '.1-2 gross, the. smaller being the · 'net figure. The . siate are figµred at 
22 cents per gross, ·and that's ·simply takmg the 2;8ao· 1.2 gross down: to the 
slat. it~m; and multiplying that ·by. 22 cents, and putting it dow.!!..._tQ._ the mate-

·.·. 

. I 

.. rials. . Then frolJl .the figures derived from tha · packing -reports we figtirP.'·~-~---~~~ 
- rubbers used according to the cha.l'acter oF gra4e of the pencil m_anufact'tlred'; 

6 1-2 cents cheapest, 9· cents . medi'um, n Cef!it/i higl]. gra4e". Then comes t'he 
. tips. . Th'e tips is sim le; · otten · b addin · to ~her ·the- amounts- of rubber · 
used in ferrules, the ~dium ·rubber, and t e better. class of rubber. In other 

-~ ·. · 

.- .. 

"words, it's gotten by, adding together the. rubber a_t 9 cents a gross, and th~ 
rubber at 14 cents "ll. gross. an& addin{§ together the total amount of- g 

· used . . And :Y.Ou see it -says '"' materials,',· and it · is reckoned · at 10 cents,-;~-­
.. other words, the materiais used . i~ ~aking . the tips in; that tip .plant we fig- .. .. 

.. . ui'ed . at 10 . cents a.. gross; and th~ lab.or is included in that pay-roll item up 
above.· . Tlieri ·there is 2~ gross of these mediupi ends.· · · · 

,. . . . . . '•' .· . .. .... . .. . . · ... 

Then the lead, 'ivhi~h is used, is taken from this . sheet, muitiplyiu'g , 15 

.. .. - · ·~-.:;. . 

·: · ·cents-for the better lead and 10· cents f~r . the. cheaper lead. '!'hen 5 cents a · · · 
. gross has .been figured ·out after months of careful keeping track of what we' 

' ·_ use· to .includ&rliuch materials :as shellac, alcohol, lacquer~imiline, ·waxent, •• 
. ~ . . and oils- that's oils med in manUfacture, not . for lubric·ation of transmission 

· ' . : o.r machinery • .. I~ also i"ncludes t~at hascolene _compeund, of' 'Yhich we ha'Ve 
· heard · so ·much. .. 'rha-t-'s ill.eluded in this--5 centl!I per-gross.-"~· -

. . . .. . . . -.-- .. - -
-. .. Th~n -c9mes the boxes· at 2 ~ents· a gross, then assprtment boxes at ~n 
. average of _4 cents a . gross; then co~e wrappers a:t one cent a gross; that )s · 

·- . -. ·- -. - -------.--roth.,._e~-=n~r ·of" wrappers-used 'n- wra-ppini"up· -one-grosirof-p-en-ciJs-are-wort1I--. ~ 
.. . . ~-one cent. Then ca~to~ms; bQxes, h~ldi:llg one gross of. _pencils, figiired at. 28 or . 

- - . 18 cents. . Their , down) )elow "pay-r9ll ~ell Street, $175.21. II · Then show . . 
., .. ·. : · .. ·. ·_v(hat .. w~s delivered·, just a plahi ·copy of .what ~ have on this sheet.- .I have ___ · __ · . 

. · -~- .,, <'been looking at ·.~he sheet for ~he week ending· April 17th; but it.is practically 
· ~ -~-~ --.. . the same way~ _I have. here down on the bottom .. or thi~ ~ancial (Def.end-

-~ .,,,,.,: ·_ ·: : . . .. ant's ~xhibit--2) made out on the. 26th ··what's delivered,· good and ~heap . 
. . , . ' .- . . -. -- . . '1!'h·ere is· no entity· there. y OU will rememberl-Said I .. didn ~t work that out .. · 

· }~~--·-.. -. - ~. _put tliat out there p-r,eparatory fo .worli1pg .tiia.t out Monday .morning before 
- ·· .... · . . --·1 wo~ld tal;rejt oycr . . T,hen it tells tips·deiivered·from Mr. Qui~n~ · report . ... . : . . . . 

·ll ... . · · - · e 9. 11- o · e .er· grades, 71"0 gl'oss. Then 
ri_ghf below .it-says 700 gro11s nE!t. ~er~ are 710 gross, · and on that repacked .. -

.. sheet. I called ,ou.t tJtere ·10.gross ·_gooa -gooas repackecl,~ifiereTore~th.e 'ditfereric& '. ·. · · 
• • , • ' • • .. .. 1 • • • ... • I · . 

.. -· ' 
. ·- . . .. 

. 1 ·· 
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of . . 10 grosll • . Then we .look on down ·this pencil · sheet, cut. down each and .-.­
.~. ·every one · of the items accordingly-you will notice in some places. I marked · 
som~ items, "142 1-2 2-10-X"-an(i so .on down the sheet. In· this case there 

i.:---~---· 'W. ~Pe-:--29.4>r..:ao-di.1Eel!ent-items;.a.11-0f..-whieh-had-t0-have--th-e1'riCes-correctly 
=-:traced d~wn, ·extensions correctly made, checxed, re-checked, added . up, and 
· ·. · totaled, and checked back, and ·there . pack. had to be deducted, after whieh · 

~-=====-iie 12 per . cent. had to b~ fjgur~d. ~ut, and deducted, giving the net value of 
. ·the pr9duction ~or that week . . Then ·we take the net valUe of the production 
~ - ~ hat week1 a:n~ froll). k take th.e total amount of expense, and materials used, 

· .. the · expense:includipg labor, ;rent, light, insurance, and so forth, and, if this 
expense is greater than the value ·of.ihe pencils; .then Ure faotol'y has operated· 

· . that we.ek- at a. loss. In this case a deficit shows, showing that--that week we . • 
operated at· a loss. The sliipments were gotte~1 ~off down there_fr~lli thi~.---

_sheet. ~Jiose are my initials. on ihe top. . . . . . . . . 

. . 
1·---:--:----=---... ~o=w""',--e..,...es~1d""'e..,..,s,.--,,t'='h..,...e -..,m=-'ak'~1·~n-g-o_,.f ..:..;.)1i1s large sheet· (Defendant's Exhibit 2) 

· · . · proper; there 'is in the making of the financial report three other sheets, tbat 
·. -Ltl;sually make out. Now on~. or tbo·se ' little · sheets·, that . ar.e usually made­
:~ . and-I w~nt to -cail your a~tentfon to the ·fact that .I .didn't :typewrite this; I . 

. ·. ·· · just -fillea these figures· in; I am iro typEnvriter; I can not operate ·a machine; 
-. . t have two or-three ~ozen o·r those every now . and then typewritten .together, 

.. 'I I· . · .... and keep the.min ~lank in my desk; I ·q.id~'t typewrite those on thai-iiay, or 
.. .. any other day; I· JUst . filled those figures m those· blanks-this is the:sheet · 

· (Defendant's Exhibit 11) ; called the comparison sheet- between 1912 and · 
-. 1913, which is nothing more nor · less than taking ·the vitilllfgu,res, the ' vital 

·-statistics of one week of. 1913, and comparing th~m with the same week of 
· · 1912, to see how wha:ve improved .or . gone backward· every week .one year 
. · ap3:rt · Of . course the ·putti"ug· ~(these:. down invoives going back into the 
· · ])1,'oper week in thisrolaer, and getting that .out. However, · l noti~ed the _· 

. we.ek in ·1912 corresponding 'vith ~he week of April 24th .in 1913, ·waa· a ·week 
;:.-.~-;......,__-.-. -of'Z' . .:..,4=5 -~ours inst.ead -of 50 bou,r's . . -·. --~ :· · .·. . · 

. ·:·' · 

:, 

.. -

.-

· · In additfon· to th~t • . I . made out two condensed .. financial reports,· (D~- ·· ,. · ~ . . 
~feµdant's ·Exhibits. 43 and 46L tha.t _i!r.·g.ive the main ffg~res.'..: C didn;t tyI!_e-~·._;:;_~ --"7'"'"~-~·-·......__-...:._ 
wr.ite this sheet, either;. as i . say, I can -not' op_erat.e a µiacliine. · I . just _fillel} ~. 

-- ~ · · in the figures, Which .have to be ·pic.ked out from . this .~g·e financial ·report, ;. · . _ .. 
. ·fill .them .in .for the week. ending_:_that-does .not sho'v tli.e'"da.t~ it was mad~.. . -

-~ but it . shows for._±he • .week ending .April. 24th,. t 4e production· in tlollar.s, the . . - . ·- ... ,..· ~ _: 
· · . total exp~~ditu~e . .in dollars, .. :th~es~:}.qh . in this· wee'k, as I wrote .. in ·"-· ·" - :.. .. -- · · _. 

''. fi.CH.'': hi dollars; ·show.the shipments, which in this week...we~y_g.o.o.d, ___ · ___ ;.....___ 
and the orders receive , ·w ic ·were got en from a great ig .s eet. ese . · · . _. ,... ~ , · . ~ 

· ~ww~- enough- .figure~ ~or-a.dfreotor ·ors tockhof<ier ~of t he 9omvany · to receiv~,--. ·-: .-. -. -~ ' · \. ·" .. •·~;. ., 
. .:·.;·aud-·ar-e· prictically the onlif figures be is .~nterested 'in;. He. ori"'t care to hear .· . . - . ; . 

. ; . : . Jiow. much. we. make . of this pe~c~l or th~ f. pencil: . .. -The 'only ~~ing ~e is inter- " .. 
· , -- ested:. i~ is dividends, if·we ar.e ~bl.a ·~o. give them, to hi~. On.e of, these sheets 

; 
··:· 

. . -. 
' 
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·I ·always make out and .mail to ¥r. ·Oscar Pappenheimer (De~endant.'s Ex· 
]libit 46), who was formerly a member of the ·Board of·Directors;though he · 
"is not .now.. The other. sh~et (Defendant's ·Exhibit 43), I always invariably 
.sent to my unc e, Mr. M . . Frank, no matter where he is, 'who i11 pfesident. of ·-· 
_the company. ·on this particular Saturday, my uncle had during the week 
ending April 26th,. gone to New York, stopp.ing at Hotel McAlpin, prepara­
t9ry t<_> taking his annual' trip abroad for his ·health, he being a sick, fe.ebi\)­
old man. When I .made out that financial, I re~lly made. out two small ones, 
and I put .one (Defendant's Exhibit 46), in· an envelope;· addr·essed it to Mr. 

-Oscar Pappenheimer, care Southern Furniture Company, Atlanta, Georgia; . . . ~ 

. the oth,er •on (.D_ef.endant.k.ExhibiU3) wa.s-put.. in .this-e11-velope, which . you __ 
see right here, and· se.nt to my uncle, Mr. M . . Frl\nk, together with, a . letter, 
(Defendant's Exhibit 42); which I ~rote h.im, after ha'Ving ·finished the ~nan- ~~ 

., 
' '· 

•• 

;__~----'-----~c~ia_l_,....·s~h~eet,_the...she·et sbow~ng the compacison....oLvita.L.statisticS-for....the.-'Jam.,._ ____ _ .. wee.ks of 1912 and 19i3, an.<J. after 'having eompleted-ihese ' two . small .con­
.. dense~ fbiancial reports. I wrote that l~~er · (Def~nd~i:tts Exhibit ·42). to m.y· · . . · 
. un~le; and I sent ·him .that .report (Defendant's. Exhibit 43), and also sen.L a.. ___ 

price -list, to which. I referre~ -that _letter; hence the size of the envelope, .. 
(Defendant's Exhibit.-«). I a~ going . ~o-show yoli .one ·of thos.e price lists. 

. Its a great big .sheet ·when it· is folded up, it is much too large_for the ordinary 
· size; h_ence the reason I used :a. _grcaUligl mvelope like·· that . . · I ·addressed tha~ 
letter to my uncle, Mr. M. Jrrank, ·care Hotel McAlpin, ·Greely Square, New 
York, N. Y., as ha·s been identified. · 

. I 

. .__ . . 

_ _'l'his ends practically the work.,_on ~he financial. After .finishing the fl-· 
.. · : : - ilancial; _I wrote tliese letters, ~nd sealed .them, and 'i.> aced ih.e.m aside to post,.· · 

· ·After finishing the financial; I ·folded this big report lip (Defenda~t 's Exhibit 
----~. \ and put .. it ·with the comparison sheet (Defendant's · Exhihit 11) for the 

week of 1912-·and the same_ weekoI1iJl3· in a large en:Velope, aqdressed ·it to 
"""'---~----_..:;:;M=-=·r~. -"S=1K_ Mon ta General Manager of th~ Penc1CC0Jlip'a ,_'a n . ut it un _er · . 

- T 

my inkwell, intending to take it over on-the inorning of Monday following. · :. · 

-_.. I t~e~ cam~ to th·: che~king up -~f the c~~h · -~~- ~~:d. 'an~ t~e ~a~anchtg of-. - . ----

the. casli-book. .For some reason or other. there· are no similar entries ·in this 
-book after those· of .that date. That's my ·4an(!writing. (Defendant!s $xhibit-" 
40), and I did that work 9n Saturday afternoon, April 26th, as near as_ might 

.. ·- be between the hours of -5 :3~ and · 5 minutes .. t<;> '6 :00. Now in checking up -it 
didn't take u,.e ~~ hour li)l.d a l!_alf: I did that in ·about ·2f> minutes. In check­
ing ~P the ·cash _the fi~st thing to do is to op~n the· caSh l>.ox. ·we have a ljttle · . 

---------. oin-bag--.iit-tbere,· atid . .there was in cash· actually on . hand . thaLday_:.8.b.ruit,_====::::::::::; 
r-=-"--~--. -. ~· -il!,ao.54-;--thatls -aU-there--w.as.-_ThaVs-:-all-there-<i.ould-have--l)een, -antj-that-$30.54-.-. -.-.-· -· ---:-1 

. · ,_ was to_ ~h-~ _best of ·m~ recollection composed .o~ abou~ thre~ d~llars in on~· · _ . • 
· . .. .. dollar .bills, . a~out four or flve : ·~ollars ht quart!3rs and halves, and the balance · · 
·.. . .. -. dimes, nickels,.°·and ·one-cent pieces. That's ·som~ jo.b to eo.unt 'tb~t, not only to · 

' .. ·. . count ·it, but to- separ~te .: .t~e diif !3rent d.enomination·s, and . stack it -.up mto , · -
' I 

·, 

. : 

, r 

.. ~ . - --.- ·---
\ ,, 

. · , 

'·· I: •· .·n- .. 
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· . staoke" of a dollar. I did that,.· stacke'cl them up, ch~cked them, and r.e-ohecked · 
· '. them, 1µ1d I took a piece of paper-haven't that paper-and jotted down ·the ~ 

·· · : amounts. ·!I'o that had to be ·added the amount that was loaned. In this .· . 

• ' r 

_ case er.e-W~nly one-loa.n,-tb&t-wJiich I ioaned tQ M~ White that ·afternQ.on. =----~­
- . That would eventually come back to the cash box. If there had been any er-

rors in the payroll the night previous, I would have had to make it-good from. 
the cash box, and it would have gone under the item of "extra pay-roll." I 
don't know ~hether t"l:tat-occurred this week or not. Ho~ever, I added up the 
total cash I actually had on hand then-$28.54-and that $2.00 loaned to Mr •. 

. ,W'hite·brought ·it up fo.$30.54, t~e ac,tual:amo~t which the cash book eho~~.;/" .. 
Now on the left-hand side of this-book, the debits for the week between A~ 

. . 21st, which was Monday,. previous to April 26th,1t0eing a record simply of tlie . -
~----- · petty cash used by us, showed that we had a balanc·e on hand ·the Monday 

mornin revioue of $39.85. On-April 22n(I we. drew a cbeclC for $10.oo;Bnd on~--~ 
April 24th we· ·drew another on,e for 15.00. I mean y t at t a we wou 

. draw a check·for $15.00, and go over to Mr. Sig Montag to e~gn it; .so that· dur­
... · . . "'ing tMt week all we got_ from the treasury was $30.00, and-$39.85 already on 

hand, made $69.85," which was the tot~l amount· we ha_d: to account for. When· 
·: . ·we spend, of co"Di'rse we credit it~ · There o~ce was a time, when, as we paid 

out money1 we .~ould write· it down on this book; · We found it was . much bet­
ter howev.er, to keep a ·little voucher . book · (DefendanCs Exhibit-10) . and let -- - · · - : 
each and every person "-Bign -for moni~hey got, . and we lia~e . not only 'this . . ·- ~ 

____ _;-r:...:-ecord (Defendant's ·.Exhib~t 40) put this record on the receipt bqok · (De-
. fendant;s Exhibit 10).- ···rhe .fireJt e.ntry on tl1is is .15 cents there-on the 19th 
. ._ · of ~pri~ the National Pen~ompany · ga.¥e..-l:S-cepts-to-:N:ew.t..LeeJ01'..ker.o~....:.· ··-.·- _ 

sene (Defendant's Jl'.xh~t 10). Newt Lee~s name is th~r.e, but ·he Q~n't .. . 
write it. I wrote it; iny initials · are_ on -it. He was there when he got the __ 

· -. . -.._ .·· money, ·b~.t· I tho~ifrhe couldn't_-write, and I signed ·his name. Whenever I . 
· . · sign anybody'a,...name, my initials ((:re .under it. The next item .is 75 ,cents . · 

- · _ _:_for-iypewrtter=.rent-(-Defendant~s.~xhibit 10)+nexf itein $2 00 -drayage-24th. 
r-=-=----- - of-A-prit/ .ifhat-is-Trunran-Mcerary's receipt:--h"e has-a.,.v~r~-leg.ible-handwrit- ·- · . . ./. . . . - · . . 

_ mg, :.and one of the httl . stamps~stamped -on there. The :next item ·1e . for 
··::·· . . - . cy.ees; some negro signed-·hie· na~e ·4own there. So . on · throughout the book 

. , · / (Defendant's Exhibit 10), .cases, express, dr~yage, postage, parcels poet, etc. · 

/ 

·.:. Now, :after· counting the money, finding how ·much ·actual .cash there was ·in- . 
· --the cash box, -the n~xt -thing _I do is . to ·_take this Htil.e V.Qllcher- book,· and 

__ . _ . · ·lumped . th~· different items-. that were all :alike together. '.l'hie sheet ·_ (D~e-- -.. -'-.----
. fendant 's .. Exhibit 41) .:bas been identitl.ed and: explained, and yoµ ·notice "that 

. _ _ ·. 'there weDe .four. i tems o.f drnyage grouped together, the total· being $6.70.: 'I 
--~· . ·. : .. just extend ~hat over to the vigh~ tlrare $6.70 . . Then.I don't have io put·dray-

.·· ~ . :: 

. ·--

- , i ~=-:--age ~own in · this book,-. (Defendal\t 'e ·Ex i it 40 . our times; JUS ma ~ one . · . · ~. · -·· 
D. . · • e~try of drayage for the four tiflles .'w(\ paid -d~ayage tog_et}ler, -yv~ich g.ives ~he_· ~·'·-~-- -'"·· .~'----- --

. · · same t_ot«l, and makes the book· a great· deal neafer. Sa on throughou~~ ·flve · .. _. . .., · · .... ·. 
:. :. -7" .. iteD'.!~ o~ cases, .two ite~s of .;·o tag?, two items · o~ parcel~ post, on-e ite~ of , . . . .. , 

· · two·w.eeke' ·rent on. an e.xtr.a t pe_writer, ,45 cents for. euj>pliee for Mr. ·Sq)imee-,. : '·' · . ~ . . . ...... -- .. . . . 

~~-----:-----'~--'---..c=- , - ~ . ·. J1-. ·_ ---:-.-----,~=---~~7--!....--,--___;.~____,, 
.. _ _ .. 6 _. . ._, 

\ - . -- . ~-- •. (," '.'. . 
-. -.- . ~ -- .... ·.-.. · 
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· gas' . depai;tmept, fore~an on the third floor, 85 ce~te for·. the ayment. of ,.Q.· .. · , • ·. 

--veey-smaff:--bill- o mg ar wa:i,'e Company, $11.50 to a tmsmith for a· small . 
;:.;.__--..,.----·.,.-· -~:. -:--. _,J~· o':'b-'--'h,,.,e~ha..,d~do,n_e,_ 5· cents_fol'-lhread.;-and- ten-.cents-for:-carfau-one-item . ....Then_:_. 

~.~ . . . ~~ 
_:. .this young man, Harold Wright1 of whom I spoke, omitted· from 1he payroll. --·-=-=='. '====~ 
· I 'addea this up, and ·that was $39.31, .and transferred· it from here (De~e~d- . . . ·. · 

,~ .. 

-.. ant's Exhibit 41) · ta> there (Defendant's Exhib~t · 40). I . then made the bal­
ance· in the usual way, checking it · against the mon~y on hana; that I had in 

-·the cash·box th'at night, ~nd afteP-Ghecking and re-checking it, and fi:ndi.ng no 
· money :missing .from any source that· we could ·trace, found that it was $4.34 · 
·· · short of ~he cash box;. which was dµe· to · .shortage in p_ayroll in· the pafi!t thr~e-- : . 
. ~onthth- · ' · ·· -- · 

--- ·-----~ 

4:35 P. M. 
~-·­. . 

-~----~---. -t'-ftnished this wpr •ttm I have . JUSt ~u l ne -. -a a OU . ye· "mmutes to . 
si~, and I proceeded .to take. o~he cloclt strips from the clock which .were 

--·· · --:-used that day and .replac·e them: I won't sho\v .you thes~ slips,-but the ~ips ·. 
·. ·~hat I put in that night· were stamped with a blu~ ink, \vith ·a .rubber dating 

. . . siamJ?, "April 28th (Defendant's Exhi'bit. l); at ~he bottom, opposite the wo.rd · 
.. ." · .... ' .. ·. "da~e!• .: Now, i~ reference -to these time slips ~'nd._.the J(eason that ti£e ~ ·· . 

- ,. __ . ,.... · · · . April 28th w~ ·put on these slips, which was pµt ~n the clocks that nig , 
: · ·Saturday . night, ,rio .·• one -was com.Jng dow_n , to th·e factory on·" un ay, · 

· · · · . as· far .as· I .. kne~ or 'as ·far as custom was, to pui. _the slips into ·the 
- ·clocks, · and, thllrefore, .we had-. to_ ·put the slips into ·the ~lock- · ~ated with . · · . 

__ · __ · .. ...:__. _._·_ ..:...-the.-date on which -the hel were .co~ing :into the factory- to go. about their -~ . 
· ·.. · · . ..:· ··. regula~ duties and .register ·· oh ·the Monday .followi:µg, which,. in ' this cas·e ~ 

· ·. · - .- . ·: . · was April 28th. Now on ·one of these slips, Newt Lee ... would regist"er ·.hi~ - - ·· 
·: .. ._ " ~ .·· punches .Saturday night, and ·on. Sunday night he would register liis' punches 

.. .. . 

' . - ; on the other .. His punches on Monday night would he ·registered on t)Y.O ne:w----....,.--
- -- _ ___ '_.,lips-that-would- l>e~ut-mt&--clocls-on:-ll-&nday ·night·. ::-As-I- wast>utting-t:treffr-_-_.-_ .--_...,,..,.,.._,_ 

- -; . .. -. - :t ime 8· 1-t · tbe-eJ..6.Ck-;a~entioned, =-1 'saw -~ewt Lee· :comi:µg up the st\irs, . · · . · .. _. ·- · 
. ' ... ·: .' ·- and-· lo -m~. ,at the clocks, it . Wl;'S as . near as. · ma~ be SlX o.'ciock,-looking . 
· · · ~ · · . . . · stiyi ht &t. th.e clock-; I ~pJ!Jhe~ put tin~ the .sliJ? ·in and ·went bac~ t~ wash . ..: ... · · .. ;.q·: p, and aa I was washing, I· beard Newt .Lee.rmg the ,b.ell Qn tlie '.clMk when · 

· · .. . · :..,.· ~e -.registerecl his ~first punch ,fp:i; ~he nig~t, ." an~ ~e w.e~t down· sta.irs . t<»: t~e . ~ ... . .... 
- · '. front door· to await my ,departure. · After washmg, I went down sta1rs,-I put ~ .. · 

' . . . n m hat nd c J!ct_:_got .my hat and top ·coat .and went down . stairs tO the -0· . ; · .. ·-; .. i.ront ·door. . As I _opened the· front . door, I· SJl.W . oqtside ·on the ·street·, op the -
· ". ' . .. :.: .. . ,.'- ·' · street -sid~ ol the door; · N~:Wt Lee i~ · conversation '!"itn. Mr. J.M. Gantt, a m~n 

· - that I bad let go from the office two weeks prev1ous..--The.y.-seemed- to-be-tii1----"-'---'----'---" 
' discussio;n, an.d N~wt Lee told me th8,t -M.r: .Gantt wanted to go bac~ ~P into · . • · 

,;......,-'"'--'-..-.:,......C,__,,___.the~.factory, a~.d. he. had refused'him admiss1on~)ecause- h1s instructlons -wer~ .. - .­
" ' .- foi,- no one to go back into the factory a·i!ter he we.nt. ·o.ut, unless he got con- .. _ 

. . trary instJ,11ctions ~rom · Mr. ·Darley 01'. !Jiy$elf. "I spok~· 'to ~ ... !-..Gitntt, and :. · .. . 
· aaked him "'.'hat he want~d; he said .. h& had· a c.ouple of7 pail!S _of .11hoes, .·black 

. . . . ·-· - - ... . - .. . .,. 

\ 
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pair .and · t~n pair, in the. shipping room. t told Newt Lee it would. be alright to 
pliss Gantt in, and Gantt went in, Newt ~Lee "Closed the. door,·locking i t after . 
him,-1 heard the· bolt turn in the door. I then walked up_Foreyth Street io · 

;:::::;:::::::::::::::~~=~abama; df.S\lu_ Ahibamirtofirmm~t1'60' , w ere ·· poe edt he--two-tettere,------- -.,..,-
. one to my uncle, Mr. M. Frank and one to Mr. Pappenheimer, a few minutes 

~ after ~ix, .an<Lcontiµued 'on my way down to Jacobs' Whitehall and Alabama. 
Street store, where I went in and· ·got a drink at the soda fount, and bought 
my 'Yife a box of candy. I · then caught th~J!e.orgia . ~v~nue ca_r and arrived 

· home. a.bout. 6. :,25. I eat looking at the-paper- until about 6 :30 when I :Called 
uP-at the factory 'to find out · if Mr. Qantt had· left.· I called up at 6 :ao· be­
came I -expected Newt Lee would be punclting_ the clock· on the half hour and . ..:....._ 

. would b.e near enough . to- the telepli6n~t<>4lear it and ·answer it" at that tim:e. - -·- . 
-~---·~· 1 couldn1-t get Newt Lee then, ~o I eat in the h11ll .reading until seven o'clock, 

-~wlien r~gain called the ·r!lctory, this time i: was successful 'in._getting NeWt 
~-~---~· ... ,~d-askeci-him-if--.l\IP.-Gantt-had-gone-aga-in,he-eay&~sA-J-ask-e,-.·---------

~verytbiilg else was-airi-gh ; 1 was, an en ung up. · ea · -
down an :na<r supper, 'TI after BlJpper, I phoned over to my brother-in.:10,. 

~--~M~r~Ursenbaclc; to find out i.f he \vould be ·at home that evening, I desired. to 
call pn him, but h·e said.he had another engagement sc:> I decided to stay ·home, 

· · and. I did s~ay home reading either a newsp~p~r or the Me~ropolitan maga:-·. · 
zine that J;ligbt. -_About eight 0'9lock i saw Minola pan out on her.way hOme . 

. 'That eveni.ng,:my parents in law, Mr. and Mrs. Emil Selig, h·ad 'company, and . 
· aniong those present were Mr. · and Mrs. Morrie Goldsteiii, Mr. and ·Mrs. ';M 
Maraue, :Mrs." A. E. Marcus a_nd . Mrs. Ike Strau8s; Mr. Ike Strause came in • - -, 

. much later, something after fen o'clock, I believe. rsat reading in the hall 
' " . .. . - ·-:. --until· about'"i(quarter to en; -wlien Bighted the gas water heater .preparato~y . 

· ·:to taking a bath, Jl,Dd tnen continued reading in tJle hall ; at 10 :30-l turned out 
-_ - ' · the gas, went into the dining_ roo.m, bade them ltil good night; and went up.- · 

· stairs to take my bath, a fe~ minutes_later, ~ny wife followed me ·upstairs. 
==-;~'""- _ _ _ _ ·. . · · . (Here . the j\1ry ·took a: r9cess;f-

·• I beiieve -I '~as ·taking a bath when. yGu w~nt out,-on Saturday · night; 
·. '· · and after finishi~g-my bat}l, I laid out. my linen to :be · U~E)d nbxt day, ·my wife /. 

!·_ 
' . 

__ . ·changed the butt.one from. my old shirt to th·e eh·irt I was t1> wear· tne follow- _ _ 
, ing morning,. and· I -r~tired .about-eleven o 'cl~ck. The next day, ·Sunday, April-
27th,· I . was· awakened at sometbin~fore seven o'clock, by 'the . telephone 

- --.ringing.' · i got out oLb.ed,-;wil.s . tight asleep, it a waked __ me,-but - ~ got ou~ 
. of ·bed, ·put on a bath robe ~nd weht down to answer the telephon.e, · and · a 

f~-' . m.!ln's. voice ·spoke to.· me-0.ver the phOne· and said-I ·afterwards fo'iind out 
__ ·: _._ ·._this man that spoke to. m·e . was .City Detective St!lrnes-.said. "Is this Mr. 
· : · 'Frank,eu .. . erintendent of tJ:i~_National Pen·cil 'Company.t" I_ say~ -"Yes · sir ·" · • . _ 

he .. ~ayil, ."I w.ant you ' to come doym . to . the- f11ctory· right away/'-'c-'l '-s..:,.Q.~y ...... s/-, ==-. ~.........:..__::::...:__::....o.;:._--==i 
............ ~. --4-~ -Whai-'s:..:ihe...:troubl~, "'hae-the.re-been_:a-f}re-Y-'-' - He- say§i-!tNo, -a- tragedy, :I · · ·" ... ...,-. -. -· .-. -..,-. 

" . \ •.. .. . . . 
· :want you ·to· ·come down right- away;" -!"says; -.•'.All .. right," .'he_ says, "I'll . ·_ · - -. · __ 

: .. ·",.:send an - a~tomOntlQl~ ~or "you,'' .I says, , 1&ll right,,_,- and. hung Up and :Wen.t· up~ " . . -= . -•--
.. : · ' -. ·stairs to· ~reee.-: .. I Wl!-_S i11 · the ·-.m.idet,_Df.:<,lressi~g to go with the~peQple Who· · · . · · 

~ ~ . . .... . . . . . . : . . ' . ~ . . . ---: . . . . . . . . . . 
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.. . ·-sh~~-9.-0me fo11 me ·in. the: automobile, -when the automobile di-ove UJJ,, the. beti 
rq and m~ wife went down stairs to answer the dooi:. She. bad on,-:-just 
'bad a night dress · with a rob~ over it. I -followed my wife-I wasn!t com: 

1--...:..,..--'--r--~-~pietety--linsitedat-'-th:at time,= dtdn 't have my trousers or shirt on, and as C..........-----~ 
soon. as· I could get together,-get my trousers and ·shirt on,-I went down 
st~s-follo.we~ my " \yif~ in a minu~e or two .... i. as~ed them what the-trouble 
was, and the man who I afterwards found out was detective Black, hung his -
head and didn't say anything. Now; .at this point, . *es(f two witnesses, Mr . 

. "Rogers and Mr. Black -differ with me on tlie place where tlie_- convers~tion -
oc~urred,-I say, to the best ·Qf my recollection, it. occurred right there in tqe .. . 
house in front 0£ mY w~e; they s~y it occur).'ed just as I ·left the holise in" . 

--~----. ---. · the-:-a?tomobile,-but:inrtlm~frit-Inay;-this-- is . e . <_ionv-ersa 10~4- · ?Y ~ e . . ·' : me did I know Mary Phagan, and 1 told ·-them I -didn't, they· then· said to me, 
didn"t 8.. "littie giri with 1ong· _hair 1i_an~ing dowllher-back=:come..-u1>-- to --you...--"'7---­

;;.------.----:----oftlee-y.esterd&y;-sometime-fo~m'--m~ittle-girl-who works mt e 1p-

• -- t' 

.. 

ping· plantf .,,- I says1 "Yes, I do rem~mber suc}l a girl coming up to my - ·-· 
·office, that worked ~n· the tipping room, but I dj.dll't know her -name was 'MarY. 

. ·- Phag\n~ . ' -~~ell, we ·,vant you to come · ~own right. away ~ith us to .the · 
.. factory;" and I ·fhiished ·dressing, and as they had said .they would- bring . . 

me right .. away ·back, ·I - didn't-have ~ breakfast, but went right <>n with them . 
in the automobile; made the t11ip to· the undertaking establishment.-very quick- . 

. ly-I -mean, .they_ made the tr"ip down tow~ very quickly, and stopped at the 
corner ·of Mitchell an«;! Pryor ·Streets, told me they were going to . take me 
.to the undertaker's. first, that 'they wanted me to, see the _ body a:t;1.d se-e ji I 

. ' . coUld identify. the little girl. !Went witl~ them to "the undertaking-'estab.lish-
. meht, and one of the tw.o ~en asked. -the atie.ndant to shQW us the . way into 

where the body ·was, and the attendant went down a ·lon·g,- dark passage'Yay~ · , 
with. Mr. -R-ogers following, then. I came, and Black brought up · the .rear·; we 

- .walked down tliis.long passageway ·unti~ we got' to a place that was.apparently. 
,' the doorTto a small rciom,-very..,dark in ther~~ the attendant went in and sud• , 

.. denly switched. on- the electric light, and · I- saw .._ the· _body ·of the littla girl. 
Mr,_ Rogers w~lked. in the room and stood· -to my ·right, .. inside of t}le room, I 
-stood right . in the door, leaning up against th~ right facing "of th~ do-or, and-

. - M:c. Black W&$ to the left, leaning o~ t~e left facing, but a littfo to PlY re'ar, 
·- and ihe· at.~endit'nt, whose n~me . I have sin:ce learned was Mr. ~eesling, was 

· -on the opposite ·side · ·of. .. the little cooling table -to where . I stood-bi . other 
~ wor.ds, the ta:ble . wa,s l>:etween "him and-me; he removed the sheet. which was 

'covering- the body,·.and took ,theiiead- inhis bandB; iurned it ov~r'; · put ' his 
finger . .ex:Q,ctly.-where the wound in . the_left~ side .of the head was located,- .:. 

.- -· 

• 

ut his finger. rig}\t ~n it; ~ noticed .t~e hand« .and arms of · the little i?l ·were . . 
-------=--~very dirty,-blue. ~d ·ground Wi~h dir~ and oind?rs!~\l~e nost:_~\~ and mou·th _:___· _. 2-~, 
-·.-~~-""------,-the ,. mouth- bemg .-open...-nostrlls and ·mouth Just -.(u].I . of saw-dust. and ... · _. . · ·' 

: .. · ~ · · · ~ · swolleii, and . there was :a. deep sCrat.~r ·'the le~t ~Ye· on ·the forehead-r·: :· ... ·. ·· · · .---.:____: 
.-.. ,. :. ~ " -. ab'o.u the ne.ck·the~ ~~&· twine,-a· piece of cord. s'hnilar to that whfoh is ' ~se~ " . . ' . _, 
. '. ·. : _ at . the · P,encil tl.actory. •aD;d · als9 a .. Pie~e . of ~_bite -1'.Y'.· · . . A,f~er .l~ok~g . at the _. 

• • • • • ' • • ' • •• • • • h • 

t----~-~--,-.....,--~· i .. , ~ 
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. . .. body,, J identified. tJiat_ little girl as t))e one-tlijit-:Daa be.en . · p-sJrort~ft.er·--· --'-----'-'---~­
. ·noan ·the day previous and g~t he~·moner from.me. ·We ·then ieft ~e . under- · 

taking establishment, got· in the automobile and rode over to ihe pencil fac-
. · • . tory. ·Just as we arrived opposite the: pencil. factory, I saw Mr. Darley going 

. ··. in.to the front door of the. penoiL ·factory1 with another man, whose name 
. ·1 didn.'t .knowi we went ·up to the 'second floor, the office ·fioor,. I ·went into -­

the inner office, hung-up my hat, and' in the inner office I saw :tile night watch­
man, Newt Lee, in the cust ody of an officer; who I think was. detectiv.e Starnes, 
-the man. who -'.had phoned me. · I then uniocked the safe · and took out the 

. .. pay~roll book. and. found .that it ·was true that a .littl~ gir1 by the name' of 
· ·.· · . ·. Mary Phagan did work in the metal plant, and thii.t.she was ·due to draw $1.20, 

----~-' __ .. --""...._pay~roll b_ook sbQ..wed tha~d . as-th : detectiv.e had... told me ·that some-
one had identified the body Q.f .that little girl as that of Mary Phagan, there 

. could be no. 'question buLwhat-ibwas-oll'e-8ncLthe.....same girl The dete.-::-::-· ~--------­
-'---~=----~.'-.--'--"· ~"Old=me=toon=tbey=wa:nteli-to=take=me=dm~t=alld=ShoW=mR>_------­

. exactly 'where _t}fe·"girI'so ody was_fomid, · an~· the ()t~er p~r~p~ernalia that - . 
· they found strewed about; and X weJ'.!t to the elevator box,-the a.witch· box, 

.. · s~ tliat I could turn on the current, and found it open. . In reference. to that · -
switch box h:ing open . or shu~it was .open on that oc~asion, however,-I·­
·bad given instructions to the factory to ·keep it open, and tbo~e instructions 
w~~e giyen becaus~ a meiµber of the fire department had. ·gone through all . 

·· ... ,.. . .. .. tha£ part' of ·the city, and the National Pencil ·Company, amqng other&, ati.d 
. : . ' . . . . told us ~hat 11:0 switch. box, no box i~ whi~h an electric s~itch was situated, 

·could be locked u~ but had· to be open, so it-could be easily accessible in cas_e _ --· 
· · · ........ -· · ~of fire; so . they · wouldn't ~un any risk of . electrocuting anybody, 9r if they -:--
. - _- wantec:l,19_.mo"~~-qw~kly, they could throw it o~ a¥d s~art t~e elevator;.....:you 

... -

_ .. ___ . 

couldn't lock it up, the firemen wouldn't know wh~re the key-was. ·However, 
I turned o~ the-switch, started the motor, which runs the el.ev:ator, going, 
then Mr. Darley and a half dozen _mor.e of us and the detectives got on the 
elevator; I got on the elevator and I start_ed io pull th~ r<!J>e-to. start the ele­
vator to 'going, and:' it s"ee.med to be· caught, and _I couldn't mov~ it, I couldn't 

· move-it with a. ~traight pull, and· couldn't get it loose, so I .juml?ed out, we all 
e. . got of!,. and I asked .Mr .. Darlel to try his hand,-....he 's .a gref!.t deal larger man 

;· and a g:i;eat . deal stronger man than I was-so he was successful hi getting 
. . . 'it" loose-it seemed ' like the chi'~n " ·;which r.uns down in the . ·basement' .had 

.......,:__ _. ~ · slipped a cog :and gotten out of gear and needed somebody to force it b~ck; . · · 
---·· . . however, Mr. Darley was SUC'Cessful ill· getting it loose, and it started up . and 

. . · ·.'. · I :got on and the· detc;ictives g·ot on .and- I caug.ht hold-of the rope" and it worked . 
· - . -.-alright. _ ~. · .'. " · ".. - : · .. . · · ·. -_ · · · - . - - . -'. 

.....,- - - - - -' 

. .. 
....... 

.- ':.,- .· 

. . : . ·-. -the-ba~~hcylftlcerB-showed...Us,iu8Lal.Wut.....wbei;e....the body ·wa.._,_. ~....o----'-----
. . -•~-.-.found,_just bey,ond .the partitfo~ . of .:the Clark Woodenware Co~pany, a~d in · 
' . . : . ·, . behind the door to ·the dust"bin, "they showed'_us .. where they found the':bat and , . 

' ._: · '.s~-ipper ·on .the trash. plle, and they showed µs _where th&ili~ck ·'doo11, wh.e:re, th.a-, . .. . '. . . . 
. .dOOJ.1 Jo°. the .. rearwas'\Openeq; about, 18 .in_ches,:'- ·,A~er· .lo,o~ing. ab.out the bue~ .. :, . - .. ";. · " , :~ 
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1 

', ! ; • 
0 

• , •' • ti 
1

' • • • " , 
1 

. ',.I 

.. 
. . . .. 



·.· 

.. "' .· 
. .. 

. - .. 
/f/I ' - ... 

'• . 't \ ' 
~,-----"'--·----- .·. 

. . \ 

ment, we all went back upstair8 and Mr~ Darley and myself got .soD;le cords 
· .. and some nails and a hammer and went down the basement again to fock up 

. . the· back do~r, . so that we could s.eal the fa~tory from the back arid ~obody . 
• would enter. After returning. upstairs,_ Mr.-Darley and-m~-self- accompaniea 

Chief Lanford on a .tour ·of inspection through the three upper floors 'of the 
f~cto)'.'y, to the. 1econd floor, to the-third floor and to the fourth floor, ·.we looked' 

· into each· bin,: and each partition, and· each dressing r.oom and each work 
. ro9ril, and even passed through the metal roon:i and looked into that ve~y 
.. dressing room: that .has figured so prominently in this trial, :and neither Mr. 

Darley nor myself .noticed an)'thing P.eculiar on ~hat. floor, nor did Sergeant 
La~ord~ Chief o~..the-.Atlanta detec.tl~..esi.._notice_anything '_ pec'uliar· :W.:C..:the .... ~-- -'-----'-'---' 

------~=--t0,~tum-ed-W-t e fron' an 00 OU . ofi e c :<rclrtlie sip on wh1c4 Newt ee · 
had punched the ·ev.ening previous, and 'that clock slip, QLcourse, was dated 

-------.-A~rfr2'8th· ·-(Defen an '& Exhibit 1) .. .. · 

I removed the clock . slip froni the clock, and ,in_ the center of the sheet, . 
between the top ~nd . bottom, I r·emeinber the No. 133 and the number 134, I 
wrote on it "Taken out 8 :26 A. M." (Defendant's- Exhibit ·1),· and two lin~s . 
under it,_ with · a: casual look . at tJ\at··"t!llip, . you can't see it.. . · , .. · · 

. I can see it. ·When 'look.big ~a~ually at that slip .(Defendant~$. Exhibit 1), 
-~---:. · .. · '· . YOU - ~ee ·~othing; and · oy...tbu~y,--thi1uheet _ as _been id~ntified, it is the .one ' 

- to ·which reference has been made so m·any times, · and _if you will_loo~ at it~ 
·you wiIJ see the date, April 28th, · which we put on there on -t-he evening :of · · 
~aturday, ApriJ 26th, but if you will look ·opposite those numbers.133 and-134 . · . · 

·.(Defendant's Exhibit 1), and' 19qk very carefully, ·you can "see where there - - I 
ha!J been er!UJed from it .wha.t.I put on there that mor,.ping in pen~il to identify . · 
it, the words "taken out 8-26," and two lines, which- it seems has. been · · ·_ . --- . \ 

. " erased,. but '°they co~erase it carefully enough, they even .. erased some of _ · - _. 
· Jhe printed line which runs across that sneet. This is the s,heet that I tj>ok out· 

" ' . ., on Sunday morning, a.ild looked-at:-the .. clock to-notice what time i~,---anrt-----~ 
·. ·. I laid .it up a.gajnst .the dial of the. clock, the glass face of the clock,· and·wrote 

.. · gown ·.there , the time which the clock then registered. I iol~ . then1 the shee~ ·· · 
'· ·. ---: \v~ just like you see it there, and . .!. brought it· to the office and Chief .I.iaiifor.d .. _ 

-:-: .. -- -. - -: - pilfit .in his pock~t; I then wentJnto the oftlce and .got. another time sl.ip and 
· · :.- ·. . . d~t;d -it ·April 28th, simil!lr to. this one which was ta.ken out, and whfoh one 

'. :·it. Would r~place, ~nd _r put ii back into the time ·Clock to be Used by t}).e ·night 
watchman tha.t ·night and by the }\elp when ·they .came tO· worlc ·on Mo~day 
mornhig . . ~fter ta~g thi~ . slip out~ M~. Darl~y and my~elf ¢a8~ IOo)teci 
~ver the sbp · to · see if there were any errors, and we noticed o:ver tli.m:..e h · 

. . . ·no 11uccessive numbers. had been s ppe , t at 1s1 the numbers 9n that slip are . .. . . 

••• 

•• · ,.".: .. :, ,> ·:,:-.'ar1ianged · successi:vely,, ·one, ,tw:o,. and three, and the time."a.longsjde. of each 
.. ,;-. · ··.; ;· ' ·: ·. one; and there · was 'no. 'single ·line skipped; but w-e didn·'t notice 'the ·actu~a-...,_. 

. • . 

: .' · '. -· · time shown· by t~e punch, . w~ onl}' ·noticed-that ·th0 successive punches . were · .. · '." ·. : .. 
, . ·: ·.. ···· niade ·a.t the .time which the pun~hes themselves. sh~:wed', · :Afte~ _putting ·a .n~w 
(• ' ! • .. ~ .. • ' • ' 1' • • ~· ~ ' ' ~' • • • • • • • ' ' • • \ • ' • ·'• • • • ' ; ' : :- I : 

# • " : ' . . '. 
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.. -sljp in the clock, we a~l went -:out . of the. factory·-and w ent downsta4',s and 
·· locked .the door, and I was going. to go down to the office, to . police· head-

quarters, because .the· officers said they wanted to show me some notes which 
. they said. we~e found near •the body and' the padlock and . stapfo which they 
. snowed .me had b~en withdrawn, and Which they said had been taken down 
· to th~ 'station the ·first time· they .had Newt L.ee down· there. --· · 

Now; gentlemen,- I have h~itrd a great· deal, and so have . you; in: this trial, 
about nervousness, . about ho.w nel!-vous I-:wn that morning. . Gentlemen, I · 

. ·was nervous, I was .very nervOUf!,.J '!aS complet..ely. unstrung, 1 wm ·admit it; 
4m~ine ·awakened oui of my . sound, sleep, and a mor?ing run down in t~e . 
. cool of th.e morning in automol>iie driven at to _ SP-eed without . any food 

· __ · or break.fast, rushing into a dark passageway, coming into · a darkened riio.U: 
·-_ and then· s~ddenly an. electric light' flashed on1 and 'to see the . sight that was 

._,__...;.::;.::..:.::. _ _ __ ~.PresentecLby_ thaLpJl.QL!' tl child um it was a sight that' was enough to 
... drive a . man to distraction· that was a si ht-th~voulcl-luwe-made-a-:--stone------· 

meltntml then it is suspi,cio~s, because a man who-is ordinary flesh and blood 
should show signs.'of nervousness . . Just" imagine that little girl; in the first . · 
blush of young W()manhood, had had· her· life BO Crl,le~ly snuffed out, might a 
man not be nervous who looked at !JUCh a sight Y Qf course I . wa.ir ~ervouit; ·any 
maii would be ttervous if he was a man, :we }Vent with the officers iµ the 
automobile, Mr. Rogers was at the d·riving wh~el, and 

0

Mr. D~rley sat ~ext 
to ~im. I sat on Mr. Darley.'s lap, and in the back was Newt Lee and two· 
officers. We rode to headquarters very quickly and on arrival there Mr. ...,. 
Darley aµd ·1 . went up . to Chief Lanford 's office where -I sat and talked and 

. - answered . eyery one -of their questio~s freely and fr.ankly, and . discussed . the . 
...:,,... . matter in general with them; trying_ to aid .. and .to help them in any way that 

-~.-.-~--I-could. I t seemed that, that morning the notes were n~t readily access.Ible, 
·or for some othe'r reason I didn't get to see them, so I told them on leaving 
. there that ! I would come -back _that aftemoon, . which I ultimately did; 'after 

~--.staying theJ'e a few minutes; l\t:r. Darley and1Dyselt1e~1 : and inasmuch as Mr. · 
~barley hadn't .seen the body :of the · little. girl, we ·went over-to-_ Bloom.field's 

· . · -:~.~n Pryor Street and Mitchell, and when .we werit into .the establishment,· th~y · ... -.-
.".: "· : told us·s.omebody Wfls .busy with the ·body.at that time and we couran....ee.it;· · 

: ·: · ·and we ~tarted . to leave; when we met a ce~ain par.ty with whom we made ar- ... 
rangements- to watch th~ .building1becaus~ ''Newt Lee was fn ,custody ·at that - · "· ·· 

- tinie. ·)Jr. Darley and I · then went over to Montag ·Brothers to see jf a:ny of 
. _ . .the ;Montags ·had ·c~me- d~wp~ow~ that mol'ning, we arrived at their place, 

_,and · found the ·same was locked, and -':that -nobody was down there. We . . . 
. - . " ~- - .-

~- - walked from Montag's place on Nelson Street down to Mitchell. and Forsyth .. _.: . · · · · .. 
'-===='=='=""'··-""· .,.,· .~treeu;.where-l-bade-Mr.Darley-good-bye and--14v.alk~.d-40WJi...Mitchen-St.i::e.e.: +--. ---'--.-· - ..,C...--

. '. ' " . to Pryor, where I caught a GeorgJ~ A -yenue •()ar and rode to tile house of ·Mr.. . I .. 

\ . ~ " ':-.' ".'. '. .· S,ig Montag, ow· . Gener~i Ma:n~ger, cornei,.of G~an~ .Pj-y~r Streets, • and .. · 
. . .' called on· Mr .. ~ontag an'd discqssed with him . at ' length ·&Ut! in d~tail w~at l 

,
1 h~q seen :th~t morning . apd :Wha~ .the ,de~tictiv.es ~~ t9 .~f:l.Y· ' A~er Jl.lY.' ~onvetl. - . . . 

,: • , ~· 11 ' ~ t•·:,-• • o • .; j •.-..'· • , . - • • • ~·"" •:: ·" 11 I ,. j'.' • 
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~--· -. - :·--.sation With him, I returned to--my...-homtni.t· ~bout·a•quarter to even, my home 
· . · · · . ... '.was' 68. E·. 'Georgia ~venue i I washed up ·and had my b~ fast in. compaey 

· ... , ... ··; ':. ,. . wjth my :w~fe, in the dinjng room, and w~ile I was .eftt'g breakfast, I told my 
. · wife of the experience I · had h.ad that morning. A er I finished my break-

.fast, I ~eftthe house 1tnd_·went around to ·the ho e of Mr. Wolfsheimer, and _ 
_ :at Mrs. Wolfsheimel''s house we foupd' qui a company ·of people, and . 
the con~rsation- turned largely on· what I h seen that morning; also, among 

. .. those- who were present;_ .\vere Mr~. L. . .Cohe?; .Mrs. M. ·G. Michael, Mrs . 
.Carl Wolfsheimer, . Julian Michael, .P · ip Michael, Miss Helen Michael, Miss 

·.· Yirgini,a Silverman,· };fiss .May Lo "iebman, ·Julian Loe~ and. Herman Loeb. 
· . ·After staying therQ a.bout ·an I~ r with my wife, I went in her ·company to 

. ~ · .. visit -the home of my broth i4n-law· ·A. E.- Marcus, whose home is :situated 
·. -on Wa~hington Street o os~te the Orphans' Home;. on our a.rri~althere, 

. .the nurse Lu~y told u that no one was .. at . home, and we could .find: them·_· 
-"'-'C-.---'--'---'-'-----·__,,r"'-"~=b=a.b= .. 1=<1 . ..A..the_bo of_ Mrs.----Yl's.enbach; we·· then· went over to the U~en~ 
--------.-naeh-hous~ d on the-corner . of Washington and- Put mm 

· Streets,'a.~<l-.vi · ed at tha t place, and .. ~aw~r: and Mrs. A. E. Marcus, Mr. a.nd · 

.· -·Mrs. · Chas. . rsenbMh, Harold Marcus, Mt<". aµd Mrs. Ben·' Wiseberg. · Of 
cour~.e, t conver~aiion_ was about the little girl 'that lia4 been kil~ed_ in th'e 
Penci actory b!lsement that morni~g, of which they had heard, and-we dis-_ 
c d it generally, although it was at 'tliat time as.· mµch a uzzle to 1~e as it ·: 

as apparently to ·ev~rbody else. After staying here until .about one .o 'cloc~ . -
or a litt~ · a.fter, I returned with illy wife to my home at 68 E. Georgia Avenue, . 

·.where we \took our lunch together-with my parents-in-law, with Minola Mc­
.. Knight serving. Alter dinnet, re~d a little while, and fina;lly caught the - ~- . ... - .· . . . . ,, · . . . . 

:. - .--~ ·-- - · t"e~ minutes of three Georgia-Avenue \.)al'. going down tO"wn. I got off at the 
.. ·-· - corner. of Pryor and Mitchell Streets, and went into the undertaker Bloom-

.· . , - .- . ~field's, where I sa~ a large cr~wd C?f people nearby on the qutsjde; ~n elit'e~i~g 
. · . . · ·- · I found quite a number of people ·who were working at the Pencil Factory; 
:... .. - · ~ ~. -· among. whom were Mr. Schiff, Herbert Schiff, .N. V. Darley, ·Wade Campbell, 

. :· Alonzo Mann, Mr: . Stelker,-and---MP.--Zyg~att~d-wiih them a few .min- ---
. utes, ·and I . noticed_tl111:t the : people· who were going in lo see . the body wt!r.e. 

_· Sall mg lll . me and· .. moving in, ·and that others from the factory were going . 

. • "\ 

· : ·1n and I thought · I ·would go · in too and pay my respects,. and I went and stood . · . .. · 
. : . . .• __ · - in' line, au'd went int~ the room again and staid a few: minute~ in the mortuary . : 

. . . _· __ .·chamber'; . the little girl . had beeii cleaned up, her. hair .. n·ad . all been cleanec1 

•.. _ . 

. . ---;-_ .. -:- . . and 'smoothed out, and-there was· a riic'e white sheet over the rest of her body.· . 
·: .. , :. -.. · · ·~·~ 1 . returned to the .-front of the · undertaking-estabii'shmelit,.-and-stoud~·~!I- ..... --.~. -~--~--

. - . . .:..___:. :. : r:. ting with Herbert Schiff and Mr. Darley until the party with whom we had. 
:-· -. --y~-;-:-·~-made -11irrangements came up, and.._ we· gave- them · the ··keys ~ttr.in;strtf-ctions 
·· .. . .. · . , :-to-W-ltchi~~he pl.ant--that--nigh~~arley. and Mr:---lfohitf-ami~~----'--

~ . , : .. :.my,self ,went do:wn to police headquarters. a:nd went up into -~e~ Tuanfol'd 's< . . 
,. · , · · · · "· : oftlce, •and the three of us1 stood talking there, ans:wering ·all. sorts of ·ques-. · -

· · )ions' th~i not on.ly chief' !Janford~ but the other~ d~t~ctives would !!hoot ilt us, .1 • ' 

· ., ': -.~ :·:· and :~nalJy Mr. p~~~~Y 'sft:id .he ~~~ld _' like to 'talk tQ ~e~ .~e.~; ~.~ep ~a . went ·; ·_. 
I •, _! ' : ii • 1:-- ~ ,. . ·;:. ~ ... ..:• . ... \ 
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· into. another ro~m; and I ;;re~ume . they . brought Newt Lee up from the 'cell, so 
. he ·could talk to him. · After Newt Lee . was gone, the detectives showed us 
the tw~ notes !1-nd ·the pad .back with still a few ·un~sed le~ves to it, and the 

-----'pencil ·that they claimedt hey had found down in tfle basement near the body. 
Of course;· Mr. Schiff and myself looked at those notes and tried. to decipher • 

. them, ·but they were written exceedingly . dim, and --were verr rambling ·and 
incoherent, and neither of us could recognize the handwriting, nor get · any 
sense out of ·them at all. One of these notes (State's Exhibit Y) was written 
-on a sheet o·f p.encil pad paper, "the same kind as that of this sheet which still-
reinained on t11e pad back_j the other tSfate's ' Exh~bit Z) was written on a 
sheet of yell.ow paper,_ apparent!')' a yellow sheet from the regulation order 

-,._-. p.;_a_d- or order book of 'the National Pe.nciJCoiifpariy; this sheet was a yellow 
· sheet .with black ruling on it,. and cer.tain black printing at the top. These 

.. 

... 

a;;_,,;;=-,--===~·-- -a"""l'~e"--:"'th~e"-"-t',_,_v-><-o-=noJ.filL.( State_'s Exhibit .Y and..Z.)_(indicating_pap.ers,_J--....:.a..Ji.-WlU;....LUJOJ...-~=~--"----­
of these notes where it showed tlie series and date, and you can see· it has - - £)--­

either _been 'vorn • out or rubbed out (Defendant's Exhibit Z), but the . date 

-J.··· · 

-: 

·L 

,, . 

.. : . _ .... 

Was originally OJ;,! there, and ·down belownere is _the s_erial nUJDber; ·now, both . 
·of ~hose. notes were written as thottgh they 4had. been ·written through a piece 
·of carbon pape;r and the -<\Ate said Jan . . 8th, 1911; .the order · number is· so. · 
faint or erase~ here that I · can't even see what that is, but there · is no trace . 
·of a date on this one at i.ill, but it was there distinctly visible when -Mr . 

_ Schiff· and myself fook,ed at it. ·we. continued answering any questions th~t 
· · the detectives wished . to put to us looking to a possible solution of the mys-

. . tery, when Mr. Dar ey came in and said if they-didn't. want him any further, 
· he would go off, that lie had an appointm_ent.· A few .minutes thereafter, Mr. 

Schiff and myself left police headquarters, and went down Decatur· Street to 
· -Peacbtree Street, and down Peachtr<?e Street over the· viaduct to !aco~s' Ala- ' 

bama and Whitehall St. store, and ·wen!_in, .and each of Us.had a drink, and I 
. bought a..cigar for each of us ·at the cigar counter. Mr. Sch1fniad an appoint­

'ment-:to-meet-some friembrQf h.is a.U.h.e Union De ot that afternoon and it was 
a Ji.ttre too early, so we-took a walk around by the :Pencil -Factory, w11lking up 
Alabama_ to ·Forsyth Street and down Fo.rsyth Street on ~he ·side opposite 

· from the factory, to the corner ·of Hunter and FE>rsyth, where· we noticed ". the ·....:... . 
~ morbid crowd . that had collected out iit; fron of the factory; we ·stood there -- . 

about a minute -or tw..o and then .cori,tinued walking, and .. then went up East -
. ~·Hunter Street back to· Whitehall Street, and back Whitehall to the corner of 

. Whitehall and Alabama, :wllere Mr: Schiff waited until I caug4t an Alabama 
.. · . Street or Georgia A venue car and returned to my hon:ie. I return~d to my home 

· .about a ql,larter to four, and found there was no one in, as: my wife had told 

.. 

. .. 

·. 

----....,..,...__,,..---,.,e·"'t""h .... a,..t ...;if......,11h ... e......,...wam't at · 110nre;-shnould-probably-b~tthe--residence;,f-M .... ~· ~-~· -~---­

··.' 

Ersenberg, I proceeded over--there, coming up Wa~hington StJ;'eet . in the .·di- · · < , 
rection of the Orphans·,. Hom·e, .and on Washington S~reet, between Georgia. ! 
Aveniie·and the -next street down, w~i'ch I bel~~v~ is Bass street, I met· Arthur . · .· '. 

' Haas and Ed Montag and ·Marcus · Loeb, who stopped me and asked about · · . · · .... 
. ·. :tb\nrs. tbey had heard about 'the. littl~. girl being . deaQ. in the Pencil l:l'acto.rY, . · · . ·. · . · 

, , ,, I ' ' II:• ' ;, .• •• , . ' • •. ,,. • -L;._ ' I . •. · '-'- -• . 4
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. a,nd I stopped ~d.....:d-iscueeed it with them, and I was about to leave them 

. · -- ___ :_"-·-. When Henry Bauer ca.me along in his 11.11tomobile and· stoppe~ where I was 
: · . an'Ci he asked me what .I 'knew abo~t it, and I ha~ to stop. and. talk ·with him; 

· and I ~nally got·loose fi::om· him and went over to the home of· Mr. Urienbach 
.on the corner of PulJiam and Washington Terrace, and :when I arrived. there, 

.· 

· I found· Mr. and Mrs. a; D. ·¥~rcus, Mr. and Mrs. Charlie Ursenbach, and my 
wife, and a litt e lat~r Mr. and Mrs. Sig Selig came in. Here again the sub~ ·• 
ject of conver.eation .was what I had- seen that morning and what the detec-

. .. tives had · told me, and what I had . told them and how the· lit.tie girl iooked, 
and all about it, as far as I knew. . I staid there until about 5 o'clock,' when 
Mr: Ike Haas, the Vice-Pr~sident of the Pencil Factory, telephoned me to 
come over to ·his hoµse, and I th,ereupon went . over there, and on arriving . 

_ at ~r. Haas' home, which is situated on Washington Street right across the · 
- · -'--:-~ way · fl,'om the Orphans' HOme, I talked to him about what I had seen that· . 
· ·morning, and what ·I°could.deduce from the facts that were known and- ~what 

• 
: ·: .. 

the detectives·· ·h id t re· .until about 6 o 'clMk. · On arnv-=-a..-----~-
, __ ,....,....::..:..:....-~---· at-Mr:-Ha-as ', there his-;"wife, Mis~Haas;-his-son-Edgal'-Haa , and-a - . - - -. -. ---

cousin of my- wife's, Montefiore Selig. My wife had ieft word with Mrs. 
:· li,ilas 'that I shoUid ·call .for -her-at the residence of Mr. Marcus, w·'=". 1""'cct-1..,,s~n~e=x;;:z-c=---~--­

'"(\v--/ . - . door, O~ just a few· dool'ntwar,.and-I-went'by-and- called-for--my wlfe -at -six 
o'clock and a few minutes before · seven my wife and· I left the residence.' of 
Mr. Marcus -and· started down Wasbillgton Str_eet towards Geor~a Avenue ~ 

. on our way .home ... On. our way·home, we· met our brother-in-law, "Mr; and 
, Mrs. Chas. Ursenbach, going _to the- house from which we had just left. · We 
reached home abo\IrE.'l!Ven-or-:a-lit-tle-after for supper. After supper, I started . 

·. · . -to read the paper; between . 8 and: 8 :30, I phoned up tQ_ my, brother-in-law; 
Alex_Marcµs, and asked him if he would ·come down,' but he said he thought 
·he would not' that evening, on account of the rain. I contit~ued reading there 

· - · · in the hall that night or evening. . T.hei;e was company at the house of my 
- --- -- - father 8.n·d· mother-in-law, alll:ong the 

4

compa.ny being the foltowillg peOple, . 
. . fo the best of my.recollection, Mr. and ·Mrs .. Paul Lippman, Mr. ·and Mrs. Ike 

... 

. · 'Strauss and Mr. and Mrs. Carl )Volfsheimer. About . .ten o'clock, ·all the com-' 
---'------ --....'8.ny'f-eft;=tmd-I -went"uplrtltj"_rswit1nny WI e anaretir00-lfb-mtr ten _'uitr'(r"'.-. - --------:-

.. . , .. . ·~ . ·. ~~ , . . · . . . - - -. 

The next morning, I arose about seven o'clock, and washed and shavei;l 
, and dre·ased, and while r wa!I· so occupied, the doQr bell ,ran~, and m~.--wi.fe- ' · 
_again .answered · the door, · a_nd there were two detectives down there, ~ne was :- .. 

.. Joh!l. Black, _and th€} other, I believe, Mr. Haslett, . Haslett ·of the city detec-· 
-=- . tives; I finished. dressing and went dowbstairs, and they told me they 'wanted .-
. me~ step down to headquarters with ·them, and I told them I woulq, but -I · · 
. - -stopped-anil-got-Jny""breakfast, finished dressing and got niy breakfast before . 

-----'...,..._~...,......~-~· · oont...with...them~- 'W.e- walked, from ·my home· on-Georgia Avenue- dow1;1.- to- ·- .- ·:" 
· Washington Street .. 4own to poli~ headquarters, walking the· whole WAY.· On · . .. 

·~ · " the -way down,, ,I . ~eked detective Haslett ·wb~t - the · trouble d<?wn a:i tlie .sta- ·" . . : 
_ - · tio;n house. was, a.pd he said: "W: ell, N ewt))ee ~as -been saY;ing something, and 

~~--.;......,----~- ~ . -=--~- - . . . ~.-

' ' 

' . 

•I • ' " 
" 

' ' . 
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.Chief Lanford ·wanted to as~ you · a 'few questions about it;" and I said: : ., . 
..... "Whatdid Newt· Lee ·say:'" "Wellr . Chief Lanford.. ~ill tell. yolf..When-you :.:. :... .. " · · ., · 

.,,_-=--~~--..... · s.~e~d~o~w~n"-"=there." Well, I didn't say anything ~ore ~o him, w:ent right along 

: .-

wlth him, and when I got down to police headquarters, I sat in one..-,,o~=!· ;!!~==~~--=- ­
·outer ofttc~ that the · dete~tives use, ··it wasn't the tofiice ·of Chief· Lanford, he 

·. hadn't come down yet; that was about between 8 and 8 :30 wh®-.1.got down 
· there:-Well, I waited around the office possibly an ho\lr, .. chatting and talking · 

to the officers that c~me in and .spoke to me, but I still didn't see anything of 
C}!ief Lanford·; and bye and bye, pr~bably after an .hour, half past nine _per-

. haps, Sig '?tjontag and Herb~rt Haas, a couple of my friends, came. up and 
,spoke to me.; I w~s ·conversing with them, and ··possibly at 10-o1olock--I-·saw .. 
)\fr. Lullier Rossercome up, and ·he-satd: ·"Hello Boys, what's- the trouble ¥-' ' . 
An<:\· Mr. Haas went up to him and spoke . to him; and 'they were talking to- -
gether and a fe~ lJlinutes later Chief ~anford, wh9 ·nad in the ·m·ean time 

. .,. - . ~ 
I ·• 

- arl'lve -&n w o-seeme o e .very usy 'n::aud ou.t""'Rnswering-tele...----- --=----
phone calls, caµte in and ·says-i "Come here,"' and· be~koned to me; and I went 

~.._,.-~-...,...:..---=.. 'witli 1m an wen 1mo1nTrut>llr,in-his-oflree,and while I was in there, to the 
best of my recollection, anybow_._iLis my impression now, that this very time 

. slip . (~ef.endll:ilt's Exhibit 1), '>ll-whi~h at that tim!_ that "taken ·out·ai 8 :26," 
- .. wit}l . the two ' lines under it, had. not been erased, was shown to me, and hi 

. . . · . loQking. over it and' studyi~glt~care.fully, ~ f~d . where t~e interval <?f an · 
. . .hour had occurred three ·tlDles durmg the tipfe that .Newt Lee bad beeh, 

fir. · .punching on. that · Saturday ni.ght; Apr\l 26th. · W'1en I had fh;st looked at it, · 

- \ :-

-I only noticed . that every line h~d a punch mark on it, but t .didn't notice 
, . what time the punch marks themselves were on; ·this time I sti1died the slip 

~arefully, it was the same slip I had taken out of the clock, Ohief Lanford 
. :or one of the officers handed it . to me at polfoe headqmirters, which .I abso­

: • Iutely identified with the writing which was. on .it, which you ·can. readily see 
··if you fook _:µow, even though it h~s be~n erased. TherHeemed. to . b~ some 
alter.cation ~bout 'Mr. Rosser coming iu. that · room, and I _heard Mr. Rosser 

. ·. 

··--

·-

say·: "I .am gohlg into -that ·room, that . man is my client;" that · was the first 
·· intimatfo:.i. i had that Mr. Rosser .was going to look after my interests . in thi~ 

matter. · ·Chief Beavers stated that he wanted .;m~ .to give him a statement; ·~~­
. · and he-said: ''Mr. Frank, will you ~ve. us a statement 7 '' ·And I said: '' Cer­
.. 'tainly, I will give them a . ~tat~~ent,-1 considered .. ~t. only right- that .any~od~ 

.".: that was at tha f.actocy . that day s hould give the· police a, statement, •telling; 
- who he had :seen, wh~re-he \lad gone and what he had done; and. I gave them 

a staiement :freely and unre.servedly, .while I had · no idea' that I · ha·d to µiake 
·a statement at that time, I did give it to - ~he v:erf-best of my ability, freely, . . 

.. _ ~-and answe);'ed every' quest~on ~at was··put to nie. Mr. February was.sitting -. _ ~---~-
. . on the opposite.' side of the Ni.hie from where I was sitting, Chief .Lanford wa~ -

sitting at a desk, and Mr. Roes.er was sittil'.lg quite·a distance away, probably · 
25. feet, .Sitting in the front ·window-.with bis back to us. After I had giV:e11 the 

· . . .statement several of the oftfoers : canie into th~ room, -among them-being-.Ohief· 
, J I . 

Bea.vers, and--C)lief.,....B~rs · and .Chie.f Lanford find ·Ml'. R.Qsser. were af>· 
.. -·--·-·-

· .. . .. , 
~ I •• • - -

·.• 
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-'-"'---- _-: p~rently ·having · a sort -Of con:versation, and ! ~overheard ·:Mr. Rosser -say: 
· "Why, it is pi:eposterous, a man who would .have done 'Such a deed .must be 

. full of. scratches and marks and bjs clothing must be bloody." J imagin.e 
Mr. Rosser ·must have had an inkling that they were suspicious of me, and as 

--:-soon as I heard-:that,I- turned ~nd jumped up· and ·showed lhem-m~y~un---..-e-r-- - - ---.---:-.­

.· 

c•othing and my top shirt and my body, I · bared it to them all that came within 
the-range of their vision, I had everythi.ng open to thein, ail_d all they had to ·do 
was to look and see it. After that, Mr. Rosser insisted that two of the. defec­
tives, Mr. Black and anoiher ·detective, accompany Mr. Htias, ·Mr. Herbert 
.Haas, and myself to my home· and- look dyer iny soiled ·clothing for the past 
week, w.Jiieh I anticipated had not been given to the wash woman. They ·com~ . 
plied with this .request;)fr. Black .and anot~er detective and Mr. Haas and my- . 

-- self , went over to· the corner of Hunter and W .ashingto~ ·Streets, and ·caught 
the Washb1gton Stre~t · car and .. rode to . Georgia A venue and . went to my 

· home, and on this car _·my mother-in-law was sitting, returning to her home 

:·· .. 

~-- -- runrtuWn:-'-O~ll~ as eorg1a venue, oun ere my w1Ie",-s------~ 

· · . granamother, . 1\frs. Cohen, and my-father-in:law; · Mr. Selig. . The detec-
. tives immediately went upstairii to iny roo·m wjth_ .. Mr. Haas and myself, -

- .. - and I ~ook th~ laundry bag- in- whi.ch .my A.oiled laundry is · always ·kept _ 
· arid emptied it out on the bed, and they ex~mined each and every article of 
~lothing that .I had discarded that past week, and I agaill opened the clothing 

. which I was :the1'. weal'.fog, and ·which was the brown suit which I have here', 
. . ~- . - · . : . . this bro-wn suit (Defendant's Exhibit 49) ·is th~ same; suit I w'ore that Satur­

day, April 26th, and Monday April 28th, and I have worn that suit continuous-
·. I\· - '__'.:--:-_ -~ ly since thel) until the 'veather became. so hot, and. it hi. neither been . pressed 

· nor cleaned since .then, and I show it_ to _you for .your examination. The· detec- . 
tives ·were · evidentl¥--Perfectly-well 'satisfl·eu-with what · they .had seen-1;here,­

- · ·.and of course they left without any f~ther remarks .with Mr; Haas. I went 

• 
· .downstairs and conversed. with iny folks down there .. until dinner till)'.e, which 
·-·was served to µiy lather-in-law and my mother-in-law and piy ~fe and my­

m...:.--~~---- _,,lf=b~nol3.-.:.~out-ihat-t~d-~lish~m~r:-camP.-----,,..----
· · . ina nd conversed with us, M-r. Wolfsheimer tellingcc-me-that-~e would take 

.. · . . 
_ · .. nie-down · town that afternoon ·in his automobile. After · dinner, I. telephoned 
·.. doWn to the office and telephoned. to Mr. Schiff, and told hiin to get Mr. Mon- . --· -
· tag's permission for the Pencil Company· to p~t on a detective, preferably a 

Pinkerton detective; to work with and assist the . city detectives in ferreting 
.·I . . out . the crime, .as an evidence ·of the . interest in. this matter. which the .National 

' · .Peiicil Company was -taking, I thought. it was no more thaµ we ought to do, 
· ·. --:-.arid I also told Mr. Schiff I -would be .downtown li~tween half past two ·and 

three. . Aftel\ conversing with . my folks, I -went around the CO_J.'ner to Mr. 
;.__.-'-----~---Wolfsheim·er's house .(lnd got in his automobile, .and he took Iiie downfowri· to .· .~ 

· ·his place .~f . business,: which is situated ~n Whitehall Street near Mitchell, 
.and i go~ out of .the aut<7mobile ._there·•and walked over to the Forsnh Street · .ft ,: .. '. ' · 
'pl~t of the Pencil Factory, a.nd o~ going i;nto ·the office, I saw the following . . . . . ..... 

.,, '.men there .:. ~r _Herbert ""'Schiff, Mr: . W:ad~ .. Campbell, Mr .. ·Darley1~Mr. Hol= · 
- . . . -

. , ;. ·· .·· 

·.' -, .... . ,. -· 

.. . \ .·, 
i 
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~oway was out in his place in the hall, and Mr.-Stelker and Mr. Quinn and MT. 
~ig,nke,. these foreman were sitting around there bel'ause we had shut ,dowQ 

. . there, . ~s they told me, due to the fact that the plant was :wholly demoralized, 
· )he girls were runµing· into ·hysterics~ they couldn't stick at their work, they · 

~"!'4"-~-:7"'""_,_..,were-crying-ancrgoing-on-over-what-had-happened-ther~-spoke-to-the:...boys1-· -----..,--,-.,..-­
- • ' who were there in the office about · the happ.enirigs of that· morning, of course, 

. at ·more or less length." Then Mr.· Quinn said }le would like to take me ba~k 
· :to the metal depart'ment on the off\ce floor wqere the newspapers had said tl:iat 

. Mr. Barrett of the metal departmeut had claimed he had fo\lftd blood spots, . 
and where he had foun1l some hair. ·?irr:· Quinn took me to the little lathe back 

.. · · in the ·metal department, and explained tf me t]lat _Mr. Barrett had told ~im 
· just the same airhe said here, that tliose strands of hair were so few in number . 

.. . .. :.. - that lie d1dn 't._ see them until he . turn~d tlie ha~dle and they wound· around 
• . . . his fingers;. and inoreQver th'at the position-:of-the· handle of the tool which that 

' - ~-.--

... handle actuates on that to.ol, that- small:-Iathe, was irr the same relative _.posi- .. 
-----.:....· -n·on-to;-the-work-in-t-he-lat-h0-t1s-wlum-they-left-it-on-Fll'iday-eve11ing-previous---------...,----' 

-. .. · to t~!lt Mo~ay. They then took me over io the place i_n front of° the dress~~g 
room where it·wa!:i claimed the .blood spots were found. Now_,_! examined ~hose · 

/ · -~- · spots, I didn.'t-examine therp st(tnding up, I didn.'t depend o~ the light,-f:r om 
the . windows, but I stooped· right. down to those spots, ancJ I took a strong · : · 
el~Ctl'.iC flash lamp that -We had around there and looked at them and exam- .. 
iped them carefully, and I made a certain conclusion · after that examination.-

. ·:...:No~, gentlemen, if there ·js any one thing in and about a factory, ·after my. 
seven years of prai::.ticaf experienc in factories,· that I° do know, it is the care 

. and ~dition of factory floors·. Now. take 'that. metal plant, for instanc·e, · --- ' . tllat plant, as yOUimow, is a place where we reform- and shape and spin sheet 
. : br~,· and-0f cmirse,_ofnec~sity, we use ca gr~at deal . of lubricant there.; . 
. now, the lubricant t~at is used~-th~ eyelet~machine, these large machines 
· that change "the sheet metal from a ribbon ·into a shape, we lise that form qf 
· lubricant ·whi~h is ·known as hasl.rnli.ne compound ;-It9w, the mai\l ingerdients 

· of ·that com ound·· are for ractical-PUrJloses, s\'.>llp alla -oij, and in use,. it is_ 
. ·· -· .· - diluted to· a great extent with· wat9r so it can flow easily Qnto the tools or onto 

the metal, so that the tools tha:rt1rey use it on ·won't get bl'ittle or 'smeared up;· 
· · ~~ . that h8!koline ~ompound ~s carried to these little machi~e.s in ·the ·metal - · :- - -

r----'--'-~room, righi almosi up to .that -dressing room, and that haskoline remains-o~ _.­
.- them-and-sticks-to· them, and.:..Y-o'u-8.-r-e-apirto find that haskolirie compound. on · · 
·. . ihe floor · there anywhere f!,round in that · metal ·room near . any of those ma-- ---'-­

. .· - . chines, and w hen it .is spilled oµ the floor' i_!; is not scoured up, but it is. just 
swept up with a broom) ~or~pver, a point that has not ·been brougl_!t out, so 

· __far as I know, right opposite tliat dressing room -is kept the scrap brass; the 
. scrap barrels in which. :the scrap_metal from the eyelet machines is pu~, and __ · _· · . · : · 

--~= 

. . that is full of that haskoline com.pound, that metal being put. into the barrel · · · 
.. . ... ·'_of . rse, with the fluid 'on it, ii .flows -to the- bottom-and-is -apt- to-get··out of ----...----''--'-­
-. ·_ - the -bottom of that barrel onto the floor. But, getting b'ack ·to the ·floor ot th~ 

· .. metal 1'.00J~,. there. i_s a constan~ ·~p~ mg o u r1can - ~' ~n , as· _say, i~s,,_,,_co"'"'m~ . ._--...,-'-. -----'---.,--
... ~ ~ 

. · , . ..., 

\ 
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---- ---dents-'-t~at- -incapacitates-th6'-health,....::.wltere t ey eman e money or _,.. 

"' 

.· .. . 

time th~t they have fost due to the accident, a~d_ we will liave ~ur EmployeJ.'S~ . 
Liability Insurance· Company to pay · the empfoyees, but where people just 
cut their ftnge:i;s and they go bac~ to work, we-don 't-makHny-record-of-that, 

- and we have people-cutting their fingers there very often, and when they cut 
their fingers, their line of . travel is right py that place where Mr. Barrett 
found those spots, right" to the oftlce. · Now, we use paint -and varnish around · 
there, a great deal-ofh, and wh~le I .don't say that this is not blood,:.it may 
be,.buflt could also have been paint, I have seeµ the girls drop bottles of paint · 

·-.:.- -:__or v~rnish. and have them break there on the ·floor, I have -seen that· h_app~n 
. . right clo~e to that spot, bu~ the main ·point about· it is this, gentlemen: when I 

-· ·--:- ~ :.. ~ - -. - got down and fooked at it, you could have scratched away front . the toi>. of 
· : . ·those dark stains an accumulation· of dirt that was not the acclimulatiOn of a . 
.. -- day or t~o days or· tliree days or three · w~eks, but it was at least three months, 

· ·~ from oft the top .. of those spots, without touchi~g the spot itself. · Moreover, _._ 
. .· that white stuff' was unque"stionably, in my opiniqn, ~haskoline compound, and . 

" - · ·it was dry- and it had .to be put on, be<!ause it showed al . 
· · . be.en swept, so, it had · to be put .on the wood in a liqu~d state; if tha~ had been ' 

· fresh red paint,. or if that ·had been fresh red b)ood, and that ·haekoline. com- · 
· .pound, that soap in It, whi.Ch is a great solvent, should have been· put on there 

in a liquid state,. it would. not have showed up. white~ as it sho'!_eaup tlrnn, 
---;;-----c:--.-~-~b-ut--i~would haye showed up either pipk or · red, a~d where . the spot . . of blood . 

. w~, or wh~tev:er i~ was, that stu.ff was white; .and not.p!nk or red. 

I returned after maki~g t't!is~ exa~ination f~om which I noticed- two ·· OJ.' 
--, ,..--_ -=----_.:_~three ' or four chips h_ad-beenJmocked up, the boys told me, by ~tile police that . 

. .. . 
. ·- ...: . 

:- '· 

morning;. :t'returned to my office and gathered up what ptpers I had to take - . _ 
over to Mo1,1tag Brothers: and I took over the ftnan~ial· report which 1 . had ' . . 
made out ·the Saturday afternoon previous, and l.Mlked it over .with Mr. Sig 
Montag; I had a:· goo·d. long <?o:µversation with Mr. Mol)tag -with reference. io 
·the. oecurrences that . m.Qrpfng ·and we deoided ithat sirice the papers ~·had 

' ' . .. . . ., . ·I I : • , . ' • • ~ ! • • ' • •' • 

; ' ' 
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"" stated that I was· beillg detained at .i1eadquuteu,.it would be best to let my . 
,..-;._.,....----"' . ....... u;i,_who' was ill, and· who is an elderly man, being over 70 years of age, . 

· and who was on th~ point of taking a trip to Europe, and I d' 1"' d.-n''t;--w-a-n7t_"'h...,1Dl---..,.--~------=" 

" . . . to be unnecessarily alarmed by seeing in the papers. that' I was de~ained~ and 
I wrote a telegram to.Mr. Adolph Montag informing him that I was no longer 
in ·custody, that I was all right, 'and that . he could ·communicate that to my 

-_uncle. That was so that my uncle · sh~uld not get hold of an Atlanta paper 
· and see that I was in ·cus_tody and be ·unnecessarily alarmed: 

. 4 returned fro~ Montag Brothers to the Pencil Factory, being '' ccom­
:-:- panied by .one of ·the traveling". men; Mr. Hein, Mr . . Sol Hein, and on· m·y 

arrival at the factory I went up into th~ o~ a~d .distributed ·the various pa- _ 
mT"-----r--1>eP8-&ll~.er....the....fa.c.to4 . e actea on_ e next- day.-In a-fewmmut~ 

·arry-Scott\>f--the-Pinkerton detect-ives-came-in and-I-took-him a·side mto mN" -- -­
office, my private office, and spoke to him in the presence of Mr; N. V. Darley · 
·and Mr. Herbert Schiff. I told hi.JI) that I expe~ted that he had ~een .what · - - . . --. ~ .. 
had happened at the Pencil Factory . y ·reacling- the ne-w.spaperS"li.ndimew-all- · · 
the ·details. He. said he didn ;t read the newspapers and-didn't know· the . de· 

. ·tails, sn I sat down and gave him all t~e details that J1could, and · in addition . 
I told• hiJQ something which M~.· D&rley had that aft~noon communicated to 

----~m._e~izLLtha.t.Mrs. White had told him that on going into-the-factory at about 
12.o'clock noon on-Saturday April 26th, she ba<l.seen some negro do~ by the 
elevl;\tor snaft. Mr. Parley had told me this and I°just told this to Mr. Scott. 
After I told· Mr. Soott lill that I could, I took him around the . building, took 

.• -c- 'him first back to ''the metal room and showed him . the plaoe whel'e.... the .hajr 
.. Jlad been foun«], lOoked at . the machinery and at the lathe, looked at tb,e table 
: · on which the lathe stands, and tbe lathe bed and the floor 'underneath the · 

iathe, ~nd th~re wasn't a spot, µi~tch less=a=blood ·spot underneath: · I showed 
him the other spot in "front of the · dres~ing room, and I took -.him to -the fourth 

--. - floor anjl showed h i1n w ere ·a· seen · 1 e-an - e am .a, 1 e · e ore. one 
---. -:-.. . -. - ...wa·e-..fil . bout three the second .time. -Then I-took- him dow~ into 

the J>asement and made.a thorough. search of the basement, an t~ar:;m"'c;;ru~e;:;:i--:----.-_-.-. ~.--­

an .exaininati.on of the elevator well which was at the . botto~ of the elevator 
. ·· . · shaft; and .J notice.d :M:r. Scott was foragipg around down there and he picked 
~- -:-:_ · p-j-wo ·or three or ~ay be four articles an(l put them in his-pocket,-and-on.e.-.---­

of-them -I specially noticed was a piece of cord exactly like that which had · 
been found around the little girl's· neck: W ~ then· back and I showed hipi . 
W.here the officer said the slipper had been found, the hat had been found and · 

~..,.-~----..·he little girl's body -was located. ....I sho~ed him, in fact,....ever¥thing that the· ": - -----"--­
·oftlcer1t ·had showed us. Then I opened the back door and we made a thorough 
. searc}1. of the alleyway and went up and "down the alleyway . and ih1,m . went 

. ' . . . · down tha-t .alleyway t0 Hunter Street' and down Hunter . to F<>rsyth . and up ... .. ,. · ... 
Forsyth in .front' of the . Pen~~l-Pactory: In front of the Pencil Factory l bad~ . 

. . ·quite 'a little .ta~k. with 'Mr. Se~tt as to the rate' of the ptnke~on Detective 
,·~ ,~--L. ·~ c_ . A~nc?''. llle·.told· me. w,hat ~he~ ~.ere_ -:and I baa ~r. _S~hift - ~o.tei~o?e to , 

1 
• 

=--==~· - ~=--:--· --~.---=:. -- . ~ _· · - ·· .. . . . ~· .. . -. · ·~: __ . . . 
, ··· .,-;:----.. - .. -~---~ •. --=:-- -,_.,, 

\ . . ... \ ! \· 
I jl · : I ·• •· • 

--'---.::··. · 
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. . . 
. ·Mr. Montag to find out if those ·rates wer.e satfs~tory. .·He phoned back the .. .. 

answer that he. would engage them for a few/days at any rate .• Mr. Scott · · 
' · . then ··said: ''Well, I don't need anything m6're,'' and he says ''The Pinkertons • . . 

-~~ase,--accoi'ding.../t&-thei1'--usu&l-e3Jstom-in-fePl'~tillg-eut-the-pePpetrftte,p.·-~--
of this crime will wor~ band in hayd with the 'city officers.' ' I said: '-'All 
right, .that suits me." . And he w.ent on his way . . -About .that time my father­
in-law joined the group.over in front of the factory and after talkin~ for ·s<>me 
time .. my father-in-law a~d Meft and we ari:ived home about ~ :30 I should 
judge, and found there m~mother-in-law and my wife and Mi~ola McKnight, .. . . 

~-....--

. (, and we had suppe;¢. . . fter supper my two brothers-in-law and their wives 
came-over-to visit · h us am;l they stayed until a_!Jout 10 o'clock,, after which · 

.my wife and I retired. On Tuesday morning I arose ·sometime between seven 
· and seven-thgty, ieisurely dressed- and took my bre1;1.kfast and caught the 

-. --S-:1'0 car comin towards . town the Georgir Avenue car, and when I went 
· to get on that car I m_et .a young-man by the name of Dickier .and I remember 

-r-==·=. paying the fare for both of us. -_Wlien !a rrived at the Pencil Factory about . , 
_y ~0~ ~- !mmedia:tely e~t:redupon my routine· w~rk sehding the various orders 

. ·/ . . 
-·· - ·- . 

". . .to the various places· in the. factory where t6ey were due to go, andlibout:J :30 - -
- / · I went on my usual trip over·,to Montag 'Brothers to 'Be!l the General Manager . 

. _. · · .·After staying over there a short while I returned in_ -company with. another 
. one of their tra_veling mell.i Mr . . o!~~·dan .. . At the corner of Forsyth ancrHunter 
_ Street I met up with a cousin of iny wife's, a Mr. ·Seltg, and we had a drink 
. at Cruiskshank 's ·soda foutil!aCthe c.orner or Hunter and Forsyth. Then I 

.. / ... -=­
/ ·-.·_ 

_ ·went up into· the factory and separated the. papers I had brought back with 
. me from Montag Brothers, putting them .in .t6e proper places, and sending th -

. · · proper-.papei;s to. the different -places. - 1 was working along_ in -th~ re ar 
· . rou~!!ie of ~y work,· iq tli.e factory and about th~ '.Offi9-8, . and ~ lit . later 
· detectives Scott and Black came 'up ~o the ·factory and said: ' .'Mr rank, we . 
want you to . go down to headq~a.rters with ·us," and I went w: th.em.---W-e------

_....,,_c,__ __ ~-~-ww~enu.t ....... ""du.oww..un.:..· t:.uouhwe""awdqnar.tem. . . 
. down to headquarters in an automobil~ and they took. e up t~ Chief Lan-

i-:--------=-~ford 's oftfoe . ..:._I-sat u there and ·answered · an st.ions that he desired, · : ·--· .. 
·and I had been .sitting tltere some time ·when . ective · ott · and ·detective 

· Black came back with a bundle und,er ·their _,a m. T~ey showed me a: little -
- --- piece of .material· of some shirt, and ask~ .me if I had. a shirt of that ·ma- _ 

· - te~ial. I looked at it _!lnd t~ld th~m ytt'_dn ,~- think I ever, had a shirt of that · 
.. . .. description, In the nieantime they)>rought. in' Newt-Dee,-the-night watchman, . 

, , . . brought him up from a cell ·an fuowed hi.m the same sample, -He loo'kect·a t .· . 
·'"-'-' _. - ,'. ·it -and immediately recogmze l i e .. s~ict1ie Jiad ·a shirt like tb~t, but l:te ·didn't · 

----~----. ememb.er--hl\ving worn iVfor two -years, ·if I. remember-c<>.rrectly,- that-is-wha-t,___ ____ _ 
· · · · · · . · he said. Detecti:ves .Scott and Black t~en <;>pemM the pa9kag~ ·they had and 

· · disclosed ·the fullAliirt (State.'s' Exhibit F) .o{ that ·niaterie.l' that had all the 
. . . . - . appearance of-'l<eing freshly Stitined •With blood; an:d bad· a Very distW:.t odor, 

. '! _ . .. NeW't Le~ .was taken ba.ek .to the cell. 'After a time Chief Lanford came over .. 
tp ~e ~iid began a~ e~amin~tion . of ·my face ~nd rQf mY, head 11nd m;y hands ~ · . .• '\. . 

. .. . . '.. ,_. 
--· "»:":_~- -~ --- ... · . ,..~~--=-~~~~~-'--"--'~· ;_.·,·~~·~~ · ~~.-~··-~·-· ~-=-~ 
.~--"-=: _ __,_,'--"----:-- . . . \ . 
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· and my. a~ms. I suppose ·he was trying to hunt to ·see if·· he coul~ find any 
scratches. I stayed in there until about 12 o'clock when Mr. ·Rosser came in 
·and oke to. the detectives; or to Chief Beavers. .Aft;er talking with Chief 

· Beavers came over to me and sa~ at Chief Beavers ~bought it better 
that I ould ·stay down there. . He says: "~e thinks· it better that you be de-

·. · . . . " ta' d at headquarters, qut. if you desire, yoii don't· need t9. be 10-Cked-·up in a 
7

-- ­

·. . . ell, .you can 'engage a superllumerllry policeman·, who will guf!,rd 0 XQ_U and give 
-,..~~ . _,_ , ~-you. the· treedom of the Building.'' J;, "imm~diately acqhiesced, supposing that 

I.couldn't.do anything else, and Mr. Rosser left. Now, ·after this time, it was 
·almost about this time t~y.i · took me from up~airs down to 'the District. S.er­
·geant.'s desk" and· detectiv :Srnes-John" N. 'Starnes, I think his name. is; 

- -: canie in and dictated«) fr ih0 original nOtes that were found near ·the bodY, 
dictated to me to ge sample of my handwriting. 'Have you · got those photo-

- ; .· 

e+--+.l''llQtogr.aphs handed-t<>-th defendantf..--I-wr-0te-:this--note- ---- -----" 
. lht.-Starnes,.-whiclt ·was given-to""'.1De·---

-----,---w-'.Ord by ord, and of course· I wrote it slowly. When a w.ord was spelled 
·diff~re y ihey usually . stopped-take this ·word "buy" · for instance, the 
·de ctive told me how that was spelled so they could see my exact letters. -and 

ompare with the :original n!)te. Now l had no hesitation in giving him a 
·. ·specimen of my handwriting. Now, this photograph (State's Exhibit- K), is a 

··· ·- " · reproduction of the note. You see, J. N.S~rn_es _iJ!_the corner ,here, that is . 
. ~ ,.:...._:.. __ . _· _ _ dl}tective Starnes;. and then i~ dated. here, I put that there mys'elf so I would 

- ·. - be able to recognize it Jlgain, in c_ase they tried· any erasures or anything like 
, .... ~:. ." .. · -. thai. It is a photographic reproduction of 'something that was written ·in 

-~--: pencil, as· near as one can judge, a photographic .reproduction of the note that 
___ I wrote. . Detective S~arnes then teok me down to the desk sergeant where -

__ . · llie;y searched me _(lnd entered my ~ame .~n ~he book under a charge of sus· · 
. picion._. 'l'hen they took me back into a small. roonL.and .I sat there for awhiliL 
while my father-in-law .. was arranging for a supernumerary ·police to guard 

'----'-::~_,___,__---==.....• · ---yrnr:rfim---t.mr=-·w'i1!-hh+.:t • .:....· --'1TPlhH'.etYy'-4_tF.ea.&ok~me-then~--0f-the. building ___ ____ _ 
~nd I sat in the room there and either read magazines ·or newspape.rs and 

- -...,,----- 'tittked to my friends who cii.~e to-see-me until---1 wa8 abqnt to--retfi.a-.'.at mid"'"""- - --..- -----­
nigl{t:· . I had the cover of my· cot turn~d back -and I was going to bed .'!hen 

- - -· 

· dete~tive Scott·'and d~tective Black, at midnight, "Tuesday, ·April 29th; came 
ui and eaid: "Mr. Frank, we would like to .talk to · you a little bit. Come ·in 

. - -- ~ · and talk to us. ,,·- r.says: "
0

Sure, I ·will be only too· glad t~.'d I ·went wi~'h 
. -.. . . .. :,-hem .to a-little room on· the 'top . flc;ior o.f the headquarters. ·In that room was · 

· · ; detective Scoit ·and detective Black and myself." They stressed ihe _possibility 
· . - -of couples -having been let into the factory at night _by· the n·ight watchman, · · 

Newt Lee. r iOld thel'!!..i.JL 1Un'tKnowa ny bing a out it-;tba if Iliad,·-..--_-. ~~-·-.,.,_~----

'. certainly ·would have put a ~top to it long ago; They . ~~id: "Mr. Frank, you 
. ·· have never Ulked alone-"W.ith ·Newt Lee. rou are:his boss and he rE1,8pects. 

·you. · · Stie what you can do With. him. . · We can't ·get an'.vthing more 

~ " : . 
-~~ 1, 

· -. - - out" of .him, . see if you can.'·' I says: . ''All right,_ I understand what· . 
you ineaµ; I will 'do ··my best,." because. I w;as only t9o - willing ,.. to help. 

. ' . . - -~~--

,· .. 

.. 
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: ·Black says : ''Now~ P\lt it ~~trong to biµi-; put i~ ·strong . to liim, and . tell 

·· : him . to cough up and tell all he knows. Tell him that . you are here · 
and tha~ he is here and that he better open up . and tell all 0he ~owsh·.a~· b~o~u!..!!t~~---"IP---­

--'~~ - -bspp_enings ·at the Pencil Fac~ory th.at Saturday night, or you will both go· to 
~ . . hell." Those~ were the detective ~s exact words. ·I. told Mr. Blaek 1-caught 

·. : 

· . :- . ... . 

·his meaning, and in a few minu~es afterwards De'tective 'Starnes brought· up 
. . Newt Lee from the cell· -room. They put Newt Lee into a room and 'hand­

cuffed -~ to a chair I £!poke to him at some length in there, but I couldn't 
: get anything additio~aJ out of him. He said he-knew nothing about couples 
co~ing in 'there at night, _and· remembering the insti:_uctions Mr. ~l~ck had 
given me I said : ''Now, Newt, you are here and· I am here, and you had better-· 
open up and. ~911 all you-kn11w·, _and tell the _truth and tell the full trnth, ·be­
cause you will get us "both into lots of trouble if you don't teil all you -know;!' . 

, __ 

and he answer · Id-neg.~· nBefore-God, Mr;-- Fra~nk1...,.,.... 1:r--..a-m.-.,terl-l"""'---~---
you the truth and· 0I1la\~e told you all I know." -And 'the converstttion ended · 
right · thet e. . Within· a iµin'!lfo or two afterwards the detectives came· back 
into the room, that is, detective Scott and detective Black, and then began · •• • .... .J4 

· questioning Newt Lee, and th~n it' was that I ·had my ·first initiation into the 
. thira: degree of the. Atlan~a ..police 'ciepartiiient. ·The way that fellow Bia.ck 
· cursed at that poor old negro, .Newt Lee, was_- something awful. He shri~)ted 

· · . "at him, he hollered --at him, · he cursed him, and. did ~verything but beat hlm . . 
,_--~----_~: ":·-fl· , ~they took N ~wt Lee down to a· ceU: and I ·went to mr C6t in the · outer 

~ · . . . . . 
\ .. rQom . . 

I -'.· - · - · 

· · · · · ·~ ~Now before .. closing m.y. statement, I ·wish to touch upon a CQ.Uple -of in-. 
: -:-.. ·~ -2- - _:~ siti.uations and· a!}cusations other than the one on the bill ofi1uli~i;tlia 

· . .. ··· 
have been leveled against me so far during th.e trial. The first 'is this, the fact 
that l would not talk t'o the detectives; that. !'.would not see Jim Conley. 
Well, let's look.into the facts a few _minutes and see 'whether there was any 
-reason. for truit, or if t~ei:!J>e f!!!Y J ruth in tha_f s_t__!!._teme_I!L_ · -- - - . -- ' . - . 

.: 

.....,.,.~- ---..nD.-Sunaay mornmg, was ta en · ow~ to t he undertaker's~ esta~li"shment~­
to·the-flrntol'y, and rwent to·headquarters; I went to headquarters the seeond 
time, going there will~gly without anyb_ody comi.ng for m~. O~ each occasion 

. I answered them frankly.. and unre~ervedly, .giving them 'the benefit . of the · ·. 
-- best of .iny knowledge, · answering ~}A.and any of their questions, and dis- · . 
· · .· · cussing the matter generally with them. On Monday they came-'-for me ~ain, · 

I went down and answered any and all of their ·questions and gave them. a 
."sl:atem~nt which they ·took down· in wfiting, ·because · ~ thought it was_ righ.-'-i _· ~----­

-'-"-'---,.., .. •.--=--r:=--=·'iiand "i)vasonlytoo glaa- to · o it.~ 9.nswere t em a,nd told the.~m,,_· -=all~t.._"'--'"· ~~---­
. kno:w, answe~ing all questions. Tuesday l was down at police station again, ' 
aii~ answered every-- questfon .a:nd discu~ed·. the m.8.t.ter freely and· -openly · 

"·with them, not only with .the police, but with the 'reportel's who were around 
· .there ; talked to anybody who w_a!lted .to talk with me ·about it, and I ~av·e 

_even talktrd with t~em a~ midnigh_t _when_ I wo justrab~ut ~o ..go to b.ed. Mid- ·· e--
"' · ·-.. -.--~---

/ ' · 
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night· wa.s the time they chose to talk to me, but even at S\lch an outlandish 
.hour I was still .willing to help. them, and at their instigation I spoke to. Newt 

~---"--~--· ...,e-:-&l~n~ut-what was ttie result1. They commenced and they 'grilled that 
poor ·I\egro and put words into his mouth that I never said, and twisted not 

. alone the English, but distorted my meaning. I ·jutit decide~ the~ and ther~ . 
'· tbat if that was the line of conduct they were going tQ pursue .I would wash 

my"hands of them.. I didn't want_ to have anything to do with them. On the "' 

: ·,,. 

afternoon.of May ist, I was ta~·en to the Fulton County.Tower. On May 3rd 
.. detectives .Black and · Scott ·came up to my cell ·in the tower and wanted to 

sp,eak .. to me. alone witli·ont any of ~ny f~iends aro~d. · I said all right, I 
. wanted to hef!.r ·what they had to say that 'tjme. Then Black. tore oft some­
. thing like this·:- ' ·'Mr. Frank, we are suspicious of that ·ma:Q. Darley. We ~re 
w_at~hing him; we have been shadowing nim. Now open up and--t.ell us what 
you now .a ou im: . sa1 : 'TGentlemen, you ave come o li-e~wr-o~n~g-m-a_,__n-, ------~-

. ··~ .. · 
' . 

-· 

.because Mr. DaTley is the soul of .honor and is as true as steel. He would no"'t......, __ 
. . do a · crime like that, ·he couldn't do it." And Black cltirped ~P: "Come on, 

Scott, nothing doing," and ofrthey go. - That showed .ID:e how much reliance 
cohld be· placed in either the city detectives or· our-own Pinkerton detectives, 
and I treated such conduci with silence and it was for this reason, gentle~en, ., 
_t}lat _ I didn't see Conley, surrounded with a bevy~ of city det~ctives· and Mr. 
Scott, ·because I knew that there would not be-a-n-itct-ion- so trifling, that there 
was not an action so natural but that they wo~ld distort and_ twist it to be used 
against me, and that there was not a word that I could utter that they would 

_. .. . -. . not deform and ,twist and distort to be used. against ~e, but I told them 
· · through my friend Mr. Klein, that if they got the permission of Mr. Rosser to 

. . :. com.e, I would speak to them,. would -speak to· Conley and face hi~ or anything 
they wanted-if they got \bat permission or brought Mr. Rosser.· M~. Rosser 
was on that day up at Tallulah Fa~ trying ·a -_ case. ·Now, that is the reason, 

. ' gentlemen, that I have kept ·my silen~e, not because I didn't want to, but be~ . 
. ,.__ ___ -_,_,. __ -~ca~- us.e..l..didD~aE_thUig8-1:wis~ __ _ __ -~ -==-~-.--

Then that other implication·, the one o~ 1£no~ing that . Conley ~q_uldwrite, · 
. and I .dido 't. _tell _ ~ne authorities.. . · . . . . - --- - . .' · 

. . . . 
. . . .- .. L6t1s look .into '.that. ·On May let I .was -take·n to the tower. -On the . 

sa-.µe dat_e, as· I undersf(tbcl it, the negro Conley· was arrested. I didn't know . 
·anybody · had ~ny suspicions about him. His 'name was not µi the pap~rs. _._--: 
He was an unknown qua:µtity . . The police_ were ·notlooking out· f'or him; they . 

· .. ~ __ were !_ooking. ~mt for me. They 9icln 't want him, .and I had no inkling t}l3t he . . . . -.: -~-­
. e.ver said he could11 't _write. I was sitting in that cell ·in the Ft;tltOn County 

.1a1 ...,...1 was a ong ·a ou pr1 . , pr1 t or -:-t at r. eo ott-
heimer, a salesman for 'the National PflncilCompany, came running over, and· .. . 
says "Leo, the Pinker_ton ~ detectives · ha'\Te suspicion~. of 'Conley. .He keeps '. 
saying .be. can't write·; th~se fellows ·ov:er at tlie fJl.~ JQ:iow well enough·-:-. -

' . . 

that ~e can write', ca,n't hef" l said: - ·-"Sn~e he· ~ ,,. "W-e~.,...,,,....,....=-:;.--~ 

. ' . 
,. 
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prov~ it. The ··nigger eaye . h~ ~·an't write· and Vi;e feel that he can _w~ite.,., I 
said: "I know he can write. I .have received many no.tee from him asking me 
to loan him money. ' I have· received too -many notes from him no~ to know . 

-~-~--'-----

that he can not write. ln oth~r 'vord1J, I .have received notes signed with his 
- name, purporting to have b~en written by hi~, though.I have never seei;i hi.in 
to this ·date use a pencil." · I thought. awhile anq ~hen I says: "Now, I tell 
you; if' you will look ·into a <lrawe~ in the safe you _will find the card ·of a 
jeweler from whom Conley bought a watch" on . the installment. Now,. per- . 
haps if you ·go to that jeweler .YOU may fin(! .some sort of a r~ceipt that Conley 
had to give- and be able ·to prove that Conley can write." Well, -Gottheimer 
ook that . information ba~k to the ~inkel'tons; they did just as I said; they 

· got · t~e contract ~ith · Conley·~ name on it, got back evidently to Scott. ll-nd 
th'.en he told the negro to write. · Gentlemen, the man who found out or paved 

- the way. o -find out that Jim Conley could write is sitting right here ·in· thi$ 
----~----h. air...---T.ha-t-is:--the-tl'uth-about-i . - - --· - " ·' · ._· _ ______ _ 

- .. 

Then that other insinu.ation, ·an ·insinuation that is dasta_rdly that it is 
·peyond the appreciation of a human being, that . is, t~at :lllY ·wife ·aidn 't visit 
me; now the truth of the matter is this, tbat oil April 29'th, the date I -was 
taken in. custody at police Keadquarters, my wi,fe .was there to see me, she • 
"was .. downstairs on the first_ floor; I was up· oil tlie· top fl~or.. . She was there 
almost in hysterics, having ·been br~mght tJ:iere by her two brothers-in-law, and · 
her . fat-he.r. Rabbi Marx was with me at the time. I consulted with him as to 
the ·advisability of allowing-my dear wife to come up to the top floor to see -me 
in· those surroundings with. city detectives; repor~~rs and· snapshOtters.; I -

. thouglit rwould save h~r that humiliation ~nd that ha~sh sight, because.l ex-. 
· pected. any day to be turned loose a·nd ht{ .returned one~ more to . her ·side at 

· · home. Gentlemen, we did -alhv-ecoutcl.-do to restrain her in the first', d~ys when 
I was down at the jail from ciQming on alone down to thtjail, but she was per­
fectly ,willing to even be locked up with me _nnd share r.n _incarceratirul 

-----
Gentlemen, I know no.thing whatever of the 'Cleath of little Mary Phagan. 

I bad no PJI.rt in ca:Using lier Qeatli nor . o now. ow s e came . o er ·death 
· after she took her money and left my office. I never even saw Conley_ in the . 
factory or anywhere-else -OJ'.! that da~e, April 26th, i!H-3. · . . . . . . 

. ·· i. ··: . ·. The statement of the witness Daito~ is utterly fals~ as ·far as .coining to 
. · ---my .oftlce and being introduced to ·me by . the woman Daisy, ·Ii~pkins ·is. eon- , · 

,\ . ... 

:. . ce-rned. If Dalton was ever in the ·factory buildh:~g witli any' w-0man, I didn't 
-'---'---'--''-'---~-..,..--· _)m!lw·jt_Ln_~ym•_s.1mJla.lton: in . my lif~_Jo know him. until .this- crime; ·. · -~-. ---·-.. : .. . . ·.. . . . . ... : . . · .. • .. · · .. . // 

. . .' . . . . ' ~ . . . 
. _in .supposing that I ever ~ent· to a lady'!! .~ressiµg room · for the purp~e of ... 

making improper gaze into. the girls' room. . I have no recollection ~of occa-
__ ,---=-__:.~.,.-'-·~: · 0n~~~she~~p_eakir~u_t. i do~J1'0~k~o~-tliat . t~t _ladies '-dre11sing r.pom ·on.. · •. 

" ..... · ,./"'. .. . ·- ... \, l: 

,. 
·· .. ... :.... .. . ... ~·- : -- -~--· 

"/. 
•• • • • • fill 

,_:_ ,..,.:....: .-= ...:..-· -~-. . :.. --· , __ 
t -r ... " . 
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the fourth floor is a mere room in which the· girl~ change ·their outer clothing. 
Th~re was no bath or toilet in that room, _ .and it had windows opening onto 

- · · ---- · =-the-atreet.--Th.e~ h 1ock .. on the door 'and I know r -ne'V'er went into that · . 
room-at any hour when the ·girls were dressing. _These girls were supp~ 
t~ ~e _~t the~r _work at ~ ~'clock.. Occasionally I have ha~ reports;hlft. tlie · · · . . 
girls were fhrtmg from thlS dressmg room through the wmdowywith men. . · . 
It is -also true that -sometimes t~e girls would loiter i~this obm when they 
ought to have been doing their work. · It is possible 'tba on. some occasions 
i lo~ked .int~ ~his_ room .to see if the girls were doi_ngj ~ir d~ty a~d w'ere ~ot 
using this room. as a place for loitering and for flirt'ing. These girls were not 
supposed· to be dressing 'in ·that. roo~ - ~fier 7 . ock and -I know i.~~~: I neyer 
-looke<Linto thl;l-t room at_ any hour . ~he ·had any reason ·to suppose that· 

_:____thel!e-were-giJ.iliL..dressing therein. 

. . 
The s"tatement of ~the ne F C9n_ley is a tiss.u.e of lies from first to last. I 

.... ~ow nothing whatever .th~ catiSe ~f t~e d~ath ' ?f ~ary. Phagan and Con. · .· 

.· 

.Iey's statement as -~ 1s commg up and. helpmg me dispose of .the body, . or · . _ 

.·· :~Hh~ to d.o with her or.'o do with him tha~ da1'j~ IUDOtistrous--~ -'-·_-----

. ~ story as to \vomen coming into the factory with ine for immoral 
tposes· is a base lie and the-few occasions ~hat he' claims to have seen me in 

.. ... 
· indeceni positions with women_is: !l lie~ vile 7 that I have no language with 
.·which to fitly denounce it.- · ··· · - •, - . 

I have no rich relatives in Brooklyn, N. Y. My father is an invalid. ·My 
father and mother together' are people of very limited .. me~ns, who have bareiy 

·: · · enoug~ upon which to live .. My father ~s . not able ·to. work . .I have no rela-
. tiv.e who has any mea!)s .at all, except Mr. M. Frank who lives in Atlanta, Ga. · 

· Nobody has raised a fund ·to pay the fees of my atto~neys. These fees .have 
. . ·been paid by the sacl'.ifice in part of the sma~l property which· rqy parents 

p~ssess.' . · · · ·, · ,;, - " ·- ' . · . 

~ . . . 
Gentlemen; some newspaper me11 have called me "the . silent man "in the 

." tower,!' .ana-1-k~pt-m~ilence and my counsel advisedly, until the .proper ·:time 
. and ·place. _The time is now; ·the _place is·-here; and I have told...'.-you -the 

. ·truth; the whoie truth. . · · · 
. . > ::___" -~· __ ,__,_ - · ...:__ .__ --&.-~ - • --- - · - ·· - • : ·- - ::--=--- :-..:..___.:..._:_,· - -. . --· - ·-· . . 

~""::-::---:;~===Ml~~~&¥-¥M~·. ~D. Sworn for the . Defehda.nt. 
·~ 

. - ·r worked at 'the pencil factory ·last year ·during .the summer of 1912. · I 
- have-ne¥et!-been in the dressing· room when Mr. F:rp.nk would come in and 

.look at anybody that ~as undressing. . .. ::... .. . . · .· · .·:·· · ·: · " 

-. -·- .. 

. 
... . -. 

·.1 - • . ;. 
. \ 

. · .. ·. ·. I . ·~· a;" · • • • 

I I ' 
; - ' ' - . . · . , "P' 
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o:aoss !lXAMINA'l'IO~. 
~ .. 

.· 
_c, . -

~. - -- --

I work at Jacobs' Pharmacy._ My · sister used to work at the pencil • 
factory. I don't remeµiber any occasion when-Mr. Frank came in the dress- · .1 

~---,,..-------ing room - oor ·w · ileMtS!J. rene ac son an er SIS er _were ;liel'e-. - . 

MISS~S ANNIE OSBORNE, REBECCA CARSON; MAUDE WRIGHT, 
and MRS. ELLA THO.MAS, All sworn for the Defendant, testified ·that they 
were employees of the National ·Pencil · Company; that Mr. Frank's general · 
character was good; that ·Conley ;s general character for truth and veracity 

· - · was l>ad and that . they would not believe him l?n oath. 

MISSES-MOLLIE BLAIR, ~THEL STEWART, CORA COWAN, B. D. ·· 
SMITH, .LIZZIE WORD, BESSIE ~HITE, GRACE ATHERTON and MRS. ___ _ 
BARNE , a sworn for the Defendant, testified that they were. employees of . ' · 
the Nati.onal Pencil Company, al1d work on the· fourth flo<>r -of the factory; ~ ·:. - - -

·th.at the _general c~aracter of Leo. __ ¥. Frank was_good; that they have never . . 
· ,jone with ~im at any time ol4 plf:'Ce for any immoral purpose, ancLthat ~they ' 
have ne"\fer heard of his do~ng anything wrong. · 

MISSES CORINTffif.. HALL, ANNIE iIOWELLJ, LILLIE' l\J. GOOD­
. MAN, VELMA ·HA-Y-ES,---JENNIE MAYFIELD, IDA HOLMES. WILLIE 

HATCHETT; MiµtY HATCHETT., l\U~NIE SMITH, MARJORIE McCORD, 
. --. LENA McMURTY, MRS. W. ·R. JOHNSON, MRS. S. A. WILSON, "MRS. 

GEORGIA DENHAM, MRS. 0 . JONES, MISS ZILLA SPIVEY, . CHARLES 
~LEE, N. v .. DARLEY, F . ZIGANKI; ,and A. C. HOLLOWAY, MINNIE FOS­

. TER, all ·sworn for the D~fendant, testified that they were employees of the 
National Pencil Company ~and. knew ·Leo M. Frank, and that· his gener~l char~ 
acteu.as...good . . . ---

D. I. MacINTYRE-, . B. WILDAUER, MRS. · DAN.. KLEIN,. ALEX DIT-
TLER, .DR. J. E. SOMMERFIELD,-F. G: SCHIFF, AL. ··m :tTHMAN, JOSEPH 

. GEB~HON, J,>. D._)'dcCARLEY, MRS M. W. M~YER, ·M~S. -DAVID M-.ARX, 
MRS.- A'. !. ~ HARRIS, M.' S. RICE, L. ·H. MOSS, MRS. VL. H. MOSS. MRS. 
JOSEPH :BROWN,- E. E. FITZPATRICK, EMiL DITTLER, WM. BAUER, 

.. MISS JnjL~N LOEB, .AL. ;FOX, MRS._ MARTIN MAY, JULi4N v. BOEHM .. · 
·MRs:-MOLLIE ROSENBERG, M. H. SILVERMAN, MRS. L. ST~RNE, .CHAS. 
ADLER, MR.S. R. A. SONN, ~iISS RAY KLEIN., A. J. JONES, L. EINSTEIN, .. ~ ­

~-~---· ,--r_ . 'BERNARD, -J .. "-FOX, '"MARCUS ·LOEB, ... FRED -HEILBRO;N, MILTON 

._ 4 , • 

. ... 

_KLEIN, NATHA.f'l COPLAN, MRS. J.E. SOMMERFIE_LD, all sw,orn for the 
-, -.. D.efendant, testified that they ·were.-residents of · t)~e city ·of. Atlal!,ta, and ~~ve . 
. - · known· Leo M. Fral!_k ev~r sin_ce he has lived · in "Atlanta; th~t ·his general -

. ch_aracter is. good .. -.. . . · -

... \ -
• t ; • ' ~ 

~-· · -~· , .......... .. 
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•• . ~ _ y_· - ( •• MRS. M. w. <O~SON, MARY PI~K,· MRS. ~ORA SMALL: MISS ·.,UL~ 
. .. FUSS, .R. P.. BUTLER, JOE ST~LKER,""'lillsworn for the . defendant, t_eeti-

fied that they ·were employees of the National Pencil ·Company; that they . -
'-----"'""-----=-~---1n,.,. ... wr+Lmen-o M-:-Frmrlrand""that-bis~~neral-chan~S-goQd.-. __:·_· -------=--~----~=--:--___,. 

.· JWmBNOB IN REBUTTAL :roR -sTATB-. 

. \tr .. ~. FL01.'l)/ R. M. GODDARD,_ A. L. GODDARD, N." j, BALLARD, . 
HENRY CARR, J. S. RICE, LEM SMITH, all sw9rn for the State, testified 
that they knew Daisy Hopkins; that her general character for _. truth .-and 
veracity was bad ·and that they . w~uld not believe her on oath. J. R. Floyd 

-. -testified tJtat be· hear.d Daisy Hopkins talk about Frank an.d said there"..was a 
cot in the baseinent. . ". ------ · · -

·.·· 
"-------~_ -. --~E-MW,-sworn for th:eStm . 

. '---

• 
. !W ; I. 

:. 

I have known : . a ton from 1890 to 1904. At first his general char­
·acter ·was bad, but the lasf I kiio-\ved of .him,. it was good. I would believe 
him on Qath. · . · 

I hear~ of his being indicted for -stealing and selling liquor, but the last 

·O 

year he was ~n Walton county h-e joined'"'the "church and I never heard a WOI'.d . . . .. 
~~--~aga.i~--;t hi.;-after that. -.- -~------: . · - . · , · - - :...:.:._ - .- --=---: ~--=---. ~--__ --_-- -

· 4J ~ 

.. 
. . 

R. V. JOHNSON, sworn for. the State . 

I hav~ ~own C. B. -rni.lton ·for, ~out ~O 1ea~s. ".His._ character for truth 
an~ vera~1ty:- 1s -- good, an~ I would beheve h'ilfi on oath. . · 

....... 

OJ,OSS . EXAMINA'd<)N. 

I did.n!.Lhear he w~s indicted for - 1quor .:Se mg e o:re ie e t my county. 
He w~s "in .. good standing when . he -lef-t-the .church. I knew he was in ·the · 
chaingang for stealing. about-1-8.-.ol'-!.20 years ago. _. . : . . . . . 

-, W . M: -COOK, .w:--J. ELDER, A.- B._HQ..USTONr::JT T. BORN, W. l\t . . 
WRIGHT, C. B. ·McGINNIS, ·F . P. HEFNER, W. C. 'HALE, L.EON BOYCE, . 
M. G. OALDWELL, A. W. HUNT, W. C. PATRICK, aILsworn for .the State, 

· testified that. they knew C. ·B. ·Dalton; that ltis general .character ~or truth . 
..,----,-~---nn~raci~y _w:as good, ·and that they would believe him o.n oath. . . · · .... 

-~~ : - -- ·--=-----'~--~-.:..:.· ·.:.:.' ~·--=~=--------____,~..:.....,---,------'----'----,----
. . . . 

MISS · MYR'l'IE CATO, MAGGIE G~IFFIN, MRS. · 0. · D. J?ONEG.AN, 
.MRS. ;EI. :$;. JOHNSON, MISS MARIE · C~RST, MISS NELLIE PETTIS, .. 

. . ... . MARY DA VIS, MRS. MARY · ~. W ALL~OE,. ESTELLE, WINKLE, CAR~IE __ 
SMITH; all sworn for the defen<,lant, testified .thf!.t they were ,form~rly. em--- · ,_.-_· _ · . 

' •• • ' • • :· . , • • • • • • • • • , # • 
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· ployed at the National- Pencil Company. and worked at the factory- for a·-. - - _;. 
,- . . · ~ p·eriod varying from three days to three. arid a. half years.;thJlt L o·_M . .Fr.ank..1! 

cha.racter for lasciviousness w.as b_ad. · 

: "' 

. :: -~USSJ\fAMIE KITC~NS, sworn for the State in .rebuttal. 

· .. · I ·~~ave ~vorked ~t·the National Pencil Company tw~ year;· I am on the 
· fourth · floor. I . h.ave not been called by the defense. Miss Jones and Miss 

Howard have ~lso not been called by the defense to _testify: · I was in the 
· dressing room with Miss Irene Jackson when she was ·'\lndressed. Mr. Frank · 

opened the door, stuck hhi' head. inside: He did . not knock. He Just stood 
1 

there and laughed. ·Miss Jackson said./ "Wcll, we a1·c dressing, blame it,'' and . 
then he ·shut the door. 

- Ol~OSS EXAMINATION. · 

~--'--' ·__,...----~~¥es;-:lte1tsked--us-if:-mnUdrr'rhave . Jllly worlrt9(lo. ·was 

•. ·-, . 

ue~s hours: We didn't have. any work to do: ·we . were.-g.oing· 
'have never .met Mr. Frank· any.where, .or any, time for any.. immoral purposes, . .. . . . 

:\llSS RU'l'H ROBlNSON, sworn for ti1e State in i:ebuttal. 

I- have seen Leo M. Frank.talking to l\ilary Phagan. He was· talking to 
.· .her a·bout her work, not very often! He would just· tell her;_.while she was at 

~---·-.'7. or , about-lf{l l'-:work~e-'Wouldstanq JUSt. -closeenougb to her to tell her 
about her. work. He 'vould show her how to put rubbers in the. pencils. · He 

. would just take up the pencil and. show her how 'to do it. That's all I saw 
·him do. I heard him speak to . . her; he ·called . her-Mll:ry. ·That. W!lS last sutn- · 

· mer-

MISS DEWEY HEW~Lli, sworn for the St.ate in rebuttal. . 

I stay in the Hom~ 0£ the Good Shepherd in Cincinnati. I worked at the 
---~-----p~e'"n""cil ac1ory our mon ~ qm m arq 1, . ~ uwe seen :M:r. Frank 

· taik . to ~ Mary -Pnagan two . or three times a day in the -meta;l departme:i;tt. · I 
. h~e seen him. hold his hand on her shoulder. He called her Mary. ·He ,vould 
stand pretty close to her. He would lean· Qver in.·her face. 

- . . OROSS EXAMINA~ION .. 
--.~-,;... ·· -

All the r~st Qf the girls were there·.wheu he talked to her. I don't know _, . 
· what he was tal!ring to. her about. · 

.- -- -~ . . :...:.:...·=-----: ......._..· 

--=--· .. -~-~- ·~nss REBECQA CARSON, .. r-~called by the s .tate in ~ebuttal : 
'.. . . . . ,.....:.\ 

I have never go'be into the dressmg ro9m ·on the fourth .fioor ,vitb: Leo 
M. Franlc. . · . · · ·• · . . ·. · ' ·. · ' . . 

·j · • • I · . . . .. -
•• c • • • ..· ~ . 

.. 
' . .. . ... ' . 

··-· : ; · . .: ... -. ., .. · \ 
· -~ .- _, 

• 

• 
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MISS 14YRTICE .OA'fO, . . MISS :MAGGIE ·GRIFFIN, both sworn for the 
State, testified that. they had . seen l\Hss Rebecca Carson go into the ladies 

. • . d.ressing rQ~m on the four floor ~·ith Leo :M. Fran_k two or three times dur-
- -'11-19"'--.-,----J.iing-working_hours_; re were "other ladies working on tb,e fourth floor 

·. · · . at the time ·thi!_ h·appened. · · 

J. E. DUFFY, 8\vorn 'for the State in rebuttal. 

I worked at ·the .National Pencil Company. I was liurt th;re in the metal 
. . : department. I was cut on my forefingers OD the le'ft hand. . That is tl~e cut 

right around ,there- (Indicating). It never cut off any of my fingers. : I went 
. to the office .to have it dressed. · It was ·bleeding' pretty ·freely. A-few ·drops 
· of blood dropped. on the floor at the machine \vhere I ~was hurt. 'l'he blood 

did .not drop anywhere else except at that machine. None of it dropped near' 
-~--"----the-1adielLiir..e.ssing room, ·or the water cooler.- L had..:.a_}a 

w,rapped aroung my finger . When I was first cut I just slapped a piece of 
~ I • • • • 

OROSS EXAMINATION. 

I never · saw any blood anywhere except at the machine. I 'Yent from 
the office to the Atl~nta Hospital .to have my finger attended to. 

W . .E. TURNER, sworn. for tlte Stat·e in rebuttal._ __ 
- I - • • 

I \Vorkect1it the National Pencil Company during .March ·of this ye_ar. I 
- - --.s.aw Leo Fr-ank talking t o Mary _phagan.on the second .floor, about the middle 

of M:arcll; .. It .WR!! just before dinner. --There was nobody ·else in 'the roo:m- -.-~~ 
then. She wa·~ going to work and he · stopped to talk to her. She told him · : ; 

·she had to g~· to work.' Hfrtold her that he was the . superintendent of the . 
factory~nd that he wanted to talk to her, and s!_ie said she had to go · .to · 

-'<----.,,..,---~""'1k1r.--!s~11n1e""·-t.tau-ked ff a-nd ·he \vent on towards h~r talking to her. · The las<-------~ 
. thing I heard him say . was l1e "'vanted to talk to her. That is~ alL I saw or 
.bearq._·_.· ____ . _ -- , 

·-
. OR~SS EXAMINATIO?i .. · 

That was just before dinner: · The girls were up there getting ready for -
·-- - --. :.--_-dlnner~y was going in the direciion where she worked, and Mr. Frank 

. · ·· was going the ·other way. - I don't · know whether any of the. girls were still 
.. . .. at ·work or not. - I did~'t look. .for ·them:. Some ,-of the girls came. in there 

· · while . this was ·going on a~d .told ·mo where . to {>~t th.e. pencils.!... Lemmie. 
Quinn's office is right therC.71: don't know whether t.he girls saw 'him talking 

.. to Mary . or not> they w.e.re ·in there. It was just. before -the whi~le . blew M 
-:- . : -. -. - noon. Mr. Frank told her he wanted to speak t.o her and she said she had· to . 
. . . "· go' to work, and the girls came in there while this 'conv.ersation was going on . 

. - · · .· .. . :, .. . l ~ari !t ~e!JC~ib.e Mary . Phag&n.: I do~ 't Imo\\' any o~ . t.he. 'other _little girls_ 

• - . · . ,. .... 
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fn there. I don "'t rem~mb\)r who . ~18ed her- Mary Ph~gan! .. ~ you~ man on 
the fourth floor told me her name Mary- Phagan. } , ~on 't know who he 
was. I didn't know anybody in: the factory. I. can't describe ~ ariy of the 
girls. r don't know: a single . one h;i the . factori. . 4 

li--~-~----~p..-----,-----,---
• 1 

. ., 

. . 
· · W. P. M::Jl~~K, sworn for the State in rebuttal. 

I have been a motorman for about th1•ee 'years, in the employ of the Geor~ 
:. gla· RailwaY,. & Ele'ctric Company. I know Daisy Hopkin~. I have· met her 

· ·-.·at the· corner "of Whitehall and. Alabama St. between 2 :M and 3 :30 on a Satur- · 
~·aay. She said she w~s going to pencil factor~. - .. I ~ade. · an engagemeQ~ with . · · . 

her to go .to her .room to see .her tha :Saturday. ·I was in a room with :her· at " · 
the corner"of "Walker and Peters ·st. about 8 :30 o'clock~ ·_She told .me she" ha~· 
been to the pencil factory that afternoon. Her general character fur truth-

• I 

' 

•• 

"-----'--------a-nd~Paoity-i~ad-. -I-weuld-n6y:>e.U~h~_:on-oatl1 .. ________ -L----~---

I 

d 

GEORGE GORDON, swo1•n for tlie State in re~mtt'tll. -
. ·. ·· 

. ·1 am ~ practicing lawyer. I was ·at police station · p~i.rt of the timewhen 
· Minola McKnight was making her _statement. · I was outside of. the door most 
of -the time:-- ! went down there ;vith habeas- corpus proceedings to have her 

_ ~ign the affidavit and when. I got there the dete.ctives informed me that. 
'. .. was in the. room, an<'fI-sat down -and -waited outside foz' .her two;i..purs, and - --· 
. people welit -.in and out of the ·door, a~d after I ha~ _waited ·there' I saw the • " 
. stenographer of the recorder's court goiirg-tntotlierm:nn- and I decided I 
ha-d better make a demand to go into the room: which I did; and I was t9,en 

· -. allowed· to go .into the room a.run: found Mr. February reading ~~er t~ &er 
- some sten~grilpllic st~tem.ent he 11ad taken. ·There :were two other ·men from 

Beck & Gregg HardwAre stol'e and Pat Campbell and Mr .. Starnes, an Albert 
McKnight. After ·that was read l\fr. February '·went ·out to write it oil on 

'J.-•----'~-----'--.....:..U:l~e.wr~&-w-hile he. was out ]Ylr .. Starnes- said,-'-!Ni>w-t-his-inust-be---

'" ~ . 

kept very qufot ·and nobody be told anythin·g_ab"ut this . .!.' · -1-thought-it was - --. 
agreed that we would say nothing alfout it, . I -was surprised when I saw it 

. ' in the newspapers two .or three dafs afterwards. ·I ~aid .to Starnes : "There · . 
· ... is n o .reason· why .You sliould hold, this . wonian, you .should let her go." H.e · 

·said he· -'\'<mid do nothing without consulting_ }.fr. Dorsey and ,he· suggeS:tec:i 
-------'---that .J had b.etter go to Mr. Dorsey's .office. I went to his· office and he cl\}l~d 

· up -Mr. Starnes and then I '. went back to· the police statiQ11 and told Starnes 
to ~ll...Mr. Dorsey , an~ I presume that~ Mr. Dorsey told· }lim to i;t ·her go. 

--~~--..:..... __ An~_y_w_".~ay' he sa~d sh_e._Q_oul~- go. · You · (~_fr_. Dorse_y_) _said you_w_o_~ft~l~et~h~er~· ,e.Y.o_· _ __!__ _ __ ...:. 

.. a so.· })nt mormng you had" s~id you woulq nQt ·unless J took out· a habeas . 
.'corpus'. In the. morning .a.fter .Ohief Beaverf.io.ld me he would not let her 
·go qn bond .. and unless yo'Q (Mr . . Dors~y) woltld let · u~r go,, . ·went to your . 
oftlce and told you that. /jhe was being held. iUegally and· you admitted it to . 
me ·and I ·f!&id we wouid give bond in any .,sum th~t you ·might ·as ., '-iou ~aid · 

.. ... .. 

. · ~. . 
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·. 
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-. --· . ·- .- you would not let ·her go because you wo~ld get in bad with the detectives, . 
and you advised me to ~ake out ·a habe~.s cor.pus, which I did. 'fhe . detectives · 

•

. 
1 
• • . ·said they ·couldn it let her go without your conseµt. : You said you· didn't have 

anything 'to do with . lo.eking ,her up. As to whether Minola McKnight 'did 
"'---~---not-sign-this-paper-freely and voluntRrtti-c-Stnte"'rexlii1Jit't: , it~w=as~.s""'1g=n~e~------­

·. · in my absence while f',~as at police .stati9n. When I .came back. this paper 
· was lyJng on the table sign.ed. That paper is substantially the notes that 1\fr. 
February read o:y.er to her. As they ·read it ov~r · to her, she said it was about 
that way. Yes, you agreed with me thafll you ha.d no right to lock her up. I 
don't 'know that ·you said you didn't do it. _ l don't ,remember that we dis-­
cussed tbat. ·You told. me that you would . not direct her to be let loose 
·because you would get in· bad wjt}1 the d.etectives: · I had ~old you tl1at thc~·--­
dctectives told me they would not release her unless you said so'. I took out a 

·· habeas . corpus immediately afterwards and went down _ tl;ere to get her re-
leased, and she was rele~sed. . < , • _ ___::~------------------i 

·~ 

- --- - - OROSS-BXAM-lNA-TION . .:.-. - -- -. v , - .. 

. -'--1 heard that they had bad her in. Mr. :QQ.rsey's .office_ and she ~vent away 
"' . screaµiing and was locked up; I knew that Mr. Dorsey was letting this be 

done. She was locked' in a. cell'nt the police station when I saw · h~r. They 
· admitted ihat they did· not ·ha ye any warrant for her arrest. ·Beavers said he 

would not let her out on ·bo~d unless 1\Ir. Dorsey said so. He ~aid the · charge 
against her was suspicion. ·They put her in . a cell and kept her until ~our 
-o'clock the next day before they let her · go. When I went down to see her 
in the. cell, ·sh~ was crying and going on a~i;l almost hysterical. When I asked 
l\:Ir. Dorsey to let her go .out on bond, he said he wouldn't do it .because he . 

_ . - - - - w·ould- get -iti bad with tpe detectives, but that if I '~ould fot ·her stay down 
. there with Starnes and Campbell for -a-day, he would let her loose ·without 

_,....: .. -

any bond, and I said I wouldn't do it. I said that I considered it a very 
. . . ---- ·----reprehensible thing to lock up someb.ody· becaus~ they: knew something, and · 

.he. said, "Well, it . is sometimes. necessary to get informati~n;" and I said, 
''Certainly our, liberty is more necessary than any information, and I con-

' ·s_ider it a trampling on our 4nglo Saxon liberties." 'rhey did not tell me that .­
.. ' , .they already had a statement that she had made, and ~hich she declared 'Ito · 

·be -the truth. . · · ' - -:--., 

.RE:-DIJµlOT EXAMINATION. : " 

You (Mr. D01•seyJ did not tell me that you had no right to .lock"anybody · 
up. . I tol4 you · that, and you agre.ed to it, but· you would not le.t her go . 

. I told.yo~ that Chief Beavers said he 'vould do what you said .and then I asked 
"-~--~.--,;f-OU-to_give me an ·order . OU said you .\V'Ouldn 't give me an order: When I 

· - :told Siarnes that I . thought I ought• to. M in that room while Minola wa!I 
. . .· making· tl10 statement, lie krioc-~ed oli the door, and it 'vns unlocked on the 
. : inside .and they let me in. · They let ·me into the · room ·at once ·a.ftel'- 1--·b·ad · • ·: .-... <. · been sittip_g · th~re . two hours. ~I "was. present Wlten she made the statem~nt .. _ .). ~ · 

--- -"'"~ -=-=--... -.-,.-;.... • • ~ • ..1. . .... ·_ - .. . 

':., '': ·'. _ ·-=-~-:---. '>~~·~ .:: ... , :- --·-
t •• : • ~ • 

. , -_ 

\ :. , .. ' " . . .. 

~,· 

,:. . 



I 

. • ( , 
· =. ' . ·. 226 

· -:-about the-paym~nt-o.f-tlie._cooK. . ' ~on'tr'ememoer ~h~t questions I as.ked_ 
. her at that time. · I was be:r attorney . . I didn't go . down the.re· to examine · , 
. her; I went ihere ·to. g~t he~ out: Starne!J and Campbell wete ~n ap.d out <?f 
the room during the time. Mr. St~rnes-stayed on the outside l.Lthe....domq>art · • 
f....the-time.-1-cdoir'rt.i w io 'was in the room and who was not while I 

I.,:_~-~~---,--~· 

was outsi~e. 

ALBERT· McKNIGHT, sworn for the State in rebuttal. . 

·~hi~ .. sideb~ard'. .(defendant's exhibit 63) sets more. this way ·than it was lit . ~ 
. .the time -i was there. · 

- ~ . . . 
~ ·- -- . ~ . OROSS"EXAMINATION. _,. 

-

I don't know if the sidebq_ard .was ehanged, but it wasn't setting like that 
is in the corner .. · I didll't see the sideboard at aJJ,-but-1.::.don..'..t-like-the angle 

-~-~----of-t-hisi>lat. - . ¥ -

R. L. CRAVEN, sworn for . the State in rebut_tal. 
... 

l -ain connected with . the Beck and G_regg Hardware Co. Albert Mc-
Knight also works ·for -~e same company. He as~ed me to g<> down . and_ 

" _ see_l(I~uld~get _Minola..McKnig.btr-Out when she waS' arrested. I wen:t there · 
- --- for that purpose. I w&s present when she signed that affidavit .(State's ex­

hibit J.) I -~rit out with . Mr. -Pickett to Mino la McKnight's home the latter 
part' of May . . Albert McKnight was there. On the 3rd day of June,-we were 

. •. 

· down at the station house· an·d they br9ught Minola McKniglit in and we 
qµel1tioned he·r first as to ·the statements Albert' · had given me; at ·first she 

· - would not .talk, she said she .. didn-'t know anything ·about it. I told h~r that 
-. 4}be,.rt ma.de the state1_mmt that he was there Saturday when Mr. Frank.came,. 

~ome, and .he said Mr .. Frank came jp. the ·(lining .roQm and· stayed abo~t· ~en 
· minutes and "went to the sideboard and ·caught a car in about ten minutes after 

-.he-fi.re:t· arrived t.her~, and l went on ·and tol3 her that Al-ber-t-bad-said-th-at 
Minola had overheard Mrs. 'Frank t~ll . Mrs. Selig that Mr. Frank 'didn't rest 

-.. wen and he'" came· home._drinking and. made l\frs·. Frank ge·t out of bed and 
_:..sleep on a rµg by-the side· of tl1e be'd and· wanted her io give· him his pistol 

. -- - --~ to shoot his head pft' and that .he had. murdered somebody, or something- like 
_that, · Minola at 'first hesitated, .but final y she !_old . everything th1;1-t was· in 
tha{jdlldal'it. :. '!~en she d.id th~t Mr. Starnes, Mr. CampbelJ, Mr. · ~,ebruary, . . 
Albert M'cKnigh,t; Mr. Pickett, and Mr. Gordon were ther.e. When -we were 
questfoning lier, I don't _re!llember whether anyb9dy _but-MJ.!. -·Pick-ett an,d .my: 

· .___ self .. and Albe.rt McKnight were ther.e. · · · 
------"'~-· - -::-...,-.....· --:----:-: . . . -

· . . OROSS· BXA?ttrif ATION~ 
. " . . . .. . 

• • • ~ • _ • • • ·1 ~ · We went down there about 11 :30 o 'cloOk. · I 'didn ~.i -kilow that she ·had · · 
. .. . . . : ·.. . . . ·. be.~Ii in j~il .twelve ]!.ours then. · l suppose she was ·in jail ~ecause Oiey. ·n~eded_ : 

' ,-- . -. ~ I J • - ·- · • : • • • ' • • : • ~ f • f ) . • ~ ~ • • 
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her. as · a witne~s. I was in .l\ir. Dorsey's o~ce only one time 'about this mat- ~ 
. . I • . . . 

ter, the· same morning-I started out to see if ·I could get her and I went··to see 
~ . " Ml'. Dorsey about · getting her out. Her hi1sbarid wanted her · out Of jail · and 

I went to see Mr. Dorsey about gettin her out. Af.first she denied it. I 
• - qu"'stipne her for something like two hours. I didn't know she had already 
· . . 'made a statement ab~ut the truth of the transactioQ. . Mr. Dorsey dido 't read 

-: it to me. He said she w~s hyste ·cal and wouldn't t_alk at all. I w~nt ·down 
_t<Lget her to make .some kind of a- statement; I wanted her to tell the truth in 
the matter. I wanted to· see whether hei· husband was telling the truth or 
whether she was telling Ii ·falsehood .. Yes, she finally made .a statement that 
agreed with her husband, and I left after awhile. As to why I .didn't stay and 
get her· out, because I didn't want . to. . 1 ,\rent after we · got . her stat.e.ment. 
No, I didn't get her out of··jail. I did .. not look after her .any further · tha1l 
that. I don't think Mr. Dorsey told me to question her. He wanted me to 
go out to ·see her. He said "l\fr. Starnes and '.~fr. Campbell woulct"l:ie .up there 

-h--'\-----'---l1u'cLtheµvou1d l ~t us knmL8Jio_utit,_8.ncLw.u~llt up....ther.e..:an.d..Mi:...:.stame · 

.· 

~---.n<l:-l\fr...Camp.bell-broughH1erin-:---Tlury-let us see fief -alright. I did not ask----_-,------~ 
Campbell or Starnes to turn heJ,' out. I didn't ask anybody t_o turn ·her. O:ut. I 
n~ver.made -~ny suggestion to anybody about turning her o~t._ Nob_ody cursed, 
mistreat~d o~ tiireateJ?.ed this woman while I . was . there. I don't know what 

.,..... took place b_efore I got there . 
. .. 

E. ~· PICKETT, sworn for. ~he State in rebuttal. 
. r 

I work .at Beck & Gregg Hdw . . Co. I was present when t hat paper wus 
ed (State:•s exhibit J) by l\Iinola McKnight. Alber~ McKnight, Starnes, 

bell,. Mr. Craven, Mr. Gordon was preaent when she made that state­
ment. W·e questioned- her about the statement Albert had made and . she 

. denied 't ·au at first . She said she ha·d been cautioned IU>.t .to talk about this 
. affair by Mrs. Frank or Mrs. Selig . . She st.ated tbat· Albert had lied· iii· what 
· he had to d us. She finally bega~ to ·weaken on one or two points and ad­

..c..._---:-----:mitt~d t@_ sh_e_ had been• paid a -little more-,-mone i _han 'YRS ordinarily d~e· 
·... - h~~· . Tlrere as a. good many things iu that statement that·she did -not tell us, . _ 

. , · though, at fir t.. She didn't tell us all . of ~hat when . she . went at it. She 
seemed hysteric 1 at the beginning. We told her that we weren't there to . get · -

. her i'ntQ trouble, but came down there to get her out, and theri she agreed . 
· to talk.to us.but · uld not talk to the detecti~es. ·Tlte detectives then;:eti-red. 

. . . . . . . . from· the room .. ·. ~I ert told her that she knew she told 4itn those thi_ng~. She . 
. · · ·· . ·· denied it; but:finall ac-knowledged that she said a few -of those things, and 
._ · . . -amQng the i hings I re ember is .that she was cautioned not to· repeat a~ything · 

. that she ~heard. · We a ed her a thousand questions perhaps, I don't know" 
-~----.. -=--. 

7how many .. · I_ called th detectives a_n~ to)d them . ~e :Jia,d gotten -' ~ll tli.e ad-
- . _ ... mi~~ons .~e coµld. We- 'dn't Iuive any. st~nogrnpher ·and Mr._ Craven began 

. ., . . · . . wntmg it out; and Mr. C van· ha<;t wr1tte~ only a small portion when ihe 

, • - : itenogrO~hei '.ame. ~;• di · not qiak~ an Ih~t state~en~ in the Brat ~lk 

I . -· • • 
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: -~ - · .- - ·_ - _. s bfliad with us. . She didn't saf anything wiih reference to. Mrs. Frank ·hav~ ·· 
ing stated anything to .her mother on Sunday ~orning. ·The affidavit does· 
not contain anything that she did not state there that day·. ~fore she made 
that affidavit, she so.id he did eat dinner that ay. Sh~1inaily said ·he-didn1t­
eat any. t first she sa1 . he remained at home 'at dinner time about half -an 
hour or more. She finallr said he only remained lJ,bo_ut _ten piinutes. At first 
she said Albert McKnight..-was not there that day. She finally said he was 
there. She said she wfls instructed not to talk at first. At first she said her 
wages liadn 't been cha~i-ged', finaliy said her wages· had been -raised. by the . 
~eligs. As to wliat, if anythi~g, she said about a· hat being given her by Mrs. 

·. 

-... 
. -. 

.· 

... . 

·Selig, the ·only statement she made· about ihe bat at all was when she made 
the affidavit. We did.n 't know anything about the hat before. Nobody 
threatened hel' when sl~e was there. ..When "the-first questioning· was going _ o~ 
Campbell a~d Starn.es were not in there .. . They s ame in when we ·called thein 
and toid them we were ready,. Iler atto1;ney;-l!F: Gordon, came iri. with . the 

. d~!3ctives. ' · 
:: . . · .OROSS EXAMINATION. 

As to why we didn't. take her statement ,when she deaj~d saying all those 
· _ . thi.ngs, because \Ve didn't believe. them. We were down · there about three 

hours. We· went d~nvn there to try and geCl\ffuola McKnight out, if we could. · 
We asked Mr. Dorsey to get her out. He said he ·would let us stand 4er bQnd, 

··· ·a~d · J(e referred us to the detectives :..to . ]nake arrangements. . As to why we 
didn't get · her out then, we ,\ranted n statement from her if \ve could. g.et it. 

-~ No,. I didn't know ihat wh~never "the ·detectives · got- the- stm.•y they,-wanted, -
they would let her out. As to ·my going to get her out and then grilling her ---= 

· for · three. hours; I ~idn't tell her I was going U) get her out ; I \Vent down there 
to ·get her out, but" she left there· before· I did. She weut out of ihe room. The 
d~tectives treated her yery nice. · They let her go after ~he made the siate~ent . 
I knew they were holding her because she did not make a statement confirm­
ing her husband. - It was not m;v. ~bject ·to make hei stat~nient agree with her 
husband's. statement, but"it was my duiy. as a ~ood citizen ·to .make i'ter tell the 
truth. - I ~ 

DR. S. C. BENEDICT, sworn for the. State in rebuttal. . 
.. . .. . - . . 

-· · · I am president · of the State Board or Health. · I was a member of the 
Board when Dr. Westmoreland preferre4 charges against Dr. Har~is. · Those 

. . minutes (State's exhibit N) are correct. I desire 'to say that \Ve do riot wish . 
~ ..... ~~·-.. -. ~o .open ,'up that -question -agaip. Dr. ,..Westmo.rel~nd'.s charges 11r°-eI1:ot re-- - ' 

corded here. I .. don't_ think they were put . on the . minutes: T~e reply to the 
charges were put in· the minutes and the action. of the Board, The minutes . ·! . 
w.ould 1how_ wha.t action the · B~ai:d . took.' .. · : :. · ' - · 

· . . ; . . 

__ ._ .. ..::· . - - - ; _ 
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Dr .. Harris' reply is not entered . on the. ~inu~es. . The reply of the Board 
- to the charges-is-on the~minutes. . -- - - -- - - . -- ---- -- -

• • • • 'h 

J. H. HENDRIO~S, sworn for the State in l'eb~ttal. 

I am a motorman for the Gaorgia Raihy~y & Elect.de Company. On April 
26 1-·waa runnmg ·a st~ car on the 1\iarietta line to .th~· St.oc~ Yards on · 

·. D.e~atur . St: I could~~ Bli.y what time we got to.town· o~ April 26, a:bout noon. · 
·I ·have n.o cause to reinembe~ ·that . day. · The -English A venue car, with Mat­

- tbews_ al!_d Hollis . has · g~tten to town prior to April 26, ahead ·of time. I 
-.c·ouldn't say. how much .ahead of time. I Iiiive seen them come in two or 
three minute.ritlrnrulof time; that day-they came about 12 :06. Hollis would· 
uqually leave Broad and Marietta St: on my car. . I couldn't swear positively . 

'--'"--------=..::..:.;.::..:L...::..:...~~__:_~..::.=...::.....::..:....:..:__:.__:.__:___:_:..,__.!<_c_:.:..C...:.__:~:...e,:.e.c=__:_.:..c..:.....:.::..::_£~.:.:...:_.::..:..t..~ ~ 

what time I got to Broad an~ Marietta St.- on -April 26. ·I couldn't swear ~what 
time Hollis and Matthews got there thl\t day. ;; I. don't · know anything· about 

:-----~_.,ha.t~ Often they get there ahead of.thne. · Som.etimes.they a.re puni~Jied for it: , . . . . - . 

· . · : <J. C. _Mc~WiNG, _swo'Ii for th~ State in .. rebuttal. 

. _-i :ain a stre.et car inotorruaii; · I ·ran on Marietta and _Decatur St. April 
· 26. My car was ~ue in town at ten minutes after the hour on April 26. Hollis 
and Mattlie.'\\'S' car was 'due there 7 minut~~ after-the hour. Hendricks car 

---'---'--'-- __ was_due there 5 minutes after the · hour .. The English .. Avenue frequently 

. " 

cut off the White City car dµe in town at 12 ·05. The White .City ·car. is due 
. there~be-fur-e ·tl~e English Avenue.· It is due . 5 minutes after the hour and the 
· Cooper ~treet; i!rdUrl-mimites-a.fter. - Th~ ·English- A venue would h~ve to be 

. · ... · ahead of time to cut .-off the Cooper· St. car. -'Fhat happens quite'-often. I 
have come in ahe,ad. of time very often . . I 4ave known ·the English -Avenue 

.-.- .. car to be 4 or 5 minufes .ahead of-time . __ -:___._ .. ' .. . -
- ~ _. · _ OROSS EXAMJN.M'ION. 

·: ~ ·j ~ : '-... 

- ._ . - I don't know· wbeJl that happened . or who ran the cal'. I don't know 
· ·whether they raµ on flChedule t.ime on A)>:i.:_il 26, or not. When one car is. cut 

off on 'mi ht be ahead of dme, and one 'might ibe behind time. It's re~sona­
bltr-to -suppose-ihat the 'five mmu~es after car o~ to come i11 ahead · of the 

· one due seven minutes after. If it .·was behirtd· ·it . \yol,!ld. ·-be cut off, j~8t as 
Jlasy as the other one would be cu~ oft' ·by being ahead. -... · 

/ ---

' . ;. .. --.. · .· .· . . 
--· . _ _,_M. E;·Mc_OOY,_ sworn for · the · State, in reb"Qttal. . -· '-...... A 

- .· ' . .. : .·., I knew Mary Ph~g1u1; I saw heron-April ~6: in front of Oooled~e.'s place, . 
__ ,_at 12 Forsyth....St. S~e was going towards pen~il company, aouth on Fortyth . ·•J· .· ~n right hat;id_ side. --It WlliJ net'l!-~~~lve o~Clo..ck._I left~corner · orWal-
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. ton and. F.orsyth St. exMtlY t~elye o 'clQck and ;a~c straight 9n down there. 
- It took. me three .or four minut~s to go there. · 

- . 
OROSS EXAMINATION. 

. I know what time · it was because I loo.ked . at my watch. First· time I 
., · d' told it \Vas a week ago last Satur,day, when I told an officer. I didn't teli it 

because I dido 't want to have anything to do with it. I dido 't consider it 
~s~a matter .. of importance until I saw the statement of the-motorman of the 
car she canw--in on, and -I :Knew that was wrong. She was dressed in blue, a 
lo-W·! ~hunky · girl.- Her hair was not very dark. She had on a blue <hat . . 

:-C" GEORGE. K~NDLEY, "v~rn 1or-the Staie)"~~tal . . _· ~ : ·_ ~· __ . _· _ · _· __ 

..,.-~---=--~--~-um :v.itl1-tli~ol!gla-R.a1lwa..~~~o...--Lsa.l~~mo.hou - · 

• 

• noon on April 2~. 'she was going to tl(~ pencil -factory from :Marietta St. 
· .. :Wh~n .I ~n,v10-~ she .stepped ?ff 091~e ; iadu?t. : 

. · . __,,/. . . . . . .9'°(s EXAMINATION. . 

· (was · on the front~ ~ild of the Hap~vilre car when I saw her. It is due 
. own a t 12 ·~·c~k. J ·don't know if it was on .time that d_ay. I told sev-

eral Jleople· ab_.9-llt. seeing her the ne~t day. If Mary Pha~an le!t home at 10 
minutes to J -2; she ought to lu1;ve. got to town about 10 minutes after 12 some-

. where j.Idhat· neighborliood. She could not hav.e gotten in much e{lrlier. Th.e · 
· th!).e-1i1a~ i saw her is simply an estimate.- ·. That -was the time my ~ar was 
.-due in town. I remember seei~g- her by reading. of the tragedy the next day. 
I didn't testify at the Coroner's inquest because nobody came to. ask me. No, 
I have not abused and villified Frank since thi!'! tragedy. .No, I have not made 

: ·mys.elf a nuisance on the cars by talking of him: I know Mr. Brent. · I didn't 
tell him' tha1 Mr. Frank's ~ildren 'said- he was ·guilty. Mr. Brent· asked .me 

~~------what thought abouL it seYeral tim.es ou the CJ).r. He has alwaI§.J>een the 
aggressor. As to whether I abused and villifled him in_ the presence of Miss 

~ ,. 

· Haas l!Jld other passengers, there has been so much talk that ·r don't kno:w 
-,~hat has been said .... i: . don't thipk-haid if he was~ released I wouid JQin . a/ 
·party to ly:nch him. Somebody !faid if he got out there might be s.9me ·trouble. 

·-·r. don't remember saying. tha! I_ would join .~ . party to. ·help lynch him if he · 
got out . ._ I talked to Mr. Leach ·about it. · I d(jn 't rem~mber what I tolq him. : 
I told him 'I saw her over there a out• 12 o'clO-ck. That was the time the car ·"'i 
was dUe in tow_n. I know I saw her befo~e 12;05: My car was. on schedule ' 

· -time. · l couldn't swear it \vns exactly on the ~inute. · -

-~- - L ___ ._·. 

· HENRY.HOFFMAN,· sworn· for the St~tefo . rebuttal. ----~-·-· -
. . . '• . .· - . . 

·I am inspector of ihe street car company. Matthews .. is under ·me 'a cer­
---~,ain part: of tile d.ay. "-On April .26 he. was under:·me -from 1l :30 to 12 :07. ·ms 

car ~a~. ·due a~ -Broa4 ·and · ~arietta at 1-2~07. · There is no .sqCll seh!!dule !l!I . · 
. . . ··-~ ... . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .· . . . 

--:_~_; ,.; ... ~~\-:;~~~-. ~ ~., -~· ._., -r > .: l-=- - _. . - --· - -· - ·-
~""'! . ·- _ · _:~~~ r.· ·~ tt · ..., - - --""; 
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12 :07 1-2. I have bee,n on his. car \vhen Ire ." cut off the Fair St. car. : Fair· St. 
·ca-r-is-due at 12 :05. I have compared watches with .him. Th.ey vary from 20 
to 40 seconds. We ·are supposed to. carry the · right time. ·1 have catled · 
Matthews attention to running 1J.head of schedule once· or twice. They, e_ome 
in ahead of -~ime on relief time for supper and·· ~inner. 

-- -- · -·--- - ···---OROSS--BXAMINATION. -' -·~--.~ 

i don't iwow anything ~bout . his coming on April 2~th. We found out he -
. was ahead of time way along last March. · He was a mlnute and a half ahead. 
l have caught him as much as three minutes .ahead of time last spring, · on th.e 
trip ·due in ·town 12 :07 .. I didn't report him, I just talked to him. · I ·have 

. ' ' ' . . . ' . 
known him to be ·ahea:d of time twice in five -years w~ile he was under my 

-8.U ----- .~-=--=-----

r . 
. N~ KELLY, sworn for-the-State in rebuttal. 

. : I a~ ~ mo_!orman of the ·Georgia ;Railwa~ ~ Power. Co. On April. 26, I 
was standmg at. the corner of Forsyth and · Marietta St. about. three mmutes 
a-fter 12. · · I was going to catch the College Park car home about 12 :10. I saw . 
the English Avenue. car of Matthews. and Mr. Hollis .. arrive at Forsyth an~ 
_Marietta about 12 :03. I knew Mary Phagan. She was not · on that car. 

-~--.-· . · She ..m_ight have gotten off there, but. she didn't come .around. · I got on that 
• • car at Broad-and Marietta and went around Hunter· St.. .She was .not o~ there. · 

.\ .: ~ . 

. . - - --- . . ' 

· CROSS EXAMIHATION. 

I didnJi-say anything about this because I didn't · want to get mixed up 
in it. I told Mr. Starnes ab6ut it this morning. I have never. said anything 
about it bef~~e. That car, was due 'in...tffi1m....a 2 :q.7. 'J'.he . Fair. S!:._e,ar ~as 
behjnd it. · · 

·w. B. OWENS, sworn for t!!e_ St~te in r.ebuttai'. 
. . -· 

~ rode on the ·white City line of the . G~orgiµ._ Railway & El~ctric Qo. It is · 
due at 12 :05. Two minutes ahead of the-English- A.v-enue- ear.--W-e:-got- to 
town on April 26.-at 12 :05. I don't reniember seeing· the English Avenue car · 

.. that day. I have known that car to come in a minute ahead of us, sometimes 
· two minutes -ahead. - Tlmt was af er :A:pr1126. ·· I don't· recall whether it oc-
cur~ed b.efor.e ·April 26. . .. · · 

. . ~ 

LOUIS .INGRAM, sworn for ,the State in rebuttal. 
' . ' 

I '·am · a conductor on the English .i\. venue · line. I · cafue ·to town on that 
cal' on April .26. I do}l't know-what time we came to town. I have seen that .· 

. ,_.,.)' .-... ·· .. _-011~ c~~&-:i~~~~~d~-time . se~eral _times, someti~e~. as ~uch as . fo~r-minutes . . 
· ~~ • • ., "'ii> . • . -.--. . . . 

- . . 1. 

......:. -- --. .\ 
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.· 
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. : ah.ead. I ~ow . Matthews, the motorman. I ha:ve- ridden in witb bim wl)en 
. he :was . ahead of time several tlmes. . . . ... • . . . 

" 

It is against the rules to come in ahead of time, and also to come . in behin.d · 
time. . They punish you ~or either one. - .- -. ----=---_.:_ __ :. 

. . ... 

----:: w .. M. MJ\T.THEWS; sworn for the State ill rebuttal. 

.. I have t:alked with 'this man Dobbs (W. C.) but. I don't : kn~w what .I 
. . tatk<ld a~out. .J have never told him. or · anyl!ody that I s·aw Mary Phag~n 

get off t.Iie .car with George Epps at the corner of Marietta and Broad. v · It h·as . 
been two· years since I have been tried"for an offense in ihis court, .. ·. •. ..... 

' . . . I was acquitted by. the jury. ·· I had to kill a man on my car · who. ·as~ 
sault~d-=me. 

. . . 
W .. C. DOBBS, sworn for tf1c· State in rebuttal. .. - - - --

Motorman Matthews ·told me two or three days after . the murder . 'that 
1\fary_:_Pha !\n and ·George EpJ?S got on bis c-ar togetl!:eramI- rnft, rM"Brietta 
and Broad ·st. . - · " · · · ·_ · 

·OltOSS 'EXAMINATION. 
, 

Sergeant_ Dobbs is niy_father. -· -· \ 

W. W. ROQ-ERS, sworn for. the State in rebuttal. 

On Sunday morning after the· !nurder, I tried to ·go up . t~e stairs leading 
from .. the.J1asem.ent up to the next fioor. The door was fastened down. The 
staircase was very dusty, like it ha~l' b.een ~ome .li.ttk_time since it had been '. 
swet. There was a little mounci or' shavings right where the chute cau,.e down 
<.>n the· basement door. The bin was ab.oui a foot and a half fro~ the chute. - . . . 

·" ~· 

.· 

: SERGEANT .L, S.. DOBBS, sworn for the . State in reb~ttal.- ..... · 
"' .. . . . .. - . . . --.-.-- - - ---- --, 

r · . basement in rear of .factory. There wer~ . c~bwebs and dust there. The door 
•~--------~w~as_cloae1.L...----'------~--------------'-----------

.• 

0. TILLAN~ER, sworn ·for ·the Stat~ in "rebuttal. · ·.. : 

... ... '· --M:~. Graham and I went. to the pentiil fact~ry on April 26, ·about ,2o' .min-.. 
. ·. · ·utes to .. 12. We. went in .f!orn 'the _st~e·et and ·~-~ke.d. around .ai:id I. found ~ 4lt 

. :,,.. ... . ·. 
- . ._ _ \ 

~ . ~::"--~,,..~~:r .-~~h~i '~·~- · ... !"l':;l';;c..;">r-:~·r>..~..r-;~ .. : r ".:'.-~~/~, ,, -;-: .~ '"· · ·:· ::-~ ., ~'. ::.· · ,~ .... ~~~~_;· 
-----~~ . - "· ~ .. ·~ -I _...!. _ _ _:__ • 
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. . 
negro coming from a dark . alley ·way, and I asked him for the oftlce ·and h~ 

. told · me ~o go· to ~he· : second floor and·'turn to the right. I saw Conley t~is· 
-.- . -. - . morn!ng. I am not positive that he is the man. He looked to_ be about the 

same size. When I went to the .office the stenographer was in the ·outer oftlce. 
Mr .. Frank w~ in the inner -office sitting at hi!!_ d_~sk. I went there to get· my· 
step~son's -~oney. -

r.-----'-----'·~. - - 7---=--- .._ ___ _ 
- ---- --- - -~---·----

E. K. GRAH~M, sworn for the Stf!_te in rebuttal. 
, . . - . 

I ~as-at the pencil f.actory ~prif 2'6;6 witlf-Mr. Tfifander, about_20 min­
utes to 12. we· Diet a n~gr.o · on th~ ground _floor. Mr. Tillander asked him 

.· 

-·.--.-
where the .. office was, and he told him to go up the steps. I dQn 't kiiow 

-.,.-----~...:hetlr,erit-was-Jifil-eonley-oN:tot-;-IIe-Was-a-bout-tl1e~s~me-s~,-but-h Wa&--u--- -------. 

·little brighter than Conley. If 'h~ .. ~as dnmk I couldn't" notice it. l wouldn't · 
. : have noticed-it anyway .. 

') ·eaos~ ·•XAMINATION .. 

Mr, .Fi:ank and ·his .stenographer were. u:pstairs . . He\was at his dei;k. - I . 
didn't see any lady when .I came ~,!lt. ·- - - :. ~~ --,: - :- . . - .... - .. . 

-.~. 

. ,. 
. . 

J. W. COLEMAN, sworn for the State in rebuttal. · · . . . . - \ .. ·- ._,,,...._ 
I remember a conversation I had witl~ detective McWorth~ He exhibited . 

an envelope to me with a figu~e '' 5 '' on the right of i~. 

OBOSS EXAMINATION. 
'-.. 

. This does .not seem_.to be the envelope he. showed me. (Defendant!~ ex-
~---::-- -=:bi bit -47). ',J,'he ng_tire ,., 5" -was on. it. - I d.on 't see ·it now. I told him at the 

time t.hat Mary was due "$1.20, and that "5" on the right would not suit for 
ili~ ~ 

i 

;,J·, M. GANTT, ~worn fQ.r. the State in._rebµttal. 
-

. ___ . _ I have seen Leo Frank ·make . up t.h~ finan.cial. sheet. It. W()Uld ~ake him 
·. .; . · ' .·an hour. and· a half after I ·gav:e hlin-th~ data. _. · 

-:-----'---,-. _ _,_-~ ~·: _,· ·~·rvnoNES-:-( c); ·sworrl for. the · State 1.n -rebuital. . . ~ 
. .I saw Jim Con:Iey at the corner. of Hunter and Forsyth· St. on April 26. 

· . He· c.ame ~ the ·saloon 'fhile I ·w.as there, .between one and two o'clock. . lie 
~-::===~-,--- ~as nord~nk "when l -saw him . . The salo'on iiL.on..J:.he opposiie ·corner .fJ.'.Om / ' -

.. . 

· the ·factory. .We W
4
ent on towards . Conlex 's home. I left, : ~m at .t)le co~e~, 

-eJ . . f-H~nter?ln,d-D~~ St. a li~tle ~fter ~w9 o'clock.· _ .. . _ . . ... 

··-c:::.::~~~~-- -'.;~::_: : ..• --. -. ·~~:::, .,--:::.-: ~~~;,.;._ . , ~- -~~~.~~.~;;."~"'?'~-:.:.-i:._· ___.· --
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·--· - - ·- - .·· . .... HARRY SCOTT, sworn for the State in r~buttal. 
. . •· - . 

" I picked up cord in the basem(mt when I .went through there with Mr. 
Frank. · Lee's shirt had no color- «;>n it, exceptil!g that of blood. I got .the 

---information as .to .Conley's ·being able to write from McWorth when I re­
turned to Atlanta. As to the convers#ion' Black and I had, with Mr: Frank · 
about Darley, Mr. Frank .-&aid. Darley was the soul of honor ·and that we had 
the wrong man; .that there was no use in inquiring about Darley and he knew 
Darley c~mld not · be responsible' for such an act. .· I told him that we had good · 

. , ~n~mation to the effect that Darley had been assocfating 'vith other girls 
in the . factory; that ·he was .a .. married man and had a family. Mr. Frank 
didn't seem to"know anything about. that. 'He 'said it was a peculiar ·thing: 

,.·fo~ a man in Mr. Darley's position to be ass~ting with factory e~ployees, . 
if he was doing it. · · . . . · .. . · . · · . 

. ORC)SS EXAMINATION. 

We left aft~r about two hourljl inteiwiew. 

. . ... . . . 
L. T. KENDRICK, sworn for the State in rebuttal. . . . 
I was night wat~hman at· the pencil factory ·for solnethin_g like two_years. 

·I ·punched the clock1( for a whole night's work in two ·or three :ininutes. The 
clock at the faJtory .needed setting about every 24 hours. It vari~d from three 
to five minl!tes. That is the clock slip I punched (State Exhibit P). I ·don't 
think you could have heard the eleY..ator o.n the-top floor if the machinery 

· · was running or any 'One 'Yas knocking on any of the floors.. The back stair­
way was ve:cy_dusty and showed that th.ey had not been. used lately after ·the 

~-~-tnurder·. I .have seen Jim Conley at the fact~ry Saturday afternoons. when 
I went th.ere to get my money .. 

OROSS EXAMINATIO!L· 
, _____ '-:.....-'-- ·i genera.Uy got to the factoi:y about a quarter of two to t'~o-thirty. The 

clodk 'vas usually corrected every morning. The clock wouM run slow some~ 
times and sometimes fast. --· -.... .. 

·, F 
-:~-- . 

VERA EPPS, sworn for -the State in ·rebuttal. . . . . . 
. · .My brother George_ was in the house when Mr. Minar was -~eking · us. 

· about the last} itne we .saw }4ary Phagan. I don't know if he heard the 
.· questiops aske . . -George gidn 't tell him thllt he didn't see :Mary-. that Satur­
· ·day. · · I t~ld him I ha~ see.n Mary P}J.agan 'J,'hursday . 

.. 

C. J : M,A. YNARD, sworn for the State in rebuttal. . . . 
-I ha~e seen J3urtus Dalton g~ in th~ factory .with ·a ·~oman. in June or 

· ·July, 1912 ... ·She weighe~l' abo.ut 125 pounds: It. ·was .between i :30"·and ·· 2 
. O·'clock in the afternoon on a Saturdat ~-- -- ~: :.·· ·. . . .. . . .. : --

.. . 
-. ~.--. -· '" .- -. . -.--~--: _,,~~ ....... -~ ... -' . . ...:~ -.. _ . . -... ,;:-· - \ .. 

-~-\ .. ---:-·--··~ -.---- '· 

•• 

·-

(I - · 

• ·.=:. 



. . ·'! 

·•-

... ...... ~ · · ,. .. ·. 

-.-- -- -_--::--::-23u-------~ 

.... · ~ - . · OROSS EXAMINATION. ·' 

I w·as ten ·feet frQm t~e woman. I didn't notice her very particularly: I 
· ~did-not-~speak-:to-ihem. ·. .. · · · 

W. T; HOLLIS, s'Yorn for the State in rebuttal. 
• ' I • 

Mr. Reed- rides out witlune e~e.rY- morning. I don't remember talking 
to J .. ·D. Reed on M;on~ay Aprii 29, and telling-him that George Epps-and Ma:ry _ 
Phagan were on my car togeiher. I didn't.tell that to anybody. I say.- like 
~ha.ye always said, :ihat if _he was ·on the car I did not see.him. . 

J. · D. 'REED, sworn fo~ t~e St~te in . rebuttal~ 

' · 

r. .ollis told me on Monday, pr112'8, that Epps had gottenonth-e-c·J[l"'---~---­

I . . 
and taken his seat next" to Mary, and that the two talked to each other all 
the way as though they were little sweethearts: · 

. J. N. STARNES, swo_rn for the State in rebutial. 

. There were no spots around the scuttle hole where the ladder is imme­
diately after the murder, Campbell and I .arrested M:inola McKnight, .. .to get 

. a statement from her. · We iurned her.-~·er to th'.e patl'.ol wa~on and _we n·ever 
saw her lfny more -until the following day, when. we calkd Mr. C-raven and 
Mr. Pickett to come down and interview her. We stayed on the outside while 
she was on th~ inside with Craven and Pickett.·, -They called us back and I ._ 
11aid to her, "~in9la, the truth is all we want, and if this is i:iot the truth,-don't 
you state 'it. Aita she started· to put the statemen~· dowri. Mr. Gordon', her 
-ttorn.eY,w88-6n-ihtiutside; .and Hold-him-we --could go inside without-his 

· · · making ~~Y demand' on me, and he went in with me,.. and Mr.' February had· 
'. already taken down part of the statement and I ·stopped him · and made him 

. . ..re~d over what he had· already' taken down, a~d after she bad finished the 
• • .', •1 . _ statement, Attorney Gordon_ :we~t to ·Mr. Dorsey's office and then he came 

. :·back to 'the -police station. After he returned the affidavit. )VllS rMd OV~r in 
the presence· of Mr. Pickett, Cr.aven, -Campbell, Albert McKnight, and Attqr­
ney. Gordon and sh_e sig:µed it i~ our-presence. You (Mr. Dorsey) had nothing 

· . ~ to do witl1 ·holding he:f. ··:: Yori told me over the phone that yot1 couldn't say 
, ·- ' .:--.. what· I .could do, but 'that I could do what I ple.ased ·about it .. · · ... · ·" .. · . . . . . . . . . 

OROSS EX~ATION. 

· ... No,._ I . did not lock her ·up be~atise .11he dldn 't give us the right kind of · 
~-"--...,...,.,tateni'eni,.118 .to the authority I had 'to lock her up, if. was reasonable and 

. ..:right--thak she should be locked up. . I did that for · the. best i~terest of the 
. '- . -..,-ease· I was working -0n . . No;-r aidn 't ha ye any '_ warrant fQr her 'arrest. She 

was brought to Mr; ·norsey 's office by .a .bailiff by ·a: subpoena. - I tQok-her away 
• • . • • • • .' • • . ; • . . . • . . <>- ... . . . • . 1 • • • • 

. -. ~ . . ( 
-.. - ...-- - ·.~-~. -.. - . . -:--- . . . -. ; ~ .... 
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fro~ Dors.ey's office . and put her ·in a pati:ol .wagon. I expect Mr. Dorsey 
knew we were gohtg to lock her up, but he did not . .tell us to do it. · No; he 

· di(i)l 't disappro'1e of it. I -didn't kµow anything about her having made a 
. : previous . statement to MP .. Dorsey. ·1 think Ml'. Dors_ey said she had made 

,/such a statement. I saw her the next day in the station house. ·she didn't 
/ . 

/ scream after leaving Dorsey's ·office until she reached the sidewalk. And then 
/ " 

she commenced. hollering and carrying on that she . was going to jail; that 
-·--·-she didnlt-know .anything about it, or_ somethl.J>.g like that. No, ·r had no 

Wal't'ant for her arrest. She l:lad committed no crlme. I held lier" to get the 
truth. Mr. Dorsey told me I ~ould turn her loose as I pleased. T~at · wa!I 
after ·she made the sta,tement. · I told_him as .to what liad occurred and that 

·. her attorney, Gordon, was coming up there to see him. I told Col . . Gordon 
----that "if it. was agreeable witb Col. Dorsey, that Minolacould go aS' far as we · 
· were concerned: Well7°"?ifr. Dorsey had more or less to-do-with the ·case that 

• 

I was workmg on an· . wante to a~ on ns a v,ice an consen . - e ca ed~. --~--­

~ I . 

·' 

me on the telephon_e and told me -that _if the chief thought it best. or if we 
thought it best· after ·conferring, to just let her go. · · 

I:; . • . . ( 

. . . 
fiR. CLARENCE JOHNSON, sworn for the State in rebuttal: - . - ~. . .., 

. I am a specialist on diseases of the stomach_ and intestines. I alll: a phys~-
ologist. A physiologist makes his searches on the living body ; the pathol9gist . 
·makes his on· a dead body. If you give any ope_ who- has drunk a chocolate 
milk at about eight o'clock in the morning, cabbage at 12 o'clock and 30 or 
40 minutes therea.fter you take the · cabbage out and it is shown to be -dark, 
like chocolate and milk, that niuch cont'ents-of any kind vomited up three and ·· 
a half hours afterwards would show an abnormal stomach.· It dQesn 't show 
a normal digestion . . If a "little girl who. eats a dinner of cabbage and bread .. 

-at 11 :30 is found the next morning dead at 3 a. m., with a . rope- around hel' 
neclC, mdented and the flesh sticking up, bruised on ti1e eye, blQod on th_e 
b~ek of ·her head, the tongue sticking out, blue skin, every indication that she 
came to her ·death from strangulation, her head. down, rigor mortis_. had been 
ou, her twenty hours, the blood had settled in her· where the ·gl'avity would 
natu~ally take it. in the face/ she-is· embalmed, formaldehyde is used and in­
je-cted in the various cavities of the body, includi~g the stomach, a pathologist 
_takes her stomach a week or ten days after; finds cabbage of tl\at size (State~s 
.exhibit· G) in the stomach, finds starch granules undigested, and finds in the 
stomach that the -py.loris . is still cJosed, that there is nothing in the first six 
feet of the small. intestines; .that -tbere-is every iiidication that -dlgestion had 
been . progress~g favorably, and finds ·thirty-two degrees ·hydrochloric acid, 
and if the. pe.tho_logist is capable and finds that · there was . only combined 
hydrochloric acid and that there was· nq abnormal condition of the stomach 

· th~ six feet· of. the injestiµes--Was empty, I ~ould say that : ttle ··dige.eti_on of 
· bread aud cabbage was ~topped within an honr'.after they were eaten". ·That 
. woUld not 'be a wild ness in n.iy opinion. · · · _ .,-,; :, .... · .. . . . .· . 

- --::'t--- . .. 
/ -· • .: _,........ _ . , ___ ;b~ - ~:" ';J::.. ~·· ----~~- .. . ~~~ 
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. OltOSS EXAMINATION. 

'rlie bruises on· the head,· the evidence of strangulation. and other illjurf~s 
·--about the bean are other possible factors which must be taken into· .considera- . 
·,· tion. Anything which disturbs the circulation of he-blood, or hinders the 

action of the nerves. controlling the stoma~h, especially the secretion, . prevents 
th~ development of the characteristics found in norm&l-d.i:gestion one hour after . . 
a meal. I mean by mechanical condition of the s}omach, no change in the 
size or thickness, . or opening into the intestines, or size or thickness of in­
testines . . The test should be made with absolute . accuracy with these acids. 

, " . 
The color test is generallY- accepted.-- A.-man 1s eye. has to be absolutely cor-

. rect to make the color test. ~ '11he degree · ~f acidity in a ·no.rmal stomach varies 
from 30 to 45 degrees, according to the stomach and what is in it. The formal-·· 
deby~e WO'!Ild make ~O change on the physical property Oll the ·pancreatic 
'uice found in the small intestine after death. ' rhere would be hardly any 

.. ~. ·. 

change on.it11ehemical property. When it comes in contact ·wit t -e orma .---------
'dehyde it is supposed to. be p~·eserved. · tt has · some neutralizing effect on the 

· .alkali present. That decomposes in time· after death, ·unless hindered by some 
pres.ervative. The bydrochlor-ie acids in the s~omacl1 ialso disappear if the 
stomach has disint~grated and the pre~ervative has~isf!.ppe~r~d. It disappears 
like the other fluids and tissues of the body unless hindered. by 11om.e preser-

-~-~-· _' '--~~·v~ative ag~nt. Sometimes dige~tion is ·delaye<;l .a . good deal even in a normal 
· stomach. by insuftlc'i.ent--nrnstication, too rimch diluting of the juices, or any-· · 

· thing that hinders ' the Qperatio~ gf· the ·Inechanical effect. Illsutll.cieni masti-
. ~ _ _,__ catiQD ·is one of the commonest causes, ·ai:O· tl~e taking of too much liquid. 

-..,--··--·· Fatigue oc.casioned by extensive · .\~alking \vol.t)d hinder Tt. -If the walking 

·,. 

. ~-. · . .,. . ., 

. . w:as not too extensive to produce fatigue, it "~ould help <;ligestion ·in a normal 
._:-stomach. Insufficient" mastl~ation ·is th~ ,,iorst ca.use of delayed digestio~. My~~ ', 

· . estimate was that th~ ~abbage.·\~as. foui'i~ ~n hou~ after the process of diges­
tion. had beg~n. I did cnoti ui.ciertake · to--say when the digestion . began. -Y-0u - ----­
can't tell by-1ook.ing at ·food . in ~ . bottle ·J1ow ~ucl1 t~1e . failure to masticate it 

elayed digestion in · ho~tr:s . an.(f."lliili~tes. ·:. ·Jt" ·w.:ouid ;be just an· estimate. The 
physicai 'appearance ·of t.hot. cabbage (U.efendant's ·Exhibit 88). shows indi­
gestion~ the layer! .. clJaracter ~.nd . s.fz~. · :a·na · afe~ ~f separation betwe~en, a~d­
the character and arrangement ·Of the laye1•s below. The mere fact that it 
was vomited up w~uld...:.b.e p_roof p·0sitive· that ·no scientific opinion 'could be · 
made about it. To ma.Ke· a scientific test I. w.ould. have 'to test the mechanism 

. of.the stomach, the time it- was· in there and the degree and . p~esen® of the 1 . • 

. dift'e~ent acids. The chocolate . mltk would . ~ot naturally . stay . fo a nOJ,',J!!al _ . 
. stoma~ live or si:ic. hours. ·The cabbage would stay in a normal .empty stom-

ach "\Vhere there ·w~s a iomato atso three-or four hours. I never made any 

·test ~f)\f•rY, Phogan'• _stomach .and ex~rnincd the :·.:~ten_1>. i .. ' . 
- -· ··-· ·- · - ~- ·---- ·-' :rl. -:- ·.It-~-· ·· ~ .. ·:· ·~ ~~ .·· ~:··~-... 
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RE-DntZOT -EXAMINATION~ . 

· · 160 cubic · cc. of -liquid in the stomach takep out nine days afterwards 
would be ·a little in excess of what I would consider normal under the condi-

I 

tiQns already ·name.d. ___ _ _,__._ 
- -- ------

DR.. GEORGE l\L NILES, swor.n for t he State in rebuttal. 

I confine my work to diseases of digestion . Every healthy stomach has 
a .certain definite a~d orderly relation to every other· healthy stomach. As-
suming a youn·g lady between thirteen and fourteen years of age at 11 :30 April . 
26, 1913, eats a ·meal of Cf!,bbage a,µd bread, that the next morning about three _. 
o 'clo<rK her dead body is found. 'l'hat th er are-indent-ations~in· her neck wh~re 
>t cord had .been aroi91d her throat, indicating that she died of strangulat~o11 
her nails ,blu~, hei: face blue;_ a sl_igh_t injury on the back oL the head, a con­

---tused bruise on one of' her e es the bod . o.uncLwit.h--th.e-faee=do~i-g~--­
mortis had beeno n from sixteen to twenty hours, that the blood in the body 

·has settled in the part where gravjiy would naturally carry it, that the body is 
embalmed immediately with a fluid cons~sting · chiefly of formaldehyde, which 
is injected in the veins and cavities of the body·; that she is disinterred nine 
days thereafter; that cabbage .of this texture (State's exhi.bit G) is found in 
her stomach; that the position of the stomach is normal; that no inflammation 
of the stomach is found _by misc'roscopic investigation; that· no ~ucous is 
found, and that the glands found ltnder this microscope .are found to be nor­
mal, that there is no obstruction to ihe flow of-t;he conte,µts of the stomach 
to the small intestine; that the pyloris is closed,-thartlrere ·is every indication 

· that digestion was progressing fayQrably; that in the gastric ,juices there is 
--· - found starch granules that are shown by the color test to have been undigeste~, 

and that in that stomach \YOU also find thirty-two degreei; of hydrochloric acid, 
no maltose, no dextrin, no free · hydrochloric acid (there woura be more or less 
.free hydrocholoric acid in the course ~{an hour or more in th~ orderly pro- -· 

--,.------.. - -;-gressof-digestufn ofa healthy stomach where the contents are carbohydr~tes), -

.· 

• ..:. • • 'I. " 

··! 

I would say that indicated. that· d:lge!,';tion h~d been progressing less than an 
hour. The -sta,rch digest~on should have progressed beyond the state erythro­
d~xtrin. in course of an hour. There should have bee~ ~nough free- acid to 
have stimulated th~ pyloris to relax to a certain extent; and there should ·have 
been_ some contents in the duodenum. _I am· asimming, of ·course, that it is a 
healthy stomach and that the digestion was not disturbed by any psychic · · 
cause which would disturb -the mind or any severe physical ·e:x:er,cise. ( ·am 
not going so much on• the physical appearance of the. cabbage. ·Any severe 

. physical exercise -<>r mental -stress -has_ qliite an JJJ.lluenGe ~n digestion. Death 
.,.does not .change ·the composition of ·the gastric juices wlien combined with · 
hydrocholoric acid for quite awhile. The gastric . juices .combined· -with. the 
hydro~holoric acid ar,e an antiseptic or preserva~. · . There is ·a .wide variation 
in diseased stomachs as to digestiOn., . . . 

\ 

.- . -:·..:..~ ~ ... 
· · · --· 

.. 
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· OROSS EXAMINATION ' . . .·· \ . ' . 
. . · ·There are itliosyncracies in a" riormal stomach, but where they ·. are too . 

marked I would not consider that a normd stomach. I wouldn't say that there 
is a mecbanica\ rule where you can .measure the digestive power -of ~very 

. · stomactlfor ev.ery kind of food:-. There· is a ·set time for every stomach' to 
. digest . eve1•y kind of food within fairly regular limits, that. is, . a healthy 

stomach. · Thel'€'.is ·a fairly mixed . standard. There is no great amount of 
variation between healthy stomachs. I can't answer for how long it takes 

· cabbage to digest. I have · taken cabbage out of a cancerous stomach that 
had- been in there twenty-four hours, but ther_e was no obstruction. The long­
est time that I have taken cabbage out of a fairly normal stomach was between 

-. -· -- four and five hours. That was where it was in the stomach along · with an­
. other meal. · I found the cabbage atiiong the remains of the meal four or five 

hours after it .had been eaten. Mastication is a very important function of ' 
---~1mtion. - -Pailure to-niasrtcatfliela s the starch digestion. ·Starch nd c~b-- ------ - -

-~ -

bage are both carbohydrates. I would say that if cabbage went intp a healthy 
· stomach not well. masticated, the starch digestion would · not get· on so well, 
. but the stomach· would get. busy at once. Of cours~, it would not be p~epared 

-. · as weil. The digestion wo_uld be delayed,. of course·. , 'riiat cabbage is not as 
well digested as· it should have been (State's exhibit G), but the -very fact of 

·your antfoipating a good meal, smelling it, starts your -saliva going and forms 
- the first stage of digestion, and digestion is begun right there in ·t11e mouth, 
even if .you haven't . chewed it a single 1ime. Any deviation from good 

- ·- mastication retards digestion. I couldn't presuine--to say how fong that cab­
bage fay in l\Iary Phagan 's stomach. I believe if it had been a live, healthy 

___ .~-- stomach 'a;n_d the process of digestion was g~in.g on orderly, it would be pul­
verized in four or five hours!. It would be more . broken up and tricturated 
than it is. I wouldn't c;!Onsider that a wild guess. .I think it would have been 
fai'rly well pulverized in three hou'rs. Chewing amounts to a great deal, but 
there should be an amount of saliva in her stomach even if she hadn't mas-

----- ___ ticated it. thoroughly. Chewing is a _temperamental matter to a g.reat extf,nt. 
One man chews his meal quicker than -another.- If-it isn-'t chewed at all, tlie 

·stomach gets busy and helps out all it11al! and digests it a fter awhile. .It takes 
more effor.t, of course, but not necessadly more time. W}\at the teeth .fail to 
do the stomach does . to -a great extent. The stomach has an extra amount -of 
work if it is- not masticated. You cal,l't tell by looking at· t}1e cabbage how 
,long it had beep. "undergoing the process of digestion_. -J.tthjj.t- was a healthy 
stomach with combined acid of 32 .degrees, and nothinf}' happened either 
·physical or mental to interfere with digestion, those laboratory findings in­
dicated that digestion had been progressing less than an hour. I never made 

. ' . 

"-. c . 

.. ... 

· an autopsy or examination of the contents of Mary Phagan 's stomach. · . . - . . 
. . RE-DIRE.OT 'EXAMINATION .. 

The fi.r~t stage of digestion is starch dtgestion. . This pi:ogresses in the . 
stomach unfil the contents -become;--acid in ~l~ :i~s ._parts . . Then the starch ·diges-

. . / 

. --·--- - :_ -:: . 
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tion .stops until the contents get out in the fotestines and become alkaline in 
·reaction; then the starch digestion is · continued on beyond. The alfactories 
act as a stimulant to the salivary glands. . · 

. DR. JOHN :b"'UNK, SWOl'll . for the State in rebuttal. 
- -

I am professoi·. of-patholo~y _and bacteriologist I-was shown by Dr. Har-
ris sections frt>m the vaginal wall of l\Iary Phagan, sectiqns taken neat' the 
skin surface. I didn't see sections from the stomach or the contents. These 
sections showed that the- epithelium wall -was torn off at points immediately 
beneath that cov~ng in the tissues· below, and there ·was infiltrated pressure 
of blood. · They were, you might say, engorged, and the whit e-blood· cells ·in 
thosQ blood Ve$Sels ,\rere more numerous than you will find in a normal blood 
vessel. The blood ·vessels at some --distanceJrom,_ the torn point \vei·e no.t so 
eng0rged to the same extent as those blood vessels imm~diately in the vicinity 
of the hemorrhage. 'I 1ose oo vesse s wer~ l arger · than theyt -shoul be 
uhder normal circumstances, as compared with the bloo n t e vic1mty 
of the · tear. You couldn't te!! ·about a~y discolQratioµ, but there was blood 
there. It- is reasonable to supp ose -that -there . was· !!.welling .there because of -
the infiltrated pressure of the ·blood in· the tissues. Those conditions must .have 
been produeeci prior to ·death, because the blood could-not invade .the tissues 
after death. If a young lady, between thirteen and fourteen years old .eats 
-at elev.en thirty a. m. 'a normal meal of bread and cabbage on a ~faturday ~nd 
·at three a. m. Sunday mo.ruing she is found with a cord around her neck, the 
s m m ented, the nails l"ff1d flesh cyanoiie, the tongue out and swollen,. blue 
nails, everything indicating that she had been strangled to• death,· that rigor 
_mortis had lilet in, and arrcording to the best·authorities had probably. progressed 
from sixteen to twenty hours, and she .was laying face down when found, and 
gravity luutiorced the blQod into that part . of tj1e body next to the ground, 
that it had dis@lored her features, that · immediatelyt hereafter, b~t\veen ten 
.and two 0 'clock she. was embaimed with a fluid containing usual amount ·Of 

. ------~~· -...1. 0l'lllaldehy.de,-thi being injected into ·the vcip.s in the large cavities) she is 
interred thereafter and iu about a-.-week 01' ten days . she "is disinterred, and 

· ··you find in her stomach cabbage like that (State's Exhibit G) and you find 
. '. granules o~ starch undigested, and J hose ·starch ~ules ·are~ developed by 
~ ....-tire .~sual colQr tests, and you also_find in that s~omach Q1irty-two . degrees of 

·combin.ed hydrochloric a.cid, the pyloris ..cJosed, and the duodenum~ and six 
feet of the smaJl intestil!_es empty, no frM hydrocholorie acid being pref!ent at 
all, nor dextrin, or erytl~rodextrih· 'being found in any degree, and the uterus:'· 
was somewhat enlarged,' and the walJ.s of the .vagina show dilation and swell­
ing, I would say that unger those conditions tl:ui.t the epithelium was. to:ttn off 
before death, ·because of the change~ i.O:"the biood vessels and tissues below 

·the epith.elium cotering, and· because df the presence 'of . bfood. i" \Vould ·not 
.express a.n opinion as to how long cabbage had been~ 'the stomach; from the 
:appearance- ~£ the cabbag·~ itself, taking into consideration the combined hydro~ 
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elori-0. acid of ·tbiny-two degrees, the- emptiness· of the· small intestine, the 
l1 eeence 6f starch gran:ules, .and the absence of free hydrocholoric acid, one 
oan't Bay positively, but it is reasonable to li$si1me.that the digestion. had pro­
p~~ed prob~bly an hour, maybe a little more, mayhe ~ - ~ittlfl~s~. · 

ORoss · EXAMINA~ION. : 

· D~. Dor8ey .. ~ked me to examine the sections · of the vaginal wall last 
Saturday. The seciions I examined were:about a quarter of .~n i:i:ich wide and 
thre~uarters of an inch long. .It was about nine· twenty-five thonsandths­

. o1 an inch thick, that _is, much thinner than tisime. paper. - 1 examined thirty 
. or.forty little sti:ips. - That was after...this trial began. I was not present at 

.. -the autopsy: ·As soori as ·a tissue 'receives an injury, it re~cts in a very short 
~. - .. time. - The_ reaction shows up in the changes of the blOod vessels. You can 

,,......-u--=::;hrH·~y the; appeara4c:e- of the=btood-v_~!li;el8--whe~rlhe - injury was-before-~--~----­
death 'iir ·not, an~. you can give an approximate. idea as to the length of time 
before: death. I :do no.~ kt:ow froni what ·body .the sections \Vere t~ken. I' 
know-that--it-warlrom 6-htiman.:.--v-f!,gina.--.. - - -·-... .. _- ·• 

THE STATE OLOSES. 
. . 

- ~ - :-- . ·~zvmBNO!l PQ~ DBFE_NDAN..T- IN SUR-REBUTTAL . . 

T. Y;. BRENT, sworn 'for the Defendant in sux·-rebuttal. 

_ . ...,..__ - . - I iiave heard George Kendley on several--eecasi~ns express himself very 
bitterly tow·ar.ds Leo Frank. .' . He said he felt in this. case just-as he -did · about 
.a co1,1ple of negroes hung down in Decatur; that he · didn't know whetlrar . they 
had been guilty or_Iiot, but~som.ebody had. to . be. hung for killing those street 

-~~--'--__ c,,......~en and it was just as good to. hang one nigger--as~noth~r,.and -that-Frank 
· \Vas· nothing but an old Jew ·and th(')y ougl~t to take hiQl put and hang l~im 

anyhow. · ·--- · 

OROss· EXAMINATION. 
. ti.. 

I have bee.ii em.ployed by the defense to assist i~ ·subpoenaing .witnesses. · 
· I took.:.t}le ifart of Jim Conley.in. the experiment coudu.cted by Dr. ·Wm. OwJiis · 

_· :. at"the fa<)tory on Sunday. · . . \ .· , . ·. . . ~ . 

. .,.,.., . 
. )!, E. · ~TAHL, sworn for the Defendant, ,-in sur-;rebuttal. . . .. . .. .- . 

I .have beard G.eorge Kendley, .the conductor, express bis feelings toward· 
·--=--,--.. -I,,eo Frank'. I was standing on the rear platform, a~d he .said that Frank was 

"~~tY-a·s n snake> and should b~ hung, and that if the. cou.rt didn't. convict 
him ih~ould be. 9ne of five or seven that would ·get him. : · · 

' . . . . . ~ . . . . . . . ... ' 

\ .. 

• 
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·-.. . .Mrs~ ~C. S .• HAAS, s-WQFn ·for ·nie-- Pefenaant, in. sur-rebutt.al. 

~ !'-heard Kendley two w~eks ago talk aborit the Frank c11se so loud that 
the ·enfire ·street car heard it. . He said that · circumstantial evidence was the 

· best_ kind of evidence . to convict a man oil. and if there was any · doubt, tlie 
_State should be given J;he benefit of it, and that 90 per cent. of the .best people 
fo the · city-, including i1imself, thought that F.r.ank was gujlty and ought. to · 
hang. . · .... 

. N. SINKOVITZ; sworn for the Pefendant, in sur-rebuttal. 
. ' • . . . I 

I am a pawnbrok~r. I know l\il. E. :rifoCoy. He has pawned. his watch .to 
_/ _ _._me lately. 'The lalit time was January U, 1913: It ·was in my place of bUcsi­

ness on the 26th of Apr11, 1913. He paid up his loan. Qn August 16, last Satur­
' · · day, .during this trial. Tliis js .ti1e same watch I ha~ been handling foi.· him 

. . ··-.:- -- - during the last two year-s • 

. ' ; • . 
·' . . '- . 

My record.s here ·show that he took it out Saturday .. · • 

S. L. ASHER, s\vorn for ~he Defendant in sur-rebuttal. 

About two weeks ago -I was ·coming to town between 5 and 10 minutes to: 1 
" · · . .: . · · on the car and there :,v'is a 'inan wl10 was talking very loud about the Frank 
-~· -:- -:~. ----- -- --CliSe;-andllll of-asuddmi4t1e said: ."They ought to take that damn Jew out and 

.hang him anyway. " I took his number · down to report him. 
\ . . .-

. OROSS EXAMINATION . 

. I have not. had a chance· to report since .it happened. . . 

: ADDITION.u; STATEQNT MADE BY .DEFENDANT, LEO . M . . FRANK. 
. . . - . - ~.. . - . _. _- _--__ . -::._ ~ . - --- - _;_ - ---: . . - -

- In reply to the statement of the boy· that lre saw me talking to Mary 
. • ~ · - _:·

7

Phagan when she backed· away__f_rom me, that is absoluteiy -fa se, that-never 
· ",, .· occu'rred. · In reply. to the t~o girls, Robinson and Hewell, that thei · saw me 

. talkilig to Mary Pha·gan and that I oalled her "Macy," I wish to ·say that 
.- . . -::--- -: · ---:-=,_ - - they l!-~e mistaken.-- It is very .possible tha·t) have talked to the little girl -
· ··'· · -. · ~ · · · · - , in going through the factory and e'.!tamining the work, but. I. never kne.w her 
. . .name, ·either to call her "Mary· Phagan,'' "Miss Phagan," or "Mary." ·. ·. ~ 

.. ~ . 

-:- . 

· 11:1 refer-enee ·:to the ·statements of th~ two women who say that they saw 
me · going into the dressi.J,1g room . with Miss Rebecca ,Carson, I wish to state 
that that is utterly false. ·it is a slander · on -the young lady, and I · wish to .. ' . '·~ ' 
state that as far as my knowle~ge. Qf Miss -R~b~cca Carson goes, she is a lady 
·of· un~leiµished -character . 

---.. ---· . . . . 

.. 1 

(1" • 

•.o \ ,... . 

. ·• 
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STATE'S EXHIBIT B. .. 

Frank's statement made · before · N. A. Lanford,' Chief of Detectives, on 
. Monday morning, April 28, 1913; .this statement being unsigned: 

' "I am gener~ superintendent and ~irector of the National ·Penc~l . Com- _ 
·pany. In Atlanta I have held that position since August 10,. 1908. My place-: --­
of busines~ is at 37 to 41. S. Forsyth St. We 1mve about 107 employees in that 
plant, male and female.. I . guess there are a few more g_ir\s than boys. Satur-

. day, April 26th; was a holiday ;With our company and the factory was shut 
.. down. There were several people who came in during the morning. The 

' • . J . . • • 
office boy and the stenographer were in the office with-me until noon. They 
left about 12 or a -little after. We have a day · watchman there. He left' 

.. ...____ · --shortly before 12 o 'clook. After the office boy ana the stenographe'r left, this 

••• 

- - - ·-

little girl,1\{ary. Phagan, came in, but at. the time T didn't know that '~as her 
uanie. She came in between 12 :05 and 12 :10, maybe 12 :07, to get her pay 
envelope, lier salary.. I paid her and she went out of the office. I was in the 
.inner office at· my desk, ~he furthere~ office to the left from the main offl.ce. 
It. w~s impossible to' see the direction she went in when· she left. My impres­
sion was that she just walked away. I . didn 'i pay any particular attention. 
I didn't keep the door locked downstairs that mornin-g b_ecause·"the mail was 
coming in. I locked it at 1. :10 when I 'went to dinner. Arthur White and 
Harry Denham were also in" the building. They were working on the ma- _ 
chinery, doing repair work, ~vorking on the top floor ' of the building, which 
is the fourth floor; towards the rear or about the middle of the building, but 

. ' a little more to the ·rear. They were tightening up the belts; they are not 
machinists; one is a foreman in one department and .ihe other is an assistant .. 
in another, and Denham was assisting White, and Mrs. White, .the wife of· 

.- ·· Arthur White, was also in the building.· 'She left aboµt 1·o'clo.ck. I went up · 
there and told them I was going to dinner and they had .to get out, and they 

· :said they had not finished a.nd I said, 'How long will it take Y' and they said 
.until. some.time in the afternoon, and then I said, 'Mrs. White, you will have 
to go, for ·I am going to lock these boys in here.' Anyone fr.om the inside can 
.open the outside door, but not the inside door, which I locked. You can go· 
in the basement from the ·front through the trap door. No, sir, they could 

. get up the steps if I was out. 1. locked the outer door and the inner door. I -
.got back at 3 o'clock, and maybe two or three-·minutes before, and I went to· 

. t-l1e office and took off m~ coat an~ tlien went upsta.irs t~ tell those boys I was 
back, and ·I- couldn't ~nd then1 at first, they. were back in the dipping room 
~-the-rear, and I said, 'Are you ready,' and they _said, 'We are just ready1 ' . 

and I s~id, - 'All right, ring out when you go down to ·let· tne know when you 
-· .go out,' a:ndthey.rang 011t, and Arthur White come .in the office and said, ·'-Mr. 

. Fran~, Joan me .$2.00,' and I said, .'What's .the matter; we just paid off,' and 
.· 

•• ·..! .. · ·.- he said, 'l\fy ·wife< robbed me,'. .and I ~ive him $2.00 and he w~lked away, and 
the two of them walked out. I locked the outer door -behind then1. ·When 1 · · · ., ' r 

am ~n. there :is lio need.-of lockiqg the 4~ner door. There was only:·one person 
- . - ~ .. ~~- .. -
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I was looking for to coine. in, and· that was ·the night watchman. He got there 
· at 20 minutes to four . . · ·v had previously arra~·ged for him 'to get there. On 

. ·Friday ·niglit .I told him, after he got his money. ( give him the keys and I 
sajd, 'You liad better' come around early 'to•morrow beca~se "l _ma'y ·~o to the 

" ball gamei' and he :come early, because of th~t fact; I told him to 'Come early 
· and .he ·came 20 minutes to 4. I figured that I ¢ould leave about 1 o'clock and 

would not come back, but it was so cold I did.n 't want to risk catching cold 
a~d I come back to the ·factory as I . usually · do. ·He . come in anq I . said 

. . . . . . \ 

·'Newt, you ar~ cal'~,' and h.e said, 'Yes, .sir,' and he had a bag of bananas ·with 
· him and he offered uie a banana; I didn't. see them but he offereci' me ·one and 
· I guess he 11ad ·t'hem. We have told him dnce ·he gets in tl~at buiiding ne11er ~ 
. to. go out ; I told him he co.uld go out ;- he :got there so early and I was g·oing 
to.J>e-there. He come-back-about-4-minutes to six; the ·reason I know that I' 

.. =·_was· putting. the clock slips: jn and the clock was r iglit in front of me. . I .said~ '.­
'I will be. ready ·in a minute,' and he went downstairs . and I come to the 
office and put on iny coat and hat and followed him and we~t out. When I 

. ____ went out, tall~ing_: to _Newt Lee was ·J. l\I. (lantt_, ·a man I had fired .about two 

• 

-we~ks previous.· -Ne.\vt told me he ~anted to go-u-p to~-~air o~shoe&-1116-------'---' 
· · lett while he was working tl1ere, and Gantt said to me, .'Newt don't want me 

· · ' to g~ up,' alMl..b~· said,· ' You can go with me, Mr. Frank,' a.nd I said 'That's . ---~-.-.-l all right, go_ ~v_ith him, Newt,' and I went_ on home, and I got home about 6 :25. 
. . . · No h'n · appened; that's all I know. I don't know what time Gantt came 

down after he went up . . I saw him go in and ·1 locked "me door after: him, 
· . but I didn't try them. I telephoned Newt. I tried to telephone him when 
· I _got home ; he j:mnches the .clock 8:_t jlalf ho:ur intervals, and the clo~~ and , · · 
· the phone is in the office, and I didn't get an answer and at .7 o'clock I called 

----'---~-__,_ _ _,,· .:.1m~a"'n~ ... a .... s· ed him if Gantt got his shoes and he sai~ he got thfiln, and I 
. . said ls everything all right and· ii~ said yes, ~nd ·the next 'tliing I knew -ihey 

called me at ·7 :30 the. next moming. I don't- know ·that our watchman has 
been i~ the habit of letting people· in ~he factory at any time. I have never . 

. ,heard of it. I never had any trouble with the watchman abo'1t ·it. As· to 
whether any of our employees go there at night, Gantt did ·when he· was. work­
ing there; he had a key and sometimes he would have some work l~ft.· ov~r. 

·I never have seen. him go out until I go out. I go out and come back, but · he 
has come back befor..e- I left, but that ia-pari of bis duty. I took a bath Satur- · · 

· . - day night at. my hQme. I cl~ged my clothes: . The ·elothes t!iat .r changed 
are at. home, and this is the suit of clotJ,.es I was wearing Satuiday . . After I 

. left the shO i went'to JlCcob's PharmJlilY- and bought a box ·of candy for my 
- --wife and go!J1Qnie about. 6-:25. '' · " · · · · · 

. STA~'S BXBIBiT ·O. 

Piece of cord found around Mary. Phagan ii · neck; about size of ~ hea.v.y 
_ _ _ ___ t_W_i_n~e, with a knot in .it.. ·..;..... -· .-. • -.-· 

- . " :· 

cit:. __ .,..: ........ . • 

\ 

•• 

. -.-
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STATE'S EXHIBIT D. 
-:., .. _, . Rag that was found· around Mary Phagan 's neck, ·wiih .blood Qn it. White 

piece of cloth,, soiled. Locikdd ·as if it was .a piece torn off. from petticoat. 

•. 

•• . . ___ ,. 

"'. . STATE'S EXHIBIT E. · 

· . ·Four o~ five chips of -wood, with red splotches ~n t_hem, ·chipped up frol_ll 
the s econ ftoOro!th~ational ·Pencil Company factory in· front of ladies' . 
dressing room. -

·, ·sTATE'S 'EXHIBIT I\. · --
·Shirt found by detective.sin. trash barrel at Newt Lee's home. Shirt was 

·very bloody;· blood -was-on both sides of_ shirt and high_ up .on arm-pits on the 
in~ide. - · . · --- . . -- -

STATE'S EXHIBIT G. 

Jar containing cabbage extracted fi·om the. stomach of Mary Phagan by 
Dr. Harris. Cabbage was not disintegrated, but -N"as in a whole--picce . 

.. STATE'S EXHIBIT H. 

Scratch· pad that. Co~ley wrote on. Ordinary white· s~ratch pad. 
-

STATE'S EXHIBIT I: . 
I ' • • 

P~rtion of the signe~tatement o,f E. F. Holloway given to Solicitor H. M. · 
Dorsey: 

~~I don't· know C. B .. D.alton. I do know-::Daisy Hopkins. She worked 
at the factory not less tltQ.n eight or ten months. I never did see . any man 

· - ~go . 1n the- factory-with -:paisy . Hopk-in.s a~ter the empioyees had gone on a 
· · Saturday. If they ever came there, they came afte·r I left-. - I never did know 

of Daisy Hopkins or otl1er girls going up in the factory on Sat~1rday after-
• . . noon with any men: .... . .. .. 

-.- · "Thie. power box ·that ·runs the ·elevator is kept locked all th~ time. I 
. keep it loc_ked. The key is kept in the office. I locked it Saturday. I put 

. · the key back in the office. I always loek it ltJ.id unlock it. I dido 't go to the 
- · . -factory on ...S..unday :. 'The key :was hanging on .the. same nltil. .on Monday.'' . . . . . . ~ . . . 

).._ '_ . . · . STATE;'S ·:ExBIBIT·.J', 
.. ... 

- . : . . 

.Affidavit executed by Minola l\foKnight for Solicitor. Dorsey as -foll;:ow;;;;;s7: ---~--,-----._.:___ 

.''State of ·Georgia., ~- . • • · , 
County of Fulton. · · -. . . 

_._ .. _ - " Personaily.a.ppe~red b.~fore nie, a ?1ota~y public in· and for the. above st~te : .. 
.. · . . an county, Mmola-Mc-Ifrirght,_ who hves. m ·th·e·--rear .o.f 31).1 Pulham S.t:, ·At- . ! ~ ·· 0

1 
. }jintJi, Ga., who~ being duly sworn depo11es and says ·: ._ - _ . . . 1 

.. 7:.1=-:_?;-~·~:. '"¢:".=·~"'=: ·~".:::::= ;.:·.-~~ .. 
·\ 

--.-.-~ -

-·· ·.· 
·~·---1 . .. . • ·. .: ... . . • ! 
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11 On Saturday morn"ing,April 26, 191~, l\fr. Frank left '1u.>me about "eight 
. n'clock, and Albert, my ·husband, was there Saturday,- too. _· Albert go.t there 
I guess abou~ a q~art.er after one .and he was there . whe_n Mr. Frank coq1.e 
for dinner, which was .af!Qut half-past .one, but Mr. F.rank did not eat any 
'dinner, and he left in about ten minutes _after he got there. Mr. _Frank

1 
come. 

back to the house at seven. o'clock that. night, and Albert was there ·when he 
.got . there. ·Albert had gone home that even.ing but ·he come back. I . don't 
kiiow what time he got _ther~, but he come sometime before Mr. Frank did, 
and Mr. Frank eat supper ab·out seven. o'clock, and when I ldt there that ' 

- night about eight o'clock; I left Mr. Frank there. 
' · Sunday morning I ·got there about eight o 'clock, and there- was an· auto-

·~ mobile standing in front of tlie house and. I didn't pay any .attention to it. I 
saw a -man . in the automobile get a bucket of water . and pour into it. Mr . 

. Frank's wife was downstairs and · Mr. and Mrs, Selig :were -upstairs. Albert . . 
was there S1:1Ilday mCJrning, but I don't remember what time he got there. I 

~---------ea-Hed-'-them down to breakfast abouC ha f- past e ight -and I found out that 
l\lr. Frank was gone . . Mr. and Mrs. $.elig eat .breakfast, but ~1lrs. Frank didn't 

, ·eat uniil Mr. Frank come back _and theµ they eat preakfast toge~her. I didritt 
hear them· say anythin·g at the ·breakfast table. After dinner I . understood 
them to say that a girl an<~ Mr. Frank ·were caught at the ·office Saturday. · I 

-, 

<- .. don't know who s-aid it, Miss Lucile (Mri;i. F;ank) and Mr: and l\frs, ·selig and 

• 

· Mr. Frank were standing there talking, af~r dinner when the aid'-'-'jt"-t;_I.L----
un9erstood them to"'say it was a Jew· girl. " 

'.'On Tuesday, Mr. Frank- says to me, 'It ·is mighty bad Minola, I might 
liave to go·to jail a~t this girl, and I ~on't know anything about it.' , 

-- · "Sunday, Miss Lucile said to Mrs. Seli that Mr. F.i,:a_nk_ ~·rest-So--.-­
good Sat¥day· night-; she ~~id he was drunk and wo~ldn 't iet her sleep with 
him, and she said she slept on the floor on the rug by the bed because Mr. 
Frank was drinking. Miss Lucile said. Sunday that Mr. Fra:qk told her Saiur­
day night that he was. in trouble, and that he didn't. know ·the reas~Ii why ·he 
-would murder, and 4e told his wife to get his-·pistol and let him kill himself. 
I heard Miss Lucile say that to Mrs. Selig, 11rid it got away with Mrs. Selig 

-mighty- bad; she didn't know ." what to think. I haven't . heard Miss Lucile 
-say ·whether she believed it or ·nof.- r don't know why Mrs. Frank didn't 
come to see her husband but it wa.s a pretty good while before she would come 

-to see him, maybe tw'o weeks. · She would -tell me, 'Wasn't it migli.ty bad that 
.he was locked up,' she would say,'Minola, I don't rlmoW. ,:Vhat I ·ain going . 

'\ t d , . - . . - / . . . - . . 
. 0 o. . '· . . ~ . . 

• 

- -. ''Wlien I left _home to go to the solicitor· general's office;- they told m_e to 
·., ~mind how .l talke!_: They pay· me $3,50-a week, but last week ey_p:8.id.Jnl;-- - --~~ 

-'---~------'1;"'1-: 4-:00, nd one wee . s e paf me . 0. Up -to the time. of the murder I ·was 
- - : . . getting. $3.50 a. week:-· and tlie week right after the m\lrder-I don't". re~ember 

ow much she paid me, 'and the next week they paid me $3.50, and the next 
week they paid me $6'.50, and the next week they _paid me $4.00 .. ,and the next 

... . ,.._,e·~k ... they .paid me $4.00 .. · One we~k/I · dori't reniembe:r-• wh~ch one, · Mrs. · 
~. 

, . -- ---.··. 

. '· 

.. 

~· 
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· Selig gave me $5, but it .wasn.!i-for my w~r~nd they didn't tell ~e what-it 
. was. for, she just said, 'Here is $5, Minola.' I widerstood that it was a tip for 

iiie to keep . quiet. They would teli' me .to· m~nd how I .tt.ilk.ed and Miss Lucile 
gave me a.· hat." · · ·. · · · · . · · · · · 
.. · f· -

Q. "Is that the reason you didn't tell the solicitor yesterday all about 
thi&;-that Miss Lucile and the others had told you not to ·say any~hing . ab ut 
what happened · at home there 7' r · 

. A. "Yes sir." ·: · 

-Q. '' I?i;:at true Y'' 
. A. '.'Yes, sir." 

_ .. -. 

..,--. ·- - - . Q. ''And that's the rJt~!>.!l you would rather have· been ocked up ·Jast · 
.. ' night than tell¥'' 
__ .-.A. .:."Yes, sir.".:.. 

Q". "Has Mr. Pickett or Mr. Cravens or Mr. Campbell or myself intluei:iced 
;rou "i"n any way or threatened you in any wa;y_ ~o make this .stafen'ientT" 

~=- --=--- -=-~ .. ~-0,-sir. '·'. 

. .·Q. "You make -it of your o}vn free will and accord in their presence and 
· in the prese)lce -of Mr. Gordon, you_!' attorneyt" · - - . _., . 

A. "Yes, sir." 
-· (Signed) MINOLA McKNIGHT. 

J;t,. . - · . . 

--... Sworn to and .subscribed b,efore me, this 3rd day of June, 1913. 
-(Signed) 'fl. C. FEBRUARY, 

. -N~taTy public, Fulton pounty, Ga: . 
- -· - ... -- . 

- - ~- · STATE'S EXHIBIT .L. 

;-- ·- A Small )iV11ip handle found .by ~.etective Mc Worth ·nt the pencil factory. . 
. . - - --·--· - -- --~-

~--=----_-.. 

STATE'S EXHIBIT. M . . 

· Clothe!! worn by ~ary Phaga_n ·consisting of hat, hair ribbons (2 dress 
.~. corset with hose ·supparter_s attach~d, one broken, corset cov.eJ:'., knit undervest, 

underskirt, drawers (rig1!t· leg torn aild soiled w~tb blood), :pair of silk ga~ 
,...........~-~-- · te]'3,_pair_of hose, pair of low shoes, hanclkerchief,. parasoJ. 
;.__~~--:---:-----------~~~:--- ---

___ . :_- "•STATE'S EXHIBIT N. 
.-- '-- .. -..!.--.----. . \ . 

· · '···- Copy'Of,.the Minutes ot the State·!loard of H~alth, fotJn4. on pages144~145 
· . . thereof, reading as ·follows : • .. ~ ·· .. : \ · · · 

• : · · : '·r ~ "The President then addressed the Board at length on his .. reasons for · . 
: · . . , thinking- that the. Secretary_ should be requested .to r~sign, the s~bjects dea.lt . · 

. . . _...::._, . : . . 
· .. \ - ~ - · --- - ...... _. - --·- - - .- ·-- ~ - - - ·-·· 

•. · fo':-0- ·" . · . . . ' . 
. . . . .. 

>'':· .. \-- -. . · · \ . 

,__ 
. -~-· , , . _ 

. . ~· . 
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with being too enormous and too iengti1y to be i~cluded here in their ·entirety. 
·After the President's address, the Board adjourned and reassembled again at 
four o'clock in the afternoon, at which time Dr. Harris 's side of the contro-
versy was heard. · · · · · · . · . · ~ 

· ·"The Secretary not having been present at wi1at transpired following this 
was not in a position to take note as to the proceeding, but was inf9rmed by 
members o~ adjournment that it was their wish that he sho~1ld st.ill _continue 

• 
·as Secretary- and Director "Of-tI1e laboratories. . - -· - -- - -----~ 

"The President · then made a short statement in support f- his-prot.est 
agail}st the Secretary, and reiterated some of the charges made at the previous 
meeting, and in addition, made ob,jection agtiinst •the. Secretary's action · in 

-sendi~g out antitoxin No. 64, which had been shown by tests made in Wash­
_ __: ington to be of less potency than it. was originally labeled; and also . condemn­

ing the Secretary for replacing Dr. Paullin nd personally taking up the in-, 
vestigation of the malaria ep1 em1c aroun t rn pond of the Central Geo_rgia 

:· '\._, . . Power Company. The President . then stated that he would publish the 

. .. . 

charges against the S.eeretary if the Board did not take such· action regarding 
thel!l as he thought right and propc:n-. ·At the conclusion of the President's 
address, a talk was m~de by Dr. Doughty; in which he. took exception to the 
former's attitude, a~d il'isisted that every member of the board wished to do 

____ ·what was best for. the State Board of Health and the people"'of· GeQrgia, ·and 
· that every one. connected with the Board of ·Health should be willing to t,ow 

to the decision of this body. He deprecated strongly the idea of giving to 
the press charges, the publication of which could do no good, .and whieh ·could 

. . -
·-only- result in harm-. 

''On the President and Secretary being recalled an hour later the Presi­
dent pro tem, Dr. Benedict, read the following resolution, which had been 
unanimously adopted by the Board on moti<?n of Dr. Harbin, seco:Qded by 

- Dr. Brown, the resohition having been drawn· by a committee appointed by 
. the Board,_ consisting of Dre. Be;nedict, 'faylor and Doug}l.ty: 

'' 'That · the committ.ee appointed to frame a . resolution expressing the 
-~opinion of the Boarct· with regard to the charges _preferred against the..Seere­

taey ·by the President.of the Boa_!'d in a report to the Governor, and up.on.which 
"!h~y-are-ce;l!ed -upon to- act, beg to report as follows : _,_ . _ 

"."Resolved, That t he members of the-Boar pfesen , af er carefully :con­
. . sidering the charges · and . all · evidence in. its posses.~ion, : unanimously agree 

_ .. __ .. · ..:__th~t while th~r~ have been certain slight' irreg,!}lari!ie~ in the co!!_duct oj some 
. departments of. the laboratpries of the Stat~ Board of Health, which shOuld . 

•• 

. be. corrected; these irre~larities have not been so impor.tant in character or ___ -
~ .. ' . 

\ ,. . 

· result as to call for or warrant the disc.ontJ.nuance of Dr. Harris as Secretary 
and Director of. l~b~!'atories as demanded by the President. The Board further 

··directs that~ ~opy of this tesolution be transmitted to· the Govetn()r,' '' · ' , . . . ·. . . . . 

' -~ . .. .. . .. 

• 
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.ST.AD'S ·BXBIBIT 0. 

Tele~am sent-by Leo M. Frank: 
"Atlanta, ·Ga .. , April 28, . 19~3. · .··. · 

· . ·~r. ·Adolph Mont~g, · .· . . . : . 
. / · · "'- Care. lmper1al Hotel, Ne\v York. - - · 

·. . ''You ma~ave r·ead in Atlanta papers of factol'y girl found dead. Sun­
day morning in ·celJ!lr of pencil factory. Police· will eventually solv~..it. As­

.··· • · · . sure Illy uncle I .am Btl-..i:ight in case he asks. ·our· company has case well in 
hand. ~~ · . . ~ . LEO M. FRANK.''_ 

~ ... . ~, 

'· . 

STATE'S . EXBIB_IT~P. · 

Ti.me slip punched for Solicitor Dorsey by L. T. Kendrick : , · 

1 5~1 
2 .5.30 
·3 . ..6 •. 00· 
4 .... 6.29 

.. 
- - · - ·- ' -

5 '·. 6.58 
.6 \ 7.38 -

. 7 8.01 
8 8.29 . 

.... 
9 9.00 . -• ·- .. . 

10 9;3() 
li ·10.00 

---- - -------- - --. 12 10.30 
13 .. . · ·. 10 .. IJB 
14 - ' . ·, 

15 . · 11;59 , ......... ~----'--------------- ~----16 . ' 12.30 - --__ ''\.. 
17 ·12.59 ' , 

. 18 1.29 
'.· 19 2.00 

20 2.31 
. 21 .a.oo : 

... -
. ' · . ,.,. 

22 .. ' 3.30 
23 3.59· . . . 

-··--------~ 

- . ·2 4 80 . ' . -· • . 4 . . . . .· -
-~~-~c~-= '·----- -· _ _:_• -'~ ~-.-.. :: ·: :~·~-· · - '--~\• _ _:_5,00~.·--. . -~ : ____ ·. - .-- - ~ ·-·· ---..~. ~ · -;---~---· '• 

.· 
. . . . . 27 . · .. 

~- ,!_..?. . 28 • •• . ' . 
. \•" . ' .- ': . .. 

. ' .:· ' :-..:... .,-~9 
,., . .. · .. - 30 . 

. ·-··--:7""-· ·. ·~-:-.G_ : _·~ - ~-_:___ 

·.l . • I 

·,-.. -. 1~ . --
' • . ·. -----~ . . i 

: . . . .. : . . 
. . - -- __ - ·--· . .:_.__. ___ . :·--~ - \ ' - --- . . - - -

.... ' 
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. . ·_STATE'S EXHIBIT Q. 

Mies Hattie Hall 'e testimony before coroner's inquest, as follows : 
"He (Mr.. Frank) came to Montag'e before I went to hie office. I went to 

his office after he went back, somewhere be~ween · 10 :30 and 11. I didn't no­
tice the-clock. As to whether I got any financial sheet on Monday, or . not, l 

-~-~emember the previous Saturday-I was at the pencil factory and I helped him 
make up the financial sheet. I filled in part of it. I suppose by that ·he must 
lui,ve got it up. I transferred some of the things to that sheet. Mr. Frank 
·made up most of the work ·and I transferred some of ."the things to that sheet. 
I really don't reme.mber whether it was morniqg or afternoon. It was morn­
ing. I-don't work on Saturday afternoons. I don't remember that I was in 
the . inner office with him at any time except when I .was taking the .letters. - · 
He was pretty quiet ill tl1ere . .. 1 suppose he _was at 'vork.'' 

.. . STATE'S EXHIBIT R . 

Ac.ciQ.ent report to the Insurance Company relative . to Duffy's injury. 
Claini Division, Branch Office,. '!'he Travelers Insurance Company, 608-609 

· Fourth National Bank Building, . Atlanta, · G!!: 
· , 

· · Immediate Report of Accident. 

Employee of Natfunal Pencil' Company. 
_ Addre~s, 37 -41 S. Forsyth St. City, Atlanta. State, Georgia, 

Date and hour· o~ accident, Oct. 4th, 1912, 9 :30 m. 
Date of this report, Oct. 4th·, ·1912. ; 

{

Name, J. E. ·Duffy. · Address, 237 E. Fair St. · 

I 
. d p · Age, 21. Occup~tion, Running eyelet machine. 

nJure erson W kl $6 60 M . ·d' s· . · . ee y wages, . . arr1e ot mgle? Married. 
--- - -General du.ties, Rtlnning mac me. ---:---- ~ ~ -,. 

"' . 
The Machine, Appliance, { What was it? A piece of 'brass on machine.' · . . 

0 
or Thing Immediately . _. In whose c~ntrol at the time Y His own self.- ·- . - -
Causing Accident Was it sound and in good wo.rking order Y_ Yes. .. 

Place of A~cident { :aoom or Dept. N,o. 18A. No. · Street ~ity or town 

. . C { ·Carelessness of injured person Y No. Violation or C t b tmg auses · . · . on ri u . negligence of fellow workman f No. Rules Y No. 
. . . . \. . 

. on his machine. This ~rass . ·is very sharp, and 
The Accident , same cut into flesh, nearly to the bone. . 

_{ D~scription. Said party was. putting a roll · of brass 

· Na.me and addresses of witnesses: L. A. Irwin, fore· . 
. . man;. ChQ.rlie ·Lee, machinist> . ·.: · . ' . . .. 

. ~· .· . \ .. .:. 

. . - _:__: ~- _ \ __ ._ -:-
·----r : :. 

. . . ..... 

-. 
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•· 

• 
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The Injury set in. · · !
·Nature and ·extent? . Very painful cut .to, the bone, 

. . not serious if this brass does not cause. poison to 

Was surgical aid rendered 1 Yes. - When Y At once. 
By whom?· Dr. Hancock. . Where? Atlanta Hospital, 

\ . 
~otice .received .by employer 10-4-12. 

H. G. SCIIlFF, Employer. 

STATE'S· E.XHIBIT S. 

Portion of the affidavit made by Lemmie Quinn for Solicitor Dorsey as 
· follows : · . · · _ 
-; 

"The doors that lead up to ~he back stairs, after work hours are locked, 
but this door at the back. of-my.-departJllent, the lock had been broken off and 

. we placed a bar across it. The i.dea of that wa~· 1:o keep employees from the 
fourth Toor goiµg down from -that department and ringing out and getting 

. their r.µ..oney before it was ready. · Customarily it was closed. That was the 
purpose. - There is no r-exit from the-office floor to the street floor, except the · - ·· 
front, there is a stairway leaging from the office floor to the tloor· above. The 
back stairway is ordinarily closed with tJ1at bar, which makes it impossible 
for anybody to ·come from the upstairs down to the office floor. A r.µ.an on the 

' . office floor could lift the bar and walk out, but I should not think that a· man 
. . could come down to . the office floor from above at all. . . . . 

''I went uptown wben I left home between 12 and 12 :20. I got to the 
· pool room about 12 :30. : . He (Frank) said he didn't know ~hat be would 
.mention it, but be would mentfon it to his lawyers and see if 'il1ey thought 
It w-as favorable ·to mention · it. That must have been ~edn~sday- -of last . 

1--------week. !. ' ----- ----
. : 

·. •' .. 

... 

«; .. 
STATE'S EXHIBIT T . 

. . . 

Court papers with reference to the police.::.records ·of .~im Conley, being 
seven in number. · 

Jas. Connally, Disorderly Conduct, fined $1.75 7 /22/1904-Paicl,_' . 
· ~Jas. Connally, same, fined $15.75, 10/15/07-Paid · · 

Jim Connally, same, fined $1.75, 7/18/05 G. G. B .. · 
James Cqimally, .same, fined $10.75, 12/11/1907, G. G. B. 

.--. - .. James Connally, ·same, fined $3.75., 11/14/1906_.:Paid 
Jimmie Connally, same, fined $3.75; 3/5/19(,}6 ·Paid 
Jaines Donnally, same, sentenced 30 days . ~/10/1912 

STATE'S EXHIBIT U. 

.. 

Pay envelope found by Barrett under his:·~aci1ine on the second floor of ·· 
·· the factory.. Ordin~ry p~y envelope used by factory Qfficers in paying off.· 
employe~s. . · • · 

~ - . 

--.-. ---· -·· ---;-· 
~,,, ___ . 

··· .. 

----~----- -·-=-:::::=:-~ ... --- '.---. - - : .~,-- · - :.../ . 
.. ... .. 

·\,. 
· .... 
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' 

.. 
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· . STATB'S BXBIBIT V. 

Portion· of the tes_timony of Emil Selig : b~fore coroner's .inquest as f.ol­
lows: 

: ... As to. who else · w~s p~esent; my wife and his wife. They went to· the 
· opera be.fore, probably, dinner was over, before he and I left. I stayed in the 
house. There was· ii~ one else there when he got there except me .and my wife 
and him and hi~ wife. The servant was there also. I am speaking about din- '>. 
ner time. ··I laid do~vn a little· whil~ after dinner. I · am sure about that. · It 
was dir~ctly after dbiner was over.' Mr: Frank ·was in ~he ha11. I think he. 

· laid down .himself.. My room i1J-cupstai-rs-over the dinlng room. -The telephone 
· - is in the dinmg room. Mr .. ~rank ·stayed quite a little while at"'-dinner. I 

dop.'t know exactly how long he stayed. No, he didn't leave 'before I got up. 
· Ye~; I took a nap. He came a little after one and we ate ~inner and I laid 

_____ down and took a ·considerable nap .. '' 

· ~TATE'S :U:JlmIT W . 

. Portion of testimony of Mrs. ~osephine Selig before the coroner's inquest, 
!lS follows i 

"As to what.he (Mr. Frank) said about this affair, -I don't know if he 
made· any reference to it. She (Mrs. Frank) had told me. 1 don.'t remem­
ber ,that he said anything at all aboui this crime. He probably spoke of it. in 
a gen~ral way .. He is superintendent of the pencil .factory. I think !'would 
'ii.ave remembered such a remark if he had made it. He said t~at there was a , 
little girl found de('d in the pencil factory that ·<iay. I did"'n't ask what her 

. _name was. I don 't:lmo:w that-I asked .any question at-all, because -I never 
~------.:....". .,.... eally_thought....thaLiLhad...any- bearing on. anything that-I. was interellted in. 

It was not of interest to me. Naturally he would be concerned about it. · I 

• 

• 
'---'---'----===-=·~hinlche.'...did seem-unconcerned~bout-ii.-r don't -th.ink he seemed to -attach - -

any great importance to" it: I don't think he had anything to say-about- get- -:-
ting anybody to see what was the matter, or see who did it. · I don't knOl\Uv.hat . ...:...-....-----. 

•vas-the-occasion of the first remark .. th·at ~r. ·Frank made· about th~ thing. · I ·• 
suppose he l!_ad been there ·onl a few m~utes. Yes, he spoke about it befo·re · 

- .- . =dinner. - He'meritioned the fact that a.woman bad been found down there. He 
- - . -. - .- _..:..-,.... mentione that -Just casually. He didn't remark. about the youth o f tlfe child 

. or,...about-tlie brlitality of tlie crime, or .describe any of the wounds, or wonder 
. . who was suspected, or give any theory as to how' It happened. I d9n 't think 

~e expressed any anxiety or 'curiosity' or advance any theory as to how the 
.· -. ·-- . -'-:---~-. - thing .had happened .. ~He read the paper. · ~he~e was no .article about that in . 
· · · · the p1,1.per., ·.I ca? -~~t say that he dwelt on any article. Yes, he read ~he-paper · 

· just as steadily· and studiously as the. night b~fore. . I don '.t think he ma~ any 
·diiference at all.. He did not s.eem ·to· be a ' bit impressed on . a~count, of the. : . 
~bing, ~avi.ng ha~pen~~ i_n the P,en.cil factory.'' · . , · · 

.··· .• ~·. 

/ ; . 
. _ · -~-· . · / ' 

- . -.,._,.,.. / 

·· .- / :·_. 
~ . . . 

. ' -.'!--·--··--. :_ __ _ 
. . 

, .\ 

. . .. . 

• 



• 

• 

• 

I 
'-.., 

STATE'S EXBmIT Y. 
Xote found hy policemen in sawdust beside body of ~lary Phagan, written 

011 white paper . 

,_ -· ·"-<·<7. ~ ~- ... ._.. · :-- ;· . < ~ · .... ~. ·i· .·.: "-~: ~.-Lti 
~~~~.:,..::.=:=~=z..:-::.:}·.-=;. ~_·,-::::;·-.=-=:-=.~-:::;;.7~ .. ~" ·.'.:.:: . ' ~ -.. . -...:::;,·; 

- . _;~:•·· ... 
--'----'.--'--'----'"' . . . . -

"• 
-~-~·~· - · -~ 

·., 

(Ile said he would love me, laid <lown play _ lqs._e the night witch• did it hut 
tTint long tall bla<:k negro did hoy hisself.) 

~-
· / 



• 

• 

STATE'S EXHIBIT Z. 
:\ott• fo111Hl'hy poli1·t•1111•11 in sawdust l}y s ill~of th('. hody of :\lal',Y l'hal-{1ll1 . 

writ! t•n 011 y<•llow papcl' . 

(:\Tarn that negro fire down her e did this wlwn i went to make wah>l' and 
ht' push mr do\n1 a hol e. a long tall negl'o hlnck that did (had) it. i ri g ht 

whil1· play- with lilt'.) 
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_, · DBFBNDANT'S. BXRIBl'J;' 1. 
' .• ' 

. Time slip, dated April 26, taken out of clock by Fr_~nk .• 

101 . ·-· . ........ ...... . . .... ~ : ·.601 138 ...... .. . ,·, ... ... .. .. ...... ..... . 
102 ....... : . ..... ~ .. ..... .... 632 139 .. ...... . ....... ... .. .. ... .. . 

.. · ........................ 700 .140 .............. . ··· .· .. .... .. .. . 
~ 

103 
104 · .................. : ...... .• 732 141 ....... .. ........... .... .... . 

·: ... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ~ .. . 800 1 <:l2 ... : . I. . . . . . . . . . . ........ : .... . 
... .. ·.· ............ : . . : . ... 831 143 ............................ " 

105 
. 106 
-107 . . . . . . : : ............. ; . . . .. 906 144 .. . .... .....• . '·.. . . . ..... .. ... . 
108 . : ......... .-,, . . . . . . . . . .... 932 145 ..... ... .... • ... ! . ••• ••••••••• . • . • 

109 ......... ......... 1029 "i46 ..................... · ···· ..... . 
.. 110 ....... .... , .- .. . .. · .. ... . .. 1104 147 ..... .. . .. .............. .. .. . 

111 . •.• .. ......... . . .. . ... .... 1200 148 .......... ; ..... ·, ........... . 
. 112 . . ... . •.• ......... , · ........ 107 149 .. . ... . ... ....... ·. · ......... . 

113 • t O O : o t t o O t O o t o o t O o t t t O I t .135 150 0 t I O t t o 0 I t o " o t I t t t t ; o I o ,, 1 1 " t t t 

• ··114 .. .. ... · . .. _. ·. ~ -" . .. ......... 203 151 ........ . ................... .. 
- ··- -.. _:_ ..... llQ ~ .. · ..... : . ...... . : . . . ..... ~ .. 301 152 .... .. . _ . ..•. · .... ............. . 

< 

116 . ...... : .. ............... ..... 330 . 153 .... . ............ . ........... . . . ~ 

.. 117 --': : ....... · ~ ...... · . . .. -......... 154 ........ . . .. .. .. .. . ..... ·, .. ~ 
~r.··) -. - - -- 118 . . .. . ; ........... .... . ' .. -:- ... .. . -~55 ........... . .. ..... ... . . .... . 

1"19 -: ................. ·. : . .. ·, ·, . . . . . .. 156 . ... · ........ -.... ....... .. .... ·. 
120 · .. ... · .. ' .. . .... : . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . ·157 . ... • . ....... : .... .. ..... ' .... . ' . 

.. --- -- --121_ . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 158 .. ..... ....... ; ... . . .. ... : · .. . 
· 122· . .. ~ ... .. ... . · ....... , . : .·. ·159 . .. · .... .. , ·, ............. . . ... . . 

-'------· - - . 123 .......... .' ....... ; ......... ' -. 160 .. . ... ....... ...... -:-.-:-::--. :-:-:-. . . 
_124 - ~· .. .. . . _: ._. . . _._ .. ... . . . .... : . . - 161. .......... ·~ ·~~~ ~· .... .. . 

- 125 t t t t t t t t • I t 1 t t tot t t o t t t I It 1 o t t --162 I 0 t t t I I t t It t It It t I t I O t 0 I It I I. ---- --

126 ........ -.. ..... :- ... . •· ...... : .. , .163 .. ... ... ..................... . 
121· .... .. ; ....... ~... .. . . . . . . . . . . 164 .. . _.: . ............ •.• .. .. ·, .... . 

----- 1.28 -:-:--: .. ........ .................... - ·. -165 . .. . .. . .. ... . , -; -,-; -... -...... .... - - ---- -
·129 ................ ~ .. •. ' · l.. • • • 166 . : . ..... ... . ·, ......... · ........ . 
·130 .. · .... ; .. ... .-.. , .. ... -:: ... · ..... . . : . . ' 167 . .. · .. · .. .t. ..... ·. · .... · ...... -:-'." .. 

... -
' . 

" . . 131 . ·. ~ .. .. : · .. · .. ·: , .. : .... · .. •. ~ .... •.. 168 .. ·; .. ........ .... · .... ..... • .. " 
. . . .. 132 ; . · .... : : ....... : .. .. . • .. .. . .. . . : 169 ...... ....... ... ·.. . ..... .. .... .. 

. 133" .. .. .... : . . lliaaure Diade here '.170 ..................... ........... . 
""' 134 . . ...•.. ·"' ......... •.• .• : •..•.. , .. 

135 ..... · .... . : .. .... .. . · .. . ~ . . : . : •... 
. . 136 ...... ·.: .... '·' .... ......... , ' .... ' . 

- . . : ·.137-:- ( ...• : .... ; ...• · ... ... ..... ..... · .. .. 

. 171 .................. ' .. . . ........ •.• 
172 . ........ -..... ..... ·; ... : ....... ; . 
173 . It ' e I I It I I! I ~ I I -; t 1° I I It: I It I I It 

1'.74 ............... .. •.• '·' •. , . ... · ••• • . ~ . . 
175 °1 I It f ! t ; , I I, · .. t I It I I I I I I I t I I I ... 

· .. " - 138. • . t I I, - , - . - • • • t f f I I 

0

1 I It l " l , t I I If I 

0

f .' t 

· . . 
> .--· I 

·' 
... . ··-. 

. . _-.- --. . . ~ -· . 

' ·~ . 
\ _: : 

. ~ . . ; - _,. ·-: _: . · ,, .... 

.. . . ,-= ==== 
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I ; I t I I I I I I I I I t , I I I It It I If I I I I I 

- - . -· . - . 177. : ............... : .... : , ...... . 
178 ............................ . 

·1s9 
190 
191 

' 192 
193 

17,9 I I I I 0 t "1 I I I I I I I· ~ · · ,,: I I I I I I I' . I I I 

180 ,. ,., .... ' ..... · . .. ' . ........ ·, .. . 
~8. 1 ......... .. ............ . . : . . . ·' · . -

·' . ' 
182 · .. · ........... . ·: .. .. . '\• ....... . 

'183 ... ,·, ........... .. ..... .... . . 
184 ............... . ... ... ...... . 

,185 I It I I .. I I 1 • 1 • 1 I I I · ; I It 0 1 ' 1 ° 1 0 o I Io, .,._ 

186 . · ... ......................... . 
. -

. . 187 ...................... · .. .... ·. 
.. ·1s8· -· .. : .... : . · ... •.. . .. : .... ·. . . . . . · · 

·194 
195 
196 
.197 
198 

. 199 
200 

0
0 

I 0 I ~ I I ' t I t t o I t , I I I I I .' t I t I I I I I 

·.· ............ ... ... ·) · ...... . 
I I I I It I 0 I 0 Ito ft o o o I It Io o o o o o t . . 
' .. ....... '• . .. ... ...... . ... . 

• • ••• · •• _._ •••••• _ ...... .. ... ! *•••• 

· Date April 28, 1913. _ 
. . - .., .. 

Solicitor Dorsey st~·ted in open court that he had made the erasure noted 
·_ on this time slip, supposing it to have been put there by' the d.e.'ett_eelC,ctu. iY..verus~,--11Jlh.c.c _____ _ 

. . -- words erased being ''Taken .out 8:26 a. m.'' 
. . 

DEFENDANT'S- EXHIBIT ·s .. 
Data sheet; being pa.rt of. financial sheet. 

Gross Production 
~et ""'Production 

·Repacked ·good 

' ·. 2765% . 
. 27191/2 _ 

. lO 

PRODUCTIONS: 
. WEEK ENDING 4/24/13 

Lead deliveries · -
940/2· -1045 -85~/7- 964 

J. 940/3- 260 8~~/6- 794 . 
·_ .. _Repacked cheap 36 930/2·' 724 · · 

· Value repacke~ '$70.00 _ Slats delivered, Gr.:. 
Rubber · inserted . ·: ... 720 Good . 

-"-----~· · . .,..: - . . -.-_-·- Ruhber -cheap -- ·. - . 667¥2 - .. Cheap 

/ 

· · · -~--Rubber- -good-· - · . 706% '.Jobs Gr. 
- -Lead good - . · · 747 Jobs value . .. . - · ·· 38~.75 

·791 

-Leaa.cheap . 1955 Job's average .50 
Lead large 1 Pafroll, Forsyth St : 1,060.05 
Lead copy _ 16¥2 Payroll, Bell St. 114.75 · 

.. _ . . • : _ Boxe_s_-' _ _ --317.l .-- --- Payroll'- Mch. Shop ·· · · · . - 70.oo · 
· . . -.-. - Assortment boxes · 27.9 Shipments.: Gr:- · ~"374 

. . Skeletons -- .642 .. Shipme~ts ·:. · $5,438.78 
.- .· .. " Tips delivered good . 5J..2 Oraers received Gr. :. 1904 

•• 

----~-'T=-=i"&-'Pl! · deli~reiL_chea.p__:__s30=:--1-342 : Qr~ers-:-received·-----d:•3,320~3I---------' 
Protectors, ends -- . . -_ · : . ._ % · . .. . -. . 
Wrappers · · ·· · · · ~535 · • Cartons . . 88 · 

_:- . .J.. · ~ . ---.~ . 

·"' -· e. .. - . -._ ... . 
-

~--:_~~~-l~~ - ---
-!;-- -~~- - - :_ ~-- ----

•. I "' • • • • ..... 

. . . .. .. ... . .. \ . .. . -. 



• 

• 

·-•. 

. . · : · . 
·- ·- -. -, .. -- .-

D.EFEND.ANT.'S EXHJBl'l' 2. : 
l!'inan~i11l _ sh.cpt ?,f .\pril 24, .19la, ;nnde · 01;t by L~o 11i. F1·1111k. , 

.- . . :. 

· ·~d[I 
. ·~· · '· · 

Plant . F"INANCIAL.. REPORT · 

. . ·--. ..,.-~-N.1-<A-Tl .ON"AL PENCIL .. . ·coMPANY 
ATL.A TA, GA. 

·. - ~ ... 

EXPENl?ITURES VALUE OF PRODUCT-PENCILS PACKED . 

EXl'EN:5E Amount-Groi;,; KI:-.D • @ _Per li ross l'IUl.'.E 

LABOR 
Direct ___________ -----1--''ff-J.'..-l-:~-1----l--.f-..,.J.'+.r"'-t----7~H-:::iF~~~-1f-~'"';-!:µ!ft-~~~~---+--
lndirec . .._ _________ ....,.. ____ l-..LJ~-i:.fJ..Ji!l-Llt.~2:1-~~----t------,~t.......t-l'--~.q..;,1!!--1f----'~~fi-...;z..~~~---+--

BORDEN" 

Rent--------------~l--"-~14,..Lll-:---1----f-----r-----"'-;~-r---=~~;;t--~~--tt--~'-l-'~it----t-~ 
Ligl.1 t-:-Heat-Powe·I'- W atl'I' ________ ........... ~-+""-M+----1---111---.:-..-+-----:1--1--__f_-=.:~~:qJ~-.L...:...~~~__J'-4~:l-ll----l---
I usurunce _______ __,.__,. __ ___, __ 1---.i;-.-f'-"'-K-+----1---1t-----+---_..,_"'r-'~--~"-!..~-1---'-'-=~~-2.JL....l'U...-ll----l---
~n1es DPpa1·Lme11 t·---'----------- 1_..__l..MO-f""_..._+-.....,..__+4o&o,,f,l----+---~µ:...._+----'~.L.--d---J.~~-4--2..:t:!:t.-¥Z.~-U---+---

RF.I' Am · 8uN nu ·s--11--1'-6--'19-------ll---li-..;..J-!..::!.U-lr-f'.'4""-----1---..t-.::.'-l--+--./....L.'f-IJL-<;,IL-"'-~-+....>.J"'-'=ll==4-..i.~~-=-#----l---

Lea 
:-_ · 

~';t1 /_; [.~~ 
· I 

j 

~ 

Gr . . at. 
..,. 

IJ .._.....,., ___ ct~-------~--J..1-.L.-t-1~-t.----1---111t-----+------f------~--...-i.:.-ii-.J~~~~.....,,(....!:!.'...,..W~-.. ,, 

" d 

,, 
" 

" .. 

. . . ·,· 

t..O 
... 

:i)~ 
-

·~-"--..-1:1its. _ __, __ 1----+--l--.1fll!.l.~~.J'·~~--t"'o1W1..._..,;;,,;._-==:f-:,,.-"T.""---:-+---+---J--#-,.---l---___,. 
___ .-.,1,;ts. 'per gr.~'4· I-.""-·- ... ·-.... ~· ':_-:_':=_~1:,-:_;~~i.:;.;;J--...:-;..... ...... "-~7-.i.;J:..:Z..-:-J,:::=jf.....d:&i:::S::::::L.:.L_..,.,.,.=~'==*'=ll--------=h=-

.. .. REMARKS 

I : "' • 

:--~t::::;. 
•. I • • • 

. !f.'J. 'ot~diture; · · 
~ •. : 

~ · ' . . •. I • 

</~- . . IJt-~~ -
. . . · ... .. ' .. 

' . - . . -~\ . ...... • .. -._._. 

- · .J 
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•; .. · ..... ... . . 
• • •• • · 

1

>~· · ·~ . · .. · ·:..:. , ·.· 215~ ·~: : 
0 

• .... r 

. · ' .:. . . ..: .· 

----- - ·- · -.--!.... 
·,. .. 

. . . . \ 

- -. --~ .. --.-·· -·~-- ._ ._;_ --:- -·. , 
'. . . . . . · - - ·· : · · ·· · .· 

-:-.~.-. 

. . , . .. 
:.. . 

-· . . . 
. . . > ,. 

·_ .. .. _. numm~~T-·a-&xms1T 4~caont'd> 
.. ~·.) ... 

- -. . : • 7"" -· • • -- • : · .. . NATIONAL PENCIL-CO. - · . NA1'10'NAL PENCiL co. 
· .. 

. . ! 

·. .7 

- -· · .. . ·· 

... . -=--··-

··-·-· 

. '·. 

: . 

·. - ..... 

Atlanta, G.a. . .. ·: ' 
Daily Report. · 

. -Wednesday 
. Dept. Packing · Dept. ·No. la . 

86~510 Packard No. 2 5 . 
274-T.O. Bell ·Lee Drug Co. ·::. 8 
199-910 N. Emblem 24 

· · 211-950 Genius . _25 
90-210 Cadillac No. 2 · ·. 31% 
71-630 .. Worth 2752 ~St/2 . :. 

.·Date 4/23/13 

·--
. 122 

Signed ERLA 

Atlanta,' Ga. - -- · 
· · · Daily Report. 

' · .". Wednesday 
Dept. ·'.Packing ·· · D~pt. No. 13 . 
264-55 . OXford : . 981/2 . 

· ' · 120 Broad'~ p · ·· 
·. 34-45 Trumps · - · . ~ 16 

No. 110 · Asst Smith Paper: . 25" 

' '-Cr .· t# 
939-20 G. Wash 78 

.. : .~8fl4U J.· ~o~ro.e - . · . · · 3 
. - . 

81 
~-

. 122 
. \. . ·· : ·. 

·, ; •. Date ·.4/23/~.. . .. . 
... : .. -

.. ·: · '· 

, · -· · . - · ·. DEPENDANT'S IXBIBIT 4aa. 
Repack.......'. -- .· . " • · · ~- · · ~: · 

. '· Apr; ~5. 19ta-:.Repa-ck fro~ .Ai:>r~· . 11, ·.to Apr. 24 
·. · .· . . 18 gross ·. 22~50 · · -35;s: " " . • ·· ·--

'. 18 gross · 22.50 . . 37x 
to gros.s 25.00 .: . · :!~~Ox . 0. K. · (S.gned) EULA . 

46 . . : •. 70.00 : .. ! '· .. ... 
. · _ ... _ ._· \ · . 

I 

• "1 • · : .·" 

·-~ . 

,... .... . . . 
·'. :, .', .: .... : ... ~·• · ~ - .. . · ··:·; ·" . ·>:~ 
·-. -, -:_ ..... ·· .. . :..:,.'-· . .. •/ . · . 

;. ' . .... . .. .:.,.. . . . ·-'\· -;--.... -. -~-· -· :-.~ . ... ~· -

~ , . ·. :/ -
-. ·~--. - ·. 1· 

347 
Signed EULA . . 

· .. -.--

,-· 

_-·, 

-. ---- ·~ 

. _ . . ·· ~ :- .. : 

:_ - .-~ : . ..: ~1.,·: . . . 

.. 

" . 

• ••• • 

'. 

_. 

.. 

• . >-... .. 

• .·.I tj _ ___.~· ---

\ . ·_ . . : " .. \ 
.· . ' . -.. . .. . .. . , ~ 
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· _ :_ ~~·--· ·. »•DNI>AifT'B 1x1Dlri'_~(D..ontllillecl)_._:_ ~- . ·_ _ . 
: . .. . ·-

NATiONAL PENCIL CO. NATIONAL PENCIL CO . . 
~tlanta, Ga. . · . · · · Atla;nta, Ga. 

_ .• ,__; -

.~ .... 
. . . · . 

. . -·· . ... 

: ;t:>aily.Jt~ort. , . . . Daily Report . ... 
. . · Friday~ · · · Saturday 

Dept. Packing . . ·.. De_pt. No. 13 · · Dept. Pa~king . . Dept. No·. 13 
725 N. Copying - 112· - 271-950 Genius . 9112 

91-210 Cad~llac No. 3 . . _ 3_5 _ _ _ 9_1-210 Cadillac No. 3 · 3112 
87.-510 }»ackard No. 3 - · - 2 1 99-910 N. Emblem . -· 3 

· .199-910 ·Nat. Emblem : · .: 60% · 116-21.Q Bowers"Prog_ No. 2 6 
- . · 62.660 University SchO'oi . 52% .760 .Thesis Wrjting ___ No. - ~ · l 

.. 117-450 Luxury -No> 2 N. T. · 1 · · 
·326=2.10 K-t1edive No . . 2 · 2Y2 

. ;No .. 1920 As(t Na;t~~lyer . - 2Y2 · 

' • 156% 

Date 4/18/13 ,_;· Signed EULA 

. . . 

~ - · ·-· 

. .: .• · NATIONAL.PENCIL CO. 

264-55 Oxford 
378-155 Mystic 

939-2o G. Wash. 
· 315-10 P. Cedar-­

. . Good 

Date 4/19/13 

' 23 
.Good · I 

~6 

· 99% ·. 

165% 
69 . 
53 
23 

"310%· 
Signed EULA 

. ~ ... . 
NATIQN~ENCIL CO . 

. - . . · ·· · · Atlant.a, Ga, · · · Atlanta, Ga . 
Daily Report. · . Daily 'Re_port. · . 

· ·. Monday. . . Tuesday· 
. ..... Dept. ·Packirig · · . · Dept. No.· 13 ·: Dept. Packing .·_peP.t. No. 13 

·-.- · . 397-430 Sitting· nun . 12112 939-20 G. Wash . 94 
.. 86-510 -J:>ackard ·· No.· 2 ~ 34112 - .-· ··688-40 J .. Monroe-=.·-. -. - 1 · 

· 91-210 .Cadillac · No .. 3 6 
. ' · · 116-210 Bowers Pro.g. · ·29112 .. · 

. . ~ . l2Q-2rn Khe~ive No .. 2 ~· .T._ .~ ·: .,h · . -·· .. . _ R. I . 
. ,- · · · . 271-950 Genms . - - 'tr~ ---~ Med. 

.. 
., . 105 

- . 
. 89 : . 

·. 119 · 

: ·.· 

!'lo. ' ' . 

; 

. : ·97-420 .. S~rety -Nq.- 2 . · --.9112 .. Good. 
~ .-·-.--:--' · No: 1929 Ass't N: Flyer. ·-.. ~---~.:..::.~--'---'--'--·-~--'-~~-~----:-. -. -----'---.--'- "" 

. . 3J:3 ! 
.l • . ·· .. : .~·.- .··. - -: 

-. .136112'. 
·. • Date 4/21/13.·_ .: . 

! •• • •.• . • 
Si~ed EULA 

1-. 

' . \ ' 

Daie 4/21/13 • ··~ S\gned ·_EULA · · 

. . 

·--­.. ·. 



.. 

I 

. . . . 

I • . ·.' ~ ---=- .• - . .. · .· . ... . . .. .. . . ' .. . ... 
; 

+ 
DDDJDANT'~ BXllIBIT. ~(Pont'd) · .. 

- . . . . . . 

· : · ; ~ NATIONAL PENCIL CO. 
~tlanta, Ga. 

... Daily 'Report. 
·, · Thulsday. : . 

.Dept. ackiug · · ·Dept. No. 13 
90-210 Cadillac No._ 2 _6.% 
91-210 Cadillac No. 3 2 · 

. 116-210 Bowers Prog . 151/2 
· ' - - 27l-95i>-Genius · · - · ·-- --71 

NATIONAL> l>ENCIL CO . . : -
. . Atlanta, Ga. . 

· Daily Report!. ' . , . ' 
· Thursday. 

· ·Dept. · P~ckiug 
·939-20 G~ Wash.1 
688-40 J. Monroe · 

· R. I. 

Dept: ' No. 13 
34 . 
20 # 

5-4 
. 54 

' • , 

2-74-470 Thoroughbred 4a 
No. 15 Ass 't Princely Cards · . l'f> Med. 

Good . 

. 13·-~--'---~--

' . . 
·153 

·153 
· . 34.45 Trumps . 36 

Ass 't No. 48 S: Bargain Hee Sp "so 
Ass't N0. 53 Southwestern 

Date 4/24/13 
343 

·Signed EULA 

No. tl5 . 50 

136 
. J?ate 4/24/13 - .. ·. Signed EULA . _· - ---

---- -...--.--·· -. 

DEFENDANT'S~ · EXHIBIT 4b .. 

Job department reports, being part ot data tor ftna.noial sheet. 

NATIONAL PENCI~ CO. :NATIONAL PENCIL CO. 
Atlanta, Ga. · -Atlanta, ·oa. 

. . Daily ·Report. · Daily Report. 
- :-- Dept Jo . .- - · - Dep~o-. 22· ... -Dept: Job-;-' · -:-Bept; No. 22 .. 

- - - · - -.5~4 . Pol sec .~ - ·· .- · · , 59 . 504 Pol'sec ·- - - - 12 
· .090 " " - · .::_20 3's " 3's 69 

: · · 506 '' -'' io . 74 . '' sec· 111 
· 3's " 3's 12 . · 111 " " 

. --~- - 90 ,, sec .. .. 10 112 -rc=--n ----- - - - 3 

·. 095 · cc 3fl. ~-~-133 ..:... 90 " " ~~ . ? 
· -· - : 7x · " sec." . . . . . 30 · 506 " "· - . · 8 
.- .--',- __ ,__ ·,- _. ----: .. . ·---- . -r70 - " "- .-- --- --_ - 16 

' . . . . . - 274 ' ,. 75 . " _., " . 3 

• 

r ~ate .4/21/13 · Signed F .ANNIE ·A. : . 
~~--~- .. : . : · r~· -. ---.-.. ---"-.. ......,,.-~~.~. _,_. ~-. --_~-.2-so---.-. -. ....,..... 

. . ~Date 4/23/13 . Signe~ F. J;. A . ." 

. ,.,,,, ·. :. 

. .... 

- ~ . .·. - _ I . . -
• • · - '' '° " • • • • • • • 

·.-: ,• 

:·- ·. . . - •\>'ti 

·.· · ·\ . . 
. . ' . ·r 



'·. •": . 
I • 

.· 259 · . 

. . ··· D:UDDANT'~-B~pr ·4~(0ont'd) ... 
NATIONAL PENCIL .CO. ... NATIONAL PENCIL CO. 

Atlanta, . Ga. .... Atlanta, Ga.' 
.. . · . . . . ' Daily li~port. . Daily Report. 

Dept. Job. -Dept.~No.-:22--·I>ept. Job. Dept. No. 22 
111 Pol s~e · . ~ · 19 90 Pol see · 3 
74 " " ' 28· l14 " " 1 

. .. . . 
. ... ~ - . 

.> 

- . 090 " " 13 095 " 3's 47 
.500 "' " . "' . 11 . - --~--~~---------~ - -

3's " 3's 97 
75 '! see 10 . · 
70 " " 22 

.. 51 
216· 

... 50( " " 16 

2Hf 
Signed FANNIE A 

Date 4/24/13 
267 

Signed FANNIE A 

Dale 4/24/.1.3 

. ~ .. 
DEPENDANT'S EXHIBIT 4c. 

Daily report of lead .deliv~ries .from lead plant, part ~f data for ftna.ricial 
sheet. · · 

l :Sox 3992 . 910/No. 2 
2 " 3993 . " 
2.:·· " -3994 
2 " 3995 
2 "-S996 2 

. 9 Box 

-
127 Gross 
247 " 
254 IJ 

254 '' 
163 

--·· ~ -· .. 10.45 gr.oss~ . ~ - . ·. -· -

260 .. " ~ 
197 

_3· :Pox 3863 940/No. 3 
2 " 3910 940/No. 3 

··------ -- · -3 " . 3911 --- · ·335 
·3 '' 3912 .. 

. - .-
19 Box . . 

. · 2 Box 3976 '852/7 . 
~. 3978 8521~ 

4 ." . 39.19 - - ,_.. 

29 Bo~ 

"292 

2192 ·Gross · . 

260 " . --·· 
." 347 : 
347 

. ·. 3787 Gross 

·-----..,----"----'---~ Bo:1; 398cri352/7 _.- .·· ·•· .. _ 35 
· . . 4 . " .3981 . : ' .. . . .: ._. -· ·".::" 352 . ·.:"•\ ·. ··· .·_ 

~ ' • ' • • • • f •• 
. -: ~ ~(~:: .. ::.:·::;,; . .:~··; --

• 1 . · •• ~·-=:-6- · .. - · 704 gross ,. . ..,"- .. 
_. G, WEINKAUF. 

· : .. 
• .J· 

. :-;. Apr/21, i913 
.. . : . . 

. '• . . 
·. \ . . -- - _ .. _...:.. ·- ---

.. : ... 



·.· 

/ 

. 0 

•"·, 

-
"<.. . . . 

·:· .. 

.. , 
' .\ 

...... · .. 

\ 

. . . ~ . 
. · . . . " . 

--·· -. - -~ 

·.· . .ff6 ,. . ., 

' - ~ . - -- .. - . ·- -- ,. -· 

· Report of tip deliveries from tip plant, being part of datlc'. 1or financial 
sheet. · : .,. · · · · . · . _ 

W. eekly report. of Metal J.>;ept., No. 18, April 2~, 1913. 

_Large_ Ey_elet Macl!, 
-- -. · Small .Eyelet Mach. 

____ 4.Q-4 -· Tips delivercd-
440 No. 6 
644 No. 10 . 

830 
448 

.,. . . . 

Trimming Mach .. 
Knurling Mach. 835 · No. 12-R~qipped 

~o. 17 - · 
35 

_ 6'!!_ .'!.___ 

- -----
a . . ' 1,377 

(Signed)· L. A. QUINN . 

. I 

DEPENDANT'S ZXllIBIT IS . 

.. 4verage (of order.a) sheet, being a complete record (beginning with ihe · 
. week ending Jan. 16, 1913) of the number:of orders received each week, classi­
·fied as to· price under different headings, said number being. totaled at the end · 

· of each week and the average pric.e ascertained. The· following is a record only 
of ~rd~_rs for the factory mOnt~ ) f Ap_!'.il,~13 : · · . 

WEEK~ING 4/3/13 .. 

100 150 200 300 
. .,. thru thru thru and ·. 

60 cts. R. I. 140 · · 195 295• . over 

- •. · : . . . 

• 

Friday 28 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15~413---<rH7 1 :-458- -'. 1651/2'-----
. ·saturday 29 . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 28 30 - 2 6 5 
Monday 31 . . . .. . .. . .. .. 5 258 81 ·.7% ·12n · 35 · 

· · ·· Tuesday 1 .. ; . . . . . . . . . . . 10 17 47 14 78 ·151/2 · 

.....,........ _ ___ -,--~--Wednesday 2 12 .. 165 i32v~_-i ,_122 ----30¥: 
. Thursday 3 ... :-.. ; · .. "' -' . 24 · 154 · 621 · 6% · · 79 15 

--· ~ , 

. ·_. -- - · -·- ----: -". Total . gross - .. : ... · ........ --~n "1035 · · 218% --154 - -S55 - . ..., 206% 
. Price·pei: gross ~ ....... -.. . ;60 · .80 4 .25 1.75 - 2.50 .. 3.00 

. Total .value ...... ; . . . . . . . 127.80 ·828_.00 _ 1,523.~3 · 2~9.51 2,137.50 - 619 .. 50 

. ~ . . . .$5,505.43 368~ gr. · 1.50 av. • - ·:-'"='- ._ • • 

- - --· --- -:-·-: -~ . . 
. ":), . -.... . . · .... . . 

. -·- . 

- - . 



. r · 
. ·. · 

·-' 

. ,;·' . . . . l . _ 

261 

. DBPB~~'I BXBIBIT 6--(0on~inued). -· -··.-
WEEK. ENDING 4/10/1?. 

100 150 200 . ·. 800· 
·thru thru ' thru and 
140 . 195 
:280 ,. ·572 

· ·295_ over 
53 . . . 51% 

~ 60 cts. . ij.. I. · 
Friday 4 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 . 162 

·47" - 16 . _ ·38% 12 
188· 118 .154% 86 

. -· Sat~day 5 . . . . . . . . . . . . . at 19 
~---. - · ~onday -7 .-:. : .. : ........... · 106 --101 

.... 

.: .. : . . 

. Tuesday 8 ~ .... ·... . . . . . . . · 10 - 30 
Wednesday ~ . . . . .. . .. . .. ~ f? 
Thursday 10 ...... ·. ·.. .. .. 15 156 

48 . 10 
2 . 8 

232 28 

67 . . 74 
4 2 . 

90 671/2 . 

. rotal gross . ........... · .. .. -200 --=-468..:.. - 7..88112 696 --3.25%- ·. 286% . . . _ 
PJ.'ice per gross ; .. ... ~ . ·. . · .60 . .80 · · 1.25 · 1.75 · 2.50 3.00 :· .-,.,. 

Toti)l v_alu.e . . . . . . . . . . . . . 120.00 -a'lt.40 985.62 128.00 833.75 889.50 · 

.· 

$4,~28.2~ · 27741/z 1.60 av. 

WEEK ENDING 4/17 /13. · .., 

60 cts. ·. 

. . 100 150 - . 200: . 300 
thru 

;R. I. 1.40 
·thru 
195 

. thru . and 
295.. over 

- ;wriday 11 .. : .. .......... . . . 
1l 

Saturday 12 . .... . ... .. .. 
Monday 14 ... · .... : . ~ -. _ 6 104 ·9 
Tuesday 15 ....... -· .... .5 11 30 
Wednesday 16 • . . . . . . . . . . 10 10 7 

173 276 . - -_-_ -:- Thursday -17 : : .. . .. : . . .. · · 55 . . ' 

.. 
5 
8 
.4 

2171/z 
--

25() 
26 
26 
14 

365 
--

5 
. 10 

1 
6 

1981/z- . 

Total gross_ : .-: . . . . . . . . . . 76 298 ~ 322 234% _· 681 -220-lh 
Price per gross .. ,_ .. . .. . ·.. .. · _ .60 . . 80 . · i.°25 .. 1.75 2.50 · 3.00 ·. 

c....-~---..,Lil.ldll..--Y.llkl..lh:llie:.:.:.· · __;_· ~· ...:.·~~::..·.,~· ...:..• . ·:.:..·· ..:_· "-.!· 4tiJ5l.!J.6.0 238.40 8,412.50 410.38 1,702.58 661.50 
· · 1852 gr. . $3,460.88 · $1.89 av. 

--- --

- - -7-.. - --~--"----. -WEE~~NfifNa--41~411 . 
. 

111 
. - - -~ • 100 -150 - 200 300 . - _ _ ___ _,_. 

thru · thr.u · thru and 
~ ·_ .. -----2-. -. 60 cts.- R. I. 140 · 195 ' 295 over --

. · Friday 18 ... :.: ...... . : .. · - 9 103 -:- 65 . 9th 122 . .95 · · _ · 
· .. -.-. ___,-.. --.:.Saturday-19 . , . -: : . .... - .~ .-~ -- .. ~ --=--- 26--·81" -- ~13 · ---52%- 16 .- ·_ 

Monday ·21 .: .... ,·........ . 53 118 79% · 20 83 · 17 
:..:.:.--~~ _ _...Tuesday-2L:__ _ 28 205--115 · .Ol 9%-1-53%---'--_..:._---..,..-~ 

,. ·. Wednesday 23 .. -~.. .... .. .. 15 · 5 · 28 ... , · 5 161/z ·. ' 
' T,hursday ~24 ... · ... ;. :_. .... ·: 10 ' ·29 ·.· . ·· ~ 11 110 100 

. . --'. --.-
· : · . · •1-"Total gross .. ; . . .... .... · 115 · .-48.6 · · 379% 148% ·. 393% 381% 

. Price per gross .. : ... : ... _. · · &O_.:_·_ ~ 1.25 1.75 2.50 · 3.00 . 
· Total va!ue . . . . . . . . . . .. . . 69.00 388.80 4H.38 259.88 983.75 1,144.50 .. 

. . . · ; · - .. $3,320.81 ·: ' · . 1904 gr. ·. · -~ · ~ · . -$1.74· av. · · -""' - : __ 

\ ' . 

.. :·. . .. -
~: · ; · . . -. . - --.. :--:- ·. --· - -. . . -- -,-

. ·. ...'L:..,: -: ____ \ ., ._. \ . . 
· .. ' 

• "';, : 
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~-'------· ~ - · - ... 
-: .. ' . \ .. . ' . : . ·. ·. ··: .. Duilb>.&lft''I ~RI BIT 8, 

. . · Value of lhipmenu . for. week endlnl April ~ beJ.ng p~ of data for 
-·•. ~~ 8.11~·' .. ~ . . .. - . : .. . · . . · \ . ---~1.35 ·. ~- ~ ... . . . _ .. : . ·-

38.37 
-" . 27.00 

----:-----'----....:....__ ___ _._ 23,40 

. ~ 

4-0.00 •. /.'\.... . : • 1' . 

. '·. .. ·'124.80 
_. .. ....... 18th 14.20 . 

38.82· . 

. ~ . 

l 

~~-=---~----~~~.;._:.___; ___ ~~-___:~-~~...:--~-1--=23_.3_9 --
· 17.50-·. 

.· t 

----~-F-14.66 

27.00 Q - : . 5 
. ' 

. 10.90 
.. · _: __ - 8.90 . 

... · 107.50 . --
· · -Shipments Wee)t ·Ending .4/24/l3 · · · · 14.86 

400.75 19th 14.92 . ~ 
482.00 . 73.04 

1146.06 43.90 " 

· · . ·,Apr. 18 
. -" . ·. 19. 

'' ·21 _: 0 •• ••• 
" . ·" -22 1457.95 21.25 

. . . '·' -23 
._ -~·-· ·-U . 24 

706.'63 135.10 

. . . . .· .-

. ... 
·' 

. .. 
- - '--

". 

·1245,57- ___ ._: .. ~ .. ··-~-. -:-. ·. - -.··- -'-'-. _. _. _ 51..63~· ~· - - - --. ,---- ~ 

5438.78 - . 

. . ~ ... 

----~--

l .. , ,·. . • . 69.51?.. . . . 

I 
. . ... , - "/ . . . . . . 

24.34 
114.00 
.29.39 
17.84 . 

-'--,, _ ___ -_.2 ..... 1...,stlL, · 1.5.07 

.. - - - -- . .; .. . :...... 

-------. 75.99 .-:-.!" - , ~ -· -· 
-= ~1-3.70 -.·- . 

I ~ . 

... 74-0.55 
. . 33.25 - . . . /-· "'--..._ . · .. · L 

.. . . 
"· 

- .... . 
----- - -38 ... - -- -~· · 

. 12.00 ' 
.; .---'-:--':---....,--'-......,....-----''---~-_:_.:_.....:.._.l ~6.67 -=-=---. -~-........-'---.. ;-,' -----,-7-, 

i0.00 . : . -· . " . . . . '. - . ' . : · . 22nd 

I • 

I• • t <>- ; ---~ 

' • I • • ·• '\ I • 

· 18.70 " . .. ' . . . . ; ' . 
188.80 . . . - ,. ~ . 

1267.28 

I ' 

' ' 

. . . :- -:­
.. - 1• . ; 
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. /" . . . .. -'---· . ~>/ , · .. · · . DZDNDANT!S_B~~~'I~ ~ . 

•• _)" ._.&. • • 

. Three pencil sheetir (the last two lines of whic~ are iii' Frank's handwrift. · · . 
. . ·.. · 1ng)-;-·Pl'~ of. data for finaµcial sheet: 

-:. · .-· . 

. . 

PENCIL STOCK Week Ending 
. . . . . -

·· . ..... NATIONi\L·PENCIL C_OMPANY, '_Atlanta, Ga. 

. .' 'DAT~ .... · 
--·-• 

14 
- 15 

16 . 

· APlit .13 
- 19 . 

- :---:-':ll 

... 

. . 
· 1 ~& 

~ - ~ : '- ~ ~ ~ -... 
i d1· z ~· i ff) 

- ~ -~ M i ~ - ~ ~ i. ~ z ··· 8 
(/) 

~ ~ !:; .... 
-~ .i .... . i .... . .... .... °' · · N :a .... .... .... . .N 

- ~ ~ ~ ~ ··~ · ~ - ~ - -~ .... 
·~ ~- . $ . 0 .... ~ 
·- . 

14 ( 
- . 

32 64 40 
• 19 21 61 36 . 13 . -s 

53 13 

100 - , 10 . - -. -A - - -:'1 

·100 31-8 . 10 

17 . 58 18 60 

53 69 - .33 

'1~ 121 7 274 

94 1l . ·- . 1 .. 18 

78 3 ·. · 5 

86 ... 454 59 791 104 , f 105 21 

/ --1--==--1- =:i 

'"· ... · 
_ .. - ---=---~·1~- .-, -. -. - __,..,___ . .. ~ :-·· 

\ .· .. . -----.---. -· 
·" 

. · ' .. 
. . 

·. 

, . 

' . ' 

.; . " •• · : 
• t • • 

" . ' 

. -: .. 
. .. . _, 

: . / 

~---· ---
\ '~ I 

. . . 
• • ·----'-- - ' __ _ ; - -.-4 1 

. .. . : . -. ... _,,.; 

. .· 
'\ 

. - ... 

~- ~ 
0.. ' ii (/) 

~ ~ .... 
.... 

. . " 

\ . 

- .. • . 

~ . . . 

-· 

2 . 

- ·· . . 

. · .... 

, • .... , 

.· ' 

·' 

AP.rlL.17, 1913 

--e 
\ <SR . -~ 

.. 

~ ~ 
·· ]~· · s 0-

- ~ . • u• 

'\ . . 
'< .. 

...... : . . 

.. · 
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'6, .. , • · r 

' .... . 

.· . ' . 

. . . . 

.. 

.. ·· . ·N~TIQNAL PENCIL COMPANY, Atlaµta, Ga. 

DATE 

·15 

l6 

TOTAL · 

April 18· 
. . ' . . 19 · 

21 . 
-· -:.22 

·. · ~-

. 24 

TOTAL 
ShlDDed This 

. -week . 
-:Jlif"St - End 

Tblt W.eek 

~ 
f}3 

.. " ~ 

. "'° 

-. 

.. 

-- -

•••• 

7· 
35 . 

46 

4 

38 

'·· 

. .,., 

-· - . · ~ 

r • . - -

. ./ 

-~---H----·1---t-~---· - -.:-· - · --' '. ' . 

... · . . . . , . . • ..J. 1 • 

"·.· 

·• .· . . . . 
· · .DBi'BNDAHT'S IJXBIBIT 7-0ontinued;· · · · - · . . - . . . ' . 

--· 
. Three pencil sheets . (the last t~o lines ·of which are in Frank>'s . handwHi. · · 

·ing), part of data for. financial ·sheet. · 

SY. 

, 
/ 

5 . S 

141 . ·so 4 10 . -
./ 

SY. 14Y. 50 4 15 

.. ' 

: 6 

" 
100 
100 

. - ' ._ 

. -== _::==- _- -

- - - - -· . --~ -· 

\ 

. : . . 
. · .... • r . ·. 

I• , '\.' . ' . .. • • • ' • • ~ ~:- - ~- ' ~ _ ·· -. _· "-· ;__ c ·~·: ~- . .. • - . • 

. .. . . • I 
. · ., ,r;· . . 

- ~ . ·- ., . 

• 

32 

21 

25 

71 

159 

. . . \ . 

·, 
' . -:-1···.- · -·-

-- -~-L- - --- - _ __ .;__..:....:;. ___ ~ - -- ____ : ---~----

•·· - · • - .' . : ' " - ' • •Y • 
- ._ -- ........... _ .. ·~ - .·- :.: .• . '..----------···- .-·- - ,_ -:.-_.. -+- -+ . . 

_ .!.,. 

: ·-·· . -. .· 
. . . \ . . ,._ ( 

.. .. ·:.·:; : ... . __ .· ____ \ ... .. 
---~--. 

·· .. · 
. . ·· . •• • _• j . ·' . ·. - ·· 

. . . ... . · . ., . 
' 

. . 
·· · -- · · 

18Y. 

.a. .. . ·. 

April · 17, 1913 

-· - - ·---'----II 

---·--- --. - --- -· · . .... _ . 
. · -·J~ . 

. . : . \. :: . . .. 
. . . .· 

• I • ' . ... ' 
- -- ----- - --

' 

w " 

. . / .. : -· 



., 

'· . ... .· . , .... . . 
.... 

. ; . 
~· ~ .. .... , . 

, . 

- - ---=----- - ---:--=--· --~ 
. : \ ····· - ·:. 

--=--. ·-- \ _' 

•·~-
T~ree pencil sheeis (thwtast two lines of w4ich are in Frank's handwrit- · · · 

ing.)°, p11-rt of data for financial sh~et .. _ . ..,.· ·. · 
~ . - . . ·~ . . 

·"-· . ' · ' FA ·c ·T.O.·.R-. Y -·R-· E C. O.·R D ·. 
l : . 

V·-

·~A·:pONAL PENCIL COMPANY, Atlanta, Ga. PENCIL STOCK f ' .!,.- ·. , '· ·'-> Week Ending April 17,' 1913 
/ • 

. p.. ~ 
, .. 

t 
~ · z 

~ ~ ~ - ~ ~ . i~ 1'1,1 ~ ~ ell ~· - DATE .. ~8 : ~ ~ - ·oo i ~ 8 
~ """ ""lt4 

~ 
. -

~ 
...::i ~ ~ ~§ =~ =t-4 I ~ ~ =~ 

c:i. .... ::c: , p.. 
~~ t= . 

~ z * ~ ~ ell § ..... 
~ j ~~ ell ~Cl) 

~ 
- ~ ~. ~ 

8 
i~ ~~ ~~ 

::;:i 

~ ~ Ii( z 
~ 
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. DBDNDANT.'S. lxBDiT 7a. · .. · 
. .f.Jt-13 .·Resume· of the · thr.ee sheetl!I . 

· Production . · · · · . · · · 
· Wk. End . · Fri. 18 . : Sat. 19 ··· . -Mon. 21 · Tua 22 , · .Wed. 23 · · Thur. 24 · 

.... - --·- . Cheap (10 Ex~ . ... 17 --.--- 70 ·- . .:.. ·--·· 86-· _:..:. - 86 , __ ·- 86 6-~-.: ... : .... -..:__-=='=:i:=:::====-======::::=========:::-: 
~· :----·--. . .- ·-. -. -. _~.·~ . . .. :·'.~~~b~ro:·~~s~~. · .. ~~ .. · ~~~ . -- ~: -. __ 1 ~: . ---,_; -- ~: . · -< ~~~ ·: _·_ . 

--.~ -._.--:-·- · . · - ~-..-. - ,· --·-·,-·-.-·-116, 117 .Jobs... .. ... . · · .. :.. · ~ """· . :. .... ... . ... · . 
· · .- ... · .. · . . -..· Medium :.; ... :. ~25 -190"Jh_··-_,29~ -- - "as·5 ··5291h ~ 6641/2 ·-::~ . 

___ , -. _ ... , ... . · . Good .. :: ...... : 16~~. · -1791/~ " · .-.315 , . . 435-:-:- . -:-557 . 710 .. ,· - · 
" , - . . To~ .. , .......... 27~2 , 685 . 1245 .. · 1658 · l~l/2 .. 2765tlh .. · ·· ..,_ 

· : · ~a~y"Totals . .. : '.2741Aa 3101h " 660 313 _3?41h ... 860 
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· DBl'BND~'B · BXBIBIT . G-;.(Oontiilued). 

1.83.70 ' 

- I 

: J 

.13.04 
23.~5. 
29.46 
29.18 
28.80 

!S-rd 260100 
20.00 

~23.04 

'24th 

18.49 
14.13 
30.00 . 
27.70;~ · . 
5.13 . 

204.32 
644.40 
145.00 
63.33 
28.00 

' 27.751-----~--
13.48 

·. ~ ll~.29 

DEPENDANT'S BX.JllBIT 8. 

. . -

. .... 

. :- ' 

Eight carbon- Qopies of- eight -letters, -all dated -AprR 26,-1~13,, and ad-· _ _ __ 
dressed: to:. · · . 

Schroder & Lombard Engraving Co., 18 Franklin St., N. Y . 

.·, .· 

.___,~~~=----,~--n... ... ry..-'FI. istoJrttuns,--Philadelphia.,Po-.-,.,.--- - -.-·- - -· ---~-------,,..--~~ 

J. G. McCrory Co., 621-Bro.adway, N. Y: .· · . ~ 
~ .... . ·.-:-:.-.southern Bargain Hou@, Richmond, Va. · .·. -­

------ --- --

. American Zylacq Co., Inc., 8 ·Livingston St., ·-Newar.k, N: J:~ 
-..,..-'-, ___ _,,A~. J!"..!.. Sossner; 154 Duane St., N·. Y. · · -~· · 

· · · -'-:-::The Pullman Co.~hicago, Ill. - - - -,. 
. · · . · Schrod~r &·-LQmbard, 18 Franklin'. St., N.fY; r 

nd-.si ed~National-P--encil-'€lom aw . . . : . . . . . . . . . . . S t. '' n 
e·ach letter are· the ·initials " -LMF·:HH." 

- Each letter acknowl~~ges receipt. of letter· received from: ih.e firm ad­
dressed and whose names are set forth above -(which original letters from said 

.. • . 

•. 1 • 

, . . 
· · firms are attac)led to the respective carbon copy which it purports to answer), \' · . 

·and have to do with-m-atters .of· busin.eiia c~nnected with the National Pencil · · ; , 
Company. -- " "\ .. 

, · 

. . . . . . .. ---·-~--- ·. -- - -- ·---~-- - · ·--. 
----·- ---.- . -: 
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DUJOO>.AJft''~ BXBDIT 9. 
· ·_ ···'A large book contain~ ·au of _the flna~cial sheets of the National Pencil 
Company, beginning with ihe week ending November 25, 1909, .and ending 
·with the week ending April 24, 1913. Each· of these sheets purport to cover 
the financial operationtt of · the National P.encil Company for the respective 

. --week narlled thereon, and in form is identical with the sheet of April 24, 1913, 
set forth-herein as "Defen9-ant's·Exhibit 2." 

DBPBND T'S llXRIBIT 10. · 

, . -' - A-11matr receiI,>t book containing ·.~he foliowing receipts: · • 
_ ___ _ . ApriL 19, 1913. .Received o ?Dtlonal_fencil Qo: _ 15 ce~~~-k~~~sene. 

(S1gn~d) Nute Lee, F. '\.., - . -•.. 
· . April 21, 1913 . . Received of National P~cil Co .. 75 ·cent_s..::;_type (Signed) 
A. Mann, F. . ~ . 

-April 21, 1913. R~ceived of National ncil Co. two dollars-dJ.'ay. 
(Signed) Truman McCrary. -. .,-- · · . · · 
· April 2i, 1913. · Received of National Pencii . $2.50-i:iaseli, (Signed) 

. . John Glass. .. · . 
- April 21, 1913. Rec.eived of National Pencil Co. 3 _. cent~-express1 War~­

ner. (Signed) So. -Express Co., F. 
. . April 21, 1913. Received of ~ational Pencil (\o. 50 cent . J.>Ostage stamps._ ~ · 
(Signed) A. Mann, F. J ~ 

--.- April 21, 1913. Received of 'National ·Pencil Co. 3 cents parcel post. 
(Signed) A. Mann, F.- - o.... . 

·. April 22, 1913.- Received of National Pencil Co. $2.oO, rent ~o w.e~ks 
typewriter. (Signed) Underwood· Typewr.iter CO'., F. · 

. -~pril 22, 1913.- ·Received of ~ational Pencil Co. $1.25-cases, (Sif\D:ed) 
Dan Reid, F. - · · 

• - April 22, 1913 . . Recei~ed o~ National Pencii Co. ~1.70-dray. (Signe<l) 
. . ' Truman .. McCrary. . 

~pril 22~ 1913 .. Received of NatiQPal Pen~il Co. · 45 ·cents-supplies. 
(S~e eegass. 

- ~-- · ... ;-1913.-.:._Received of Nat(onai Pencil Co .. $3.50-cases (.Signed) - - ." 
John Gla~s, F." · " · · · - . 
. April 23, 1913-. ,.Received of National ~ncil Co. $1.75-cases. _(Signed) 

·Dan Reid, F. -
·- -- - . April 23, 1913.-:__Received of Nationai Pencil -co. -s5 - cents'-in~ .. 2-1-1~ 

(Signed) King Hdw. Co., Green. 
~==========::;:::::::::::· ~.:pril=23j=l-lJ1F4t-ece1ved-oFNition encit-er.$l':6()!;;:dray:-\-Signed)-=== .. i=-=. ====== 

.,,. Truman McCraey~ · · · - · · 

. . April 24, 1913 . . Rec.eived of National Pencil Co. 50. cents:.._postage stamps. 
(.Signed) A. Mann,. F. · ·. _ · · · · .. .... --- · · 

·" --"--. ··.A.priL24, .1913. Received of National Pencil C,o. $11.50.-:..tinsmit}l job. 
· - - -- .. (Signed) Pa..µ-Armbrust, ft. F. D. No. 3, 4tlanta, .. Ga. · · · · · · · . . . . .. . . .. . 

·.· .. 

/-
-·~-----:_.._ _ :...... ... . :..--...~- .- .. . 
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'·=-~. ~ -~ ~-· _· _· ··· . · -~~-~-~· ~lll'BllD~ llXlllBl'l' 10-(dontlnu84): · -'. ---- - _,. __ - --~ 
. . / . . . . 

· ·" . ·. April 24, 1913._ ~lc~ived of Nation_ ~l Pencil Co~. 13 ·cents-parcel post . . 
. 1~igned) A. Maim, ~ . . . · · . · 

· April 24, . 191~ Recci_ved of National Pencil'Co. 5 cents-thread. (Signed) -----~ 
: · . - A.·Mann, F. / · \. . · . 

· April 24,,,1913. Received of National P.encil Co. $1.00--dray .. · (Signed) · - . 
. .'rruman M~Crary. " · · 

· · · · · Aprjr' 25, 1913. Received of _Na.!j.onal Pencil Co. _10-:< cents-oarfare. 
- (~ign~d) A. Mann, F. . . ' . . . . . . - : . 
· ·April 26,· 1913. Received of National Pencil Co. $2.00-dray. (Signed) 

. . ~an Mccrary. · . · · . 
. / . April 26, 1913. Received of National Pencil , Co. · 75 cents~express. 

/-
_(Signed) So. Express Co., F. _ , · . 

. · . April 26; 1913.' ~eeived of -National Pencil Co; $4.00 time for office work. 
/ (Signed) 'Herbert Wright, .F .. 

. / . -
DEPENDANT'S EXHIBIT 11, . I 

.t · · Comparison s)leet, .i9i2-1913, being ·part of data/ for ftnanoial sheet: 
- - . ...:._ - -:-- - . . - I -: ~ - : -=- - · . : "!; 

· Comparison 1912-13. _ · ' " ~ 
~~--------. . 

_Week Ending Apr. 24/13. 
( 45 hrs.) 1912. 

- ·~ Payroll .. ....... . .. . ....... ~ ..... . : ... .. $ 1,036.15 
1913 
$1.j)52.55 

Machine .Shop -;-,- . : .......... " ......... ~ 47.75 ...... 
Expense ·. . .................... ~ .' ..... ·. 1,584.55 

-Material Cost ............ " ........... : . . 1,271.46· 
Total Expenditures ..... . , . '. : ... ,~ ...... · · 2,856.01 

..: 
Net Value· Productions . .' ........ . ...... , .2,431.22 
Apparent Results-Deficit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 424.79 

70.00 
1,623'.20 
1,552.55 
3,175.75 
3,066.31 

Def. ·· 109.44 
.. ~ _ _ ___ _,_,alue_sh~pments . . . . . . . . . .. .. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,323.22 5,4~8.78 

- ·· · · · -2,50~ Gr. 4,374' Gr. 

Pro:ductions: ·: :Net : ............... . · .... : . 2,i32% 2,7191;2 
'G.o.od . ... : ...... · . . · .................. : .. : . 457~ 700 

. . Medium- .. . >• ..... ·. · .. , . : ...... · .. · ... ·.. . .. · .· 829 : 629% _: 
~. ~-:-: -~ -·-cheap . . ... -.. . .... . ............. ; .. ; : .. . . . 546 · _599· 

·' . 

·. 

.·• 

Job . · . · . . . . ~. · . . . ...... .... _ _._._...,_._,_. __ 3W---== = ====:::i1ru91,1;:l :::=:-=:'.:-=============i 
·. ··Per. cent. Jobs ..... ; .- .... ".: ·,.; _. .....•. : .. . . · 14% · '. · 29% 

. . .. · Re~~rks ; : . ' ·. " . >-. . . - ... ,_,_ :' . · . '.. " ,_, . 
:- ... 

- ·-·-·-----:-. · · 19120 55 hrs. work. ·:. ·· 
• '. t . 

. "\ . 
. . ·_ · .... .... . .. : · ... 
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. " \ 
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- \. ----



• I 
· . \ I 

" 

. ·.! . 
• • 1 • 

l . :.I 
·.· ·1. . '·I . I . ~ 

I • I ' . 

- . "' . ·I I . . •. I .. . . I 

"· l -', I • '. . t 

.I 

... 

... 

r .~r < i · · i>~ .. uKmrr 12. 

·1 . . ,. ~- : . 1 . . : I ; . . • .. ' . '1 . . . . I . 

I
. .. 

. " 

.· 
.. y' 

,• 
/ 

/ na .. 'L~ Page 56 of ~e 01j . Book of National Pencil . Company 

. : .. . · Salesman . . , . 
1 

Ship to · · fKjnd 

~lsi~rl. P. · · ~--" . w:· w .. Co . . ~o. 57 . ' · Itegul~r 
1·1~J. P . . . · .. ~ .. · . .-: ·1 F . "w~ w. ·ao. · ~~ .. ~8 ~eguiar · · 1 

71S9-~. P . .... . · ·.· : I .. 1 ~-: ~- 9~- - ~P.- · ~53 
71~D. P . . . . " F . . W. W. Co. No. 580 

7191-* ·:.P . ::·.,. ":_...,·_ .. : I ~- _w:, W. Co. No.~ .. 

. 7192-~'.' P. . . ... . . ·· .:.' '. .. 
1 

.. . :W; ~- ~- ,~o._ 262 

7l9~Maii, u. ·s. :. : :·~.soo 5.
1
and lOc Store " 

I I . ··. .' ;. . . "· . . 1' 
71~H. G. · " · · . ' .' : I : -~t~ll ~r~s. Co. 
. · I . . .. · : . ; · · · 1 

: : 71~~tory . . : . · _: . : ~nt'g :B~s. · . i: · 

11~-J. HJ · . R. :E. Kindell Co. 

gu!ar 

· gular 

: R gµIar : 

:R gular 
' , I 

R gular 
I ., . 

·. S ecial 
· 71~no. · r.~~- ·; :-1 : ohn :M~~ ·co. 

. I , . '. I \ .. .. 
: I : Ii .: . .. I· 

;'~.· ri . . ·'.~ .. _· -.· .. ·-.. 11 : , : ~ . . . . i .I' 
,] . r I· 

-. l . I 
., / 

i " ·I ~ . ' 

j 
·£·, 
ii 
' 

I 
i 
i. 

. I 
I 

/ 
. I 

I 

/ 

I 

Order No. ""' · 1 'city-Stat~ · 

4/ 24/ 1.3· 

4/23/13 

4iJ;13 
4/~/13 

·st. Joe, Mo.· / . . 4/26/13 
I 

.4/26/13 

4/ 24/13 

04355 

Terre Haute, Ind. 

Logads,Port, Ind. · 

D~Kafh, m. ·/ 
-\viJkJsbai~:, P~ .. ., I . . . I 

,Saratoga Springs, N. Y. 
. ·I . . 
Sault 1Ste. ~arie Mich. 
. / I 

4~23(13 .. )~ubuque, low~ 

4/26/ 13 Atlanta, Ga. · · 

134 c .hicago; Ill . . 

4/~13 . 

I 
Cinci!'.mati, Ohio 

. .. 

11 

\. 

. " 

I 

"' I 4/26/13 . . I 
4/26/13 

. ,' i 

4/26/13 

4/2J;rn 
I 

:;:J;:: 
· ·4;2d;rn 

.4;2J;rn· 

' 4;/~ /13 

How ship 

. At' once 
At .once 

At.once · 

. / 

I ' 
.. ! . " ,. 

l . 
I . . -

. I 

' . 

I .. 

i I ' , 

I l -. 
·" ! 

r 

• 1 Page ?7 , · - . · 

'1 $m~ 

I 
p . . 

: 4/28/13 . . : " . 
.. .. _t-:1 

. . . . 4/28/13 
,I " . 

:1 4/~/13 .. 
l . : ·1 

l 
·At on.ce I ' 4/~/13 to:» 

. " .. I. , , -.g: 
· At once .· 4/28/13 · . · ' 

1 • • ,· 

· :At once :_ I 4/28/13 ·I · . 
I ._ 

At once 

.At once 

At · once 

: :1 . 7/9/13 . 

., ·. 5/6/13 . 

,; ., "6/9/13 . . 

At. one~ · '. 1• 4~/].3 

At once · 

. I . ._ , 
. . ·" ·j. 
. ~- I 
.. 
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LE*ENDANT'S EXHIBIT 13. \ ) 

:\lnd ~·l . ol' 11 :" \;iti1111;il l'l'tll'il ('0111p;i11.1· 111ad .. !t 1· T. l L \\'illl'11. 
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Dlll"BNl>ANT'S .EXHIBITS 14 TO 24, INOLUSIVE. 

Bleven original orders addressed to the .Na.tiona.1 ·Peiloil Oo., Atlanta., Ga., 
signed by the followbig firms: 

F. W. Woolworth Co.,.Store No. 57, St. "Joeseph, Mo. 
F . W. Woolworth Co., Store .No. 68, Terre· Haute, Ind. 
F. W. Woo.lworth Co., Store No. ~53, Logansport, .Ind . 

. " F. W. Woolworth Co.; Store No. 585; DeKalb, Ill. 
F. W. Woolworth Co., Store No_._ 25, Wilkesbarre, Pa. 

- F. W. Woolw:orth Co., Store-No. 262, SaratQga -Springs, N. Y. 
Soo 5 and 10 Cent Store, Sault Ste. Mar!e, Mich. · 
Beutell Bros. Co., Dul>uque, Iowa.. · 
Montag Bros., _Atlanta) Ga. 
John Magnus Co., Chicago, Ill.- ---=-­
R. -E. Kindell & Co., Cincinnati, 0. 

/ . . 

Said orders request the National Pencil Company to ship to said respec­
tive firms; at once, certain merchandise (pencils) noted therein. Each of said 
orders describes the quantity of penclls desired, the style number and. a com-

. plete description ·of the kind of pencils wanted, name, color, shape, etc. _.On 
each order respectively is stamped the National Pencil Company's ·m~mber 
as follows: "Mouse No. 7187; House No. 1188; House No. 7189; House No. 
7190·; House No. 7191; House No. 7192; House No. 7193; ~!>use No. 7194; House · 
No. 7195; House No, _719~; _House,.,f~fo:. 7197; House No. 7198; House N:o. 7199." 

. There is also stamped on each of saia orders the following : ''Acknowledged, 
· _· · ~ _ ~-· ~ Avril 26, 1913, by H.-H.," and also "Shippe_<(complete; April 28, 1913~"with -- -

- th(' exceptiori of the order of-R. E. Kindell-& Company~ House No: 7197, which 
is marked on the face of it .u..cancelled June 17, 1913," the .letwr or" R. E . 

~ . Kind~ll & Company cancelling · said order befng attache_d_.theret..Q,_ · · · 
_ ___,_.-'---'~~~--· - - ~ - ----. - - --·· -- - --... . . - . 

. r-

'. 

. : · - : r :_ ____ -=.....:..:-:-- . 

l 
. _:_~·---- . -;- -

---- ---.____:..---

----~-·---~ - - -
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.. . ... 

·, -.. - · .-.. 

__ __,,___·eeua&'-No.-· ·~-===--~~-====--
7187 · · · Date April ·2a 19LI · -

4i24)13 ... ' ·· · Salt.man} D p ' · . ·. · BUI to • ~ • Order No. · 

· · · ..... · .. ·NATJONAL ·_PENC.IL co., A'itf.'A .. 
MANUFACTURERS ·,. . . 

ship to :r.w.w. co. No., 67 At. __ . __ a=1 .... 1 ..... :r""""e=l=i=x"'--"S"-'t=r..;.:·•'-
s~p ".Vhe,n at onoe :. St. c.Joaeph, 

~~~~~~~:·~k~~~;;;;;~;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;~~~~~~;;;;u~o~. 
Name or R11111rtie Apr i Salee No. Amount 

~5x .: 4 #4 
220x 172 #4 : 0 

280x 172 *4 
440x 172 #5 
720x 172 .. W .• P. 
630x 172 
910 172 
902 172 

. .J 430 172 · 

--•· 240 ·172 ---1----1-'----__;_ __ ;.._ _____ . ------__ 

·~· -. 
---1----1--~---------:--M--I--·----- ___ -- ~ , . 

O.K. 
- ---1----1------------.1~,;a._...........11 __ -----· -

' . 
,.----1----1-----=----------11 _ _ _____ ' ;•, 

.. . · Date 
..,....._...."' la....,..-1-,--~""'p ..... r ..... 1H11---4!2HSt-, .... 1-e9 ..... 113,--.....;;;;;~--1L--I------, • 

-----::s ~ --
.. . . 
--1---,--1-------..,..--------~ll-__:._ I----· --· 
___ 1 ___ 1-::.:h:::i=..!p~pi:.:e::...::d;...,·,,=· c~o;::::;mp~le::,.t:::.:e=-=----- __ -· _ _.__._ __ . __ 

April 28, 1·913 
2700 .-. -

- --1---1-------------'--·- -----
l---~---=--:--1--- 1----"--------------~I--.-. ------.· 

--.--~--... :-

.,,. -....,..-----.-. -----~. n --------
. ; 

, . .. - .... 

.. : ~89 .. .. ' 
' . . . . .• - ·-. \ ~ . · ·, . . . . . . . .1 . . . \ 

~--~ . . 
.-- .· ·· '\ .. . ~ ~ . . -· -, .. ·,. __. 

- -·- .-=- ·· .;- ... ; ···:. ·- · .. 

.. ·· \ .. . . . . . 
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· • DBPENPANT'S BXBIBIT 96. 
· Requis!Jic:m. sheet i~ handwr'tting of Leo. M. Frank, as follows : 

Hous·e No. · •· • · ~ · · -' 
----~-7188 ~ I>•te Ap11i~ 2e,ie:1.3 191_ 

. T.!"}1>.1< .. · · OiderNo. 4/23il3 
. -· .. 

.. ' ·- . NATl.ONAL PENCIL CO., AT'tf.TA, ' . 
. . . : MANUFACT.URERS . 

shtpto :r.w.w •. oo. . r11-ea At---.· i .... elii"IP ... P.-e-H~a"''""~t""e..,....,-
SbJp When . at ODCe 

-" - ·- Remarks: ·lDd. 
lalllNo. Allloullt Name or Rt1111rk1 ----~-"'-----=A=p=r:...::i=l~u 28. _1_9_· __ · __ : 
. 3.7 1 l -----=---- -----n-- ------
35 3 3 -------- -- --------·- -r-----:--

45 2 2 . - . . 
1---=-------------11-..;;:;_-1--------

120 2 . 2 
1-~--~---------11-=--1---.---

156 3 l-=--11------------- _L ______ _ 
. 920 l l 

1 
--. :--------- : 

910 1 -
---1-------1-------------~-1--------.. ....... 
--.,..-1----1----~-------~-- -- - . --, .---

) . 

Oomp~ete . -- --:---= · : .. . - - .- --- - e -
---1----1----------------. . --------
---1----1--__.-------~0-rwftKnrw--•-- -· - -- -----~---

-==-----1--,.--.h .. -"'""'?- ------.,....-----H ... G.,..S .... --1--l--- ------... ... 
---1·---1-------------:----·&--1---- --· 

·oate -.-------

... 
--- . . -

. · .. ;,_ 

' ' 

... ·. 
I • : . •. 

-----~-- __........... 
. . 

~--1----1-------..----'-----'--ll----.-----
~--1---=;;;;;;..1---==--,....-=_,,,,..----=-------~--.-11~ ------
---1---1-.--------,...-------li--I------
---1---..- -------------'--11----- --­__ .. -

' . -· . :·270 \ ; .. 
.. .:· 

. . b 
- · · l 

'c,,. •• •• 

' ~-t---~ • • • 
--.. .• l 

. . .. 
. ' 

.. .. . . 
. . 1 - -

••• • 



... • I 

" ·. 
. . .. ~ . 

. . . DBPENDANT 18°UllIBIT a? •. ' . ·. 
.. . ,. Requisition sheet in l)andwriting of Leo. M. Fr_ank, as follow~: 

· House No • . / -
- ". ·-·· 7189 · , . . Date Apl'il 2th~91.3 i9l~ ,., 

..... 

. .. 
~, .- . . 

. , •. . 

. ~:.~:n} ;Q. P 1 • , • < . • O.rder No. 4 /22ll3 

NATIONAL.PENCIL CO., AT~1_TA, . 

- MANUFACTURERS ... . 
Shlpto J',W,W;CO. 

_ship When At ·once 
Remark11 o/ o Penna Ry . . . · ~. ~ . 

#25 At ~ogansport 

Ind • . 

-------------------11--.~. 1 ------
. '--r-. --- --.- . 

-r--· - .--
---------'-------";...._- -r--: ------

.. . . . 
-.,.......,.,-1.---1-----------'-----D~----.---. -

~---

r12--·. - ·- . 

--1---1=-------------'----.rl--I-- - --
--1--~1----....,.......-------wO~.KArw-.~11 _______ _ 

~--1----1--....,...---=------"'H-G~S...._~t~·-· _· 1 ~~~· 
---1----1--------------11--1------

--.--. - c - --

- .. -------· 

. ........ - . 

) 

.· . .. 

-.:-:---::----;---====l~==~==~~;;;;;:;;;;;~--.--. -. ---IL..:.._:I~~-~ ----~ 

- ' . 

· ·~ . . . : : ~ 

... 

•• " t , 

----'--1--~-1---.,.--------------11-...::.-. ------ . 

. • 
. -.. . . . ,. - ' . . 

. . 

. - . - . -- . . 

.. ' ... -· 

..I'll ~ '. . ·.· - '·. ·- - --
..___, __ .. -

·· .. ·.· . 

\ . . .._.. 
....._;:. --' ':.";t ~· · ---'-----~'--'------:-----:-:--~~--:-....:.._...:__--'---'-__::::._ 

- , 

I··· 
• ... ' :: ·_:", •· .·I 



. ,. 
I 

'• . - .. . 

-· 

. . 

··r ·· - .. 
• • .p •• 

. · . '• 

. DBFENDANT.'S llHIBl'l' as. . .· . 
~· ~equisition 81)eet. in handwriting of ~eo. M. Frank, ae follows : . . . . . 
House No. 

- -7-190 · -- - --- -Date Apr. · 28~1913 191_ 
. , ' 

Saleaun}D.P'.' OrderNo 4/22/13 
BUI to ' 

. NATIONAL. PENCIL CO., AT&::f.TA, ,·· .. .. 
. MANUFACTURERS .. 

. Ship-to F.w.w.co. #585 At 347 E • .Main St. 
Ship When at once D~_Kalb, Ill. 
Remark•1 -

Saltt Ne.· ·AMvllt 
10 ·4 .~ 

-- ~ Nutt or Rtillite 

-2-· 0-1-2.,,.....:.....· -'-' I ~3"'0..,._,S...,u...,.-1>-P"""t ..... s=-. -----.,.-~~-11-i-i - · - ----· · -

37 .2 
-~3'5-1 --.2-- 1--------------11---1------

4'5 1-2----·---=--=--=-----''--------~-----.-

120 2 -:a----. 
--1----"-I·----'------------ --------
---1----1---------------1--------

OK 
.....,....--1---1-----------'Hl.&.:!GQ·~,___, ___ _ . -· --·---
--- 1----1--~--...,..--------· --------
n 1'1-a:+t;.-e~. l-'----+------------~1--1------

~- i---.~"l"Tl·p .... E"'"D...--,C,..,O"'Ml'l'l'l'l'll ... EmiT"'"Eor.r--------i1-.:...__ -----­
.---1---1-A~P~ft~.~2"8~,41~9~1~3---..,----L--1-----­

. . ·--"'=~-1---1--·-. .QS,,.,'{'6A-°'.--------n--1-----·-
---1----1--------------'11-----· --

---.-----· 
-----·-

-.,---1--- -------.....:.--.,..-------- -------
---1---1--------......... ----11--------
__ .._1----1--------------il--1----· ---
---1~--1-------------11--1------

---1---l------'---------11--1-------· . 

. ' .. 272 .. ... 
\ . ~ . . . --.--- .: .. .. . .... 

:• . 
- · 

~- -~ . 

=· .... 

~ -· .. 

. ·~· -

• •• 



••. • . ' •• . o • 

··-- I . 

. .' ~ ·. 
. • _ DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT ·29. 

• · .. : . . . ' . Requisition · sheet in handwriting o LeQ. · -~. Fr~nk, as follows: 
-. -· · :-:.. ~- ~-:_::...__ Houae- N .- -- ~ - -- - ~---

,..... ,· · · · ·. · ?..l~l .Date April- 26, 1913 191_· 

·· ·sate.man} D. P. ..Orde~ ~o. .· 4/ 24/ 13 
.·Butto : - -

.· . NATI01NAL PENCIL CO., :ATa.:f.rA. 
. . · ·MANUFACTURERS. .._ ....... 

· shtp.to F. W.W. Co. #26 At Wilkes-Barre, 
• . . · ·ship When o Jo· Penna Ry -· Penna 

Remarks: ·. _ at once 
. __ -_N1me or R1lllir1c1 811 .. No. Amount 

10 ·· - 5 
' - - 35 5 

I L • , • 

~ ~---. ---. 
----~~-------11---0 - . ---- .. 

-770 · 2 
. 430 5 

#3 -y---:---
--..--1---~__;,;===-----'----11 . ,,------<")-

640 . 2 ---·---

- ·· 240 2 -z------·---
902 . ------..,,..------rr-y------ ·-

280 ·#2 r12---=- -

:1==~==::===---=====--=---:- · ----r - __. _ ___ ,___ ,._-,-. - · - . -. -

440 1 ' -r ··---- · 
720 _ '-~1-. -l·-~~---....._-----~·-r=---

--"---1----1--------------11 __ ----·--___... 
---1----l-'-----,------"--------IL_I-- - --. • • . ··, Cio> . • 

-- 1-..;;;;-~~-1;---- ----------o~.o..JK ..... .-· -11 __ 1_· - -- -- -- -- ---

HGS ----· -05--. I 

---1--~1-----~-------ll__:_l---CO:ij)Iiie-

---1----1------.,........-------11.-_.__. 1 ----~ 

. ! .. =-

. -
- ---=--· - . 

· ·21s \ . . 

: :...,, .. - ... 

: ' 

. ) 1 · '':.? ••• 



.. , . 
< 

-. . 

' 
.· . . . .. 

\ .. 
• · ·: t_. 

~ . . .. 
. . ~ · .. . .. 

. . , · . . . ·-

DUBNDAMT'S EXHIBIT . 30 . 
Req~eition eh~et .ii;i . handwriting. of Leo. M .. Frapk, ae follow~ r 

House No. · 
-· - 7192 -'----:- -. :· Date . · Apr. 26 9 1913 19~ . . " . . 

~~} D.P . ·· order·No.·. 4_1,24/13 . 

.. - . "NATIO_NAL P·ENClL \CO., AT'tf.1"· . .. 
MANUFACTURERS 

shtpto F.W.W.Oo. #262 - · .:· At Saratoga Springs, 
· Ship When at one e - N. Y. 

_ _Remark11- a.lo · .D. &: H. R • 416-18 .Broadway 

Balet No. Aiiount · Nme or R1m1rk1 • ·. 4 2 . _ . 
10 · . .... 5 -0 - . - ----:-:· 
20 · 5 30 Sub Pts.·. ~ --.---. 

·37 1 . 
35 . 1 . 
45 l . 

·120 · . 1 .. · ~---

140 .. 1 --i----
. . ,156~_,__;_l.:_· -r-. - . - - _ -

110 · l #3 . _____ __ T-.-· ---.· 
· .. ~a-so i - -- -r-. -. - .---

630 1 -r---.--- .. , 
. 920 i-_"""""·1~-i -__,,,9_3-0..,,._s,.,..u'""'b-• .:;;....._------1'-:t- -- -. -_. --. 

---=-9=-10=--11- . -=1:---l-------------11...__ ------
950 l-1--l------------1-r-·-----
430 1 :-r---.. -~ 
220 l #3 -r---:--- : 
220 l ~ . ·#4 . ,---, --. 

-. 

640 J. - .- --:-r'"--- . . 
. - 1CJ02 172 • 

1003 1 
280 172 #2 .. 

~~280 172 . _,#_3~_,---------'-=--

480 . 112· . 
·440 172 l---------------11 

720 . 172 
··-HGS-

PED COMPLETE . 

. . . . . 

. . . . . 
. . : · 274 

-: · . . , 

_ __;___ ·- - . . 

· · · ~· 

.. 

. -•. 



f . 

.. , .. , . . ·. 

- . < . . . . . . ·»umroAN.T's BXkm1T--a1._ . 
· . ~ - · ·. . .: Requisition sheet in · handwriting . of ;Leo. M. · Frank, _as follows : 

-.- '---.- -

-.--~--- . House . No_.- .. 
· 7l93 ~ . · .. ...... , Date April" 26, 1913 191-
. SalelJIWl } -· ·_.·M ....... a_i_l.__ ____ ....,:..______ Order No. · 04356 · · · . 

. BUI.to . 

- . . . . . -N-ATlONAL PENCIL co. ATLANTA,· 
. . . . 9 GA, . , 

MANUFACTURERS . 
shtpto Soo 5 ·ac lOc-S-tore At Sault Ste.Marie, 
Ship :When . August lat r . Mich. 

.. ... . , . 

Remarks: 
- ---- -

SlilM No; Alllount Name or Rt1111rkt 

10. ro --___,--=,.-.:------.--,--~-:II---.. - - --

35-37 5 Asstd ---------
4'5 5 ---------- ---- --------

.. 9lo 5 -..,.......,.,-,+--....--'--1----'------------·11---'-----

siO 5 ---- ----- -----'---------· 
1002 2 ------------- --------

:·~"" . 100.3 2 ·• ----- ------ ---11-- ------
;, '---------'------~ -------

.. B1et-.Ro12te to Chi.caso ~--.-----~ 

---1·---1------~--------11-----·---
t h en ~y water . ---------. 

---1----1-----.-------- --111-_.1------
---l --~-1------------~-11 __ ------· -~-

r- . 

-'-~-1----1------.,...--------11......___ -------
- --1- ......;•"'-. _..,..- 1------------~----- - - --
- - - 1----1----------------'-----------

~--l----1-....:._...;__ __ ........;....:..-_---.: _____ .11__1 __ ----

. ·_ .. ~ - .. •. · .. 

" '"i _. 

-:- --. --.. --. - ·-- -
---=-;:==..,..._- l~--1----------'_;__ ____ IJ . .. 

-~----

---l·---1-------------.....;:;___11 __ -----
-:-:---1----1-------~....:._....:.__.;__ ____ .11 __ ----~. -· - ,. 

-----.- . ·-. . ~··";;:..:.-·--·- · . 
·' -----. -

---'-1·---- 1~-----~v.,.---...,.------------~---1------~ 

~--l·-'----1-----......,------------~---'----·ll-~.-.. -1----~__;__. 
~ .... ' 

- ·--. 
· .. '•, 275'.; • • .. r ~ • • . .. • 

•• ••• . . ~ . . 
. ; . ~ · .: ~- -- ..... 

'• ' 
\ . it · 

. ·· ; . - \ 

... t-

• _...J .. : ...:......: :.-.=- -·---. 

. .... _: :.. 
. - ·. ~ ·~ . 

\ ,. 



. ' 

. ( 

---· .-·--<-'----'----

.. 
. ' .. ; .. 

. . DEPENDANT'S UBIBIT .32. : .. 
_Re'quisition :·sheet in handwriting of Le·o. ' M. Frank, .as follows : 

House ·No • . 
1\pr. 28,1913 191_: ~ -:- ~19r --'--. ----~ . . -:---. ·-.-..•. -Date · 

. ·. . 
Sll_...}_H .... _G ..... ___________ . . OrderNo. · 4/23/13 

BUI .to . . . 

-NATIONAL PENCIL co . "ATLANTA, . "' · ... ... .- • f 

. , ., GA. 
. . MANUFACTURERS . 

Shlpto Buetell Bros, Co •. 
• Ship When a~ QD08 

At 812-859 Olay Str. 
Dubuque,_ Iowa 

Remuk11 

Salee No. ,,.Amount May· 6 1913 
480 5 5 --.---

210 ts fr--.. -
65 25 '"' ------------ 25 ---::-~-.- . . . 

20 20. '20 -~ 
.. -----------r-ao--- ·. 30 25 --1-=---1---======-=-=------ --------

--1---1'-------------·ll--------
---1---1----------.uQ"KK---n- - -·-~-----· 
-~1--'---1---'--· """'·------""'· B~G"'"'S.,_ ___ . _Q_Q~il....:_ 
~--1----1-------------U----------

($flipping Clerk 
Include all B•o•s with·"f:n'T:"r-----

- . ""D-a ..... t-e- -..,=.-==--... i----------=----u.- ------

-o "Oempl~:.; 
. ·shipmi.:. .... + 

- .- ---
May1._x6,._; =l.:.9·:r..3.,.__· __________ ....;..;.... __ 11 _____ . __ _ 

' -- ---1-....__--------------·ll __ ------
---1--=-:--f::i:;J1nn.i."Pr·'Fr·JZ1~1J-C_·'Ol:..· ~'1IPI·i'H ·,:T.L:.1.!ir-----11-~11- - -
------ 1----1--1M~a ... 71P-18*",-:i1""9~11-!"3iw--------11----- ·- --

2'13~ . .. . 
------ -------'------'---11--------

--··-~ " 

·, 

_,.......,==~----...- ·------------- - ___ . __ . - . 
........... --1---1-------------11-----·-. . 
-~~1----1--'-----------------'-:11"--1--------­.. . 
---1----1---------------111--I-----
---1--- --.....--.,.----------11--------
---1----1-------------n---------

· -~~--

:... . . . • -216 
--.. : ._ .. 

< 
. ·_. - · . . 

i . 

" . . --- . -

. " -~: ·. 

-·· .. 

... 

••• 



/ . · 

... 
· ... 

· . . . . . . . " 

. . . 
· · DEPENDANT'S BXBIBIT ·33, · 

~-· ~ .-rR.,..,equisition sheet in handwriting of Leo. M .. F.ran~s-follows : · 

. House ·No. · · L 
·-.7195-- . ~. - -: ·-. - - A 11 26 1913 Date · pr · • . 191-

s.ieeman} Faoty · 
BUI to 

0rder No. 4/26/l3 

. NATIONAL PENCIL co., ATitf.'6. ; 
. . MANUFACTURERS· . 

Shtpto MoQ·tag Bros. At Atlanta, 
Ship When At on.oe Ga. 

Sllet "o. Amount 

· .135x · 50 
,:. 1900 10 
.1920 10 

. 1540 " 10 

Name or Remark• 

5 50 ---Blks • . sub. 3 gro.Pt~. 
· added 4/29 - - .---,-

---.T=-r_an_ s_,f .... e_r_r_e_d...------- - ·- ----o-

1910 10 -ro---- . 
- 40x 1---5--=o,---· 1 1-a- a--a--e--.d.---6_,/=-a7""'"'1 ..... 3---'----- -· - : --ca--_- --

42ox 2 " . --~-.---·-

42ox 1.,0 • 5/26/")..3 r ----nr· 
----------~o-.-K-.- -· .- ------

---1---.1---------~a""G,...,s--11-·-----·---

---1----1--- ----------· --------

~-- --· -- ·. 

---1---1-=FW....:..:..=L=E-----'-----....,....----11------~ 
- - -1----1------=--------ll--------

. • 0 May .... 6 ...... ,l .... 9"'"°'.1 .... 3------------11------­
~a.1913 

---1--'---1------ ---------u- -------
--=--1---1------'-~=========--L----- -
--1---1---------'------,--ll-------' -

. --------1----- -------~-----11---.---- -=-=--- -- -. ·. 
---1---1 ~-.....--------~- ---· ------

--------1~-.--l-----,----_;_ ____ .__IJ~-'-· 1~---· --. 
---1----l----'-"------------11-------- .... . 

' 
-----'1---1---------,....-----U-------.-
-----1--- ----------11----· - ·-- . 

--·-·-

' ·~ ~ · 

277 . . . . . 

;..,_. ' 

~· 

~ -· --!-- . . ·--~----

' . 



. . . . 

.· .. 
. •.· ~ . 
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. . . 
DEPENDANT'S EXHIBIT 35. 

·. . Requisition. sheet in handwriting of Leo. M. Frauk, as follovrs : 

House No~ 
.11.9q -· . ·· Apr •. 28,1913 . 191-

0rder No. 4 /24/ 13 .SeltlllWl}H G ' BUI to - :=.z.-=-z-------"---. _ __... __ . 

- · ·NATION"~ PENCIL co.~ 4'at:."'· 
MANtJrACTUR-g:Rs 

· ·Ship to R •. E:Kindell 8c . Co, At __ ..... 3...,.l ..... 2........-.P ... l ..... u.....,m_· __ st ..... · ..... _ 
· . ship When at once · Cincinnati, 

Remark11 _____ . _~~~··~,._i . _________________ Oh=· ~i..;-..o 

lllM No. · Amo111t N .. t Ol"Mlllltke -.0 

160X- p,50 . F,O, 154 -,-1 a----
--------------n-- .------
------------ --------

---1---l---l!.INl.Qe--es..i\,,samo1Gp~==-----·ll--I----

, ·Hold 
--- 1----1-------0----~~----u-. - --.- ·- --
---i----i-~c--~--c-E-LI.iE-. -0-.---------ll-- -:-L-- - · - --

.11.6• .... .. · IJ. . 
---i---i--,... a-7+'1 ..... 7,.,...,+...1-3..-----------------
. ..., ...... '.--1---1------~------- --~----

---1----1--------------ll-------
_,__.~1-1-----·--· --

---1--....,.. 1---------------11--~--~--

---1----1--------------tlc.--1- - ---
. - -·--~I~ ----· 

---~1--------------11 ______ _ 
\ .. .....,.-- - __ ...,.__1--------------IL--1-----

---,..--1---i.--1--------------·ll--I- .----.-
---.1·---41---------------:-·11--1------

\ <f.---1----1..i.--------------11--1------
·- .~-.. - . - ---1--- .....:.,...---------.,----- 11---~--- -

... 

.. •.: 

. •' - -

• -. . b 

. ' J 
-.--·--.- -

-"""--1~--1--------------~ -------
---1·---1----.;,,,,,,----------ii--I------

A ---1----t--------------11--1--· ----
---1----1---,.----------..,,---11--------
---1---1--------------11---1------

.---.-

. . --
27_8 

.. • t . ~ ·, · : •.• 

I • 

----·-· 
\ ' . . \ · . 

__ ,;( . 

\ 

.. 

-·· ···-

. ,. 

• 

·. 

\ 



.. 

, 

•. 

,-·- . 

• 
.. ' 

.-.. 

· . :i>EFEND~T'S ::ExBIBI'.J:' .34;. . . _, 
Requisition sheet in handwriting of Leo. M. ·Frank, as follows: __ _..;;._~· ---:·-~__.;.·~ ........ ·==--~~ -----__;,· _____ •~.-- -~~ 

House No. 
7196 Date-~Al.jop ... · r.:..1i.._.1..._.20l..la ..... 9 .... 1 .... 9oz..l...,3~--191-

-S~'m"t'!°J"Al1o Lawri.e .& Sons . , · Order.No. 134 ;--
. ~ . 

. .· . . . NATIONAL PENCIL CO., ATLG':.TA. 

~A~UFACTURERS . 
Shlpto John Masnus Co. A.t 1055 w. 35th ,-at. 
ShlpWhen_--1.a~tt.._;o~nn.go~e~ __ _;_ __ --".L· ....;.;:..:- ~· ====::::::===========:::;:::~ 

Remarks: ------ .\.-.P Chicago, Ill. - . ·--

Sales No. Amount N1me or Remark• · Apr-11 28, 19 3 
-------------='---- 25 ----155x 25 

---1----1 ----- - --------11·-- --· ----
...;__;..: .:.;i· ·•:::.'~·...;~·---__,,..__,.,.__--,.--- --------o. K. 

---•~'---1---------i1~1a~s!'W-----11---1------·-· 

---l--¥COl...l.IJel;1.1t .... 11 .... 1..__.s;ai8ia.l.i..s;LA.i.i,C....lot...r.i...i.Ou.D1o.-.10.._.fL.-jg!§.ow..wOwd,1;1Sc,ae- ------- ·-

Compl te-----.-
------ ---'---------'-----=--11--------

-----.... ---· 

---1·---1---~--~'-'--------IL __ I ______ -

" 

------------~ --------
---1---·-------------- --------
---1·---·-------------'-------11--------
---1·---··--------------11------~ 

--------------,-11--. ---· ---
1---1-·-·-----....------_0,....---n--· --· __ .. --

279 "- . . . -., 

_ _ _.. _ _..!. ~-

--

· ~:· 
~--'\, 

''"' : 

.. -i 

, { 

~·. ·; 

.• -



..... JOi . 

-· 

-· .. 

. .- . --.- -

1- · · . 

···, .· 
.- .--oate ___ ........ ________ 191.- > 

s~fcn }-----------. . ... 
Order No·---~-

· . ... NA-TIONAL PENCIE co.,. AT'tf.TA, 
. . . MANUFACTURERS . 

ShlptO--------------------At-----------­

Shlp \Vb•D----------------------------­
Remark11 ------- -----------------------------,.--......... ,. . --- --.----------,--..;..---ff-------·--

NIMt Or ReMtrU 

--- ------. --· -
~:.... ____ / ---1----1-----------"-------11--1- - ----

--------1------ ----------------u---1----------

---- 1-----1----~-----------------R--- -------
-----1-----1----------~-----------·!------------

----1-----1 -------~-------------- --- --------­' 

----1----1-------------------1-----------
-----1-----1------------..,.----.-,--r--· --.-----------

'---~~~~-=-~-===~-1~~'---·1-------------------------------'"---11----1------. ---

. ' 

. IL 

., ... _ ..... ..._ __ 

:: .. ... 

·~ ... 

----1-----1--------------.----------'L---1-----------
-----l-----l·----------------------11--- --=-~ ---
----- 1-----1-------~---·------..... --~-1~---I------'-------

---~ 1-----1----------------------11----1----.-·----

----1----1------------------------------n---I----------­•.· 

----·l--_..;.....;_ l·--------------------'--~---1-,---~---

------...,---11-----------
----1---- -------,,----------------11-. - .-------~ 

-------------• 
--=---1-----1---------------------· - ---------
-------1-----1-----------------------11---- ·--- --.---
----1---...:1---.------------------,.----=----11.---· -------------1--..,...-1 _ _,_ ___________________ ll·---------· -

'---: - .··· .: . ~ . 

--.- -
\, 

·. -- -.C:C-:::§1 ;. _:.; .. . .. 

• 

.. .. 
... .. 



• I 

. ~· . 

,,;· · 

• 1> •• 

281 ··. 

,- l>ZPBN_DANT'S BXRIBIT · 86. ~-
: -

.. 

Statement of James· Conley. Made to John :a. Black. and B. Scott at Police . 
· ·. Barr~ks, _.f\tlanta, Ga., Sund~Y •. May · 18, -1913: · 

"'\ . 

·My full n·ame' is Jam es Conley. I reside 172 Rhodes Street w~th Lo:i;ine 
Jones, who claims to ·be front Marietta, Ga. This woman is not my wife, and 
I have been living with her a little over two years. ·I have been having in­
tercourse with Lorine Jones. I l~ave _been employed as elevator man a~d 
roustabout l!t, the National PencH Co. factory in Atlanta for the past two 

-- years. Before going to the pencil factory, I was employed by Dr. l;J .. }>aimer 
at Broad an~ Mitchell Streets, Atlanta, as a buggy driv..er. I worked for him 
.for about one. year. Previous to t~at time. I wor~ed for the Orr Stationery 
Co.1 Atlanta, as dri'ver of wagon. Previous to tha~ time I worked for Adam 
Woodward, as a stable band for a year ~nd three months. Previous to that 
time I worked for Mr. Cope wood_P...r~:Atlanta:, for 6vc years. I anrnow 
27 years of· age • . single. . · 

' · On Saturday, April 26, 1913, I arose between 9 a.m. and 9 :30 a. m. and 
.ate my breakfast; · At 10 :30 i left the ·h.0.use, l72 Rhod~s Street, and ·went to 
Peters Street and visited a number of saloons between ~air and ·Peters and 
Haynes and Peters Street. · I purchased a half pint of rye .whiskey from .a 
negro who was walking. along Peters Street about 11 :00 a: m., I paying-40 

--eents for this whiskey. _I visited the Butt-In saj_oQ.n and went b.!!&.k_!o J;h~~o~o-~1.---~----­
tables . and saw three ·colored men shooting dice, and I joined them and won 
90 cents from them. I then purchase-a some beer; paying · 15 cents. . t then 
Whlked up the street and visited Early's beer saloon, purchased two beers and 
wine, paying t~n cents for same. ·This. was all the money I spent on Peters 

· Street, and I arriv_ed home at 2 :30 p. m. and I found .L. Jones tliere and she 
-- - asked ·me lrI had any money. I replied yes, and gave her $3.50 (one dollar 

. in greef!!>l!.ck, an_d _J;!!_e _ r~~t silver .money). I drew $3. 75 from the pencil file- · 
tory on Friday, April 25; between 6 :00 ai.d 6 :30. I spent 15 cents for meats 
on Friday night. Before receiving the $3.75 I did not have any money in my 
.pocket. At 3 :30 p. m. Of ·4 :00 p. m., Saturday, April 26, I purcbase.d 15 cents :_ 
worth of~er and then. returned to the housfl, and sent the little g~rl out to 

.. get ten cents w9rth of° stove wood and five· cents worth of pan sausage . . I l't3-
.mained at home all Saturday night and. at_12 o'clock noon, Sunday, April 27, 
I walked· up. on Mitchell street and· got a cigarette, remaining there until 12 :45 
p. m., and retul,'ned home, remaining until 6 :30 p. m., when I went to my 

·----'~----mother1s house,=-92 Tattnall Street,-3nd__got-m,y-lu~eh,-=irnd-then-r-etar-ned:..Jiome,__;:_===:....:::;:==;:::;:: 
and I remained at home until ¥onday, _April 28t}l . . On Apri~ 28th I repo,rted· 
for .wol'.k. at the pencil .factory at 7 :05 a. ~: . ':· ' . : , ' \ 

. . 
. ... (Sigri.ed) . . - .- J-4?-HJJS. CONLEY . . - ., .. 
. \ 
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i'E?{DANT'S EXHIBIT 37. · 

. / a~emerit .of Ja~es Oo~~y of ~ay. 2~, 1~~3. 

S'i'ATEJ)fGEORGIA, . ~ ·. _ . . -
COUNTY OF FULTON. 

. . 
Personally appeared before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and , 

for the above State and County, James Conley, who being sworn on oath 
-- --says: , · 

_l -

On Friday evening before the holiday, about four mi~utes to one o'clock, 
l\Ir. Frank come up the ~isle and asked me to come to his office. That was "the 
aisle on the fourth floor where I was working, and when I went down to the 

.-office he asked me could I write and I told him yes I could write a little_ bit, 
~dne gave me a scra c pa an -told me what to put on it, and told me to 

put on there "dear mother,'' "a long, -tall, Mack negro did this by himself,'' 
and he told me to write it two or three times on there. I wrote it ou a white 
scratch pad, single ruled. He went. to his desk and .pulled out-another scratch 

., .1>ad, a bro,vuish looking scratch. pad, and looked at my writing_and wrote o'n. 
- that himself, but when I w~nt to his office he asked me if I wanted a cigarette, 

,- ~d I told him ~es, but they didp. 'tallow any smoking in the factory, _and lie 
.-. - pulled -out-a-boK--0£-cig-at'ett-es-t-hat ost-1-5-eents-a-box;-and-in-:thar-b·ox hellad--. 

""'" $2.50, two paper dollars and ·two quarters, and I taken one of the cigarettes \ 
·and handed him the box and I tQld him he had some mo]\ey in the box, and he ' 

_ said that was all right I was welcome to that _for ·r \Vas a good working n~gro 
around there, and then he asked me where Gordon Bailey (Snowball they call 
him) was, and I told him on .the elevator, ,and he asked me if I knew the night 
'watchma:t;i and I ~old him no sir, I didn't know him, and he asked me if I ever- --.­
saw him in ·_th~ basement and I told him no sir, I never did see him down . 
there, but he ·could ask tl1e fireman and ml!-ybe he_ could t~ll him more !!bout 

• 

.-.•. 

~hat ,thrul I could, ana=-then-Mr;--Fr~nk>vas -laughing_and-jollying and going - -----,---­
on in the office,..Jlnd I asked him not to take out any mon.ey fQr t"liat watch man 
I owed, fo_r I didn't have any to spare, and he told . me he wouldn't, but he 
would se~ to me getting some money a little bit later. He· told me he had some 

~· -· _ _ · - . __ · _we~lthy peopl~ i~ Brook~n! an_!! then"_i~°"hel<!_l!!s he~d up !:tnd loo~i_!![ · Ol~ ---­

of the corner of his eyes and sai4 "Why should I hang Y" and that's all . I 
remember him saying to _me. When .I asked- hinLllot-to take out. any money.....:. __ 

-========:f<-0-ictb:e=watch, e-sai -you-oug t not -~y watclf,Ior · that, J51g -·a w1f-=e= = ===== 
. of mine wants me to .buy h.er an autom~.bile but he wouldn't do .it ;. I never did 

_ .. see his wife. On Tuesday. morn~ng-:after the holiday on Saturday, before Mr. 
-:Frank got in jail, he come up the aisle ~here I was sweephig a.gd held his 

• .-:-·~ • •• .... ••• ··--·••• - I • • . \ 

.· 

.. ' -~--.;;,;. .~_.:. \ · 
"---.....--- ----·-·--- -

-- -- _. - - --: - - ---:- ----- ....__ - --- --- - .-.- - - .-

- ."l::::;;w . 
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head '?Ver to me and whispered to me to ·be a good .boy ·and that wail all he 
said to me. - · · . . : · ' 

(Signed) · JAMES CONLEY. 

Sworn-to' anp subscribed .before me this 24th day of May, 1913. 
(Signed) · G. C. FEBRUARY, . 

· Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia . 
......:._(Seal) 

DEPENDANT'S EXHIBIT 38. 

· Statement of Jim Oonley, May 28, 1913. 

STATE OF GEOFGIA, 
-COUNTY .OF FULTON. 

· Personally appeared before me, a Nortary Public, in and for the aboye 
. Sta~e and County, James Conley, who being duly sworn, on oath says: 

ma,lte this statement, my 11econd statement, in regard to' the nnirder. of 
_ · __ . _:_--Mary Phag.a._n at the National Pencil Factory. In m;y: first . statement I made 

the statement that I went to the pencil factory on ;Friday, April 25, 1913, and 
_ went to Frank's office at four minutes to one, which is a mistake. I made this 

___ statement in regard to Friday in order that I might not be accused of know-

·. 

ing anything of-this m\1rder, for I thought that if I put myself there on Sat­
~-=---~~ urday, they might accuse me 0 having a ban in it, ana l -nmv ma e my-see- -- --------

ond ·and last statement regarding the matter freely and voluntarily, after 
think ing over the · situation, and I have made up my lhind to tell the whole 

· truth, and I make it freely and voluntarily, without the promise of any rewarcl . · -
or from force or fear of punishment in any way. -

I got up eaturday morning, April 26th, bet~een 9 and half past 9. I was 
at ~10~e, 172 Rhodes Street. There . is

1 
a clock on·· the Atlanta University and·· 

I looked at that clock after I put on my · clothes; I went, to the door and 
poured some \Vater _ou~ of th_c wash pan and then I looked at the _clo.ck on the 

... Atlanta University, but. 1' forgot what time it was exactly, but I remember 
it was between nine and half past nine. Then I washed my face · and I eat 
some steak and some li:ver ·an.d bread and drank- a cup o.f tea, and 'then I sat ·· 
down in a chair a little while, about ten minutes, I guess, and then I told my ..... 

. wife to ~ive me back -the t~ree d()llars -a~if\ I woul~ g~t some ·paper money-
- __ ._· __ to_ keep her from losing it, to pay her rent with, and she gave it to me, and 
· " _--_ I told her -I was going \(to 'Peters S_treet, -and .. I went to Pete~s Street, and 

-========is~t.!-!:o:~e~d~....a~t-the.__b_eer_salo:on_n_ear Jh.LMrne1" ·of Peters and Haynes Stre~t __ _ 
and I bought· two beers there for mysel an g1.;e anot.her felfow=-~a-=_e:--=e=r,--.-~-----"--"-= 

~don't know ·what h1s name was, but they ·call him Bob . . r don't know ·where 
. he works, but he bad a whip over· hil[I shoulder. .I stayed in that saioon· 3 or _ 
4· minutes, just .long enough to drink that beer; and ·then I walks up to the 
~utt:Ii_saloon and walks back to the 'pool table~ a.nd there were four fellows . · 

\ ·_ 

_·..:_ ___ ._ . 

. ·: .· , . 
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.. back' th~~e shooting dice, five with ~e, one was napied Joe -Bobs, and one was 
named Bob Williams, and I won _90 cents. I don't ·know ho_w_ long .we were 
shooting for we were shooting on the sly, unbeknownst to the bar tender. I 
guess we were shooting aboi1t ten minutes, and then I come to .the bar a~d 
bought a glass of be.er there at the Butt-In Saloon, ~d then I went to Early's 
beer saloon on Peters St. and I bought a glass of beer there and I walked back 
to the toile~ and s~ood there -and made a cigarette and then bought another 
glass of beer, and I come out and bought a half pint' of whiskey and I drank 
sonie of the whiskey, and then I started to the Capitol City Laund.ry and on . 
my way thel'e I ~et Mr. Frank, at the corner of FQ_rsyth and N~lson Streets 
going to l\fontags, -!lnd he told me to . wait a few m'inutes. and he asked 'me · 
where I was going, and I told him I was going to the Capitol City laundry to 
see my mother, and he didn't say nothing, only he said to wait a minute until 

·.he come back, that he 'was going to see the Montags, and I stood there until 
_ he come back, he was gone about 20 lninutes, I guess. He come back and 
told me to conie to the factory, that he wanted to see me, -and I went to the 

___ f_actory with hi~n, walking behind him, and he stopped at the Curtis Drug ' 

U· 

Store at Forsyth and Mitqhell Streets and he got a drink, and I waited on the 
outside until he come outr aitd then he told ·me to come on ·and I went to the 
-factory wi~m. · _He had a -box with h_im,_~vhich he carried with him to the 
Montag's; it has an opener to it, ttnd after we got to the factory, Mr. Frank 
took the b!>x and put it there· at the tr~sh barrel, w1rlctr was jusr to the right . 
of ~he . steps as you go in, he put a box there for me to sit on. There was 
some great big boxes back further. He told me to sit down there until I 

- hearonim -whist~e::tle just took 11is foot and pushed a. ox over-there -for--. 
me' to sit on. Then he told me not ·to let Mr. Darley see me, and after Mr. 
Frank went up the steps, in a few minutes here comes a :young lady down-
stairs, that was Miss Mattie. ' I think she had on a dark red suit and a rain cloak 
and a parasol in. her han.d, but I didn't notice her hat. Then here comes Mr. 
Darley down, : and he had on ·a gray suit of clothes, didn't have any hat on 
his head,. and he stopped Miss Mattie at the front door, and when he stopped 

·-: heu saw Miss Mattie with a handkerchief wiping her eyes, it ·seemed to-me 
like she had been crying, a1_1d then I heard Mr. Darley say to her, "Don't)-­

~~------__,orry, I w.ill see that- you get that next week, '' and they stood there and 
talked . awhile, but I could not hear anything .else they said, then she went 

~· on out the door and Mr. Darley came back U:{> the steps, and Mr. Darley stayed - -­
up there a good while, then he come down an.d left and I did not see him 
anymore. Then here ·comes Mr. Holloway ·dowif. . about five minutes after Mr. 

•--

· Darley had gone; Mr. Holloway went out on the sidewalk and stood there 
ihree or fl.v~s-a-nd then he eome and went back up the steps, and then · 
here come another colored fellow, a pegged-legged one, and he · ~vent up 'the 

----.- - . - --. -- -st;ps;h~ -ha -;;~e l>ills in his hanas, and Mr. !Ioiloway come back down-with :---... • .. 
· . . . the peggeq-leggeq oi;ie and went . out . OIJ t})e sidewalk and looked at the fel-

- ; - " 

,\ . 

.. low's :wagon~ but what he safd to him I don'.t know.· It was a wagon tha.t ~ .. 
had -sides to it and I didn~t . see the name ·on ~it. -- rt '\j.'asn't a_regulll.l'··dray, l ' _ .. _ -

. . . ·. . . .......... . . . . -~ . '. . 

""· 

... ·. 

·- · . 
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" don't think, it looked like it might have come from that plate glass eompii.ny 
on Alabama street. Then Mr. Hollo\vay went back upstairs and it wasn't 

· long before Mr. Holloway come back down and was gone for good. I don't . 
"' know h~w long, but I guess he stayecf upstairs long enough to put on his coat 

and hat. I saw Mr. Holloway turn up to his ·right towards Hunter Street, 
then there comes another l!ldY into the factory, and she had on·a green loQk­
ing dress, she works on tqe fourth floor, and she walked with her head down, 

, sort of sto'op shouldered, she works for .Arthur White. She stayed up there 
7 or 8 minutes and then she come back down with her money in her hand, and 
·she stood just a little opposite me and tore the envelope open l'ight t here and 
took her money out and counted it, and she shut her hana up and. went out 
the do.or. and slie turned towards Hunter Street, and about 15 or 20 minutes 
afte,r there, there wasn't any passing at all, and I sat there on the box ,with . 
my head against the trash barrel. I stretched my feet out and. put mf ftat in 

'" · my lap, but. l .. couldn ' say whether I went to sleep or not, and the next -thing 
that attracted my attention, Mr. Frank whistled for m_e t\vice, just like this 
(indicating) , and when he whistled I went on up the stairs and the double 
·doors on the stairway were. clqsed an.d I opened/flrem and they shut them" 
s~lves, and Mr. Frank was standing at the top of the steps and he said, "You 

.heard m~, did you?" and I said "Yes,' sir," and Mr. Frank grabbed me by 
my arm and he was squeezing my arm so tight his band was trembling. He 
had his glasses on, and he ' had me just like he was walking down the stre_et 
with a lady, .and like he didn't want me to look behind me at all, and I 

---------~ 

----.---~·thought-it-was because he-had me-so-tight th-a-t-made:-h-im-t-remble; and-he-car• ---·---­
..ried me through the first office and into _his private office, -and then he come 
back in tl1ere, and he ~idrr't say nothing, he grabbed up a box of sulphur 

· .- . matches, and he went back in. the outer office, the door wa!!I open between his 

- : ... 

office and the outer office, and then he saw two ladies coming and he said to D . • 

me,- ''Gee, here comes Miss Emma Clark and Miss Corinthia Hall,, and he 
.. come back. in there to me, he was walkin fast and seemed to be excited, 
and he said to nie; '' Co~e right in here, Jim,'' and _he . motioned to the : 

·wardrobe and I waR a little slO'w about it and Mr. Frank grabbed·1.ne and gave 
me a: shove and put me "in the wardrobe and he shut the doors and ·told me . to_ 

· -·.-- .... stay there untirafter they had gone, and I just heard Miss Emma say "Good. 
---- morning, Mr. Frank, are you. ·alone ? '-' .,ltnd Mr. Frf!:!lk said- '·'Yes,''. and I . 

· couldn't hear them say nothing else, but· I_ didn't know i.t was Miss · Corinthia . 
·Hall until Mr .. Frank spoke and said it was,. but I heard Miss Emma's voic.e; 
they didn't -stay-there long, until. they were-gone. . -1 didn 'i 'heai1 them. The 

-next move was Mr. Frank come l:_lnd let me out. of t~e wardrobe. I don't 
re~ember Miss .Hall and .. Miss Clarke using the telephone, if they did i didn't 

-~ -

=======liie~a~r=t em-ana-1-=<lidtf!-t-see-=t~iem-my.self.=I:_s -o.~-ed-in=tlie-w·o.rdl'o e-a-pretey================== 
gooj while, for. the wltiskey and bee~ I · h~~ drank ~o.t me to sweating. I 

. couldn't hear them ta1king, onl_y I heard Mis~ ',Emnia say, "Good m~rning, '. ' 
· __ · -If they hatl-been:talking "loud.J could-l}ave heard_ them, '.but .if they were talk­

- ---- · -_~ng _~~- I conldn,'t. _I~ _they ~vent upstairs_,_ ·M_:_:_ ~r~nk must ha:ve ~~pt ~ight 

' ·-
. ·\ .,. 

~--

.. , 
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bebind. them, to see that they didn't take off anything. Then 'after awhile 
Mr. Frank he come into the ofti'ce. and he pulled· out:<me of those roitnd chairs 
fron:i under the desk. The first. thing, he let me out of the wardrobe and I 

· said, "I got too ho~ in \ llere,." and he said "Yes, I _se_e you are swea:ting." 
When he opened the door I was fixing to step out, and his eyes were looking 
larger than they usually look, and he jerked the door open and I was .right 
the. e.)n front of the door; and then Mr. Frank said to me to sit down in a 
chair, in the on.e that turns all the way around, and when I sat down he told 
me to get up · and shut t~e door; that was the ·door between his office and the 
stenogl'apher 's office, · and I got up and shut it, and he said, ''Jim, can you 
write.'' He was sitting down . .facing me and he_ brushed back his hair and 
I said "Yes, sir, I can write a little bit; Mr. Frank/' and then he give me a 
pencil that he got off the ·top of his desk, and there was nothing oillt, he 
turned a sheet over for me to write, and then he told me what to put there, 
he told me to· put on· there "dear mother, a long tall black negro· did this 
by hiss{llf," and when I wen-i .to. put down "negro" I put it ".n-e-g-r-o-s" 
and he said don't put no "s" there, he said that means negros and he said 
now ~b the '' s '' off and I rubbed the '' s'' out, and he said, ''It means just 
o~e person· like yourself," and he told me to write it again and I written it, 
and he looked at it -and slapped me 'on the back and said "That's all right, 
old boy," and he said "write it again," and I written it for him three times. 

- Then Mr. Frank reared back 'in his chair and asked me· if I wanted a smoke 
and· I told him "Yes, ~lr," and he taken out a- cigare~te for himself and.handed 

• 

···>-

-"-==--~--- ---me-the-box-and-he-sort- of- turned around w_hen-he handed me-the boX-ancLI _____ _ 

.. ·-:-
taken out a cigarette and he handed me the box of matches, and I taken out 
a cigarette and lit it and saw some money in the box and I handed the box 
of .cigarettes back and be to~d m:e that was all right to keep them, and I told . 
him he had some money. in the ·box and he said that was all right, I could 
have that. I taken it and stuck it in my pocket and. then Mr. Fr!!_nk ·looked 
aromtd at me. and held up his head towards the top of the botise and said! 
"Why should I hang, I have wealth~ people in Brooklyn. ' ' I didn't know 
what he was talking· about, I didn!t-1iave any idea in ~the world ·what he was 

. . talking about, and he 'vas winking and rubbing his bands together and touch-· 
ing me on the · shank with his foot and -took a deep breath, he said ''Why 
should I hangY" and_.sho.ok.Jris he~d and ·rubbed· his hands together. -Then 
he asked me where was-Snowball (G.ordori Bailey), and I toid-him I didn't 
know sk, a~d be asked me d}d I know the night watchman, and I tol<l: -him · 

·· no- sir, I didn't know the night watchman· personally, I just knew him by . 
passing him, and he af\k~cl me if I bad seen him in the ~asement at any time . 
and .I told h~m no sir, *at-he would have to ask the firema~ about tha~, for 

-=================lhi;:;;e;=-w~aa-;::-.:id0:/\<wnmft'-=41:n:-ir::Jtfi~e=tf~em~nt=m~~s=wasr.and-::w.hen=I=told=;J.\'l1";;=:~~==== 
Frank that he stuck one finger in hiEi mouth. and said '-1-S..e·eh, that's all right," 
and then Mr. Fr~nlt ·told me he' was·· going to take that note I had written 

• and send it ·off h:i.,a letter to 'his people ·when he wrote, and recommend me to 
theni, b~cause ~ ~~s· a ~ .~ood-:_~orking ilegro :_ro'mrd-ttrel'e_;-and he l~ed iµe, .. _ ~: __ • , · 

: . . . . . . . ~ . . . 
,. . .· .. -
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and· wnen Mr. Frank said that I ea.id "Don't take O"ut iinother ·dollar for that 
watchman," and he said "All right, I won't," and he said, "I don't·· see why 

. you . want to ]?uy a watch, because that big fat wife of mine wanted me t6 
· · QUY her an automobile but I won't do it. 11 I didn't say nothing about that 

for it didn't conce~n me, and "didn't r eem to concer» the subject he was 
, talking about at first, and then Mr. Frank told me when he wrote that letter 
he would not forget about me and he said ''Well, I will see you later. about 

___ t_h_i~" and I ai "All right, sir, 11 and then he reached in · his pocket and 
pulled out his watch .. and .s.aid, "lt is nearly time for. me to b~ ·going to din­
ner," but I didn't look at -the watch. Then I asked Mr. Frank if that was 

· - all he wanted· with me right now, ana be said yes, and then I asked hi~ 
again, "D.o you mean I can have what '.s in the box sure enough, Mr. Frank," 
and he said "Yes, '.J.-but all the time though he \Vas talking and •jollying and 
going on with me, and I began to think it was something, for a white man to 
be playing with a negro, and during the time he cast his eyes up to · the top 
of the house and said, " .Why should I hang, I have wealthy people in Brook­
lyn. II I never did know where l\Ir. Frank's home was, I.thoug}lt this wa8 his 
home all the .time. Then Mr. Frame !)aid "I will see you Monday, _if l live 

· and nothing happens, James,'' and I said ''Well, is that all you want fur 
good, Mr. Frank T" and he said "Yes,'" and I saw him go to his desk and take 
out a brownish-looking ·scratch pad. The one I wrote on was white and .was­
single r.uled and I saw him take out a brownish-looking one from ·hi.s desk 

-------n~e-took-his-pencil-and-nurd-e-a 1nark on· it. · - took-it -to ·IJe al:l'1r, ' but 
he shl!t the tablet up and ·looked at me and told me that was all he wanted 
with 'ine, and he c'ome all the way to the top of the steps and he come three or 
four steps down to where he could see me until I hit the sidewalk, it seems 
as if he was watching me _to see if I would take anything as I went out, but 
there was nothing to tak.e unless I took a great big box, but when I passed 
those two doors on the steps there, ·l\fr. Frank told me to leave one of them 
open, and I taken a little piece of iro1i'they have there, and pushed it against 
the door to keep it from shutting and went on out in the street, and I pulled 
the.f-ront-doors to as I went out, and I went to the.beer l!aloon acro_!!s the street 
and opened the .cigarette box and. it had ·two · paper dollars in· there and iwo 

"----- --_-_s""'1 ver quarters, and I laughed anc( said ''Goon luck has done struck me,'' and 

. \ 

· i bought a ten-cent double header and then \vent back to Peters street, and 
liadn 't none of the boys got there that I run with and i walks. up there to the 
·moving ~ture. show ·and looked . at-the ietu_!es and they didn 'i' seeni to be 
any good, and I come hack down Peters Street looking for that fellow _I got 
the half pint whiskey from, but I couldn't find him, and . I Struck out for 

me,a ~ n=I got lifiliieit was a ou ra pas wo o c oc , art took · · 
the bucket .and went to ·Joe Carl'. s a ngum ancr'.Magiiqlia Street,- and got 
fifteen cents ,v<>rth of beer. in it · and ·come back ·home-and sent the .little girl 

) to get a di~e's wol'.th· of. stove wo~d and~ nickle's~worth of pan siiUS(l.ge, a~d, 
. · I eat half the pan sap.sage up raw, and I g~:ve my .old lady $~.50, an~ th<n:~ther / . 
· · ·little change I k~pt ·it, and I layed dow'n-acro11s"the ·bed ·and there js Where 

.. :· ,. . ... 
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. . ' 
~\ ..... 

-- - . -::-· -

. . · . . 
. ' 

~-". -,__.:.._ 

. .,._ . 

.. 

-.- -. . 



., , 

. ' 

288 . 

l stayed until about half past eight that night, and I got up and set in front 
.. of the. fire a little while and got to swimming at the head, and then here comes 

her sister, and after she left I went to bed and I didn't leave home no ·Jtlore 
until twelve o'clock Sunday, in the day ·time, and I walked up Mitchell Street 
and stayed .up there until a quarter to one, and I come on back home. I was 
feeling' bad, .and I layed down acros!I the bed and stayed there" until 6 o'clock 
or 6 :30 that night, and I walked up to nly mother's at 92 Tattnall Street, and · 
they gave me a lunch up the!.'e and I brought it on back home and I stayed 

· .. - · there and eat it .up ancl stayed at home until 10 minutes to 7 the next morn-
. htg, and when I got 1\l th_e corner of Forsyth and MiteheJl Street, the W. & A. 
·blowed for .7 o'clock, ancl thim I went running on to the factory, and it was 
four or five minutes after 7 o'clock,, the clock may have been a little fast, and 
when I got there I went upstairs to the dressing room and in comes Gordon 

. . Bailey, and here comes .Joe Wiliams, aud-then-M·r; Wade Campbell, the lead 
inspector, and he comes in there and says "Wasn't it bad about that girl be­
ing killed,·" and we asked him "which gjrl" and it seemed like he said "Mary 
Puckett;" and we asked him whereabouts and he said "in the basement," and 
we asked him. if it was a white or colo.red girl,'' and he s.aid .' 'It was a white 
girl," and we told him "Yes it was," and we asked him how she got killed, 
_and he said he didn't kno\v, and then· he come on out th~ door first and ·r ·come 
right behind him with the sprinkler in my_h.and, and then he went to the toilet 
and I went right behind him and got a sprinkler full of water and I stayed 
down the aisle until about 9 o 'clockd and I ~ent and got my raw stuff on the 
third floor and brought it up to. the fourth floor and unloaded it, and. then I 
said l .lyould go to the basement and see who that was that got killed, and 
when ( got" there there was such a 'crowd of white people there I couldn't go 
back -there, and~en the fireman sent me to get him a nickle's worth of onions 
and a loaf ·of bread, and then here comes Gordon and-he give me a nickle and 
the fireman give ~e a nickle and told me to get them a dime's worth of beer 

· · and I got, it and we all drank it. I went back upstairs and stayed ·up there 
until about 15 minutes to 10, and the whistlft blow~ for the factory to shut 
down, and I hear.d Mr. Joe ~telker say. the factory was going to ·ciose and to 

."'. . . come back to-morrow, and "I went and changed shoes and pulled "off t e pants 
----=-===-:- - and put· on my hat and come down at 10 minutes to io, and didn't go back 

any more until Tuesday morning,, and went to work at T~esday morning and 
got through with my woi'lc and went down stairs about half past-9- and the~e 
was such a c·rowd down there I 9idn 't stay long, and I come back up the, aisle 

·and went taking up some trash '"1Illd about ha;lf past 10 or 11 o'clock, Mr. 

••• 
/ . 

.., . 

Frank come back up the aisle and leaned over to me and said "Jim be a_ggod ____ ,___ __ 
- - boy:u."'ltnd I said "Yes, sir, J:~m,Tr-:- ran , ' an Vf en-1 heard. from Mr. 

-----~===lflr~ai~-rres~,a.,_, -====~=============:==========:=====:= 
·------- -· ----
.. 

... ..... ,,. .. 

·-i come to work Wednesday morning and started down to the basenient 
a~d there was.such a· crowd down there I couldn't get to use the toilet, and. I. 
iioes back upstairs .. ancLfinislied my work an~ works all that .day,_ a~d Thurs~ay_ 

., 
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.. · .· .. •.-



... 

r.-· ... ; 

289 

mor~ing I come t~ w~rk and got cat~ght up ·by 10 ·O'clock, and I went down­
stairs and.the fireman and ·another colored fellow was down there and I asked 
the fireman where it was that they say the young lady got killed at, and he 
told me right around there, and I took a ' little. piece of paper ·and went around 
there ~o see if I could see, but I couldn't see ·where anybody had been lajing 
at, and I come on back and found he was throwing some stuff into the fu,rnace, 
and I went on upstairs and stayed there until 25 minutes to 12, and the_ 
detectives were giving us all .. subpoenaes and I got my subpoena and went 
back upstairs and stayed up there until 5 minutes to 12, and · I come down ~nd 
went out in the streets··and heard the whistle when it blowed for 12 o'clock, 
and I went back and started to cleaning up at · half past twelve, and got 
through cleaning at half past one. Then -I went down to wash my shirt so I 

._c.ould have a-clean one to wear to court, for I had been wearing this one foi··----- ·-­
three weeks and when I got back there· and ·pulled off my shirt and washed it, 
then there comes Mr. Quinn and I asked him where was the dry house and he 
showed me where. it was,-&nd he told me, he said "Jim, there ain't no steam . 
in tli.ere now," and I said to myself I will have to hang this on the steam pipe .. 
to get it dry, and by me hanging it on-there I got a little rust on it,.aud·some 

- of them saw rite back ther~ washing my shirt and called up the detectives and 
when the detectives come up there r had done put on my shirt and they asked 
me where was the shirt I was washing and I told them this here was the shirt, 
and they said yes, because it was not good dry, and then told' me to come and go 
with them, and I did . . They brought m~ down here and found there was no · 
blood on the 'shirt, and gave me my shi!'t -ba<ik, and that's all I know. 

(Signed) JAMES CONLEY. 

·Rworn to and subscribed before me this the '28th day of. May, 1913. 
G.C.FEBRUARY, . 

Not~ry Public, Fulton County, (}eorgia . 

. DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 39. 

Conley's Statement of May 29, 1913'. 

Atlanta, Ga., · May 29, 1!)13. -- On Saturday, April 26, 1913, when I come back to the pencil factory with 
.- Mr. Frank -I waited for him downstairs like he tolClme, and. when he whis_tled 

for me I went Upstairs _and he asked me if I 'va.nted to make so1ne money rright. ·- -
quick and I told· pim_ "Yes, sir," and he told me _that he had picked up a girl · 
back there and had let her fan ·and that her head hit . against sometlring,- n:e 

======~dwidn"""".!:1rt_.:;11-kOjjnu.iow;::n=nw:ha.td.t--....w..1u1:,~nd..for_mELlo...moY.e.::Rer,_ancLI_ h.Qllered-and told. him -.-====:;=:::== 
the girLw.as dead, and.he told me to pick her up an~ bring her to the elevator -· 
and I told him I didn't have nothing to pick her up with and he told me to . . . . . ~ . . 
go .and look by the cotton box t~er~ and get a piece of cloth, a.nd I got a big .· 
wide ~iece of cloth ail<feome back ·there to the Ihen 's toilet where she. was, · · 
and I .. tied her up, and l taken her and brought h.er ur> ~th~re to a .little dresi:iiµg 

'i . ... 

·. 

.... 
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- · - room, .. carrying her on. my right sho~ider, and she got too heavy for me· and 
she . slipped off my shoul~er and-;j:ell on the floor right there at the dressing -
room and · 1 hollered for Mr. ,vf-nk . to· come· there and help me, that she was 

_ to9 heavy for me, and Mr. Fran·k--,--come down there and told me to pick her up, 
dam-n fool, and he run dow~/there to me and he was excited, and he picked 

her tip by the -feet, her he~ and feet were sticking out of the cloth and then 
\Ve brought her on to the ,elevator, Mr. Frank carrying her by the feet and me 
by the shoulders, and we brought her to the elevator arid then Mr. Frank says, 
"Wait, let me get the key," and he ·went into the ofllce and got the key and 
come back and unlocked thi! elevator door and started the elevator· down. Mr. 
Frank turned it on himself and we went 'on down to the basement and Mr. 
Frank helped me to take it off the elevator and he told me'-lo -take it back -
there to the sawdust pile, and I picked it up and put it on my shoulder agafn, 
and Mr. Frank, he went: up the ladder and . \Vatched the trap door to see if 
anybody was coming, and I taken her back there and· taken the cloth from 
around her and taken her hat and shoe which I had picked up upstairs right 
where lier body was lying, and- brougl1t tl~em down and untied the cloth and 
brought them back and throwed them on the trashpile in front of the furnace, 
and Mr. Fra~k was standing at the trap door at the head of the ladder. He 
d,idn 't tell me where-to put the things. I 1ayed ·her body do,vn with her bead 

· ~owatds the elevator, lying on her stomach and the left side of her face we.s­
on the ground and the right side of her face was up, and bott· arms were lay­
in_g down· with-her body, by the side of her body. Mr, Frank joined me back 
on the first floor. I stepped on the elevator and ·he stepped on the elevator 

___ when-it got to wher~ he was, ·and he said "Gee, that was a tireso~e job," and 
I tolQ. hini hi~ job was not aJL'tiresome as mine was, because I had to tote it 
~the way from where she -was lying.to the dressing room, and in the -base­
ment from the ·elevator to where I left her. Then Mr. Frank hops off the 
elevator before it gets even with the second floor and he makes a stumble and 
he hits the· floor and catches with both hands, and he went on around to the 
sink to wash his haJtds, and I went and cut oft; ihe motor, and I stood and 
waited for Mr. Frank to come fron\Ai.round ihere washing his hands, and then . 
we went on into the office, and Mr. F!~nk he couldn't hnrdly keep still, he was 
all the time moving about from one office to the other, then he come back into 

~ --:--:---- the _stenographer's office and com~ back and -he-told . me ''1Iere comes Emma · 
· Clark and Corinthia Hall,'' -I understood him to say,~ and he come back and 
---told me to come hel'e ·and he opened the wardl'obe and told . me . to get -in 
. thei:_e; and I was so slOw about going he told -me to hurry up, damn it, and 
Mr~ . Frank, whoever that was come in the office, they. didn1t- stay so very" 

.long, till Mr. Frank was gone about 7 or 8 minutes, and I was still in 

• 

.. . • . 

..:..:::----~--_..- he wardrob<' and pe_neyeuad_come=-to.Jet)ne_out, and ·Mr. Frank conie back -----­
and I said, '~ Goodness a.live, you kept tne in there a mighty long·time," and 
he said; "Yes, I see I did, you are swe_ating/' aD:d then me and Mr. Fr-ank set 
down in a chair. -Ml'. Frank then took out· a pigar~tte a11d he gave me the box 
and asked me did I want to smoke an([ l told him yes, sir, and I taken -the 
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- box and taken ~ut a ·cjga,r~tte and he. handed-me-a-box-of-matches-and I handed 
hini the matches back, and I handed him the . cigar~te box and he told me 

·that was all .right,·· I could keep that, and I ·told hifu he had some money in 
· it-and he told me ihai was all right, I could keep that, and Mr. Frank the:i;i 

asked me to write a few lines on that. paper, a- white scratch pad he had ther~, 
and he told me what to put on there; and I asked him what he was going to 

· do with it_ and he told · ~e to just go ahead and write, .a~d then lifter I ·got 
through writing Mr. Frank look~d at it a;lld said. it was all right, an<J Mr. 
Frank fooked ~Pat the top of the house and s~id, ' '. Why should I hang, I have 
wealthy people in Brooklyn,'' and I asked him what about me, and he told 
me that was alT right about me, for me to .keep my mouth shut and he wouid 
mak~ everything all right, and then I asked him where was the money he said 
he was going to give me and ·Mr. Frank said, "Here, here is two hundred dol­
lar&," and he handed me a big ·roll of. greenback money and i\ didn l_count it; 

· I stood there a little whil.e looking at it in my hand, and I told Mr. Frank not 
to take another dollar for that watch man I owed and he said ·he woul 
and the r.est ·is_just like I have told it b'efore . . 

The reason I have not told this before is I thought Mr. Frank would get 
_out and help me out, but .it seems that be is n*:going to get out ·and I have 
decided to tell the whole truth about this matter;- _ -

-

While I was looking at the money in my ha.nds, Mr. Frank s~icJ:: '"'Let me 
have . that and I will make it all-right with you Mo~5iay if I live and nothing 

. happens," and he took the money back and I asked him if that was -the way 
. he done ·and he said he would .give H back Monday. 

- (S~gned) JAMES CONLEY. 

· Sworn t<> and subscribed before me .tl,iis .29th day of May, 1913. 
(Signed') G. C . . FEBRUARY, 

Notary Public, Fulton County, Ga. 
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DEPENDANT'S EXHIBIT 40. 

Oaah book of the National Penoil Oompany, page 197 of. which contains 
. the · followilig 'entries, in l'r&nk's handWrting: . . .. · · · · · · 

-
.Page 196 

::.. --·-' 1913 

To balance 
4/22 To check 

•'4/24 

Ca.sh, 

.. '. 

. I 

Dr. 
39.85 
15.00 

' 15.00 

69.85 

. ·, . 

·l-913 
By kerosene 

- _' '_J ype· 
'' dray 
'' cases · 
' ' . express. . : · 

. '' postage .-· 

Cash. 

'' ·parcel · post . 
" 2 wks rent typewriter 
' ' supplies, Scheegass·· 
" King Hdw. Co. 
'' tinsmith 
'' thread 
·e? carfare . 
." Herbert Wright 

. : ---='"=". -

.. . . ..... 

-······ 

-· 

. I 

Page 197 

·Cr. 
.15 . 

· . . 75 
6.70 

10.60 
1.10 

-- 1.00-
.16 

2.00 
.45 : 
.85-

. --11.50 
.05 

- .10_, 
4.00 

• 69.85· 

-r · 
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DUBNDANT'B BXBIBIT '1 . . 
. . . 

· · . - .Ou~ book ite~ made-·. out., b1 Prank to bMance .ouh b~k. 

-:-:. Kerosene 115 
Type" .75 

----·=-D=ray · 2.00 

Oases 

1.70 
1.00 
2.00 

6.70 
2.50 
1.25 
3.50 
1.75 
1.50 

-1cr.50-
. . __ · _ Express _.:::35 -~ .!.75 . _ 

·. . P9stage .50 & ~.50 ~ . .. • . , 
- -Parcel post .03 &_.13 . · 

. 15 

.75' 

6.70 

10.50 
1.10 · 

-.- - -· -~_._: ___ ~ : __ y Rent typewriter, 2 \Vks 

1.~ . 
.16 

2.00 
Supplies .45~Sch. · 
Kirig Hdw. Co ... 85 · 
Tinsmith 11.50 

· -·- . · - Thread .05 
. ../ 
C~rfare _.10 

. -Herbert )Vrig~t 4.QO 

·39.85 
. . 30.00 

.. 69.85 
30.31 

- 30.54 

- . . 45 
.85 1 

11.50 
05 _/.C 

.10 
.4.00 

. ·-.. 

. . 
~ ··· . :· ... .· .... · 

.· ·-· -· · -·. 

7:==:==::=::======-=::::;:::=======-====='-Gash--"'box~hol't====================================== 
· ·_. · _O ·K. ,:3/26/i3 . 
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DBPBNDANT'S BXBIBIT 42. 

Letter written by Leo M. Frank to Mr. Moses Pra.nk. · The letter was not 
typewritten but was in long hand and folded to a size to fit ordinary size 
envelope, and was as follows : 

Atlan~a, Ga., April 26, 1913 .. 
. Dear Uncle: 

I trust that ·this, filtds . you and dear Ta te well after arrivin . safel in 
New York. I hope that'you found all the dear ones ·well in .Brooklyn .and .· 

. I await a letter from you telling me 'how you find things there. Lucile and I 
are well. 

It is too short ,8. time since you left for anything startling tp h!).ve devel­
oped doWn here . . The opera has Atlanta -in its grip, but that ends t~-day. I've 

·-heard a rumor that-opera. will not be given again in a hurry here.-- - · 

.To.;day was '.' Yond~f" here, : and the thin gray line of veterans, smaller ~ 
each yea~, brave<IYhe rather chilly weather to do honor to thei~ fallen com-
rades. · 

Enclosed you will find last week!s report. The shipments still keep up · 
·~ ·well, tho' the result. is not what one would wish. - Th~re is nothing new in . 

'the factory, etc., to report. Enclosed please find- the price list you desired. 
! - . . - - -

. . 

., . . : . 

• 

.. .. 

The next letter from me, you should get on ·board ship . . After that I '\vili.---~ 
-· ·" write to · the address you gave me in Frankfurt. 

. ------, . /• 

'··- With much love to you both, in which Lucile-joins me, I am. · 

-".~: 

I ' 

---.·Your affectionate nephe,v, -

. ·'(. 
. " 

. 1., _.: . 

' (Signed) LEO M. FRANK. · 

.. .:~ .. - ·->": ~ •. : ~- . . ., 
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·. DBP:sNDANT'S- BXBIBIT 48. 

_ __ W.ekly report forwarde~ t~-Mosea-F-rank -by -Leo- M. Prank, enclosed in 
·Leo M. Frank's letter to Moses Frank, 8S set forth in exhibit "42,.'' said report 
being in Frank's handwriting, sa.me . ~eing folded to same size 8S envelope set 
forth as Exhibit 44. · · 

--.... FINANCIAL. 
Week ending ·April . 24, 1913. 

Production: Net 27191/2 · 
w · Good 700 -. Gr. · 

· · ·~ -

-:---------~=---'------=-=---=-~lleE11m:n--'------'---"· 629% Gr. 

I 
.. J 

-- .... <-

_Cheap 
·Jobs 

- Net Value Prod'n 
Total Expenditures 

Result--,De6cit 
,,..,,,·"" 

SJi,ipprfuts 
. $5438.78. 

4374 gr-;-

Orders rec.eived 

599 ·Gr. 
791 ·or. 

29% 

$3066.31 
3175.75 

109.44 

--- - --;-- $3320.31 Value 
: 1904: . · Gross " 

, 0. K. ·F 
... 

..--------------,:....========================::===-.:======:__.:.:...__:.._~..:.....,---=-=-=~/~r~~--~-=-=-=:==:; 
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and weekly ~port (Exhibit~) were enclOse~, the'ad.~ ·oaUid . ·;. 

·I. 

I 
I '.·. 

Atlanta, a. 
Apr28 
8-:Pll 

._ 1913 

. 1 · I 
I . . I .• 

lir .•• f~· . : . 
. o/o' Hotel JloAlpinl · . . .· 

I _. . 
G~eely S1luar • 

.!New York~N.Y • 
11. -. 
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.-·~"DEFUDANT'S BXB!BIT '6 . .:_ 

Weekly report sent by Leo M. ~Dk to 01oar Pappenheimer and received 
by the. latter on April 28, 1913, said rep_ort being ,in the handwriting of. Frank. 

' . 

FINANCIAL. 
Week ending April 24, 1913. 
~roduction. : 
Good 
Medium·· . 
Cheap 
Jobs 

Net · 2719% Gr. 
700 Gr. 
629% Gr . . 
599 Gr. 

Net Value Prod'n 
. Total.Expenditures · 

. 791 Gr. 

. - 29~ 

$3066.31 
3175.75 

Result-De,~fimcir+-t __...__,._ 109.44 

Shipments 
$5438.78 

4374 gr. 

.Orders received 
$3320.31 Value 

1904- Gross . 
O.K.F 

-: - DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 46. 

·Weekly financial rep9rts _of the business of the National Penc~l Compa~y · 
sent by Leo M. Frank to. Oscar -Pappenheimer for each week-beg.inning-Jo.nu 
ary 18, 19i2, and ending· with . the week ending April 24, 1913, each of said 
report~ being identical in form with the defendant's Exhibit "45" and being 
-ill t~e. ·handwriting of Leo M. Frank. . · :...: 

DBP-.mANT'B l!JXBIBIT 47. · 

_ P~y ·envelope found .by detective Mc Worth. It is an oi:dinary pay en-

... ,,. 

- velope used ·by the Pencil-Company with the nttmber "186". written there-on, - · 
. 'tt. ··th fi t ' 't' 1 f 't "M" d "P " .. · . w1 ,,,_, e rs llll 1a s .o. -a name. on i .-, an. . . ·- a~ a__ ~ __ 

iU.BRD»IT'S-:-BXBIBl · 
. . 

-.Club found l>y detective M;cWorth at th~ factory. The . club is round, 
· about three feet · long and three inches in . diameter, weighs approximately . . 

three ounds -an -has several red blotches tliereon. . 
- --< . - -......-
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DBPBNDANT'S BXBJBIT ·49, 
. ' 

lirown suit of clothes worn by Leo_ M. Frank on ·!Pril 26_, 1913. . Consists 
of coat, pants, and vest. Suit does not ap_pear to be new, but is clean and un-
spotted. - · 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 50. 
. -

Bank book showing account · of Leo· l\f. Frank with Atlanta National 
Bank. Showe-balance on April 1, 1913, of $111.13, a~d a deposit of $15 on 
April 18. It ·further shows that the sum of $109.85 had been drawn out on 
checks (Defendant's Exhibit 51) , leaving a balance to the credit of depositor 
of $16.28. · "· -f ~~---

DBPBNDANT'S EXHIBIT 51. J 
Twelve canceiled checks drawn on the AP~nta N~tional Bank, signed by 

Leo M~ Frank as follows : -: · 

· No. Date Amount. 

450-4/1/13 

451-4/1/ 13 

$20.0Q . l\lrs. L. M. Frank 

· Endoreemefnts 
l\Irs. L. M. Frank 
Cham b~rlain-Jolinson-DuBoee-Co . 

1.50 Westview. Floral Co. Westview Floral Co. 

. 452~4/l/13 - 12.34 · llaas & Co. Haas & 'Co . 

_453-A-4/ 9/ 13. · 32.50 . Rivers Realty Co. · · Rivers Realty Co . . · 
American Na.ti. Bank--· 

453-B-4/9 /~ 

454-4/6/ 13 

455-4/ 21/ 13 . · ~· ·.· 

8.00. Mrs. E. Selig ·· - -1\Irs. E. Selig 

4.75 S. M .. Truitt & Son · 

7.50 Alex Dittler, Sec''y 

S. S. Echols Co. 
'l'ravelere Bank & Tr .. Co. 

S. M .. Truitt & _Son 

Alex. Dittler, Sec'y Dittler Bros. 
Fourth Natl. Bank · 

. - -;- - _· - 456-4/~/13 . 6.26. Gut"hman Ld~y Co . - Guthman Laundry & D. Cl. Co . ..., 
- - . 457-4/2/ 13 

458-4/9/13 

. 459-4/ 15/ 18 

·--
2.00 Maier & Berkele 

5.00 Self . 

5.00- .Self 

l\faier & Berkele 

Leo M. Frank 

Leo M. Fra~k 
---

•·· 

1;:=============;====4~.60~-4~/-24=i~el~~~~=======~Leo-M...-F-r•lm-llF--:-----'-:,..,_..~--~~~ 

, . · . .. 

• • . ·. . ~ -. ·- . 
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DEFENDANT'S .EXHIBIT 61-ContinueJ. 
Plut 0 of :il1<' · First Ploor uf tlw :-\ 11 tin1ml Pi>Jwil C'ompnn.'' fiwlul'.''· 

'-

, I 
I 

•• 
1 DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 61-Continued. 
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DEPENDANT'S ZXBIBR' II. · 

Plat of Washington Street and Georgia Avenue, showiuli the .relative posi­
tions with re_spect to each other of the Selig residence at 68 E. ~orgia Avenue 
and t he Wolfsheimer residence at 387 Washington Street. 

.___ __________________ __.1'.J 
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- ·DEPENDANT'S EXHIBIT 62. 

Picture of the Selig home taken from the outside of the . back door of the 
kitchen.' ·It-shows the entire kitchen and also the door leading into the ' dining 
room. It shows nothiI~g else in the dining room. 

DEP,ZJli>.ANT 'S EXHIBIT 63. 

!'i~turc of Selig home taken stLlnding directly inside the back door of 
kitchen. Shows practically· same view as lust picture but shows no view at 
alt of the dining room. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 64. 

Picture of th~a!e with OP-CU door standing_in__o.u.ter.,office oL the National- - ----
- ---- - ' 

. Pencil Company . ..,., .' 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 66. 

Picture of the outer office of the National Pencil Company factory, show- .-
ing the safe with the doo1'-wide open.· Picture ·shows safe door shutting off 
any view into. the inner office and shows no view of anything in the . inner 
·office. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 66. 

Picture taken on t)Je outside of the outer office loo~ing toward the inner 
office with the safe door open. I~ shows no view at ~ll into the inne!'_office. 

DEFENDANT'S · EXHIBIT . 67. 

Picture .showing the pay window in the office of the National Pencil Com­
pany factory. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 68 .. 

Picture showing foot of elevator shaft in the basemenL oL the....National 
Pencil Com .JlJlY factory. Sho,vs rubbish and~trash in elevator shaft and 
barrels adjacent thereto. 

DEFEND.ANT'S EXHIBIT 69. 

Picture of basement' of National Pencil Co. factory, looking from the ·ele­
vator shaft .to the back door. 

DEFEND.ANT'S.:EXHIBIT 70. 

- Pi.¢ttire of- the--0orner in the-ba_sement where body ~V!_\S found, around the 
-left corner .behind the pa,rtition shown on the picture. . . -

I 

\ 
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"'-'DEFENDANT'S .J:XHIBIT 71. 

Picture 11howing passage way )eading to the back door in the basement 
of the factory. Picture shows _})oxes piled up on each side of the passage way 
to the -height of. the ceiling. · 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 72. 

Picture showing entrance to the factory from the street. 8hows the 
partition on the right ·immediately entering the factory, behind which is the 

·elevator. The steps leading to the second floor of the factory are. shown in 
>the background_:_ ___ _ -'- _ . 

DEF-ENDAN-T~EXHIBIT- 73. 

Picture showing elevator shaft and trap door on the ground floor of the 
factory. Shows steps leading to the second floor on the left of the picture. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 74. 

Picture of metal room, showing place where Conley claims to have found. 
body. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 75. 

Picture showing place where co_tton sacks were kept. 

· DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 76. 

Picture of the plating room. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 77. 

Picture of the metal room, showing whei·e the floor was chipped up by the 
detectives in front of dressing room. . 

I 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 78. 

--~=--=---iplli..ietm•e-showing lathe where Barre.tt claims to have found hair. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 79: 

Picture showing view from third floo1• looking down steps t~ second floor. 
Picture shows man walking on second floor from ihe- inetal room -toward the 

1-~~=-===~~~=..1evato . · 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 80. 

_., ·. Picture showing elevator box on the office floor. · 

.. 
,_ 
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DEPENDANT'S EXHIBI'l .81. 

Picture showing elevator wheel at the top of the fourth fl.oor. 

DEFEND AN~ 'S .EXHIBITS 82, 83, 84. 

Pictures showing view of the metal room on the second fl.oor. Pictures / 
show ·doors of the metal room to be partly made ~f transparent glass. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBITS 85 AND 86. 

Pj.ctures of the metal room closet . with the door open and close~ . 
-- - -.----·----

Blue print from which the model of the factory (Defendant's Exhibi.t 13) 
·was made. · . 

DEFENDANT'S -EXHIBIT 88a, b, o, (!, e. 

Five jars containing contents of stomach ·taken . from different 'parties . 
who had eaten cabbage and bread. 

\DEFENbANT'S EXHIBIT 89. 

- E xtract from the minutes of Walton superior court showing three indict­
ments for larceny from the J1ouse against C. B.-Dalton, at the April Term,_ 1894, 
of said court. Pleas of guilty in each indictment and a fine of $50 and twelve 
months in the chain gang sentence in each case. Also indictment of Ct_Jl. 
Dalton, at tl}e February term, 1899; of Walton superior court for stealing bale 

· of cotton. Plea -of not guilty,-and verdict of jury finding defendant guilty, 
recommending punishment as for misdemeanor. Fine of $20.00 and six months 
in chain gang. 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 90. 

Testimony of Newt Lee before the coroner's inquest ~s follows: 

"He (Mr. Gantt) says, 'I would like to ha ve them (shoes) because lg~t to 
go to ·work Monday.' I says 'I can't let you i)l there unless Mr .. Frank says so.'- · -
He says, 'Is I\Ir. Frank there? ' I says~ ··Yes, if you want me I will g-0 up 
and ask him. ' By · that time Mr. Frank comes down and runs right into 

. Mr.· Gantt, standing in ti1e front door. and he looked like he was frightened. I 
saw !lfr. Frank was frightened, but I taken it this way, he and Mr. Gantt had 

. felll out and he discharged Mr. ·Gantt- and I 'bought that he thought by him 
- hanging around there that. he was · waitin for · im . d_c-0me_to_dO-...hinL-=-==== = ===== 

some J1arm. Mr . Gantt sai~ 'I got some old shoes up there and I would like 
to get them.' Mr. Frank looked at ·him and said, 'What .sort were they,' and 

. ·he said they were tans. I says, 'I think I ·sees a. boy -sweep them up in the 
trash.' He says 'I have some black ones up there, too.· 'Well,' I says, 'I don't 
know. anything· about any. black shoes.' Then Mr. Gantt says. 'I clin go up 

•· 
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there and see if I can find them,' then he drops his head and looked right at 
me. · Then Mr. Frank says, 'Newt, you carry him up there, go with him 
around and stay with him while- he is up there,' and so we. went in and went 
on up there and found the shoes like he says and then he asked Ill~ for some 
paper to wrap them up and I gave him some pape1·, and then I got him some 
twine. 

"I don 't know wh en I ever i;een him change that (time slip) before. He's 
put the tape in once before; it was one night. I nevet· paid no attention to 
how long it took him. It <lidn 't take him five minutes. I couldn't tell whether 
it took him a minute or not. On Saturday nigh~, it took him a pretty good 

.--- ___ littl~bit, because h~ snoke about it . He says, '~t 's 1dn<l of hard to get in.' \• 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 91. 

Harry Scott's testimony before c!o roner 1i inquest as follows: 

"Ile just told me that he had been d0Wll<1tthe police barracks :Monday 
morning and he talked to John ·mack, and 'John Black seemed to· suspect me 
of the crime,' and he then repeated to me his movements on the day of the 
murder, that is on Saturda.y he reported at the office, I believe he said, at 

.:: around eight o 'clock in the morning, stayed there up until ten o'clock, then 
he went to l\lontag Brothers; l\Ir. Darley accompanied him down the street 
a little ways, and he continued on to l\lontag Bros. by himself, and returned 
to the factory, I believe, at 10 :30.; that Arthur White and Harry Denham were. 
employed on the 4th floor of ·the factory, working during the morning hours, 

· and about 12 :10 this little girl, l\fary Phagan, came into the office to draw her 
salary which he gave her ($1.20). The denominations, which he thought, were 
two half dollars and two dimes, and that Mary Phagan, left his private office 
where he paid her off, and went into the bookkeeper's office, and ·when she got 
near the door, she returned to him,--and said, 'Has the metal come yet?' And 
Mr. Frank replied, ··No.' Then he stated that l\Iary Phagan went on out, and 

: it was about 12 :50 that he. went upstairs to . the 4th floor, w here Denham and 
:White .were working and saw 1\-irs. White up there talking to her husband. 
He made the r·emarR that he intended closing and locking · tne oors, and 

•-----------asked Mrs. White ifs he'vofild eafe, and also asked themen up there how near 
they were through their work. They told him they ·didn't think they could 
finish up right soon at that time, and he .came on downstairs, and told them 
he was going to lock the doors when he went out. He stated that he left the 
factory about 1 :10 p. m., went home to his dinner, returned to the fa_ctory 
then about 3 o'clock, and White ·anil Penham were still on the 4th floor . He 

•• 
\ 

, ' 

did not meet any_o~.oing_nnLol'-Coming: 'n.-Ab~--botl1--Whit-e--aud1-~,..---­
Denham left the building; that Newt Lee reported to him about 'four o'clock, 
as he had instructed him· to do on the' day previous, that it was his inteniion 'to 
go to the ball game that afternoon, and wlien Newt Lee came there, he told · 
him that it would riot"" be necessary for him to wo~k just' .... at, that particular . 

. • 

· · -~ ... 

. \ 
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hour, that he could go out on the street and enjoy himself for a few houl'S, 
and return about six o'clock. Frank stayed in the building from four to _six 
and Newt Lee returned at 6 o'clock, went on duty and Frank left the building 
at about 6 :15. On his way out he ~aw Newt Lee sitting on a packing box 
outside the door of the factory talking to a man by the name of ~antt. Lee 
told ~rank what Gantt was staying there for, and · afte~· considering allowed 
Gantt to come upstairs for a pair of shoes, that is, go up inside of the factory, 
but he -instructed Newt Lee to stay with Gantt while he was up inside of the 
factory, until he left, which he said that Lee did. Frank then continued on to 
his home, and said that he became ·worried about Gantt 's presence in the 

,,__ _____ building, knowing that he had discharged him for some kind o( fault .. He 
continued to worry about Gantt 's presence-in. the building and therefore called 
up Newt Lee on the telephone at 7 :30, as he knew it was that time for Lee 
to punch the clock at that · hour, and he would hea.r the telephone ringing 
inside of the offi.ce 'vhile he was there at the clock, although I am not sure. 
I think he said he made an effort to get Lee at seven o'clock and failed and 
finally got hi_m at 7 :30. When he callecl Lee on the telephone, he inquired if 
Gantt had left the building. Lee replied, 'Yes;' Frank then asked ltim if 
everything else was all right, to which Lee replied, 'Yes,' _filld he hung up the 
receiver and at about 9 that night he retired to go to bed; and I believe now 
that that's the extent of my interview with l\Ir. Frank. . . 

''Yes, I am working in the interest of th_~National Pencil Co. to ferret out 
.who is responsible for the murder. l\Ir. BlaCli' and I requested l\Ir. Frank that 
he go into this private room with Lee, and endeavor to get any information 
that he might be withholding from either of us or the detective department, 
and toldl\fr. Frank to impress upon Lee the importance of telling the whole .· 

. truth in the matter, and do whate:vel'. he could to persuade Lee to tell ihe 
absolute truth in the matter. Mr. Frank said he understood, and we sent 
him in to talk to Lee. I have no way of knowing ·what Frank said; they were 
both together privately in the roo1i;i there, aud we had no way of kno,ving 
except w1rnt Lee told us afterwards.'' . 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 92 . . 
I . 

Harry Scott's report to the Pinkerton A~eney, as follows : 

- ''Mr. Frank stated that on Saturday, April 26th, 1913, the factory of the 
. National Pencil Company was closed down, and that 'ouly two of the employees 
reported · for work the entire day, and these men were Harry Denham. and 

~-----~· White, -who. al'-e-employed on-th-e-4th-fl.oorof-the b11ildin . fr:-Frm:~k 
stated that he was in _the ~offlce up until about 1 p. m.1 and that at 12 :10 p. m., 
. a girl employee of -the .f!J.ctory, named l\iary Phagan, called at the oftl.ce of Mr . 
. Frank for her wages, atid she rece~ved $1.20, either i~ oue·dollar l>ill and two 
dinles, or two half dollars and t'vo. dimes. Mr. Frank personally handed ·this . 
girl Ii.er .. ~~ges, -after which. the Phagan girl left Mr. Frank's office and walked 

- · ~ 
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_towards the · door of the office adjoining Mr. Frank's office, which door leads 
into the factory. Miss Phagan turned to. Mr. Frank and· asked him if the 
metal had arrived yet, to which l\fr. Frank replied 'No,' and the girl then 
went on away out of the factory, as far as Mr. Frank knows, as he did not see 
anything of her during the afternoon. ~bout 12 o'clock, noon, l\frs. J. A. 
White entered the factory and went to the top floor where her husband, J. A. 
White was working, and at 12 :45 p. m., l\Ir. Frank went. to the 4th floor and 
in the presence of Mrs. Whlte told Denham and White that he was going to 
lock the doors, and Mrs. White then left the factory, but White and Denham 
informed Mr. Frank that they had-not finished their work and l\Ir. Frank then 
told them to remain until they had gotten through. Mr. Frank left the fac­
tory about 1 p. m. Saturday, while White and Denham were still on the · top 
floor. Mr. Frank then went to his home, to his dinner, returning to the fac-

_ _______ __ t:....:o"""r-"---'a=-t ~ p...:__!!l., and he saw that Whit!l and Denham were about . through with 

' . ,_. 

their workr and both of them left tJ1e factory at about 3 :09 p. nL As far as 
Mr. Frank knows he was the only person left in the factory after 't._hat hour. 
On Friday, Mr. Frank had instructed his negro night watchman, N'e~vt Lee, 
to report at the factory on Saturday. at 4 :00 p. m. on account of it being a 
holiday, and none. of the employees -working. At 4 p. m. the negro Newt Lee 
ar.rived at the factory, reporting· for work to l\Ir. FraJ!k, who told him that 
it was not necessary for him to go to work at that time, but that he could go 
out in the street and have a good time until about 6 p. m.-, and that in the 
meantime-Mr. Frank would stay at the factory. The negro left the factory, 
returning again at 6 p. m.; and at 6 :05 p. m. Mr. Frank left the factory for 
his home and on his way out of the factory by the Forsyth Street door he saw 
the negro night watchman, Newt Lee, talking to a bookkeeper named John M. 
Gantt, who liad recently been discharged by Mr. Frank. It developed that 

- -..,,.G,__a-n-_tt was asking tl}e negro watchman, Newt Lee, to allow hi1~ to go to the 
second floor of the factory and secure a pair of shoes that he had left there, 
as he wanted to go to his home. in l\forietta, Georgia, and do some plowing 
and tlie negro, Newt Lee, then asked Mr. Frank. if he would allow Gantt to 
enter the building. Mr. Frank knowing that he had discharged Gantt for 

- thievery, hesitated about allowing G_antt to enter the building,-but--finally told -----­
the night watchman to let Gantt in, but to stay with him until he secured the 
shoes, and then see ·J;hat Gantt left the building without taking anything that 
belonged to him. About 7 :30 p. m. Mr. Frank states he called up.the factory, 

----~a~s~ti.-1e-knew that Newt Lee, the night watchman, was about to punch the. clock 
======::;o...=- _. _ __ t h.e_hq_lU' and c~mld J!.ea:r J;~ t~pho_!!e .Qell _ring_!pg inside the op!ce, J!nd 

· Newt Lee answered the telephone . . Mr. Frank states that he inqmredof-iJee ===::::::--:-
if -Gantt ·.had left the building, to which he replied in the affirmative. Mr. 
Frank' then asked . Iieetf-everythin~lse--was-all right, to which !Jee replied 
'Yes.' MT. Frank states tnat this was the extent of his telephone conversa-
tion with. Lee. '' · 

- - - - ------- --
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DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 93. 

Te1;Jtimony of Policeman Anderson b(;lfore Coroner's inquest, as follows: 
,,. ,) 

"The watchman told me ·where he was standing. He came out of the closet 
to fasten or butfon up his pal;l.ts, and had his lantem sitting down right in 
front of l~im, where be had left it whe~e v:ent in~o the closet. While he 
was standmg up there he saw that woman. He saw it from the closet, about 
twenty-five feet, to where the object was. I could not see that far with the 

. - 1antern that he- had. - With tlie lantern- that he had I eould see about ten 
or twelve feet, something lik(;l that:'' 

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 94. 

Court proceedings under which-Jim- Conley was released from Fulton ­
County jail upon petition of Solicitor Hugh M. Dorsey : .. . 

The State, .-
vs. 

Leo: M. Frank. 
No. _ 
In Fulton Superior Court, May Term, 1913. 
Indictment for Murder. · 

~ -- -rrhe petition of Hugh M. Dorsey, Solicitor General of the Atlanta Circuit, 
including ~ulton ·county, respectfully shows: . 

1 . . . 

James Connally is a material -witness for the State in the above stated case. 

2. 

Petitioner is apprehensive that said Connally may not be forthcoming as a 
witness at the trial of tl~e ~hove named defe~dant, unless detained in custody. 

3. 

Said Connally- has been d etained since May -1st, 1913, by the police authori­
. ties of the City of Atlanta, and is now in the custody of said officers, being de­
tained by "them as a witness. Sinee-said Con_nally was taken into custody by 

·said officers, Leo M. Frank has- be~n indicted upon a' charge of. murder. 

4. 

Petitioner represents that the testimony" of aaid Con~all)r may be, a'nd likely 
- will be very material in said .cause. 

_ Wherefore, petitioner pra~s that ~aid . James C~nn.ally b~_ <)ommitt.ed to the · 
jail .of Fulton County, Georgia, there to be detained as a witness until said 
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case above stated shall · be terminated, or until Raid Connall~ shall he-other­
wise released by proper order of Court. 

This Mtty 29, 1913. · 

Georgia, Fulton County. 

(Signed), Hugh M. Dorsey, 
Sol. Gen. Atlanta ·Circuit.. 

Comes now Hugh M. Dorsey, who being duly sworn, deposes and says 
the allegations in the above petition are true so far as they come within his 
knowledge, and so far as derived from the information of others he believes 
them to be true. · 

Attested, May 29, 1913. 
Jobi!: H. Jones, (Signed) 
N. P. Fulton Co., Ga. 

(Signed), Hugh M. Dorsey. 

The above and foregoing petition read and considered. 

Let the said Ja~es Connally be taken into custody by the Sheriff of said 
County of Fulton, and be confined in the common jail of said County, until 
discharged by further order of this court. 

Let the said Connally be served with a copy of this order and "the petition 
on which it is based. Bond for the release of said Connally may be assessed 
in a reasonable sum upon proper application to the Court and af~son­
able notice in writing to the Solicitor General of the Circuit. ItSippearing 
to me that he does not object to t 1s order, but consents to same. 
Thi~ay 29, 1913. 

The State, 
vs. 

Leo J\{. Frank. -­
No. 9410 

. ·'js. (Signed) L. S. Roan, 
Judge S. C. ·stone Mountain Circuit, 

Presiding. 

-· 

Indic~nt in Fulton Superior Coui:.t~----­
J\{urder. · May Term, 1913. 

It appearing to the Court that James Connally has heretofore been com­
.· m.itted to the common jail of Fulton County to be held as a witness in .the 

above stated ·case,· and to be released o.nly on a proper order of Court; · 

. . -.. 

-----
:A;n.1rtrfurttrerappe111'in·g-th·arth· end of-jrrstiu-e require t lm sa10. ames 

Connally be r?lensed temporarily to the Chief of Polict of the City of Atlanta;-

It is therefore. orderel that Sheriff C. W. Mangum, of Fu1ton County, Geor­
gia. 4eliver the. said James Connally to said Chief of Police, James L. Beavers, 
or ,his lawful deputy·, to be received back- into-custody at !I.aid jail when de-

~ · 

•• 

I 
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livered back by ·said Chief of Police, the attorney for James .Connally con­
senting and not objecting_ to this· order, and being present . 

. This May 31, 1913. 

This is consented to by me 
(Sigp.ed-) William M. Smith 
Attorney for James Connally. 

Georgia, Fulton County. 

(Signed), L. S. 'Roan, 
Judge S. C. Stone Molmtain Circuit, 

Presiding. 

i 

To Hon. L. S. Roan, Judge- 'of-the-Stone Mountain Circuit, ·; , 
Presiding in the Superior Court, Criminal Division:- . 

The petition of Hugh M. Dorsey, Solicitor General of the ;.' 
Atlanta Cfrcuit, respectfully shows:- · ·· 

1. 

On May 29, 1913, this court, on petition of the above named Solicitor 
1

Gen-
' eral,-representing that James Connally was a material ·witness for t.h'e State 

in the c.ase of THE STATE vs. LEO M. FRANK, under indictment for mur­
der, and that said James Connally would probably not be . forthcoming to 

. respond to a subpoena in said ca~e,-ordered said Jtmes Conne,lfy held until 
further ·order of court ~s a witness in the above. staled case, and to be con­
fined in the county jail a,nd subsequently upon petitioner's -request made at 
the inst.ance o'f said Connally and his attorney, said Connally was allowed 

- held l>y the police authorities of the City of Atlanta. · 

2. / 

' Petitioner is satisfied that the necessity for hqtding said James Connally 
under the orders heretofore granted on- the-aforesaid petition. as a witness in 

- .~------ sai_d cas.e no longer ·exist. - ·----- - -

3. 

Wher~fore, petitioner prays that the . orders heretofore gran~ed in said 
cause be revoked, and tha.t said James Connally be discharged from custody. 
under said orders. 

(Signed) II ugh M. Dorsey, 
. "Sol. Gen. Atlanta Circuit. 

. ' 
' I 

/ 

I 

/ 

~ ; .· 

~------uorgia.-FultruL.Count~~~~~~~c__~~~~ ~--~-~~- -~~--­
a an considered, it is ordered that-:tfos petition and order Defileclamr ====-======= 

.duly ~eryed upon other claimed suspects in connect~on with the Phagan mm'.­_ ... ' . 

. ;·. 

• •• G' • • 

. . \ 

-~:-~ 

der, and cpnfined iii comm!On. jail of said -c-o_unty, to .wit, Leo M. Frank and-­
New't'·Lee, both either person~lly ~or by servillg ~heir attorneys, and any other 
-citizen Qf said ·County who- may)ece~ye thiJI :µ~tice .by ~ublication or .other~ 

.· 
... ·.· - --. -
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wise, may show cause before me, Friday. the 13th clay o"f June, at 10 o'clock 
A. l\i., at my chambers iu Thrower Building, Atlanta, Gil. Notice to be served 
by the sheriff or one of his d,eputies-,b;v leaving ropy of this petition and order, 
at once. · 
June 11, 1913. (Sig~1ed) L. S. Roan. 

Service aclmowlc•dged and fut·ther service Wllived. '~he confinement of 
said James Connally in the Police station was at my request and at the re­
quest of my client James Connally and I agree for said Connally to reinain 
in custody of the .Police authorities until the trial of Leo l\L Frank or until 
the indictment of said Connally. I agree to his eonfinement because he is a 
material witness for the State and I desire bis confinement at the: police sta­
tion, because of repeated ntt.einpts on the -part of visitors at the jail to tor­
ture and intimidate said James C'onnafl;v and to safeguard said James Con­
nally from perjured admissions,_fil!PJ.:!.Med to ha.~ell.-llla.dc....b¥--hhn .. - I .... w-aive 
his presence at the time of this trial. · - . 
This June 11. mm. (Signed) Wm. 1\1. Smith, 

Attorney for Ja1iles Connally. 

Georgia, Fulton County. 
Comes Newt Lee, by his attorney,· Bernard L. Chappell, and in pursuance 

of an order made by L. S. Roan. Judge of the · Superior Court, Criminal Di­
vision of said County. on the 11th day of June, 1913, hereby acknowledges 

- _service of said order as 'referred to the said Newt Lee, who is being held in 
.. the Fulton County common jail- upon the order of Paul Donehoo, coroner 

of-said lmunty as a suspect. m the .::\Inry Phagan murder ease. 
June . 12, 1913. 

(Signed) B~foard L. phappell, 
. - ·· Attorney for Newt Lee. 

Georgia, Fulton · County. 
- Lhav:e this day served L. Z. Hosse~'. \tt~· . for Leo l\LFrank, personally· 

_ · 'vith a copy of the within order. 
This Jnne 12, 1913. 

· . . ·.Georgia, Fulton County. 
State 'of Georgia, 

. YS. 

(Signed) T. A." Burdett, 
Deputy Sheriff. 

No. Fulton Superior Court. 
Criminal Division, Indictment for l\for.der . 

•·· 

Leo M. Frank. --======--=---- - '-------l::::::=;:========::;::=~~~~~====_::~::==:==;;j=:==;=:=:==~=,:::==:==:==:::~~~---.. And now comes James Conley, and in answer to the· rule nisi issued in 
the above ens~. s~ows to the court as follows: · 

1. Respondent admits that he is no~v held in custody under orders. of this 
Court,_ at the poli~e ·J?rison of the City . of Atlanta, lia"._ing .been originally held 

\ 
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in the prison of Fulton Count.y,_alaCLllllder order of this Court, the cause of 
said commitment by this Court of respondent, . being the allegation that Re­
spondent is-a material witness in the _above case, in behalf of the State, and it 
is -desired to insure the presence of Reispondent at the trial ·of the above case: 

: 2. Respondent admits that· he is now at the City police prison at his own 
request l}}ld instance, .and through the advi~e and counsel of his attorney. 

. . . . . 

3. Respondent shows .to the court that the City police prison is so arranged 
and so officered, that Respondent is ~-bsolutely safe as to his physical welfare 
from any attack. that might be made upon him i that .he is so confined that his 
cell is a so)itary one, there being no one else even located in the cell block 
with ~im; that the key to this cell bloqk and the cell .of Respondent is always 
in the possession of a sworn uniformed officer of the law; that under the 
instructions of Chief of Police Beavers, said sworn officers are not· allowed to 
permit any one to approach this Respondent or come into his cell block _ ~x-

- cept the attorney of Respondent and such persons as this Respondent may _ 
agree to see and talk with; ·that Respondent so confined.is protected from any 
physical harm and is protected from the pessibili-ty of legal harm by others 
who might seek to damage Respondent t>y ·false claims as to state-qients alleged ·-­

- to be made by ~espondent; 

4. Respondent uor his counsel have made no request for the release of · 
Respondent. or his transfer to any other place of confinement. 

5. Respondent is willing to remain indefinitely as a prisoner in solitary 
confinement, under any reasonable rules this court may direct, subject to any 
further order or. direction of this Court. 

/ 6. Respondent admits that he is a material witness -i-n .hsiialf of the State 
of Georgia in this case, and admits that in the exercise of sound discretion it 
is proper that Respondent be held until the final trial of this or any other case 
growing out of the unfortunate death of .Miss l\fary Phagan, but - this Re­
spo)'.ldent denies that in the exercise of sound judicial discretion. it is neces­
sary ~or this Court to order ·Respondent held a.t any particular p:i,:ison. 

. 7. Resp.ondent ·denies that thiS-Court has lega.l right in the ex~rcise of 
sound judicial disereti<;m to order this Respondent held as a witness iu behalf 
of the State, when iUs shown_to tbi.s--Court, _ns it.is shown beyond .peradyenture _ 

----------"-- oITO.ouot, that there 1s no poss1 intyfOrt 1s espon en no :flle pres-:-cen=-~-=-------.,... 

:) ... · .. , .. · -

and subject to calr as a witness in behalf of the. ~tate, since he is held in com-
~lete- and perfect imprisonment, and there being no possible theory that the 

ends of justice wi.ll be thwarted, and -au of these· facts being. without the 
slightest possible question, there ·is no reason for any order of · this Court, 
committing Respond?nt. · • · · · 

·--: .. 

---- ~ . 
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8. · Respondent is advised and belicyes that the Counsel for th~ Defend­
ant in . this case lias been within the last few days studying the law very 
thoroughly bear:ng on the question of holding of this Responde~t as a ma­
terial witness in behalf of the Rtate. nt any other place thap the County 
Prison, and also immedintely finds move on foot to have Respondent returned 
to the County prison. aud this Respondent is advised by his Counsel that it is 

. the belief of his Counsel that the itlea of ti:ansfer b~1ck to the County Prison 
has under it, plans laid by persons unfriendly to . the interests of this Respon­
dent and friendly to the ·interests of the Defendant in this case. 

9. Respondent denies that the law vests 111 this Colll't. the right of 
committal as fl witness in behalf of either side. umler the facts and circum­
stances of this or any other case. 

10. Respondent show8 that. the conditions at the County Jail arc such 
that the interests of justice as fflr as this Respondent is concerned can not 
be well safeguarded and the interest of Respondent and the interest of-justice 
are greatly threatened by the r.eturn of this Respondent to the County Jail. 

\} 

11. Respondent sliows that through no fault of the County Sheriff. a suf­
·ncient inside force of guards has not been provided by the County authorities,· 
only one man being paid h~ he County to guard twenty cell blocks distributed 
in twenty wings and over five ttoors · thHt it. is a physical impossibility. f~r this 
one man to .keep up or even know what is transpiring on five different floors 
or twenty separate immense mill and steel blocks; distributed through a large. 
building; that with this inadequate force. which this respondent is advised 
the Sheriff of this County has complained about,· it is an absolute impossibility 
for . the lrnst ::;heriff in the world or · the best trained deputies to know -exactly 
what is .going on at any and all times or any reasonable ·part of the time: that 

. the keys to practically all of. the cell blocks are carrie<l by "convicted crim­
inals, " known ns "trusties,'' who t.nrn in and out parties entering or leaving 
1~ell blocks, and w lrile they have general instructions covering their duties, it 
is an impossibility for the inside deputy to know whether each is .discharging 

--f1is duty properly at all times i t.lrn t tlIB__food is prepa1'.eCl and distributed iii 
the County prison itself and practically by ''convicted criminals'' whose dis­
regard for law and pri11ciple · is written upon the criminal records ·of this 
State; that owing to this l·undition men have hel'n kwown to· s<nv through 
solid steel bars and cages and · escape t<».freedom; th11J: it Wol,!l_d_ he· -~JHiy. __ .for 
anyone to reaCliorl1a rn1 Respondent Ol' to poison him tli'rough his food: that 
the "trusty tul'likeys" who are 1·ouvi1;ts can eas~ly swear as to admissions 
against the interest of this · Respondent, even though such admissions might 
not be macle; that-the friends of the defendant in· this case .1.ll'~ allowed to pour 
constantly .into the jail at all honrs .of the .day and up to 11 late hour of the. 

•· 
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night, and are in ·close touch with many of these "trusty ·~urnkeys," apd 
"trusty .attac_hes" of the jail; that while a prisoner at the. County Prison \re- . 
fore his transfer to the City Prison, u goodl~, number of people were admi_tted 
to the cell block to talk with Respondent. whose presence was not requested 
or desired; that among these visitors was one whoni· this Respond-ent has 

_every reason to believe was working in the interest of the Defendant; that 
this party prese.nted Respondent with sandwiches which this Respondent did 
not eat, that this same pa_rty also offered to present Respondent with whis­
key; that Respondent was therat~ned with physical harm \vhile in the Cottnty 
prison· to the extent of the possibility of taking hjs life; that he was de­
nounced as a -liar, relative to his testimony in this case; and this.J~esponclent 
is sure without the knowledge or through the neglect of the Sheriff or any of 
his men, but directly attributable to the eo11struction physically of the county 
prison and the inadequate force allowed the Sheriff to oversee and care for 
it; that Respondent is advised and believes that one of the parties friendly to 
the l)efendant is already priming himself to swear that Respond.ent made 
certain admissions while he was In the Count;r prison, which this Respondent 
did not make, and which testimony will' he false, but will be. given, tf g iven 
to help the defen~ant and damage this Respo,ndent. 

12. '!'hat this · Respondent wns imprisoned while in the County Prison 
directly over the cell block in which said Defendant is detained and . was 
lodges! among the most desperate criminals, one even being under sentence of 
death, and willing no doubt to swear or do anything necessary to help (!r pro­
long his life, that these desperate criminals, with whom this Respondent was 
lodged, had- this Respondennomptetely-at-tlreirmerey-and-cuuld-ew~ar thrt 
he admitted thiQgs _ mo~t damaging, and which would b~ false and untrue and · 
known by them to be fai_se and untr.ie. 

13. That Respondent is advised and believes that the Sheriff of. this 
County has publicly proclaimed that · the Defendant looks him in the eye like 
an innocen_t man; that th_e S.heriff has given said Defendant an entire cell 
block and has isolated him completely except from his friends ;- that -the 

heriff has expressed himself as not desiring that nigger returned to the 
County Prison, meaning Respondent; that the Sheriff appears to feel that the 
re.quests -made by Respondent are ·meant as a refleetion upon -the ·sheriff, but 
same was not so intended to be construed, nor was same so rep1•esented to 
the Court at the time of the transfe1\ nor was any such allegation made before 
the Court, at the. time of the pa~f:iage of the second ~rder transfer,.1~i-ng Respon-

..-~ .:.-

0 • .. 

---. - dent back- to lhe-CJfy=:J>pison,_!1J>r-=dQe1f1,tespon_dent -belie;v~ that san:llLWas. u· .._ _ _ _____ _ 

mind of the Court at the. time of the passage of the order or ·influenced the 
Court; but that the inadequate force allowed the Sheriff and tlie construc­

-----tion\ of the Jail rendered this request by Respondent necessary, and same was · 
. ma4e -t~ ~his . Court, with "no statement of_fo..ets, other_ than it · was,Jequested 

·-- -·: 
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by Respondent and in the judgment of the representatives of the State ther~ 
was· necessity .for the same. 

Wherefore .. this Respondent agrees, . to the passage of an order revoking 
former orde1•s hi this case: and waves his presence at the Court, upon a· hear­
ing of same. 

_Georgia, Fulton County. 

(Signed) Wm. l\I. Smith, 
Attorney for Ja1~es Conley. 

Personally appeared b_efore me, the l.mdersigned attesting officer, James 
Conley, who after being duly swoi·n deposes and swears that the. facts set out 
in the above and foregoing respons~ so far as they come within his own knowl­

___ ___ _,,0~d't!g-0-al!e true and wl1ere derived from the inf9rmation of . others he believes 
them to be true. 

Sworn to · and subscribed before me 
this June 13, 1913. 
c. c. Tedder, 
Not.ary Public, !<'ult.on County, Ga. 

IN RE: 

(8igned) James Conley. 

__ Application of Hugh .M. Dorsey, ~olicitor-G_eneral to release James Con­
ley from Legal Custody. 

In answer to the petition and order in the above stated cause, served 
UP-OU u~as attorneys for Leo _ Frank, we herewith ans-\ver and show cause as 
foilows: 

·1. If the intentio·n of th e Solicitor Uen.eral is to discharge this negro 
. from custody becm1se (a) h~ is in fact not a material 'witness against Frank 

or (b)although he is a material witness, his integrity and character are such 
·- - "r hat he -ought to have!1is liberty and be trusted t o o bey the subpoena of this 

court, then, considered as a witness ronly, he ought to ·be disch~rged and indeed -
he should notJiave b~en imprisoned-at all . . Btn-ru-such case to enact the farce 

. in· the court's presence of releasing the negro and immediately return him to 
his wet-nurses, at the Police Station, would resemble child's.play: 

2. But if the Solicitor believes that one of u 'number- of contradictory 

•• 

---~-- ____ sta~ements made by this n~fil'.Q.. Jnay, if_prope.rly_E~eser~ed...1 b~ ·ma e- v:al bJe ======= 
rn tlie -prosemiHon oCFrank, and' that the- negro may destroy its value if left , 
free. to talk, ancl in order to stop liis 'mouth it is necessary that the detec­
tives should keep him in charge, ·then \ v'etl:iink we· :Grove the right to protest 
against_ any order · of~ a court of -justice that winks at si.1Ch a purpose. 
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3. We afy-C-onstrained to the conclusion that it is not the purpose for · a~y . 
reason to release this negro, but, by obtaining the order here sought, continue 
the present, ilfogal confinement. · . 

. 4. But Frank is hil~decply interested in this proceeding." · 'rhat the 
consent of the Solicitor and the will of the negro is all that is required to re­

. verse the will of the law, is erroneous. The State has the right in the interest. 
-- · . of justice to pnt a -witness in custody, but where in custody and in whose· cus­

tody is of the highest importance. The. law has given such custody to ·the 
Sheriff and wisely so. The Sheriff is not a prosecutor; the jail itself ·is not 
usually a place of punishment, but a temporary ptace of detention. The 
Sheriff is supposed to st.and impartially between the State and"bis prisoners, 
and may be trusted neither to cajole, threaten. nor·· suppress any testimony 
by third degree methods. The law never m,eant to place a witness, who, for 
lack of character, needs confinement under the control of a partisan prose­
cutor. 

5. That the detectives should wish- to keep Conley in custody and en­
tertain i1im at the city's expense, is not at all surprising. They have already 
extracted from him . extravagant, unthinkable confessions, three or four in 
number: 'ro these statements they haJLe given the widest publicity, and to 
the credibility of the last one they have staked their reputations and hope of 
place. 

Upon the constancy and stability of this witness, they have staked their 
all. They would be less than human if they did not b'end all their power and 
ingenuity in holding him to his present statement,. adding to and taking there­
from only such things as will aid its credibility. 

Can any fair-minded man believe that Lanford is a fair man to be the 
custodian of this ignorant negro? What chance would he have to retract any 
lies he may liave told, or if in a repentant mood, lie should w1sh to tell the 
truth Y This negro in tbe city pri~on, in the powo~ of Lanford, apart from all 
questions of truth, would be just as dangerous as Lanford would wish him to 

------ --- be.- -No one knows that better than Lanford, and no one would feel it as 
acutely as, will thi.s__negro ' . 

How well Lanford knows. it, can be. seen fr-0m his interview in the Atlanta 
Georgian of June 12th. In tha~~intervie"' he demonstrated that he thinks 
he has full, unrestricted ownership of this negro. He' graciously expresses his 
willingpess for this negrd to go he ore the Grand Jury upon such terms as he 
suggests. Neither the negro, nor ·the negro's lawyer, nor the Grand Jury is 

=.:::=====· ~c~on~si:!!i~d~el!~-e~d~.-Nor was this cou~t. ·to_he. consulte<l=his: will.and not the orS}er ....::.... _ __:_____:_.::__-==== 
of this court was to determine .when and under what circmµstances the negro 
sb,ould leave the Police Station. 

. . 
If Lanford vaunt~-in the face of jury and court, his powe.r over this negro, 

what must be his bearing ·when he deals privately _with the negro himselff 
\ 
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What chance has he to abstract a lie or add a tru.th to the foolish statement 
which Lanfo.rd approves _an<l wishes to maintain 1 If this man will, when he is 
holding this negro under your Honor's order, declare such ownership over 
this negro 's person and movements, to what legnth would he go if the court 
releases its power over him and turns him over to Lanford 's unrestricted 
power? 

6. lt is just to l<'rnnk, as well Jls in . the interci;t of public ,justice, that 
this negro should be detained by unbiased, -fair nen, - w-Iwse-reput_ations and 
positions are- not at stake. The law recognizes · this right and has put that 
duty upon the Sheriff. Will there be less fairness and less decency in the 
county jail than in the police station? When did J;a~ford become a wiser. 
~Aire~, better man than the Sheriff of this County Y 

7. .Apart from this neg1·0 's position as 11 witness, his detention in the 
~ustody of the detectives would be(1t public calamity. Jlany unbiased people 
believe this negro is the murderer of Jittle l\Iary Phagan. The facts of the 
case, apart from his own confession, point -lnost strongly to l;im as the guilty 
man: 

(a) On the day of the murder he was drunk and concealed himself in a 
po;ition where he could readily commit the murde!'. 

(b) On l\Ionday morning he was unduly excited, so much so as to arouse 
the · suspicions of the employees. 

(c) _ When the _police were in the building, he was caught .hiding in an 
obscm·e part of the factory where he had no business. · · 

(d) When questioned about this conduct , he said he would give a large 
sum to be a white man. · \Vhen asked why, he said he could .then get safely · 
past the police. 

' 
(e) He, for 11 long time persistently denied that he could write and did 

no·t_ admit that he could until longer ·denial was useless . 

(f) He was c11ught washiug 11 shirt, a thing .he had never done before, 
and when caught, gave a foolish excuse. 

Tg) Ile denied· all participation in, or kQP.wledge of· the crime until ,he -
was driven by the charge that he wrote the notes-found..Dear the body. 

(h) On May 18, he made a signed statement outlining his act.ions on 
Aprii 26, making no mention of th~ murder. 

' --=-=-----=----~-ill - On Ma~4,_he_ made au affidaltii He-aaid-that=on-=April-25t-h, efore·-======= 
the murder on April 26th, he wrote . the notes at the request of Frank, for 
which Fra~k gave )tim cigarettes and lf;2.50 and added statementa . about 
F
1 

ran_k 's people in B~oklyn -~-n_d . an inq.u~ _b:Y Frank as to why .he should 
tang, . · · - · · 

·. 
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' (j) On the 28th of May, Conley made a long affidavit, full of contra-
dictions and absurdities, beginning it as follows: : · 

111 inake this statement, my second statement in regari!_to the murder 
ofnfary Phagan at the National Pencil Company factory. In my first state­
ment, I made the statement that I went to the pencil facory on Friday, ·April 
25th, and went in Frank 'p, office at five minutes to one, which is a mis_take. I 
make this statement in regard to Friday in order that I might not be accused 
of knowing anything of this murder, for I thought if I put myself there on 
Saturday they might accuse me of having a hand in it, and I now make MY 

- SECOND AND LAST STATEMENT regarding the matter freely and volun-
- tarily, after thinking over the situation, and I bave made up my mind to tell 
the whole truth and I make it freely and voluntarily without the promise 
of any reward or -from force or fear of punishment i~ any way. 11 

(k) After this beginning he sets out with variations the writing of the 
notes on Saturday instead of on Friday, and in a long rabbling statement his 
movements at home and on Peters S~reet on Saturday and on Monday at the 
factozy, most-of which is wholly disconnected with the murd~r. · 

(1) On May 29th, 19l3, although he had already sworn that he made 
"bis true, full and last statement," he made another statement in which he 
purported -to aid Frank in tioncealing the body of. Mary· Phagan. This state­
tnent is full of contradictions and wholly irreconcilable ·with its~lf and with 
the known facts surrounding the murder. 

(m) Ee closes this :remarkable affidavit in the follo.wing w.ords: "The 
reason I have not told this before is that I thought Mr. ·Frank would get out 
and help me out, but it seems that he is not going to get out, and I decided to · 
tell the. whole truth about the matter." 

8. These incoherent, jibbering statements will, it is believed, impress the 
·orand Jury· if the negro Conley's case is submitted to it. 

9. The Grand Jury can be trusted to scan these queer statements in 
the ligh,t of all the surrounding facts and circumstances ··and taken in connec­
tion with all the othel' facts i~plicating-C~mley, t~ey procl~-i~ his guilt beyon~ _ 
all reasonable doubt. . . . . . .. , . ·,_ 

10. The-detectives., obsessed as they are with the assumption that Con-
ley is a tool and not a murderer, .a_re unfit to keep him in their soie "and unlim- __ 
ited power~- Under thejr__pr_otectin.g-e1u!e Conley,-instead-of-:being-Ieft~o=:.:e~~========:........,..-----"=i 
the truth, will at length deceive himself into the belief that instead of b'e'ng 

. a murderer he is· an unfortunate. victim. · 

. · _ · 11. - That Cortley 'and his counsel wish it-, is the best reason w},ty it should ___ . 
---~- ·--not, be-done-. - As-long-as- he-sticks to a ·story ·pleasing to -thedetectives-:Or · .. . . . . -.---' 
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builds up that story as· additions may- be needed, .he is assured that the de~ 
tectives will save him as far as possible from court -and Grand Jury, and will, 
so far, as th_ey can, fix upon him no greater crime than that of ~ misdem.eanor. 

, 12. Conley and his counsel are wise. There is for them no. other hope 
than for the detectives to keep Conley and save him from a confession that he 
committed the crime, giving ·him immunity, provided he continues to put the 
guilt on Frank. 

Respectfully submitted, 
· Rosser & Brandon, 

Attys. for Leo Frank. 

Order granted that said James Conley be discharged as prayed and all 
orders, as set out in petition ·cancelled that were -signed heretofore by me. 
This June 13, 1913. · 

(Signed) li. S. Roan, 
J. S. St. l\1t. Ct., Presiding. 

The within ·and" foregoing pages are hereby approved as a true, correct 
and complete brief of the evidence in the case therein (and at the caption 
thereof), referred to. 

Qct. 31, 1913. 
(Signed) L. S. ROAN, 

J. S. C. St. l\1t. Ct. 

( 
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